
           

CALENDAR FOR THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

CONTRA COSTA COUNTY
AND FOR SPECIAL DISTRICTS, AGENCIES, AND AUTHORITIES GOVERNED BY THE BOARD

BOARD CHAMBERS ROOM 107, ADMINISTRATION BUILDING, 651 PINE STREET

MARTINEZ, CALIFORNIA 94553-1229

JOHN GIOIA, CHAIR, 1ST DISTRICT

CANDACE ANDERSEN, VICE CHAIR, 2ND DISTRICT

MARY N. PIEPHO, 3RD DISTRICT

KAREN MITCHOFF, 4TH DISTRICT

FEDERAL D. GLOVER, 5TH DISTRICT

DAVID J. TWA, CLERK OF THE BOARD AND COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR, (925) 335-1900

PERSONS WHO WISH TO ADDRESS THE BOARD DURING PUBLIC COMMENT OR WITH RESPECT TO

AN ITEM THAT IS ON THE AGENDA, WILL BE LIMITED TO THREE (3) MINUTES.

The Board Chair may reduce the amount of time allotted per speaker at the beginning of each item or public comment period depending on the number of speakers and the business of

the day. Your patience is appreciated.

A lunch break or closed session may be called at the discretion of the Board Chair.

Staff reports related to open session items on the agenda are also accessible on line at www.co.contra-costa.ca.us.

AGENDA

December 8, 2015

             

9:00 A.M. Convene, Call to Order and Opening Ceremonies

Inspirational Thought- "For myself, success is to leave the woodpile a little higher than I found

it." ~ Paul Harvey
 

CONSIDER CONSENT ITEMS (Items listed as C.1 through C.115 on the following agenda) –

Items are subject to removal from Consent Calendar by request of any Supervisor or on request

for discussion by a member of the public. Items removed from the Consent Calendar will be

considered with the Discussion Items.
 

PRESENTATIONS (5 Minutes Each)
 

PR.1   PRESENTATION to accept the 2014/15 Annual Report from the Contra Costa

County Juvenile Justice-Delinquency Prevention Commission. (Harvey Samuels

and Carl Livengood, Co-Chairs of the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention

Commission)
 

DISCUSSION ITEMS
 

D. 1 CONSIDER Consent Items previously removed.
 

D.2   RECEIVE oral report from the Sheriff, Health Services Director, and

Employment and Human Services Director on the security precautions that exist

at County health and social services facilities.
 

http://www.co.contra-costa.ca.us


 

D.3   HEARING on the itemized costs of abatement for property located at 549 Grove

Ave., Richmond, CA (Elizabeth Smith, Owner). (Jason Crapo, Conservation and

Development Department)
 

D.4   HEARING to consider adopting Ordinance No. 2015-22 amending the 2013

California Green Building Standards Code to establish electric vehicle parking

and charging station standards. (Jason Crapo, Conservation and Development

Department)
 

D.5   HEARING on the itemized costs of abatement for property located at 14 Cooke

Ave., Crockett, CA. (Gabriel Almanza. Owner) (Jason Crapo, Department of

Conservation and Development)
 

D.6   CONSIDER approving and authorizing the Conservation and Development

Director, or designee, to execute a Cooperation Agreement for the Community

Development Block Grant (CDBG) Urban County and HOME Investment

Partnerships Act (HOME) Consortium with the City of Richmond for fiscal years

2016\17 and 2017/18 and with an option to renew for subsequent three-year

terms, through which the County will administer CDBG and HOME funds

previously granted to the City of Richmond. (100% Federal funds) (Kara

Douglas, Conservation and Development Department)
 

D.7   CONSIDER approving phased implementation of a 28.8% increase in solid waste

collection rates charged to residential, commercial and light industrial customers

in the unincorporated areas served by Allied Waste Systems, Inc., under the

County’s Franchise Agreement, with a 15% rate increase effective January 15,

2016, a 12% rate increase effective January 15, 2017, and deferring whether or

not to implement the remaining 1.8% rate increase until the 2020 Base Year Rate

Review, as recommended by the Conservation and Development Director.

(Deidra Dingman, Conservation and Development Department)
 

D. 8 PUBLIC COMMENT (3 Minutes/Speaker)
 

D. 9 CONSIDER reports of Board members.
 

Closed Session

A. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS

1. Agency Negotiators: David Twa and Bruce Heid.

Employee Organizations: Contra Costa County Employees’ Assn., Local No. 1; Am. Fed., State,

County, & Mun. Empl., Locals 512 and 2700; Calif. Nurses Assn.; Service Empl. Int’l Union,

Local1021; District Attorney’s Investigators Assn.; Deputy Sheriffs Assn.; United Prof.

Firefighters, Local 1230; Physicians’ & Dentists’ Org. of Contra Costa; Western Council of

Engineers; United Chief Officers Assn.; Service Empl. Int’l Union United Health Care Workers



Engineers; United Chief Officers Assn.; Service Empl. Int’l Union United Health Care Workers

West; Contra Costa County Defenders Assn.; Probation Peace Officers Assn. of Contra Costa

County; Contra Costa County Deputy District Attorneys’ Assn.; and Prof. & Tech. Engineers,

Local 21, AFL-CIO.

2. Agency Negotiators: David Twa.

Unrepresented Employees: All unrepresented employees.

B. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL--EXISTING LITIGATION (Gov. Code, §

54956.9(d)(1))

John Walsh and Richard Strand as GALs for Persephone Marilyn Walsh, a minor v. Contra

Costa Health Services, et al., Contra Costa County Superior Court Case No. C14-00016

1.

Retiree Support Group of Contra Costa County v. Contra Costa County, U.S. District Court,

Northern District of California, Case No. C12-00944 JST

2.

C. LIABILITY CLAIMS

In re Claim of Maninder Wilhelm, et al.
 

ADJOURN IN MEMORY OF

the victims of the December 2 shooting at the

San Bernardino County Department of Public Health

 

 

CONSENT ITEMS
 

Road and Transportation
 

C. 1   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Public Works Director, or designee, to execute

a Right of Entry agreement with Union Pacific Railroad Company for Camino

Diablo paving at the Union Pacific Railroad Company's crossing, and APPROVE

payment of $750 for Marsh USA’s Railroad Protective Liability Insurance, Byron

area. (100% Local Road Funds)
 

C. 2   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Chair, Board of Supervisors, to execute

Amendment No. 7 to Agreement No. 208 with the Contra Costa Transportation

Authority effective October 21, 2015, to increase the amount payable to Contra

Costa County by $200,000 for a new payment limit of $7,248,054 for the State

Route 4 East Widening Somersville Road to State Route 160 Project, as

recommended by the Public Works Director, East County area. (100% Contra

Costa Transportation Authority funds)
 

C. 3   APPROVE the conveyance of real property acquired for the State Route 4 East

Widening Somersville Road to State Route 160 Project Segment 1, to the State of

California, as recommended by the Public Works Director, Antioch area. (100%

Contra Costa Transportation Authority Funds)
 

C. 4   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Public Works Director, or designee, to execute



C. 4   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Public Works Director, or designee, to execute

a contract amendment with CH2M Hill, Inc., effective November 5, 2015, to

extend the term from November 5, 2015 to November 5, 2017 for on-call

structural engineering services, with no change to the original payment limit of

$250,000, Countywide. (100% Special Revenue Funds)
 

Engineering Services

 

C. 5   ADOPT Resolution No. 2015/436 approving the third extension of the Road

Improvement Agreement for road acceptance RA06-01208, for a project being

developed by Shapell Homes, a Division of Shapell Industries, Inc., a Delaware

Corporation, as recommended by the Public Works Director, San Ramon

(Dougherty Valley) area. (No fiscal impact)
 

Special Districts & County Airports

 

C. 6   APPROVE and ADOPT the Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) Program

for County Airports and AUTHORIZE the Public Works Director, or designee, to

sign and submit the DBE Program document to the Federal Aviation

Administration for acceptance, and RESCIND the existing Disadvantaged

Business Enterprise Program approved by the Board of Supervisors on June 9,

2009, with regard to the Federal Aviation Administration, Concord and Byron

areas. (100% Federal Aviation Administration funds)
 

Claims, Collections & Litigation

 

C. 7   DENY claims filed by Shawn Marbley, and Jorge Villa. DENY Application to

File Late Claim Alejandra & Daniela Rivera and William Thomas.
 

Honors & Proclamations

 

C. 8   ADOPT Resolution No. 2015/462 recognizing Dale Barnett, National

Commander of the American legion, as he visits Post 246 in Danville, as

recommended by Supervisor Andersen.
 

C. 9   ADOPT Resolution No. 2015/463 celebrating the 5th Annual Scare Away Hunger

Event, as recommended by Supervisor Mitchoff.
 

Appointments & Resignations

 

C. 10   RE-APPOINT Theresa Kula to the District V Public Sector seat on the Economic



C. 10   RE-APPOINT Theresa Kula to the District V Public Sector seat on the Economic

Opportunity Council, as recommended by Supervisor Glover.
 

C. 11   APPOINT Grayce Smith to the Oakley Local Committee seat on the Advisory

Council on Aging, as recommended by the Employment and Human Services

Director.
 

C. 12   APPOINT in lieu of election Michael Craig and James Folsom to fill the offices

of District Trustees for Reclamation District No. 2059, Bradford Island, as

recommended by the County Administrator.
 

C. 13   APPROVE the appointments, reappointments, privileges, advancements,

department changes, voluntary resignations and updated OB/GYN privileges as

recommend by the Medical Staff Executive Committee, at their November 16,

2015 meeting, and by the Health Services Director.
 

Appropriation Adjustments

 

C. 14   Sheriff's Office (0362): APPROVE Appropriations and Revenue Adjustment No.

5024 authorizing new revenue in the amount of $352,682 from the California

Emergency Management Agency, 2015 Emergency Management Performance

Grant and appropriating it to sustain and enhance all-hazards emergency

management capabilities within the County. (100% Federal)
 

Intergovernmental Relations
 

C. 15   SUPPORT the recommendation from the Legislation Committee to sponsor a bill

in 2016 to ensure that both current Contra Costa County and dependent special

district non-safety employees and new non-safety employees continue to receive

the same disability retirement benefit, as recommended by the Legislation

Committee. (No fiscal impact)
 

Personnel Actions

 

C. 16   ADOPT Position Adjustment Resolution No. 21740 to add one Administrative

Aide-Deep Class (represented) position and one Community and Media Relations

Specialist (represented) position, and cancel one Account Clerk-Experienced

Level (represented) position and one Social Worker (represented) position in the

Employment and Human Services Department. (45% Federal, 45% State, 10%

County)
 

C. 17   ADOPT Position Adjustment Resolution No. 21777 to add one Senior Buyer

(represented) position and cancel one Buyer II (represented) position in the Public

Works Department. (100% General Fund)
 



C. 18   ADOPT Position Adjustment Resolution No. 21766 to add one Social Service

Program Assistant (represented) position and cancel one Eligibility Work

Specialist (represented) position in the Employment and Human Services

Department. (45% Federal, 45% State, 10% County) 
 

C. 19   ADOPT Position Adjustment Resolution No. 21788 to add one part time (20/40)

Victim/Witness Assistance Program Specialist (represented) position in the

District Attorney's office. (80% State, 20% In-Kind County match)
 

C. 20   ADOPT Position Adjustment Resolution No. 21779 to retitle the class of

Departmental Personal Computer Coordinator (represented) to Information

Systems Supervisor (represented), reallocate the class of Information Systems

Supervisor on the Salary Schedule, and reclassify two positions to Information

Systems Supervisor in the Employment and Human Services Department. (45%

Federal, 45% State, 10% County)
 

C. 21   ADOPT Position Adjustment Resolution No. 21778 to add one Independent

Living Skills Program Specialist (represented) position in the Employment and

Human Services Department. (100% State)
 

C. 22   ADOPT Position Adjustment Resolution No. 21782 to add one Medical Records

Coder position (represented) in the Health Services Department. (100% CCHP

Enterprise Fund II)
 

C. 23   ADOPT Position Adjustment Resolution No. 21783 to add one Veterans Service

Representative (represented) position in the Veterans Service Department. (100%

State funds)
 

C. 24   ADOPT Position Adjustment Resolution No. 21787 to add three Legal Assistant

(represented) positions in the District Attorney's Office - Special Operations unit.

(33% Real Estate Fraud, 33% State Insurance Fraud grants, 17% Consumer

Protection, and 16% Environmental funds)
 

C. 25   ADOPT Position Adjustment Resolution No. 21794 to add two part time (24/40)

Registered Nurse-Experienced Level positions (represented) and cancel one

Registered Nurse-Experienced Level position (represented) in the Health Services

Department. (100% CCHP Enterprise Fund II)
 

C. 26   ADOPT Position Adjustment Resolution No. 21731 to reallocate the salaries of

the Supervising Accidental Release Prevention Engineer (represented) and

Director of Hazardous Materials Programs-Exempt (unrepresented)

classifications in the Health Services Department. (100% Hazardous Materials

fees)
 

C. 27   ADOPT Resolution No. 2015/448 to adjust the salary ranges of certain job



C. 27   ADOPT Resolution No. 2015/448 to adjust the salary ranges of certain job

classifications to be in compliance with the State of California minimum wage

law effective January 1, 2016, as recommended by the County Administrator.
 

C. 28   ADOPT Resolution No. 2015/452 correcting and replacing the attachment

presented to the Board on October 20, 2015, in regards to the Memorandum of

Understanding (MOU) between Contra Costa County and the Deputy District

Attorneys' Association (DDAA) for the period of July 1, 2015 through June 30,

2018, as recommended by the County Administrator.
 

Grants & Contracts
 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE execution of agreements between the County and the

following agencies for receipt of fund and/or services:

 

C. 29   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Agricultural Commissioner, or designee, to

execute a contract with the California Agricultural Commissioners and Sealers

Association, to reimburse the County in an amount not to exceed $6,372 for

non-mandated pesticide use reporting activities for the period of July 1, 2015

through June 30, 2016. (No County match)
 

C. 30   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute a contract with the Mt. Diablo Unified School District, to pay the County

an amount not to exceed $9,000 for the Outreach Tuberculosis Testing Program

for Mt. Diablo Unified School District employees, for the period September 1,

2015 through June 30, 2016. (No County match)
 

C. 31   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the County Administrator, or designee, to execute

a contract amendment with the State of California, California Arts Council, to

increase the amount payable to the County by $11,996 for a new total of $23,996,

to provide advocacy for the advancement of the arts in Contra Costa County, with

no change in the term of October 1, 2015 through September 30, 2016. (50%

County General Fund Match Budgeted)
 

C. 32   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the County Clerk-Recorder, or designee, to apply

for and accept a "HAVA Polling Place Accessibility Training Program" grant in

the amount of $38,370 from the California Secretary of State for reimbursement

to the County for voter accessibility activities and equipment, for the period

November 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016. (No County match)
 

C. 33   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute a non-financial memorandum of understanding with the Anthem Blue

Cross Health Plan, including mutual indemnification, to provide targeted case

management services to Anthem’s Medi-Cal patients served by the County’s

public health clinics, for the period July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2020. (No

County match)



 

C. 34   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to apply

for and accept, if awarded, the California State EMS Authority Health

Information Exchange Emergency Medical Services Grant in an amount not to

exceed $500,000 to demonstrate health information exchange between emergency

medical services and community hospitals. (No County match)
 

C. 35   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute a contract with Pittsburg Unified School District, to pay the County an

amount not to exceed $3,800 to provide the Public Health Clinic Services

Scoliosis Screening Project for 7th and 8th grade students, for the period

September 1, 2015 through August 31, 2016. (No County match)
 

C. 36   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute a contract with the West Contra Costa Unified School District, to pay the

County an amount not to exceed $5,000 to provide mental health services to

students and their families, for the period September 1, 2015 through June 30,

2016. (No County match)
 

C. 37   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute a non-financial agreement with Anthem Blue Cross Health Plan,

including mutual indemnification, for coordination of the Targeted Case

Management Program, County’s Public Health Clinic Services, for the period July

1, 2015 through June 30, 2020. (Non-financial)
 

C. 38   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Sheriff-Coroner, or designee, to execute a

contract with the City of Oakley, including mutual indemnification, to pay the

County an amount not to exceed $3,000,000 to provide police dispatching

services for the period May 1, 2016 through April 30, 2021. (100% City of

Oakley)
 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE execution of agreement between the County and the

following parties as noted for the purchase of equipment and/or services:

 

C. 39   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Conservation and Development Director, or

designee, to execute a contract with Contra Costa Resource Conservation District,

including modified General Conditions and indemnification provisions, in an

amount not to exceed $40,000 for the Pinole Creek Fish Passage Enhancement

Project, for the period January 1, 2016 through December 31, 2017. (100% Fish

and Wildlife Propagation Fund)
 

C. 40   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Employment and Human Services Director, or



C. 40   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Employment and Human Services Director, or

designee, to execute a contract with Mt. Diablo Adult Education, including

modified indemnification language, in an amount not to exceed $40,577 for

outreach and training of California Work Opportunity and Responsibility to Kids

(CalWORKS) clients for the period October 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016. (85%

Federal, 15% State)
 

C. 41   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Conservation and Development Director, or

designee, to execute a contract extension with Cardno, to extend the term from

December 31, 2015 through December 31, 2016 with no change in the payment

limit, to provide continued service for the completion of the Environmental

Impact Report for the Shell Martinez Refinery's Greenhouse Gas Reduction

Project. (County File #LP14-2006) (100% applicant funds)
 

C. 42   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Chief Information Officer, or designee, to

execute (1) a contract amendment with CherryRoad Technologies, Inc., effective

December 8, 2015, to increase the payment limit by $467,360 to a new payment

limit of $6,152,310, for the purchase of 10,250 Oracle cloud service seat licenses

and Taleo Recruiting and Transitions Onboarding licenses, and for additional

services to implement the County’s Taleo Recruiting and Transitions Onboarding

solution, and (2) a Cloud Services Ordering Document, dated January 4, 2016,

with Oracle America, Inc., for the Oracle cloud service and Taleo Application

licenses. (100% PeopleSoft Project budget)
 

C. 43   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Public Works Director, or designee, to execute

a contract amendment with Blessing & Harvey Professional Services, Inc. (dba

Ernie’s Plumbing & Sewer Service), effective December 8, 2015, to increase the

payment limit by $1,200,000 to a new payment limit of $1,850,000, with no

change to the original term of April 1, 2015 through March 31 2018, for sublet

emergency plumbing services, Countywide. (100% General Fund)
 

C. 44   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Public Works Director, or designee, to execute

a contract amendment with Overmiller, Inc. (dba Roto-Rooter Sewer Service),

effective December 8, 2015, to increase the payment limit by $1,200,000 to a new

payment Limit of $1,850,000, with no change to the original term of April 1, 2015

through March 31 2018, for sublet emergency plumbing services, Countywide.

(100 % General Fund)
 

C. 45   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Public Works Director, or designee, to execute

a contract amendment with Matrix HG, Inc., effective December 8, 2015, to

increase the payment limit by $1,200,000 to a new payment limit of $2,300,000,

with no change to the original term of December 1, 2014 through November 30,

2017, to provide heating, ventilation and air conditioning services, Countywide.

(100 % General Fund)
 

C. 46   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the County Librarian, or designee, to execute a



C. 46   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the County Librarian, or designee, to execute a

contract with San Jose State University to provide unpaid Master of Library and

Information Science Internships for the period January 1, 2016 through December

31, 2021. (No fiscal impact)
 

C. 47   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute a contract with East Bay Cardiology Medical Group, Inc., in an amount

not to exceed $700,000 to provide cardiology services, for the period January 1,

2016 through December 31, 2017. (100% Contra Costa Health Plan Enterprise

Fund II)
 

C. 48   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Auditor-Controller, or designee, to pay

stipends in an amount not to exceed $15 per individual for one-half day, or $25

per individual for one full day to foster parents and birth parents for attendance at

training workshops, focus groups, and meetings, in a total amount not to exceed

$95,000, for the period July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2017. (62% Federal, 30%

State, 8% County)
 

C. 49   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute a contract with Careerstaff Unlimited, Inc. (dba Therapists Unlimited), in

an amount not to exceed $250,000 to provide temporary occupational, physical

and speech therapists, pharmacists and pharmacy technicians, medical social

workers, ultrasound technologists and other ancillary classifications at Contra

Costa Regional Medical and Health Centers, for the period January 1 through

December 31, 2016. (100% Hospital Enterprise Fund I)
 

C. 50   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute a contract with Alexander Gorodetsky, M.D., in an amount not to exceed

$116,480 to provide outpatient psychiatric services at the West County Adult

Mental Health Clinic, for the period January 1 through December 31, 2016.

(100% Mental Health Realignment)
 

C. 51   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute a contract with Michael Levin, M.D. in an amount not to exceed

$250,600, to provide outpatient psychiatric services at the Central County Adult

Mental Health Clinic, including the provision of expert testimony in

conservatorship trials, for the period January 1, 2016 through December 31, 2016.

(100% Mental Health Realignment)
 

C. 52   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute a contract with Martha D. Newman in an amount not to exceed $190,000

to provide consultation and technical assistance to Contra Costa Regional Medical

and Health Centers on the Delivery System Reform Incentive Plan, for the period

December 1, 2015 through November 30, 2016. (100% Hospital Enterprise Fund

I)
 

C. 53   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to



C. 53   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute a contract with L. Evan Custer, M.D., in an amount not to exceed

$990,000 to provide radiology services at Contra Costa Regional Medical and

Health Centers, for the period December 1, 2015 through November 30, 2018.

(100% Hospital Enterprise Fund I)
 

C. 54   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Public Defender, or designee, to execute a

contract with West Publishing Corporation in an amount not to exceed $116,230

to provide online legal resource services and printed materials for the period

November 29, 2015 through November 28, 2018. (100% General Fund)
 

C. 55   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute a contract with Jon Whalen, M.D., in an amount not to exceed $300,800

to provide outpatient psychiatric services for the period February 1, 2016 through

January 31, 2017. (50% Mental Health Realignment Fund; 50% Federal Financial

Participation)
 

C. 56   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute a contract with Jasbir Virk, M.D., in an amount not to exceed $163,398 to

provide outpatient psychiatric services for children and adolescents at West

County Mental Health Clinics for the period January 1 through December 31,

2016. (50% Federal Funding; 50% Mental Health Realignment)
 

C. 57   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Conservation and Development Director, or

designee, to execute a contract amendment with Environmental Science

Associates, Inc., to increase the payment limit by $150,000 to a new limit of

$300,000, with modified indemnification, and extend the term from December

31, 2015 through December 31, 2017, for continued technical consulting services

associated with waste diversion programs. (75% Franchise Fees, 25% Oil Grant

Funds)
 

C. 58   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Conservation and Development Director, or

designee, to execute a contract amendment with Urban Tilth, to extend the term

from December 31, 2015 to December 31, 2018 and increase the payment limit

by $22,000 to a new payment limit of $457,000, for the development of an Urban

Farm in North Richmond, and take other related actions. (100% Park Dedication

Trust Fund)
 

C. 59   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute a contract with Edgewood Center for Children and Families in an amount

not to exceed $160,000 to provide specialty mental health services to severely

emotionally disturbed children including mental health services, collateral

services, and therapeutic behavioral services for the period July 1, 2015 through

June 30, 2016, with a six-month automatic extension through December 31, 2016

in an amount not to exceed $80,000. (50% Federal Financial Participation; 50%

County Realignment)
 



C. 60   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute a contract with Sonja Robinson, R.N. (dba Healthcare Solutions USA), in

an amount not to exceed $384,000 to provide healthcare consultation and

technical assistance to the Health Plan Medical Management team for the period

December 1, 2015 through November 30, 2016. (100% Health Plan Enterprise II

Funds)
 

C. 61   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute a contract amendment with Wilson Consulting, Inc., effective November

1, 2015, to extend the term from December 31, 2014 through December 31, 2016

and increase the payment limit by $440,000 to a new payment limit of

$1,860,000, to provide additional technical support services for the County’s

Patient Accounting System, the Keane system, and the “HL7” interface, including

the Department’s appointment system. (100% Enterprise Fund I)
 

C. 62   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute an unpaid student training agreement with David Grant Medical Center

(DGMC), to provide supervised field instruction at Contra Costa Regional

Medical and Health Centers to DGMC’s U.S. Air Force students in preparation

for residency certification, for the period December 1, 2015 through December

31, 2020. (No fiscal impact)
 

C. 63   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Auditor-Controller, or designee, to pay UHS

Surgical Services, Inc., the amount of $22,322 for the provision of surgical lasers,

equipment and certified technicians to the Surgical Unit at Contra Costa Regional

Medical Center during the period March 1 through August 31, 2015. (100%

Hospital Enterprise Fund I)
 

C. 64   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute a contract with Futurenet Technologies Corp. in an amount not to exceed

$650,000 to provide temporary medical coding services for Contra Costa

Regional Medical and Health Centers, for the period October 1, 2015 through

September 30, 2016. (100% Hospital Enterprise Fund I)
 

C. 65   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute a contract with The Center for Common Concerns, Inc. (dba HomeBase),

in an amount not to exceed $220,984 to provide consultation and technical

assistance to the Department on the Continuum of Care planning and resource

development, for the period October 1, 2015 through September 30, 2016. (45%

Federal Medi-Cal Administrative Activities, 24% County General Fund, 31%

Housing Urban Development)
 

C. 66   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to



C. 66   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute a contract with Sodexo America, LLC, in an amount not to exceed

$298,441 to provide management and oversight of the Food and Nutrition

Services Unit at Contra Costa Regional Medical and Health Centers, for the

period November 1, 2015 through October 31, 2016. (100% Hospital Enterprise

Fund I)
 

C. 67   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute a contract amendment with Susan Martinez (dba God’s Grace Homes),

effective November 1, 2015, to modify the service plan to add a second licensed

augmented board and care facility for County-referred mentally disordered

clients, with no change in the original payment limit of $238,800 and no change in

the term of July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016. (100% Mental Health

Realignment)
 

C. 68   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute a contract with Bay Area Tumor Institute in an amount not to exceed

$600,000 to provide consultation and technical assistance with regard to patient

assistance programs for prescription drugs for indigent or unfunded patients at

Contra Costa Regional Medical and Health Centers, for the period August 1, 2015

through July 31, 2016. (100% Hospital Enterprise Fund I)
 

C. 69   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the County Administrator, or designee, to amend a

contract with Nielsen Merksamer Parrinello Gross & Leoni LLP, effective

January 1, 2016, to extend the term from December 31, 2015 through December

31, 2016 and increase the payment limit by $180,000 to a new payment limit of

$720,000 for continued state advocacy services. (100% General Fund)
 

C. 70   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Purchasing Agent to execute, on behalf of the

Health Services Director, a purchase order with Med One Capital Funding, LLC.,

in the amount of $1,308,026 for a sixty month lease of the Omnicell automated

dispensing cabinets for the pharmacies at the Contra Costa Regional Medical and

Health Centers, for the period December 1, 2015 through November 30, 2020.

(100% Hospital Enterprise Fund I)
 

C. 71   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Purchasing Agent to execute, on behalf of the

Health Services Director, a purchase order amendment with Sanofi Pasteur, Inc.,

to increase the payment limit by $65,000 to a new payment limit of $215,000 for

vaccines and other injectable medications for the Contra Costa Regional Medical

and Health Centers, with no change in the original term of January 1 through

December 31, 2015. (100% Hospital Enterprise Fund I)
 

C. 72   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the County Administrator, or designee, to amend a

contract with Alcalde & Fay, effective December 1, 2015, to extend the term

from December 31, 2015 through December 31, 2016 and increase the payment

limit by $108,500 to a new payment limit of $416,892 for continued federal

advocacy services. (100% General Fund)



 

C. 73   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute a contract with Planned Parenthood, Shasta Diablo, Inc., in an amount not

to exceed $1,214,000 to provide prenatal services for Contra Costa Regional

Medical Center and Health Center patients, for the period July 1, 2015 through

June 30, 2016. (100% Enterprise Funds, offset by third party payors)
 

C. 74   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute a contract with We Care Services for Children in an amount not to exceed

$1,727,802 to provide wrap-around and other mental health services including

in-home behavioral therapy and intensive care coordination for high-risk, delayed

or emotionally disturbed children for the period July 1, 2015 through June 30,

2016, with a six-month automatic extension through December 31, 2016 in an

amount not to exceed $863,901. (50% Federal Financial Participation; 50%

County Realignment)
 

C. 75   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute a contract with La Cheim School, Inc., in an amount not to exceed

$2,278,692 to provide a residential treatment program, mental health services and

therapeutic behavioral services for the period July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016,

with a six-month automatic extension through December 31, 2016 in an amount

not to exceed $1,139,346. (50% Federal Financial Participation; 50% Mental

Health Realignment)
 

C. 76   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute a contract with Anka Behavioral Health, Inc., in an amount not to exceed

$1,399,869 to provide mental health services and support to adults with serious

and persistent mental illness in Central Contra Costa County for the period

January 1, 2016 through June 30, 2017, including a six-month automatic

extension through December 31, 2017 in an amount not to exceed $466,623.

(58% Mental Health Services Act, 42% Federal Financial Participation)
 

C. 77   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute a contract with Catholic Charities CYO of the Archdiocese of San

Francisco in an amount not to exceed $324,000 to provide therapeutic behavioral

services for seriously emotionally disturbed children at its St. Vincent’s School

for Boys for the period July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016, including a six-month

automatic extension through December 31, 2016 in an amount not to exceed

$162,000. (50% Federal Financial Participation; 50% Mental Health

Realignment)
 

C. 78   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute a contract with Crestwood Behavioral Health, Inc., including mutual

indemnification, in an amount not to exceed $7,383,000 to provide subacute

skilled nursing care services for the period July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016.

(88% Mental Health Realignment; 12% Mental Health Services Act)
 



C. 79   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute a contract with Diabetics and Endocrinology Specialists, Inc., in an

amount not to exceed $150,000 to provide diabetes and endocrinology services for

the period February 1, 2016 through January 31, 2018. (100% Contra Costa

Health Plan Enterprise Fund II)
 

C. 80   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute a contract with Victor Treatment Centers, Inc., in an amount not to exceed

$260,000 to provide residential treatment services to seriously emotionally

disturbed children for the period July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016, with a

six-month automatic extension through December 31, 2016 in an amount not to

exceed $130,000. (50% Federal Financial Participation; 50% County Mental

Health Realignment)
 

C. 81   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute a contract with Walnut Creek Surgical Associates, Inc., in an amount not

to exceed $350,000 to provide general surgery services for Contra Costa Health

Plan members for the period February 1, 2016 through January 31, 2018. (100%

Contra Costa Health Plan Enterprise Fund II)
 

C. 82   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute a contract with the Early Childhood Mental Health Program in an amount

not to exceed $2,666,654 to provide specialized mental health services, including

in-home behavioral services and intensive care coordination, to children and their

families in West County for the period July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016,

including a six-month automatic extension through December 31, 2016 in an

amount not to exceed $1,333,327. (50% Federal Financial Participation; 50%

Mental Health Realignment)
 

C. 83   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute a contract with the West Contra Costa Unified School District in an

amount not to exceed $190,000 to implement and coordinate the Teenage

Pregnancy Prevention Project in West Contra Costa County, for the period

September 1, 2015 through August 31, 2020. (100% Federal Department of

Health and Human Services)
 

C. 84   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Chief Probation Officer, or his designee, to

execute a contract containing mutual indemnification language with Barry

Krisberg, PHD, in an amount not to exceed $40,000 to provide expert review of

Juvenile Hall policies and procedures for the period of November 1, 2015 to

October 31, 2019. (100% General Fund)
 

C. 85   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Chief Information Officer (Department of



C. 85   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Chief Information Officer (Department of

Information Technology), or designee, to execute a contract amendment with

Richard Miller, effective November 25, 2015, to extend the term from November

30, 2015 through November 30, 2016 and increase the payment limit by $75,000

to a new payment limit of $150,000 to provide continued Apple product support

services. (100% User Fees)
 

C. 86   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Sheriff-Coroner, or designee, to execute a

contract with Trinity Services I, LLC, to pay the County an amount equivalent to

48% of gross revenue generated from the provision of commissary services to

inmates in County-operated detention facilities for the period November 1, 2015

through October 31, 2020. (100% Restricted Inmate Welfare Fund revenue)
 

C. 87   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Chief Information Officer (Department of

Information Technology), or designee, to execute a contract amendment with E-3

Systems, to increase the payment limit by $550,000 to a new payment limit of

$1,750,000 to continue to provide, on an as-needed basis, installation and

maintenance of telecommunications cabling. (100% Department User fees)
 

C. 88   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Purchasing Agent or designee to execute, on

behalf of the Chief Information Officer (Department of Information Technology),

a purchase order with AT&T Datacomm in an amount not to exceed $172,586 for

the acquisition of Cisco equipment, in support of a hosted communication system

for the Health Services Department. (100% User Fees) 
 

Other Actions
 

C. 89   ADOPT Resolution No. 2015/430 to amend the salary schedules for the

unrepresented WEX Trainee and Title V Trainee classifications to be in

compliance with the State of California minimum wage law effective January 1,

2016, as recommended by the Assistant Director of Human Resources.
 

C. 90   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Conservation and Development Director, or

designee, to execute amended and restated legal documents to consolidate the

existing loans to Church Lane – Rubicon Partners, and provide $455,000 in

Community Development Block Grant funds to Church Lane - Rubicon Partners

for the rehabilitation of Church Lane Apartments in San Pablo. (100% Federal

funds)
 

C. 91   ACCEPT the October 2015 update of the operations of the Employment and

Human Services Department, Community Services Bureau as recommended by

the Employment and Human Services Director.
 

C. 92   APPROVE the delegation of authority to the County Treasurer for investing and



C. 92   APPROVE the delegation of authority to the County Treasurer for investing and

reinvesting County funds and the funds of other depositors in the County treasury,

or to sell or exchange securities so purchased, pursuant to section 53607 of the

State Government Code, as recommended by the County Treasurer-Tax

Collector.
 

C. 93   APPROVE $12,600 in additional allocations of FY 2015/16 Keller Canyon

Mitigation funds to the Bay Point Crossing Guard, Bay Point Annual Holiday

Dinner and Toy Give Away, and District V Technology Upgrades programs, as

recommended by the Keller Canyon Mitigation Fund Review Committee. (100%

Keller Canyon Mitigation funds)
 

C. 94   APPROVE the allocation of up to $1,000,000 of fiscal year 2014/15 and 2015/16

Housing Opportunities for Persons with HIV/AIDS (HOPWA) funds for the

Virginia Lane project in Concord, as recommended by the Conservation and

Development Director. (100% Federal funds)
 

C. 95   ADOPT Resolution No. 2015/455 conditionally providing for the issuance of

revenue bonds in an aggregate amount not to exceed $95 million to finance

various Multifamily Residential Rental Housing Developments, and approving

related actions, as recommended by the Conservation and Development Director.

(100% Special Revenue funds)
 

C. 96   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute an unpaid student training agreement with the Regents of the University

of California on behalf of its University of California, San Francisco Benioff

Children’s Hospital Oakland, to provide supervised field instruction at Contra

Costa Regional Medical Center and Health Centers to medical residency students,

for the period October 1, 2015 through December 31, 2020. (No fiscal impact)
 

C. 97   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute an unpaid student training agreement with the Regents of the University

of California on behalf of its University of California, San Diego Extension -

Healthcare, to provide supervised field instruction at Contra Costa Regional

Medical Center and Health Centers to medical residency students, for the period

October 1, 2015 through September 30, 2016. (No fiscal impact)
 

C. 98   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute an unpaid student training agreement with the Western University of

Health Sciences, dba Western University of Health Sciences, College of

Osteopathic Medicine of the Pacific, to provide supervised field instruction at

Contra Costa Regional Medical Center and Health Centers to physical therapy

students, for the period December 1, 2015 through December 31, 2020. (No fiscal

impact)
 

C. 99   ACCEPT and APPROVE the Workforce Development Board Bylaws revision, as

recommended by the Employment and Human Services Director.



 

C.100   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Department of Conservation and Development

to initiate a General Plan Amendment study to consider changing the General Plan

Land Use Element Map from the Single-Family Residential – Medium Density

land use designation to the Single-Family Residential – High Density designation

for property located at 2424 Olympic Boulevard, Saranap area, Assessor's Parcel

No. 185-220-023 (County File: GP#15-0002). (100% Applicant fees)
 

C.101   ACCEPT the Contra Costa County Fish and Wildlife Committee 2015 Annual

Report, as recommended by the Fish and Wildlife Committee. (No fiscal impact)
 

C.102   ACCEPT the report from the Employment and Human Services Department on

Innovative Community Partnerships, as recommended by the Family & Human

Services Committee.
 

C.103   APPROVE Internal Operations Committee recommendations regarding Board

advisory bodies that were reviewed during Phase I of the Triennial Advisory

Body Review.
 

C.104   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Conservation and Development Director, or

designee, to execute a subordination agreement under which the Successor

Agency will subordinate a deed of trust held by the Successor Agency that

secures the performance of Palacek Imports pursuant to an Owner Participation

Agreement under which Palacek was granted $500,000 by the Redevelopment

Agency in 2005. (100% Redevelopment funds paid in 2005)
 

C.105   ADOPT Resolution No. 2015/456 to affirm County's commitment to reduce the

number of people with mental illnesses in our County jails, commit to sharing

lessons learned with other counties in our state and across the country to support a

national initiative, and encourage all county officials, employees, and residents to

participate in the "Stepping Up" initiative, as recommended by Supervisor

Andersen and Sheriff Livingston.
 

C.106   RECEIVE 2015 Annual Report submitted by the Aviation Advisory Committee.
 

C.107   DECLARE as surplus and AUTHORIZE the Purchasing Agent, or designee, to

dispose of a 2002 Bell Jet Ranger Helicopter no longer needed for public use, as

recommended by the Public Works Director, Countywide. (No fiscal impact)
 

C.108   AUTHORIZE the discharge from accountability for certain Health Services

Department accounts totaling $26,912,545.78, which are deemed uncollectible, as

recommended by the Health Services Director.
 

C.109   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Conservation and Development Director, or



C.109   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Conservation and Development Director, or

designee, to file a protest with the California State Water Resources Control

Board on the petition requesting changes in water rights of the Department of

Water Resources and U.S. Bureau of Reclamation for the California WaterFix

project. (100% Contra Costa Water Agency fund)
 

C.110   APPROVE the list of providers recommended by the Contra Costa Health Plan's

Peer Review and Credentialing Committee on November 10, 2015, and by the

Health Services Director, as required by the State Departments of Health Care

Services and Managed Health Care, and the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid

Services.
 

C.111   APPROVE request of the Health Services Department to replace the designation

of the Antioch Health Center at 3505 Lone Tree Way with the new Antioch

Health Center at 2335 Country Hills Drive, Antioch, as the service site within the

scope of the Health Care for the Homeless Project through the Health Resources

and Services Administration, as recommended by the Health Services Director.
 

C.112   AUTHORIZE the Chair of the Board of Supervisors to sign the certification

statements for the Child Health and Disability Prevention Program and the

California Children's Services Program required by the State of California, as

recommend by the Health Services Director.
 

C.113   AUTHORIZE relief of cash shortage in the Health Services Department,

Discovery House Petty Cash Fund, in the amount of $540.88, as recommended by

the Auditor-Controller. (100% client fees)
 

C.114   CONTINUE the emergency action originally taken by the Board of Supervisors

on November 16, 1999 regarding the issue of homelessness in Contra Costa

County, as recommended by the Health Services Director. (No fiscal impact)
 

C.115   ACCEPT quarterly report of the Post Retirement Health Benefits Trust

Agreement Advisory Body, as recommended by the Post Retirement Health

Benefits Trust Agreement Advisory Body.
 

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Board meets in all its capacities pursuant to Ordinance Code Section 24-2.402, including as the

Housing Authority and the Successor Agency to the Redevelopment Agency. Persons who wish to

address the Board should complete the form provided for that purpose and furnish a copy of any

written statement to the Clerk.

Any disclosable public records related to an open session item on a regular meeting agenda and

distributed by the Clerk of the Board to a majority of the members of the Board of Supervisors less

than 96 hours prior to that meeting are available for public inspection at 651 Pine Street, First

Floor, Room 106, Martinez, CA 94553, during normal business hours.

All matters listed under CONSENT ITEMS are considered by the Board to be routine and will be



All matters listed under CONSENT ITEMS are considered by the Board to be routine and will be

enacted by one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless requested by a

member of the Board or a member of the public prior to the time the Board votes on the motion to

adopt. 

Persons who wish to speak on matters set for PUBLIC HEARINGS will be heard when the Chair

calls for comments from those persons who are in support thereof or in opposition thereto. After

persons have spoken, the hearing is closed and the matter is subject to discussion and action by the

Board. Comments on matters listed on the agenda or otherwise within the purview of the Board of

Supervisors can be submitted to the office of the Clerk of the Board via mail: Board of

Supervisors, 651 Pine Street Room 106, Martinez, CA 94553; by fax: 925-335-1913.

The County will provide reasonable accommodations for persons with disabilities planning to

attend Board meetings who contact the Clerk of the Board at least 24 hours before the meeting, at

(925) 335-1900; TDD (925) 335-1915. An assistive listening device is available from the Clerk,

Room 106.

Copies of recordings of all or portions of a Board meeting may be purchased from the Clerk of the

Board. Please telephone the Office of the Clerk of the Board, (925) 335-1900, to make the

necessary arrangements.

Forms are available to anyone desiring to submit an inspirational thought nomination for inclusion

on the Board Agenda. Forms may be obtained at the Office of the County Administrator or Office

of the Clerk of the Board, 651 Pine Street, Martinez, California.

Subscribe to receive to the weekly Board Agenda by calling the Office of the Clerk of the Board,

(925) 335-1900 or using the County's on line subscription feature at the County’s Internet Web

Page, where agendas and supporting information may also be viewed:

www.co.contra-costa.ca.us 

STANDING COMMITTEES

The Airport Committee (Karen Mitchoff and Supervisor Mary N. Piepho) meets quarterly on the

second Monday of the month at 10:30 a.m. at Director of Airports Office, 550 Sally Ride Drive,

Concord.

The Family and Human Services Committee (Supervisors Federal D. Glover and Candace

Andersen) meets on the second Monday of the month at 10:30 a.m. in Room 101, County

Administration Building, 651 Pine Street, Martinez.

The Finance Committee (Supervisors Mary N. Piepho and Federal D. Glover) meets on the first

Monday of the month at 10:30 a.m. in Room 101, County Administration Building, 651 Pine

Street, Martinez.

The Hiring Outreach Oversight Committee (Supervisors Federal D. Glover and Karen Mitchoff)

meets on the first Thursday of the month at 1:00 p.m. in Room 101, County Administration

Building, 651 Pine Street, Martinez.

http://www.co.contra-costa.ca.us


Building, 651 Pine Street, Martinez.

The Internal Operations Committee (Supervisors Karen Mitchoff and John Gioia) meets on the

second Monday of the month at 2:30 p.m. in Room 101, County Administration Building, 651 Pine

Street, Martinez.

The Legislation Committee (Supervisors Karen Mitchoff and Federal D. Glover) meets on the

first Thursday of the month at 10:30 a.m. in Room 101, County Administration Building, 651 Pine

Street, Martinez.

The Public Protection Committee (Supervisors John Gioia and Federal D. Glover) meets on the

second Monday of the month at 1:00 p.m. in Room 101, County Administration Building, 651 Pine

Street, Martinez.

The Transportation, Water & Infrastructure Committee (Supervisors Candace Andersen and

Mary N. Piepho) meets on the first Monday of the month at 1:00 p.m. in Room 101, County

Administration Building, 651 Pine Street, Martinez.

Airports Committee December 14,

2015 

10:30

a.m. 

See

above

Family & Human Services Committee December 14,

2015 

10:30

a.m. 

See

above

Finance Committee TBD TBD See

above

Hiring Outreach Oversight Committee December 17,

2015

1:00 p.m. See

above

Internal Operations Committee December 14,

2015 

2:30 p.m. See

above

Legislation Committee TBD TBD See

above

Public Protection Committee December 14,

2015 

1:00 p.m. See

above

Transportation, Water & Infrastructure

Committee

TBD TBD See

above

AGENDA DEADLINE: Thursday, 12 noon, 12 days before the Tuesday Board meetings.

Glossary of Acronyms, Abbreviations, and other Terms (in alphabetical order):

Contra Costa County has a policy of making limited use of acronyms, abbreviations, and

industry-specific language in its Board of Supervisors meetings and written materials. Following is

a list of commonly used language that may appear in oral presentations and written materials

associated with Board meetings:



AB Assembly Bill

ABAG Association of Bay Area Governments

ACA Assembly Constitutional Amendment

ADA Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990

AFSCME American Federation of State County and Municipal Employees

AICP American Institute of Certified Planners

AIDS Acquired Immunodeficiency Syndrome

ALUC Airport Land Use Commission

AOD Alcohol and Other Drugs

ARRA American Recovery & Reinvestment Act of 2009

BAAQMD Bay Area Air Quality Management District

BART Bay Area Rapid Transit District

BayRICS Bay Area Regional Interoperable Communications System

BCDC Bay Conservation & Development Commission

BGO Better Government Ordinance

BOS Board of Supervisors

CALTRANS California Department of Transportation

CalWIN California Works Information Network

CalWORKS California Work Opportunity and Responsibility to Kids

CAER Community Awareness Emergency Response

CAO County Administrative Officer or Office

CCCPFD (ConFire) Contra Costa County Fire Protection District

CCHP Contra Costa Health Plan

CCTA Contra Costa Transportation Authority

CCRMC Contra Costa Regional Medical Center

CCWD Contra Costa Water District

CDBG Community Development Block Grant

CFDA Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance

CEQA California Environmental Quality Act

CIO Chief Information Officer

COLA Cost of living adjustment

ConFire (CCCFPD) Contra Costa County Fire Protection District

CPA Certified Public Accountant

CPI Consumer Price Index

CSA County Service Area

CSAC California State Association of Counties

CTC California Transportation Commission

dba doing business as

DSRIP Delivery System Reform Incentive Program

EBMUD East Bay Municipal Utility District

ECCFPD East Contra Costa Fire Protection District

EIR Environmental Impact Report

EIS Environmental Impact Statement

EMCC Emergency Medical Care Committee

EMS Emergency Medical Services

EPSDT Early State Periodic Screening, Diagnosis and Treatment Program (Mental Health)

et al. et alii (and others)

FAA Federal Aviation Administration



FEMA Federal Emergency Management Agency

F&HS Family and Human Services Committee

First 5 First Five Children and Families Commission (Proposition 10)

FTE Full Time Equivalent

FY Fiscal Year

GHAD Geologic Hazard Abatement District

GIS Geographic Information System

HCD (State Dept of) Housing & Community Development

HHS (State Dept of ) Health and Human Services

HIPAA Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act

HIV Human Immunodeficiency Syndrome

HOME Federal block grant to State and local governments designed exclusively to create

affordable housing for low-income households

HOPWA Housing Opportunities for Persons with AIDS Program

HOV High Occupancy Vehicle

HR Human Resources

HUD United States Department of Housing and Urban Development

IHSS In-Home Supportive Services

Inc. Incorporated

IOC Internal Operations Committee

ISO Industrial Safety Ordinance

JPA Joint (exercise of) Powers Authority or Agreement

Lamorinda Lafayette-Moraga-Orinda Area

LAFCo Local Agency Formation Commission

LLC Limited Liability Company

LLP Limited Liability Partnership

Local 1 Public Employees Union Local 1

LVN Licensed Vocational Nurse

MAC Municipal Advisory Council

MBE Minority Business Enterprise

M.D. Medical Doctor

M.F.T. Marriage and Family Therapist

MIS Management Information System

MOE Maintenance of Effort

MOU Memorandum of Understanding

MTC Metropolitan Transportation Commission

NACo National Association of Counties

NEPA National Environmental Policy Act

OB-GYN Obstetrics and Gynecology

O.D. Doctor of Optometry

OES-EOC Office of Emergency Services-Emergency Operations Center

OPEB Other Post Employment Benefits

OSHA Occupational Safety and Health Administration

PARS Public Agencies Retirement Services

PEPRA Public Employees Pension Reform Act

Psy.D. Doctor of Psychology

RDA Redevelopment Agency

RFI Request For Information



RFP Request For Proposal

RFQ Request For Qualifications

RN Registered Nurse

SB Senate Bill

SBE Small Business Enterprise

SEIU Service Employees International Union

SUASI Super Urban Area Security Initiative

SWAT Southwest Area Transportation Committee

TRANSPAC Transportation Partnership & Cooperation (Central)

TRANSPLAN Transportation Planning Committee (East County)

TRE or TTE Trustee

TWIC Transportation, Water and Infrastructure Committee

UASI Urban Area Security Initiative

VA Department of Veterans Affairs

vs. versus (against)

WAN Wide Area Network

WBE Women Business Enterprise

WCCTAC West Contra Costa Transportation Advisory Committee



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

ACCEPT the 2014-2015 Annual Report from the Contra Costa County Juvenile Justice-Delinquency Prevention

Commission. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

No fiscal impact. Informational only 

BACKGROUND: 

Section 229 of the welfare and Institutions Code mandates that each county have a Juvenile Justice Commission to

inquire into the administration of juvenile court law. The code also allows each county to have a Delinquency

Prevention Commission at the discretion of the Board of Supervisors. Contra Costa County has such a Commission

with the latter established in 1966. The Commission has access to all publicly administered institutions authorized by

the County. It annually inspects jails, lock-ups, institutions and bi-annually county group home facilities. The purpose

of the Juvenile Justice-Delinquency Prevention Commission is to be a public conscience in the best interest of justice

for children and youth. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

The Board of Supervisors will not receive the Juvenile Justice-Delinquency Prevention Commissions annual report

for fiscal year 2014-2015. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Harvey Samuels

925-313-4188

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the
Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

PR.1

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Philip F. Kader, County Probation Officer

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: 2014-2015 Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Commission Annual Report



ATTACHMENTS

FY 2014/15 JJDPC Annual

Report 



 

 

CONTRA COSTA COUNTY 
JUVENILE JUSTICE COMMISSION 

AND 
DELINQUENCY PREVENTION COMMISSION 

50 Douglas Drive, Suite 201 
Martinez, California 94553-8500 

  (925) 313-4188 

 
Date:                  November, 17, 2015 

 
To:        Honorable Barry Goode, Presiding Superior Court Judge 
  Honorable Lois M. Haight, Presiding Juvenile Court Judge 
  Karen Mitchoff, Chairperson, and Members of the CCC Board of Supervisors 
  Philip Kader, Contra Costa County Chief Probation Officer 
  Kathy Gallagher, Director of Employment and Human Services Department 
  David Twa, County Administrator of Contra Costa County 
  Dr. William B. Walker, Director, Contra Costa County Health Services     

  Department  
  Nat Reed, BSCC Field Representative for Contra Costa County Probation Department 

 
From:                 Karl Livengood and Harvey Samuels, Co-Chairpersons 

 
Subject:     Annual Report Fiscal Year 2014-2015 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Section 229 of the Welfare and Institutions Code mandates that each county have a Juvenile Justice Commission to 

inquire into the administration of juvenile court law.  The code also allows each county to have a Delinquency 

Prevention Commission at the discretion of the Board of Supervisors.  Contra Costa County has such a Commission 

with the latter established in 1966. 

 
The Commission has access to all publicly administered institutions authorized by the county.  It annually inspects 

jails, lockups, institutions and bi-annually county group home facilities.  Following each inspection, reported findings 

and recommendations are submitted to the Presiding Juvenile Court Judge and others for review.   

 
The Commission also visits Juvenile Court and may hold hearings on matters concerning juvenile custody care or 

facilities. Members frequently visit Juvenile Hall and the Orin Allen Youth Rehabilitation Facility (“OAYRF”). The 

Juvenile Court Judge may issue subpoenas requiring attendance and testimony of witnesses and production of 

documents at the hearings. 

 
The Commission is concerned with policy matters, advises the Juvenile Court, and is responsible for policy-making 

recommendations.  It makes recommendations for administrative body changes it determines beneficial to juvenile 

justice, and it ensures that the changes are appropriate, safe and include adequate services.    

 
The Commission may conduct studies including: review of essential services and budgets to ensure relevant and 

effective probation services; exploration of matters initiated by commissioners or referred by the Juvenile Court 

Judge, the Probation Department, the Board of Supervisors, or citizen inquiry.    

 
The purpose of the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Commission is to be a public conscience in the best 

interest of justice for children and youth. 

 

 
Membership 



 

 

 
There are 15 member positions on the commission, all appointed by the Presiding Judge of the Juvenile Court. Each 

commissioner serves a four-year term unless filling the unexpired term of a resigned commissioner.  At least two 

commissioners must be youth members. The Commission attempts to reflect the racial, ethnic diversity and 

geographic representations of the county.  

 
During FY 2013-14 we had 13 commissioners, however during FY 2014/15 we lost several of our younger members 

due to attendance at colleges here and abroad.  We also had one member move out of state.  We were able to 

recruit at least one more prior to the end of the FY bringing our total to 9 members in the following geographic areas: 

 
Lafayette - 1  Richmond - 3  San Ramon - 2  Walnut Creek - 3 

 
As stated above, the Commission continues to experience problems in recruiting and retaining youth commissioner 

vacancies that are able to serve more than one year.  We are actively pursuing eligible youth and adult persons with 

a focus on east and west county. 

 
During FY 2014/15, the Commission developed two standing committees (internal and external) that includes several 

subcommittees.  Commissioners are required to participate in at least two standing sub-committees as well as 

perform inspections and other duties as required.   

 
Meetings 

 
The Commission meets regularly on the third Monday of every month at 5:30 pm.  There is no monthly meeting 

scheduled in August.  The January and February meetings are held on the fourth Monday, due to federal holidays. 

Meetings are normally held in the Second floor conference room of the Probation Department at 50 Douglas Drive, 

Martinez and are open to the public. 

  
To conduct official business at these monthly meetings, a quorum of members is required.  At the monthly meetings, 

reports are received from representatives of the Juvenile Court and Juvenile Probation.  Employment and Human 

Services Department and Children's Mental Health reports are presented bi-monthly (representation of these two 

Departments has been infrequent).  Reports from other agencies may be requested by the Commission as required.  

 
On  June 28,  2014, during our annual retreat, the by-laws and committees structure and types were revised and 

goals and objectives for FY 2014-15 were developed to streamline processes and become more effective.  This 

includes creating liaisons between the Commission and county departments and/or community based organizations 

and law enforcement offices throughout the county.  

 
Special Programs 

 
Once a year, the Commission endeavors to recognize individuals, groups and organizations that have contributed to 

juvenile justice or delinquency prevention in a significant way. The Commission hosts an awards ceremony in May to 

recognize those individuals and call attention to their outstanding work in helping the County’s juvenile population. On 

May 16, 2015, the JJ/DPC held their 27th annual awards ceremony at IBEW Local 32 Hall in Martinez.  Funds for 

lunch were made available by the Juvenile Hall Auxiliary.   

 
FY 2014-15, recipients of the awards were:  

 
Outstanding Service/Contribution by a Juvenile Probation Officer: 
  Award Winner:     R J Dutra, Deputy Probation Officer 

Certificate: La Sha Hill, Deputy Probation Officer 

 



 

 

Outstanding Service/Contribution by a County Mental Health Worker: 
 Award Winner:  Amanda Kuzio, Mental Health Worker, Contra Costa County 

    
Outstanding Service/Contribution by a Law Enforcement Officer: 

Award Winner:     Tamra Roberts, Detective, Concord Police Department 
       Certificate:   Delon Jackson, Detective, Richmond Police Department 
       Certificate: Ray Hernandez, Officer, Richmond Police Department 

 
Outstanding Service/Contribution by a Community Adult Volunteer: 

Award Winner:    Brian Clark, Principal, Prospects High School, Antioch 

 
Outstanding Service/Contribution by a Community Youth Volunteer: 
 Award Winner:  Sabrina Santander, Student, St. Ignatius School 

 
Outstanding Service/Contribution by a Non-Profit Organization: 
  Award Winner:     Rotary Club of Moraga 

  
Outstanding Service/Contribution by a Community-Based Organization: 
   Award Winner:     The RYSE Center, Richmond, CA 
       Certificate:  The City of San Pablo Youth Services Division 

 
Juvenile Offender Success Story:  

Award Winners:    Mark Dizon and Kris Pham 

                                                                               

Inspections 

 
Part of the Commission's mandated purpose is to conduct annual inspections of the juvenile facilities within the 

County.  These include lock up facilities as well as group homes and treatment programs.  Following each inspection 

a report is written by the inspection team and submitted to the presiding judge of the juvenile court and others for 

review.  During the first six months of this reporting period, we developed clear protocols for inspecting facilities as 

well as our core list of those facilities requiring inspection. During FY 2014-15 11 facilities (combination of facilities) 

were due to be inspected.  Of those, 8 inspections were completed.  The number of inspections varies considerably 

from year to year since group homes are inspected every other year. 

 
Guests 

 
The Commission always welcomes guests to their meetings. In FY 2014-15, on October 20, 2015, Michael Bush from 

Board of State and Community Corrections, provided training on how to conduct thorough and effective inspections 

and the operations of their department.   

 
Areas of Interest 

 
As stated in past reports, the Commission has been concerned with the lack of in-custody disposition options for 

juveniles with mental health illness. Orin Allen Ranch administrators, nursing staff and the juvenile hall administration 

met with County Behavioral Health to develop a plan for implementing dispensing of medications at the ranch. The 

commissioners were pleased that the County Behavioral Health and the Probation Department developed a pilot 

program for youth receiving medications who have not previously been able to be placed at Orin Allen.  The pilot 

program officially started on May 12, 2015 with low side effect medications. Juveniles who were on beta blockers or 

non-psychotropic medications and more serious medications were not included in this pilot program but would be 

included over time as systems when are successfully put into place. The commission will continue to monitor the 

implimentation of this program since much effort has gone into its planning. By making perscribed medications 



 

 

available to youth placed at the ranch. now opens the ranch’s rehabilitation program to them. Before, they were 

excluded.   

   
Events of Interest 

During FY 2014-15,  the following events involving the Commission are worthy of mentioning.   

 
In order for the public to become more familiar with the Commission, we created a Public Relations role.  Our goals 

are to keep the public informed of what the Commissions are charged with and recruit for membership.  In an effort to 

meet this goal, on April 2, 2015, Commissioner Ron Shaw interviewed with KPFA on the Andres Sota show. 

 
We have been bringing our website up to date. This will be another avenue for the public to learn more about the 

Commission. 

 
On April 30, 2015, the Commission mailed a letter to Senator Leno regarding his proposed legislation SB 124.  The 

Commission supported the position of decreasing solitary confinement for juveniles to a maximum of four hours but 

expressed concern for modifying membership qualifications; the requirement of two members must have current or 

past  child/ren in the justice system and one member must be licensed therapist. It is challenging for the Commission 

to retain a diverse membership and we feel that this would limit our ability to meet this goal. 

 
Conclusions 

 
The Commission’s mission is to reduce the delinquent population and keep youth out of the juvenile justice system 

by:  

 
1. Sponsoring and participating in diversion and prevention activities that steer youth away from entering the juvenile 

justice system.                

  
2. Supporting programs and systems that can assist youth with mental health and substance abuse issues that may 

eventually lead to involvement or re-involvement in the juvenile justice system. 

 
 3. Promoting education and training for the youth who are involved in the Juvenile Justice System so that they might 

become responsible citizens, leaving their delinquency behind and becoming successful in completion of their 

probation as they return and live in their communities. 

 
The Commission continues to work closely with the Probation staff, other youth serving agencies and County 

organizations to advance and promote innovative delinquency prevention programs.  The Commission is fortunate to 

have a positive relationship with the Juvenile Court Judges and the dedicated staff of the Juvenile Probation 

Department.  

 
During these past years, the Commission has worked diligently to create an opportunity for its’ commissioners (new 

and tenured) to be an asset in juvenile justice and delinquency prevention.  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

RECEIVE oral report from the Sheriff, Health Services Director, and Employment and Human Services Director on

the security precautions that exist at County health and social services facilities. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

None. This is an informational report. 

BACKGROUND: 

Two gunmen wearing military-style gear and armed with assault rifles opened fire at about 11:00 a.m. on

Wednesday, December 2, at a Southern California social services center where a holiday gathering of San Bernardino

County Department of Public Health employees was taking place, killing at least 14 people and wounding more than

20 people in what authorities described as a targeted mission. The shooting spree, which was described by police as a

precision attack, lasted about five minutes. Witnesses said several people locked themselves in their offices,

desperately waiting to be rescued by police, after gunfire erupted at the Inland Regional Center, which serves people

with developmental disabilities. Three explosive devices -- all connected to one another -- were found at the social

services center, police said. As of this writing, the two suspects had been killed by police a few miles away from the

Inland Regional Center shooting location in San Bernardino. The shooters were later identified to be an employee of

the San Bernardino County Department of Public Health and his fiancee. Police shed no light on a motive for the

mass shooting, which came five days after a gunman opened fire at Planned Parenthood in Colorado, killing three.

Among the possible motives, according to the FBI: some kind of workplace grudge or terrorism or a mix of both. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Julie DiMaggio Enea

(925) 335-1077

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the
Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

D.2

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: David Twa, County Administrator

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: UPDATE ON SECURITY PRECAUTIONS AT COUNTY FACILITIES



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

But the bureau would not elaborate. The Washington Post reported that 12 pipe bombs and extensive amounts of

ammunition were later found at the suspects' home and CNN reported that the the killers had been in communication

with terrorist suspects.

In light of this attack, the Board Chair requested the Sheriff, Health Services Director, and Employment and Human

Services Director to provide the Board with an update on security precautions that exist at County facilities and, in

particular, County health and social services facilities. Sheriff Livingston, Dr. Walker, and EHS Director Kathy

Gallagher will address the Board today on this matter. Public Works Department staff will also be available.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

OPEN the hearing on the costs of abating a public nuisance on the real property located at 549 Grove Ave.,

Richmond, California, Contra Costa County (APN 409-141-012).

RECEIVE and CONSIDER the attached itemized report on the abatement costs and any objections thereto from the

property owner or other persons with a legal interest in the property; and CLOSE the hearing.

DETERMINE the cost of all abatement work and all administrative costs to be $17,770.97.

ORDER the itemized report confirmed and DIRECT that it be filed with the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors.

ORDER the costs to be specially assessed against the above-referenced property and AUTHORIZE the recordation of

a Notice Of Abatement Lien.

FISCAL IMPACT: 

No net fiscal impact. The costs as determined above will be added to the tax roll as a special assessment on this

property and will be collected at the same time and in the same manner as ordinary County taxes are collected. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Jason Crapo

925.674.7722

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

D.3

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Jason Crapo, County Building Official

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Cost Confirmation Hearing for Real Property Located at 549 Grove Ave., Richmond, CA



BACKGROUND:

Contra Costa County Ordinance Code Article 14-6.4 and California Government Code Section 25845 authorize

the recovery of abatement costs in public nuisance cases, the recordation of a Notice of Abatement Lien, and

inclusion of abatement costs on the tax roll as a special assessment, upon approval of the Board of Supervisors.

The Notice and Order to abate was posted on the above-referenced property located in the unincorporated North

Richmond area for a fire damaged property whose premises contain excessive vegetation, rubbish and debris and

was served on the property owner and all persons known to be in possession of the property by certified mail on

July 31, 2015.

The property owner did not file an appeal of the Notice and Order to Abate. The County Abatement Officer abated

the nuisance on August 17, 2015.

The property owner was billed for the actual cost of the abatement and all administrative costs. The bill was sent

by first-class mail to the property owner on September 4, 2015. The property owner did not pay the bill within 45

days of the date of mailing.

Notice of this Cost Hearing was sent to the property owner by certified mail by the Clerk of the Board. For proof

of service, see Clerk of the Board at 651 Pine Street, Room 106, Martinez, CA.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If not approved, the County will not be able to recover costs for abatement on code violations for this property.

ATTACHMENTS

itemized costs 

before and after pix 



   
 CONTRA COSTA COUNTY 
 
 
DATE:  November 12, 2015 
 
TO:  Clerk of the Board 
 
FROM:  Department of Conservation & Development 
  By: Robert Erickson, Building Inspector II 
   
RE:  Itemized Report of Abatement Costs 
                                                                   
The following is an itemized report of the costs of abatement for 
the below described property pursuant to C.C.C. Ord. Code ' 14-

6.428. 
 
OWNER:   Elizabeth Smith 
 
POSSESSOR: N/A 
 
MORTGAGE HOLDER: N/A 
 
ABATEMENT ORDERED DATE:  July 31, 2015 
 
ABATEMENT COMPLETED DATE: August 17, 2015 
 
SITE ADDRESS: 549 Grove Ave., Richmond, CA., 94801 
            APN#:409-141-012 

 
PROPERTY DESCRIPTION:  Residential 
 
AMOUNT OF ABATEMENT COSTS (CCC ORDINANCE CODE 14-6.428) 
 
ITEM                   EXPLANATION                   COST 
Notice to Comply $ 250.00 
Site Visits (6 x $100 @) $ 600.00 
PIRT (Title Search)  $ 150.00 
Certified Letter & Regular Mailings $ 45.47 
Photos $ 25.50 
Contractor hired for abatement                       
  

$ 15,800.00 

Asbestos report  500.00 

Final Site Inspection to Confirm Compliance $ 200.00 
Compliance Report and Board Hearing $ 200.00 
                                                 
Total 

$ 17,770.97 

 
 
 
Abatement costs can be paid at or mailed to Department of 
Conservation and Development, Building Inspection Division, 30 
Muir Rd., Martinez, CA 94553. 
 



 
549 Grove Ave. 
Richmond, CA., 94801 
 
 
Before photos 







 
549 Grove Ave. 
Richmond, CA., 94801 
 
 
 After photos 







RECOMMENDATION(S): 

1. OPEN the public hearing on Ordinance No. 2015-22, RECEIVE testimony, and CLOSE the public hearing.

2. ADOPT Ordinance No. 2015-22, amending the 2013 California Green Building Standards Code to establish

electric vehicle parking and charging station standards.

3. ADOPT the attached findings in support of the County's changes, additions, and deletions to the 2013 California

Green Building Standards Code.

4. DIRECT the Building Inspection Division, pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 17958.7, to send a certified

copy of Ordinance No. 2015-22, the attached findings, and this Board Order to the California Building Standards

Commission.

5. FIND that adoption of the ordinance is exempt from review under the California Environmental Quality Act

pursuant to CEQA Guidelines section 15061(b)(3).

6. DIRECT the Director of Conservation and Development, or his designee, to prepare a CEQA Notice of Exemption

and to file the Notice of Exemption with the County Clerk. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

No fiscal impact. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Jason Crapo (925)

674-7722

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

D.4

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: John Kopchik, Director, Conservation & Development Department

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Electric Vehicle Charging Stations



BACKGROUND:

November 17, 2015 Board of Supervisors Meeting 

At the November 17, 2015 Board of Supervisors meeting, staff provided additional information on the proposed

Electric Vehicle Charging Station ("EVCS") requirements for non-residential development. Based on that

information, the Board approved exempting small commercial development projects with 10 or fewer off-street

parking spaces from the requirements of the ordinance, as recommended by staff.

As required by State Code, staff prepared local findings (Exhibit A) the Board must adopt to justify establishment

of building standards that are more restrictive than those in the 2013 Building Standards Code. 

November 3, 2015 Board of Supervisors Meeting Follow-up 

At the November 3, 2015 Board of Supervisors meeting, staff was given direction to provide additional

background and justification for the proposed EVCS requirements for non-residential development and consider

exempting small commercial developments. The basis for exempting small commercial projects is both the

economic impact on projects and a presumption that such projects may have shorter duration parking needs.

Research of the County's Land Use Permit and Development Plan applications approved or submitted since 2012

showed off-street parking for small commercial businesses varied from 0 to 12 off-street parking spaces. One

project with 0 off-street parking spaces was granted a variance for off-street parking. These projects average 8

off-street parking spaces. Removing the project granted a variance, the average number of off-street parking

spaces among these small commercial projects is 10. Based on this analysis, exempting projects with 10 or fewer

off-street parking spaces would be reasonable. Staff recommends exempting proposed projects with 10 or fewer

off-street parking spaces from the requirement to provide EVCS. Duration of typical parking need is not

information that is required for proposed projects and was not discernible among the projects that were surveyed.

In addition, duration of parking need would change over time for each individual property because different

tenants may have different parking needs, which would make EV parking regulations difficult to enforce.

Therefore, it would be difficult for the County to base EV charging requirements on duration of parking need. 

For commercial projects with more than 10 off-street parking spaces, the proposed EV charging requirements

would be based on the California Green Building Code Standards Tier 2 Non-Residential Voluntary Measures,

which are measures above the State's minimum requirements that local jurisdictions can adopt voluntarily. The

Tier 2 Non-Residential Voluntary Measures were developed by the California Building Standards Commission

through a collaborative process that included input from stakeholders in the building industry, local jurisdictions

throughout the State, as well as various State departments. 

November 3, 2015 Board of Supervisors Staff Report 

In May 2015, following a referral from the Board of Supervisors on March 31, 2015, Department of Conservation

and Development (“DCD”) staff presented to the Ad Hoc Committee on Sustainability (“Committee”)1 the new

residential and non-residential 2013 California Green Building Standards Code requirements for electric vehicle

supply equipment (“EVSE”), which became effective statewide on July 1, 2015. The Committee provided

direction to staff for developing local amendments to the 2013 California Green Building Standards Code for

County adoption. 

At the September 14, 2015 Committee meeting, the Committee required potential amendments, directed staff to

draft additional amendments, and approved a recommendation to the Board of Supervisors on the matter. The

proposed changes to the state-wide requirements are summarized as follows: 

Changes for new multi-family buildings: 

Increase the required number of EVCS to five percent of the total number of parking spaces provided, where

three percent is the minimum required in the State Code; 

Require a minimum of one EVCS for every new multi-family building (three or more units) as opposed to

State Code which requires no EVCS for multi-family buildings with fewer than 17 units; 



Require that EVSE be installed for each EVCS in addition to the electrical infrastructure required by the

State Code.

Changes for new non-residential buildings: 

Increase the required number of EVCS to six percent of total number of parking spaces provided, where

three percent is the minimum required in the State Code; 

Required number of EVCS in new construction shall provide fully operational EVSE as opposed to State

Code which requires electrical infrastructure only; 

Require a minimum of one EVCS for every parking area associated with a new commercial building as

opposed to State Code which requires no EVCS for parking areas of 50 or fewer parking spaces. (Proposed

projects with 10 or fewer off-street parking spaces are exempt from the requirement to provide EVCS)

County Counsel reviewed DCD’s draft and prepared a final ordinance to amend the 2013 California Green

Building Code Standards Code to establish electric vehicle parking and charging station standards. The final draft

is attached (Exhibit B). 

After the ordinance is adopted, County Counsel will send a final version of the ordinance to the Office of the

Clerk of the Board to arrange for publication in the Contra Costa Times with the names of the supervisors voting

for and against it. This must occur within 15 days of adoption. The ordinance will be effective 30 days after it is

adopted.

1The Ad Hoc Committee on Sustainability is composed of Supervisors John Gioia and Federal D. Glover. Note

that Supervisor Glover was not in attendance at the March-September meetings.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

Without adopting the proposed local amendments, the County will continue to adhere to the State mandatory

standards for electric vehicle infrastructure.

ATTACHMENTS

Ordinance No. 2015-22 

Exhibit B Local Findings 











Contra Costa County Findings  
1 

CONTRA COSTA COUNTY 
FINDINGS IN SUPPORT OF CHANGES, ADDITIONS, AND DELETIONS TO 

STATEWIDE BUILDING STANDARDS CODE 
 
The California Building Standards Commission has adopted and published the 2013 Building 
Standards Code, which is comprised of the 2013 California Building, Residential, Green 
Building Standards, Electrical, Plumbing, and Mechanical codes. These codes are enforced in 
Contra Costa County by the Building Inspection Division of the Department of Conservation and 
Development. 
 
Although these codes apply statewide, Health and Safety Code sections 17958.5 and 18941.5 
authorize a local jurisdiction to modify or change these codes and establish more restrictive 
building standards if the jurisdiction finds that the modifications and changes are reasonably 
necessary because of local climatic, geological or topographical conditions.  
 
Ordinance No. 2015-22 adopts the statewide codes and amends them to address local conditions. 
Pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 17958.7, the Contra Costa County Board of 
Supervisors finds that the more restrictive standards contained in Ordinance No. 2015-22 are 
reasonably necessary because of the local climatic, geological, and topographic conditions that 
are described below. 
 

I. Local Conditions 
 
A. Geological and Topographic 

 
1. Seismicity 

 
(a) Conditions 

 
Contra Costa County is located in Seismic Design Categories D and E, which 
is the worst earthquake area in the United States. Buildings and other 
structures in these zones can experience major seismic damage. Contra Costa 
County is in close proximity to numerous earthquake faults including the San 
Andreas Fault and contains all or portions of the Hayward, Calaveras, 
Concord, Antioch, Mt. Diablo, and other lesser faults. A 4.1 earthquake with 
its epicenter in Concord occurred in 1958, and a 5.4 earthquake with its 
epicenter also in Concord occurred in 1955. The Concord and Antioch faults 
have a potential for a Richter 6 earthquake and the Hayward and Calaveras 
faults have the potential for a Richter 7 earthquake. Minor tremblers from 
seismic activity are not uncommon in the area. 



Contra Costa County Findings  
2 

 
A study released in 1990 by the United States Geological Survey says that 
there is a 67% chance of another earthquake the size of Loma Prieta during 
the next 30 years, and that the quake could strike at any time, including today. 
Scientists, therefore, believe that an earthquake of a magnitude 7 or larger is 
now twice as likely to happen as to not happen. 
 
Interstates 680, 80, 580 and State Route 4 run the length throughout Contra 
Costa County. These interstates and state routes divide the County into a west, 
south, north and east. An overpass or undercrossing collapse would 
significantly alter the response route and time for responding emergency 
equipment. This is due to limited crossings of the interstate and that in some 
areas there is only one surface street, which runs parallel to the interstate, 
which would be congested during a significant emergency. 
 
Earthquakes of the magnitude experienced locally can cause major damage to 
electrical transmission facilities and to gas and electrical lines in buildings, 
which in turn start fires throughout the County. The occurrence of multiple 
fires will quickly deplete existing fire department resources; thereby reducing 
and/or delaying their response to any given fire. 

 
(b) Impact 

 
More restrictive electric vehicle charging standards would not negatively 
impact the County’s infrastructure or public safety resources in the event of a 
major earthquake.   

 
2. Soils 

  
(a) Conditions 

 
The area is replete with various soils, which are unstable, clay loam and 
alluvial fans being predominant. These soil conditions are moderately to 
severely prone to swelling and shrinking, are plastic, and tend to liquefy. 
 
Throughout Contra Costa County, the topography and development growth 
has created a network of older, narrow roads. These roads vary from gravel to 
asphalt surface and vary in percent of slope, many exceeding twenty (20) 
percent. Several of these roads extend up through the winding passageways in 
the hills providing access to remote, affluent housing subdivisions. The 



Contra Costa County Findings  
3 

majority of these roads are private with no established maintenance program. 
During inclement weather, these roads are subject to rock and mudslides, as 
well as down trees, obstructing all vehicle traffic. It is anticipated that during 
an earthquake, several of these roads would be unpassable so as to prevent fire 
protection resources from reaching fires cause by gas line ruptures or other 
sources. 

 
3. Topographic 

 
(a) Conditions 

 
i. Vegetation 

 
Highly combustible dry grass, weeds, and brush are common in the hilly 
and open space areas adjacent to built-up locations six (6) to eight (8) 
months of each year. Many of these areas frequently experience wildland 
fires, which threaten nearby buildings, particularly those with wood roofs, 
or sidings. This condition can be found throughout Contra Costa County, 
especially in those developed and developing areas of the County. 
Earthquake gas fires due to gas line ruptures can ignite grasslands and 
stress fire district resources. 

 
ii. Surface Features 

 
The arrangement and location of natural and manmade surface features, 
including hills, creeks, canals, freeways, housing tracts, commercial 
development, fire stations, streets and roads, combine to limit feasible 
response routes for Fire District resources in and to District areas. 

 
iii. Buildings, Landscaping and Terrain 

 
Many of the newer large buildings and building complexes have building 
access and landscaping features and designs, which preclude or greatly 
limit any approach or operational access to them by Fire District vehicles. 
In addition, the presence of security gates and roads of inadequate width 
and grades that are too steep for Fire District vehicles adversely affect fire 
suppression efforts. 
 
When Fire District vehicles cannot gain access to buildings involved with 
fire, the potential for complete loss is realized. Difficulty reaching a fire 



Contra Costa County Findings  
4 

site often requires that fire personnel both in numbers and in stamina. 
Access problems often result in severely delaying, misdirecting or making 
impossible fire and smoke control efforts. In existing structures where 
pitch roofs have been built over an existing roof, smoke detectors should 
be required to warm residents of smoke and fire before the arrival of fire 
personnel. 

 
(b) Impact 

 
More restrictive electric vehicle charging standards would not impact the 
availability of the County’s fire or public safety resources.  

 
B. Climatic 

 
1. Greenhouse Gas Emissions 

 
(a) Conditions 

 
The California Air Resources Board has collected information on emissions 
from air pollution sources since 1969. This information is periodically 
compiled by State and local air pollution control agencies to create an 
emission inventory. The California emission inventory maintains information 
on various air pollution sources and identifies “mobile sources” (all on-road 
vehicles such as automobiles and trucks; off-road vehicles such as trains, 
ships, aircraft; and farm equipment) as a primary pollution source. California 
adopted land use and transportation policies that intend to help reduce 
greenhouse gas emissions by promoting the use of renewable energy sources.   

 
(b) Impact 

 
More restrictive electric vehicle charging standards would follow the intent of 
State legislation to aggressively implement energy policies designed to ensure 
success in meeting their greenhouse gas emission reduction and reusable 
energy goals.  

 
2. Temperature 

 
(a) Conditions 

 



Contra Costa County Findings  
5 

Temperatures have been recorded as high as 114° F. Average summer Contra 
Costa County Findings 5 highs are in the 75° to 90° range, with average 
maximums of 105° F in some areas of unincorporated Contra Costa County. 

 
(b) Impact 

 
More restrictive electric vehicle charging standards would not have a negative 
impact on the temperature conditions within the County. 

 
3. Winds 

 
(a) Conditions 

 
Prevailing winds in many parts of Contra Costa County are from the north or 
northwest in the afternoons. However, winds are experienced from virtually 
every direction at one time or another. Velocities can reach fourteen (14) mph 
to twenty-three (23) mph ranges, gusting to twenty-five (25) to thirty-five (35) 
mph. Forty ( 40) mph winds are experienced occasionally and winds up to 
fifty-five (55) mph have been registered locally. During the winter half of the 
year, strong, dry, gusty winds from the north move through the area for 
several days creating extremely dry conditions. 

 
(b) Impact 

 
More restrictive electric vehicle charging standards would not have a negative 
impact on the wind conditions within the County. 

 
II. Necessity of More Restrictive Standards 

 
Because of the implementation of more restrictive electric vehicle charging standards 
would not have a negative impact on the conditions described above, and is consistent 
with State land use and transportation policies intended to help reduce greenhouse gas 
emissions, the Contra Costa County Board of Supervisors finds that the increased electric 
vehicle charging standards set forth in Ordinance No. 2015-22 are reasonable and 
justified. The ordinance amends the statewide codes by requiring the following: 
 
New multi-family buildings:   
   



Contra Costa County Findings  
6 

 Increase the required number of Electric Vehicle Charging Stations (“EVCS”) to five 
percent of the total number of parking spaces provided, where three percent is the 
minimum required in the State Code;   

 Require a minimum of one EVCS for every new multi-family building (three or more 
units) as opposed to State Code which requires no EVCS for multi-family buildings 
with fewer than 17 units;   

 Require that Electric Vehicle Supply Equipment (“EVSE”) be installed for each 
EVCS in addition to the electrical infrastructure required by the State Code. 

   
Changes for new non-residential buildings:   
   
 Increase the required number of EVCS to six percent of total number of parking 

spaces provided, where three percent is the minimum required in the State Code;     
 Required number of EVCS in new construction shall provide fully operational EVSE 

as opposed to State Code which requires electrical infrastructure only;     
 Require a minimum of one EVCS for every parking area associated with a new 

commercial building as opposed to State Code which requires no EVCS for parking 
areas of 50 or fewer parking spaces. (Proposed projects with 10 or fewer off-street 
parking spaces are exempt from the requirement to provide EVCS)  



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

OPEN the hearing on the costs of abating a public nuisance on the real property located at 14 Cooke Ave., Crockett,

California, Contra Costa County (APN 354-213-001);

RECEIVE and CONSIDER the attached itemized report on the abatement costs and any objections thereto from the

property owner or other persons with a legal interest in the property; and CLOSE the hearing.

DETERMINE the cost of all abatement work and all administrative costs to be $2,444.34.

ORDER the itemized report confirmed and DIRECT that it be filed with the Clerk of the Board Supervisors.

ORDER the costs to be specially assessed against the above-referenced property and AUTHORIZE the recordation of

a Notice Of Abatement Lien. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

No net fiscal impact. The costs as determined above will be added to the tax roll as a special assessment on this

property and will be collected at the same time and in the same manner as ordinary County taxes are collected. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Jason Crapo (925)

674 7722

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

D.5

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Jason Crapo, County Building Official

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Cost Confirmation Hearing for Real Property Located at 14 Cooke Ave., Crockett, CA



BACKGROUND:

Contra Costa Ordinance Code Article 14-6.4 and California Government Code Section 25845 authorize the

recovery of abatement costs in public nuisance cases, the recordation of a Notice of Abatement Lien, and

inclusion of abatement costs on the tax roll as a special assessment, upon approval of the Board of Supervisors.

The Notice and Order to Abate was posted on the above-referenced property for a vacant property whose premises

contain excessive vegetation, rubbish and debris and was served on the property owner and all persons known to

be in possession of the property by certified mail on May 12, 2015.

The property owner did not file an appeal of the Notice and Order to Abate. The County Abatement Officer abated

the nuisance on May 27, 2015.

The property owner was billed for the actual cost of the abatement and all administrative costs. The bill was sent

by first-class mail to the property owner on September 17, 2015. The property owner did not pay the bill within

45 days of the date of mailing.

Notice of this Cost Hearing was sent to the property owner by certified mail by the Clerk of the Board. For proof

of service, see Clerk of the Board at 651 Pine Street, Room 106, Martinez, CA.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If not approved, the County will not be able to recover costs for abatement on code violations for this property.

ATTACHMENTS

Itemized costs 

before and after photos 



  CONTRA COSTA COUNTY 
 
 
DATE:  November 09, 2015 
 
TO:  Clerk of the Board 
 
FROM:  Department of Conservation & Development 
  By: Patty Cookson, Building Inspector II 
   
RE:  Itemized Report of Abatement Costs 
                                                                   
The following is an itemized report of the costs of abatement for 
the below described property pursuant to C.C.C. Ord. Code ' 14-
6.428. 

 
OWNER:   Gabriel Almanza 
 
POSSESSOR: N/A 
 
MORTGAGE HOLDER: Fieldstone Mortgage Company 
     11000 Broken Land Parkway #600 
     Columbia, MD., 21044 
 
     HSBC Bank USA 
     c/o First American Title 
     Loss Mitigation Title Services 20188 2 
     PO Box 27670 
     Santa Ana, CA., 27670 

 
ABATEMENT ORDERED DATE:  May 12, 2015 
 
ABATEMENT COMPLETED DATE: May 27, 2015 
 
SITE ADDRESS: 14 Cooke Ave., Crockett, CA., 94525 
            APN#:354-213-001                                  
                                                                  
PROPERTY DESCRIPTION:  Residential 
 
AMOUNT OF ABATEMENT COSTS (CCC ORDINANCE CODE 14-6.428) 
 
ITEM                   EXPLANATION                   COST 
Notice to Comply $ 250.00 

Site Visits (2 x $100 @) $ 200.00 
PIRT (Title Search)  $ 150.00 
Certified Letter & Regular Mailings $ 27.84 
Photos $ 61.50 
Contractor hired for abatement                         $ 1,355.00 
Final Site Inspection to Confirm Compliance $ 200.00 
Compliance Report and Board Hearing $ 200.00 
                                                 Total $ 2,444.34 
 
 
Abatement costs can be paid at or mailed to Department of 
Conservation and Development, Building Inspection Division, 30 
Muir Rd., Martinez, CA 94553. 
 



 
14 Cooke Ave., 
Crockett, CA., 94525 
 
Before Photos 







 
14 Cooke Ave., 
Crockett, CA., 94525 
 
After Photos 







RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Conservation and Development Director, or designee, to execute a Cooperation

Agreement for the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Urban County and HOME Investment

Partnerships Act (HOME) Consortium between the County and the City of Richmond for fiscal years 2016\17 and

2017/18, with an option to renew for subsequent three-year terms, through which the County will administer CDBG

and HOME funds previously granted to the City of Richmond. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

No impact to the General Fund. CDBG and HOME funds are allocated by U.S. Department of Housing and Urban

Development. Increased County administration costs will be covered by the additional grant allocation. CDBG

CFDA# 14.218 and HOME CFDA # 14.239 

BACKGROUND: 

On November 12, 2015, the City of Richmond (City) formally requested that Contra Costa County (County) staff

work with City staff to carry out the necessary steps to fully integrate the City into the Contra Costa Urban County

for the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) and the HOME Consortium for the HOME Investment

Partnerships Act (HOME) programs. (See attached letter.) Both the County and City receive CDBG and HOME funds

from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). The County is a CDBG Urban County,

meaning that the County receives and awards grant funds allocated on a formula basis to the County unincorporated

area and all cities except for Antioch, Concord, Pittsburg, Richmond, and Walnut Creek. The County serves a similar

role as the administrative entity for the HOME Consortium (the Urban County and cities of Antioch, Concord, 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Kara Douglas

925-674-7880

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

D.6

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: John Kopchik, Director, Conservation & Development Department

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Inclusion of the City of Richmond in the Community Development Block Grant Urban County and HOME

Investment Partnerships Act Consortium



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

Pittsburg and Walnut Creek).

The City is a separate entitlement jurisdiction for both CDBG and HOME. The City is making this request due to

major staff reductions in the City's housing and community development programs, which have affected the City's

capacity to administer its CDBG and HOME programs. The staff reductions are primarily due to the dissolution of

the City's Redevelopment Agency, which included the CDBG and HOME staff. City staff have consulted with

HUD and HUD is supportive of this request. To join the Urban County, the City will relinquish its CDBG

entitlement status and enter into the attached Cooperation Agreement with the County. The City will be a member

of the Urban County effective July 1, 2016 for the CDBG program and July 1, 2017 for the HOME program.

The City will continue to administer any CDBG and HOME funds under its control for fiscal years up to and

including 2015/16. The City will have full responsibility to repay its two outstanding Section 108 loans, and for

correcting any HUD audit or monitoring findings related to its actions in administering HUD funds.

If the Board approves execution of the Cooperation Agreement, then the City of Richmond will be a member of

the Urban County and HOME Consortium with the same status as other city members. The future share of

Richmond CDBG and HOME allocations will be added to the Urban County CDBG and HOME Consortium

allocations, which are currently $2,996,848 and $1,792,838 respectively. In 2015, Richmond's CDBG grant is

$1,072,642 and the HOME grant is $389,071. It is difficult to predict future allocations due to the trend of

significant decreases in CDBG and HOME program budgets over the past six years.

The City will be included in the 2015-2020 CDBG/HOME Consolidated Plan, which calls for the following

distribution of CDBG funds: 20 percent for administration, 45 percent for housing, 15 percent for public services,

10 percent for economic development, 8 percent for infrastructure/public facilities, and 2 percent is discretionary

(typically public service). HOME funds are divided between program administration (10 percent) and

development activities (90 percent). There is a public participation process every fall when applications for the

next fiscal year are released. As part of this process, the County will outreach to City staff, interested Richmond

residents and community-based organizations to gather their input concerning funding priorities and to solicit

applications for CDBG and HOME funds, just as currently occurs for other member cities. County staff will

review all applications for eligibility and agency capacity and make funding recommendations to Board of

Supervisors, or Board-appointed committees. The committee recommendations are then forwarded to the Board of

Supervisors for final funding decisions. The County strives for geographic equity based on the needs of low

income communities. The programs generally achieve geographic balance over time, but not necessarily on an

annual basis. There is no guarantee of a return-to-source distribution of funds. The November 12 letter from the

City makes clear that the City understands this. County staff recognizes that a number of non-profit agencies are

providing much needed services to Richmond residents, and the value of program continuity will be an important

consideration in future staff recommendations.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If Richmond does not join the CDBG Urban County and the HOME Consortium, the Richmond allocation of

CDBG and HOME funds may be retained by HUD and not be available to programs and projects for the benefit

of low income Richmond residents.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

The CDBG and HOME programs provide affordable housing to families, which supports several of the Children

Report Card indicators.

ATTACHMENTS

Nov 12, 2015 letter from the City of Richmond 

Urban County Cooperation Agreement 





1 
 

COOPERATION AGREEMENT 

HOUSING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT ACT 1974, AS AMENDED 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT AND HOME INVESTMENT 

PARTNERSHIPS ACT PROGRAMS 

(CONTRA COSTA COUNTY AND THE CITY OF RICHMOND) 

 

 

This Cooperation Agreement is dated as of  December __, 2015 and is between the 

COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA, a political subdivision of the State of California (the 

"County") and the CITY OF RICHMOND, a charter city and municipal corporation of  the State 

of California that is located within the boundaries of the County of Contra Costa, (the “City”). 

 

RECITALS 

 

A. The Congress of the United States has enacted the Housing and Community Development 

Act of 1974, as amended (the "CDBG Act"). Title 1 of the Act consolidates previously 

separate grant programs for open space, public facility loans, water and sewer grants, 

urban renewal, model cities and rehabilitation loans.  Also, Title 1 makes available 

entitlement grants to (l) cities whose population exceeds 50,000 and (2) counties that 

qualify as an urban county. The CDBG Act's term “urban county" means any county 

within a metropolitan area that (A) is authorized under State law to undertake essential 

community development and housing assistance activities in its unincorporated areas, 

which are not units of general local government, and (B) has a combined population of 

200,000 or more (excluding the population of metropolitan cities therein) in such 

unincorporated areas and in its included units of local government (i) in which it has 

authority to undertake essential community development and housing assistance activities 

and which do not elect to have their population excluded or (ii) with which it has entered 

into cooperation agreements to undertake or to assist in the undertaking of essential 

community development and housing assistance activities.  In the alternative, a county 

qualifies as an urban county if it has a total population that is at least 100,000 but less than 

200,000 from the unincorporated areas and participating incorporated areas, provided that, 

in the aggregate, those areas include the majority of persons of low and moderate income 

that reside in the county, (outside of any metropolitan cities). 

 

B. The Congress of the United States has enacted the Cranston-Gonzales National Housing 

Act of 1990 (“HOME Act”) in order to increase housing for very low and low income 

households. 

 

C. Twelve cities in the County of Contra Costa have a population of less than 50,000.  

Certain of these cities may join with the County to form a combined population of 

200,000 or more, thereby qualifying as an urban county that is eligible for an entitlement 

of Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds and of HOME Investment 

Partnerships Act funds (HOME).  Seven cities in the County of Contra Costa have a 

population of more than 50,000.  Two of these cities participate in the urban county. 

 



2 
 

D. The City has a population of more than 50,000. The City has been a CDBG and HOME 

entitlement jurisdiction with an annual allocation of approximately $1,000,000 in CDBG 

funds and $400,000 in HOME funds. 

 

E. The County and the City desire to engage in housing and community development 

activities as authorized under the CDBG Act and HOME Act. The County and the City do 

hereby find and determine that it is to the best interest of the residents of the 

unincorporated area of the County and the residents of the City that housing and 

community development activities be performed jointly in accordance with the provisions 

of this agreement.  This Cooperation Agreement covers both the CDBG Entitlement 

Program and the HOME program. 

 

The parties therefore agree as follows: 

 

AGREEMENT 

 

1. Cooperation. The City and County agree to cooperate to undertake, or assist in undertaking, 

community renewal and lower income housing activities (each activity, a "program") in fiscal 

years 2016/17 and 2017/18, in compliance with the five-year Consolidated Plan and annual 

Action Plan, as may be amended to include eligible activities within the jurisdictional 

boundaries of the City of Richmond, that include community development objectives and 

projected use of funds, as submitted to the Federal Department of Housing and Urban 

Development (HUD) and as provided in this agreement. The County has the authority to 

carry out activities funded under this program, including any activities funded from program 

income generated from the expenditure of such funds. 

 

2. Activities. Eligible community development and housing assistance activities are hereby 

defined for purposes of this agreement to be those designated in Title l of the CDBG Act and 

in Title I of the HOME Act and the regulations issued thereto. Appropriate eligible activities 

will be included in the Annual Action Plan adopted by the County’s Board of Supervisors 

pursuant to the CDBG Act and the HOME Act. The County has the full responsibility, and 

all the obligations, of an applicant under CDBG Act and the HOME Act. The County’s 

obligations and responsibilities include submitting to the Federal Department of Housing & 

Urban Development (HUD) an annual Action Plan on the projected use of funds, an 

approved Consolidated Plan and certain assurance or certifications required by the CDBG 

Act and the HOME Act and regulations adopted pursuant thereto. 

 

3. Information. The City shall provide the County with all information concerning the City that 

the County requires to prepare its submissions to HUD and to develop an analysis of needs, 

set objectives, and prepare a community development program, plans and budget. All 

information required by the County is to be submitted in the form prescribed by the County 

no later than the dates specified by the County. The County is not liable to the City for any 

failure to include the City in the documents submitted to HUD. 

 

4. Compliance. The County and the City shall take all actions necessary to assure compliance 

with the urban county's certification required by the HOME Act and Section 104(b) of Title I 



3 
 

of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as amended, including provisions 

of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968, the 

Fair Housing Act and other applicable laws.  The County and the City shall take all actions 

necessary to assure compliance with Section 109 of Title 1 of the Housing and Community 

Development Act of 1974, which incorporates Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 

and the Age Discrimination Act of 1975.  With respect to the program within its boundaries, 

the City shall comply with all requirements of the CDBG Act and the HOME Act, as well as 

the regulations, guidelines, bulletins and circulars that are issued pursuant thereto.  The City 

shall provide the County with all records, documents, certifications and funding activities in, 

or in support of, any cooperating units of general local government that does not 

affirmatively further fair housing within its own jurisdiction or that impedes the County's 

actions to comply with its fair housing certification.  All information is to be submitted in the 

form prescribed by the County.  The City agrees to make available upon request all records 

concerning the program for inspection by the County or Federal officials during regular 

business hours. 

 

Pursuant to 24 CFR 570.501(b), the City is subject to the same requirements applicable to 

subrecipients, including the requirement of a written agreement set forth in 24 CFR 570.503. 

As the applicant, the County has responsibility for ensuring that CDBG funds are used in 

accordance with all performance standards established under agreements and procurement 

contracts, and for taking appropriate action when performance problems arise. Therefore, 

before disbursing any CDBG funds for projects in the City of Richmond, the County and the 

subrecipient shall enter into a written agreement for each individual project. 

 

5. Prior City Obligations. The County is not responsible for carrying out or concluding any 

activities or corrective actions that are City obligations under its current or prior HUD 

contracts. All such City obligations are “Excluded Obligations.”  Excluded Obligations 

include, but are not limited to, payments under any contracts with City subrecipients, 

payments to cure HUD sanctions, and payments due under any existing Section 108 loans. 

The City may apply to the County to use CDBG funds to make Section 108 loan payments; 

however, the County is not obligated to approve such use of CDBG funds. 

 

6. Program Income.  The City shall inform the County of any CDBG and HOME income 

received by the City that is generated by activities funded pursuant to this agreement. The 

City shall pay all program income that is generated by activities pursuant to this agreement to 

the County or, with prior written approval of the County, shall use CDBG program income 

for eligible CDBG activities. To allow the County to comply with its monitoring and 

reporting responsibilities to HUD,  the City shall (i) keep appropriate accounting records 

regarding any program income and (ii) report to the County quarterly, starting with October 

15, 2016.   

 

7. Real Property. The City shall notify the County of any disposition of, or modification or 

change in the use of any real property acquired or improved with CDBG funds. The City 

shall reimburse the County in an amount equal to the current fair market value (less any 

portion thereof attributable to expenditures of non-CDBG funds) of property acquired or 

improved with CDBG funds that is sold or transferred for a use that does not qualify under 



4 
 

the CDBG regulations. Program income generated from the disposition or transfer of 

property acquired or improved with CDBG funds is to be reported and handled as set forth in 

Section 6. This Section 7 and the requirements herein shall apply only to real property 

acquired or improved with CDBG funds received by the City through the County pursuant to 

this agreement. 

 

8. Indemnification. The City shall defend, save, hold harmless and indemnify the County, its 

officers, agents and employees from all liabilities and claims for any fines, penalties, bodily 

injury, death, sickness or damages of any type from any cause whatsoever that arises from or 

is connected with (i) the City's failure to comply with any requirement of the CDBG Act and 

the HOME Act or the regulations, guidelines, bulletins or circulars that are issued pursuant 

thereto, and (ii) any City activity that is financed by  funds granted  hereunder pursuant to the 

CDBG Act and the HOME Act.  Without limiting the foregoing, the provisions of this 

paragraph apply fully in the event the City participates in the Section 312 Federal 

Rehabilitation Loan Program in conjunction with the Community Development Block Grant 

and HOME Investment Partnerships Act programs. 

 

9. Fund Distribution.  The County shall distribute funds received under CDBG Act and the 

HOME Act for fiscal years 2016/17 and 2017/18 or the forty-third, and forty-fourth program 

years for the undertaking of essential community development and housing assistance 

activities throughout the Urban County. The County shall distribute funds within the City 

received under the CDBG Act and the HOME Act if essential community development and 

housing assistance activities are to be undertaken within the territorial limits of the City. The 

County cannot guarantee the specific proportion of funds that will be distributed within the 

jurisdictional boundaries of the City of Richmond in any given year. The County and 

subrecipient under Section 24 CFR 570.503 of the program regulations are required to enter 

into a written agreement to implement activities prior to disbursement of any CDBG funds. 

 

10. Effective and Termination Dates.  This agreement  is effective as of the  date shown  in the 

introductory paragraph and shall  continue  in  full  force  and  effect through the forty-third 

and forty-fourth community development  program years, or fiscal years 2016/17 and 

2017/18 covered by the County's Action  Plan  of Community  Development  activities and 

projected use of funds and so long as the essential community development and housing 

assistance activities are being undertaken in accordance with this agreement. 

 

This agreement will automatically be renewed for participation in successive three-year 

qualification periods, unless the County or the City provides written notice it elects not to 

participate in a new qualification period. A copy of the notice must be sent to the HUD Field 

Office.  By the date specified in HUD's urban county qualification notice for the next 

qualification period, the County will notify the City in writing of its right to make such 

election. A copy of the County's notification will be sent to the HUD Field Office by the date 

specified in the urban county qualification notice. 

 

Failure by either party to adopt an amendment to the agreement incorporating all changes 

necessary to meet the requirements for cooperation agreements set forth in the Urban County 

Qualification Notice applicable for a subsequent three-year urban county qualification 



5 
 

period, and to submit the amendment to HUD as provided in the urban county qualification 

notice will void the automatic renewal of such qualification period. 

 

This agreement is in effect until the CDBG and HOME funds and income received with 

respect to the three-year qualification period (and any successive qualification periods which 

are automatically renewed) are expended and the funded activities completed, and the 

County and City may not terminate or withdraw from this agreement while this agreement 

remains in effect. 

 

11. Subsequent Years.  Nothing in this agreement is to be construed as requiring the City to 

provide the County with any information necessary for the preparation of a subsequent 

Statement of Community Development activities and projected use of funds for the forty-

fifth, forty-sixth, and forty-seventh program years. Should the County desire to qualify as an 

urban county for subsequent fiscal years, the City shall have the option of choosing whether 

to continue its participation with the County. 

 

12. City Policies.  The City has adopted and is enforcing the following policies: 

 

a. A policy prohibiting the use of excessive force by law enforcement agencies within 

its jurisdiction against any individuals engaged in non-violent civil rights 

demonstrations. 

 

b. A policy of enforcing applicable State and local laws against physically barring the 

entrance to or the exit from a facility or location that is the subject of nonviolent civil 

rights demonstrations within its jurisdiction. 

 

13. Inclusive Programs.  By executing this agreement, the City understands the following: 

 

a. The City may not apply for grants under the Small Cities or State CDBG Programs 

from appropriations for fiscal years during the period in which it is participating in 

the County's CDBG program. 

 

b. The City may not participate in a HOME consortium except through the urban 

county, regardless of whether the County receives a HOME formula allocation. 

 

14. Representatives. 

 

a. The City designates the City Manager, or his or her designee, as the person to whom 

the County should send all notices and communications that concern anything 

discussed in this agreement or that is relevant to this agreement. 

 

b. The County designates the Department of Conservation and Development Director, 

or his or her designee, as the person to whom the City should send all notices and 

communications that concern anything discussed in this agreement or that is relevant 

to this agreement. 

 



6 
 

15. Changes in Law or Regulations. Any change or amendment to Federal or State law or 

regulations that affects the subject matter of this agreement is to be considered to be 

immediately incorporated into the agreement and fully effective as if set forth in this 

agreement.   

 

16. Funds Not Transferrable.  The grantee or unit of general/local government that directly or 

indirectly receives CDBG funds may not sell, trade, or otherwise transfer any portion  of 

such funds to another metropolitan city, urban county, unit of general/local  government,  

Indian  tribe, or insular area that directly or indirectly receives CDBG funds in exchange for 

any other funds, credits or non-Federal considerations, and must use such funds for activities 

eligible under Title I of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as amended.  

The County may not use CDBG funds in support of any cooperating unit of general local 

government that does not affirmatively further fair housing within its jurisdiction. 

 

The parties are signing this agreement as of the date set forth in the introductory paragraph. 

 

COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA   CITY OF RICHMOND 

 

 

 

By: _________________________  By: _________________________ 

County Administrator     Mayor 

  

ATTEST:       ATTEST: 

 

 

 

By:  _________________________  By: _________________________ 

Deputy Clerk      City Clerk 

 

 

 

       Approved as to form: 

 

 

       By:  __________________________ 

        City Attorney 



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

1. ACCEPT report from consultant Crowe Horwath LLP, dated November 20, 2015, on its review of the Base Year

Rate Application submitted by Allied Waste Systems, Inc. (Allied), attached as Exhibit A. 

2. APPROVE phased implementation of a 28.8% solid waste collection rate increase, with a 15% rate increase

effective January 15, 2016, a 12% rate increase effective January 15, 2017, and deferring whether to implement the

remaining 1.8% rate increase until the 2020 Base Year Rate Review.

3. ACKNOWLEDGE that implementing weekly residential recycling collection would require an additional 5.9%

rate increase (for a total rate increase of 34.7%), and DECLINE to approve this additional rate increase at this time. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

No impact to the County General Fund. The costs for County staff time spent administering the Franchise Agreement

(rate review) and any related consulting services are covered by solid waste/recycling collection franchise fees. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  David Brockbank (925)

674-7794

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the
Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

D.7

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: John Kopchik, Director, Conservation & Development Department

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Rate Changes for Solid Waste Collection in the Unincorporated Areas Served by Allied Waste Systems, Inc. Under

the County Franchise Agreement



BACKGROUND:

In May of 1995, the County entered into a Franchise Agreement with Allied’s predecessor company, Pleasant Hill

Bayshore Disposal, Inc. On July 21, 2015, the County approved the first Amendment to the County/Allied

Franchise Agreement that: (a) extended the term of the Agreement for 10 years; (b) increased the franchise fee

2%, from 5% to 7%; (c) established the existing maximum collection rates; (d) expanded Allied’s Franchise

service area to include a pocket of unincorporated area in the vicinity of Cummings Skyway; and (e) required

Allied to provide new and expanded services.

The Franchise Agreement grants Allied the exclusive privilege and duty to collect solid waste, recyclables and

organics routinely generated by residential and commercial customers within the designated Allied service area

(also known as the “Franchise Area”). The Allied Franchise Area covers the following ten (10) unincorporated

areas:

1. Alhambra Valley (portion) – District I & V

2. Canyon – District II

3. Antioch, Unincorporated – District III

4. Morgan Territory / Marsh Creek – District III

5. Concord, Unincorporated (portion) – District IV

6. Clayton, Unincorporated – District IV

7. Pleasant Hill, Unincorporated – District IV

8. Pacheco / Vine Hill / Martinez, Unincorporated – District V

9. Bay Point (eastern portion) / Clyde – District V

10. Cummings Skyway (portion) – District V

The County establishes and regulates Collection Rates that Allied is allowed to charge for residential and

commercial collection services provided in their Franchise Area. These rates are established in accordance with

the adopted rate setting methodology set forth in the “Rate Setting Process and Methodology Manual for Solid

Waste Charges as Applied to Allied Waste Systems, Inc., a division of Republic Services, Inc.” (Rate Manual).

The Rate Manual establishes a process with the following components:

Every four (4) years: Base Year rate reviews. Such reviews rely upon data submitted in detailed rate

applications and accompanying audited financial statements; and

a.

Intervening years between Base Years (Interim Years): The Franchisee may request no change or a change

based on one of the following options. One, a rate change which does not exceed the annual change in

Consumer Price Index (CPI) (no Board approval required). Or two, Interim Year rate changes calculated

based on a weighted increase in controlled and uncontrolled costs, including tipping fees, regulatory

charges and change in CPI (Board approval required). The hauler is not required to submit audited financial

data with the interim year rate application. Therefore, the Interim Year Rate Review is less rigorous than

that carried out in a Base Year. 

b.

The Rate Manual provides for recovery of the reasonable costs that Allied will incur in performing services under

the Franchise Agreement plus allowable profit. Special extraordinary cost increases are also taken into account.

History of Solid Waste Collection Rate Adjustments Since the Prior Base Year

There have been various rate adjustments in the Allied Franchise Area since 1998 when the County adopted

Allied’s Rate Manual. However, Allied’s rates for residential customers have not changed since 2009, when the

Board approved a variable rate structure intended to serve as a financial incentive for residential customers to

downsize their garbage carts to further reduce waste disposal. The variable can rate structure proved to be quite

effective in encouraging residents to switch to smaller garbage carts. The amount of customers using the largest

trash carts (96-gallon) has gone down by roughly 68% and the amount of customers using the smallest cart

(20-gallon) has increased by just over 400%. 



Since the last Board-approved rate change in 2009, the Consumer Price Index (CPI) for the San

Francisco-Oakland-San Jose area has increased approximately 17%, or an average of 2.8% per year. Rates for

residential customers were not affected and remained flat. For commercial/light industrial customers, there has

been only one rate change related to CPI, a 0.95% increase in 2011. 

The most recent rate review took place in 2011 for the 2012 Base Year. Below is a brief summary of that review

and subsequent allowable rate adjustments: 

2012: Base Year Rate Review– In the 2012 Base Year Rate Application, Allied requested a 2.03% rate increase.

The County hired a consulting firm, R3 Consulting Group (R3), to conduct the 2012 Base Year Rate Review.

R3’s report dated April 3, 2012 identified annual cost savings expected as a result of service efficiencies achieved

by Allied. The total amount of cost savings potentially warranted a rate reduction of 10.2%. Rates charged to

customers remained stable, offering a 10.2% rate reduction credit as a result of the 2012 rate review. This rate

reduction credit offset subsequent CPI adjustments that would have been applied in 2013, 2014, and 2015. The

rate reduction credit also yielded funding between 2012 – 2015, which is considered Rate Setting Methodology

(RSM) Revenue. Exhibit F of the First Amendment requires that this revenue be applied to help offset allowable

costs for fees or enhanced services in the Allied Franchise Area.

2013: Interim Year Rate – Annual CPI adjustment of 2.80% was credited to Allied. Instead of adjusting rates

based on CPI, a portion of the 10.2% rate reduction credit identified in 2012 was used to offset the 2.8% CPI

increase, resulting in the credit being reduced from 10.2% to 7.4% and collection rates were unchanged.

2014: Interim Year Rate – Annual CPI adjustment of 2.03% was credited to Allied. The rate reduction credit of

7.4% remaining from 2013 was used to offset the CPI increase, which further reduced the credit from 7.4% to

5.38% and collection rates were unchanged. 

2015: Interim Year Rate – Annual CPI increase adjustment of 2.96% was credited to Allied. The remaining 5.38%

rate reduction credit available from 2014 was applied to offset the CPI increase, which further reduced the credit

from 5.38% to 2.42% and collection rates were unchanged. 

In addition to offsetting the annual CPI adjustments, any remaining rate adjustment credit available each year

between 2012 and 2015 yielded additional Rate Setting Methodology (RSM) Revenue. The total amount of RSM

Revenue mutually agreed to have been accrued between 2012 and 2015 was $523,941. As discussed in more

detail below, a portion of this amount was used to fund the cost of new and enhanced services between August 1

and December 31, 2015 and the remainder is available to be applied to help offset service costs during 2016 Base

year Rate setting (see the “Recommended 2016 Base Year Rate Adjustment (OPTION 1)” section below for

further information).

Crowe Horwath Review of Allied’s Base Year Rate Application

On July 10, 2015, Allied submitted a Base Year Rate application to increase solid waste collection rates. Allied

requested a total 33.5% rate increase. To determine a Base Year Rate change for calendar year 2016, the County

requested technical assistance from Crowe Horwath (consultant) to review the Base Year Rate Application

submitted by Allied consistent with the County’s Rate Manual. The result of Crowe Horwath’s review is

contained in their report dated November 20, 2015, which is attached as Exhibit A. 

The Base Year Rate setting process requires that a detailed rate change application be submitted by Allied along

with an audited financial statement and supplemental financial and operational information. Using the detailed

financial data provided, Crowe Horwath reviewed the following major cost categories to determine the appropriate

rate adjustment:

Direct Labor Costs

Tipping Fees

Corporate and Local General and Administrative Costs

Household Hazardous Waste Program Costs



Household Hazardous Waste Program Costs

Trucking and Equipment

Allowable Profit

County’s Franchise Fee

BASE YEAR RATE APPLICATION ADJUSTMENTS: Allied’s Base Year Rate Application proposes a rate

increase of 33.5% based on projected costs for existing services, changing to weekly residential recycling as well

as most, but not all, of the service enhancements approved by the Board in July 2015 (see listing below in the

“NEW AND ENHANCED SERVICES” section). Crowe Horwath reviewed the Rate Application submitted by

Allied for consistency with the Rate Manual, County policies, and waste management industry practices. Their

analysis did a comparison on year-to-year changes in revenues and costs for reasonableness and solicited

explanations from Allied for material changes. This included the examination of actual data for 2014, estimated

data for 2015, and projected data for 2016. 

Crowe Horwath's review of Allied’s Rate Application led to recommended adjustments to various cost categories

which included eliminating unallowable costs and adding allowable costs for programs/services that were not

accounted for in the original 2016 Base Year Rate Application. Commercial food waste collection service and

household hazardous waste (HHW) program costs were not included in the Rate Application, but weekly

residential recycling was included. The cost of these enhanced services combined with Crowe Horwath’s other

recommend cost adjustments, resulted in a net increase of $28,308 in annual costs. This equates to an additional

1.2% increase for the Base Year. Consequently, Crowe Horwath is recommending a 34.7% increase, including

weekly residential recycling (1.2% more than requested by Allied).

NEW AND ENHANCED SERVICES: The following eleven (11) new and enhanced services listed below were

approved by the Board in July of this year in conjunction the First Amendment to the County / Allied Franchise

Agreement: 

1) six additional community clean-up boxes per year,

2) residential household battery, compact fluorescent lights (CFL) and plastic bag recycling,

3) on-call bulky household item collection twice per year,

4) increase in franchise fee paid by Allied to the County,

5) support for mandatory commercial recycling program,

6) on-call debris box service for County abatement projects ,

7) on-call removal of illegal dumping from the right-of-way,

8) compost organics collected from residential and commercial customers rather than using as alternative

daily cover (ADC),

9) commercial food waste collection,

10) recycling coordinator support (20% of a position), and

11) elimination of the separate commercial recycling charge.

When the Board reviewed and approved the First Amendment to the Allied/County Franchise Agreement in July

2015, the Board deferred approval of changing residential recycling from every other week to weekly, pending the

results of this Base Year rate review. Pursuant to the Board's direction, optional weekly residential recycling

service rate adjustment is being provided for consideration in conjunction with the 2016 Base Year Rate

adjustment (see “Changing to Weekly Recycling (OPTION 2 – NOT RECOMMENDED)” section below for

further details). 

A number of the approved service enhancements have since been implemented, in advance of approving a rate

change adequate to offset the cost of the added services. Some of the previously mentioned RSM Revenue

($88,559.72 ) is being used to offset projected costs for new and enhanced services pursuant to the Board’s

approval of the First Amendment in July 2015. The remaining balance of RSM Revenue is to be applied to offset

service costs during this Base Year Rate setting as further discussed in the “Recommended 2016 Base Year Rate

Adjustment (OPTION 1)” section of this report.

BASE YEAR RATES – OPTION 1 AND 2: Crowe Horwath’s report recommended two options for the County to

consider in making any rate adjustments for the 2016 Base Year. The proposed Option 1 rate adjustment of 28.8%

includes projected costs for all eleven of the Board approved new and enhanced services. The proposed Option 2



includes projected costs for all eleven of the Board approved new and enhanced services. The proposed Option 2

rate adjustment of 34.7% includes projected costs for all eleven of the above-noted enhancements (in other words

all of Option 1) as well as the added costs for weekly residential recycling collection (adds 5.9%) which has not

been approved by the Board. 

There are multiple factors contributing to the changes in projected costs and revenue which drive the

recommended rate adjustment. Some of these are routine factors associated with existing services (e.g. increased

wages and benefits based on labor agreements and CPI adjustments to various other categories of operational

costs, including trucking and equipment, depreciation and disposal). Most of the recommended rate increase is

due to factors associated with the cost of implementing new and enhanced services. Additionally, the

recommended rate increase addresses the revenue decrease resulting from residential customers switching to

smaller cart sizes and the decrease in revenue expected to result from the elimination of the separate commercial

recycling charge.

While the proposed rate changes are relatively large, the existing rates are far lower than those in neighboring

cities as well as the other unincorporated Franchise Areas. Allied’s residential customers have not had a rate

increase since 2009. The 2016 Base Year Rates proposed as Option 1 (28.8% increase) and Option 2 (34.7%

increase) fall substantially below the average rates charged to residential customers in other incorporated and

unincorporated franchise areas surveyed within the County. If Option 1 rates were enacted (staff is actually

recommending phased implementation), despite a 28.8% rate increase, customers in the Allied/County Franchise

Area would still pay the lowest rates. Option 1 rates are between 27% and 40% less than the average residential

rates in the incorporated and unincorporated franchise areas surveyed (see Tables 4 and 5 at the end of this report

for residential rate comparison of the unincorporated franchise areas and neighboring jurisdictions surveyed) and

24% to 31% less than the average commercial rates for comparable service levels in the incorporated and

unincorporated franchise areas surveyed (see Table C-2 of Attachment C to Exhibit A for the comparison of all

surveyed commercial rates).

2016 Base Year Rate Adjustment (OPTION 1) 

Crowe Horwath’s recommended Option 1 rate increase of 28.8% corresponds with monthly increases between

$3.50 and $8.87 per month for residential customers as shown in Table 1 below. Table 1 reflects the existing

monthly residential rates and the proposed Option 1 - Base Year Rate increases for 2016 (no recommended

change to the existing every other week (biweekly) schedule for residential recycling collection).

Table 1: Total Option 1 Base Year Rate Increase with Existing Biweekly Recycling Collection

Cart Size

TOTAL BASE YEAR RATE ADJUSTMENT – OPTION 1

Existing Monthly

Rates (2015)

Base Year Rate Increase

(28.8%)

Option 1

Base Rate for 2016

20 gallon $12.15 $3.50 $15.65

32 gallon $15.90* $4.59 $20.49 

64 gallon $23.70* $6.84 $30.54

96 gallon $30.75* $8.87 $39.62

* Existing monthly rates for Canyon customers: 32-Gallon = $19.40, 64-Gallon = $22.57, 96-Gallon = $25.75.

RECOMMENDED PHASED IMPLEMENTATION OF OPTION 1 BASE YEAR RATES: In addition to

the adjustments recommended in the report, staff recommends that the Board approve phased implementation of

the recommended Option 1 Base Year Rate adjustment. Phasing implementation of this significant rate increase

will ease the impact on rate payers by avoiding the rate spike that would result from passing through the entire

increase in 2016. Staff is recommending that most of the Base Year Rate adjustment be passed through to

customers over two years, involving an initial Base Year Rate adjustment of 15% that could take effect on January

15, 2016 and an additional Base Year Rate adjustment of 12% on January 15, 2017 (see Table 2 below for impact

of annual adjustments on monthly residential rates for each service level). In addition to the recommended Base

Year Rate adjustment in 2017, Allied is entitled to request an Interim Year or CPI-adjustment for 2017 in which

case the combined increase could take effect in January 2017.



As noted above, Allied has been collecting Rate Setting Methodology (RSM) Revenue since 2012 which is to be

factored in when setting 2016 Base Year Rates to offset service costs that would otherwise have to be paid for by

rate payers. RSM Revenue is recommended to be used to offset the revenue shortfall resulting from phased

implementation of the Base Year Rate increase. As of the end of December 2015, it is anticipated there will be

$435,341.28 in Rate Setting Methodology Revenue. Additionally, the recommended Base Year Rate adjustment

provides for an additional one-time “service credit” of $18,250 to account for the avoided operating costs

associated with the delayed implementation of the Commercial Food Waste program that will start on April 1,

2016. The phased implementation of the Base Year Rate increase being recommended by staff was determined

based on the amount of revenue/cost savings available to offset rate adjustments during this Base Year Rate cycle.

Staff recommends phased implementation of Option 1 rate increase, as reflected in Table 2. This phased approach

would apply remaining RSM Revenue as follows:

$ 325,543.10 to offset the annual deferral of the 13.8% increase in rates for 2016; and

$ 127,386.43 to offset the remaining 1.8% of the Base Year Rate increase for calendar years 2017 through

2019 ($42,462.14 per year).

Table 2 shows the existing monthly residential rates and the phased implementation of rate increases that staff is

recommending be passed through to customers.

Table 2: Phased Implementation of Option 1 Base Year Rate Increase 

using RSM Revenue to partially offset the base year adjustment in 2016-2019** (RECOMMENDED)

Cart Size

STAFF RECOMMENDED

PHASED PASS-THROUGH OF BASE YEAR RATE ADJUSTMENT –

OPTION 1

Existing

Monthly

Rates

(2015)

Recommended

Base Year

Rate Increase

(15% in 2016)

Recommended

Monthly Rate

for 2016

Recommended 

Base Year Rate

Increase

(12% in

2017)***

Recommended

Monthly Rate

for 2017***

20 gallon $12.15 $1.82 $13.97 $1.46 $15.43

32 gallon $15.90* $2.39 $18.29 $1.91 $20.19

64 gallon $23.70* $3.56 $27.26 $2.84 $30.10

96 gallon $30.75* $4.61 $35.36 $3.69 $39.05
* Existing monthly rates for Canyon customers: 32-Gallon = $19.40, 64-Gallon = $22.57, 96-Gallon = $25.75.

** Staff recommended phased implementation and partial offset of the recommended Option 1 Base Year Rates is based on the amount of revenue/cost savings available.In

addition to the RSM Revenue balance of $435,341.28 identified in the First Amendment to the County/Allied Franchise, the recommended Base Year Rates provide for an

additional one-time “service credit” of $18,250 for the avoided operating costs associated with the delayed implementation of the Commercial Food Waste program that will start

on April 1, 2016. Deferral of 13.8% increase in 2016 to facilitate phasing in of Base Rate would utilize $325,543.10 of the RSMR. Deferral of remaining 1.8% Base Rate increase

in 2017 - 2019 would utilize $42,462.145 of RSMR per year (totaling $ 127,386.43). 

***In addition to the 12% phased base year rate increase proposed to take effect in 2017, Allied is entitled to request approval of an annual Interim Year/CPI Rate adjustment.

Changing to Weekly Recycling (OPTION 2 – NOT RECOMMENDED) 

Staff recommends that the Board defer consideration of increased recycling collection frequency for residential

collection to avoid imposing an even larger rate increase. Based on the findings of Crowe Horwath’s review of the

Base Year Rate Application and the associated rate option to change from every other week (biweekly) to weekly

recycling collection for residential customers (Option 2), staff recommends that recycling collection remain on a

biweekly schedule. Even though these customers have not had a collection rate increase in six years, imposing the

full 34.7% Option 2 rate increase needed in order to move forward with changing to weekly recycling collection in

2016 may pose an unnecessary and potentially avoidable hardship. 

Staff recommends that the Board defer approving this change until sometime in the future (ideally not

simultaneously with another substantial rate change). Staff also suggests that the Board consider implementing

weekly organics collection in the future, prior to recycling, in order to maximize the potential diversion

opportunity for residential food waste. One of the new services established in the Amended Franchise Agreement

ensures that all organics collected from residential and commercial customers will be composted. Residential food

waste cannot be combined with other green waste in areas where organics are only being collected on a biweekly



waste cannot be combined with other green waste in areas where organics are only being collected on a biweekly

basis for health and safety reasons. Therefore, it may be preferable to increase organics collection from biweekly

to weekly rather than or at least in advance of increasing frequency of recycling collection as this would allow

co-mingling of food waste with green waste for composting. Customer survey data suggests there is not a high

demand for weekly collection of recycling or organics in the Allied Franchise Area. Staff can return to the Board

in the future if/when there is more customer demand or some other compelling reason to consider changing to

weekly collection.

Table 3 reflects the existing monthly residential rates and the Option 2 rate increase which is not recommended.

Table 3: Total Option 2 Base Year Rate Increase with Weekly Recycling Collection (Not Recommended)

* Existing monthly rates for Canyon customers: 32-Gallon = $19.40, 64-Gallon = $22.57, 96-Gallon = $25.75

Table 4: Residential Rate Comparison with other Unincorporated Franchise Areas (Per Customer, Per Month)

Franchise Area 20 Gallon 32 Gallon 64 Gallon 96 Gallon

1. Alamo & Uninc Central CCC (CCCSWA) $ 20.33 $ 23.09 $ 43.96 $ 65.65

2. Crockett Garbage – West CCC (County) $ 22.44 $ 26.61 $ 46.66 $ 56.70

3. Garaventa Enterprises – East CCC (County) $ 27.61 $ 34.46 $ 39.97 $ 47.55

4. Richmond Sanitary – West CCC (County) $ 25.50 $ 31.01 $ 59.42 $ 88.50

Average $ 23.97 $ 28.79 $ 47.50 $ 64.60

2016 County/Allied Rates

(Option 1 - 28.8% increase)
$ 15.65 $ 20.49 $ 30.54 $ 39.62

Difference -35% -29% -36% -39%

CCCSWA = Central Contra Costa Solid Waste Authority

Table 5: Residential Rate Comparison with Neighboring Jurisdictions (Per Customer, Per Month)

Jurisdiction 20 Gallon 32 Gallon 64 Gallon 96 Gallon

1. Antioch $ 23.49 $ 27.59 $ 44.54 $ 52.31

2. Clayton $ 24.38 $ 27.24 $ 50.88 $ 57.66

3. Concord N/A $ 28.45 $ 38.40 $ 47.05

4. Danville (CCCSWA) N/A $ 25.81 $ 43.90 $ 65.16

5. Lafayette (CCCSWA) $ 26.43 $ 30.20 $ 56.99 $ 85.47

6. Martinez $ 19.35 $ 27.73 $ 30.91 $ 64.95

7. Moraga (CCCSWA) $ 25.38 $ 29.30 $ 58.59 $ 87.89

8. Orinda (CCCSWA) $ 31.01 $ 35.75 $ 67.30 $100.67

Cart Size

BASE YEAR RATE ADJUSTMENT – OPTION 2

Existing

Monthly

Rates

(2015)

Option 1

Base Rate Increase

for 2016

(28.8%)

Additional

Rate Increase for

Weekly Recycling

(5.9%)

Option 2

Base Rate for 2016

(34.7% increase)

20 gallon $12.15 $3.50 $0.72 $16.37

32 gallon $15.90* $4.59 $0.93 $21.42

64 gallon $23.70* $6.84 $1.39 $31.93

96 gallon $30.75* $8.87 $1.80 $41.42



9. Pleasant Hill $ 20.86 $ 24.14 $ 32.94 $ 49.39

10. Walnut Creek (CCCSWA) $ 18.28 $ 21.57 $ 40.73 $ 60.84

Average $ 23.65 $ 27.78 $ 46.52 $ 67.14

2016 County/Allied Rates

(Option 1 - 28.8% increase)
$ 15.65 $ 20.49 $ 30.54 $ 39.62

Difference -34% -26% -34% -41%

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

The County/Allied Franchise Agreement obligates the County to: 

set rates in a manner consistent with the approved Rate Manual,

consider fairness to both Allied Waste and the Customers when setting rates, and

set rates adequate to cover Allied's reasonable projected costs and allowable profit.

If a rate increase is not approved, Allied will not have a means to collect an adequate amount of revenue from the

customers in the County Franchise Area to cover the company's costs for providing services to said customers.

ATTACHMENTS

Exhibit A: Final Report - Review of 2016 Allied Waste Systems Rate Application 



Crowe Horwath LLP 
Independent Member Crowe Horwath International 

575 Market Street, Suite 3300 
San Francisco, California  94105-5829 
Tel 415.576.1100 
Fax 415.576.1110 
www.crowehorwath.com 

 
 
November 20, 2015 
 
Ms. Deidra Dingman 
Conservation Programs Manager 
Contra Costa County 
Department of Conservation and Community Development 
30 Muir Road 
Martinez, California 94553-4601 
 
Subject:  Final Report - Review of 2016 Allied Waste Systems, Inc. Rate Application 

Dear Ms. Dingman: 
 

This letter report represents results of Crowe Horwath LLP’s (Crowe) review of the 2016 rate application 
submitted by Allied Waste Systems, Inc. (AWS) to Contra Costa County (County).  AWS (a subsidiary of 
Republic Services, Inc.) provides refuse and recycling collection services in unincorporated Central 
Contra Costa County. 

This letter report is organized into eight (8) sections as follows: 

A. Summary 
B. Project Background 
C. Goals and Objectives of Rate Review 
D. Scope of Rate Review 
E. History of Collection Rates 
F. 2016 Base Year Rate Application 
G. Review of 2016 Base Year Rate Application 
H. Comparison of Rates and Services to Other Neighboring Jurisdictions. 

There are five (5) attachments to this report, as follows: 

A. Rate Application and Audited Financial Statements 
B. Adjusted Base Year Rate Model 
C. Comparative Rate Survey 
D. Costs for Shift to Weekly Curbside Recycling Services 
E. Costs for Mandatory Commercial Recycling Program. 

 
A. Summary 
 
This rate review includes two options we will address in this report:  

(1)  Option 1 – Assumes New/Enhanced Service Levels and an Increase in County Franchise Fees from 
5% to 7% of Gross Revenues1  

(2) Option 2 – Expands Option 1 to Include a Shift from Bi-Weekly to Weekly Curbside Recycling 
Collection. 

                                                      
1 Note that Option 1 incorporated all of the new services already approved by the County Board of Supervisors in conjunction with the First 
Amendment to the Franchise Agreement. 

ddingman
Typewritten Text
Exhibit A



 

 
 
Ms. Deidra Dingman, Conservation Programs Manager Page 2 
November 20, 2015 
 
In its Application, AWS requested a rate increase of 33.5 percent for 2016 for Options 1 and 2 combined. 
Table 1 below shows our recommended rate increase for Option 1 which would provide AWS the target profit 
level allowed by the Rate Manual. Table 2 shows the recommended rate increase for Option 2. Under Option 
1 at current service levels, our recommended residential rates would increase by 28.8 percent, or between 
$3.50 and $8.87 per customer, per month, depending on the residential service level. With the addition of the 
new Option 2 program, recommended residential rates would increase by 34.7 percent, or between $4.22 and 
$10.67 per customer, per month, depending on the residential service level.  

Table 1 
Unincorporated Contra Costa County 
Option 1 – Various Expanded Services and Increase to 7% Franchise Fee  
Potential Residential Collection Rates, Per Customer, per Month 
(January 1, 2016) 

Recommended Rate Increase with Current Service Levels  
and 7% Franchise Fee (+28.8%) 

Service Level 
2015 Collection 

Rate 
Rate Increase 2016 Collection Rate 

20 Gallon $12.15  $3.50 $15.65 

32 Gallon $15.90  $4.59  $20.49  

64 Gallon $23.70  $6.84  $30.54  

96 Gallon $30.75  $8.87  $39.62  
 
Table 2 
Unincorporated Contra Costa County 
Option 2 – Represents Option 1 Plus Shift from Bi-Weekly to Weekly Recycling  
Residential Collection Rates, Per Customer, per Month 
(January 1, 2016) 

Recommended Rate Increase with New Services and 7% Franchise Fee (+34.7%) 

Service Level 
2015 Collection 

Rate 
Rate Increase 2016 Collection Rate 

20 Gallon $12.15  $4.22 $16.37 

32 Gallon $15.90  $5.52  $21.42  

64 Gallon $23.70  $8.23  $31.93  

96 Gallon $30.75  $10.67  $41.42  
 

B.  Project Background 

AWS operates under an exclusive franchise with the County to collect, and remove for disposal and 
recycling, residential, commercial, and light industrial solid waste, recyclable materials, and green waste 
(organics). On August 1, 1995, the County signed a twenty (20) year franchise agreement with Pleasant 
Hill Bayshore Disposal (PHBD), a predecessor company to AWS. The County then approved an 
assignment of this franchise agreement from PHBD to Allied Waste Industries, Inc. (now a Republic 
Services company) on February 2, 1999. 

On July 21, 2015, the County approved the First Amendment to the Franchise Agreement which 
extended the franchise term another ten (10) years through July 31, 2025. For purposes of this 2016 Rate 
Application, the County requested AWS to include the following nine (9) new and/or enhanced services, 
which were agreed to as part of the First Amendment, within the 2016 Rate Application: 



 

 
 
Ms. Deidra Dingman, Conservation Programs Manager Page 3 
November 20, 2015 
 
Option 1 

1) Increase the franchise fee paid by AWS to the County from 5 percent to 7 percent of gross 
revenues 

2) Implement the mandatory commercial recycling program with (a) outreach and education related 
to mandatory commercial recycling (effective August 1, 2015) and (b) a commercial recycling 
notification.  Provide assistance and support to maximize commercial diversion programs, 
including but not limited to performing commercial waste assessments (effective September 1, 
2015) 

3) Eliminate the separate commercial recycling charge 

4) Commercial organics (foodwaste) collection 

5) Compost residential and commercial collected greenwaste rather than use for ADC 

6) Residential bulky household item collection (2 per year, per resident) 

7) Residential household battery, compact fluorescents (CFL), and plastic bag recycling (effective 
September 1, 2015) 

8) Provide 20% of a recycling coordinator’s position 

9) Right of way and abatement projects (on-call bin/box service for specific County abatement 
projects) 

10) Increase community clean-up boxes (6 additional for a total of 16, 20-yard debris boxes) 

 Option 2 

11) Residential weekly non-organics recycling (shift from bi-weekly to weekly recycling) (effective 
January 1, 2016)2 

The AWS franchise includes the following ten (10) service areas in unincorporated Contra Costa County 
(Exhibit 1 on the following page shows locations of these service areas): 

1. Alhambra Valley (portion) 
2. Bay Point (Eastern, portion) 
3. Canyon 
4. Clayton 
5. Clyde/Concord (unincorporated areas) 
6. Morgan Territory 
7. Martinez (unincorporated)/Pacheco/Vine Hill 
8. Pleasant Hill (unincorporated areas) 
9. Antioch (unincorporated areas) 
10. Cummings Skyway (portion). 

  

                                                      
2 Unless another date is approved by the Director or his designee. 



 

 
 
Ms. Deidra Dingman, Conservation Programs Manager Page 4 
November 20, 2015 
 
Exhibit 1 
Unincorporated Contra Costa County 
Map of Allied Waste Systems Service Areas 

 

AWS consolidates refuse collected from unincorporated County areas at the Contra Costa Transfer & 
Recovery Station in Martinez, California and transports refuse to Keller Canyon Landfill (located in 
unincorporated Contra Costa County) for disposal. Recyclables are transported to, and processed by a 
non-related party, at the Pacific Rim Recycling facility in Benicia California. 

AWS also provides curbside recycling service services to unincorporated County areas. AWS accepts the 
following recyclable material types: 

 Aluminum (cans, foil, and trays) 

 Aerosol cans 

 Cardboard 

 Compact fluorescents (CFLs) in sealed zip lock bags) 

 Glass bottles, jars, beverage and food containers 

 Household batteries (in zip lock bags) 

 Mixed paper (books, catalogs, cereal and shoe boxes, chipboard, copy paper, computer paper, 
junk mail/envelopes, white/colored paper, magazines, paper bags, and telephone books) 

 Newspaper 

 Office paper 

 Organics 

 Paint cans 

 Plastic bags  



 

 
 
Ms. Deidra Dingman, Conservation Programs Manager Page 5 
November 20, 2015 
 

 Plastic bottles (types #1 through #7),  soda and water bottles, milk and juice jugs and bottles  

 Scrap metal 

 Scrap plastics 

 Steel and tin food and beverage cans. 

Residential customers commingle all of their recyclable materials into one 64-gallon or 96-gallon cart. 
AWS currently collects residential curbside recyclables bi-weekly. AWS takes recyclable materials to the 
Pacific Rim facility where they are separated on a Materials Recovery Facility (MRF) sort line.  

C. Goals and Objectives of Rate Review 

The Manual specifies that the primary goal of the rate setting process and methodology is to determine 
fair and equitable residential refuse collection charges that provide a reasonable profit level to AWS. 
Fairness is demonstrated through a rigorous review of AWS’s actual revenues and expenses. Residential 
charges also must be justifiable and supportable. 

Rate setting is prospective. The County sets rates in advance of when actual results occur. The County 
must therefore base rates on careful projections. 

To set rates, the County reviews trends in prior, current, and projected revenues, costs, and profits. The 
County sets rates that are intended to cover AWS’s costs of operations and allow a reasonable profit. 

The County uses the operating ratio (OR) method to project the profit level allowed to AWS in a base 
year. The actual OR level received by AWS in a base year, and in subsequent interim years, is not 
however, guaranteed. 

D. Scope of Rate Review 

The County based the scope of work for this review on the requirements in the Manual. The base year 
process has eleven (11) steps, seven (7) of which are the County’s responsibility. AWS is responsible for 
the other four (4) steps. 

Crowe, as the Consultant, provided assistance to the “County” for six steps in the rate review process (#2, 
#3, #5, #6, #9, and #10). We carefully reviewed and analyzed the 2016 rate application. We conducted 
our review in accordance with procedures described in the Manual.  We completed the following activities 
during our review: 

 Verified the application was complete3 

 Determined data presented in the application were mathematically correct and consistent 

 Reviewed the reconciliation of calendar year 2014 financial information provided in the application 
to the 2014 financial audit 

 Compared actual 2014 results with estimated 2015 and projected 2016 financial results 

 Analyzed significant historical fluctuations in major cost categories 

 Examined the relationships between financial and operating information for reasonableness 

 Reviewed AWS franchise fees payments to the County 

 Presented a survey of rates in other similar neighboring communities. 

Crowe submitted a formal data request to AWS on August 27, 2015. Crowe received AWS responses on 
September 18, 2015.  Crowe met with AWS management on October 16, 2015, to ask remaining follow-up 
questions, and provide AWS with an opportunity to provide additional context regarding the rate application. 

                                                      
3  We summited a letter of completeness to AWS on August 5, 2015. 



 

 
 
Ms. Deidra Dingman, Conservation Programs Manager Page 6 
November 20, 2015 
 
E. History of Collection Rates 

Rate changes, since the County adopted the Manual in 1998, increased on a compounded basis by 
between 0.79 and 1.5 percent per year over the seventeen years since 1998, and are shown in Table 3. 

Table 3 
Unincorporated Contra Costa County 
Historical Allied Waste Service Residential Refuse Collection Rate Changes  
(1998 to 2015) 

Year Percent Change in Rate  

1998 + 2.5 to 14.5 percent depending on the service level (base year) 

2001 + 3.3 percent (interim year) 

2003 - 5.0 percent (base year) 

2004 + 2.6 percent (interim year) 

2005 +1.7 percent (interim year) 

2006 + 3.3 percent (interim year) 

2007 +5.5 percent (interim year) 

2008 0.0 percent (base year) 

2009 New variable rate structure (interim year) 

2010 to 2015 No rate changes  

 

The County conducted the last base year rate review of AWS in 2012. In its 2012 rate application, AWS 
requested a 2.03 percent rate increase. Results of this rate review conducted by R3 Consulting Group, 
recommended a rate decrease of 10.20 percent. This report was dated April 3, 2012. The County did not 
implement a rate reduction at that time and rates remained stable. The rate surplus resulting from the 
2012 rate review provided a “credit” to offset subsequent interim year rate increases allowed by the Rate 
Manual, and generated a source of funding to help offset other new program costs. 

AWS residential rates have not changed since 2009 (commercial rates increased by 0.95 percent in 2011). 
The consumer price index for the San Francisco-Oakland-San Jose area has increased by approximately 17 
percent since 2009 and has increased by approximately 13 percent since 2011. 

F. 2016 Base Year Rate Application 

The County received AWS’s Base Year Rate Change Application (Application) on July 10, 2015. A copy  
of the Application is provided in Attachment A, at the end of this report. AWS used year-to-date 
information (i.e., first quarter) to estimate 2015 financial results. Year 2016 results are entirely projected in 
the Application. 

AWS requested a 33.53 percent rate increase effective January 1, 2016 (for combined Options 1 and 2). 
This request corresponds to a $5.33 per customer, per month, increase in the 32 gallon rate, the most 
common County service level. 

Our review did not represent a financial audit of AWS. Hood & Strong LLP completed a 2014 financial 
audit of all AWS operations, including the County (under the name Republic Services of Contra Costa 
County, provided in Attachment A). For purposes of preparing the 2014 cost data for the Application, 
AWS allocated unincorporated County costs from total audited AWS costs. 



 

 
 
Ms. Deidra Dingman, Conservation Programs Manager Page 7 
November 20, 2015 
 
G. Review of 2016 Base Year Rate Application 

This section details findings from Crowe’s review of AWS’s 2016 Application. We identified the impact of 
each finding in terms of a dollar value increase or a decrease in the 2016 “revenue requirement” identified 
in the Application. The revenue requirement is the amount of revenue that AWS needs to collect, through 
rates charged to customers, to cover costs of providing the service plus a reasonable financial return. 
Increasing the revenue requirement will result in an increase in rates, and decreasing the revenue 
requirement will result in a decrease in rates. 

Crowe reviewed the Application for consistency with the Manual, County policies, and waste 
management industry practices. In our review of AWS financial results, we compared year-to-year changes 
in revenues and costs for reasonableness and solicited explanations from AWS for material changes. We 
examined actual results from 2014, estimated results for 2015, and projected results for 2016. Our adjusted 
rate model is provided in Exhibit B-1, of Attachment B. 

1. AWS Financial and Operating Results Since the 2012 Base Year 

In Table 4, we compare County approved rate changes with changes in residential revenues and residential 
accounts. Residential revenues decreased 3.6 percent between 2012 and 2014. The decrease is mainly 
due to customer downsizing of containers (waste volumes declined 2.3 percent during this time). Offsetting 
this downsizing effect, the number of residential accounts increased 4.2 percent between 2012 and 2014. 

Table 4 
Unincorporated Contra Costa County 
Comparison of Residential Rate Increases with Changes in  
Residential Revenues and Accounts (2012 to 2014) 

Year Rate Increases 
Change in Residential 

Accounts 
Change in AWS Residential 

Collection Revenues 

2012 to 2014 0.0% 4.2% -3.6% 

In Table 5, we compare County approved commercial and light industrial rate changes with changes in 
commercial and light industrial service revenues and tons. From the time series, we find that there was no 
change to rates between 2012 and 2014, while commercial and light industrial tonnage increased by 6.4 
percent.   

Even with this increase in commercial tons, total commercial revenues declined by 0.6 percent.  The 
increase in tonnage came from the light industrial (debris box) activity which also experienced an 
increase in revenues.  Offsetting this industrial sector revenue increase were material reductions in 
commercial bin service revenues caused by customers downsizing their service levels.   

Table 5 
Unincorporated Contra Costa County 
Comparison of Commercial and Light Industrial Rate Increases with Changes in  
Commercial and Light Industrial Waste Revenues and Tonnage (2012 to 2014) 

Year Rate Increases 
Change in Commercial 

and Light Industrial Tons 

Change in AWS Commercial 
and Light Industrial 
Collection Revenues 

2012 to 2014 0.0% 6.4% -0.6% 
For the above comparison, in addition to rate changes, we used the number of accounts as a proxy for 
changes to residential revenues while we used tonnage as a proxy for changes to commercial revenues. 
Tonnage is often more applicable for the commercial sectors as businesses are more inclined, than the 
residential sector, to adjust their service level based on tonnage changes. However, we found that as 



 

 
 
Ms. Deidra Dingman, Conservation Programs Manager Page 8 
November 20, 2015 
 
residential accounts increased, residential tonnage decreased indicating residential customers reduced 
their service levels between 2012 and 2014.  

Between 2012 and 2014, total AWS unincorporated County revenues decreased while costs increased, as 
shown in Table 6. AWS costs increased 0.8 percent, while AWS revenues decreased 1.23 percent. 
During this same 2012 to 2014 period, AWS’s actual operating ratio ranged from 93 to 97 percent.4  

Table 6 
Unincorporated Contra Costa County 
Change in AWS Revenues and Costs 
(2012 to 2014) 

Description Percent Change 

Revenues -1.23% 

Costs 0.8% 
 
2. Method for Allocating AWS Costs to County Areas 

AWS directly assigned revenue to each unincorporated County area. AWS’s billing system coded 
revenue by the jurisdiction in which the customer lives. Typically customers are billed in advance of 
services provided. AWS recognized revenue in the month earned. 

Table 7 below, shows methods used by AWS to allocate consolidated AWS costs to unincorporated 
County areas. AWS allocated nearly all consolidated costs to unincorporated County areas using tonnage. 
 
Table 7 
Unincorporated Contra Costa County 
Methodology Used by AWS to Allocate Consolidated AWS Costs to the County 

Cost Allocation Method 

Direct Expenses  

Direct labor Labor Hours 

Disposal Fees Direct 

Franchise Fees  Direct 

Indirect Expenses  

Corporate Overhead Tonnage (by sector) 

Depreciation Tonnage (by sector) 

General and Administrative Tonnage (by sector) 

Interest Expense Tonnage (by sector) 

Other Operating Expense Tonnage (by sector) 

Professional Fees Tonnage (by sector) 

Supervisory Tonnage (by sector) 
AWS determined tonnage for each service area using a combination of three internal reports (1) Daily 
Disposal Reports, (2) Route Analysis Report, and (3) Service History Report. AWS runs each report 
monthly to allocate costs by route and jurisdiction: the number of lifts, the number of operating hours and 
the number of tons. Daily Disposal Reports identify the total tonnage for each route delivered to the 

                                                      
4  The County’s target operating ratio during base years is 90 percent. A larger operating ratio represents a smaller than expected return. 



 

 
 
Ms. Deidra Dingman, Conservation Programs Manager Page 9 
November 20, 2015 
 
transfer station per month. The Route Analysis Report identifies monthly operating hours by route. The 
Service History Report tacks the number of monthly lifts per customer for each route. AWS allocates 
costs using two different methods with data from the three internal reports: 

 Method one, used to allocate total direct labor costs, takes total monthly operating hours by route 
and allocates hours to specific jurisdictions based on the percentage of lifts per route. The 
percentage of operating hours for each jurisdiction is then applied to the corresponding month’s 
costs.  

 Method two, used to allocate total corporate & local general & administrative and total trucking 
and equipment costs, uses disposal volumes to allocate costs.  The allocation is based on the 
yards per lift from each route using data from specific jurisdictions. 

The tonnage allocation method is acceptable to allocate AWS costs to unincorporated County areas as 
the method is consistent with waste management industry practice. Pooled costs that AWS allocated to 
each jurisdiction, using tonnage, also generally do not vary between jurisdictions. 

As shown in Table 8, we examined total unincorporated County financial results against a basic operating 
metric of tonnage to determine reasonableness. How total unincorporated County figures compared with 
an operating metric such as tonnage was more relevant than area specific costs and revenues because 
rates are set based upon AWS’s revenue requirement for total unincorporated County operations. We 
found these comparisons to be relatively consistent between financial results and tonnage. 
 
Table 8 
Comparison of County’s Revenues and Expenses with Tonnage  
(Calendar Year 2014) 

Description County  
Audited 

AWSCCC 
Financial  

Percent 
of Total 

Total Revenues $2,421,576  $71,955,129  3.4% 

Direct Labor $542,436 $13,392,766  4.1% 

Tipping Fees $434,388 $14,196,051  3.1% 

Trucking and Equipment $312,087 $8,672,017  3.6% 

Total Costs $2,359,065  $58,606,388  4.0% 

Total Tonnage 9,032.7  250,908 3.6% 
 

AWS has transactions with related parties. These transactions required careful scrutiny and are identified 
in Table 9. 
 
Table 9 
Allied Waste Services  
Related Party Transactions 

Cost Element Related Party  

Transfer Contra Costa Transfer and Recovery 
Landfill disposal Keller Canyon Landfill 

3. Review of AWS Revenues, Costs, and Profits for Option 1 



 

 
 
Ms. Deidra Dingman, Conservation Programs Manager Page 10 
November 20, 2015 
 
In addition to reviewing the Application for changes in revenues, costs, and profits of existing ongoing 
AWS operations, we verified that reasonableness of the costs associated with the list of new programs 
and services described in the "Services Provided to the County" section below. 

This section describes our review of each revenue, cost, and profit category. We identify various 
adjustments to the Application. The revenue requirement is equal to the sum of the following: 

 Total allowable costs 

 Allowable operating profits 

 Total pass through costs. 

AWS’s requested County revenue requirement (Option 1 and 2), as submitted in the Application, is 
$3,175,340. This figure is shown on line 30 of the Application in Attachment A. 

i. Revenues 

Residential Revenues 

AWS projected no change in residential revenues between 2015 and 2016. AWS indicated in its 
Application that residential accounts decreased a modest 0.4 percent in 2015. AWS expects residential 
accounts to remain at 2015 levels in 2016.  

We obtained AWS’s most current projection of residential revenue data and accepted this data for the 
2016 projection. With this most recent residential revenue data we increased residential revenues (after 
bad debt) by $6,852 from $853,596 in the Application to $860,483 (before the adjustment for bad debt). 

Net Impact: 

[Decrease in the 2016 revenue requirement of $6,852] 

Commercial and Light Industrial Revenues 

AWS projected no change in commercial and light industrial revenues between 2015 and 2016. 
Commercial and light industrial revenues dipped in 2014, but in general have been relatively stable since 
2012. 

We annualized year to date commercial and light industrial revenues (using data through August 2015, 
prior to the removal of the charges for commercial recycling collection revenues) based on data provided 
by the company and data reconciled to revenue data reported to the County. This resulted in annualized 
commercial and light industrial revenues of $1,625,164. 

We then adjusted this figure by the removing the projected loss in commercial recycling collection 
revenues for 2016. The commercial recycling collection revenue data was obtained from the company for 
the January to August 2015 period. Based on data provided by the company, the estimated annualized 
loss in commercial recycling revenues in 2016 is $86,372. This resulted in projected 2016 commercial 
and light industrial collection revenues (before bad debt) of $1,538,792 ($1,625,164 less $86,372). 

Net Impact: 

[Decrease in the 2016 revenue requirement of $21,418] 

ii. Costs 

Escalation Factor 

Because 2016 is a projection year, we assumed certain AWS costs would increase at a rate equal to the 
most recent change in the Consumer Price Index for the San Francisco-Oakland-San Jose area (all 
items, all urban consumers).  We historically have used the CPI change from August to August for 
purposes of determining interim year adjustments and projecting costs. The August 2014 to August 2015 
this CPI increased 2.59 percent (259.917 – 253.354)/253.354).  



 

 
 
Ms. Deidra Dingman, Conservation Programs Manager Page 11 
November 20, 2015 
 
Where inflation was used, we adjusted the Application to reflect this 2.59 percent CPI compared to the 
2.50 percent CPI used by AWS in its Application. Consistent with how we treat interim year rate 
adjustments (i.e., those between base years) in the Manual, we recommended that the County use this 
2.59 percent escalation factor to project AWS inflationary expenses for 2016. 

Direct Labor 

AWS projected labor costs to increase 4.0 percent for both 2015 and 2016.  The increase is based on 
anticipated costs associated with a new union agreement, currently under negotiation. The projected 4.0 
percent increase in labor costs for 2016 is consistent with previous 2015 increases to hourly wages and 
benefits (including health and welfare and pension). Based on our experience with recent local area union 
labor agreements, an annual estimate for increases in wages and benefits of 4.0 percent is reasonable. 

Net Impact: 

[No change to the 2016 revenue requirement] 

Tipping Fees (Profit Allowed)  
 
Tipping fees charged to County ratepayers reflect costs of operating the Contra Costa Solid Waste 
Transfer Station and Recovery (CCTR) and the costs of the Keller Canyon Landfill. The rate charged to 
AWS franchised customers at this facility is $86.85 per ton in 2016. 

Tipping fees are allowed with profit up to $43.08 per ton.  Amounts above $43.08 per ton are treated as a 
pass-through expense. The Manual specifies a cap on tipping fees allowed with profit at $43.08 per ton.  
Tipping fees in excess of $43.08 per ton are treated as a pass through expense. 

We determined that the tonnage for 2015 included in this calculation equaled 10,532. This tonnage was 
inclusive of 9,033 tons of refuse (shown as waste tonnage on the Application) and 1,500 tons of 
greenwaste. This tonnage was based on annualizing six months of year to date 2015 tonnage data. 
There is a projected increase in refuse tonnage by approximately 434 tons (5 percent) from 2014 which is 
equally spread across all of the sectors (residential, commercial, and industrial). 

Tipping fees projected in the Application for 2016 were $891,824.  Of this total, the Application specifies 
$453,726 of these fees as an allowable expense with profit and $438,098 as a pass through expense. We 
recommend that the County use this $891,824 in tipping fees for 2016. 

Net Impact: 

[No change to 2016 revenue requirement] 

Corporate and Local General and Administrative Costs 

The Manual specifies a cap on corporate and local general and administrative costs equal to 13.2 percent of 
the total revenue requirement. Projected 2016 corporate and local general and administrative costs of 
$291,299 are approximately 10 percent of the revenue requirement and within the cap guideline. We allowed a 
2.59 percent increase in this category for 2016 compared to the 2.5 percent in the Application, resulting in an 
increase of $239 in the revenue requirement. 

Net Impact: 

[Increase in the 2016 revenue requirement of $239] 

Trucking and Equipment Costs 

AWS projected an increase in trucking and equipment costs of 2.5 percent based on their estimate of for 
inflation. Projected trucking and equipment costs are reasonable and consistent with the prior costs for this 
category.  We adjusted this cost for the 2.59 percent inflation escalation, resulting in an increase of $289 in the 
revenue requirement. 



 

 
 
Ms. Deidra Dingman, Conservation Programs Manager Page 12 
November 20, 2015 
 
Net Impact: 

[Increase in the 2016 revenue requirement of $289] 

Depreciation and Other Operating Costs  
 
Consistent with the waste management industry, we recommend that the County disallow amortization of 
franchise purchases. The operating ratio is designed to provide a return to the hauler sufficient to 
compensate AWS for its investment in the business.  We reduced the revenue requirement by the 
estimated amount of amortization for 2016 of $15,576 based on the historical average level of 
amortization included in AWS costs.  Additionally, we allowed the 2.59 percent versus 2.50 percent 
inflationary adjustment. 

Net Impact: 

[Decrease in the 2016 revenue requirement of $15,319] 

Services Provided to County 

AWS included the costs to implement the mandatory commercial recycling program. AWS included costs, 
consistent with agreed upon figures in Exhibit F of the Franchise Agreement, supporting the addition of a 
mandatory commercial recycling program in conjunction with Assembly Bill 341 (see Attachment E, 
including a portion of a Recycling Coordinator position). This program was phased in September 1, 2015. 
We reviewed and verified that these costs are fully reflected in the individual cost categories within the 
2016 projection. 

AWS included the following new/enhanced services in the Services Provided to County line item for the 
projection year 2016: 

 County On-call illegal dumping removal from Right-of Way (ROW) and On-Call Abatement 
Project Debris Removal:  We included an annual cost capped at $13,000 for these County 
requested services 

 Compost Source Separated Organics rather than use as ADC:  Minor incremental increase in 
labor and vehicle costs based on additional miles traveled to West County facility rather than 
Keller Canyon 

 Commercial Organics/Food Waste Collection:  Projected increase in costs of $73,622 for the 
program. The program has an assumed start date of April 1 in order to ensure shared 
truck/equipment cost with City of Martinez and incorporate the incremental cost increase 
allocated to the County franchise area. There was no cost for this program included in the 
Application. 

 Provide two on call bulky household items pickups per customer, at no charge 

 Provide 16, 20-yard debris boxes for the community clean-up program 

 Provide curbside collection of household batteries, plastic bags, and compact fluorescent bulbs. 

We made an adjustment to the Application to reduce the combination of County ROW/on-call abatement costs 
to a maximum annual amount of $13,000 and add a cost to account for AWS funding County HHW operations. 
The average HHW program cost for 2013 and 2014 was $6,625.  Table 10 summarizes the new costs 
included for each program for 2016. 

Net Impact: 

[Increase to the 2016 revenue requirement of $75,188] 



 

 
 
Ms. Deidra Dingman, Conservation Programs Manager Page 13 
November 20, 2015 
 
Franchise Fees 

The County franchise agreement with AWS specifies that the County can establish an amount equal to “a 
percentage of Contractor’s [AWS’s] Gross Annual Revenues” with the “amount, time and frequency of 
payment of such fees established by the County.”  

The franchise fee paid by AWS to the County is currently equal to five (5) percent of gross revenues. The 
County is considering a franchise fee of seven (7) percent of gross revenues.  Gross revenues include all 
residential, commercial, and light industrial refuse and recycling revenue.  Franchise fees are a pass 
through expense which do not earn profit. 

A summary of historical franchise fee payments made by AWS to the County is provided in Table 11. Amounts 
included in AWS’s Application, AWS detailed records, and in County records are very similar and the 
differences are considered immaterial and likely due to accounting versus payment timing differences. 

AWS included a franchise fee of seven (7) percent for the 2016 projection. We made adjustments to the 
franchise fee based on the other findings noted above that modified the revenue requirement. 

Net Impact: 

[Increase in the 2016 revenue requirement of $5,051] 

Table 10 
Allied Waste Services  
Costs of New/Enhanced Services 
(Projection Year 2016) 

Description In Original Application 
Allowed Increase in 

Allowable Costs 

County On-call illegal dumping removal from 
Right-of Way (ROW) and On-Call Abatement 

$20,000 $13,000 

Compost source separated organics (rather than 
use as ADC) 

0 1,9415 

Commercial Organics/Food Waste Collection 0 73,622 

Provide two on call bulky household items 
pickups per customer, at no charge 

5,000 5,000 

Provide a total of 16, 20-yard debris boxes for 
the community clean-up program (an additional 
10 boxes) 

3,500 3,500 

Provide curbside collection of household 
batteries and compact fluorescent bulbs 

12,000 12,000 

Subtotal $40,500 $109,063 

HHW Program Costs (Paid to County) 0 $6,625 

Total  $40,500 $115,688 

Adjustment   $75,188 
 
  

                                                      
5 There is an additional amount of $7,765 which has been included in direct labor costs. 



 

 
 
Ms. Deidra Dingman, Conservation Programs Manager Page 14 
November 20, 2015 
 
Table 11 
Allied Waste Systems 
Comparison of Franchise Fees Paid to County 
(2013, 2014 and 2015) 

Year Application 
AWS Payment 

Records 
County Reports 

2013 $ $120,559 $120,559 

2014 $128,736 $120,364 $120,355 

2015 (Through 
Sept) 

N/A $102,291 $99,026 

iii. Profits 

Total allowable costs for the projection year 2016 are $2,201,272. The Manual specifies that should the 
operating ratio for the base year fall between 88 percent and 92 percent, rates would remain unchanged in 
the base year. 

Table 12 shows the operating ratio calculation for 2016. Without any changes to rates, the company would 
receive an operating ratio of 125.3 percent. In accordance with the Manual, because this operating ratio falls 
outside the 88 to 92 percent range, rates are reset for a 90 percent operating ratio.6 

The operating ratio calculation is as follows: 

Operating Ratio (OR) = 

Total Allowable Costs 

Total Allowable Costs + Allowable Operating Profit 

The OR calculation is shown in Table 13, following Table 12. We calculate allowable profit of $244,586, 
at the allowable 90 percent operating ratio. 

Net Impact: 

[Increase to the 2016 revenue requirement of $6,711] 

Table 12 
Allied Waste Services  
Calculation of Actual Operating Ratio 
(Projection Year 2016) 

Description Amount 

Total Revenues (line 21) $ 2,412,524 

Less Total Allowable Costs (line 7) (2,201,272) 

Less Franchise Fees (line 23) (217,072) 

Less Pass-Through Costs (line 11) (438,098) 

Equals Profits (Loss) (with adjustments and no rebasing) ($443,918) 

Operating Ratio (with adjustments and no rebasing) $2,201,272 / ($2,201,272 – 
$443,918) = 125.3% 

 

                                                      
6 Source: Rate Setting Manual, page I-14. 



 

 
 
Ms. Deidra Dingman, Conservation Programs Manager Page 15 
November 20, 2015 
 
Table 13 
Allowable Profit Calculation 
(Projection Year 2016) 

Description Amount 

(Total Allowable Costs / Operating Ratio)  
– Total Allowable Costs 
 
= Allowable Operating Profit 

($2,201,272/90 percent) - $2,201,272 
 
 
= $244,586  

With the company’s profit level rebased to 90 percent, we recommend a rate increase of 28.8 percent for 
Option 1.  This is shown in the Crowe Adjusted 2016 column of Exhibit B-1 in Attachment B. 
 
4. Review of Additional AWS Revenues, Costs, and Profits for Option 2 

Evaluation of Proposed New Service Changes 
 

We verified that reasonableness of the costs of the following new program below: 

 Shift from bi-weekly to weekly curbside recycling services – Currently, unincorporated County 
residential customers receive bi-weekly curbside recycling services. AWS submitted information 
supporting the impact of shifting to a weekly curbside recycling program. The increase in the 
revenue requirement from this program is $140,056 per year.  Further details are provided in 
Attachment D. 

Net Impact: 

[No change to the 2016 revenue requirement] 

With the company’s profit level rebased to 90 percent, we recommend a rate increase of 34.7 percent for Option 
2.  This is shown in the Crowe Adjusted w/Weekly Program 2016 column of Exhibit B-1 in Attachment B. 

5. Components of Residential Rates 

There are a number of cost components which are included in residential rates. Using the 32-gallon residential 
cart rate as an example, the pie chart in Figure 1 shows the major components of the projected 2016 rates, 
and the relative costs of each component. Line item references are made to the Application. Table 14 
shows that the components of the single can rate have remained relatively stable over time since 1998. 
Cost categories are described below: 

 Direct Labor includes compensation of the waste removal staff, including regular time, overtime, 
payroll taxes, and associated benefits.  This category corresponds to Direct Labor (Line 1) of the 
Application. 

 Tipping Fees include all charges for the disposal of solid waste at a landfill or transfer station, 
which are currently set at $86.85 per ton.  A cap on the allowable expense portion of tipping fees 
is set at $43.08 per ton.  The remaining fees between $43.08 and $86.85 per ton treated as are a 
pass-through expense.  These tipping fees also include transportation costs from the transfer 
station to the landfill.  This category corresponds to Tipping Fees with Profit (Line 2) and Tipping 
Fees (Pass-Through) (Line 11) of the Application. 

 Corporate and Local General and Administrative Costs include accounting, office space 
rental, utilities, office supplies, legal services, insurance, postage, etc. for AWS. These costs are 
identified as Corporate and Local General and Administrative Costs (Line 3), Services Provided 
to County (Line 6), and County Administrative Fees (Line 10) of the Application. 

 Trucking and Equipment includes depreciation and leases of trucks, fuel expense, licenses, 
parts, tires, and associated repair and maintenance expenses.  These costs are identified as 



 

 
 
Ms. Deidra Dingman, Conservation Programs Manager Page 16 
November 20, 2015 
 

Trucking and Equipment (Line 4) and Depreciation and Other Operating Costs (Line 5) of the 
Application. 

 Profit is any revenue which exceeds expenses (total allowable costs plus total pass-through 
costs).  The operating ratio method is used to determine allowable profit, as discussed in the 
profit analysis section of this report.  Profit is shown in Line 9 of the Application. 

 County’s Franchise Fee is 7.0 percent of total residential/curbside recycling, commercial, and 
light industrial revenues. Franchise fees are shown in Line 23 of the Application. 

Figure 1 
Components of Rate 
(Projection Year 2016) 

 

Table 14 
Components of Single Can Rate Over Time 
(1998 to 2016) 

Description 1998 2002 2008 2012 2016 

Tipping Fees  31% 29% 30% 23% 28% 

Direct Labor 21% 24% 21% 23% 21% 

Trucking and Equipment 21% 21% 24% 23% 23% 

Corporate and Local G&A 13% 12% 11% 12% 13% 

Profit 9% 9% 9% 14% 8% 

Franchise Fees 5% 5% 5% 5% 7% 

 

Tipping Fees
28%

Direct Labor
21%

Trucking and 
Equipment

23%

Corp and Local G&A
13%

Profit
8% Franchise 

Fees
7%



 

 
 
Ms. Deidra Dingman, Conservation Programs Manager Page 17 
November 20, 2015 
 
H. Comparison of Rates and Services to Other Neighboring Jurisdictions 

Recommended 2016 Allied/Unincorporated County rates for Option 1 were compared with survey data 
from other County franchise areas and a sample of neighboring jurisdictions. Results of the survey are 
summarized in Attachment C. Tables C-1 through C-3 show how recommended 2016 Allied/County 
Option 1 rates compare to the average of the other incorporated and unincorporated areas surveyed. 

In Table C-1, we compare the Allied/Unincorporated County residential rates with averages of the other 
franchise areas surveyed. Compared to the other franchise areas, proposed 2016 Allied/County 
residential rates for Option 1 were significantly below the average for all service levels. The proposed 
rates are between 29 percent and 39 percent below the average of other unincorporated franchise areas, 
and between 26 percent and 41 percent below the average of the incorporated areas surveyed. 

For the commercial (bin) sector, as shown in Table C-2, County rates under Option 1 also were significantly 
below the average rates in other franchise areas. Rates ranged from 14 percent to 31 percent below the 
average of other unincorporated franchise areas surveyed, and between 28 percent and 31 percent below 
the average of the incorporated areas surveyed. 

For the 20 cubic yard industrial (debris box) rate, as shown in Table C-3, County rates under Option 1 were 
28 percent below the average of surveyed jurisdictions. This comparison is based on a representative two 
(2) ton load.  

 
  



 

 
 
Ms. Deidra Dingman, Conservation Programs Manager Page 18 
November 20, 2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachment A: Rate Application and Audited Financial Statements 
  



 

 
 
Ms. Deidra Dingman, Conservation Programs Manager Page 19 
November 20, 2015 
 
Attachment A includes the 2016 Base Year Rate Change Application (Application) submitted by AWS to 
the County July 10, 2015. In the Application, AWS proposed to increase unincorporated County collection 
rates by 33.53 percent on January 1, 2016.  The Application included the following forms: 

 Financial information 

 Cost summary for year 2014 

 Revenue summary 

 Single family residential revenues summary (including current rates and accounts) 

 Operating information 

 Rate change requested (including current and proposed rates). 

Information provided in the Application was for the following five (5) years: 

 Actual prior years, 2012 to 2014 (including audited 2014 results) 

 Current year estimated, 2015 

 Base year projected, 2016. 

Attachment A also includes the 2014 audited financial statements submitted by AWS (now referred to as 
Republic Services of Contra Costa County) on July 1, 2015 to the County. Hood and Strong LLP, a 
certified public accountant, prepared the audited financial statements. The audit opinion is unqualified. In 
Table A-1, below, we reconcile the difference in total AWS costs in the 2014 audit, with total AWS costs 
shown on page 2 of 6 of the Application. 

Table A-1 
Allied Waste Systems (Republic Services of Contra Costa County) 
Reconciliation of Total AWS Costs on Audited Financial Statement to Rate Application 
(Calendar Year 2014) 

Description Amount 

Audited AWS financial statement costs 
(consolidated for all operations) 

$58,606,372 

Plus difference due to rounding 16 

Equals total AWS costs in Application 
(row 42, page 2 of 6) 

$58,606,388 

 
Additionally, Hood & Strong provided a supplemental schedule of operations (page 17 of the audit) that 
includes financial information for unincorporated Contra Costa County alone. This was in addition to the 
consolidated audited financial statements for AWS. We reconciled this data to the Application in Table A-
2 on the following page. 
 
  



 

 
 
Ms. Deidra Dingman, Conservation Programs Manager Page 20 
November 20, 2015 
 
Table A-2 
Allied Waste Systems (Republic Services of Contra Costa County) 
Reconciliation of AWS Unincorporated County Costs  
(Provided in Supplemental Schedule Included with Audited Financial Statement)  
To Costs in Rate Application 
(Calendar Year 2014) 

Description Amount 

Operating costs included in 
supplemental schedule to audited 
financial statements (unincorporated 
County operations only) 

$2,357,844 

Plus difference due to rounding 1,221 

Equals total AWS unincorporated 
County costs in Application (row 42, 
page 2 of 6) 

$2,359,065 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
Ms. Deidra Dingman, Conservation Programs Manager Page 21 
November 20, 2015 
 

 



 

 
 
Ms. Deidra Dingman, Conservation Programs Manager Page 22 
November 20, 2015 
 

 



 

 
 
Ms. Deidra Dingman, Conservation Programs Manager Page 23 
November 20, 2015 
 

 



 

 
 
Ms. Deidra Dingman, Conservation Programs Manager Page 24 
November 20, 2015 
 

 



 

 
 
Ms. Deidra Dingman, Conservation Programs Manager Page 25 
November 20, 2015 
 

 



 

 
 
Ms. Deidra Dingman, Conservation Programs Manager Page 26 
November 20, 2015 
 

 



 

 
 
Ms. Deidra Dingman, Conservation Programs Manager Page 27 
November 20, 2015 
 

 



 

 
 
Ms. Deidra Dingman, Conservation Programs Manager Page 28 
November 20, 2015 
 

 



 

 
 
Ms. Deidra Dingman, Conservation Programs Manager Page 29 
November 20, 2015 
 

 



 

 
 
Ms. Deidra Dingman, Conservation Programs Manager Page 30 
November 20, 2015 
 

 



 

 
 
Ms. Deidra Dingman, Conservation Programs Manager Page 31 
November 20, 2015 
 

 



 

 
 
Ms. Deidra Dingman, Conservation Programs Manager Page 32 
November 20, 2015 
 

 



 

 
 
Ms. Deidra Dingman, Conservation Programs Manager Page 33 
November 20, 2015 
 
 

 



 

 
 
Ms. Deidra Dingman, Conservation Programs Manager Page 34 
November 20, 2015 
 



 

 
 
Ms. Deidra Dingman, Conservation Programs Manager Page 35 
November 20, 2015 
 

 



 

 
 
Ms. Deidra Dingman, Conservation Programs Manager Page 36 
November 20, 2015 
 



 

 
 
Ms. Deidra Dingman, Conservation Programs Manager Page 37 
November 20, 2015 
 



 

 
 
Ms. Deidra Dingman, Conservation Programs Manager Page 38 
November 20, 2015 
 



 

 
 
Ms. Deidra Dingman, Conservation Programs Manager Page 39 
November 20, 2015 
 

 
  



 

 
 
Ms. Deidra Dingman, Conservation Programs Manager Page 40 
November 20, 2015 
 

 
  



 

 
 
Ms. Deidra Dingman, Conservation Programs Manager Page 41 
November 20, 2015 
 

 
  



 

 
 
Ms. Deidra Dingman, Conservation Programs Manager Page 42 
November 20, 2015 
 

 
  



 

 
 
Ms. Deidra Dingman, Conservation Programs Manager Page 43 
November 20, 2015 
 

 
  



 

 
 
Ms. Deidra Dingman, Conservation Programs Manager Page 44 
November 20, 2015 
 

 
  



 

 
 
Ms. Deidra Dingman, Conservation Programs Manager Page 45 
November 20, 2015 
 

 
  



 

 
 
Ms. Deidra Dingman, Conservation Programs Manager Page 46 
November 20, 2015 
 

 
  



 

 
 
Ms. Deidra Dingman, Conservation Programs Manager Page 47 
November 20, 2015 
 

 
  



 

 
 
Ms. Deidra Dingman, Conservation Programs Manager Page 48 
November 20, 2015 
 

 
  



 

 
 
Ms. Deidra Dingman, Conservation Programs Manager Page 49 
November 20, 2015 
 

 
  



 

 
 
Ms. Deidra Dingman, Conservation Programs Manager Page 50 
November 20, 2015 
 

 
  



 

 
 
Ms. Deidra Dingman, Conservation Programs Manager Page 51 
November 20, 2015 
 

 
  



 

 
 
Ms. Deidra Dingman, Conservation Programs Manager Page 52 
November 20, 2015 
 

 
  



 

 
 
Ms. Deidra Dingman, Conservation Programs Manager Page 53 
November 20, 2015 
 

 
  



 

 
 
Ms. Deidra Dingman, Conservation Programs Manager Page 54 
November 20, 2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachment B: Adjusted Rate Model 
 
 
 
  



 

 
 
Ms. Deidra Dingman, Conservation Programs Manager Page 55 
November 20, 2015 
 
Exhibit B-1, on the next page, of this appendix provides the adjusted base year rate model based on 
Crowe adjustments. The model reflects the following general adjustments (for Option 1): 

Revenues 

 Minor increase to residential revenues 

 Moderate increase to commercial and industrial revenues 

Allowable Costs/Profits 

 No adjustment to direct labor 

 No adjustment to tipping fees (w/profit) 

 Minor increase to general and administrative costs 

 Minor increase to trucking and equipment costs 

 Moderate decrease to depreciation and other operating costs 

 Major increase to costs of services provided to the County (primarily to account for new 
commercial (foodwaste) program 

 Minor reduction to operating profit 

Pass Through Costs 

 No adjustment to tipping fees (pass through) 

 Minor increase in franchise fees. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



 

 
 
Ms. Deidra Dingman, Conservation Programs Manager Page 56 
November 20, 2015 
 

Exhibit B-1 
Schedule of Rate Review Findings 
(Projection Year 2016) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
Ms. Deidra Dingman, Conservation Programs Manager Page 57 
November 20, 2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachment C: Comparative Rate Survey 
 
 
 
  



 

 
 
Ms. Deidra Dingman, Conservation Programs Manager Page 58 
November 20, 2015 
 
Tables C-1 through C-3 that follow include results of a survey of comparative residential, commercial, and 
industrial rates. We provide comparisons between Allied’s County rates and the rates charged to 
customers served in other neighboring unincorporated and incorporated franchise areas: 

Incorporated areas 

 Antioch 

 Clayton 

 Concord 

 Danville (served through Central Contra Costa Solid Waste Authority, or CCCSWA) 

 Lafayette (CCCSWA) 

 Martinez 

 Moraga (CCCSWA) 

 Orinda (CCCSWA) 

 Pleasant Hill 

 Walnut Creek (CCCSWA) 

Unincorporated County areas 

 Alamo & Unincorporated Central CCC (CCCSWA) 

 Crockett Garbage served areas – West CCC (County) 

 Garaventa Enterprises served areas –East CCC (County) 

 Richmond Sanitary Service served areas – West CCC (County).  



 

 
 
Ms. Deidra Dingman, Conservation Programs Manager Page 59 
November 20, 2015 
 
Table C-1 
Comparison of 2015 Unincorporated Contra Costa County  
Residential Rates with Neighboring Jurisdictions (Per Customer, Per Month) 

  Residential Rates 

Jurisdiction 20 Gallon 32 Gallon 64 Gallon 96 Gallon 

1. Antioch  $ 23.49  $ 27.59  $ 44.54   $  52.31 
2. Clayton     24.38     27.24     50.88       57.66 
3. Concord  N/A     28.45     38.40       47.05 
4. Danville (CCSWA)  N/A     25.81     43.90       65.16 
5. Lafayette (CCSWA)     26.43     30.20     56.99       85.47 
6. Martinez     19.35     27.73     30.91       64.95 
7. Moraga (CCSWA)     25.38     29.30     58.59       87.89 
8. Orinda (CCSWA)     31.01     35.75     67.30     100.67 
9. Pleasant Hill     20.86     24.14     32.94       49.39 
10. Walnut Creek (CCSWA)     18.28     21.57     40.73       60.84 
Average  $ 23.65  $ 27.78  $ 46.52   $  67.14 
2015 County rates (Option 1) 15.65 20.49 30.54 39.62
Difference -34% -26% -34% -41%
Unincorporated County Areas 

1. Alamo & Uninc Central CCC (CCCSWA)      $ 20.33     $ 23.09     $ 43.96      $ 65.65 
2. Crockett Garbage – West CCC (County)     22.44     26.61     46.66       56.70 
3. Garaventa Enterprises –East CCC (County)     27.61     34.46     39.97       47.55 
4. Richmond Sanitary – West CCC (County)     25.50     31.01     59.42       88.50 
Average  $ 23.97  $ 28.79  $ 47.50   $  64.60 
2015 County rates (Option 1) 15.65 20.49 30.54 39.62
Difference -35% -29% -36% -39%
  



 

 
 
Ms. Deidra Dingman, Conservation Programs Manager Page 60 
November 20, 2015 
 
Table C-2 
Comparison of 2015 Unincorporated Contra Costa County  
Commercial Rates with Neighboring Jurisdictions (Per Customer, Per Month) 

 1 Time per Week 2 Times per Week 

Jurisdiction 2 cu. yd. 3 cu. yd. 2 cu. yd. 3 cu. yd. 

1. Antioch  $ 253.21  $ 380.98  $ 506.42   $  761.96 
2. Clayton        229.98    310.59    459.88       621.17 
3. Concord        363.80    486.15    764.00    1,020.90 
4. Danville (CCSWA)        291.73    437.61    583.51       875.23 
5. Lafayette (CCSWA)        368.84    544.99    737.68    1,089.98 
6. Martinez         248.38    310.40    423.47       496.44 
7. Moraga (CCSWA)        339.82    509.75    679.65    1,019.50 
8. Orinda (CCSWA)        415.98    623.97    831.95    1,247.93 
9. Pleasant Hill         203.27    304.52    405.99       609.19 
10. Walnut Creek (CCSWA)        211.37    346.14    461.51       692.26 
Average  $ 292.64  $ 425.51   $ 585.41  $ 843.46  
2015 County rates (Option 1)  $ 210.80   $ 296.15   $ 421.64   $ 592.35  
Difference -28% -31% -31% -30%
Unincorporated County Areas 

1. Alamo & Uninc Central CCC (CCCSWA)   $ 277.65   $ 416.45   $ 555.28   $ 832.92  
2. Crockett Garbage – West CCC (County)       162.74  N/A     245.88   N/A  
3. Garaventa Enterprises –East CCC (County)      300.44     419.73     545.65       784.23  
4. Richmond Sanitary – West CCC (County)      334.71     457.34     612.02       850.36  
Average  $ 268.89   $ 431.17   $ 489.71   $ 822.50  
2015 County rates (Option 1)  $ 210.80   $ 296.15   $ 421.64   $ 592.35  
Difference -22% -31% -14% -28%

 

  



 

 
 
Ms. Deidra Dingman, Conservation Programs Manager Page 61 
November 20, 2015 
 
Table C-3 
Comparison of 2015 Unincorporated Contra Costa County  
Industrial Rates with Neighboring Jurisdictions  
(Per Pull, 2 Tons of Material) 

Jurisdiction 20 yard 

1. Antioch  $563.20  
2. Clayton    470.28  
3. Concord    508.00  
4. Danville (CCSWA)    690.69  
5. Lafayette (CCSWA)    737.30  
6. Martinez     455.47  
7. Moraga (CCSWA)    762.27  
8. Orinda (CCSWA)    805.78  
9. Pleasant Hill    389.18  
10. Uninc. Co (CCCSWA)    664.21  
11. Walnut Creek (CCSWA)    858.74  
Average  $627.74  
2015 County rates (Option 1) $450.04 

Difference -28% 

 

  



 

 
 
Ms. Deidra Dingman, Conservation Programs Manager Page 62 
November 20, 2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachment D:  
Costs for Shift to Weekly Curbside Recycling Services  
(Agreed to in 2014 as Part of Franchise Extension) 
  



 

 
 
Ms. Deidra Dingman, Conservation Programs Manager Page 63 
November 20, 2015 
 

 
  



 

 
 
Ms. Deidra Dingman, Conservation Programs Manager Page 64 
November 20, 2015 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Attachment E:  
Costs for Mandatory Commercial Recycling Program  
(Agreed to in 2014 as Part of Franchise Extension) 
 
  



 

 
 
Ms. Deidra Dingman, Conservation Programs Manager Page 65 
November 20, 2015 
 

 

 



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Public Works Director, or designee, to execute a Right of Entry Agreement with

Union Pacific Railroad Company for Camino Diablo paving at the UP crossing, and APPROVE payment of $750 for

Marsh USA's Railroad Protective Liability Insurance, Byron area. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

The Camino Diablo paving will be funded by Local Road funds (100%) 

BACKGROUND: 

This agreement is required to allow the County to work within 25 feet of Union Pacific Railroad Company's (UP)

railroad tracks. As a condition of the Right of Entry Agreement, UP has required the County to indemnify UP and the

indemnification language has been reviewed by County Risk Management. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

The Public Works Department will not have sufficient access rights to allow needed maintenance to be performed at

this location. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Paul Clifton,

925-313-7003

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

C. 1

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Julia R. Bueren, Public Works Director/Chief Engineer

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Right of Entry Agreement for Camino Diablo Paving at Union Pacific Railroad Crossing, Knightsen Area



ATTACHMENTS

Right of Entry

Agreement 





























RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Chair, Board of Supervisors, to execute Amendment No. 7 to Agreement No. 208

with the Contra Costa Transportation Authority effective October 21, 2015, to increase the amount payable to Contra

Costa County by $200,000 for a new payment limit of $7,248,054 for the State Route 4 East Widening Somersville

Road to State Route 160 Project (Project No. 4660-6X4168 [ACQ/3540]), as recommended by the Public Works

Director, East County area. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

100% Contra Costa Transportation Authority funds. 

BACKGROUND: 

Contra Costa Transportation Authority requires a variety of right of way services but has no right of way staff and

has contracted with the County for these services. On June 21, 2006 the Board approved the original Agreement No.

208 for the State Route 4 East Widening Somersville Road to State Route 160 Project. The parties now wish to

modify the scope of services to include additional right of way acquisition services for additional condemnation

services, TCE extension services, and for remaining work to facilitate the transfer of BART parcels, sale-of-surplus

property, file closeout and project right of way transfer to Caltrans, and property management. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Jann Edmunds,

925-313-2250

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the
Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

C. 2

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Julia R. Bueren, Public Works Director/Chief Engineer

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Contract amendment with CCTA for SR4 East Widening Somersville Road to State Route 160 Project



CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

Contra Costa Transportation Authority would not be able to contract the County for right of way services.

ATTACHMENTS

Agreement 









RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE the conveyance of real property described in the grant deed, to the State of California (State) for use as a

state highway, in accordance with Agreement No. 208 between Contra Costa County (County), and pursuant to

Streets & Highway Code § 960. (Project No.: 4660-6X4168 [SCH No. 2004092135])

DETERMINE that the real property is no longer required by the County for highway purposes.

AUTHORIZE the Chair, Board of Supervisors, to execute a grant deed on behalf of the County.

DIRECT the Real Estate Division of the Public Works Department to cause said Grant Deed to be delivered to the

State for acceptance and recording in the office of the County Clerk-Recorder.

ACKNOWLEDGE that between the date of this approval and the date the grant deed is delivered to the State for

acceptance, the Public Works Department will continue efforts to clear the title to the property, including processing

of documents from other entities to release liens and encumbrances on the property. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Jessica Dillingham,

925-313-2224

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the
Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

C. 3

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Julia R. Bueren, Public Works Director/Chief Engineer

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: APPROVE the conveyance of real property to the State of California



FISCAL IMPACT:

100% Contra Costa Transportation Authority Funds

BACKGROUND:

Pursuant to the terms of the executed Cooperative Agreement No. 4-2133-C dated October 30, 2007, between the

State and the Contra Costa Transportation Authority (CCTA), CCTA agreed to deliver to the State legal title to

the right of way for the State Route 4 (E) Widening – Somersville Road to State Route 160 Project Segment 1

(Project), a state highway, and the State would accept said title, subject to review of a Policy of Title Insurance.

On January 18, 2008, CCTA and the County entered into Agreement No. 208 (Agreement) for the County to

provide right of way services for the Project. The terms of the Agreement required the County to initially take title

to the right of way for the Project. Subsequently, upon direction from CCTA staff, County would transfer the right

of way to the State. The Agreement is on file at the Public Works Department.

The County acquired the Property for highway purposes associated with the Project, in accordance with the

Agreement. CCTA has requested that the Property be conveyed to the State, in accordance with the Agreement

and the Cooperative Agreement. The Property is no longer required by the County for highway purposes, but is

required by the State.

It is anticipated that the State of California will not be able to accept title to the property until mid-2016. In the

interim, the Public Works Department will continue efforts to clear the title to the property. These efforts may

include the acceptance and recordation of documents from other entities necessary to release liens and

encumbrances on the property, subject to approval by the Board of Supervisors. After title is transferred to the

State of California, the State will assume this responsibility.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

The County would continue to own property within the State Route 4 right of way and would not be in

compliance with the Agreement.

ATTACHMENTS

Grant Deed 





























































RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Public Works Director, or designee, to execute a contract amendment with CH2M

Hill, Inc., effective November 5, 2015, to extend the termination date from November 5, 2015 to November 5, 2017,

for on-call structural engineering services, with no change to the original payment limit of $250,000, Countywide. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Work performed under this amendment is funded by developer fees; and various other local, state and federal funds

for road, flood control, and airport projects.

BACKGROUND: 

The Public Works Department is involved in various projects in the County, which require structural engineering

consulting services for road, flood control, and airport projects. After a solicitation process in 2012, this firm and

four other firms were selected to provide structural engineering services on an “on-call” basis. On November 6, 2012,

a consulting service agreement with CH2M Hill, Inc. was approved by the Board of Supervisors.

Since the original consulting service agreement was executed, the Consultant provided on-call structural engineering

services on multiple projects. While most of these projects have been completed, there are several on-going projects

that have task orders that require Consultant’s engineering services beyond the Agreement’s November 5, 2015

expiration. In order to allow these task orders to continue without disruption, the contract is being extended solely for

the completion of these task orders. The Consultant needs to complete the following: 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Kevin Emigh,

925-313-2233

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

C. 4

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Julia R. Bueren, Public Works Director/Chief Engineer

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Contract amendment with CH2M Hill, Inc., to extend termination date of contract, Countywide.





BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

Wildcat/San Pablo Creeks LLCR Project: Task Order No. 4 

Deer Creek Bridge at Paloma Canyon Project: Task Order No. 5

Village Center Trail Pedestrian Bridge over Alamo Creek Project: Task Order No. 6

Approval of this Consulting Services Agreement Amendment No. 1 will allow the Consultant to continue providing

structural engineering consulting services to complete the task orders through December 31, 2017. No increase in the

contract amount.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If the contract amendment is not approved, the projects will experience delays and added costs as County solicits for

new professional services which will duplicate previous work. 



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

ADOPT Resolution No. 2015/436 approving the third extension of the Road Improvement Agreement for road

acceptance RA06-01208 (cross-reference SD04-08856), for a project being developed by Shapell Homes, a Division

of Shapell Industries, Inc., a Delaware Corporation, as recommended by the Public Works Director, San Ramon

(Dougherty Valley) area. (District II)

FISCAL IMPACT: 

No fiscal impact. 

BACKGROUND: 

The terminal date of the Road Improvement Agreement needs to be extended. The developer has not completed the

required improvements and has requested more time. (Approximately 80% of the work has been completed to date.)

By granting an extension, the County will give the developer more time to complete his improvements and keep the

bond current. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

The term date of the Road Improvement Agreement will not be extended and the developer will be in default of the

agreement, requiring the County to take legal action against the developer and surety to get the improvements

installed. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Jocelyn A.B. LaRocque,

925-313-2315

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of
the Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: J. A.B. LaRocque - Engineering Services ,   D. Roberts, Engineering Services Originator,   Design/Construction Division,   Current Planning - DCD,   Shapell

Homes, , 6800 Koll Center Pkwy., Ste. 320, Pleasanton, CA 94566,   National Fire Insur. Co. of Hartford 100 Matsonford Rd, #200 Radnor PA 19087,   T -
9-18-16   

C. 5

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Julia R. Bueren, Public Works Director/Chief Engineer

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Approve the third extension for Road Improvement Agreement RA06-01208, San Ramon (Dougherty Valley) area. 



ATTACHMENTS

Resolution No.

2015/436 

Third Extension 



Recorded at the request of: BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

Return To: PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT, ENGINEERING SERVICES

THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF CONTRA COSTA COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

and for Special Districts, Agencies and Authorities Governed by the Board

Adopted this Resolution on 12/08/2015 by the following vote:

AYE:

NO:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

RECUSE:

Resolution No. 2015/436 

IN THE MATTER OF approving the third extension of the Road Improvement Agreement for road acceptance RA06-01208

(cross-reference SD04-08856), for a project being developed by Shapell Homes, a Division of Shapell Industries, Inc., a

Delaware Corporation, as recommended by the Public Works Director, San Ramon (Dougherty Valley) area. (District II)

WHEREAS, the Public Works Director having recommended that she be authorized to execute the third agreement extension

which extends the Road Improvement Agreement between Shapell Homes, a Division of Shapell Industries, Inc., a Delaware

Corporation and the County for construction of certain improvements in road acceptance RA06-01208 (cross-reference

SD04-08856), San Ramon (Dougherty Valley) area, through November 18, 2016;

APPROXIMATE PERCENTAGE OF WORK COMPLETE: 80%

ANTICIPATED DATE OF COMPLETION: September 30, 2016

BOND NO.: 929 390 933

DATE: August 3, 2006

REASON FOR EXTENSION: Need additional time to complete job. Water and storm drain improvements are installed, sewer

improvement is underway, and joint trench is next.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the recommendation of the Public Works Director is APPROVED.

Contact:  Jocelyn A.B. LaRocque, 925-313-2315

 

I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and
entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: J. A.B. LaRocque - Engineering Services ,   D. Roberts, Engineering Services Originator,   Design/Construction Division,   Current Planning - DCD,   Shapell

Homes, , 6800 Koll Center Pkwy., Ste. 320, Pleasanton, CA 94566,   National Fire Insur. Co. of Hartford 100 Matsonford Rd, #200 Radnor PA 19087,   T -
9-18-16   













RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and ADOPT the Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) Program for County Airports, 

AUTHORIZE and DIRECT the Public Works Director, or designee, to sign and submit the DBE Program for County

Airports document to the Federal Aviation Administration for acceptance, and

RESCIND the existing Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Program approved by the Board of Supervisors on June 9,

2009, with regard to the Federal Aviation Administration. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Costs associated with the DBE Program for County Airports will be funded 100% by Federal Aviation

Administration Funds. Without a DBE Program for County Airports, the County will not be eligible for federal

funding for airport projects. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Michelle Parella,

925-313-2249

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the
Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

C. 6

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Julia R. Bueren, Public Works Director/Chief Engineer

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: APPROVE and ADOPT the Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) Program for County Airports, Concord and

Byron areas.



BACKGROUND:

The Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) and Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) are within the U.S.

Department of Transportation (DOT). They are the source of billions of dollars in federal funding to local

agencies for airport and highway improvements each year. To be eligible for funding, agencies must comply with

Part 26 of Title 49 of the Code of Federal Regulations (CFR), “Participation by Disadvantaged Business

Enterprises in Department of Transportation Financial Assistance Program.” 49 CFR, Part 26 requires local

agencies to implement a disadvantaged business enterprise (“DBE”) program. In general, the goal of a DBE

program is to allow small businesses that are at least 51% controlled by one or more persons who are socially and

economically disadvantaged the opportunity to compete for certain contracts.

In 2005, the Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals issued a ruling that affected all state and local agency DBE programs

in the nine western states. (Western States Paving Co. v. State of Washington Dept. of Transportation, 407 F.3d

983 (9th Cir. 2005).) The Court of Appeals ruled that agencies must have evidence that demonstrated a need for

race-conscious measures, such as DBE goals, in their federally-funded contracts. Following this ruling, the

FHWA instructed agencies to provide evidence in support of their race-conscious DBE programs, or begin

gathering evidence and change to race-neutral DBE programs in the interim.

Operating under FHWA, the California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) conducted a state-wide

availability and disparity study on behalf of the local agencies in its jurisdiction that receive FHWA funds. The

FHWA approved this study in March 2009. The study demonstrated a need for race-conscious contract goals for

African American, Women, Asian Pacific American and Native American-owned businesses (Underutilized

Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (“UDBE”)).

Based on the results of the study, Caltrans revised its DBE Program to implement race-conscious UDBE goals.

Under the revised DBE Program, new race-conscious contract specifications were required to be incorporated in

all federal-aid construction and consultant contracts. Caltrans required local agencies that receive FHWA funds

through Caltrans (and FAA funds) to implement this revised DBE program. The Board of Supervisors approved

the Caltrans DBE Implementation Agreement on May 19, 2009.

In 2012, Caltrans again revised its DBE Program removing the requirement for race-conscious UDBE goals and

the Federal Aviation Administration released its own format requirements for a DBE Program. 

In 2014, the Department of Transportation made significant changes to the overall DBE Program requirements.

The FAA and Caltrans have interpreted the changes differently resulting in the need to create two separate

program documents - one for FAA and another for Caltrans. 

In 2015, the Contra Costa County Administrator's Office determined that the overall responsibility for the DOT

DBE Program(s) should reside with the Public Works Department. In consideration of the changes at the DOT and

Contra Costa County, the new DBE program for County Airports refers to the County as the responsible party but

assigns the responsibility for implementation to the Public Works Department. 

As a result of the great many changes, this DBE Program for County Airports has been created and is being

submitted for Approval and Adoption. This DBE Program for County Airports will supersede the County DBE

Program adopted by the Board of Supervisors on June 9, 2009, as applied to County airports. The County DBE

Program adopted by the Board of Supervisors on June 9, 2009, will continue to apply to County projects that

receive FHWA funds, until it is superseded by a revised program adopted by the Board of Supervisors at a later

date.

Upon Board approval of the attached DBE Program for County Airports, the Public Works Department will

submit the attached DBE Program for County Airports to the FAA for acceptance. The attached DBE Program for

County Airports replaces the previous DBE Program adopted by the Board on June 9, 2009 for federally funded

airport construction and consulting projects.



CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If the Board does not take the recommended action, FAA will stop authorizing Federal funds earmarked for

County airport projects.

ATTACHMENTS

DBE Program Document 

DBE Program Attachments 



DBE PROGRAM FOR COUNTY AIRPORTS 
Public Works Department 

Contra Costa County 
 

Page 1 of 20 

 
Section 26.1, 26.23  Objectives/Policy Statement 
 
Contra Costa County (County), owner of Buchanan Field and Byron Airports, has established a 
Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) Program in accordance with regulations of the U.S. 
Department of Transportation (DOT), 49 CFR Part 26  (“Part 26”. All references to “Section” refer 
to sections in Part 26).  The County has received Federal financial assistance from the 
Department of Transportation, and as a condition of receiving this assistance, the County has 
signed an assurance that it will comply with 49 CFR Part 26.  The County’s DBE Program for 
County Airports applies to County airport projects that receive Federal Aviation Administration 
(FAA) funding.  It supersedes the County DBE Program adopted by the Board of Supervisors on 
June 9, 2009, as applied to County airports.  The County DBE Program adopted by the Board of 
Supervisors on June 9, 2009, will continue to apply to County projects that receive Federal 
Highway Administration (FWHA) funds, unless it is superseded by a revised program adopted by 
the Board of Supervisors.   
 
It is the policy of the County to ensure that DBEs as defined in Part 26, have an equal 
opportunity to receive and participate in DOT–assisted contracts.  It is also County policy: 
 
1. To ensure nondiscrimination in the award and administration of DOT - assisted contracts; 
2. To create a level playing field on which DBEs can compete fairly for DOT - assisted contracts; 
3. To ensure that the DBE Program is narrowly tailored in accordance with applicable law; 
4. To ensure that only firms that fully meet 49 CFR Part 26 eligibility standards are permitted to 

participate as DBEs; 
5. To help remove barriers to the participation of DBEs in DOT-assisted contracts; 
6. To promote the use of DBEs in all types of federally-assisted contracts and procurement 

activities; 
7. To assist the development of firms that can compete successfully in the market place outside 

the DBE Program; and 
8. To provide appropriate flexibility to recipients of Federal financial assistance in establishing 

and providing opportunities for DBEs. 
 
The Public Works Department Director (“Director”) has been designated as the DBE Liaison 
Officer (DBELO).  In that capacity, the Director is responsible for implementing all aspects of the 
DBE program.  Implementation of the DBE program is accorded the same priority as compliance 
with all other legal obligations incurred by the County in its financial assistance agreements with 
the Department of Transportation. 
 
The Department has disseminated this policy statement to the Contra Costa County Board of 
Supervisors and made it available to all components of our organization.  The Department will 
post this policy statement on the publicly viewed Public Works and Airport web pages and make 
it available to both DBE and non-DBE businesses that perform work for us on DOT-assisted 
contracts.   
 
_____________________________________        
Julia R. Bueren, Public Works Director             Date 



49 CFR Part 26 Rev: 10-13-14  October 2015 

 
\\PW-DATA\grpdata\Admin\Contract Administration\DBE Program\9-A Program\9-A FAA Program\Program Document 2015\0.  DBE Program 11042015.doc 
 

  Page 2 of 20 

SUBPART A – GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 
 

Section 26.1 Objectives 
 
The objectives are found in the policy statement on the first page of this program. 
 
Section 26.3 Applicability  
 
The County is the recipient of Federal airport funds authorized by 49 U.S.C. 47101, et 
seq.   
 
Section 26.5 Definitions 
 
The County will use terms in this program that have the meaning defined in Section 26.5.  
See Attachment 1 for more details on 49 CFR Part 26 and links to related websites.   
 
Section 26.7 Non-discrimination Requirements 
 
The County will never exclude any person from participation in, deny any person the 
benefits of, or otherwise discriminate against anyone in connection with the award and 
performance of any contract covered by 49 CFR Part 26 on the basis of race, color, sex, 
or national origin. 
 
In administering its DBE program, the County will not, directly or through contractual or 
other arrangements, use criteria or methods of administration that have the effect of 
defeating or substantially impairing accomplishment of the objectives of the DBE program 
with respect to individuals of a particular race, color, sex, or national origin.   
 
Section 26.11 Record Keeping Requirements 
 
1. Reporting to DOT: 26.11(b) 

 
The County will report DBE participation to DOT/FAA as follows: 
 
The County will transmit to FAA annually on December 1, the “Uniform Report of DBE 
Awards or Commitments and Payments” form, found in Appendix B to Part 26.  The 
County will also report the DBE contractor firm information either on the FAA DBE 
Contractor’s Form or other similar format.  The County will begin using the revised 
Uniform Report of DBE Awards or Commitments and Payments for reporting FY 2015 
reports due December 1, 2015. 
 

2. Bidders List: 26.11(c) 
 

The County will create and maintain a bidders list.  The purpose of the list is to provide 
as accurate data as possible about the universe of DBE and non-DBE contractors and 
subcontractors who seek to work on County DOT-assisted contracts for use in helping 
to set our overall goals.  The bidders list will include the name, address, DBE and non-
DBE status, age of firm, and annual gross receipts of firms.   

 



49 CFR Part 26 Rev: 10-13-14  October 2015 

 
\\PW-DATA\grpdata\Admin\Contract Administration\DBE Program\9-A Program\9-A FAA Program\Program Document 2015\0.  DBE Program 11042015.doc 
 

  Page 3 of 20 

The County will collect this information in the following ways:  
 
A copy of the data collection form is included as Attachment 3 “Bidders List 
Application.”  This form is posted and downloadable on the Public Works and Airport 
websites.   Lists are maintained and updated by the individual divisions using them.   

 
Section 26.13 Federal Financial Assistance Agreement  
 
The County has signed the following assurances, applicable to all DOT-assisted contracts 
and their administration:  
 
1. Assurance: 26.13(a) Each financial assistance agreement the County signs with a 

DOT operating administration (or a primary recipient) will include the following 
assurance: 

 

“Assurance:  26.13(a) The County shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, 
national origin, or sex in the award and performance of any DOT-assisted contract or 
in the administration of its DBE program or the requirements of 49 CFR Part 26. The 
County shall take all necessary and reasonable steps under 49 CFR Part 26 to 
ensure nondiscrimination in the award and administration of DOT-assisted contracts. 
The County’s DBE program, as required by 49 CFR Part 26 and as approved by 
DOT, is incorporated by reference in this agreement. Implementation of this program 
is a legal obligation and failure to carry out its terms shall be treated as a violation of 
this agreement. Upon notification to the County of its failure to carry out its approved 
program, the Department of Transportation may impose sanctions as provided for 
under 49 CFR Part 26 and may, in appropriate cases, refer the matter for 
enforcement under 18 U.S.C. 1001 and/or the Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 
1986 (31 U.S.C. 3801 et seq. ).” 

 
[Note: This language is to be used verbatim, as it is stated in 26.13(a).] 
 
2. Contract Assurance: 26.13(b) The County will ensure that the following clause is 

included in each contract the County signs with a contractor and each subcontract 
the prime contractor signs with a subcontractor: 

 
“Contract Assurance (26.13) The contractor, sub recipient or subcontractor shall not 
discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex in the performance of 
this contract.  The contractor shall carry out applicable requirements of 49 CFR Part 
26 in the award and administration of DOT-assisted contracts.  Failure by the 
contractor to carry out these requirements is a material breach of this contract, which 
may result in the termination of this contract or such other remedy as the County 
deems appropriate.” 

 
[Note: This language is used verbatim, as it is stated in 26.13(b) in the Special Conditions 
of each contract/agreement.] 



49 CFR Part 26 Rev: 10-13-14  October 2015 

 
\\PW-DATA\grpdata\Admin\Contract Administration\DBE Program\9-A Program\9-A FAA Program\Program Document 2015\0.  DBE Program 11042015.doc 
 

  Page 4 of 20 

 
SUBPART B - ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS 

 
Section 26.21 DBE Program Updates 
 
The County is required to have a DBE program meeting the requirements of Part 26 as it 
will receive grants for airport planning or development and will award prime contracts, 
cumulative total value of which exceeds $250,000 in FAA funds in a federal fiscal year.  
The County is not eligible to receive DOT financial assistance unless DOT has approved 
the County’s DBE program and the County is in compliance with it and Part 26.  The 
County will continue to carry out its program until all funds from DOT financial assistance 
have been expended.  The County does not have to submit regular updates of our 
program, as long as the County remains in compliance.  However, the County will submit 
significant changes in the program for approval. 
 
Section 26.23 Policy Statement 
 
The Policy Statement is elaborated on the first page of this DBE Program. 
 
Section 26.25 DBE Liaison Officer (DBELO) 
 
The Department has designated the following individual as our DBE Liaison Officer: 
 

Julia R. Bueren 
Public Works Director 

255 Glacier Drive 
Martinez, CA 94553 

(925) 313-2000 
JULIE.BUEREN@PW.CCCOUNTY.US 

 
In that capacity and in coordination with other appropriate officials, the DBELO is 
ultimately responsible for developing, implementing and monitoring the DBE program and 
ensuring that the County complies with all provisions of 49 CFR Part 26.  The DBELO 
relies on Department staff from several divisions including the Airports, 
Design/Construction, Transportation, Contracts Administration and County Counsel to 
assist in the administration of the program. DBELO has direct, independent access to the 
Public Works Director concerning DBE program matters.  An organization chart 
displaying the DBELO’s position in the organization is found in Attachment 2 to this 
Program.   
 
Department staff fulfills the following duties and responsibilities of the DBELO: 
 
1. Gathers and reports statistical data and other information as required by DOT. 

2. Reviews third party contracts and purchase requisitions for compliance with this 
program. 

3. Works with all Department divisions to set overall annual goals. 

mailto:JULIE.BUEREN@PW.CCCOUNTY.US


49 CFR Part 26 Rev: 10-13-14  October 2015 

 
\\PW-DATA\grpdata\Admin\Contract Administration\DBE Program\9-A Program\9-A FAA Program\Program Document 2015\0.  DBE Program 11042015.doc 
 

  Page 5 of 20 

4. Ensures that bid notices and requests for proposals are available to DBEs in a timely 
manner. 

5. Identifies contracts and procurements so that DBE goals are included in solicitations 
(both race-neutral methods and contract specific goals) and monitors results. 

6. Analyzes Department’s progress toward attainment and identifies ways to improve 
progress. 

7. Participates in pre-bid meetings. 

8. Advises the County Administrative Officer\Board of Supervisors on DBE matters and 
achievement. 

9. Determines contractor compliance with good faith efforts. 

10. Plans and participates in DBE training seminars. 

11. Provides outreach to DBEs and community organizations to advise them of 
opportunities. 

 
Section 26.27 DBE Financial Institutions 
 
It is the policy of the County to investigate the full extent of services offered by financial 
institutions owned and controlled by socially and economically disadvantaged individuals 
in the community, to make reasonable efforts to use these institutions, and to encourage 
prime contractors on DOT-assisted contracts to make use of these institutions.   
 
Information on the availability of such institutions can be obtained from the DBE Liaison 
Officer.  The California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) Disadvantaged Business 
Enterprise Program may offer assistance to the DBE Liaison Officer.  
 
Section 26.29 Prompt Payment Mechanisms 
 
The County has established, as part of its DBE Program, a contract clause requiring 
prime contractors to pay subcontractors for satisfactory performance of their contracts no 
later than 7 days from receipt of each payment made by the County to the prime 
contractor. 

The County will ensure prompt and full payment of retainage from the prime contractor to 
the subcontractor within 30 days after the subcontractor's work is satisfactorily completed.  
The County will use the following method to comply with this requirement:  

Hold retainage from prime contractors and provide for prompt and regular 
incremental acceptances of portions of the prime contract, pay retainage to prime 
contractors based on these acceptances, and require a contract clause obligating 
the prime contractor to pay all retainage owed to the subcontractor for satisfactory 
completion of the accepted work within 30 days after receipt of our payment to the 
prime contractor. 



49 CFR Part 26 Rev: 10-13-14  October 2015 

 
\\PW-DATA\grpdata\Admin\Contract Administration\DBE Program\9-A Program\9-A FAA Program\Program Document 2015\0.  DBE Program 11042015.doc 
 

  Page 6 of 20 

County will consider a subcontractor's work is satisfactorily completed when all the tasks 
called for in the subcontract have been accomplished and documented as required by the 
County.  When County has made an incremental acceptance of a portion of a prime 
contract, the work of a subcontractor covered by that acceptance is deemed to be 
satisfactorily completed. 
 
Prompt Payment 
 
The County will include the following clause in each DOT-assisted prime contract:   

 
“Prompt Payment (26.29) - The prime contractor agrees to pay each subcontractor 
under this prime contract for satisfactory performance of its contract no later than 7 
days from the receipt of each payment the prime contractor receives from Agency. 
The prime contractor agrees further to return retainage payments to each 
subcontractor within 30 days after the subcontractor's work is satisfactorily 
completed. Any delay or postponement of payment from the above referenced time 
frame may occur only for good cause following written approval of the Agency. This 
clause applies to both DBE and non-DBE subcontractors.” 

 
Monitoring Payments to DBEs 
 
The County will require prime contractors to maintain records and documents of 
payments to DBEs for three years following the performance of the contract.  These 
records will be made available for inspection upon request by any authorized 
representative of the County or DOT.  This reporting requirement also extends to any 
certified DBE subcontractor. 
 
The County will perform interim audits of contract payments to DBEs.  The audit will 
review payments to DBE subcontractors to ensure that the actual amount paid to DBE 
subcontractors equals or exceeds the dollar amounts stated in the schedule of DBE 
participation.   
 
Section 26.31 Directory 
 
The County will refer interested persons to the Unified Certification Program DBE 
directory available from the Caltrans Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Program’s 
website at www.dot.ca.gov/hq/bep.  See Attachment 4 for additional information. 
 
Section 26.33 Over-concentration 
 
The County has not identified that over-concentration exists in the types of work that 
DBEs perform. 
 
Section 26.35 Business Development Programs 
 
The County has not established a business development program.   

http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/bep


49 CFR Part 26 Rev: 10-13-14  October 2015 

 
\\PW-DATA\grpdata\Admin\Contract Administration\DBE Program\9-A Program\9-A FAA Program\Program Document 2015\0.  DBE Program 11042015.doc 
 

  Page 7 of 20 

 
Section 26.37 Monitoring and Enforcement Mechanisms 
 
The County will take the following monitoring and enforcement mechanisms to ensure 
compliance with 49 CFR Part 26.   
 
1. The County will bring to the attention of the Department of Transportation any false, 

fraudulent, or dishonest conduct in connection with the program, so that DOT can take 
the steps (e.g., referral to the Department of Justice for criminal prosecution, referral 
to the DOT Inspector General, action under suspension and debarment or Program 
Fraud and Civil Penalties rules) provided in 26.107.   
 

2. The County will implement similar action under its own legal authorities, including 
responsibility determinations in future contracts.  Attachment 7 lists the regulations, 
provisions, and contract remedies available in the events of non-compliance with the 
DBE regulation by a participant in its DBE Program. 

 
3. The County will implement a monitoring and enforcement mechanism to ensure that 

work committed to DBEs at contract award or subsequently (i.e., as the result of 
modification to the contract) is actually performed by the DBEs to which the work was 
committed.  

 
4. The Department will assign a Resident Engineer (RE) or Contract Administrator to 

monitor and track actual DBE participation through contractor and subcontractor 
reports of payments in accordance with the following: 

 
A. After Contract Award 

 
After the contract award the County will review the award documents for the 
portion of items each DBE and first tier subcontractor will be performing and the 
dollar value of that work.  With these documents the RE/Contract Administrator 
will be able to determine the work to be performed by the DBEs or subcontractors 
listed. 

 

B. Preconstruction Conference 
 

A preconstruction conference will be scheduled between the RE/Contract 
Administrator and the contractor or their representative to discuss the work each 
DBE subcontractor will perform. 
 
Before work can begin on a subcontract, the local agency will require the 
contractor to submit a completed “Subcontracting Request,” Exhibit 16-B of the 
Caltrans Local Assistance Program Manual (LAPM) or equivalent.  When the 
RE/Contract Administrator receives the completed form it will be checked for 
agreement of the first tier subcontractors and DBEs.  The RE/Contract 
Administrator will not approve the request when it identifies someone other than 
the DBE or first tier subcontractor listed in the previously completed “List of 
Subcontractors and DBEs” form in the Proposal and the “Local Agency-Bidder 
DBE Information (Construction  Contracts),” Exhibit 15-G of the LAPM or 



49 CFR Part 26 Rev: 10-13-14  October 2015 

 
\\PW-DATA\grpdata\Admin\Contract Administration\DBE Program\9-A Program\9-A FAA Program\Program Document 2015\0.  DBE Program 11042015.doc 
 

  Page 8 of 20 

equivalent.  The “Subcontracting Request” will not be approved until any 
discrepancies are resolved.  If an issue cannot be resolved at that time, or there 
is some other concern, the RE/Contract Administrator will require the contractor to 
eliminate the subcontractor in question before signing the subcontracting request.  
A change in the DBE or first tier subcontractor may be addressed during a 
substitution process at a later date. 
 
Suppliers, vendors, or manufacturers listed on the “Local  Agency-Bidder DBE 
Information (Construction Contracts),” Exhibit 15-G of the LAPM or equivalent will 
be compared by the RE/Contract Administrator to those listed in the completed 
“Notice of Materials to be Used”, Exhibit 16-I of the LAPM or equivalent.  
Differences must be resolved by either making corrections or requesting a 
substitution. 
 
Substitutions will be subject to the Subletting and Subcontracting Fair Practices 
Act (FPA).  Local agencies will require contractors to adhere to the provisions 
within Subletting and Subcontracting Fair Practices Act (State Law) Sections 4100-
4144.  FPA requires the contractor to list all subcontractors in excess of one 
half of one percent (0.5%) of the contractor’s total bid or $10,000, whichever 
is greater.  The statute is designed to prevent bid shopping by contractors. The 
FPA explains that a contractor may not substitute a subcontractor listed in the 
original bid except with the approval of the awarding authority. 
 
The RE/Contract Administrator will give the contractor a blank Exhibit 17-F of 
the LAPM, “Final Report Utilization of Disadvantaged Business Enterprises, First 
Tier Subcontractors” and will explain to them that the document will be required 
at the end of the project, for which payment can be withheld, in conformance 
with the contract. 
 

C. Construction Contract Monitoring 
 

The RE will ensure that the RE’s staff (inspectors) knows what items of 
work each DBE is responsible for performing.  Inspectors will notify the RE 
immediately of apparent violations. 
 
When a firm other than the listed DBE subcontractor is found performing the 
work, the RE will notify the contractor of the apparent discrepancy and potential 
loss of payment.  Based on the contractor’s response, the RE will take 
appropriate action: The DBE Liaison Officer will perform a preliminary investigation 
to identify any potential issues related to the DBE subcontractor performing a 
commercially useful function.  Any substantive issues will be forwarded to the 
Caltrans Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Program.  If the contractor fails to 
adequately explain why there is a discrepancy, payment for the work will be 
withheld and a letter will be sent to the contractor referencing the applicable 
specification violation and the required withholding of payment. 
 

If the contract requires the submittal of a monthly truck document, the contractor 
will be required to submit “Monthly DBE Trucking Verification,” Exhibit 16-Z of the 
LAPM, or equivalent, to the RE showing the owner’s name; California Highway 



49 CFR Part 26 Rev: 10-13-14  October 2015 

 
\\PW-DATA\grpdata\Admin\Contract Administration\DBE Program\9-A Program\9-A FAA Program\Program Document 2015\0.  DBE Program 11042015.doc 
 

  Page 9 of 20 

Patrol CA number; and the DBE certification number of the owner of the truck 
for each truck used during that month for which DBE participation will be 
claimed.  The trucks will be listed by California Highway Patrol CA number in the 
daily diary or on a separate piece of paper for documentation.  The numbers are 
checked by inspectors regularly to confirm compliance. 
 
Providing evidence of DBE payment is the responsibility of the contractor. 
 

D. Substitution 
 

When a DBE substitution is requested, the RE/Contract Administrator will 
request a letter from the contractor explaining why substitution is needed.  The 
RE/Contract Administrator must review the letter to be sure names and 
addresses are shown, dollar values are included, and reason for the request is 
explained.  If the RE/Contract Administrator agrees to the substitution, the 
RE/Contract Adm in is t r a t o r  will notify, in writing, the DBE subcontractor 
regarding the proposed substitution and procedure for written objection from the 
DBE subcontractor in accordance with the Subletting and Subcontracting Fair 
Practices Act.  If the contractor is not meeting the contract goal with this 
substitution, the contractor must provide the required good faith effort to the 
RE/Contract Administrator for local agency consideration. 

 
If there is any doubt in the RE/Contract Administrator’s mind regarding the 
requested substitution, the RE/Contract Administrator may contact the DLAE for 
assistance and direction. 

 
E. Record Keeping and Final Report Utilization of Disadvantaged Business 

Enterprises 
 

The contractor shall maintain records showing the name and address of each 
first-tier subcontractor.  The records shall also show: 
 
1) The name and business address, regardless of tier, of every DBE 

subcontractor, DBE vendor of materials and DBE trucking company. 
 
2) The date of payment and the total dollar figure paid to each of the firms. 
 
3) The DBE prime contractor shall also show the date of work performed by their 

own forces along with the corresponding dollar value of the work claimed 
toward DBE contract goal, if applicable. 

 
When a contract has been completed the contractor will provide a summary 
of the records stated above.  The DBE utilization information will be 
documented on “Final Report Utilization of Disadvantaged Business 
Enterprises, First Tier Subcontractors,” Exhibit 17-F of the LAPM or equivalent. 
The RE will compare the completed Exhibit 17-F to the contractor’s 
completed “Local Agency Bidder DBE Information (Construction Contracts),” 
Exhibit 15-G of the LAPM or equivalent, and, if applicable, to the completed 
“Subcontracting Request,”, Exhibit 16-B of the LAPM.  The DBEs shown on 
the completed Exhibit 17-F should be the same as those originally listed 



49 CFR Part 26 Rev: 10-13-14  October 2015 

 
\\PW-DATA\grpdata\Admin\Contract Administration\DBE Program\9-A Program\9-A FAA Program\Program Document 2015\0.  DBE Program 11042015.doc 
 

  Page 10 of 20 

unless an authorized substitution was allowed, or the contractor used more 
DBEs and they were added.  The dollar amount should reflect any changes 
made in planned work done by the DBE.  The contractor will be required to 
explain in writing why the names of the subcontractors, the work items or 
dollar figures are different from what was originally shown on the completed 
Exhibit 15-G when: 
 
a. There have been no changes made by the RE. 
b. The contractor has not provided a sufficient explanation in the comments 

section of the completed Exhibit 17-F. 
 

The explanation will be attached to the completed Exhibit 17-F for submittal 
to the RE.  The RE will file this in the project records. 
 
The RE/Contract Administrator will keep track of the DBE certification 
status on the Internet at www.dot.ca.gov/hq/bep and keep the RE informed 
of changes that affect the contract.  The RE will require the contractor to 
act in accordance with existing contractual commitments regardless of 
decertification.   

 
Attachment 6 includes examples of Exhibits 15-G, 17-F  
 
Section 26.39 Fostering small business participation. 
 
The County has created a Small Business element to structure contracting requirements 
to facilitate competition by small business concerns, taking all reasonable steps to 
eliminate obstacles to their participation, including unnecessary and unjustified bundling 
of contract requirements that may preclude small business participation in procurements 
as prime contractors or subcontractors. 

The County’s small business element is incorporated as Attachment 10 to this DBE 
Program.  The County will actively implement the program elements to foster small 
business participation; doing so is a requirement of good faith implementation of our DBE 
program. 



49 CFR Part 26 Rev: 10-13-14  October 2015 

 
\\PW-DATA\grpdata\Admin\Contract Administration\DBE Program\9-A Program\9-A FAA Program\Program Document 2015\0.  DBE Program 11042015.doc 
 

  Page 11 of 20 

 
SUBPART C – GOALS, GOOD FAITH EFFORTS, AND COUNTING 

 
Section 26.43 Set-asides or Quotas 
 
The County does not use quotas in any way in the administration of this DBE program.  
 
Section 26.45 Overall Goals 
 
The County will establish an overall DBE goal covering a three-year federal fiscal year 
period if the County anticipates awarding DOT/FAA funded prime contracts the 
cumulative total value of which exceeds $250,000 during any one or more of the reporting 
fiscal years within the three-year goal period.  In accordance with Section 26.45(f) the 
County will submit its Overall Three-year DBE Goal to FAA by August 1st as required by 
the established schedule below.    

 

Airport Type Region 
Date Due 
(Goal Period) 

Next Goal Due 
(Goal Period) 

Non-Hub Primary All Regions August 1, 2015 
(2016/2017/2018) 

August 1, 2018 
(2019/2010/2021) 

 
The DBE goals will be established in accordance with the 2-step process as specified in 
49 CFR Part 26.45.  If the County does not anticipate awarding DOT/FAA funded prime 
contracts the cumulative total value of which exceeds $250,000 during any of the years 
within the three-year reporting period, the County will not develop an overall goal; 
however, this DBE Program will remain in effect and the County will seek to fulfill the 
objectives outlined in 49 CFR Part 26.1. 
 

Step 1. The first step is to determine the relative availability of DBEs in the market 
area, “base figure”.  We will use DBE Directories and Census Bureau Data for 
specified counties.  The second step is to adjust the “base figure” percentage from 
Step 1 so that it reflects as accurately as possible the DBE participation the 
recipient would expect in the absence of discrimination based on past participation, 
a disparity study and/or information about barriers to entry to past competitiveness 
of DBEs on Contracts.   

 
Any methodology the County chooses will be based on demonstrable evidence of local 
market conditions and be designed to ultimately attain a goal that is rationally related to 
the relative availability of DBEs in our market.  The County understands that the exclusive 
use of a list of prequalified contractors or plan holders, or a bidders list that does not 
comply with the requirements of paragraph (c)(2) of this section (above), is not an 
acceptable alternative means of determining the availability of DBEs. 
 

Step 2. Once the County has calculated a base figure, the County will examine all 
of the evidence available in our jurisdiction to determine what adjustment, if any, is 
needed to the base figure to arrive at our overall goal.  If the evidence does not 
suggest an adjustment is necessary, then no adjustment shall be made. 

 



49 CFR Part 26 Rev: 10-13-14  October 2015 

 
\\PW-DATA\grpdata\Admin\Contract Administration\DBE Program\9-A Program\9-A FAA Program\Program Document 2015\0.  DBE Program 11042015.doc 
 

  Page 12 of 20 

26.45 (g)(1) In establishing the overall goal, the County will provide for consultation and 
publication.  This includes consultation with minority, women’s and general contractor 
groups, community organizations, and other officials or organizations which could be 
expected to have information concerning the availability of disadvantaged and non-
disadvantaged businesses, the effects of discrimination on opportunities for DBEs, and 
the County’s efforts to establish a level playing field for the participation of DBEs.  The 
consultation will include a scheduled, direct, interactive exchange (e.g., a face-to-face 
meeting, video conference, teleconference) with as many interested stakeholders as 
possible focused on obtaining information relevant to the County’s goal setting process, 
and it will occur before the County is required to submit our goal methodology to the 
operating administration for review pursuant to paragraph (f) of this section. The County 
will document in our goal submission the consultation process that the County engaged 
in.  Notwithstanding paragraph (f)(4) of this section, the County will not implement our 
proposed goal until the County has complied with this requirement.    
 
In addition, the County will publish a notice announcing our proposed overall goal before 
submission to the operating administration on August 1st.  The notice will be posted on 
our official internet web site and may be posted in any other sources (e.g., minority-
focused media, trade association publications).  If the proposed goal changes following 
review by the operating administration, the revised goal will be posted on our official 
internet web site.  The County will inform the public that the proposed overall goal and its 
rationale are available for inspection during normal business hours at our principal office 
and that the County and DOT/FAA will accept comments on the goals for 30 days from 
the date of the notice.  Notice of the comment period will include the addresses to which 
comments may be sent (including offices and websites) where the proposal may be 
reviewed.  The public comment period will not extend the August 1st deadline.  
 
Our Overall Three-Year DBE Goal submission to DOT/FAA will include a summary of 
information and comments received, if any, during this public participation process and 
our responses.    
 
The County will begin using our overall goal on October 1 of the reporting period, unless 
the County has received other instructions from DOT.    
 
Section 26.45 (e) - Project Goals  
 
If permitted or required by the FAA Administrator the County will express our overall goals 
as a percentage of funds for a particular grant or project or group of grants and/or 
projects, including entire projects.  Like other overall goals, a project goal may be 
adjusted to reflect changed circumstances, with the concurrence of the appropriate 
operating administration.  A project goal is an overall goal, and must meet all the 
substantive and procedural requirements of this section pertaining to overall goals.  A 
project goal covers the entire length of the project to which it applies.  The project goal 
should include a projection of the DBE participation anticipated to be obtained during 
each fiscal year covered by the project goal.  The funds for the project to which the 
project goal pertains are separated from the base from which our regular overall goal, 
applicable to contracts not part of the project covered by a project goal, is calculated. 
 



49 CFR Part 26 Rev: 10-13-14  October 2015 

 
\\PW-DATA\grpdata\Admin\Contract Administration\DBE Program\9-A Program\9-A FAA Program\Program Document 2015\0.  DBE Program 11042015.doc 
 

  Page 13 of 20 

If the County establishes a goal on a project basis, the County will begin using our goal 
by the time of the first solicitation for a DOT-assisted contract for the project.  
 
Section 26.45(f) - Prior Operating Administration Concurrent 
 
The County understands that we are not required to obtain prior operating administration 
concurrence with our overall goal.  However, if the operating administration’s review 
suggests that our overall goal has not been correctly calculated or that our method for 
calculating goals is inadequate, the operating administration may, after consulting with us, 
adjust our overall goal or require that we do so.  The adjusted overall goal is binding.  In 
evaluating the adequacy or soundness of the methodology used to derive the overall 
goal, the U.S. DOT operating administration will be guided by the goal setting principles 
and best practices identified by the Department of Transportation in guidance issued 
pursuant to § 26.9. 
 
A description of the methodology to calculate the overall goal and the goal calculations 
can be found in Attachment 5 to this Program. 
 
Section 26.47 Failure to meet overall goals. 
 
The County will maintain an approved DBE Program and overall DBE goal, if applicable, 
as well as administer our DBE Program in good faith to be considered to be in 
compliance with Part 26.   
 

If the County awards and commitments shown on our Uniform Report of Awards or 
Commitments and Payments at the end of any fiscal year are less than the overall goal 
applicable to that fiscal year, the County will do the following in order to be regarded by 
the Department of Transportation as implementing your DBE Program in good faith: 

1. Analyze in detail the reasons for the difference between the overall goal and our 
awards and commitments in that fiscal year; 

2. Establish specific steps and milestones to correct the problems we have identified in 
our analysis and to enable us to meet fully your goal for the new fiscal year;  

3. The County will prepare, within 90 days of the end of the fiscal year, the analysis and 
corrective actions developed under paragraph (c)(1) and (2) of this section.  We will 
retain copy of analysis and corrective actions in records for a minimum of three years, 
and will make it available to FAA upon request.   



49 CFR Part 26 Rev: 10-13-14  October 2015 

 
\\PW-DATA\grpdata\Admin\Contract Administration\DBE Program\9-A Program\9-A FAA Program\Program Document 2015\0.  DBE Program 11042015.doc 
 

  Page 14 of 20 

 
Section 26.51(a-c) Breakout of Estimated Race-Neutral & Race-Conscious 

Participation  
 
The County will meet the maximum feasible portion of its overall goal by using race-
neutral means of facilitating race-neutral DBE participation.  Race-neutral DBE 
participation includes any time a DBE wins a prime contract through customary 
competitive procurement procedures or is awarded a subcontract on a prime contract that 
does not carry a DBE contract goal. 
 
Race-neutral means include, but are not limited to the following:  

1. Arranging solicitations, times for the presentation of bids, quantities, specifications, 
and delivery schedules in ways that facilitate participation by DBEs and other small 
businesses and by making contracts more accessible to small businesses, by 
means such as those provided under §26.39 of Part 26. 

2. Providing assistance in overcoming limitations such as inability to obtain bonding or 
financing (e.g., by such means as simplifying the bonding process, reducing bonding 
requirements, eliminating the impact of surety costs from bids, and providing 
services to help DBEs, and other small businesses, obtain bonding and financing); 

3. Providing technical assistance and other services; 

4. Carrying out information and communications programs on contracting procedures 
and specific contract opportunities (e.g., ensuring the inclusion of DBEs, and other 
small businesses, on recipient mailing lists for bidders; ensuring the dissemination to 
bidders on prime contracts of lists of potential subcontractors; provision of 
information in languages other than English, where appropriate); and 

5. Providing services to help DBEs, and other small businesses, improve long-term 
development, increase opportunities to participate in a variety of kinds of work, 
handle increasingly significant projects, and achieve eventual self-sufficiency. 

 
The breakout of estimated race-neutral and race-conscious participation can be found in 
Attachment 5 to this program.   
 
Section 26.51(d-g) Contract Goals  
 
The County will arrange solicitations, times for the presentation of bids, quantities, 
specifications, and delivery schedules in ways that facilitate participation by DBEs and 
other small businesses and by making contracts more accessible to small businesses, by 
means such as those provided under § 26.39. 
 
If our approved projection under paragraph (c) of this section estimates that we can meet 
our entire overall goal for a given year through race-neutral means, we will implement our 
program without setting contract goals during that year, unless it becomes necessary in 
order meet our overall goal. 
 



49 CFR Part 26 Rev: 10-13-14  October 2015 

 
\\PW-DATA\grpdata\Admin\Contract Administration\DBE Program\9-A Program\9-A FAA Program\Program Document 2015\0.  DBE Program 11042015.doc 
 

  Page 15 of 20 

(Example to paragraph (f) (1): Your overall goal for Year 1 is 12 percent.  You estimate 
that you can obtain 12 percent or more DBE participation through the use of race-neutral 
measures, without any use of contract goals.  In this case, you do not set any contract 
goals for the contracts that will be performed in Year 1.  However, if part way through 
Year 1, your DBE awards or commitments are not at a level that would permit you to 
achieve your overall goal for Year 1, you could begin setting race-conscious DBE contract 
goals during the remainder of the year as part of your obligation to implement your 
program in good faith). 
 
The County will establish contract goals only on those DOT-assisted contracts that have 
subcontracting possibilities.  We need not establish a contract goal on every such 
contract, and the size of contract goals will be adapted to the circumstances of each such 
contract (e.g., type and location of work, availability of DBEs to perform the particular type 
of work). 
 
The County will express our contract goals as a percentage of the total amount of a DOT-
assisted contract. 
 
Section 26.53 Good Faith Efforts Procedures 
 
Demonstration of good faith efforts (26.53(a) & (c)) 
 
The obligation of the bidder/offeror is to make good faith efforts.  The bidder/offeror can 
demonstrate that it has done so either by meeting the contract goal or documenting good 
faith efforts.  Examples of good faith efforts are found in Appendix A to Part 26.  See 
Attachment 6 for forms related to this section. 
 
The County treats bidders’/ offerors’ compliance with good faith effort requirements as a 
matter of responsiveness.  A responsive proposal is meeting all the requirements of the 
advertisement and solicitation. 
 
The Department of Public Works Contract Administrator (“Contract Administrator”) is 
responsible for determining whether a bidder/offeror who has not met the contract goal 
has documented sufficient good faith efforts to be regarded as responsive. 
 
The County will ensure that all information is complete and accurate and adequately 
documents the bidder/offeror’s good faith efforts before the County commits to the 
performance of the contract by the bidder/offeror. 
  
Information to be submitted (26.53(b)) 
 
In our solicitations for DOT/FAA-assisted contracts for which a contract goal has been 
established, we will require the following: 
 
1. All bidders or offerors will be required to submit the following information to the 

Agency, at the time provided in paragraph (b)(3) of this section: 
 
(a)  The names and addresses of DBE firms that will participate in the contract; 



49 CFR Part 26 Rev: 10-13-14  October 2015 

 
\\PW-DATA\grpdata\Admin\Contract Administration\DBE Program\9-A Program\9-A FAA Program\Program Document 2015\0.  DBE Program 11042015.doc 
 

  Page 16 of 20 

(b)  A description of the work that each DBE will perform. To count toward meeting a 
goal, each DBE firm must be certified in a NAICS code applicable to the kind of 
work the firm would perform on the contract;  

(c) The dollar amount of the participation of each DBE firm participating; 
(d) Written documentation of the bidder/offeror’s commitment to use a DBE 

subcontractor whose participation it submits to meet a contract goal; and  
(e)  Written confirmation from each listed DBE firm that it is participating in the 

contract in the kind and amount of work provided in the prime contractor’s 
commitment. 

(f)  If the contract goal is not met, evidence of good faith efforts (see Appendix A of 
Part 26).  The documentation of good faith efforts must include copies of each 
DBE and non-DBE subcontractor quote submitted to the bidder when a non-DBE 
subcontractor was selected over a DBE for work on the contract; and  

 
2. The County will require that the bidder/offeror present the information required by 

paragraph (b)(2) of this section; under sealed bid procedures, as a matter of 
responsiveness, or with initial proposals, under contract negotiation procedures. 

 
Administrative Reconsideration (26.53(d)) 
 
Within 10 business days of being informed by County that it is not responsive because it 
has not documented sufficient good faith efforts, a bidder/offeror may request 
administrative reconsideration.  Bidder/offerors should make this request in writing to the 
following reconsideration official:  
 

Contra Costa County 
Public Works Department 

255 Glacier Drive 
Martinez, CA 94553 

Attn: DBE Administrative Reconsideration 
(925) 313-2000 

Admin@pw.cccounty.us 
  
The reconsideration official will not have played any role in the original determination that 
the bidder/offeror did not document sufficient good faith efforts. 
 
As part of this reconsideration, the bidder/offeror will have the opportunity to provide 
written documentation or argument concerning the issue of whether it met the goal or 
made adequate good faith efforts to do so.  The bidder/offeror will have the opportunity to 
meet in person with our reconsideration official to discuss the issue of whether it met the 
goal or made adequate good faith efforts to do.  The County will send the bidder/offeror a 
written decision on reconsideration, explaining the basis for finding that the bidder did or 
did not meet the goal or make adequate good faith efforts to do so.  The result of the 
reconsideration process is not administratively appealable to FAA, FHWA, Caltrans, or 
the Department of Transportation. 

mailto:Admin@pw.cccounty.us


49 CFR Part 26 Rev: 10-13-14  October 2015 

 
\\PW-DATA\grpdata\Admin\Contract Administration\DBE Program\9-A Program\9-A FAA Program\Program Document 2015\0.  DBE Program 11042015.doc 
 

  Page 17 of 20 

 
Good Faith Efforts when a DBE is Replaced on a Contract (26.53(f)(g)) 
 
The County will require the contractor that is awarded the contract to make available a 
copy of all DBE subcontracts.  The subcontractor shall ensure that all subcontracts or 
agreements with DBEs to supply labor or materials require that the subcontract and all 
lower tier subcontracts be performed in accordance with Part 26’s provisions. 
 
In this situation, the prime contractor will be required to obtain the Director’s, or 
designee’s, prior written approval of the substitute DBE and to provide copies of new or 
amended subcontracts, or documentation of good faith efforts.   
 
The County will require a contractor to make good faith efforts to replace a DBE that is 
terminated or has otherwise failed to complete its work on a contract with another certified 
DBE, to the extent needed to meet the contract goal.  The prime contractor is required to 
notify the Contract Administrator immediately of the DBE’s inability or unwillingness to 
perform and provide reasonable documentation.  The County will require that a prime 
contractor not terminate a DBE subcontractor listed in response to paragraph (b)(2) of 
this section (or an approved substitute DBE firm) without the Director’s, or designee’s, 
prior written consent.   
 
The Director will provide such written consent only if the Director agrees, for reasons 
stated in our concurrence document, that the prime contractor has good cause to 
terminate the DBE firm.  For purposes of this paragraph, good cause includes the 
following circumstances: 
 
1. The listed DBE subcontractor fails or refuses to execute a written contract; 
2. The listed DBE subcontractor fails or refuses to perform the work of its subcontract 

in a way consistent with normal industry standards.  Provided however, that good 
cause does not exist if the failure or refusal of the DBE subcontractor to perform its 
work on the subcontract results from the bad faith or discriminatory action of the 
prime contractor; 

3. The listed DBE subcontractor fails or refuses to meet the prime contractor’s 
reasonable, non-discriminatory bond requirements. 

4. The listed DBE subcontractor becomes bankrupt, insolvent, or exhibits credit 
unworthiness; 

5. The listed DBE subcontractor is ineligible to work on public works projects because 
of suspension and debarment proceedings pursuant to 2 CFR Parts 180, 215 and 
1,200 or applicable state law; 

6. The County has determined that the listed DBE subcontractor is not a responsible 
contractor; 

7. The listed DBE subcontractor voluntarily withdraws from the project and provides to 
Director written notice of its withdrawal; 

8. The listed DBE is ineligible to receive DBE credit for the type of work required; 
9. A DBE owner dies or becomes disabled with the result that the listed DBE contractor 

is unable to complete its work on the contract; 
10. Other documented good cause that the County determined compels the termination 

of the DBE subcontractor.  Provided, that good cause does not exist if the prime 
contractor seeks to terminate a DBE it relied upon to obtain the contract so that the 



49 CFR Part 26 Rev: 10-13-14  October 2015 

 
\\PW-DATA\grpdata\Admin\Contract Administration\DBE Program\9-A Program\9-A FAA Program\Program Document 2015\0.  DBE Program 11042015.doc 
 

  Page 18 of 20 

prime contractor can self-perform the work for which the DBE contractor was 
engaged or so that the prime contractor can substitute another DBE or non-DBE 
contractor after contract award. 

 
Before transmitting to the Director its request to terminate and/or substitute a DBE 
subcontractor, the prime contractor must give notice in writing to the DBE subcontractor, 
with a copy to the Director, of its intent to request to terminate and/or substitute, and the 
reason for the request. 
 
The prime contractor must give the DBE five days to respond to the prime contractor’s 
notice and advise the Department and the contractor of the reasons, if any, why it objects 
to the proposed termination of its subcontract and why the Director should not approve 
the prime contractor’s action.  If required in a particular case as a matter of public 
necessity (e.g., safety), the Director, or designee, may provide a response period shorter 
than five days. 
 
In addition to post-award terminations, the provisions of this section apply to pre-award 
deletions of or substitutions for DBE firms put forward by offerors in negotiated 
procurements. 
 
The County will require a contractor to make good faith efforts to replace a DBE that is 
terminated or has otherwise failed to complete its work on a contract with another certified 
DBE.  These good faith efforts shall be directed at finding another DBE to perform at least 
the same amount of work under the contract as the DBE that was terminated, to the 
extent needed to meet the contract goal that the County established for the procurement.  
The good faith efforts shall be documented by the contractor.  If we request 
documentation from the contractor under this provision, the contractor shall submit the 
documentation to us within 7 days, which may be extended for an additional 7 days if 
necessary at the request of the contractor, and the recipient shall provide a written 
determination to the contractor stating whether or not good faith efforts have been 
demonstrated. 
 
The County will include in each prime contract the contract clause required by § 26.13(b) 
stating that failure by the contractor to carry out the requirements of Part 26 is a material 
breach of the contract and may result in the termination of the contract or such other 
remedies set forth in that section that the County deems appropriate if the prime 
contractor fails to comply with the requirements of this section. 
 
If the contractor fails or refuses to comply in the time specified, our contracting office will 
issue an order stopping all or part of payment/work until satisfactory action has been 
taken.  If the contractor still fails to comply, the contracting officer may issue a termination 
for default proceeding.    
 
Section 26.55 Counting DBE Participation 
 
The County will count DBE participation toward overall and contract goals as provided in 
49 CFR 26.55.  The County will not count the participation of a DBE subcontract toward a 
contractor’s final compliance with its DBE obligations on a contract until the amount being 
counted has actually been paid to the DBE. 



49 CFR Part 26 Rev: 10-13-14  October 2015 

 
\\PW-DATA\grpdata\Admin\Contract Administration\DBE Program\9-A Program\9-A FAA Program\Program Document 2015\0.  DBE Program 11042015.doc 
 

  Page 19 of 20 

 
If the firm is not currently certified as a DBE in accordance with the standards of subpart 
D of Part 26 at the time of the execution of the contract, the County will not count the 
firm’s participation toward any DBE goals, except as provided for in 26.87(j). 
 
SUBPART E – CERTIFICATION PROCEDURES 
 
Section 26.81 Unified Certification Programs 
 
Only certified DBE firms as shown on the Unified Certification Program DBE Directory 
(available from the Caltrans Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Program’s website at 
www.dot.ca.gov/hq/bep) will participate as DBEs in this DBE Program.  See Attachment 8 
and 9 for DBE Certification Application Form and related links.  
 
SUBPART F – COMPLIANCE AND ENFORCEMENT 
 
Section 26.109  Information, Confidentiality, Cooperation and Intimidation or 

Retaliation 
 
The County will safeguard from disclosure to third parties information that may 
reasonably be regarded as confidential business information, consistent with Federal, 
state, and local law.   
 
Notwithstanding any provision of Federal or state law, the County will not release any 
information that may reasonably be construed as confidential business information to any 
third party without the written consent of the firm that submitted the information.  This 
includes applications for DBE certification and supporting information.  However, the 
County will transmit this information to DOT in any certification appeal proceeding under § 
26.89 of Part 26 or to any other state to which the individual’s firm has applied for 
certification under § 26.85 of Part 26. 
 
All participants in the Department of Transportation's DBE program (including, but not 
limited to, recipients, DBE firms and applicants for DBE certification, complainants and 
appellants, and contractors using DBE firms to meet contract goals) are required to 
cooperate fully and promptly with DOT and recipient compliance reviews, certification 
reviews, investigations, and other requests for information.  Failure to do so shall be a 
ground for appropriate action against the party involved (e.g., with respect to recipients, a 
finding of noncompliance; with respect to DBE firms, denial of certification or removal of 
eligibility and/or suspension and debarment; with respect to a complainant or appellant, 
dismissal of the complaint or appeal; with respect to a contractor which uses DBE firms to 
meet goals, findings of non-responsibility for future contracts and/or suspension and 
debarment). 
 
The County, contractor, or any other participant in the program will not intimidate, 
threaten, coerce, or discriminate against any individual or firm for the purpose of 
interfering with any right or privilege secured by Part 26 or because the individual or firm 
has made a complaint, testified, assisted, or participated in any manner in an 
investigation, proceeding, or hearing under Part 26.  If the County violates this prohibition, 
the County is in noncompliance with Part 26.  

http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/bep


























































































































RECOMMENDATION(S): 

DENY claims filed by Shawn Marbley, and Jorge Villa. DENY Application to File Late Claim Claimant Alejandra &

Daniela Rivera and William Thomas. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

No fiscal impact. 

BACKGROUND: 

* 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Joellen Balbas

925-335-1906

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

C. 7

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: David Twa, County Administrator

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: claims



APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Lauri Byers (925)

957-8860

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

C. 8

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Candace Andersen, District II Supervisor

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Resolution recognizing Dale Barnett, National Commander of the American Legion



ATTACHMENTS

Resolution No.

2015/462 



In the matter of: Resolution No. 2015/462

Recognizing Dale Barnett, National Commander of the American Legion as he visits Post 246 in Danville, CA

 

Whereas, The American Legion National Commander tours the country every year starting in December to

meet with local posts. The Commander starts in Hawaii then comes to California and the Bay Area each

year but has never visited Department of California, District 9, Contra Costa County; and 

Whereas, we welcome Dale Barnett, the first American Legion National Commander to visit Danville, CA;

and 

Whereas, Dale Barnett was elected national commander of the 22 million-member American Legion

September 3, 2015, in Baltimore during the 97th National Convention of America’s largest veterans

organization; and 

Whereas, as a member of American Legion Post 105 in Fayetteville, Georgia, Dale served the American

Legion at every level, including Department Commander, Georgia from 2007 to 2008; after leaving the

military, Barnett taught high school social studies and coached basketball, baseball and cross country, being

named Creekside High School Teacher of the Year in 2005-2006 and a national board certified social

studies teacher in 2003; and 

Whereas, Dale Barnett served from 1990 to 1991 as the battalion executive officer of the 2nd Battalion,

18th Infantry in Operation Desert Shield and Operation Desert Storm; he has been decorated with The

Legion of Merit, Bronze Star, Meritorious Service Medal, Army Commendation Medal, Army

Achievement Medal, National Defense Service Medal, Southwest Asia Service medal with two Bronze

Service Stars, Humanitarian Service medal, Army Service Ribbon, Overseas Service Ribbon, Kuwait

Liberation Medal, Combat Infantryman Badge, Parachutist Badge and Pathfinder Badge; and 

Whereas, Barnett earned an International Relations/Public Affairs degree at West Point, a Masters of

Business Administration from Boston University and graduated from Command and General Staff College

at Fort Leavenworth, Kansas; and 

Whereas, Dale and his wife Donna, live in Douglasville, Georgia, and have five children and four

grandchildren.

Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved that the Board of Supervisors of Contra Costa County does hereby honor and thank Dale Barnett

for his visit to Contra Costa County and for his many years of dedication and service to the United States of America. 

___________________

JOHN GIOIA

Chair, 

District I Supervisor

 

___________________ ___________________

CANDACE ANDERSEN MARY N. PIEPHO

District II Supervisor District III Supervisor

 

___________________ ___________________

KAREN MITCHOFF FEDERAL D. GLOVER

District IV Supervisor District V Supervisor

 

I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken 
and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on the date 
shown.

 
ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

 

David J. Twa, 

 
By: ____________________________________, Deputy



APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Lindy Lavender

925-521-7100

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the
Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

C. 9

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Karen Mitchoff, District IV Supervisor

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Celebrating the 5th Annual Scare Away Hunger Event



ATTACHMENTS

Resolution No.

2015/463 



In the matter of: Resolution No. 2015/463

Celebrating the 5th Annual Scare Away Hunger Event.

 

WHEREAS, Tesoro Martinez Refinery began as the Avon Refinery in 1913, as a supplier of fuels and has

continued to be a member of our community for more than 100 years; and 

  

WHEREAS, Tesoro is committed to philanthropic investments that serve our communities needs and as

such have invested in our local community in numerous ways including charitable funds and employee

volunteer hours; and 

  

WHEREAS, in partnership with the Food Bank of Contra Costa and Solono and Concord High School,

Tesoro began an innovative local food-drive in which Concord High School students “trick-or-treat” for

food and monetary donations for the food bank; and 

  

WHEREAS, Tesoro sponsors this event by providing dinner to student teams, Tesoro volunteers, and

matching the funds collected by students; and 

  

WHEREAS, in its 5th year Scare Away Hunger collected more than 13,000 pounds of food and more that

$5,000; and 

  

WHEREAS, the Food Bank of Contra Costa and Solono currently serves one in eight residents and

distributed approximately 20 million pounds of food last year; and 

  

WHEREAS, this unique collaboration provides an educational engagement opportunity for youth while

collecting much needed resources for the food bank and to the most vulnerable members of community.   

  

 

Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved that the Board of Supervisors of Contra Costa County does hereby honor and congratulate

Tesoro Refinery, this partnership and the 5th annual Scare Away Hunger Event.   

___________________

JOHN GIOIA

Chair, 

District I Supervisor

 

___________________ ___________________

CANDACE ANDERSEN MARY N. PIEPHO

District II Supervisor District III Supervisor

 

___________________ ___________________

KAREN MITCHOFF FEDERAL D. GLOVER

District IV Supervisor District V Supervisor

 

I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken 
and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on the date 
shown.

 
ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

 

David J. Twa, 

 
By: ____________________________________, Deputy



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

RE-APPOINT the following individual to the District V Public Sector Seat on the Economic Opportunity Council to

a term expiring June 30, 2017, as recommended by Supervisor Federal D. Glover:

Theresa Kula

828 E 11th Street

Pittsburg, CA 94565

FISCAL IMPACT: 

None. 

BACKGROUND: 

The Economic Opportunity Council duties and responsibilities include: To participate in, and advise the Board of

Supervisors regarding the selection of the Director. To exercise all powers delegated to it by the Board of

Supervisors. To hold public hearings to determine overall program goals for the EOC. To review fiscal and

programmatic reports submitted by staff and the performance of Community Services Block Grant. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

Position would remain vacant. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Vincent Manuel, (925)

335-8200

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the
Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

C. 10

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Federal D. Glover, District V Supervisor

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Re-Appoint Theresa Kula to the Economic Opportunity Council



CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

None.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPOINT Grayce Smith to the Oakley Local Committee Seat on the Advisory Council on Aging as recommended

by the Employment and Human Services Department Director. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Not applicable. 

BACKGROUND: 

Ms. Smith's term will end September 30, 2018. Her address is 110 Zartop Street, Oakley, CA 94561. Ms. Smith fills

a vacant Local Committee Seat.

The Advisory Council on Aging (Council) provides a means for countywide planning, cooperation, and coordination

for individuals and groups interested in improving and developing services and opportunities for the older residents

of the County. The Council provides leadership and advocacy on behalf of older persons and serves as a channel of

communication and information on aging. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

The Advisory Council on Aging may not be able to conduct routine business. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Elaine Burres,

313-1717

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of
Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

C. 11

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Kathy Gallagher, Employment & Human Services Director

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Appointment to the Advisory Council on Aging



CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not applicable.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPOINT in lieu of election Michael Craig and James Folsom to fill the offices of District Trustees for Reclamation

District No. 2059, Bradford Island, each office having a term of four years commencing December 1, 2015 and

terminating November 30, 2019. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

None 

BACKGROUND: 

The Board of Supervisors on November 19, 2015 received correspondence which is attached from Angelia Tant,

District Secretary for Reclamation District No. 2059 respectfully requesting appointment by the Supervisors to the

Board of Trustees to the District in lieu of elections. Reclamation District No. 2059 (Bradford Island) accepted

nominees for three (3) District Trustee positions, which were to be filled by District election scheduled for December

1, 2015. The nomination period close at 5:00 p.m. on October 8, 2015, in accordance with the Reclamation District

election procedures set forth in Water Code section 50731.5.

At the close of the nomination period, there were three (3) candidates nominated: 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Jami Napier, 925

335-1908

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

C. 12

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: David Twa, County Administrator

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: APPOINT in lieu of election nominees to Board of Trustees Reclamation District No. 2059



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

Michael Craig, James Folsom and Cate Kuhne. At the District’s regular meeting held November 3, 2015,

Nominee Cate Kuhne withdrew from the election, leaving two candidates to fill two available Trustee seats. As a

result, pursuant to Water Code sections 50740—50742, the District shall not hold an election, and the Board of

Supervisors is requested to appoint the remaining Nominees to fill the Trustees positions.

Reclamation District 2059 requests that the Contra Costa County Board of Supervisors appoint Michael Craig and

James Folsom to fill the offices of District Trustees, each office having a term of four (4) years to commence

December 1, 2015 and to terminate November 30, 2019. 

ATTACHMENTS

Reclamation District 2059 





RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve the appointments, reappointments, privileges, advancements, department changes, voluntary resignations

and updated OB/GYN privileges as recommend by the Medical Staff Executive Committee, at their November 16th

meeting, and by the Health Services Director. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Not applicable. 

BACKGROUND: 

The Joint Commission on Accreditation of Healthcare Organizations has requested that evidence of Board of

Supervisors approval for each Medical Staff member will be placed in his or her Credentials File. The above

recommendations for appointment/reappointment were reviewed by the Credentials Committee and approved by the

Medical Executive Committee. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

If this action is not approved, Contra Costa Regional Medical Center and the Contra Costa Health Centers' medical

staff would not be appropriately credentialed and not be in compliance with the Joint Commission on Accreditation of

Healthcare Organizations. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Anna Roth,

370-5101

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of
Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: T Scott ,   M Wilhelm,   Sana Salman   

C. 13

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Medical Staff Appointments and Reappointments – November 2015



CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not applicable.

ATTACHMENTS

OB-GYN privledges 

Attachment 



Contra Costa Regional Medical Center

Ob/Gyn Privileges Request Form

                                                                                                               Practitioner Name: _________________________________________

D CA Lic. N/A N/A

C 10

1 case in 

last 2 

yrs.

U 15

5 cases 

in 

last 2 

yrs.

D
CA Lic or DDS 

or DMD
N/A N/A

C
CA Lic or DDS 

or DMD
5 N/A

U
CA Lic or DDS 

or DMD
10

2 cases or 

orientatio

n in last 2 

yrs.

D CA Lic. N/A N/A

U CA Lic. 10

2 cases 

in last 4 

yrs.

D CA Lic. N/A N/A

U CA Lic. 3 N/A

  
 R

eq
u

es
te

d

ANE 

3

ANE  

CC 

 DEN 

DIA EME 

FAM 

GER 

HOSP 

MED 

OBG 

PED 

SGN

Moderate (Conscious) Sedation* 

Does NOT  include use of ketamine or 

propofol.           

CA Lic. and 

Airway 

Mgmt. skills 

(ANE11 or 

inservice)
  

 T
ra

in
in

g
/ 

E
d

u
ca

ti
o

n

                                                           

D= With Direct Supervision                

C= With Consultation                          

 U= Unrestricted                                                   

Obstetrics and Gynecology

  
 C

u
rr

e
n

t 
C

o
m

p
et

en
ce

  
 D

ep
a

rt
m

en
ts

 (
s)

  
 N

u
m

b
er

Privilege Descriptions                                                                                              

  
  

D
/C

/U

  
  

E
x

p
er

ie
n

ce

ANE 

DEN 

OBG 

SGN

ANE  

5
Nitrous Oxide.

OBG
MED 

12
Rigid Sigmoidoscopy.

  
 G

ra
n

te
d

D
=

 D
en

ie
d

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

P
=

 P
en

d
in

g
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

C
N

M
=

C
ri

te
ri

a
 N

o
t 

M
et

ANE CC 

EME 

HOSP IM  

PED 

OBG 

SGN

ANE 

11
Endotracheal Intubation*

* Separate proctoring required

OB/GYN REV Updated NOV 2015  Page 1 of 11



Contra Costa Regional Medical Center

Ob/Gyn Privileges Request Form

  
 R

eq
u

es
te

d

  
 T

ra
in

in
g

/ 
E

d
u

ca
ti

o
n

                                                           

D= With Direct Supervision                

C= With Consultation                          

 U= Unrestricted                                                   

Obstetrics and Gynecology

  
 C

u
rr

e
n

t 
C

o
m

p
et

en
ce

  
 D

ep
a

rt
m

en
ts

 (
s)

  
 N

u
m

b
er

Privilege Descriptions                                                                                              

  
  

D
/C

/U

  
  

E
x

p
er

ie
n

ce

  
 G

ra
n

te
d

D
=

 D
en

ie
d

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

P
=

 P
en

d
in

g
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

C
N

M
=

C
ri

te
ri

a
 N

o
t 

M
et

C CA Lic. N/A N/A

U CA Lic. 30

10 cases in 

last 4 yrs. 

or 

completion 

of Planned 

Parenthood 

Prenatal 

Privileging

C
CA Lic. & U 

OBG 1
N/A N/A

U
CA Lic. & U 

OBG 1
30

10 cases 

in last 4 

yrs.

C CA Lic. N/A N/A

U CA Lic. 30

10 cases 

in last 2 

yrs.

D

CA Lic. 

Recommend 

NRP 

certification 

30 N/A

U

FP or OB 

Recommend 

NRP 

certification 

50
8 cases in 

last 2 yrs.  

D CA Lic. N/A N/A

U CA Lic. 30

8 cases 

in last 4 

yrs.

FAM 

OBG

OBG 

5

Antepartum Fetal Heart Rate 

Monitoring.

OBG
OBG 

3

Outpatient Management of Routine 

Gynecological Problems, such as 

vaginitis, contraception, pelvic pain, 

uterine bleeding and management of 

most complex gynecological problems 

such as ectopic, adnexal mall, severe 

PID, Mole, etc. (For OB specialists 

w/o General Medicine Training).

FAM 

OBG

OBG 

4

Antepartum, Intrapartum and Postpartum 

management of Pregnancy with minor 

complications (such as mild pre-

eclampsia, prior cesarean section), 

Uncomplicated Vaginal Delivery (such as 

amniotomy, episiotomy, second degree 

laceration repair and manual removal of 

placenta), and Initial Newborn Orders

FAM 

OBG

OBG 

1

Outpatient Management of Low Risk 

Prenatal Patients.

FAM 

OBG

OBG 

2

Outpatient Management of High Risk 

Prenatal Patients.

* Separate proctoring required

OB/GYN REV Updated NOV 2015  Page 2 of 11



Contra Costa Regional Medical Center

Ob/Gyn Privileges Request Form

  
 R

eq
u

es
te

d

  
 T

ra
in

in
g

/ 
E

d
u

ca
ti

o
n

                                                           

D= With Direct Supervision                

C= With Consultation                          

 U= Unrestricted                                                   

Obstetrics and Gynecology

  
 C

u
rr

e
n

t 
C

o
m

p
et

en
ce

  
 D

ep
a

rt
m

en
ts

 (
s)

  
 N

u
m

b
er

Privilege Descriptions                                                                                              

  
  

D
/C

/U

  
  

E
x

p
er

ie
n

ce

  
 G

ra
n

te
d

D
=

 D
en

ie
d

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

P
=

 P
en

d
in

g
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

C
N

M
=

C
ri

te
ri

a
 N

o
t 

M
et

D CA Lic. N/A N/A

U CA Lic. 10

4 cases 

in last 2 

yrs.

D
FP or 

OB/GYN
N/A N/A

U
FP or 

OB/GYN
6

1 case in 

last 2 yrs. 

or 

inservice

D
FP or 

OB/GYN
N/A N/A

U
FP or 

OB/GYN
6

1 case in 

last 2 yrs. 

or 

inservice

C CA Lic. N/A N/A

U CA Lic. 10

1 case in 

last 2 

yrs.

D
FP or 

OB/GYN
N/A N/A

C
FP or 

OB/GYN
10 N/A

U
FP or 

OB/GYN
15

2 cases in 

last 2 yrs.

OBG
OBG 

7
Amniocentesis

OBG
OBG 

8
External Version

FAM 

OBG

OBG 

9
Induction or Augmentation of Labor.

FAM 

OBG

OBG 

10

Repair of 3rd Degree, 4th Degree, or 

Cervical Lacerations

FAM 

HOSP 

OBG

OBG 

6

Basic 3rd Trimester Obstetrical 

Ultrasound Including: Viability, 

Placenta Location, Fetal Number, and 

Amniotic Fluid Assessment, EFW, 

and Cervical Length

* Separate proctoring required

OB/GYN REV Updated NOV 2015  Page 3 of 11



Contra Costa Regional Medical Center

Ob/Gyn Privileges Request Form

  
 R

eq
u

es
te

d

  
 T

ra
in

in
g

/ 
E

d
u

ca
ti

o
n

                                                           

D= With Direct Supervision                

C= With Consultation                          

 U= Unrestricted                                                   

Obstetrics and Gynecology

  
 C

u
rr

e
n

t 
C

o
m

p
et

en
ce

  
 D

ep
a

rt
m

en
ts

 (
s)

  
 N

u
m

b
er

Privilege Descriptions                                                                                              

  
  

D
/C

/U

  
  

E
x

p
er

ie
n

ce

  
 G

ra
n

te
d

D
=

 D
en

ie
d

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

P
=

 P
en

d
in

g
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

C
N

M
=

C
ri

te
ri

a
 N

o
t 

M
et

D
FP or 

OB/GYN
N/A N/A

C
FP or 

OB/GYN
10 N/A

U
FP or 

OB/GYN
20

2 cases or 

ALSO 

course in 

last 2 yrs.

D
FP or 

OB/GYN
N/A N/A

C
FP or 

OB/GYN
10 N/A

U
FP or 

OB/GYN
20

2 cases or 

ALSO 

course in 

last 2 yrs.

D
FP or 

OB/GYN
15 N/A

C
FP or 

OB/GYN
30 N/A

U
FP or 

OB/GYN
50

8 cases 

in last 2 

yrs.

D
FP or 

OB/GYN
10 N/A

C
FP or 

OB/GYN
15 N/A

U
FP or 

OB/GYN
20

4 cases 

in last 2 

yrs.

OBG
OBG 

15

Postpartum Tubal Ligation, or Mini 

Laparotomy Tubal Ligation, including 

Umbilical Hernia repair when 

appropriate (without mesh)

FAM 

OBG

OBG 

11
Vacuum-Assisted Delivery*

OBG
OBG 

12
Forceps Assisted Delivery*

OBG
OBG 

14

Cesarean Section, Repair of Uterine 

Laceration*

* Separate proctoring required

OB/GYN REV Updated NOV 2015  Page 4 of 11



Contra Costa Regional Medical Center

Ob/Gyn Privileges Request Form

  
 R

eq
u

es
te

d

  
 T

ra
in

in
g

/ 
E

d
u

ca
ti

o
n

                                                           

D= With Direct Supervision                

C= With Consultation                          

 U= Unrestricted                                                   

Obstetrics and Gynecology

  
 C

u
rr

e
n

t 
C

o
m

p
et

en
ce

  
 D

ep
a

rt
m

en
ts

 (
s)

  
 N

u
m

b
er

Privilege Descriptions                                                                                              

  
  

D
/C

/U

  
  

E
x

p
er

ie
n

ce

  
 G

ra
n

te
d

D
=

 D
en

ie
d

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

P
=

 P
en

d
in

g
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

C
N

M
=

C
ri

te
ri

a
 N

o
t 

M
et

D
FP or 

OB/GYN
N/A N/A

C
FP or OB/GYN 

& "U" OBG14
5 N/A

U
FP or OB/GYN 

& "U" OBG14
10

2 cases 

in last 2 

yrs.

FAM 

HOSP  

OBG

OBG 

18
U

CA Lic. and 

Company 

Training

N/A N/A

D CA Lic. N/A N/A

U CA Lic. 5 N/A

D CA Lic. N/A N/A

U CA Lic. 5

1 case in 

last 2 

yrs.

D CA Lic. N/A N/A

CA Lic.

50 cases or 

30 cases 

with formal 

course

5 cases 

in last 2 

yrs.

OB/GYN N/A

5 cases 

in last 2 

yrs.

OBG
OBG 

17

Intrapartum Management of Multiple 

Pregnancy 

Nexplanon Insertion and Removal.

FAM 

HOSP  

OBG

OBG 

19
IUD Insertion.

OBG 

19B

Suction Endometrial Biopsy 

Hysterosalpingogram and Sono 

Hysterogram (insertion of catheter 

only)  

Colposcopy, Cervical Biopsy and 

Endocervical Curettage.

U

FAM 

HOSP 

OBG

OBG 

19A

OBG

* Separate proctoring required

OB/GYN REV Updated NOV 2015  Page 5 of 11



Contra Costa Regional Medical Center

Ob/Gyn Privileges Request Form

  
 R

eq
u

es
te

d

  
 T

ra
in

in
g

/ 
E

d
u

ca
ti

o
n

                                                           

D= With Direct Supervision                

C= With Consultation                          

 U= Unrestricted                                                   

Obstetrics and Gynecology

  
 C

u
rr

e
n

t 
C

o
m

p
et

en
ce

  
 D

ep
a

rt
m

en
ts

 (
s)

  
 N

u
m

b
er

Privilege Descriptions                                                                                              

  
  

D
/C

/U

  
  

E
x

p
er

ie
n

ce

  
 G

ra
n

te
d

D
=

 D
en

ie
d

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

P
=

 P
en

d
in

g
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

C
N

M
=

C
ri

te
ri

a
 N

o
t 

M
et

D CA Lic. N/A N/A

C CA Lic. 10 N/A

U CA Lic. 20

1 case in 

last 4 

yrs.

D
FP or 

OB/GYN
N/A N/A

C
FP or 

OB/GYN
10 N/A

U

FP or 

OB/Gyn & 

"U" OBG 22

20
4 cases in 

last 2 yrs.

D
FP or 

OB/GYN
N/A N/A

C
FP or 

OB/GYN
20 N/A

U
FP or 

OB/GYN
30

4 cases in 

last 2 yrs.

D
FP or 

OB/GYN
N/A N/A

C
FP or 

OB/GYN
20 N/A

U
FP or 

OB/GYN
30

8 cases 

in last 2 

yrs.

Laparotomy for Ectopic Pregnancy, 

Salpingoophorectomy, Abdominal 

Hysterectomy, Cesarean 

Hysterectomy, Myomectomy, 

Repair of Bladder Rent, 

Lymphadenectomy, Appendectomy, 

Incisional Hernia Repair, Umbilical 

Hernia Repair, etc.*

OBG
OBG 

22

Diagnostic D&C, incomplete or 

missed Abortion, D&C for retained 

placenta postpartum, and endometrial 

ablation

OBG
OBG 

23
Abortion First Trimester*

OBG
OBG 

24
Abortion Second Trimester*

OBG
OBG 

25

* Separate proctoring required

OB/GYN REV Updated NOV 2015  Page 6 of 11



Contra Costa Regional Medical Center

Ob/Gyn Privileges Request Form

  
 R

eq
u

es
te

d

  
 T

ra
in

in
g

/ 
E

d
u

ca
ti

o
n

                                                           

D= With Direct Supervision                

C= With Consultation                          

 U= Unrestricted                                                   

Obstetrics and Gynecology

  
 C

u
rr

e
n

t 
C

o
m

p
et

en
ce

  
 D

ep
a

rt
m

en
ts

 (
s)

  
 N

u
m

b
er

Privilege Descriptions                                                                                              

  
  

D
/C

/U

  
  

E
x

p
er

ie
n

ce

  
 G

ra
n

te
d

D
=

 D
en

ie
d

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

P
=

 P
en

d
in

g
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

C
N

M
=

C
ri

te
ri

a
 N

o
t 

M
et

D
FP or 

OB/GYN
N/A N/A

C
FP or 

OB/GYN
5 N/A

U
FP or 

OB/GYN
10

1 case in 

last 2 

yrs.

D
FP or 

OB/GYN
N/A N/A

C
FP or 

OB/GYN
5 N/A

U
FP or 

OB/GYN
10

4 cases in 

last 2 yrs.

D
FP or 

OB/GYN
N/A N/A

C
FP or 

OB/GYN
20 N/A

U

FP or OB 

/GYN &"U" 

OBG 25

30
6 cases in 

last 2 yrs.

D
FP or 

OB/GYN
N/A N/A

C
FP or 

OB/GYN
5

2 cases 

in last 2 

yrs.

U
FP or 

OB/GYN
10

2 cases 

in last 2 

yrs.

D
FP or 

OB/GYN
N/A N/A

C OBG 29A 5

2 cases 

in last 2 

yrs.

U OBG 29A 10

2 cases 

in last 2 

yrs.

OBG 

29A

OBG
OBG 

29B

• For Diagnosis or 

• Lysis of Adhesion or

• Removal of Foreign Body

Diagnostic Hysteroscopy

Operative Hysteroscopy*

• Myomectomy

• Polypectomy

• Removal of Uterine Septum

• Etc.

OBG

OBG
OBG 

26

Incision and Drainage Vaginal or 

Vulvar Abscess or Cyst, 

Hymenotomy, Colpotomy, Bartholin's 

Gland Cystectomy, Vaginal Septum 

Repair, Partial Vulvectomy, Cervical 

Cerclage and Culdocentesis, etc.

OBG
OBG 

27
Cervical Cone Biopsy and, LEEP

OBG
OBG 

28

Basic Laparoscopy (Diagnostic, 

Sterilization, Lysis of Adhesions)*

* Separate proctoring required

OB/GYN REV Updated NOV 2015  Page 7 of 11



Contra Costa Regional Medical Center

Ob/Gyn Privileges Request Form

  
 R

eq
u

es
te

d

  
 T

ra
in

in
g

/ 
E

d
u

ca
ti

o
n

                                                           

D= With Direct Supervision                

C= With Consultation                          

 U= Unrestricted                                                   

Obstetrics and Gynecology

  
 C

u
rr

e
n

t 
C

o
m

p
et

en
ce

  
 D

ep
a

rt
m

en
ts

 (
s)

  
 N

u
m

b
er

Privilege Descriptions                                                                                              

  
  

D
/C

/U

  
  

E
x

p
er

ie
n

ce

  
 G

ra
n

te
d

D
=

 D
en

ie
d

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

P
=

 P
en

d
in

g
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

C
N

M
=

C
ri

te
ri

a
 N

o
t 

M
et

D
FP or 

OB/GYN
N/A N/A

C
FP or 

OB/GYN
20 N/A

U
FP or 

OB/GYN
30

2 cases 

in last 2 

yrs.

D
FP or 

OB/GYN
N/A N/A

C

"U" Privileges 

in OB /GYN 25 

and 28

10 N/A

U

"U" Privileges 

in OB /GYN 25 

and 28

20

8 cases 

in last 2 

yrs.

D
FP or 

OB/GYN
N/A N/A

C

FP or OB/GYN 

& Laser 

Training or 

Laser Training 

During 

Residency

5 N/A

U

FP or OB/GYN 

& Laser 

Training or 

Laser Training 

During 

Residency

10
1 case in 

last 2 yrs.

C CA Lic. N/A N/A

FP or OB N/A

20 cases 

in last 2 

yrs.

CA Lic. 50

20 cases 

in last 2 

yrs.

FAM 

HOSP 

OBG

OBG 

34

Caring for and Discharging 

uncomplicated Post Partum Patients 

(for providers w/o delivery privileges). U

OBG
OBG 

33

Laser used for treatment of lower 

female genital tract

OBG
OBG 

32

Advanced Laparoscopy 

(Cystectomy, Salpingoophorectomy, 

Appendectomy, Hysterectomy)*

OBG
OBG 

30

Laproscopic Assisted Vaginal 

Hysterectomy

* Separate proctoring required

OB/GYN REV Updated NOV 2015  Page 8 of 11



Contra Costa Regional Medical Center

Ob/Gyn Privileges Request Form

  
 R

eq
u

es
te

d

  
 T

ra
in

in
g

/ 
E

d
u

ca
ti

o
n

                                                           

D= With Direct Supervision                

C= With Consultation                          

 U= Unrestricted                                                   

Obstetrics and Gynecology

  
 C

u
rr

e
n

t 
C

o
m

p
et

en
ce

  
 D

ep
a

rt
m

en
ts

 (
s)

  
 N

u
m

b
er

Privilege Descriptions                                                                                              

  
  

D
/C

/U

  
  

E
x

p
er

ie
n

ce

  
 G

ra
n

te
d

D
=

 D
en

ie
d

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

P
=

 P
en

d
in

g
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

C
N

M
=

C
ri

te
ri

a
 N

o
t 

M
et

D N/A N/A

C 10
2 cases in 

last 2 yrs.

U 20
8 cases in 

last 2 yrs.

C
FP or 

OB/GYN
N/A N/A

U
FP or 

OB/GYN
N/A

1 yr. in 

last 4 yrs. 

and 20 hrs 

of 

Primary 

Care 

CME in 

last 2 yrs.

D
FP or 

OB/GYN
N/A N/A

U
FP or 

OB/GYN
10

4 cases 

in last 2 

yrs.

D
FP or 

OB/GYN
N/A N/A

U OB/GYN

20 or female 

pelvic med. 

& 

reconstructive 

surg. or 

urogynecolog

y & pelvic 

reconstructive 

surg. 

Fellowship

6 cases 

in last 2 

yrs.

OBG
OBG 

38

Advanced Urogynecology*:

Including sacral spinous fixation, 

repeat repairs of vaginal prolapse, use 

of mesh or other grafts, abdominal 

sacrocolpoplexy, rectovaginal or 

vesiculovaginal fistulas, etc.

OBG
OBG 

36

Outpatient Care of Women over 12 

yrs. Old including Health Care 

Maintenance (For OB/GYN Staff 

without General Outpatient Privileges 

MED1 & MED2).

OBG
OBG 

37

Basic Urogynecology*:

Including transvaginal and 

transobdurator suburethral slings; 

repair of cystocele, rectocele, and 

entercele; perineoplasty; retropubic 

urethropexy; and LeForte 

colopocleisis

FAM 

HOSP 

OBG

OBG 

35

CA Lic. and 4 

hrs. training in 

residency or 

ultrasound 

course

Basic  1st and 2nd Trimester 

Ultrasound for Dating, Viability, and 

Location of Pregnancy.

* Separate proctoring required

OB/GYN REV Updated NOV 2015  Page 9 of 11



Contra Costa Regional Medical Center

Ob/Gyn Privileges Request Form

  
 R

eq
u

es
te

d

  
 T

ra
in

in
g

/ 
E

d
u

ca
ti

o
n

                                                           

D= With Direct Supervision                

C= With Consultation                          

 U= Unrestricted                                                   

Obstetrics and Gynecology

  
 C

u
rr

e
n

t 
C

o
m

p
et

en
ce

  
 D

ep
a

rt
m

en
ts

 (
s)

  
 N

u
m

b
er

Privilege Descriptions                                                                                              

  
  

D
/C

/U

  
  

E
x

p
er

ie
n

ce

  
 G

ra
n

te
d

D
=

 D
en

ie
d

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

P
=

 P
en

d
in

g
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

C
N

M
=

C
ri

te
ri

a
 N

o
t 

M
et

D FP or Surg N/A N/A

C
FP, Surg, or 

OB/GYN
5

2 cases 

in last 2 

yrs.

U
SURG or 

OB/GYN
10

6 cases 

in last 2 

yrs.

D
FP or 

OB/GYN

Essure 

Training 

Course or 

Equiv.

N/A

FP or 

OB/GYN

3 cases, 

Essure 

Training 

Course, & 

OBG 29A

1 case in 

last 2 

yrs.

FP or 

OB/GYN

Essure 

Training 

Course, & 

OBG 29B

1 cases 

in last 2 

yrs.

OBG
OBG 

43
U CA Lic. 10 N/A

FAM 

HOSP 

OBG 

SGN

SGN 

1
U CA Lic. 20 N/A

D CA Lic. N/A N/A

U CA Lic. 5

2 cases 

in last 4 

yrs.

D CA Lic. N/A N/A

U CA Lic.
5 

biopsies

2 cases 

in last 4 

yrs.

U

Bedside Testing in OB/GYN (POCT):

KOH & Saline Prep, Vaginal pH, Fern 

Test & Amniotest, Pregnancy Test & 

Urine Dipstick.

FAM 

HOSP  

IM OBG 

PATH 

SGN

SGN 

7
FNA - Fine Needle Aspiration.

Surgical Assisting. 

FAM 

HOSP 

IM OBG 

PATH 

SGN 

SGN 

26
Core Needle Biopsy.

OBG
OBG 

39
Small and Large Bowel Surgery

OBG
OBG 

40
Essure Privileges

* Separate proctoring required

OB/GYN REV Updated NOV 2015  Page 10 of 11



Contra Costa Regional Medical Center

Ob/Gyn Privileges Request Form

  
 R

eq
u

es
te

d

  
 T

ra
in

in
g

/ 
E

d
u

ca
ti

o
n

                                                           

D= With Direct Supervision                

C= With Consultation                          

 U= Unrestricted                                                   

Obstetrics and Gynecology

  
 C

u
rr

e
n

t 
C

o
m

p
et

en
ce

  
 D

ep
a

rt
m

en
ts

 (
s)

  
 N

u
m

b
er

Privilege Descriptions                                                                                              

  
  

D
/C

/U

  
  

E
x

p
er

ie
n

ce

  
 G

ra
n

te
d

D
=

 D
en

ie
d

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

P
=

 P
en

d
in

g
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

C
N

M
=

C
ri

te
ri

a
 N

o
t 

M
et

D
FP, OB or 

SURG
N/A N/A

C
FP, OB or 

SURG
10 N/A

U
FP, OB or 

SURG
10

4 cases 

in last 2 

yrs.

_________________

I certify that I have reviewed the Contra Costa Regional Medical Center Privilege Criteria, and that 

I meet the specified criteria for education/training, experience, and current competence for the 

privileges that I have indicated above.

_________________

Date

Date

OBG 

SUR

SUR 

6
Cystoscopy*

___________________________________

Signature of Requesting Practitioner 

___________________________________

Signature of Department Chairperson

* Separate proctoring required

OB/GYN REV Updated NOV 2015  Page 11 of 11



MEC Recommendations – November 2015    Definitions:  A=Active   
C=Courtesy    Aff=Affliate P/A= Provisional Active  P/C= Provisional Courtesy Page 1 
   

 
A. New Medical Staff Members 
 Sara Abdijadid, DO  Psychiatry/Psychology 
  Joachim Raese, MD  Psychiatry/Psychology 
 Selamawit Tarekegn, MD Hospitalist 
 
B. New Teleradiologist Staff Members 

James Fernandez, MD  
 

C. Application for Moonlighting Privileges 
 Christy Martinez, MD  Family Medicine 
 

D. Request for Additional Privileges 
 Brenda Reilly, MD  Emergency Medicine  

Paul Manaut, NP  Family Medicine 
Gina Medina, FNP  Family Medicine 
Brandon Vance, MD  Psychiatry/Psychology 

 
E. Request to change Primary Department 
     Original Department Requesting Department 

Lawrence Burchett, MD  Family Medicine  Obstetrics & Gynecology 
 
 

F. Advance to Non-Provisional 
Hala Abdelaziz, MD  Pathology   A 
Ashley Ballard, DO  Hospitalist   A 
Urmila Bajpai-Pillai, MD  Internal Medicine  A 
Alice Del Rosario, MD  Psychiatry/Psychology  C 
Maura Daly, LM   Obstetrics & Gynecology Aff 
Alexandra Duque-Silva, MD Pediatrics   A 
Nikki Ha, NP   Family Medicine   Aff 
Anita Heart, MD   Family Medicine   A 
Jessica Kim, MD  Hospitalist   A 
Diane Kwan, MD  Surgery    C 
Sara Richey, MD  Family Medicine   A 
Emma Swan, MD  Hospitalist   A 
Lawrence Thompson, MD Pathology   C 
Ian Wallace, MD  Family Medicine   A 
Takenori Watanabe, MD  Family Medicine   A 
Katherine Winter, MD  Hospitalist   A 
Sonya Wyrobek, RN, CNM Obstetrics & Gynecology Aff 
 

 
G. Biennial Reappointments 

Victoria Agnost, MD   Pediatrics  A 
Hugo Altamirono, MD   Anesthesia  C 
Michael Baker, MD   Surgery   A 

 Margarita Berrios, MD   Pediatrics  A 
 Jafar Bozorgmehr, MD   Psychiatry/Psychology C 



MEC Recommendations – November 2015    Definitions:  A=Active   
C=Courtesy    Aff=Affliate P/A= Provisional Active  P/C= Provisional Courtesy Page 2 
   

 Lawrence Burchett, MD   Obstetrics & Gynecology C 
 Doreen Fukushima, MD   Psychiatry/Psychology  C 
 Kimberley Haglund, MD   Hospitalist   A 
 David Hearst, MD   Family Medicine   A 
 Stephen Kalkstein, MD   Family Medicine   C 
 Ronald Leon, MD   Psychiatry/Psychology  C 
 Michael Levin, MD   Psychiatry/Psychology  A 
 David Marinoff, MD   Obstetrics & Gynecology C 
 Daniel May, MD    Psychiatry/Psychology  C 
 Thomas McCoy, MD   Emergency Med   A 
 David Pepper, MD   Family Medicine   A 
 Lisa Rodelo, MD   Obstetrics & Gynecology A 

Joan Roux, MD    Pediatrics   C 
Brian Thomas, MD   Psychiatry/Psychology  A 
Priyanka Tulshia, MD   Hospitalist   C 
Dawn Wadle, MD   Family Medicine   A 
 

H. Biennial Renew of Privileges 
Heather Cedermaz, NP   Family Medicine  
Catherine Kissinger, NP   Family Medicine 
Chere Sealey, NP   Family Medicine 
Cynthia Williams, CNM   Obstetrics & Gynecology 
 

J. Voluntary Resignations 
 Karl Adler, MD    Psychiatry/Psychology 

Dan Barrett, DO    Psychiatry/Psychology 
 Sara Chan, DDS   Dental 
 Kulmeet Dang, MD   Emergency Medicine 
 Robert Davies, MD   Internal Medicine 
 David Gurley, MD   Emergency Medicine 

Larry Kean, MD    Psychiatry/Psychology 
Benjamin Ordaz, MD   Family Medicine 
Shobha Sharma, DO   Internal Medicine 

 David Solomon, MD   Family Medicine 
  



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE Appropriations and Revenue Adjustment No. 5024 authorizing new revenue in the Sheriff's Office (0362)

in the amount of $352,682 from the California Emergency Management Agency (CalEMA), 2015 Emergency

Management Performance Grant and appropriating it to sustain and enhance all-hazards emergency management

capabilities within the County. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This action increases revenue and appropriations by $352,682. 

BACKGROUND: 

The Operational Area of Contra Costa County has received Emergency Management Performance Grant (EMPG)

funds from the California Office of Emergency Services (CalOES) for several years. The continuation of this

program is critical to maintaining the quality and quantity of emergency management programs provided within the

County. This funding will allow for enhanced coordination and communication among the disciplines within the

Operational Area to maximize protective actions, emergency preparedness, and the effective response to emergencies

and disasters. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Liz Arbuckle, (925)

335-1529

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: Liz Arbuckle,   Heike Anderson,   Tim Ewell   

C. 14

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: David O. Livingston, Sheriff-Coroner

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Appropriation Adjustment - 2015 Emergency Management Performance Grant



CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

The appropriations and revenue adjustments will not be approved to recognize new revenue.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

No impact.

ATTACHMENTS

Appropriation and Revenue Adjustment No. 5024 







RECOMMENDATION(S): 

SUPPORT the recommendation from the Legislation Committee to sponsor a bill in 2016 to ensure that both current

Contra Costa County and dependent special district non-safety employees and new non-safety employees continue to

receive the same disability retirement benefit. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

There is no additional fiscal impact to the County from sponsoring this bill, as the County's legislative advocate

receives a fixed monthly retainer. 

BACKGROUND: 

At its November 16, 2015 meeting, the Legislation Committee reviewed the Draft 2016 State Platform, which

included a County-sponsored bill proposal from staff related to disability retirement provisions for non-safety

employees. Given the more compressed schedule for the second year of a legislative session, which 2016 is, the

Legislation Committee directed staff to propose Board of Supervisors support for the sponsored bill proposal prior to

January 2016, when the Board of Supervisors would normally consider the adoption of the 2016 State Platform.

Therefore, this item is presented for Board of Supervisors consideration and support today.

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  L. DeLaney,

925-335-1097

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: County Counsel   

C. 15

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: LEGISLATION COMMITTEE

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Contra Costa County-Sponsored Bill Proposal for 2016: Disability Retirement for Non-Safety Employees



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

BACKGROUND

Over thirty years ago, Contra Costa County-specific legislation was passed to establish a more economical disability

retirement benefit for Contra Costa County’s Retirement Tier Two (1.13%@55) for non-safety employees.

(Government Code sections 31720.1, 31727.01, and 31870.3.) Tier Two was closed to new members in 2002.

(Resolution 2002/608).

In 1998, County-specific legislation was passed to establish new Contra Costa County Retirement Tier Three

(2%@55) for non-safety employees. (Government Code section 31755.) Tier Three expressly incorporated the same

disability retirement benefit applicable to Tier Two employees. ( Government Code section 31755, subsections (e)

and (h), incorporating Government Code sections 31720.1 and 31727.01, and 31870.3.)

This thirty year old, County-specific, more economical disability retirement benefit continues to apply to current

County employees in Tier Three and to new hires with reciprocity. (Government Code section 31755.)

The Public Employees Pension Reform Act (PEPRA) does not address disability retirement benefits.

Through adopted Memoranda of Understanding (MOUs), the County and its recognized employee organizations

have all agreed that the disability standard and disability retirement benefit applicable to Tier Three should also apply

to new hires who enter the County’s and dependent special districts’ PEPRA non-safety tier (1%@67.) Furthermore,

MOU provisions state that the County and its recognized employee organizations have agreed to jointly seek

County-specific legislation to clarify that the current Tier Three disability provisions apply to the PEPRA non-safety

tier. 

This bill will ensure that both current Contra Costa County and dependent special district employees and new hires

continue to receive the same disability retirement benefit, as provided in Government Code sections 31720.1,

31727.01, 31755, and 31870.3.

This bill does not apply to safety employees.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

ADOPT Position Adjustment Resolution No. 21740 to add one (1) Administrative Aide-Deep Class (AP7A)

(represented) full time position at Salary Plan and Grade B85 0972 ($2,915-$4,522) and add one (1) Community and

Media Relations Specialist (APTC) (represented) position at Salary Plan and Grade QS5 1511 ($4,969-$6,040) and

cancel one (1) Account Clerk-Experienced Level (JDVC) (represented) (position #12881) position at Salary Plan and

Grade 3RH 0755 ($3,070-$3,806) and cancel one (1) Social Worker (X0VC) (represented) (position #4940) position

at Salary Plan and Grade 255 1434 ($4,604-$5,596) in the Employment and Human Services Department,

Administrative Services Bureau.

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Upon approval of these positions, there is an increased annual personnel expense of $3,549. This position will be

funded 45% Federal revenue, 45% State revenue, and 10% County cost. The annual pension cost is approximately

$26,196.

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Holly Trieu

3-1560

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of
Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: EHSD,   Human Resources,   Human Resources,   Otilia Parra   

C. 16

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Kathy Gallagher, Employment & Human Services Director

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Add one Administrative Aide, one Community & Media Relations Specialist positions;cancel one Account Clerk Exp

and one Social Worker position in EHSD



BACKGROUND:

In May 2015 EHSD created a Community Relations unit within the Administration Bureau for purpose of

initiating an unprecedented outreach and education services on CalFresh, Medi-Cal, and Affordable Care Act for

the general public. This requires close coordination with community based organizations, advocacy groups, legal

interest groups and government service partners such as law enforcement, health, mental health, etc. 

In order to ensure appropriate communications with community services and other governmental agencies, the

Community Relations unit is tasked with maintaining outreach and access opportunities to all segments of our

county. This includes but is not limited to outreach to multi-cultural diverse, bilingual, disabled and impaired

populations.

Currently a lack of staff limits EHSD’s ability to promote Contra Costa County services through positive stories

and direct community outreach. The newly created EHSD Community Relations unit requires a skilled, team

effort, which will include (1) Community and Media Relations Specialist, and (1) Administrative Aide.

Community Relations unit is currently working with community partners on outreach programs including literacy

and CalFresh. The Community and Media Relations Specialist will assist the EHSD Division Manager with

sending news releases directly to television, radio and newspaper outlets; provide content to websites, blogs and

social media sites; as well as strengthen Contra Costa EHSD’s presence on Facebook, Twitter and Instagram;

prepare and update mandatory client videos and materials. The Administrative Aide will analyze effective website

and social media practices, assist with identifying and gathering social medical content. In addition the

Administrative Aide will outreach and recruit EHSD volunteers to sufficiently staff Education and

Outreach/Speakers’ Bureau events, and assist with department’s social media outreach efforts and assist with

social media posts.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

Without the Community Relations and Media Specialist and the Administrative Aide, the Community Relations

unit will be unable to expand the scope of community education and outreach, and collaborate with other County

Agencies and our community partners.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

No impact.

ATTACHMENTS

P-300 #21740 



POSITION ADJUSTMENT REQUEST  
 NO.  21740 

DATE  9/1/2015 
Department No./ 

Department  Employment & Human Services Budget Unit No. 0501  Org No. 5101  Agency No. A19 

Action Requested:  Cancel one Account Clerk-Experenced Level position (JDVC)(position #12881) and cancel one Social 
Worker position (XOVC) (position #4940) and add one Administrative Aide-Deep Class (AP7A) and add one Community 
Relations and Media Specialist (APTC) position. 

Proposed Effective Date:  9/22/2015 

Classification Questionnaire attached: Yes    No    /  Cost is within Department’s budget: Yes     No  

Total One-Time Costs (non-salary) associated with request:  $0.00 

Estimated total cost adjustment (salary / benefits / one time): 

Total annual cost  $3,549.00 Net County Cost  $355.00 

Total this FY  $2,661.00 N.C.C. this FY  $266.00 

SOURCE OF FUNDING TO OFFSET ADJUSTMENT  Federal 45%, State 45%, County 10% 

 
Department must initiate necessary adjustment and submit to CAO. 
Use additional sheet for further explanations or comments. 
  Holly Trieu 3-1560 
 ______________________________________ 

               (for) Department Head 
 
REVIEWED BY CAO AND RELEASED TO HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT 
 
 Kevin J. Corrigan 9/3/15 
       ___________________________________      ________________ 
                  Deputy County Administrator              Date 
 
HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATIONS      DATE  10/29/2015 
Add one Administrative Aide-Deep Class (AP7A) (represented) position at Salary Plan and Grade B85 0972 ($2915-$4522) 
and add one Community and Media Relations Specialist (APTC) (represented) position at Salary Plan and Grade QS5 1511 
($4969-$6040); and cancel one Account Clerk-Experienced Level (JDVC) (represented) (position #12881) position and cancel 
one Social Worker (X0VC) (represented) (position #4940) position  
 
Amend Resolution 71/17 establishing positions and resolutions allocating classes to the Basic / Exempt salary schedule. 

Effective:     Day following Board Action. 
       (Date) Otilia Parra       
       ___________________________________        ________________ 

         (for) Director of Human Resources   Date 
 

COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR RECOMMENDATION: DATE   11/24/2015 
  Approve Recommendation of Director of Human Resources 
  Disapprove Recommendation of Director of Human Resources Dorothy Sansoe 
  Other:  ____________________________________________ ___________________________________ 

                 (for) County Administrator 
 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS ACTION:             David J. Twa, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 
Adjustment is APPROVED      DISAPPROVED        and County Administrator 
 
DATE        BY        
 

APPROVAL OF THIS ADJUSTMENT CONSTITUTES A PERSONNEL / SALARY RESOLUTION AMENDMENT 
 

POSITION ADJUSTMENT ACTION TO BE COMPLETED BY HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT FOLLOWING BOARD ACTION 

Adjust class(es) / position(s) as follows: 
 

      
 
P300 (M347) Rev 3/15/01 



REQUEST FOR PROJECT POSITIONS 
 

Department       Date 11/24/2015    No.  xxxxxx 
 
1.   Project Positions Requested: 

      
 
2.   Explain Specific Duties of Position(s) 

      
 
3.  Name / Purpose of Project and Funding Source (do not use acronyms i.e. SB40 Project or SDSS Funds) 

      
 
4.  Duration of the Project:  Start Date       End Date        
     Is funding for a specified period of time (i.e. 2 years) or on a year-to-year basis? Please explain. 

      
 
5.  Project Annual Cost 
 

a.  Salary & Benefits Costs:         b. Support Costs:        
           (services, supplies, equipment, etc.) 

 
c.  Less revenue or expenditure:        d. Net cost to General or other fund:        
 

6.  Briefly explain the consequences of not filling the project position(s) in terms of: 
a. potential future costs   d. political implications 
b. legal implications   e. organizational implications 
c. financial implications 

      
 
7.   Briefly describe the alternative approaches to delivering the services which you have considered. Indicate why these 

alternatives were not chosen. 
      

 
8.   Departments requesting new project positions must submit an updated cost benefit analysis of each project position at the 

halfway point of the project duration. This report is to be submitted to the Human Resources Department, which will 
forward the report to the Board of Supervisors. Indicate the date that your cost / benefit analysis will be submitted 
      

 
9.  How will the project position(s) be filled? 

 a. Competitive examination(s) 
 b. Existing employment list(s) Which one(s)?       
 c. Direct appointment of: 

 1. Merit System employee who will be placed on leave from current job 
 2. Non-County employee 

 
Provide a justification if filling position(s) by C1 or C2 

 
 

USE ADDITIONAL PAPER IF NECESSARY 
 
 



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

ADOPT Position Adjustment Resolution No. 21777 to add one (1) full-time Senior Buyer (STTB) (represented)

position at salary plan and grade ZB5 1631 ($5,595 - $6,801) and cancel one (1) full-time Buyer II (STTA)

(represented) vacant position No. 14794 at salary plan and grade ZB5 1525 ($5,038 - $6,124) in the Public Works

Department. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

It is expected that in Fiscal Year 2015/16, there will be an initial cost of $7,640 as the department anticipates filling

this position in December 2015. The pension cost is estimated to be $3,000. (100% General Fund) 

BACKGROUND: 

Historically, the Purchasing Division of the Public Works Department has had five Buyer I/II positions, one Senior

Buyer, and a Purchasing Manager. In, or around 2012, due to retirements and budgetary reductions the number of

purchasing staff was reduced to three Buyers. As a result, the Purchasing Manager is currently performing duties

previously assigned to subordinate staff. However, with the new purchasing software 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Kelli Zenn, (925)

313-2108

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: cheryl koch,   Kelli Zen,   Eva Barrios,   James Hicks   

C. 17

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Julia R. Bueren, Public Works Director/Chief Engineer

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: ADD (1) Senior Buyer Position and CANCEL (1) Buyer II position in the Public Works Department.



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

system and ongoing Purchasing Manager responsibilities, the department has determined that a Senior Buyer is

needed to assist the Purchasing Manager with higher level activities. These duties will include, but will not be

limited to, providing purchasing portal support to vendors and county departments; providing purchasing portal

training to department users; procurement card administration; lease purchase finance program facilitation for

departments; approving purchase orders; and approving contracts. 

By adding a Senior Buyer position, the Public Works Department will be able to provide much better customer

service and support to customer departments. Additionally, the Purchasing Manager will have an opportunity to

focus on improving purchasing processes and programs.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this action is not approved, customer departments that utilize the Purchasing Division will continue to

experience delays in procuring necessary goods and services.

ATTACHMENTS

P300 No. 21777 



POSITION ADJUSTMENT REQUEST  
 NO.  21777 

DATE  10/20/2015 
Department No./ 

Department  Public Works Budget Unit No. 0020  Org No. 0020  Agency No. 65 

Action Requested:  Add one (1) full-time Senior Buyer (STTB) (represented) position at salary plan and grade ZB5 1631 
($5,595.91 - $6,801.86) and cancel one (1) full-time Buyer II (STTA) vacant position No.14794  

Proposed Effective Date:  11/1/2015 

Classification Questionnaire attached: Yes    No    /  Cost is within Department’s budget: Yes     No  

Total One-Time Costs (non-salary) associated with request:  $0.00 

Estimated total cost adjustment (salary / benefits / one time): 

Total annual cost  $11,460.00 Net County Cost  $11,460.00 

Total this FY  $7,640.00 N.C.C. this FY  $7,640.00 

SOURCE OF FUNDING TO OFFSET ADJUSTMENT  100% General Fund.   

 
Department must initiate necessary adjustment and submit to CAO. 
Use additional sheet for further explanations or comments. 
  Julia R. Bueren 
 ______________________________________ 

               (for) Department Head 
 
REVIEWED BY CAO AND RELEASED TO HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT 
 
 L.Driscoll 10/27/2015 
       ___________________________________      ________________ 
                  Deputy County Administrator              Date 
 
HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATIONS      DATE        
ADD one (1) full-time Senior Buyer (STTB) (represented) position at salary plan and grade ZB5 1631 ($5,595 - $6,801) and 
CANCEL one (1) full-time Buyer II (STTA) (represented) vacant position No.14794  at salary plan and grade ZB5 1525 
($5,038 - $6,124) in the Public Works Department.   
 
Amend Resolution 71/17 establishing positions and resolutions allocating classes to the Basic / Exempt salary schedule. 

Effective:     Day following Board Action. 
       (Date)             
       ___________________________________        ________________ 

         (for) Director of Human Resources   Date 
 

COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR RECOMMENDATION: DATE         
  Approve Recommendation of Director of Human Resources 
  Disapprove Recommendation of Director of Human Resources       
  Other:  ____________________________________________ ___________________________________ 

                 (for) County Administrator 
 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS ACTION:             David J. Twa, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 
Adjustment is APPROVED      DISAPPROVED        and County Administrator 
 
DATE        BY        
 

APPROVAL OF THIS ADJUSTMENT CONSTITUTES A PERSONNEL / SALARY RESOLUTION AMENDMENT 
 

POSITION ADJUSTMENT ACTION TO BE COMPLETED BY HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT FOLLOWING BOARD ACTION 

Adjust class(es) / position(s) as follows: 
 

      
 
P300 (M347) Rev 3/15/01 



REQUEST FOR PROJECT POSITIONS 
 

Department       Date 11/18/2015    No.        
 
1.   Project Positions Requested: 

      
 
2.   Explain Specific Duties of Position(s) 

      
 
3.  Name / Purpose of Project and Funding Source (do not use acronyms i.e. SB40 Project or SDSS Funds) 

      
 
4.  Duration of the Project:  Start Date       End Date        
     Is funding for a specified period of time (i.e. 2 years) or on a year-to-year basis? Please explain. 

      
 
5.  Project Annual Cost 
 

a.  Salary & Benefits Costs:         b. Support Costs:        
           (services, supplies, equipment, etc.) 

 
c.  Less revenue or expenditure:        d. Net cost to General or other fund:        
 

6.  Briefly explain the consequences of not filling the project position(s) in terms of: 
a. potential future costs   d. political implications 
b. legal implications   e. organizational implications 
c. financial implications 

      
 
7.   Briefly describe the alternative approaches to delivering the services which you have considered. Indicate why these 

alternatives were not chosen. 
      

 
8.   Departments requesting new project positions must submit an updated cost benefit analysis of each project position at the 

halfway point of the project duration. This report is to be submitted to the Human Resources Department, which will 
forward the report to the Board of Supervisors. Indicate the date that your cost / benefit analysis will be submitted 
      

 
9.  How will the project position(s) be filled? 

 a. Competitive examination(s) 
 b. Existing employment list(s) Which one(s)?       
 c. Direct appointment of: 

 1. Merit System employee who will be placed on leave from current job 
 2. Non-County employee 

 
Provide a justification if filling position(s) by C1 or C2 

 
 

USE ADDITIONAL PAPER IF NECESSARY 
 
 



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

ADOPT Position Adjustment Resolution No. 21766 to add one (1) Social Services Program Assistant (XOSA)

(represented) position at Salary Plan and Grade 255 1384 ($4,381-$5,326) and cancel one (1) Eligibility Work

Specialist (XHTB) (represented) position #4485 at Salary Plan and Grade 255 1334 ($4,170 - $5,068) in the

Employment and Human Services Department, Foster Care Division of the Children and Family Services Bureau.

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Upon approval of this position will increase annual personnel expenses by $5,067. The position is funded 45%

Federal revenue, 45% State revenue, and 10% County cost. The annual pension cost increase is $1,774.

BACKGROUND: 

The Department requests to add one Social Service Program Assistant (XOSA) position and cancel one Eligibility

Work Specialist (XHTB) position #4485 in the Foster Care Division of the Children and Family Services Bureau.

Social Service Program Assistants (SSPA) in Foster 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Anne Crisp (925)

313-1527

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: Human Resources,   EHSD,   Otilia Parra,   James Hicks   

C. 18

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Kathy Gallagher, Employment & Human Services Director

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Add one Social Service Program Assistant and cancel one EW Specialist position 



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

care determine eligibility and grant benefits for Foster Care and related benefits programs including KinGap,

Adoption Assistance and ongoing MediCal for children transitioning home. SSPAs manage caseloads with

multiple programs. ensure the child receives services in a timely manner through foster care payments issued to

the providers. In addition, the SSPAs manage the child’s MediCal needs for therapeutic and medical interventions

which affect the ability to maintain stable placements for our dependent children. These are mandated services in

order for Child Welfare to meet “reasonable efforts” findings in court hearings. From 2009-2014 the workload for

cases per SSPA increased by 24%. This was a result of an increase in children entering foster care and staying in

foster care placements past their 18th birthday due to AB12 laws. Probation cases in the last year have increased

by 51% from 79 in 2013 to 120 in 2014. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this position is not added the Department will have insufficient staff at the appropriate classification level

to process in a timely manner and maintain the services for Foster Care eligibility caseloads. 

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

These positions will provide the Department with the additional staff to provide foster children and youth with

access to needed foster care and social services. These services are critical to support (1) Children Ready for and

Succeeding in School; Children and Youth Healthy and Preparing for Productive Adulthood; and (5) communities

that are Safe and provide a High Quality of Life for Children and Families.

ATTACHMENTS

P-300 #21766 



POSITION ADJUSTMENT REQUEST  
 NO.  21766 

DATE  9/16/2015 
Department No./ 

Department  Employment and Human Services Dept Budget Unit No. 502  Org No. 5214  Agency No. A19 

Action Requested:  To add one SS Program Assistant position and cancel one Eligibility Work Specialist  position 4485 in the 
Foster Care Division of Children and Family Services Bureau  

Proposed Effective Date:  10/13/2015 

Classification Questionnaire attached: Yes    No    /  Cost is within Department’s budget: Yes     No  

Total One-Time Costs (non-salary) associated with request:  $0.00 

Estimated total cost adjustment (salary / benefits / one time): 

Total annual cost  $5,067.00 Net County Cost  $506.70 

Total this FY  $4,223.00 N.C.C. this FY  $422.00 

SOURCE OF FUNDING TO OFFSET ADJUSTMENT  45% Federal, 45% State funding, 10% County funding 

 
Department must initiate necessary adjustment and submit to CAO. 
Use additional sheet for further explanations or comments. 
  Anne Crisp 3-1527 
 ______________________________________ 

               (for) Department Head 
 
REVIEWED BY CAO AND RELEASED TO HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT 
 
 Kevin J. Corrigan 10/4/2015 
       ___________________________________      ________________ 
                  Deputy County Administrator              Date 
 
HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATIONS      DATE  11/20/2015 
Add (1) Social Services Program Assistant (XOSA) full time position at Salary Plan and Grade 255 1384 ($4381-$5,326) and 
cancel one (1) Eligibility Work Specialist (XHTB) full time position #4485 at Salary Plan and Grade 255 1334 ($4,170-$5,068) 
in Foster Care in the Children and Family Services Bureau of the Employment and Human Services Department. 
 
Amend Resolution 71/17 establishing positions and resolutions allocating classes to the Basic / Exempt salary schedule. 

Effective:     Day following Board Action. 
       (Date) Otillia Parra 11/20/2015 
       ___________________________________        ________________ 

         (for) Director of Human Resources   Date 
 

COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR RECOMMENDATION: DATE   12/1/2015 
  Approve Recommendation of Director of Human Resources 
  Disapprove Recommendation of Director of Human Resources Dorothy Sansoe 
  Other:  ____________________________________________ ___________________________________ 

                 (for) County Administrator 
 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS ACTION:             David J. Twa, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 
Adjustment is APPROVED      DISAPPROVED        and County Administrator 
 
DATE        BY        
 

APPROVAL OF THIS ADJUSTMENT CONSTITUTES A PERSONNEL / SALARY RESOLUTION AMENDMENT 
 

POSITION ADJUSTMENT ACTION TO BE COMPLETED BY HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT FOLLOWING BOARD ACTION 

Adjust class(es) / position(s) as follows: 
 

      
 
P300 (M347) Rev 3/15/01 



REQUEST FOR PROJECT POSITIONS 
 

Department       Date 12/1/2015    No.  xxxxxx 
 
1.   Project Positions Requested: 

      
 
2.   Explain Specific Duties of Position(s) 

      
 
3.  Name / Purpose of Project and Funding Source (do not use acronyms i.e. SB40 Project or SDSS Funds) 

      
 
4.  Duration of the Project:  Start Date       End Date        
     Is funding for a specified period of time (i.e. 2 years) or on a year-to-year basis? Please explain. 

      
 
5.  Project Annual Cost 
 

a.  Salary & Benefits Costs:         b. Support Costs:        
           (services, supplies, equipment, etc.) 

 
c.  Less revenue or expenditure:        d. Net cost to General or other fund:        
 

6.  Briefly explain the consequences of not filling the project position(s) in terms of: 
a. potential future costs   d. political implications 
b. legal implications   e. organizational implications 
c. financial implications 

      
 
7.   Briefly describe the alternative approaches to delivering the services which you have considered. Indicate why these 

alternatives were not chosen. 
      

 
8.   Departments requesting new project positions must submit an updated cost benefit analysis of each project position at the 

halfway point of the project duration. This report is to be submitted to the Human Resources Department, which will 
forward the report to the Board of Supervisors. Indicate the date that your cost / benefit analysis will be submitted 
      

 
9.  How will the project position(s) be filled? 

 a. Competitive examination(s) 
 b. Existing employment list(s) Which one(s)?       
 c. Direct appointment of: 

 1. Merit System employee who will be placed on leave from current job 
 2. Non-County employee 

 
Provide a justification if filling position(s) by C1 or C2 

 
 

USE ADDITIONAL PAPER IF NECESSARY 
 
 



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

ADOPT Position Adjust Resolution No. 21788 to add one (1) Victim/Witness Assistance Program Specialist (65SA)

(represented) part-time (20/40) position at salary plan and grade QV5 1191 $3,619 - $4,399) in the District Attorney's

office - Human Trafficking Unit. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

$46,554, 80% State Human Trafficking Grant, 20% In-Kind match. 

BACKGROUND: 

The District Attorney's office receives a grant that focuses on identifying and assisting victims of human trafficking.

The Human Trafficking Advocacy Program grant will fund a half time victim advocate to provide critically important

services to victims of sex trafficking and labor trafficking in Contra Costa County. Additionally, the advocate would

work collaboratively with law enforcement, community organizations and the county human trafficking coalition to

increase awareness about human trafficking and provide training and outreach to the community. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

The District Attorney will be unable to receive the grant funding from the State of California. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Cherie Mathisen, (925)

957-2234

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the
Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: Cherie Mathisen,   Cheryl Koch,   James Hicks,   Tanya Williams,   Amanda Monson   

C. 19

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Mark Peterson, District Attorney

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Add .5 Victim/Witness Assistance Program Specialist position in the Human Trafficking Unit of the District

Attorney's Office



CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

No impact.

ATTACHMENTS

P300 No. 21788 



POSITION ADJUSTMENT REQUEST  
 NO.  21788 

DATE  10/13/2015 
Department No./ 

Department  District Attorney Budget Unit No. 0242  Org No. 2855  Agency No. 42 

Action Requested:  Add one-half (.5) Victim/Witness Assistance Program Specialist (65SA) (represented) position at salary 
level QV5 1191 to the District Attorney's office Victim/Witness Unit.    

Proposed Effective Date:  12/9/2015 

Classification Questionnaire attached: Yes    No    /  Cost is within Department’s budget: Yes     No  

Total One-Time Costs (non-salary) associated with request:        

Estimated total cost adjustment (salary / benefits / one time): 

Total annual cost  $46,554.00 Net County Cost  $9,318.00 

Total this FY  $34,915.00 N.C.C. this FY  $6,982.00 

SOURCE OF FUNDING TO OFFSET ADJUSTMENT  80% State Human Trafficking Grant, 20% County In-Kind 

 
Department must initiate necessary adjustment and submit to CAO. 
Use additional sheet for further explanations or comments. 
  Mark A. Peterson 
 ______________________________________ 

               (for) Department Head 
 
REVIEWED BY CAO AND RELEASED TO HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT 
 
 /s/ Timothy M. Ewell 11/20/2015 
       ___________________________________      ________________ 
                  Deputy County Administrator              Date 
 
HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATIONS      DATE  11/23/2015 
Add one (1) Victim/Witness Assistance Program Specialist (65SA) (represented) part-time (20/40) position at salary plan and 
grade QV5 1191 ($3,619 - $4,399) 
 
Amend Resolution 71/17 establishing positions and resolutions allocating classes to the Basic / Exempt salary schedule. 

Effective:     Day following Board Action. 
       (Date) /s/ Lisa Lopez 11/23/2015 
       ___________________________________        ________________ 

         (for) Director of Human Resources   Date 
 

COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR RECOMMENDATION: DATE   12/1/2015 
  Approve Recommendation of Director of Human Resources 
  Disapprove Recommendation of Director of Human Resources /s/ Timothy M. Ewell 
  Other:  ____________________________________________ ___________________________________ 

                 (for) County Administrator 
 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS ACTION:             David J. Twa, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 
Adjustment is APPROVED      DISAPPROVED        and County Administrator 
 
DATE        BY        
 

APPROVAL OF THIS ADJUSTMENT CONSTITUTES A PERSONNEL / SALARY RESOLUTION AMENDMENT 
 

POSITION ADJUSTMENT ACTION TO BE COMPLETED BY HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT FOLLOWING BOARD ACTION 

Adjust class(es) / position(s) as follows: 
 

      
 
P300 (M347) Rev 3/15/01 



REQUEST FOR PROJECT POSITIONS 
 

Department       Date 12/1/2015    No.  xxxxxx 
 
1.   Project Positions Requested: 

      
 
2.   Explain Specific Duties of Position(s) 

      
 
3.  Name / Purpose of Project and Funding Source (do not use acronyms i.e. SB40 Project or SDSS Funds) 

      
 
4.  Duration of the Project:  Start Date       End Date        
     Is funding for a specified period of time (i.e. 2 years) or on a year-to-year basis? Please explain. 

      
 
5.  Project Annual Cost 
 

a.  Salary & Benefits Costs:         b. Support Costs:        
           (services, supplies, equipment, etc.) 

 
c.  Less revenue or expenditure:        d. Net cost to General or other fund:        
 

6.  Briefly explain the consequences of not filling the project position(s) in terms of: 
a. potential future costs   d. political implications 
b. legal implications   e. organizational implications 
c. financial implications 

      
 
7.   Briefly describe the alternative approaches to delivering the services which you have considered. Indicate why these 

alternatives were not chosen. 
      

 
8.   Departments requesting new project positions must submit an updated cost benefit analysis of each project position at the 

halfway point of the project duration. This report is to be submitted to the Human Resources Department, which will 
forward the report to the Board of Supervisors. Indicate the date that your cost / benefit analysis will be submitted 
      

 
9.  How will the project position(s) be filled? 

 a. Competitive examination(s) 
 b. Existing employment list(s) Which one(s)?       
 c. Direct appointment of: 

 1. Merit System employee who will be placed on leave from current job 
 2. Non-County employee 

 
Provide a justification if filling position(s) by C1 or C2 

 
 

USE ADDITIONAL PAPER IF NECESSARY 
 
 



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

ADOPT Position Adjustment Resolution No. 21779 to retitle the classification of Departmental Personal Computer

Coordinator (XQSJ) (represented) at salary plan and grade ZB5 1694 ($5,956-$7,239) to Information Systems

Supervisor (LBHB) (represented); reallocate the class of Information Systems Supervisor (LBHB) on the Salary

Schedule at salary plan and grade ZA5 1744) ($6,258-$7,607); and reclassify two (2) positions, numbers 4763 and

11265, in the Employment and Human Services Department, Information Technology Division. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Upon approval, the annual personnel cost will increase by $14,485. This position will be funded 45% Federal

revenue, 45% State revenue, and 10% County cost. The additional annual pension cost is $5,070. 

BACKGROUND: 

The Information Technology Division has a unit that provides end user support for the Employment & Human

Services Department.The unit’s span of control includes end user hardware such as personal computers, printers, 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Holly Trieu (925)

313-1560

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: Teresa Mena,   James Hicks,   Cheryl Koch,   Marta Goc,   Otilia Parra   

C. 20

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Kathy Gallagher, Employment & Human Services Director

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Retitle and reallocate Departmental PC Coordinator to Information Systems Supervisor in EHSD.



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

scanners, smart phones, iPads, and laptops. It also includes software on the desktops, servers, and mobile devices.

The two Departmental Personal Computer Coordinator positions supervise a team of fifteen full time technicians

and two clerical staff in scheduling work, managing projects, monitoring service trends, and thereby playing a key

role in ensuring EHSD’s Information Technology Infrastructure is operating properly.They serve as the liaison

between EHSD and the county’s Department of Information Technology (DoIT) on network issues and manage

inventory.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If the position is not retitled and the salary is not reallocated then the position will not be appropriated classified

and compensated.

ATTACHMENTS

P-300 #21779 



POSITION ADJUSTMENT REQUEST  
 NO.  21779 

DATE  10/13/2015 
Department No./ 

Department  Employment and Human Services      Budget Unit No. 0501  Org No. 5123  Agency No. A19 

Action Requested:  Retitle and reallocate Departmental PC Coordinator to Information Systems Supervisor in EHSD.      

Proposed Effective Date:  12/9/2015 

Classification Questionnaire attached: Yes    No    /  Cost is within Department’s budget: Yes     No  

Total One-Time Costs (non-salary) associated with request:  $0.00 

Estimated total cost adjustment (salary / benefits / one time): 

Total annual cost  $14,485.00 Net County Cost  $1,449.00 

Total this FY  $8,184.00 N.C.C. this FY  $815.00 

SOURCE OF FUNDING TO OFFSET ADJUSTMENT  45% Federal, 45% State, 10% County Revenue 

 
Department must initiate necessary adjustment and submit to CAO. 
Use additional sheet for further explanations or comments. 
  Holly Trieu 3-1560 
 ______________________________________ 

               (for) Department Head 
 
REVIEWED BY CAO AND RELEASED TO HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT 
 
 Kevin J. Corrigan 11/3/2015 
       ___________________________________      ________________ 
                  Deputy County Administrator              Date 
 
HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATIONS      DATE  11/24/2015 
Retitle classification of the Departmental Personal Computer Coordinator (XQSJ) (represented) at salary level ZB5 1694 
($5,956-$7,239) to Information Systems Supervisor (LBHB) (represented); re-allocate the Information Systems Supervisor 
(LBHB) on the salary schedule at salary plan and grade ZA5 1744 ($6,258-$7,607) and reclassify two (2) positions numbers 
4763 and 11265  
  
 
Amend Resolution 71/17 establishing positions and resolutions allocating classes to the Basic / Exempt salary schedule. 

Effective:     Day following Board Action. 
  12/9/2015(Date) Marta Goc 11/24/2015 
       ___________________________________        ________________ 

         (for) Director of Human Resources   Date 
 

COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR RECOMMENDATION: DATE   12/1/2015 
  Approve Recommendation of Director of Human Resources 
  Disapprove Recommendation of Director of Human Resources Dorothy Sansoe 
  Other:  ____________________________________________ ___________________________________ 

                 (for) County Administrator 
 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS ACTION:             David J. Twa, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 
Adjustment is APPROVED      DISAPPROVED        and County Administrator 
 
DATE        BY        
 

APPROVAL OF THIS ADJUSTMENT CONSTITUTES A PERSONNEL / SALARY RESOLUTION AMENDMENT 
 

POSITION ADJUSTMENT ACTION TO BE COMPLETED BY HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT FOLLOWING BOARD ACTION 

Adjust class(es) / position(s) as follows: 
 

      
 
P300 (M347) Rev 3/15/01 



REQUEST FOR PROJECT POSITIONS 
 

Department       Date 12/1/2015    No.  xxxxxx 
 
1.   Project Positions Requested: 

      
 
2.   Explain Specific Duties of Position(s) 

      
 
3.  Name / Purpose of Project and Funding Source (do not use acronyms i.e. SB40 Project or SDSS Funds) 

      
 
4.  Duration of the Project:  Start Date       End Date        
     Is funding for a specified period of time (i.e. 2 years) or on a year-to-year basis? Please explain. 

      
 
5.  Project Annual Cost 
 

a.  Salary & Benefits Costs:         b. Support Costs:        
           (services, supplies, equipment, etc.) 

 
c.  Less revenue or expenditure:        d. Net cost to General or other fund:        
 

6.  Briefly explain the consequences of not filling the project position(s) in terms of: 
a. potential future costs   d. political implications 
b. legal implications   e. organizational implications 
c. financial implications 

      
 
7.   Briefly describe the alternative approaches to delivering the services which you have considered. Indicate why these 

alternatives were not chosen. 
      

 
8.   Departments requesting new project positions must submit an updated cost benefit analysis of each project position at the 

halfway point of the project duration. This report is to be submitted to the Human Resources Department, which will 
forward the report to the Board of Supervisors. Indicate the date that your cost / benefit analysis will be submitted 
      

 
9.  How will the project position(s) be filled? 

 a. Competitive examination(s) 
 b. Existing employment list(s) Which one(s)?       
 c. Direct appointment of: 

 1. Merit System employee who will be placed on leave from current job 
 2. Non-County employee 

 
Provide a justification if filling position(s) by C1 or C2 

 
 

USE ADDITIONAL PAPER IF NECESSARY 
 
 



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

ADOPT Position Adjustment Resolution No. 21778 to add one (1) Independent Living Skills Program (ILSP)

Specialist (X7TA) (represented) position at Salary Plan and Grade 255 1384 ($4,381--$5,326) in the Employment

and Human Services Department, Children and Family Services Bureau.

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Upon approval of this position has an annual cost of $95,076. This position will be funded 100% State revenue. The

annual pension costs is approximately $33,277. 

BACKGROUND: 

The Independent Living Skills Program (ILSP) Specialist performs a variety of duties under the direct supervision of

the ILSP Program Coordinator and Assistant Coordinator. They are responsible for engaging with foster and

emancipated youth to provide services and skill development to improve their employability, education and housing

outcomes upon exiting the foster care system, all of which are mandated services for Child Welfare to provide. These

services are necessary 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Anne Crisp (925)

313-1527

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: EHSD,   Human Resources,   Otilia Parra,   James Hicks   

C. 21

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Kathy Gallagher, Employment & Human Services Director

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Add one Independent Living Skills Program Specialist in Children and Family Services Bureau



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

to ensure the agency meets our legal obligation to assist these young adults with their transition out of the foster

care system.

Children and Family Services ILSP has been providing services to eligible youth between the ages of 16 to 21

since the passage of the John Chafee Independence Act of 1999 and more specifically Assembly Bill 12, signed

into law September 30, 2010 and implemented January 1, 2012 (Fostering Connections to Success Act) which

extended the time of foster youth dependency from age 18 to age 21. Additionally, probation cases are opting to

remain under the jurisdiction of the juvenile courts and participate under AB 12, increasing the population to be

served. Along with the increase in numbers of youths staying in foster care, the types of services and decrease in

resources have required more time in working with young adults toward self-sufficiency. Also under AB 1712

effective 01/01/2014 the definition of a relative was expanded to include Non-relative extended family members.

Since Kin-GAP payments are now federally reimbursable, Kin-GAP youth are automatically eligible for ILSP

services at the age of 16. This legislation increases the numbers of youth that will be eligible for ILSP services.

Currently there are four ILSP Specialists however as a result of the legislation described above there has been a

steady increase in clients to be served. It is expected the client caseload growth will continue to increase given the

added categories of eligibility and increased monitoring of outcomes as a result of legislation. This means that

some youth will need to wait longer to receive the one-to-one services to work on their stated goals. In order to

better serve the ILSP client population the Department requests one (1) full-time Independent Living Skills

Program (ILSP) Specialist. The additional position will allow the ILSP program to serve more eligible young

adults on a timely basis and to reach out and engage additional eligible youth with services toward

self-sufficiency. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this position is not added the ILSP program will have insufficient staff to effectively provide timely direct

services and on-going management of the ILSP cases. As a result young adults must wait longer to receive

services to achieve self-sufficiency. 

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

The services provided by the ILSP Specialist are essential to the young adult’s ability to receive services in a

timely manner to improve required transition outcomes. These older youths require a more sophisticated working

relationship as this is the last phase of their dependency before being expected to survive on their own. The

outcomes supported are: (1) Children and Youth Healthy and Preparing for Productive Adulthood; (2) Families

that are Economically Self Sufficient; (3) Families that are Safe, Stable and Nurturing; and (4) Communities that

are Safe and Provide a High Quality of Life for Children and Families.

ATTACHMENTS

P-300 #21778 



POSITION ADJUSTMENT REQUEST  
 NO.  21778 

DATE  10/14/2015 
Department No./ 

Department  Employment and Human Services Budget Unit No. 502  Org No. 5210  Agency No. A19 

Action Requested:  Add one (1) FTE Independent Living Skills Program Specialist (X7TA) for ILSP in the Children and Family 
Services Bureau AR35489 

Proposed Effective Date:  12/9/2015 

Classification Questionnaire attached: Yes    No    /  Cost is within Department’s budget: Yes     No  

Total One-Time Costs (non-salary) associated with request:  $0.00 

Estimated total cost adjustment (salary / benefits / one time): 

Total annual cost  $95,076.00 Net County Cost  $0.00 

Total this FY  $63,384.00 N.C.C. this FY  $0.00 

SOURCE OF FUNDING TO OFFSET ADJUSTMENT  State funding 

 
Department must initiate necessary adjustment and submit to CAO. 
Use additional sheet for further explanations or comments. 
  Anne Crisp 3-1527 
 ______________________________________ 

               (for) Department Head 
 
REVIEWED BY CAO AND RELEASED TO HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT 
 
 Kevin J. Corrigan 11/3/2015 
       ___________________________________      ________________ 
                  Deputy County Administrator              Date 
 
HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATIONS      DATE  11/20/2015 
ADOPT Position Adjustment Resolution No. 21778 to add one (1) FTE Independent Living Skills Program (ILSP) Specialist 
(X7TA) (represented) position at Salary Plan and Grade 255 1384 ($4,381--$5,326) in the Children and Families Services 
Bureau of the Employment and Human Services Department. 
  
 
Amend Resolution 71/17 establishing positions and resolutions allocating classes to the Basic / Exempt salary schedule. 

Effective:     Day following Board Action. 
       (Date) Otilia Parra 11/20/2015 
       ___________________________________        ________________ 

         (for) Director of Human Resources   Date 
 

COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR RECOMMENDATION: DATE   12/1/2015 
  Approve Recommendation of Director of Human Resources 
  Disapprove Recommendation of Director of Human Resources Dorothy Sansoe 
  Other:  ____________________________________________ ___________________________________ 

                 (for) County Administrator 
 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS ACTION:             David J. Twa, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 
Adjustment is APPROVED      DISAPPROVED        and County Administrator 
 
DATE        BY        
 

APPROVAL OF THIS ADJUSTMENT CONSTITUTES A PERSONNEL / SALARY RESOLUTION AMENDMENT 
 

POSITION ADJUSTMENT ACTION TO BE COMPLETED BY HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT FOLLOWING BOARD ACTION 

Adjust class(es) / position(s) as follows: 
 

      
 
P300 (M347) Rev 3/15/01 



REQUEST FOR PROJECT POSITIONS 
 

Department       Date 12/1/2015    No.  xxxxxx 
 
1.   Project Positions Requested: 

      
 
2.   Explain Specific Duties of Position(s) 

      
 
3.  Name / Purpose of Project and Funding Source (do not use acronyms i.e. SB40 Project or SDSS Funds) 

      
 
4.  Duration of the Project:  Start Date       End Date        
     Is funding for a specified period of time (i.e. 2 years) or on a year-to-year basis? Please explain. 

      
 
5.  Project Annual Cost 
 

a.  Salary & Benefits Costs:         b. Support Costs:        
           (services, supplies, equipment, etc.) 

 
c.  Less revenue or expenditure:        d. Net cost to General or other fund:        
 

6.  Briefly explain the consequences of not filling the project position(s) in terms of: 
a. potential future costs   d. political implications 
b. legal implications   e. organizational implications 
c. financial implications 

      
 
7.   Briefly describe the alternative approaches to delivering the services which you have considered. Indicate why these 

alternatives were not chosen. 
      

 
8.   Departments requesting new project positions must submit an updated cost benefit analysis of each project position at the 

halfway point of the project duration. This report is to be submitted to the Human Resources Department, which will 
forward the report to the Board of Supervisors. Indicate the date that your cost / benefit analysis will be submitted 
      

 
9.  How will the project position(s) be filled? 

 a. Competitive examination(s) 
 b. Existing employment list(s) Which one(s)?       
 c. Direct appointment of: 

 1. Merit System employee who will be placed on leave from current job 
 2. Non-County employee 

 
Provide a justification if filling position(s) by C1 or C2 

 
 

USE ADDITIONAL PAPER IF NECESSARY 
 
 



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

ADOPT Position Adjustment Resolution No. 21782 to add one (1) Medical Records Coder (VNTA) position

($3,984-$4,843) in the Contra Costa Health Plan division of the Health Services Department. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

The additional costs associated with this action are approximately $98,568 annually with benefits, including $20,632

in pension costs. Costs will be funded by CCHP Enterprise Fund II (100%). 

BACKGROUND: 

Due to the implementation and new daily claims auditing responsibilities of the HMS Fraud, Waste and Abuse

program (FWA), CCHP's Claims unit is in need of a permanent full-time Medical Records Coder position. HMS will

be providing coding requirements and billing recommendations that will involve extensive research and manual

intervention by a claims staff person who has expertise in these areas. In addition to the FWA program, the 10th

revision of the International Statistical Classification of Diseases and Related Health Problems (ICD-10) became

effective on claims 10/1/2015 and the change effects the claims unit due to provider education and claims being billed

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Kristen Cunningham,

(925) 957-5267

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the
Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

C. 22

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Add one Medical Records Coder position in the Health Services Department



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

incorrectly. Having a permanent staff person certified in coding (including ICD-10) will be useful to not only the

claims staff, but also Provider Relations, Analysis and Reporting and Quality Management staff in the future on

any ICD-10 projects or issues that arise from the change.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this action is not approved and without additional staff, Contra Costa Health Plan will not have adequate

staffing to meet the mandated requirements of the Plan.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not applicable.

ATTACHMENTS

P300 No. 21782 HSD 



POSITION ADJUSTMENT REQUEST  
 NO.  21782 

DATE  11/5/2015 
Department No./ 

Department  HEALTH SERVICES-CCHP Budget Unit No. 0860  Org No. 6116  Agency No. A18 

Action Requested:  Add one Medical Records Coder (VNTA) position in the Contra Costa Health Plan division of the Health 
Services Department.  

Proposed Effective Date:  12/9/2015 

Classification Questionnaire attached: Yes    No    /  Cost is within Department’s budget: Yes     No  

Total One-Time Costs (non-salary) associated with request:  $0.00 

Estimated total cost adjustment (salary / benefits / one time): 

Total annual cost  $98,568.40 Net County Cost  $0.00 

Total this FY  $57,498.23 N.C.C. this FY  $0.00 

SOURCE OF FUNDING TO OFFSET ADJUSTMENT  100% funded by CCHP Enterprise Fund II 

 
Department must initiate necessary adjustment and submit to CAO. 
Use additional sheet for further explanations or comments. 
  Kristen Cunningham 
 ______________________________________ 

               (for) Department Head 
 
REVIEWED BY CAO AND RELEASED TO HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT 
 
 Enid Mendoza 11/6/2015 
       ___________________________________      ________________ 
                  Deputy County Administrator              Date 
 
HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATIONS      DATE        
Exempt from Human Resources review under a delegated authority. 
 
Amend Resolution 71/17 establishing positions and resolutions allocating classes to the Basic / Exempt salary schedule. 

Effective:     Day following Board Action. 
       (Date)             
       ___________________________________        ________________ 

         (for) Director of Human Resources   Date 
 

COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR RECOMMENDATION: DATE   11/6/2015 
  Approve Recommendation of Director of Human Resources 
  Disapprove Recommendation of Director of Human Resources Enid Mendoza 
  Other:  Approve as recommended by the department. ___________________________________ 

                 (for) County Administrator 
 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS ACTION:             David J. Twa, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 
Adjustment is APPROVED      DISAPPROVED        and County Administrator 
 
DATE        BY        
 

APPROVAL OF THIS ADJUSTMENT CONSTITUTES A PERSONNEL / SALARY RESOLUTION AMENDMENT 
 

POSITION ADJUSTMENT ACTION TO BE COMPLETED BY HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT FOLLOWING BOARD ACTION 

Adjust class(es) / position(s) as follows: 
 

      
 
P300 (M347) Rev 3/15/01 



REQUEST FOR PROJECT POSITIONS 
 

Department       Date 11/8/2015    No.        
 
1.   Project Positions Requested: 

      
 
2.   Explain Specific Duties of Position(s) 

      
 
3.  Name / Purpose of Project and Funding Source (do not use acronyms i.e. SB40 Project or SDSS Funds) 

      
 
4.  Duration of the Project:  Start Date       End Date        
     Is funding for a specified period of time (i.e. 2 years) or on a year-to-year basis? Please explain. 

      
 
5.  Project Annual Cost 
 

a.  Salary & Benefits Costs:         b. Support Costs:        
           (services, supplies, equipment, etc.) 

 
c.  Less revenue or expenditure:        d. Net cost to General or other fund:        
 

6.  Briefly explain the consequences of not filling the project position(s) in terms of: 
a. potential future costs   d. political implications 
b. legal implications   e. organizational implications 
c. financial implications 

      
 
7.   Briefly describe the alternative approaches to delivering the services which you have considered. Indicate why these 

alternatives were not chosen. 
   

 
8.   Departments requesting new project positions must submit an updated cost benefit analysis of each project position at the 

halfway point of the project duration. This report is to be submitted to the Human Resources Department, which will 
forward the report to the Board of Supervisors. Indicate the date that your cost / benefit analysis will be submitted 
      

 
9.  How will the project position(s) be filled? 

 a. Competitive examination(s) 
 b. Existing employment list(s) Which one(s)?       
 c. Direct appointment of: 

 1. Merit System employee who will be placed on leave from current job 
 2. Non-County employee 

 
Provide a justification if filling position(s) by C1 or C2 

 
 

USE ADDITIONAL PAPER IF NECESSARY 
 
 



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

ADOPT Position Adjustment Resolution No. 21783 to add one (1) Veterans Service Representative (96WA)

(represented) position at salary grade and level ZB5 1335 ($4,174 - $5,073) in the Veterans Service Department. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Upon approval, this action will result in annual costs of approximately $94,316, which includes approximately

$19,605 in pension costs. This position will be 100% offset by State Aid Veterans Affairs. 

BACKGROUND: 

On June 24, 2015, the Governor signed the 2015-16 budget which made $5.6 million local assistance funding level

for California Veterans Service (CalVet) Offices permanent. Additionally, the CalVet Strike Teams at the Veteran

Affairs Regional Offices were also funded at the $3 million level in the State budget and the appropriation has been

made ongoing at that level as well. The additional allocation for Contra Costa County will be over $95,000 annually. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Nathan Johnson, Veterans Service

Officer (925) 313-1481

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the
minutes of the Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: Nathan Johnson,   Fina Prak,   Susan Ferguson,   Cheryl Koch,   James Hicks   

C. 23

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: David Twa, County Administrator

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Add one Veterans Service Represented Position in the Veterans Service Office



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

> 

The Contra Costa County Veterans Services Department (VSD) has historically used these funds, which were

previously issued as one-time funding opportunities, for temporary staffing support to ensure the office's level of

service match the veteran community benefits service needs. Since the funding levels were approved permanently,

the Veterans Service Department will be eligible to receive this ongoing funding and therefore requests to add this

Veterans Service Representative (VSR) position.

This additional position will allow the department to continue and expand their outreach efforts and the delivery

of service to the increasing number of Veterans and the increasing complexity and need for services. The

department has seen a steady increase in Veterans needing assistance. On average, 50 Veterans are seen per day in

the Martinez office. With the passing of the bill that allows Veterans to have “Veteran” listed on their driver

license, the daily office visits have increased significantly. Most of the Veterans coming in for the driver license

application have not be into the VSD office so in addition to receiving the DMV letter we are able to provide new

visitors to our office with a benefit overview.

Additionally, receiving approval for a new VSR position will allow the department to add an additional day at the

Brentwood outstation. This Brentwood outstation is staffed one day a week and by appointment only. The current

wait period for an appointment is 3 weeks. Adding an additional day of service will allow the department to

increase services in the outlying area. This additional position will also allow us to staff our San Pablo office on a

consistent basis and attend more “Outreach” events.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this request is not approved, the department will not meet their permanent staffing needs.

ATTACHMENTS

AIR 21783 - add one VSR position 



POSITION ADJUSTMENT REQUEST  
 NO.  21783 

DATE  11/18/2015 
Department No./ 

Department  Veterans Services Budget Unit No. 0579  Org No. 0579  Agency No. 010 

Action Requested:  Add one (1) Veterans Service Representative (96WA) (represented) position at salary plan and grade ZB5  
1335 in the Veterans Service Department. 

Proposed Effective Date:  12/01/2015 

Classification Questionnaire attached: Yes    No    /  Cost is within Department’s budget: Yes     No  

Total One-Time Costs (non-salary) associated with request:  0 

Estimated total cost adjustment (salary / benefits / one time): 

Total annual cost  $94,316.95 Net County Cost  $0.00 

Total this FY  $55,018.22 N.C.C. this FY  $0.00 

SOURCE OF FUNDING TO OFFSET ADJUSTMENT  100% State Aid Veterans Affairs 

 
Department must initiate necessary adjustment and submit to CAO. 
Use additional sheet for further explanations or comments. 
  Susan H. Ferguson 
 ______________________________________ 

               (for) Department Head 
 
REVIEWED BY CAO AND RELEASED TO HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT 
 
 Enid Mendoza 11/19/2015 
       ___________________________________      ________________ 
                  Deputy County Administrator              Date 
 
HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATIONS      DATE  11/23/2015 
Add one (1) Veterans Service Representative (96WA) (represented) position at salary plan and grade ZB5  1335 ($4,174 - 
$5,073) in the Veterans Service Department. 
 
Amend Resolution 71/17 establishing positions and resolutions allocating classes to the Basic / Exempt salary schedule. 

Effective:     Day following Board Action. 
  12/1/2015(Date) Fina Prak 11/23/2015 
       ___________________________________        ________________ 

         (for) Director of Human Resources   Date 
 

COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR RECOMMENDATION: DATE         
  Approve Recommendation of Director of Human Resources 
  Disapprove Recommendation of Director of Human Resources       
  Other:  ____________________________________________ ___________________________________ 

                 (for) County Administrator 
 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS ACTION:             David J. Twa, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 
Adjustment is APPROVED      DISAPPROVED        and County Administrator 
 
DATE        BY        
 

APPROVAL OF THIS ADJUSTMENT CONSTITUTES A PERSONNEL / SALARY RESOLUTION AMENDMENT 
 

POSITION ADJUSTMENT ACTION TO BE COMPLETED BY HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT FOLLOWING BOARD ACTION 

Adjust class(es) / position(s) as follows: 
 

      
 
P300 (M347) Rev 3/15/01 



REQUEST FOR PROJECT POSITIONS 
 

Department       Date 11/23/2015    No.  xxxxxx 
 
1.   Project Positions Requested: 

      
 
2.   Explain Specific Duties of Position(s) 

      
 
3.  Name / Purpose of Project and Funding Source (do not use acronyms i.e. SB40 Project or SDSS Funds) 

      
 
4.  Duration of the Project:  Start Date       End Date        
     Is funding for a specified period of time (i.e. 2 years) or on a year-to-year basis? Please explain. 

      
 
5.  Project Annual Cost 
 

a.  Salary & Benefits Costs:         b. Support Costs:        
           (services, supplies, equipment, etc.) 

 
c.  Less revenue or expenditure:        d. Net cost to General or other fund:        
 

6.  Briefly explain the consequences of not filling the project position(s) in terms of: 
a. potential future costs   d. political implications 
b. legal implications   e. organizational implications 
c. financial implications 

      
 
7.   Briefly describe the alternative approaches to delivering the services which you have considered. Indicate why these 

alternatives were not chosen. 
      

 
8.   Departments requesting new project positions must submit an updated cost benefit analysis of each project position at the 

halfway point of the project duration. This report is to be submitted to the Human Resources Department, which will 
forward the report to the Board of Supervisors. Indicate the date that your cost / benefit analysis will be submitted 
      

 
9.  How will the project position(s) be filled? 

 a. Competitive examination(s) 
 b. Existing employment list(s) Which one(s)?       
 c. Direct appointment of: 

 1. Merit System employee who will be placed on leave from current job 
 2. Non-County employee 

 
Provide a justification if filling position(s) by C1 or C2 

 
 

USE ADDITIONAL PAPER IF NECESSARY 
 
 



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

ADOPT Position Adjustment Resolution No. 21787 to add three (3) Legal Assistant (2Y7B) (represented) positions

at salary plan and grade ZB5 1337 ($4,182 - $5,083) to support prosecution of Real Estate, Consumer, Environmental

and Insurance Fraud in the District Attorney's Office - Special Operations.

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Upon approval, this action will result in an annual cost of approximately $292,000, of which approximately $65,167

will be attributable to employer pension costs. One position will be funded by the Real Estate Fraud special fund; one

position will be funded jointly by the Consumer Protection and Environmental prosecution special funds; and one

position will funded by the Insurance Fraud grants received from the Department of Insurance.

BACKGROUND: 

These units have been utilizing the services of paralegals on a temporary basis for some time. The District Attorney's

office is seeking to add full time Legal Assistant positions in order to maintain consistent and reliable staffing in these

units.

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Cherie Mathisen, (925)

957-2234

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the
Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: Cherie Mathisen,   Cheryl Koch,   James Hicks,   Tanya Williams,   Amanda Monson   

C. 24

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Mark Peterson, District Attorney

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Add Three (3) Legal Assistant Positions in the District Attorney's Office



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

Real Estate Fraud: The paralegal in this unit coordinates case intake, assists in investigations and case preparation,

and has primary responsibility for two programs which seek to prevent real estate fraud in Contra Costa County.

These programs include: 1) District Attorney Foreclosure Advisory Letter Notification, and 2) Real Estate Fraud

Notification Program.

Consumer and Environmental:

Environmental Protection: The paralegal processes documents and manages and reviews documents generated by

the litigation process. The paralegal also drafts summaries and memorandum and assists in fact-gathering for

cases. In addition, the paralegal conducts legal research regarding environmental laws, procedures, and case

histories.

Consumer Protection: The paralegal screens, reviews and responds to consumer complaints from the general

public, assists with the preparation of legal documents, including but not limited to, complaints, preliminary

injunctions and stipulated judgments.

Insurance Fraud Unit:

This position is responsible for case intake and evaluation, coordination of investigation, maintaining statistics

required for reporting to the state to maintain and increase the size of our grants, writing grant applications,

processing evidence seized from search warrants, coordinating discovery, coordinating witnesses, and assisting

with trial and grand jury preparation.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

The department will not have appropriate and full time positions to maintain consistent and reliable staffing in

these three units; these three positions are funded by grants and special funds.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

No impact.

ATTACHMENTS

P300 No. 21787 



POSITION ADJUSTMENT REQUEST  
 NO.  21787 

DATE  12/8/2015 
Department No./ 

Department  District Attorney Budget Unit No. 0242  Org No. 2850  Agency No. 42 

Action Requested:  Add three (3) Legal Assistant (2Y7B) (represented) positions at salary level ZB5 1337 to the District 
Attorney's office Special Operations Unit.    

Proposed Effective Date:  12/9/2015 

Classification Questionnaire attached: Yes    No    /  Cost is within Department’s budget: Yes     No  

Total One-Time Costs (non-salary) associated with request:        

Estimated total cost adjustment (salary / benefits / one time): 

Total annual cost  $292,000.00 Net County Cost  $0.00 

Total this FY  $73,000.00 N.C.C. this FY  $0.00 

SOURCE OF FUNDING TO OFFSET ADJUSTMENT  100% Special Funds and  Grant Funds 

 
Department must initiate necessary adjustment and submit to CAO. 
Use additional sheet for further explanations or comments. 
  Mark A. Peterson 
 ______________________________________ 

               (for) Department Head 
 
REVIEWED BY CAO AND RELEASED TO HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT 
 
 Timothy M. Ewell 11/20/2015 
       ___________________________________      ________________ 
                  Deputy County Administrator              Date 
 
HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATIONS      DATE  11/23/2015 
Add three (3) Legal Assistant (2Y7B) (represented) positions at salary plan and grade  ZB5 1337 ($4,182 - $5,083)    
 
Amend Resolution 71/17 establishing positions and resolutions allocating classes to the Basic / Exempt salary schedule. 

Effective:     Day following Board Action. 
       (Date) /s/ Lisa Lopez 11/23/2015 
       ___________________________________        ________________ 

         (for) Director of Human Resources   Date 
 

COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR RECOMMENDATION: DATE   12/1/2015 
  Approve Recommendation of Director of Human Resources 
  Disapprove Recommendation of Director of Human Resources /s/ Timothy M. Ewell 
  Other:  ____________________________________________ ___________________________________ 

                 (for) County Administrator 
 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS ACTION:             David J. Twa, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 
Adjustment is APPROVED      DISAPPROVED        and County Administrator 
 
DATE        BY        
 

APPROVAL OF THIS ADJUSTMENT CONSTITUTES A PERSONNEL / SALARY RESOLUTION AMENDMENT 
 

POSITION ADJUSTMENT ACTION TO BE COMPLETED BY HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT FOLLOWING BOARD ACTION 

Adjust class(es) / position(s) as follows: 
 

      
 
P300 (M347) Rev 3/15/01 



REQUEST FOR PROJECT POSITIONS 
 

Department       Date 12/1/2015    No.  xxxxxx 
 
1.   Project Positions Requested: 

      
 
2.   Explain Specific Duties of Position(s) 

      
 
3.  Name / Purpose of Project and Funding Source (do not use acronyms i.e. SB40 Project or SDSS Funds) 

      
 
4.  Duration of the Project:  Start Date       End Date        
     Is funding for a specified period of time (i.e. 2 years) or on a year-to-year basis? Please explain. 

      
 
5.  Project Annual Cost 
 

a.  Salary & Benefits Costs:         b. Support Costs:        
           (services, supplies, equipment, etc.) 

 
c.  Less revenue or expenditure:        d. Net cost to General or other fund:        
 

6.  Briefly explain the consequences of not filling the project position(s) in terms of: 
a. potential future costs   d. political implications 
b. legal implications   e. organizational implications 
c. financial implications 

      
 
7.   Briefly describe the alternative approaches to delivering the services which you have considered. Indicate why these 

alternatives were not chosen. 
      

 
8.   Departments requesting new project positions must submit an updated cost benefit analysis of each project position at the 

halfway point of the project duration. This report is to be submitted to the Human Resources Department, which will 
forward the report to the Board of Supervisors. Indicate the date that your cost / benefit analysis will be submitted 
      

 
9.  How will the project position(s) be filled? 

 a. Competitive examination(s) 
 b. Existing employment list(s) Which one(s)?       
 c. Direct appointment of: 

 1. Merit System employee who will be placed on leave from current job 
 2. Non-County employee 

 
Provide a justification if filling position(s) by C1 or C2 

 
 

USE ADDITIONAL PAPER IF NECESSARY 
 
 



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

ADOPT Position Adjustment Resolution No. 21794 to add two (2) 24/40 Registered Nurse-Experienced Level

(VWXD) positions ($7,305-$8,142) and cancel vacant 40/40 Registered Nurse-Experienced Level position number

#14543 in the Contra Costa Health Plan division of the Health Services Department. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

The additional costs associated with this action are approximately $28,727 annually with benefits, including $6,937

in pension costs. Costs will be funded by CCHP Enterprise Fund II (100%). 

BACKGROUND: 

Contra Costa Health Plan has specialized duties in the Utilization Management/Authorization unit that require two (2)

24/40 Registered Nurses.

1. One permanent part-time RN would handle the overload in the Durable Medical Equipment (DME) stays queue

(300 plus daily). Currently, one RN is assigned to this unit but CCHP is in need of extra help as the average queue

has increased and there is a 48-hour turnaround time to process these items. For the DME stays that are for a hospital

discharge, the turnaround 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Kristen Cunningham,

957-5267

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the
Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

C. 25

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Add two 24/40 RN-Experienced Level positions and cancel one 40/40 RN-Experienced Level position in the Health

Services Dep



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

time is the same day.

2. CCHP has only one Mental Health RN for all of its members and because of the transition of all the new

Applied Behavioral Analysis (ABA) patients this RN is unable to keep up with regulated timelines in referring

members to therapists. One permanent part-time RN would assist with this Mental Health assignment. Both of

these duties are mandated and the Utilization Management/Authorization unit is not currently able to meet the

state requirements. Without these additional permanent part-time Registered Nurses, Contra Costa Health plan

could see large fines by the state and a freeze on membership assignments.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this action is not approved and without additional staff, Contra Costa Health Plan will not have adequate

staffing to meet the mandated requirements of the Plan.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not applicable.

ATTACHMENTS

P-300 #21794 



POSITION ADJUSTMENT REQUEST  
 NO.  21794 

DATE  11/23/2015 
Department No./ 

Department  HEALTH SERVICES-CCHP Budget Unit No. 0860  Org No. 6109  Agency No. A18 

Action Requested:  Add two 24/40 Registered Nurse-Experienced Level (VWXD) positions and cancel vacant 40/40 
Registered Nurse-Experienced Level position #14543 the Contra Costa Health Plan division of the Health Services 
Department.   

Proposed Effective Date:  12/9/2015 

Classification Questionnaire attached: Yes    No    /  Cost is within Department’s budget: Yes     No  

Total One-Time Costs (non-salary) associated with request:  $0.00 

Estimated total cost adjustment (salary / benefits / one time): 

Total annual cost  $28,727.37 Net County Cost  $0.00 

Total this FY  $16,757.63 N.C.C. this FY  $0.00 

SOURCE OF FUNDING TO OFFSET ADJUSTMENT  CCHP Enterprise Fund II 

 
Department must initiate necessary adjustment and submit to CAO. 
Use additional sheet for further explanations or comments. 
  Kristen Cunningham 
 ______________________________________ 

               (for) Department Head 
 
REVIEWED BY CAO AND RELEASED TO HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT 
 
 Dorothy Sansoe 12/1/2015 
       ___________________________________      ________________ 
                  Deputy County Administrator              Date 
 
HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATIONS      DATE        
Exempt from Human Resources review under delegated authority. 
 
Amend Resolution 71/17 establishing positions and resolutions allocating classes to the Basic / Exempt salary schedule. 

Effective:     Day following Board Action. 
       (Date)             
       ___________________________________        ________________ 

         (for) Director of Human Resources   Date 
 

COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR RECOMMENDATION: DATE   12/1/2015 
  Approve Recommendation of Director of Human Resources 
  Disapprove Recommendation of Director of Human Resources Dorothy Sansoe 
  Other:  Approve as requested by department  ___________________________________ 

                 (for) County Administrator 
 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS ACTION:             David J. Twa, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 
Adjustment is APPROVED      DISAPPROVED        and County Administrator 
 
DATE        BY        
 

APPROVAL OF THIS ADJUSTMENT CONSTITUTES A PERSONNEL / SALARY RESOLUTION AMENDMENT 
 

POSITION ADJUSTMENT ACTION TO BE COMPLETED BY HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT FOLLOWING BOARD ACTION 

Adjust class(es) / position(s) as follows: 
 

      
 
P300 (M347) Rev 3/15/01 



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

ADOPT Position Adjustment Resolution No. 21731 to reallocate the salary of the Supervising Accidental Release

Prevention Engineer (V4HE) (represented) from salary plan and grade ZA5 1964 ($7,781-$9,458) to salary plan and

grade ZA5 2079 ($8,719-$10,599), and the salary of the Director of Hazardous Materials Programs-Exempt (VLD2)

(unrepresented) at salary plan and grade B35 1995 ($8,027-$9,757) to salary plan and grade B35 1995

($9,150-$11,123) in the Health Services Department. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Upon approval, the annual costs associated with this action will be approximately $44,117, including $10,654 in

pension costs. These costs will be fully funded by Hazardous Materials revenues received from Hazardous Materials

fees. 

BACKGROUND: 

As a result of negotiated salary increases, the recent and upcoming wage increases for the Accidental Release

Prevention (ARP) Engineer (V4SF) classification are as follows: 12% increase effective 7/1/2014, 10% increase

effective 7/1/2015, and 3% that will become effective 7/1/2016.

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Kristen Cunningham,

(925) 957-5267

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the
Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: James Hicks,   Kristen Cunningham,   Marta Goc   

C. 26

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Reallocate salaries of two classifications in the Health Services Department



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

Due to the negotiated salary increase stated above, that became effective 7/1/2015, the Accidental Release

Prevention (ARP) Engineer classification is now at higher base salary than that of the Supervising Accidental

Release Prevention Engineer. Therefore a salary reallocation is necessary to correct this compaction issues

between the ARP Engineer and the Supervising ARP Engineer classifications. Reallocating the salary of the

Supervising ARP Engineer class will result in compaction issues with the Director of Hazardous Materials

classification. Therefore, reallocating the salary plan and grade of the Director of Hazardous Materials

classification is also being requested.

To resolve the compaction issues and maintain a salary gap between these classifications, the department is

requesting a salary reallocation for the Supervising ARP Engineer classification and a salary reallocation for the

Director of Hazardous Materials Programs classification.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this action is not approved, the salary schedule of the ARP Engineer classification will continue to have a

higher salary than that of the Supervising ARP Engineer classification and the Health Services Department will

not be able to resolve this salary compaction issue.

ATTACHMENTS

P300 No. 21731 HSD 



POSITION ADJUSTMENT REQUEST  
 NO.  21731 

DATE  7/27/2015 
Department No./ 

Department  HEALTH SERVICES-Hazmat Budget Unit No. 0452  Org No. 5879  Agency No. A18 

Action Requested:  Reallocate the salary of Supervising Accidental Release Prevention Engineer (V4HE) in org #5873 and 
reallocate the salary of Director of Hazardous Materials Programs-Exempt (VLD2) in org #5879 in the Health Services 
Department. 

Proposed Effective Date:  8/1/2015 

Classification Questionnaire attached: Yes    No    /  Cost is within Department’s budget: Yes     No  

Total One-Time Costs (non-salary) associated with request:  $0.00 

Estimated total cost adjustment (salary / benefits / one time): 

Total annual cost  $44,117.82 Net County Cost  $0.00 

Total this FY  $40,441.34 N.C.C. this FY  $0.00 

SOURCE OF FUNDING TO OFFSET ADJUSTMENT  100% Hazardous Materials Generated Revenues 

 
Department must initiate necessary adjustment and submit to CAO. 
Use additional sheet for further explanations or comments. 
  Kristen Cunningham 
 ______________________________________ 

               (for) Department Head 
 
REVIEWED BY CAO AND RELEASED TO HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT 
 
 Dorothy Sansoe 8/12/2015 
       ___________________________________      ________________ 
                  Deputy County Administrator              Date 
 
HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATIONS      DATE  8/13/2015 
Reallocate the salary of the Supervising Accidental Release Prevention Engineer (V4HE)(represented) to salary plan and 
grade ZA5-2079 ($8,719-$10,599); and  the salary of the Director of Hazardous Materials Programs-Exempt (VLD2) to salary 
plan and grade B35 1995 ($9,150-$11,123) in the Health Services Department.  
 
Amend Resolution 71/17 establishing positions and resolutions allocating classes to the Basic / Exempt salary schedule. 

Effective:     Day following Board Action. 
  _________(Date) Lisa Lopez 8/13/2015 
       ___________________________________        ________________ 

         (for) Director of Human Resources   Date 
 

COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR RECOMMENDATION: DATE   11/20/2015 
  Approve Recommendation of Director of Human Resources 
  Disapprove Recommendation of Director of Human Resources Enid Mendoza 
  Other:  ____________________________________________ ___________________________________ 

                 (for) County Administrator 
 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS ACTION:             David J. Twa, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 
Adjustment is APPROVED      DISAPPROVED        and County Administrator 
 
DATE        BY        
 

APPROVAL OF THIS ADJUSTMENT CONSTITUTES A PERSONNEL / SALARY RESOLUTION AMENDMENT 
 

POSITION ADJUSTMENT ACTION TO BE COMPLETED BY HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT FOLLOWING BOARD ACTION 

Adjust class(es) / position(s) as follows: 
 

      
 
P300 (M347) Rev 3/15/01 



REQUEST FOR PROJECT POSITIONS 
 

Department       Date 11/20/2015    No.        
 
1.   Project Positions Requested: 

      
 
2.   Explain Specific Duties of Position(s) 

      
 
3.  Name / Purpose of Project and Funding Source (do not use acronyms i.e. SB40 Project or SDSS Funds) 

      
 
4.  Duration of the Project:  Start Date       End Date        
     Is funding for a specified period of time (i.e. 2 years) or on a year-to-year basis? Please explain. 

      
 
5.  Project Annual Cost 
 

a.  Salary & Benefits Costs:         b. Support Costs:        
           (services, supplies, equipment, etc.) 

 
c.  Less revenue or expenditure:        d. Net cost to General or other fund:        
 

6.  Briefly explain the consequences of not filling the project position(s) in terms of: 
a. potential future costs   d. political implications 
b. legal implications   e. organizational implications 
c. financial implications 

      
 
7.   Briefly describe the alternative approaches to delivering the services which you have considered. Indicate why these 

alternatives were not chosen. 
   

 
8.   Departments requesting new project positions must submit an updated cost benefit analysis of each project position at the 

halfway point of the project duration. This report is to be submitted to the Human Resources Department, which will 
forward the report to the Board of Supervisors. Indicate the date that your cost / benefit analysis will be submitted 
      

 
9.  How will the project position(s) be filled? 

 a. Competitive examination(s) 
 b. Existing employment list(s) Which one(s)?       
 c. Direct appointment of: 

 1. Merit System employee who will be placed on leave from current job 
 2. Non-County employee 

 
Provide a justification if filling position(s) by C1 or C2 

 
 

USE ADDITIONAL PAPER IF NECESSARY 
 
 



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

ADOPT Resolution No. 2015/448 to adjust the salary ranges of certain job classifications to be in compliance with the

State of California minimum wage law effective January 1, 2016. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Upon approval, the cost of this action will be absorbed by the Departments who utilize these classifications. 

BACKGROUND: 

The State of California has increased the minimum wage from $9.00 to $10.00 per hour effective January 1, 2016. In

order to remain in compliance, the following job classifications will be reallocated on the salary schedule to set the

salary step 1 at no less than $10.00 per hour on January 1, 2016, and additional steps will be adjusted as needed to

maintain the current percentage between steps:

Note that the salaries of the classifications of Title V Trainee (XSK1) and WEX Trainee (XSK2), per historical

practice, will be addressed in a separate resolution. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Lisa Driscoll, County Finance

Director (925) 335-1023

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the
minutes of the Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: Lisa Lopez, Assistant Director of Human Resources,   Harjit S. Nahal, Assistant County Auditor   

C. 27

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: David Twa, County Administrator

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Resolution No. 2015/448 State of California Minimum Wage Law



CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this request is not approved, Contra Costa County will not be in compliance with the State of California

minimum wage law.

ATTACHMENTS

Resolution No. 2015/448 



THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF CONTRA COSTA COUNTY, CALIFORNIA 

and for Special Districts, Agencies and Authorities Governed by the Board

Adopted this Resolution on 12/08/2015 by the following vote:

AYE:

NO:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

RECUSE:

Resolution No. 2015/448

In The Matter Of: Reallocating certain job classifications on the Salary Schedule to be in compliance with the State of

California Minimum Wage Law

The Contra Costa County Board of Supervisors in its capacity as governing Board of the County of Contra Costa and all districts

of which it is ex-officio governing Board RESOLVES that:

WHEREAS, the State of California has increased the minimum wage from $9.00 to $10.00 per hour effective January 1, 2016;

and

WHEREAS, in order to remain in compliance, the following job classifications will be reallocated on the salary schedule to set

the initial salary step 1 at no less than $10.00 per hour on January , 2016:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the the County Administrator is authorized to reallocate upward any job classification

with a pay grade below the State of California mandated minimum wage of $10.00 per hour on the salary schedule effective

January 1, 2016.

Contact:  Lisa Driscoll, County Finance Director (925)

335-1023

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on

the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: Lisa Lopez, Assistant Director of Human Resources,   Harjit S. Nahal, Assistant County Auditor   



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

ADOPT Resolution No. 2015/452 correcting and replacing the attachment presented to the Board on October 20,

2015, in regards to the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between Contra Costa County and the Deputy

District Attorneys' Association (DDAA) for the period of July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2018. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

None. 

BACKGROUND: 

The DDAA began bargaining with Contra Costa County on or about May 14, 2015; a Tentative Agreement (TA) was

reached between the County and the DDAA on October 8, 2015; and the resulting Memorandum of Understanding

was adopted by the Board of Supervisors on October 20, 2015. The unexecuted copy of the MOU attached to the

Board action on October 20 contained the original TA language agreed to by the union, which was revised at the

close of bargaining. The executed, attached, MOU is now complete and correct. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Lisa Driscoll, County Finance

Director (925) 335-1023

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the
minutes of the Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: Lisa Lopez, Assistant Director of Human Resources,   Haj Nahal, Assistant Auditor Controller,   Alvan Mangalindan,   Ann Elliott, Benefits Manager,   Craig

Taylor, Benefits Supervisor,   Cherie Mathisen, Chief of Administrative Services   

C. 28

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: David Twa, County Administrator

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Confirming Memorandum of Understanding with the Deputy District Attorneys' Association (correcting attachment)



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

In summary, the changes are: 

Health, Life and Dental Care – Section 13 

Inclusion of High Deductible Health Provider and Plan selected by the County.

Limit access to CCHP Plan B, Kaiser Permanente Plan A, Health Net HMO Plan A, and Health Net

PPO to employees hired before January 1, 2016. These plans are to be eliminated for all employees

beginning January 1, 2018.

The County will make available to employees represented by the Association any new medical or

dental plans selected by the County to replace current plans not renewed. Notice will be provided

regarding the effective date of any new medical or dental plans.

The County will adjust its monthly premium subsidies to cover all increases for the 2016 plan year.

Beginning January 1, 2017, any future increases in monthly premiums or plan premium penalties

imposed by the medical plan, are to be shared evenly by the County and the Association. 

Provide employees eligible to receive an offer of coverage from the County under the Affordable

Care Act, with access to County medical plans at the full premium amount.

ATTACHMENTS

Resolution No. 2015/452 

DDAA MOU 7-1-15 thru 6-30-18 



THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF CONTRA COSTA COUNTY, CALIFORNIA 

and for Special Districts, Agencies and Authorities Governed by the Board

Adopted this Resolution on 12/08/2015 by the following vote:

AYE:

NO:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

RECUSE:

Resolution No. 2015/452

In The Matter Of: Memorandum of Understandings with the Deputy District Attorneys' Association (DDAA) for the period of

July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2018.

The Contra County Board of Supervisors acting in its capacity as the Governing Board of the County of Contra Costa

RESOLVES THAT:

The executed Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between Contra Costa County and the DDAA providing for wages,

benefits and other terms and conditions of employment for the period beginning July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2018, for those

classifications represented by the DDAA is ADOPTED. A copy of the MOU is attached.

Contact:  Lisa Driscoll, County Finance Director (925)

335-1023

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on

the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: Lisa Lopez, Assistant Director of Human Resources,   Haj Nahal, Assistant Auditor Controller,   Alvan Mangalindan,   Ann Elliott, Benefits Manager,  

Craig Taylor, Benefits Supervisor,   Cherie Mathisen, Chief of Administrative Services   



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

BETWEEN 

CONTRA COSTA COUNTY 

AND 

DEPUTY DISTRICT ATTORNEYS’ ASSOCIATION 

JULY 1, 2015 – JUNE 30, 2018 



i 

 

CONTRA COSTA COUNTY 
DEPUTY DISTRICT ATTORNEYS’ ASSOCIATION 

 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
 
SECTION 1 ASSOCIATION RECOGNITION ........................................................ 3 
 
SECTION 2 ASSOCIATION SECURITY 

2.1 Dues Deduction.................................................................................. 4 
2.2 Maintenance of Membership .............................................................. 4 
2.3 Withdrawal of Membership ................................................................. 4 
2.4 Communicating With Employees ........................................................ 4 
2.5 Use of County Buildings ..................................................................... 4 
 

SECTION 3 NO DISCRIMINATION ....................................................................... 4 
 

SECTION 4 ASSOCIATION REPRESENTATIVES 
4.1 Attendance at Meetings ...................................................................... 4 
 

SECTION 5 SALARIES 
5.1 General Wages .................................................................................. 5 

 
SECTION 6 LAYOFFS .......................................................................................... 6 
 
SECTION 7 JURY DUTY AND WITNESS DUTY 

7.1 Jury Duty ............................................................................................ 6 
7.2 Witness Duty ...................................................................................... 7 
 

SECTION 8 GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE 
8.1 Definition and Procedural Steps ......................................................... 7 
8.2 Compensation Claims ........................................................................ 8 
8.3 Strike or Work Stoppage .................................................................... 8 
8.4 Arbitrator’s Decision (Final & Binding) ................................................ 9 
 

SECTION 9 DAYS  AND HOURS OF WORK/HOLIDAYS 
9.1 Definitions – Days and Hours of Work. ............................................... 9 
9.2 Timestamp ....................................................................................... 10 
9.3 Accrual Usage .................................................................................. 10 
9.4 Automated Time Keeping ................................................................. 10 
9.5 Holidays Observed ........................................................................... 10 
9.6 Definitions - Holidays ....................................................................... 10 
9.7 Holidays – Part-Time Employees ..................................................... 11 
9.8 Personal Holiday Credit .................................................................... 11 
 

SECTION 10 VACATION LEAVE 
10.1 Vacation Accrual Rates .................................................................... 11 
10.2 Vacation Allowance for 
 Separated Employees ...................................................................... 12 
10.3 Service Award Date Defined ............................................................ 12 

 



ii 

 

SECTION 11 SICK LEAVE 
11.1 Sick Leave ....................................................................................... 12 
11.2 Part-Time Employees ....................................................................... 12 

 
SECTION 12 LEAVE OF ABSENCE 

12.1 Leave Without Pay ........................................................................... 13 
12.2 General Administration ..................................................................... 13 
12.3 Family Care Leave or Medical Leave ............................................... 13 
12.4 Certification ...................................................................................... 13 
12.5 Intermittent Use of Leave ................................................................. 14 
12.6 Aggregate Use for Spouse ............................................................... 14 
12.7 Definitions ........................................................................................ 14 
 

SECTION 13 HEALTH, LIFE & DENTAL CARE 
13.1 Health Plan Coverages .................................................................... 15 
13.2 Monthly Premium Subsidy ................................................................ 16 
13.3 Retirement Coverage ....................................................................... 17 
13.4 Health Plan Coverages & Provisions ................................................ 19 
13.5 Family Member Eligibility Criteria ..................................................... 19 
13.6 Dual Coverage ................................................................................. 20 
13.7 Medical Plan Cost-Sharing on and after January 1, 2016 ................. 21 
13.8 Life Insurance Benefit Under Health and Dental Plans ..................... 22 
13.9 Supplemental Life Insurance ............................................................ 22 
13.10 Health Care Spending Account ........................................................ 22 
13.11 PERS Long-Term Care .................................................................... 22 
13.12 Dependent Care Assistance Program .............................................. 22 
13.13 Premium Conversion Plan ................................................................ 23 
13.14 Prevailing Section ............................................................................ 23 
13.15 Rate Information............................................................................... 23 
13.16 Partial Month .................................................................................... 23 
13.17 Coverage During Absences ............................................................. 23 
13.18 Child Care ........................................................................................ 23 
13.19 Health Benefit Coverage for Employees Not Otherwise Covered ..... 23 
 

SECTION 14 CATASTROPHIC LEAVE BANK 
14.1 Program Design ............................................................................... 24 
 

SECTION 15 TRAVEL REIMBURSEMENT .......................................................... 25 
 
SECTION 16 RETIREMENT 

16.1 Contribution ...................................................................................... 26 
16.2 414H2 Participation .......................................................................... 26 
16.3 Retirement Benefits – Employees Who Become Members of 
 CCCERA After December 31, 2012 ................................................. 26 

 
SECTION 17 PROFESSIONAL EXPENSES 

17.1 Reimbursement ................................................................................ 27 
 

SECTION 18 BILINGUAL PAY DIFFERENTIAL ................................................... 27 
 

SECTION 19 WORKERS’ COMPENSATION ....................................................... 28 



iii 

 

 
SECTION 20 LONGEVITY PAY ............................................................................ 30 
 
SECTION 21 DEFERRED COMPENSATION INCENTIVE .................................... 30 
 
SECTION 22 ANNUAL ADMINISTRATIVE LEAVE .............................................. 32 

 
SECTION 23 VACATION BUY-BACK .................................................................. 33 

 
SECTION 24 SICK LEAVE INCENTIVE ................................................................ 33 
 

SECTION 25 COMPUTER VISION CARE( CVC) USERS EYE EXAM ................. 34 
 
SECTION 26 LONG-TERM DISABILITY INSURANCE ......................................... 35 
 
SECTION 27 ATTORNEY FIXED-TERM CLASSES ............................................. 35 

 
SECTION 28 LAW SCHOOL STUDENT LOAN REIMBURSEMENT PROGRAM 35 

 
SECTION 29 SERVICE AWARDS ........................................................................ 36 

 
SECTION 30 LOSS OR DAMAGE TO PERSONAL PROPERTY ......................... 37 
 
SECTION 31 ADOPTION ...................................................................................... 37 
 
SECTION 32 SCOPE OF AGREEMENT AND SEVERABILITY OF PROVISIONS 

32.1 Scope of Agreement ........................................................................ 37 
32.2 Severability of Provisions ................................................................. 38 
32.3 Personnel Management Regulations ................................................ 38 
32.4 Duration of Agreement ..................................................................... 38 

 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

 



 
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

BETWEEN 
CONTRA COSTA COUNTY 

AND 
DEPUTY DISTRICT ATTORNEYS’ ASSOCIATION 

 
 
 
This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) is entered into pursuant to the authority 
contained in Division 34 of Board of Supervisors' Resolution No. 81/1165 and has been 
jointly prepared by the parties. 
 
The Employee Relations Officer (County Administrator) is the representative of Contra 
Costa County in employer-employee relations matters as provided in Board of 
Supervisors' Resolution No. 81/1165. 
 
The parties have met and conferred in good faith regarding wages, hours and other 
terms and conditions of employment for the employees in units in which the Association 
is the recognized representative, have freely exchanged information, opinions and 
proposals and have endeavored to reach agreement on all matters relating to the 
employment conditions and employer-employee relations covering such employees. 
 
This MOU shall be presented to the Contra Costa County Board of Supervisors, as the 
governing board of Contra Costa County, as the joint recommendations of the 
undersigned for salary and employee benefit adjustments for the term set forth herein.  
 
  



DEFINITIONS 
 

Deputy District Attorneys’ Assn  2 2015-2018 

DEFINITIONS 
 
Appointing Authority:  The Department Head unless otherwise provided by statute or 
ordinance. 
 
Association:  Deputy District Attorneys’ Association (DDAA). 
 
Class:  A group of positions sufficiently similar with respect to the duties and 
responsibilities that similar selection procedures and qualifications may apply and that 
the same descriptive title may be used to designate each position allocated to the 
group. 
 
Class Title:  The designation given to a class, to each position allocated to the class, 
and to the employees allocated to the class. 
 
County:  Contra Costa County. 
 
Demotion:  Demotion is the reduction of an employee to another position in a class 
having a lower salary allocation than the class previously occupied by the employee or 
to a lower compensation level within the employee’s salary range. 
 
Director of Human Resources:  The person designated by the County Administrator to 
serve as the Assistant County Administrator-Director of Human Resources. 
 
Eligible:  Any person whose name is on an employment, reemployment, or layoff list for 
a given class. 
 
Employee:  A person who is an incumbent of a position or who is on leave of absence 
in accordance with provisions of this MOU and whose position is held pending his 
return. 
 
Employment List:  A list of names of persons who have been found qualified for 
employment in a specific class. 
 
Layoff List:  A list of persons who have occupied positions allocated to a class in the 
Merit system and who have involuntarily separated by layoff, displacement, or demoted 
by displacement, or have voluntarily demoted in lieu of layoff or displacement, or have 
voluntarily transferred in lieu of layoff or displacement. 
 
Permanent-Intermittent Position: Any position that requires the services of an 
incumbent for an indefinite period of time, but on an intermittent basis, as needed, paid 
on an hourly basis. Notwithstanding any other provision of this MOU, permanent-
intermittent employees are entitled to an hourly wage and FLSA overtime, when 
applicable, but no other pays or employment benefits, unless this MOU specifically 
references “permanent-intermittent” employees for a pay or benefit. 
 
Permanent Part-Time Position:  Any position which will require the services of an 
incumbent for an indefinite period but on a regularly scheduled less than full time basis. 
 



DEFINITIONS 
 

Deputy District Attorneys’ Assn 3  2015-2018 

Permanent Position:  Any position which has required, or which will require the 
services of an incumbent without interruption, for an indefinite period. 
 
Position:  The assigned duties and responsibilities calling for the regular full time, part-
time or intermittent employment of a person. 
 
Project Employee:  An employee who is engaged in a time limited program or service 
by reason of limited or restricted funding.  Such positions are typically funded from 
outside sources but may be funded from County revenues. 
 
Promotion:  The change of a permanent employee to another position in a class 
allocated to a salary range for which the top step is higher than the top step of the class 
which the employee formerly occupied except as otherwise provided for in the 
Personnel Management Regulations or in ordinances or resolutions governing deep 
classifications. 
 
Reallocation:  The act of reassigning an individual position from one class to another 
class at the same range of the salary schedule, or to a class which is allocated to 
another range that is within five (5) percent of the top step except as otherwise provided 
for in the Personnel Management Regulations or in ordinances or resolutions. 
 
Reclassification:  The act of reassignment or change in allocation of a position by 
raising it to a higher class or reducing it to a lower class on the basis of significant 
changes in the nature, difficulty, or responsibility of duties performed in the position. 
 
Reemployment List:  A list of persons who have occupied positions allocated to a 
class who have voluntarily separated and are qualified for consideration for 
reappointment under the Personnel Management Regulations governing reemployment. 
 
Resignation:  The voluntary termination of permanent employment with the County. 
 
Transfer:  The change of an employee to another position in the same class in a 
different department, or to another position in a class which is allocated to a salary 
schedule the top step of which is within five (5) percent of the top step of the class 
previously occupied in the same or different department or as otherwise defined in deep 
class ordinances or resolutions. 
 
Union:  Deputy District Attorneys’ Association (DDAA). 
 
 
SECTION 1 - ASSOCIATION RECOGNITION 
 
The Association is the formally recognized employee organization for the representation 
units listed below, and such organization has been certified as such pursuant to Board 
of Supervisor’s Resolution 2008/132, dated March 11, 2008. 
 
 2KTF Deputy District Attorney – Basic Level 
 2KTG Deputy District Attorney – Advanced 
 2KWD Deputy District Attorney – Fixed Term 



SECTION 2 - ASSOCIATION SECURITY 
 

Deputy District Attorneys’ Assn  4 2015-2018 

 
SECTION 2 - ASSOCIATION SECURITY 
 
2.1 Dues Deduction.  Pursuant to Board of Supervisors' Resolution No. 81/1165, 
only a majority representative may have dues deduction and as such the Association 
has the exclusive privilege of dues deduction or agency fee deduction for all employees 
in its units. 
 
2.2 Maintenance of Membership.  All employees in units represented by the 
Association who are currently paying dues to the Association and all employees in such 
units who hereafter become members of the Association shall as a condition of 
continued employment pay dues to the Association for the duration of this MOU and 
each year thereafter so long as the Association continues to represent the position to 
which the employee is assigned, unless the employee has exercised the option to 
cease paying dues in accordance with Section 2.3. 
 
2.3 Withdrawal of Membership.  By notifying the Auditor-Controller's Department in 
writing, between August 1 and August 31, any employee may withdraw from 
Association membership and discontinue paying dues as of the payroll period 
commencing September 1. Upon close of the above referenced 30 day period, the 
Auditor-Controller shall submit to the Association the list of the employees who have 
rescinded their authorization for dues deduction. 
 
2.4 Communicating With Employees.  Representatives of the Association, not on 
County time, shall be permitted to place employee literature at designated locations in 
County buildings if arranged through the Department Head or designated 
representative.  
 
2.5 Use of County Buildings.  The Association shall be allowed the use of areas 
normally used for meeting purposes for Association meetings during non-work hours 
when: 
A. Such space is available. 
B. There is no additional cost to the County. 
C. It does not interfere with normal County operations. 
 
 
SECTION 3 - NO DISCRIMINATION 
 
There shall be no discrimination because of age, sex, race, creed, color, national origin, 
religion, disability, sexual orientation or Association activities against any employee or 
applicant for employment by the County or by anyone employed by the County. 
 
 
SECTION 4 – ASSOCIATION REPRESENTATIVES 
 
4.1 Attendance at Meetings.  Employees designated as Association 
Representatives or official representatives of the Association shall be allowed to attend 
meetings held by County agencies during regular working hours on County time as 
follows: 



SECTION 5 - SALARIES 
 

Deputy District Attorneys’ Assn 5  2015-2018 

 
A. If their attendance is required by the County at a specific meeting, including 

meetings of the Board of Supervisors. 
 
B. If their attendance is sought by a hearing body or presentation of testimony or 

other reasons. 
 
C.  If they are designated as an Association Representative, in which case they may 

utilize a reasonable time at each level of the proceedings to assist an employee 
to present a grievance provided the meetings are scheduled at reasonable times 
agreeable to all parties. 

 
D. If they are designated as spokesperson or representative of the Association and 

as such make representations or presentations at meetings or hearings on 
wages, salaries and working conditions; provided in each case advance 
arrangements for time away from the employee's work station or assignment are 
made with the appropriate Department Head, and the County agency calling the 
meeting is responsible for determining that the attendance of the particular 
employee(s) is required, including meetings of the Board of Supervisors and 
Retirement Board where items which are within the scope of representation and 
involving the Association are to be discussed. 

 
E. Association Representatives and Association officials shall advise, as far in 

advance as possible, their immediate supervisor, or his/her designee, of their 
intent to engage in Association business. All arrangements for release time shall 
include the location, the estimated time needed and the general nature of the 
Association business involved. 

 
F. Official representative of the Association shall be allowed time off on County time 

for meetings during regular working hours when formally meeting and conferring 
in good faith or consulting with the Labor Relations Manager or other 
management representatives on matters within the scope of representation, 
provided advance arrangement for the time away from the work assignment or 
station are made with the appropriate Department Head.  No more than four (4) 
Association Representatives will be released at any one time during work hours 
for this purpose. 

 
 
SECTION 5 - SALARIES 
 
5.1  General Wages. 
 
A. Effective on October 1, 2015, the base rate of pay for all classifications 

represented by the Deputy District Attorneys’ Association will be increased by 
five percent (5%). 

 
B. Effective on July 1, 2016, the base rate of pay for all classifications represented 

by the Deputy District Attorneys’ Association will be increased by four and one-
half percent (4.5%). 



SECTION 6 - LAYOFFS 
 

Deputy District Attorneys’ Assn  6 2015-2018 

 
C. Effective July 1, 2017, the base rate of pay for all classifications represented by 

the Deputy District Attorneys’ Association will be increased by four and one-half 
percent (4.5%). 
 

 
SECTION 6 - LAYOFFS 
 
Layoffs, if necessary, will be made pursuant to the Contra Costa County Personnel 
Management Regulations, Part 12 - LAYOFF. 
 
 
SECTION 7 - JURY DUTY AND WITNESS DUTY 
 
7.1 Jury Duty.  For purposes of this Section, jury duty shall be defined as any time 
an employee is obligated to report to the court. 
 
A. When called for jury duty, County employees, like other citizens, are expected to 

discharge their jury duty responsibilities. 
 
B. Employees shall advise their department as soon as possible if scheduled to 

appear for jury duty. 
 
C. If summoned for jury duty in a Municipal, Superior, or Federal Court, or a 

Coroners jury, employees may remain in their regular County pay status, or they 
may take paid leave (vacation, floating holiday, etc.) or leave without pay and 
retain all fees and expenses paid to them. 

 
D. When an employee is summoned for jury duty selection or is selected as a juror 

in a Municipal, Superior or Federal Court, employees may remain in a regular 
pay status if they waive all fees (other than mileage), regardless of shift 
assignment and the following shall apply: 

 
1. If an employee elects to remain in a regular pay status and waive or 

surrender all fees (other than mileage), the employee shall obtain from the 
Clerk or Jury Commissioner a certificate indicating the days attended and 
noting that fees other than mileage are waived or surrendered. The 
employee shall furnish the certificate to his department where it will be 
retained as a department record.  No "Absence/Overtime Record" is 
required. 

 
2. An employee who elects to retain all fees must take leave (vacation, 

floating holiday, etc.) or leave without pay.  No court certificate is required 
but an "Absence/Overtime Record" must be submitted to the department 
payroll clerk. 

 
E. Employees are not permitted to engage in any employment regardless of shift 

assignment or occupation before or after daily jury service that would affect their 
ability to properly serve as jurors. 



SECTION 8 - GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE 
 

Deputy District Attorneys’ Assn 7  2015-2018 

 
F. An employee on short notice standby to report to court, whose job duties make 

short notice response impossible or impractical, shall be given alternate work 
assignments for those days to enable them to respond to the court on short 
notice. 

 
G. When an employee is required to serve on jury duty, the County will adjust that 

employee's work schedule to coincide with a Monday to Friday schedule for the 
remainder of their service, unless the employee requests otherwise. 

 
H. Permanent-intermittent employees are entitled to paid jury duty leave only for 

those days on which they were previously scheduled to work. 
 
7.2 Witness Duty.  Employees called upon as a witness or an expert witness in a 
case arising in the course of their work or the work of another department may remain in 
their regular pay status and turn over to the County all fees and expenses paid to them 
other than mileage allowance or they may take vacation leave or leave without pay and 
retain all fees and expenses. 
 
Employees called to serve as witnesses in private cases or personal matters (e.g., 
accident suits and family relations) shall take vacation leave or leave without pay and 
retain all witness fees paid to them. 
 
Retention or waiver of fees shall be governed by the same provisions as apply to jury 
duty. Employees shall advise their department as soon as possible if scheduled to 
appear for witness duty. Permanent-intermittent employees are entitled to paid witness 
duty only for those days on which they were previously scheduled to work. 
 
 
SECTION 8 - GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE 
 
8.1 Definition and Procedural Steps.  A grievance is any dispute which involves 
the interpretation or application of any provision of this MOU excluding, however, those 
provisions of this MOU which specifically provide that the decision of any County official 
shall be final.  The interpretation or application of those provisions not being subject to 
the grievance procedure.  Disciplinary action shall not be the subject of a grievance 
pursuant to this grievance procedure. An employee may choose to appeal disciplinary 
action through the Merit Board or by any other means available outside of this MOU.  
Grievances regarding promotions or claims of discrimination are not subject to the 
grievance procedure.  The Association may represent the grievant at any stage of the 
process. 
 
Grievances must be filed within thirty (30) calendar days of the incident or occurrence 
about which the grievant claims to have a grievance and shall be processed in the 
following manner: 
 
Step 1.  The Association and any employee or group of employees who believes that a 
provision of this MOU has been misinterpreted or misapplied to his or her detriment 
shall discuss the complaint with the grievant's immediate supervisor, who shall meet 



SECTION 8 - GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE 
 

Deputy District Attorneys’ Assn  8 2015-2018 

with the grievant within five (5) work days of receipt of a written request to hold such 
meeting. 
 
If a grievance is not satisfactorily resolved in Step 1 above, the grievant may submit the 
grievance in writing and request that a Board of Adjustment be convened, to such 
management official as the Department Head may designate. This request shall be filed 
no more than (10) ten days after the completion of Step 1. This formal written grievance 
shall state which provision of the MOU has been misinterpreted or misapplied, how 
misapplication or misinterpretation has affected the grievant to the grievant's detriment, 
and the redress he or she seeks. A copy of each written communication on a grievance 
shall be filed with the Director of Human Resources. The Department Head or his or her 
designee shall have ten (10) work days in which to respond to the grievance in writing. 
 
Step 2.  BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT:  Pursuant to a formal written request, as defined 
above, a Board of Adjustment shall be created to be composed of two (2) 
representatives of each party to this Agreement, for the purpose of passing on all 
claims, disputes and grievances arising between the parties during the term of this 
MOU.  Said Board shall meet for consideration of any such matter referred to it within 
seven (7) calendar days after receipt of said written request.  For cases other than 
those which are disciplinary in nature, the convening of the Adjustment Board may be 
waived.  The request of either party to extend the time limit for the convening of the 
Board of Adjustment due to extenuating circumstances will not be unreasonably denied.  
If the matter is not adjusted and is impassed, the moving party shall communicate in 
writing to the other party within twenty (20) business days following the meeting of the 
Board of Adjustment their desire to proceed to arbitration.  Failure of the moving party to 
comply with the twenty (20) business day time limit herein specified shall be deemed to 
be a conclusive waiver of the grievance. 
 
Step 3.  ARBITRATION:  The parties will mutually select an impartial arbitrator. If the 
parties are unable to agree upon the selection of an arbitrator, they shall request a 
panel of arbitrators from the California State Mediation and Conciliation Service and 
they shall select an arbitrator by utilizing the strike-off method. Any fee for provision of a 
panel of arbitrators shall be split equally between the parties. 
 
Each party shall in good faith divulge to the other party all available material facts at the 
time said party acquires knowledge thereof concerning the matter in dispute.  Nothing 
contained herein shall require either party to supply documents which are irrelevant. 
 
All jointly-incurred arbitration expenses shall be borne by the losing party.  In the event 
of a dispute concerning the application of this Section, the Arbitrator shall be 
empowered to determine the allocation of expenses. 
 
8.2 Compensation Claims.  The Employer is not required to pay any wage claim or 
portion thereof retroactively for a period of more than six (6) months immediately prior to 
the date of the Employer’s receipt, of written notice from the Union, of such claim. 
 
8.3 Strike or Work Stoppage.  During the term of this MOU, the Association, its 
members and representatives, agree that it and they will not engage in, authorize, 



SECTION 9 – DAYS AND HOURS OF WORK/HOLIDAYS 
 

Deputy District Attorneys’ Assn 9  2015-2018 

sanction, or support any strike, slowdown, stoppage of work, sick-out, or refusal to 
perform customary duties. 
 
8.4 The arbitrator’s decision shall be final and binding.  The arbitrator shall not have 
the right to alter, amend, delete or add to any of the terms of this Agreement. 
 
 
SECTION 9 – DAYS AND HOURS OF WORK/HOLIDAYS 
 
9.1 Definitions – Days and Hours of Work. 
 
A. Regular Work Schedule:  A regular work schedule is eight (8) hours per day, 

Monday through Friday, inclusive, for a total of forty (40) hours per week. 
 
B. Alternate Work Schedule:  An alternate work schedule is any work schedule 

where an employee is regularly scheduled to work five (5) days per week, but the 
employee’s regularly scheduled two (2) days off are NOT Saturday and Sunday. 

 
C. Flexible Work Schedule:  A flexible work schedule is when the employee is 

regularly scheduled to work other than eight (8) hours per day between Monday 
and Friday, inclusive. 

 
D. 4/10 Work Schedule:  A  4/10 work schedule is four (4) ten hour working days 

and one (1) eight (8) hour day off during a workweek consisting of any seven (7) 
day period, for a total of forty (40) hour per workweek. 

 
E. 9/80 Work Schedule:  A 9/80 work schedule is where an employee works a 

recurring schedule of thirty six (36) hours in one calendar week and forty four 
(44) hours in the next calendar week, but only forty (40) hours in the designated 
workweek.  In the thirty six (36) hour calendar week, the employee works four (4) 
nine (9) hour days and has the same day of the week off that is worked for eight 
(8) hours in the forty four (44) hour calendar week.  In the forty four (44) hour 
calendar week, the employee works four (4) nine (9) hour days and one (1) eight 
(8) hour day. 

 
F. Workweek for Employees on Regular,  Alternate,  Flexible, and 4/10 Work 

Schedules:  For employees on regular, alternate, and 4/10 work schedules, the 
workweek begins at 12:01 a.m. on Monday and ends at 12 midnight on Sunday. 

 
G. Workweek for Employees on a 9/80 Work Schedule:  The 9/80 workweek 

begins on the same day of the week as the employee’s eight (8) hour work day 
and regularly scheduled 9/80 day off.  The start time of the workweek is four (4) 
hours and one (1) minute after the start time of the eight (8) hour workday.  The 
end time of the workweek is four (4) hours after the eight (8) hour workday start 
time.  The result is a workweek that is a fixed and regularly recurring period of 
seven (7) consecutive twenty four (24) hour periods (168 hours). 

 



SECTION 9 – DAYS AND HOURS OF WORK/HOLIDAYS 
 

Deputy District Attorneys’ Assn  10 2015-2018 

9.2  Timestamp:  Each and every temporary and permanent intermittent employee 
(hereafter called “hourly employees”) must timestamp in and out as he/she begins 
his/her work shift/day, finishes his/her work shift/day, and takes meal breaks. 
 
9.3 Accrual Usage:  The use of leave accruals must be reported in one minute 
increments and may not be rounded. 
 
9.4 Automated Time Keeping: 
 
A. The Association agrees to the implementation of an automated timekeeping 

system by the County.  The Association waives its right to meet and confer 
regarding any impacts that result from the County’s implementation of the 
automated timekeeping system.  The Association agrees to convert from the 
current monthly payroll procedures with an advance to a new payroll procedure 
to be determined. 

 
B. The County will ensure that the necessary equipment to allow temporary and 

permanent-intermittent employees, who are paid on an hourly basis, to 
“timestamp” in and out in a timely manner. 

 
9.5 Holidays Observed.  The County will observe the following holidays:  
 
 New Year's Day Labor Day 
 Martin Luther King Jr. Day Veterans' Day 
 Presidents' Day Thanksgiving Day 
 Memorial Day Day after Thanksgiving Day 
 Independence Day Christmas Day 
 
Such other days as the Board of Supervisors may, by Resolution, designate as 
holidays. 
 
9.6 Definitions - Holidays 
 
A. Holidays:  Employees are entitled to observe a holiday (day off work), without a 

reduction in pay, whenever a holiday is observed by the County. Any holiday 
observed by the County that falls on a Saturday is observed on the preceding 
Friday and any holiday that falls on a Sunday is observed on the following 
Monday. 
 

B. Holidays – Flexible, Alternate, 9/80, and 4/10 Work Schedules:  When a 
holiday falls on the regulary scheduled day off any employee who is on a flexible, 
alternate, 9/80, or 4/10 work schedule, the employee is entitled to take the day 
off, without a reduction in pay, in recognition of the holiday. These employees are 
entitled to request another day off in recognition of their regularly scheduled day 
off. The requested day off must be within the same month and work week as the 
holiday and it must be pre-approved by the employee’s supervisor. If the day off 
is not approved by the supervisor, it is lost.  If the workday is a nine (9) hour day, 
the employee must use on one (1) hour of non-sick leave accruals.  If the 
workday is a ten (10) hour day, the employee must use two (2) hours of non-sick 



SECTION 10 – VACATION LEAVE 
 

Deputy District Attorneys’ Assn 11  2015-2018 

leave accruals.  If the employee does not have any non-sick leave accrual 
balances, leave without pay (AWOP) will be authorized. 

 
9.7 Holidays – Part-Time Employees.  Permanent, part-time employees are 
entitled to observe a holiday (day off work) in the same ratio as the number of hours in 
the part time employee's weekly schedule bears to forty (40) hours. 
 
A. Holiday Observed – Part-Time Employees:  When a holiday is observed by the 

County, each part time employee is entitled to observe the holiday in the same 
ratio as his/her number of position hours bears to forty (40) hours, multiplied by 8 
(hours), without a reduction in pay. For example, a part time employee whose 
position hours are 24 per week is entitled to 4.8 hours off work on a holiday 
(24/40 multiplied by 8 = 4.8). Hereafter, the number of hours produced by this 
calculation will be referred to as the “Part Time employee’s holiday hours.” 

 
When the number of hours in a part time employee’s scheduled work day that 
falls on a holiday is more than the employee’s “Part Time employee’s holiday 
hours,” the employee must use non-sick leave accruals for the difference 
between the employee’s scheduled work hours and the employee’s “Part Time 
employee’s holiday hours.” If the employee does not have any non-sick leave 
accrual balances, leave without pay (AWOP) will be authorized. 

 
9.8 Personal Holiday Credit.  Employees are entitled to accrue two (2) hours of 
personal holiday credit each month.  This time is prorated for part time employees. No 
employee may accrue more than forty (40) hours of personal holiday credit. On 
separation from County service, employees are paid for any unused personal holiday 
credit hours at the employee's then current rate of pay, up to a maximum of forty (40) 
hours. 
 
 
SECTION 10 – VACATION LEAVE 
 
10.1 Vacation Accrual Rates.  Employees are entitled to accrue paid vacation credit 
not to exceed the maximum cumulative hours as follows: 
 

  Monthly  Maximum 
  Accural Cumulative 

Length of Service  Hours     Hours 
 
Under 11 years 10 240 
11 years 10-2/3 256 
12 years 11-1/3 272 
13 years 12 288 
14 years 12-2/3 304 
15 through 19 years 13-1/3 320 
20 through 24 years 16-2/3 400 
25 through 29 years 20 480 
30 years and up 23-1/3 560 

 



SECTION 11 – SICK LEAVE 
 

Deputy District Attorneys’ Assn  12 2015-2018 

10.2 Vacation Allowance for Separated Employees.  On separation from County 
service an employee shall be paid for any unused vacation credits at the employees 
then current pay rate. 
 
10.3 Service Award Date Defined: An employee’s Service Award Date is the first 
day of his/her temporary, provisional, or permanent appointment to a position in the 
County. If an employee is first appointed to a temporary or provisional position and then 
later appointed to a permanent position, the Service Award Date for that employee is 
the date of the first day of the temporary or provisional appointment. 
 
 Example One: 
 

1. The employee’s Service Award Date is January 1, 1988. 
 

2. The employee reaches 20 years of service on January 1, 2008. 
 

3. February 1, 2008 is the date on which the employee is eligible to begin 
accruing 16.66 hours of vacation time each month. 

 
4. The increased vacation hours will first appear on the employee’s March 

10, 2008 pay warrant. 
 

Example Two: 
 

1. An employee’s Service Award Date is February 24, 1987. 
 
2. The employee reached 20 years of service on February 24, 2007. 
 
3. March 1, 2007 is the date on which the employee is eligible to begin 

accruing 16.66 hours of vacation time each month. 
 
4. The increased vacation hours will first appear on the employee’s April 10, 

2007 pay warrant. 
 
 
SECTION 11 – SICK LEAVE 
 
11.1 Sick Leave.  Employees are entitled to accrue paid sick leave credit in 
accordance with the provisions of the County Salary Regulations and Administrative 
Bulletin No. 411.7 (Sick Leave Policy) adopted on October 17, 1997, as periodically 
amended. 
 
11.2 Part-Time Employees.  Part-time employees are entitled to accrue paid vacation 
and sick leave credit on a pro-rata basis. 
  



SECTION 12 – LEAVE OF ABSENCE 
 

Deputy District Attorneys’ Assn 13  2015-2018 

 
SECTION 12 – LEAVE OF ABSENCE 
 
12.1 Leave Without Pay. Any employee who has permanent status may be granted a 
leave of absence without pay upon written request, approved by the District Attorney. 
 
12.2 General Administration – Leave of Absence.  Requests for leave without pay 
shall be made upon forms prescribed by the Director of Human Resources and shall 
state specfically the reason for the request, the date when it is desired to begin the 
leave, and the probable date of return. 
 
A. Leave without pay may be granted for any of the following reasons: 
 

1. Illness or disability 
 
2. Pregnancy 
 
3. Parental 

 
4. To engage in a course of study which will increase the emplolyee’s skills 

upon return to the position. 
 

5. For other reasons or circumstance acceptable to the District Attorney. 
 

B. An employee must request family care leave at least thirty (30) days before the 
leave is to begin if the reason for the leave if foreseeable.  If the need is not 
forseeable, the employee must provide written notice to the employer within five 
(5) days of learning of the event by which the need for the family care leave 
arises. 

  
C. A leave with pay may be for a period not to exceed one (1) year. 
 
12.3 Family Care Leave or Medical Leave.  Upon request to the District Attorney, in 
a rolling twelve (12) month period measured backward from the date the employee uses 
his/her FMLA leave, any employee who has permanent status shall be entitled to at 
least twelve (12) weeks leave (less if so requested by the employee) for: 
 
A. Medical leave of absence for the employee's own serious health condition which 

makes the employee unable to perform the functions of the employee's position; 
or 

 
B. Family care leave of absence without pay for reason of the birth of a child of the 

employee, the placement of a child with an employee in connection with the 
adoption or foster care of the child by the employee, or the serious illness or 
health condition of a child, parent, spouse, or domestic partner of the employee. 

 
12.4 Certification.  The employee may be asked to provide certification of the need 
for family care leave or medical leave. Additional period(s) of family care or medical 
leave may be granted by the appointing authority. 



SECTION 12 – LEAVE OF ABSENCE 
 

Deputy District Attorneys’ Assn  14 2015-2018 

 
12.5 Intermittent Use of Leave.  The twelve (12) week entitlement may be used 
intermittently on a regular or irregular basis, or may include reduced work schedules 
depending on the specific circumstances and situations surrounding the request for 
leave.  The twelve (12) weeks may include use of appropriate available paid leave 
accruals when accruals are used to maintain pay status.  When paid leave accruals are 
used for a medical or family care leave, such time shall be counted as a part of the 
twelve (12) week entitlement. 
 
12.6 Aggregate Use for Spouse.  In the situation where husband and wife are both 
employed by the County, the family care of medical leave entitlement based on the 
birth, adoption or foster care of a child is limited to an aggregate for both employees 
together of twelve (12) weeks during a “rolling” twelve (12) month period measured 
backward from the date the employee uses his/her FMLA leave. Employees requesting 
family care leave are required to advise their appointing authority(ies) when their 
spouse is also employed by the County. 
 
12.7 Definitions.  For medical and family care leaves of absence under this section, 
the following definitions apply: 
 
A. Child:  A biological, adopted, or foster child, stepchild, legal ward, conservatee or 

a child who is under eighteen (18) years of age for whom an employee stands in 
loco parentis or for whom the employee is the guardian or conservator, or an 
adult dependent child of the employee. 

 
B. Parent: A biological, foster, or adoptive parent, a step-parent, legal guardian, 

conservator, or other person standing in loco parentis to a child. 
 
C. Spouse: A partner in marriage as defined in California Civil Code Section 4100. 
 
D. Domestic Partner:  An unmarried person, eighteen (18) years or older, to whom 

the employee is not related and with whom the employee resides and shares the 
common necessities of life. 

 
E. Serious Health Condition:  An illness, injury, impairment, or physical or mental 

condition which warrants the participation of a family member to provide care 
during a period of treatment or supervision and involves either inpatient care in a 
hospital, hospice or residential health care facility or continuing treatment or 
continuing supervision by a health care provider (e.g. physician or surgeon) as 
defined by State and Federal law. 

 
F. Certification for Family Care Leave:  A written communication to the employer 

from a health care provider of a person for whose care the leave is being taken 
which need not identify the serious health condition involved, but shall contain: 

 
 1. the date, if known, on which the serious health condition commenced; 
 
 2. the probable duration of the condition; 
 



SECTION 13 - HEALTH, LIFE & DENTAL CARE 
 

Deputy District Attorneys’ Assn 15  2015-2018 

 3. an estimate of the amount of time which the employee needs to render 
care or supervision; 

 
 4. a statement that the serious health condition warrants the participation of 

a family member to provide care during period of treatment or supervision; 
 
 5. if for intermittent leave or a reduced work schedule leave, the certification 

should indicate that the intermittent leave or reduced leave schedule is 
necessary for the care of the individual or will assist in their recovery, and 
its expected duration. 

 
G. Certification for Medical Leave:  A written communication from a health care 

provider of an employee with a serious health condition or illness to the 
employer, which need not identify the serious health condition involved, but shall 
contain: 

 
 1. the date, if known, on which the serious health condition commenced; 
 
 2. the probable duration of the condition; 
 
 3. a statement that the employee is unable to perform the functions of the 

employee's job; 
 
 4. if for intermittent leave or a reduced work schedule leave, the certification 

should indicate the medical necessity for the intermittent leave or reduced 
leave schedule and its expected duration. 

 
H. Comparable Positions:  A position with the same or similar duties and pay which 

can be performed at the same or similar geographic location as the position held 
prior to the leave.  Ordinarily, the job assignment will be the same duties in the 
same program area located in the same city, although specific clients, caseload, 
co-workers, supervisor(s), or other staffing may have changed during an 
employee's leave. 

 
 
SECTION 13 - HEALTH, LIFE & DENTAL CARE 
 
13.1 Health Plan Coverages:  The County will provide the medical and dental 
coverage for permanent employees regularly scheduled to work twenty (20) hours or 
more per week and for their eligible family members, expressed in one of the Medical 
Plan contracts and one of the Dental Plan contracts between the County and the 
following providers: 
 
 Providers: 

1. Contra Costa Health Plans (CCHP) 
2. Kaiser Permanente Health Plan 
3. Health Net 
4. Delta Dental 
5. DeltaCare (PMI) 
6. High Deductible Health Plan Provider selected by the County 



SECTION 13 - HEALTH, LIFE & DENTAL CARE 
 

Deputy District Attorneys’ Assn  16 2015-2018 

 
 Medical Plans: 

All employees will have access to the following medical plans: 
 
 1. CCHP A 
 2. Kaiser Permanente Plan B 
 3. Health Net HMO Plan B 
 4. A High Deductible Health Plan selected by the County 
 
The following additional medical plans will be available only to employees hired 
before January 1, 2016, and will be eliminated for all employees beginning January 
1, 2018: 
 

1. CCHP Plan B 
2. Kaiser Permanente Plan A 
3. Health Net HMO Plan A 
4. Health Net PPO- all plans 
 

13.2 Monthly Premium Subsidy: 

 
A. The monthly premium subsidy in effect on January 1, 2015, for each medical 

and/or dental plan, is a set dollar amount and is not a percentage of the premium 
charged by the plan.  The County will pay the following monthly premium 
subsidy: 

 
 

Health & Dental Plans Employee Employee +1 
Dependent 

Employee +2 or 
More Dependents 

Contra Costa Health Plans (CCHP), Plan A $509.92 $1,214.90 $1,214.90 
Contra Costa Health Plans (CCHP), Plan B $528.50 $1,255.79 $1,255.79 
Kaiser Permanente Health Plans  $478.91 $1,115.84 $1,115.84 
Health Net HMO Plans  $627.79 $1,540.02 $1,540.02 
Health Net PPO Plans  $604.60 $1,436.25 $1,436.25 
County Selected High Deductible Health Plan $478.91 $1,115.84 $1,115.84 
Delta Dental with CCHP A or B $41.17 $93.00 $93.00 
Delta Dental with Kaiser or Health Net $34.02 $76.77 $76.77 
Delta Dental without a Health Plan $43.35 $97.81 $97.81 
DeltaCare (PMI) with CCHP A or B $25.41 $54.91 $54.91 
DeltaCare (PMI) with Kaiser or Health Net $21.31 $46.05 $46.05 
DeltaCare (PMI) without a Health Plan $27.31 $59.03 $59.03 

 
 

B.  If the County contracts with a medical or dental plan that is not listed above, the 
County will determine the monthly dollar premium subsidy that it will pay to that 
medical plan for employees and their eligible family members. 

 



SECTION 13 - HEALTH, LIFE & DENTAL CARE 
 

Deputy District Attorneys’ Assn 17  2015-2018 

C. In the event that the County premium subsidy amounts are greater than one 
hundred percent (100%) of the applicable premium of any medical or dental plan, 
for any plan year, the County’s contribution will not exceed one hundred percent 
(100%) of the applicable plan premium. 

 
D. In the event that a provider no longer offers to the County a medical or dental 

plan listed in this Section 13 or a provider and the County do not renew a medical 
or dental plan listed in this Section 13, the Association agrees that the new 
medical or dental plans selected by the County to replace the current plans will 
be available to employees represented by the Association and the Association 
agrees that the new plans will replace the medical or dental plans provided for in 
this MOU.  The County will give notice to the Association when any new medical 
or dental plans are adopted and when they will be effective for employees 
represented by the Association. 

 
13.3 Retirement Coverage: 
 
A. Upon Retirement: 
 

1. Upon retirement and for the term of this agreement, eligible employees 
and their eligible family members may remain in their County health/dental 
plan, but without County-paid life insurance coverage, if immediately 
before their proposed retirement the employees and dependents are 
either active subscribers to one of the County contracted health/dental 
plans or if while on authorized leave of absence without pay, they have 
retained continuous coverage during the leave period.  The County will 
pay the  Heath/Dental monthly premium subsidies for eligible retirees and 
their eligible family members set forth in subsection 13.2 (Monthly 
Premium Subsidy). 
 

2. Any person who becomes age 65 on or after December 14, 2010, and 
who is eligible for Medicare must immediately enroll in Medicare Parts A 
and B. 

 
3. For employees hired on or after December 14, 2010, and their eligible 

family members, no monthly premium subsidy will be paid by the County 
for any health or dental plan after they separate from County employment.  
However, any such eligible employee who retires under the Contra Costa 
County Employees’ Retirement Association (“CCCERA”) may retain 
continuous coverage of a county health or dental plan provided that (i) he 
or she begins to receive a monthly retirement allowance from CCCERA 
within one hundred twenty (120) days of separation from County 
employment and (ii) he or she pays the full premium cost under the health 
or dental plan without any County premium subsidy. 

 
B. Employees Who File For Deferred Retirement.  Employees, who resign and file 

for a deferred retirement and their eligible family members, may continue in their 
County group health and dental plan under the following conditions and 
limitations. 



SECTION 13 - HEALTH, LIFE & DENTAL CARE 
 

Deputy District Attorneys’ Assn  18 2015-2018 

 
1. Health and dental coverage during the deferred retirement period is totally 

at the expense of the employee, without any County contributions. 
 
2. Life insurance coverage is not included. 
 
3. To continue health and dental coverage, the employee must: 

 
a. be qualified for a deferred retirement under the 1937 Retirement 

Act provisions; 
 
b. be an active member of a County group health and/or dental plan at 

the time of filing their deferred retirement application and elect to 
continue plan benefits; 

 
c. be eligible for a monthly allowance from the Retirement System and 

direct receipt of a monthly allowance within twenty-four (24) months 
of application for deferred retirement; and 

 
d. file an election to defer retirement and to continue health benefits 

hereunder with the County Benefits Division within thirty (30) days 
before separation from County service. 

 
4. Deferred retirees who elect continued health benefits hereunder and their 

eligible family members may maintain continuous membership in their 
County health and/or dental plan group during the period of deferred 
retirement by paying the full premium for health and dental coverage on or 
before the 10th of each month, to the Contra Costa County Auditor-
Controller.  When the deferred retirees begin to receive retirement 
benefits, they will qualify for the same health and/or dental plan coverage 
pursuant to Subsection 13.3 (Retirement Coverage) paragraph A as 
similarly situated retirees who did not defer retirement are entitled. 

 
5. Deferred retirees may elect health benefits hereunder without electing to 

maintain participation in their County health and/or dental plan during their 
deferred retirement period.  When the deferred retirees begin to receive 
retirement benefits, they will qualify for the same health and/or dental 
coverage pursuant to Subsection 13.3 (Retirement Coverage) paragraph 
A as similarly situated retirees who did not defer retirement, provided 
reinstatement to a County group health and/or dental plan will only occur 
following a three (3) full calendar month waiting period after the month in 
which their retirement allowance commences. 

 
6. Employees who elect deferred retirement will not be eligible in any event 

for County health or dental plan subvention unless the member draws a 
monthly retirement allowance within twenty-four (24) months after 
separation from County service. 

 



SECTION 13 - HEALTH, LIFE & DENTAL CARE 
 

Deputy District Attorneys’ Assn 19  2015-2018 

7. Deferred retirees and their eligible family members are required to meet 
the same eligibility provisions for health/dental coverage as similarly 
situated retirees who did not defer retirement. 
 

C. Employees Hired After December 31, 2006 - Eligibility for Retiree Health 
Coverage:  All employees hired after December 31, 2006 are eligible for retiree 
health/dental coverage pursuant to subsection 13.3 (Retirement Coverage) 
paragraphs (A) and (B), above, upon completion of fifteen (15) years of service 
as an employee of Contra Costa County.  For purposes of retiree health 
eligibility, one (1) year of service is defined as one thousand (1,000) hours 
worked within one anniversary year.  The existing method of crediting service 
while an employee is on an approved leave of absence will continue for the 
duration of this Agreement. 

 
D. Subject to the provisions of subsection 13.3 (Retirement Coverage) paragraphs 

A, B, and C and upon retirement, the following employees (and their eligible 
family members) are eligible to receive a monthly premium subsidy for health and 
dental plans or are eligible to retain continuous coverage of such plans: 
employees, and each employee who retires from a position or classification that 
was represented by this bargaining unit at the time of his or her retirement. 

 
E. For purposes of this subsection 13.3 (Retirement Coverage) only, “eligible family 

members” does not include Survivors of employees or retirees. 
 
13.4 Health Plan Coverages and Provisions.  The following provisions are 
applicable regarding County Health and Dental Plan participation: 

 
A. Health, Dental and Life Participation by Other Employees:  Permanent 

part-time employees working nineteen (19) hours per week or less may 
participate in the County Health or Dental plans (with the associated life 
insurance benefit) at the employee’s full expense. 

 
B. Coverage Upon Separation:  An employee who separates from County 

employment is covered by his/her County health and/or dental plan 
through the last day of the month in which he/she separates.  Employees 
who separate from County employment may continue group health and/or 
dental plan coverage to the extent provided by the COBRA laws and 
regulations. 

 
13.5 Family Member Eligibility Criteria:  The following persons may be enrolled as 
the eligible Family Members of a medical or dental plan Subscriber: 
 
A. Health Insurance 
 
 1. Eligible Dependents: 
 
  a. Employee’s Legal Spouse 
  b. Employee’s qualified domestic partner 
  c. Employee’s child to age 26 
  d. Employee’s Disabled Child who is: 



SECTION 13 - HEALTH, LIFE & DENTAL CARE 
 

Deputy District Attorneys’ Assn  20 2015-2018 

   (1) over age 26, 
    i. Unmarried; and, 
 ii. Incapable of sustaining employment due to a physical 

or mental disability that existed prior to the child’s 
attainment of age 19. 

 
2. “Employee’s child” includes natural child, child of a qualified domestic 

partner, step-child, adopted child and a child specified in a Qualified 
Medical Child Support Order (QMCSO) or similar court order. 

 
B. Dental Insurance  
 
 1. Eligible Dependents: 
 
  a. Employee’s Legal Spouse 
  b. Employee’s qualified domestic partner  
  c. Employee’s unmarried child who is: 
   (1)  Under age 19; or 
  (2) Age 19, or above, but under age 24; and, 
 i. Resides with the Employee for more than 50% of the 

year excluding time living at school; and, 
 ii. Receives at least 50% of support from Employee; 

and, 
 iii. Is enrolled and attends school on a full-time basis, as 

defined by the school. 
 
  d. Employee’s Disabled Child who is: 
   (1) Over age 19, 
    i. Unmarried; and, 
 ii. Incapable of sustaining employment due to a physical 

or mental disability that existed prior to the child’s 
attainment of age 19. 

 
2. “Employee’s child” includes natural child, child of a qualified domestic 

partner, step-child, adopted child and a child specified in a Qualified 
Medical Child Support Order (QMCSO) or similar court order. 

 
13.6 Dual Coverage. 

 
A. Each employee and retiree may be covered only by a single County health (or 

dental) plan, including a CalPERS plan.  For example, a County employee may 
be covered under a single County health and/or dental plan as either the primary 
insured or the dependent of another County employee or retiree, but not as both 
the primary insured and the dependent of another County employee or retiree. 

 
B. All dependents as defined in Section 13.5 Family Member Eligibility Criteria, may 

be covered by the health and/or dental plan of only one spouse or one domestic 
partner.  For example, when both husband and wife are County employees, all of 



SECTION 13 - HEALTH, LIFE & DENTAL CARE 
 

Deputy District Attorneys’ Assn 21  2015-2018 

their eligible children may be covered as dependents of either the husband or the 
wife, but not both. 

 
C. For purposes of this subsection 13.6 (Dual Coverage) only, “County” includes the 

County of Contra Costa and all special districts governed by the Board of 
Supervisors, including, but not limited to, the Contra Costa County Fire 
Protection District. 

 
13.7 Medical Plan Cost-Sharing on and after January 1, 2016. 
 
A. For the plan year that begins on January 1, 2016, the County will pay the monthly 

premium subsidy for medical plans stated in subsection 13.2.A., and adjust the 
amounts paid by the County so that the employee cost for the 2016 plan year 
does not increase and in recognition of the increases to the Employee Plus Two 
or More Dependents medical premiums caused by the shift to a three-tier plan 
structure.  In total, the County will pay the following amounts for the 2016 plan 
year: 

 
Medical Plans Employee Employee +1 

Dependent 
Employee +2 or 

More Dependents 
Contra Costa Health Plans (CCHP), Plan A $530.56 $1,049.81 $1,646.89 
Contra Costa Health Plans (CCHP), Plan B $549.42 $1,068.65 $1,737.03 
Kaiser Permanente Health Plan A  $435.38 $803.96 $1,493.79 
Kaiser Permanente Health Plan B  $445.04 $881.68 $1,407.40 
Health Net HMO Plan A  $669.34 $1,131.34 $2,280.09 
Health Net HMO Plan B $662.01 $1,280.20 $2,060.75 
Health Net PPO Plan A $727.94 $1,112.03 $2,755.43 
Health Net PPO Plan B  $715.64 $1,144.40 $2,623.86 
County Selected High Deductible Health Plan $447.04 $916.72 $1,387.40 

 
B.   For the plan year that begins on January 1, 2017, and for the term of this 

agreement, if there is an increase in the monthly premium, including any plan 
premium penalty, charged by a medical plan, the County and the employee will 
each pay fifty percent (50%) of the monthly increase that is above the amount of 
the 2016 plan premium.    The fifty percent (50%) share of the monthly medical 
plan increase paid by the County is in addition to the amounts paid by the County 
in subsection 13.7.A. for medical plans.  If the monthly premium charged for a 
Kaiser Permanente Plan B tier is less than the amount paid by the County 
pursuant to subsection 13.7.A. for that tier, then the difference (100% of the 
savings) will be divided equally among the other Kaiser Permanente Plan B tiers.  
The savings amount will be added to the medical plan premium cost-sharing 
increase amounts paid by the County in a plan year. 

 
C. 2016 Plan Premium Amounts:  For purposes of calculating the County and 

Employee cost-sharing increases described in subsection13.7.B, above, the 
following are the 2016 total monthly medical plan premium amounts: 
 

 



SECTION 13 - HEALTH, LIFE & DENTAL CARE 
 

Deputy District Attorneys’ Assn  22 2015-2018 

 
Medical Plans Employee Employee +1 

Dependent 
Employee +2 or 

More Dependents 
Contra Costa Health Plans (CCHP), Plan A $657.08 $1,314.15 $1,971.23 
Contra Costa Health Plans (CCHP), Plan B $728.38 $1,456.77 $2,185.15 
Kaiser Permanente Health Plan A $749.80 $1,499.60 $2,249.39 
Kaiser Permanente Health Plan B $585.68 $1,171.36 $1,757.04 
Health Net HMO Plan A $1,208.76 $2,417.52 $3,626.27 
Health Net HMO Plan B $840.55 $1,681.10 $2,521.65 
Health Net PPO Plan A $1,643.40 $3,286.80 $4,930.20 
Health Net PPO Plan B $1,479.47 $2,958.94 $4,438.40 

 

13.8 Life Insurance Benefit Under Health and Dental Plans.  For employees who 
are enrolled in the County’s program of medical or dental coverage as either the primary 
or the dependent, term life insurance in the amount of ten thousand dollars ($10,000) 
will be provided by the County.  For Deputy District Attorneys, additional Group Term 
Life Insurance in the amount of forty-five thousand dollar ($45,000) will be provided by 
the County. 
 
13.9 Supplemental Life Insurance.  In addition to the life insurance benefits provided 
by this agreement, employees may subscribe voluntarily and at their own expense for 
supplemental life insurance.  Employees may subscribe for an amount not to exceed 
five hundred thousand dollars ($500,000), of which one hundred thousand ($100,000) is 
a guaranteed issue, provided the election is made within the required enrollment 
periods. 
 
13.10 Health Care Spending Account.  After six (6) months of permanent 
employment, full and part-time (20/40 or greater) employees may elect to participate in 
a Health Care Spending Account (HCSA) Program designated to qualify for tax savings 
under Section 125 of the Internal Revenue Code, but such savings are not guaranteed.  
The HCSA Program allows employees to set aside a predetermined amount of money 
from their pay, not to exceed the maximum amount authorized by federal law, per 
calendar year, of before tax dollars, for health care expenses not reimbursed by any 
other health benefit plans.  HCSA dollars may be expended on any eligible medical 
expenses allowed by Internal Revenue Code Section 125.  Any unused balance is 
forfeited and cannot be recovered by the employee.   
 
13.11 PERS Long-Term Care.  The County will deduct and remit monthly premiums to 
the PERS Long-Term Care Administrator for employees who are eligible and voluntarily 
elect to purchase long-term care at their personal expense through the PERS Long-
Term Care Program. 
 
13.12 Dependent Care Assistance Program.  The County offers the option of 
enrolling in a Dependent Care Assistance Program (DCAP) designed to qualify for tax 
savings under Section 129 of the Internal Revenue Code, but such savings are not 
guaranteed.  The program allows employees to set aside a predetermined amount of 
annual salary not to exceed the lesser of either five thousand dollars ($5,000) or the 



SECTION 13 - HEALTH, LIFE & DENTAL CARE 
 

Deputy District Attorneys’ Assn 23  2015-2018 

maximum amount authorized by federal law, per calendar year, of before tax dollars to 
pay for eligible dependent care (child and elder care) expenses.  Any unused balance is 
forfeited and cannot be recovered by the employee. 
 
13.13 Premium Conversion Plan.  The County offers the Premium Conversion Plan 
(PCP) designed to qualify for tax savings under Section 125 of the Internal Revenue 
Code, but tax savings are not guaranteed.  The program allows employees to use pre-
tax dollars to pay health and dental premiums. 
 
13.14 Prevailing Section.  To the extent that any provision of this Section 13 (Health, 
Life and Dental Care) is inconsistent with any provision of any other County enactment 
or policy, including but not limited to Administrative Bulletins, the Salary Regulations, 
the Personnel Management Regulations, or any other agreement or order of the Board 
of Supervisors, the provision(s) of this Section 13 (Health, Life and Dental Care) will 
prevail. 
 
13.15 Rate Information.  The County Benefits Division will make health and dental 
plan rate information available upon request to employees and departments.  In 
addition, the County Benefits Division will publish and distribute to employees and 
departments information about rate changes as they occur during the year. 
 
13.16 Partial Month.  The County's contribution to the health plan premium is payable 
for any month in which the employee is paid.  If an employee is not paid enough 
compensation in a month to pay the employee share of the premium, the employee 
must make up the difference by remitting the amount delinquent to the Auditor-
Controller.  The responsibility for this payment rests with the employee.  If payment is 
not made, the employee shall be dropped from the health plan. 
 
13.17 Coverage During Absences.  Employees shall be allowed to maintain their 
health plan coverage at the County group rate for twelve (12) months if on approved 
leave of absence provided that the employee shall pay the entire premium (i.e. both 
employer and employee share) for the health plan during said leave.  Said payment 
shall be made by the employee at a time and place specified by the County.  Late 
payment shall result in cancellation of health plan coverage. 
 
An employee on leave in excess of twelve (12) months may continue group coverage 
subject to the provisions of the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act 
(COBRA) provided the employee pays the entire cost of coverage, plus any 
administrative fees, for the option selected.  The entire cost of coverage shall be paid at 
a place and time specified by the County.  Late payment may result in cancellation of 
health plan coverage with no reinstatement allowed. 
 
13.18 Child Care.  The County will continue to support the concept of non-profit child 
care facilities similar to the “Kid’s at Work” program established in the Public Works 
Department. 
 
13.19 Health Benefit Coverage for Permanent Intermittent Employees.  To access 
County health coverage, permanent intermittent employees represented by the 
Association must be eligible to receive an offer of coverage from the County under the 



SECTION 14 – CATASTROPHIC LEAVE BANK 
 

Deputy District Attorneys’ Assn  24 2015-2018 

federal Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act (“ACA”) (42 U.S.C. § 18081).  
Employees eligible to receive an offer of coverage (and qualified dependents), will be 
offered access to the County’s lowest cost, single individual health insurance plan as 
determined by the County.  Employees will be responsible for the full premium cost of 
coverage.  This provision is not subject to the grievance process. 
 
 
SECTION 14 – CATASTROPHIC LEAVE BANK 
 
14.1 Program Design.  All employees are included in the Catastrophic Leave Bank 
and may designate a portion of accrued vacation, compensatory time, holiday 
compensatory time, or personal holiday credit to be deducted from the donor's existing 
balances and credited to the bank or to a specific eligible employee. 
 
A. The County Human Resources Department operates a Catastrophic Leave Bank 

which is designed to assist any County employee who has exhausted all paid 
accruals due to a serious or catastrophic illness, injury, or condition of the 
employee or family member. The program establishes and maintains a 
Countywide bank wherein any employee who wishes to contribute may authorize 
that a portion of his/her accrued vacation, compensatory time, holiday 
compensatory time or personal holiday credit be deducted from those account(s) 
and credited to the Catastrophic Leave Bank. Employees may donate hours 
either to a specific eligible employee or to the bank. Upon approval, credits from 
the Catastrophic Leave Bank may be transferred to a requesting employee's sick 
leave account so that employee may remain in paid status for a longer period of 
time, thus partially ameliorating the financial impact of the illness, injury or 
condition. Catastrophic illness or injury is defined as a critical medical condition, 
a long-term major physical impairment or disability that manifests itself during 
employment. 

 
B. The plan is administered under the direction of the Director of Human Resources. 

The Human Resources Department is responsible for receiving and recording all 
donations of accruals and for initiating transfer of credits from the Bank to the 
recipient's sick leave account. Disbursement of accruals is subject to the 
approval of a six (6) member committee composed of three (3) members 
appointed by the County Administrator and three (3) members appointed by the 
majority representative employee organizations. The committee will meet as 
necessary to consider all requests for credits and will make determinations as to 
the appropriateness of the request. The committee will determine the amount of 
accruals to be awarded for employees whose donations are non-specific. 
Consideration of all requests by the committee will be on an anonymous 
requester basis. 

 
C. Hours transferred from the Catastrophic Leave Bank to a recipient will be in the 

form of sick leave accruals and will be treated as regular sick leave accruals. 
 
D. To receive credits under this plan, an employee must have permanent status, 

have exhausted all time off accruals to a level below eight (8) hours total, have 
applied for a medical leave of absence, and have medical verification of need. 



SECTION 15 – TRAVEL REIMBURSEMENT 
 

Deputy District Attorneys’ Assn 25  2015-2018 

 
E. Donations are irrevocable unless the donation to the eligible employee is denied. 

Donations may be made in hourly blocks with a minimum donation of not less 
than four (4) hours from balances in the vacation, holiday, personal holiday, 
compensatory time or holiday compensatory time accounts. Employees who 
elect to donate to a specific individual will have seventy-five percent (75%) of 
their donation credited to the individual and twenty-five percent (25%) credited to 
the Catastrophic Leave Bank. 

 
F. Time donated will be converted to a dollar value and the dollar value will be 

converted back to sick leave accruals at the recipient's base hourly rate when 
disbursed. Credits will not be on a straight hour-for-hour basis. All computations 
will be on a standard 173.33 basis, except that employees on other than a forty 
(40) hour week will have hours prorated according to their status. 

 
G. Each recipient is limited to a total of one thousand forty (1040) hours or its 

equivalent per catastrophic event; each donor is limited to one hundred twenty 
(120) hours per calendar year. 

 
H. All appeals from either a donor or recipient will be resolved on a final basis by the 

Director of Human Resources. 
 
I. No employee has any entitlement to catastrophic leave benefits. The award of 

Catastrophic Leave is at the sole discretion of the committee, both as to amounts 
of benefits awarded and as to persons awarded benefits. Benefits May be 
denied, or awarded for less than six (6) months.  The committee may limit 
benefits in accordance with available contributions and choose from among 
eligible applicants on an anonymous basis those who will receive benefits, 
except for hours donated to a specific employee.  In the event a donation is 
made to a specific employee and the committee determines the employee does 
not meet the Catastrophic Leave Bank criteria, the donating employee may 
authorize the hours to be donated to the bank or returned to the donor's account.  
The donating employee has fourteen (14) calendar days from notification to 
submit his/her decision regarding the status of their donation, or the hours will be 
irrevocably transferred to the Catastrophic Leave Bank. 

 
J. Any unused hours transferred to a recipient will be returned to the Catastrophic 

Leave Bank. 
 
 
SECTION 15 – TRAVEL REIMBURSEMENT 
 
The County will pay a mileage allowance for the use of personal vehicles on County 
business at the rate allowed by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) as a tax deductible 
expense, adjusted to reflect changes in this rate on the date it becomes effective or the 
first of the month following announcement of the changed rate by the IRS, whichever is 
later. This section will be administered in accordance with Administrative Bulletin 111.7. 
 
 



SECTION 16 – RETIREMENT 
 

Deputy District Attorneys’ Assn  26 2015-2018 

 
SECTION 16 – RETIREMENT 
 
16.1 Contribution.  Effective on September 1, 2012,  employees are responsible for 
the payment of one hundred percent (100%) of the employees’ basic retirement benefit 
contributions determined annually by the Board of Retirement of the Contra Costa 
County Employees’ Retirement Association, without the County paying any part of the 
employees’ contribution.  Employees are also  responsible for the payment for the 
employees’ contributions to the retirement cost of living program as determined annually 
by the Board of Retirement, without the County paying any part of the employees’ 
contributions. The County is responsible for one hundred percent (100%) of the 
employer’s retirement contributions determined annually by the Board of Retirement. 
 
16.2 414H2 Participation.  The County will continue to implement Section 414(h) (2) 
of the Internal Revenue Code which allows the County Auditor-Controller to reduce the 
gross monthly pay of employees by an amount equal to the employee's total 
contribution to the County Retirement System before Federal and State income taxes 
are withheld, and forward that amount to the Retirement system. This program of 
deferred retirement contribution will be universal and non-voluntary as is required by 
statute. 
 
16.3 Retirement Benefits – Employees Who Become Members of CCCERA After 
December 31, 2012. 
 
A. For employees who become members of the Contra Costa County Employees 

Retirement Association (CCCERA) after December 31, 2012, retirement benefits 
are governed by the California Public Employees Pension Reform Act of 2013 
(PEPRA), (Chapters 296, 297, Statutes of 2012). To the extent PEPRA conflicts 
with any provision of this Agreement, PEPRA will govern. 

 
B. For employees who become members of the Contra Costa County Employees 

Retirement Association (CCCERA) after December 31, 2012, cost of living 
adjustment to the retirement allowance will not exceed two percent (2%) per 
year, and the cost of living adjustment will be banked. 

 
C. The County will seek legislation amending the County Employees Retirement 

Law of 1937 to clarify that the current Tier III disability provisions apply to 
employees who, under PEPRA, become New Members of CCCERA.  As soon as 
feasible, the County and the Association shall work actively and cooperatively, in 
good faith, in support of the legislation.  The Association must support the 
legislation, in addition to the County, by calling and sending a letter (on 
Association letterhead) in support of the bill to the state legislator sponsoring the 
bill, on or before the date specified by the County.  In addition, if requested by the 
County, the Association must testify in support of the bill before the state 
legislative committees considering the bill.  The parties’ obligation hereunder 
shall continue until the effective date of such legislation, notwithstanding the 
failure to obtain such legislation in any particular legislative session, unless 
otherwise mutually agreed upon by the County and the Association. 

 



SECTION 17 – PROFESSIONAL EXPENSES 
 

Deputy District Attorneys’ Assn 27  2015-2018 

 
SECTION 17 – PROFESSIONAL EXPENSES 
 
17.1 The County shall reimburse each Deputy District Attorney up to a maximum of 
six hundred dollars ($600) for each fiscal year for the following types of expenses:  
membership dues in legal, professional associations; purchase of legal publications; 
legal on-line computer services; and training and travel costs for educational courses 
related to the duties of a Deputy District Attorney; and software and hardware from a 
standardized County approved list or with Department Head approval.  Each Deputy 
District Attorney agrees to comply with the provisions of the Computer Use and Security 
Policy adopted by the Board of Supervisors.  Certification regarding compliance with the 
County’s Computer Use and Security Policy may be required. 
 
The reimbursement of training expenses includes books and is governed by any 
Administrative Bulletins on Travel or Training. 
 
Each professional development reimbursement request must be approved by the 
Department Head and submitted through the regular demand process.  Demands must 
be accompanied by proof of payment (copy of invoice or receipt). 
 
Any unused accrual may be carried forward to the next fiscal year up to eight hundred 
dollars ($800). 
 
17.2 The County will pay, on behalf of Deputy District Attorneys, California State Bar 
membership dues (but not penalty fees) and for criminal specialization fees. To be 
eligible, an employee must be employed as a Deputy District Attorney with the Contra 
Costa County District Attorney’s Office as of January 1 of each calendar year. 
 
The Office of the District Attorney will notify the Auditor-Controller by January 10th of 
each year the count of eligible attorneys and the amount to be paid to the State Bar.   
 
The Auditor-Controller will prepare one check to the State Bar of California for annual 
membership dues by January 20th. 
 
The Office of the District Attorney will process payment and any required documentation 
to the State Bar of California by January 30, of each year. 
 
 
SECTION 18 – BILINGUAL PAY DIFFERENTIAL 
 
A monthly salary differential will be paid to incumbents of positions requiring bilingual 
proficiency as designated by the Appointing Authority and the Director of Human 
Resources. The differential will be prorated for employees working less than full time 
and/or on an unpaid leave of absence during any given month. The differential is one 
hundred dollars ($100.00) per month. 
 
Designation of positions for which bilingual proficiency is required is the sole prerogative 
of the County, and such designations may be amended or deleted at any time. 
 



SECTION 19 – WORKERS’ COMPENSATION 
 

Deputy District Attorneys’ Assn  28 2015-2018 

 
SECTION 19 – WORKERS’ COMPENSATION 
 
A permanent non-safety employee shall continue to receive the appropriate percent of 
regular monthly salary for all accepted claims filed before January 1, 2000.  For all 
accepted claims filed with the County on or after January 1, 2000, the percentage of pay 
for employees entitled to Workers’ Compensation shall be decreased from eighty-seven 
percent (87%) to eighty-six percent (86%).  For all accepted claims filed with the County 
on or after January 1, 2007, the percentage of regular monthly salary for employees 
entitled to Workers’ Compensation shall be decreased from eighty-six percent (86%) to 
eighty percent (80%).  For all accepted claims filed with the County on or after January 
1, 2008, the percentage of regular monthly salary for employees entitled to Workers’ 
Compensation shall be decreased from eighty percent (80%) to seventy-five percent 
(75%).  If Workers’ Compensation becomes taxable, the County agrees to restore the 
original benefit level (100% of monthly salary) and the parties shall meet and confer with 
respect to funding the increased cost. 
 
A. Waiting Period.  There is a three (3) calendar day waiting period before Workers' 

Compensation benefits commence. If the injured worker loses any time on the 
day of injury, that day counts as day one (1) of the waiting period. If the injured 
worker does not lose time on the date of injury, the waiting period will be the first 
three (3) calendar days the employee does not work as a result of the injury. The 
time the employee is scheduled to work during this waiting period will be charged 
to the employee's sick leave and/or vacation accruals. In order to qualify for 
Workers' Compensation the employee must be under the care of a physician. 
Temporary compensation is payable on the first three (3) days of disability when 
the injury necessitates hospitalization, or when the disability exceeds fourteen 
(14) days. 

 
B. Continuing Pay.  Permanent employees shall continue to receive the appropriate 

percentage as outlined above of their regular monthly salary during any period of 
compensable temporary disability not to exceed one year. Payment of continuing 
pay and/or temporary disability compensation shall be made in accordance with 
Part 2, Article 3 of the Workers’ Compensation Laws of California.  
"Compensable temporary disability absence" for the purpose of this Section, is 
any absence due to work connected disability which qualifies for temporary 
disability compensation under Workers' Compensation Law set forth in Part 2, 
Article 3 of the Workers’ Compensation Laws of California.. When any disability 
becomes medically permanent and stationary and/or maximum medical 
improvement, the salary provided in this Section shall terminate. No charge shall 
be made against sick leave or vacation for these salary payments. Sick leave 
and vacation rights shall not accrue for those periods during which continuing 
pay is received. 

 
 The County contribution to the employee’s group medical plan shall continue 

during any period of compensable temporary disability absence. 
 
 Employees shall be entitled to a maximum of one (1) year of continuing pay 

benefits for any one (1) injury or illness. 



SECTION 19 – WORKERS’ COMPENSATION 
 

Deputy District Attorneys’ Assn 29  2015-2018 

 
C. Continuing pay begins at the same time that temporary Workers' Compensation 

benefits commence and continues until either the member is declared medically 
permanent/stationary and/or reaches maximum medical improvement, or until 
one (1) year of continuing pay, whichever comes first, provided the employee 
remains in an active employed status. Continuing pay is automatically terminated 
on the date an employee is separated from County service by resignation, 
retirement, layoff, or the employee is no longer employed by the County. In these 
instances, employees will be paid Workers’ Compensation benefits as prescribed 
by Workers’ Compensation laws. All continuing pay will be cleared through the 
County Administrator's Office, Risk Management Division. 

 
 Whenever an employee who has been injured on the job and has returned to 

work is required by an attending physician to leave work for treatment during 
working hours the employee shall be allowed time off up to three (3) hours for 
such treatment without loss of pay or benefits provided the employee notifies his 
supervisor of the appointment at least three (3) working days prior to the 
appointment or as soon as the employee aware the appointment has been made. 
Said visits are to be scheduled contiguous to either the beginning or end of the 
scheduled work day whenever possible. This provision applies only to 
injuries/illnesses that have been accepted by the County as work related.  

 
D. Applicable Pay Beyond One Year.  If an injured employee remains eligible for 

temporary disability beyond one (1) year, applicable salary will continue by 
integrating sick leave and/or vacation accruals with Workers' Compensation 
benefits. If salary integration is no longer available, Workers' Compensation 
benefits will be paid directly to the employee as prescribed by Workers' 
Compensation laws. 

 
E. Rehabilitation Integration.  An injured employee who is eligible for Workers' 

Compensation Rehabilitation Temporary Disability benefits and whose disability 
is medically permanent and stationary and/or reaches maximum medical 
improvement,  will continue to receive applicable salary by integrating sick leave 
and/or vacation accruals with Workers' Compensation Rehabilitation Temporary 
Disability benefits until those accruals are exhausted. 

 
 Thereafter, the Rehabilitation Temporary Disability benefits will be paid directly to 

the employee. 
 
F. Health Insurance. The County contribution to the employee's group insurance 

plan(s) continues during the continuing pay period and during integration of sick 
leave or vacation with Workers' Compensation benefits. 

 
G. Method of Integration.  An employee's sick leave and/or vacation charges shall 

be calculated as follows:  
 
 C = 8 [1 - (W  S)] 
 C  = Sick leave or vacation charge per day (in hours) 
 W = Statutory Workers' Compensation for a month 
 S  = Monthly salary 



SECTION 20 – LONGEVITY PAY 
 

Deputy District Attorneys’ Assn  30 2015-2018 

 
SECTION 20 – LONGEVITY PAY 
 
A. Longevity Differential.  Permanent, full-time and part-time employees who have 

completed ten (10) years of Contra Costa County service will receive a two and 
one-half percent (2.5%) longevity differential effective on the first day of the 
month following the month in which the employee qualifies for the ten (10) year 
service award. 

 
B. Longevity Differential.  Permanent, full-time and part-time employees who have 

completed fifteen (15) years of Contra Costa County service will receive a two 
and one-half percent (2.5%) longevity differential effective on the first day of the 
month following the month in which the employee qualifies for the fifteen (15) 
year service award. 
 

C. Longevity Differential.  Permanent, full-time and part-time employees who have 
completed twenty (20) years of Contra Costa County service will receive a two 
percent (2%) longevity differential effective on the first day of the month following 
the month in which the employee qualifies for the twenty (20) year service award.  
For those employees who completed twenty (20) years of service on or before 
November 1, 2012, this longevity differential will be paid prospectively only from 
November 1, 2012. 

 
 
SECTION 21 – DEFERRED COMPENSATION INCENTIVE 
 
A. The County will contribute eighty-five dollars ($85) per month to each employee 

who participates in the County’s Deferred Compensation Plan.  To be eligible for 
this Deferred Compensation Incentive, the employee must contribute to the 
deferred compensation plan as indicated below. 

 
 

Employees with Current 
Monthly Salary of: 

 
Qualifying Base 

Contribution Amount 

Monthly Contribution 
Required to Maintain 

Incentive Program Eligibility 

$2,500 and below 
$2,501 – 3,334 
$3,335 – 4,167 
$4,168 – 5,000 
$5,001 – 5,834 
$5,835 – 6,667 

$6,668 and above 

$250 
$500 
$750 

$1,000 
$1,500 
$2,000 
$2,500 

$50 
$50 
$50 
$50 
$100 
$100 
$100 

 
Employees who discontinue contributions or who contribute less than the 
required amount per month for a period of one (1) month or more will no 
longer be eligible for the eighty-five dollar ($85) Deferred Compensation 
Incentive.  To reestablish eligibility, employees must again make a Base 
Contribution Amount as set forth above based on current monthly salary.  
Employees with a break in deferred compensation contributions either 



SECTION 21 – DEFERRED COMPENSATION INCENTIVE 
 

Deputy District Attorneys’ Assn 31  2015-2018 

because of an approved medical leave or an approved financial hardship 
withdrawal will not be required to reestablish eligibility.  Further, employees 
who lose eligibility due to displacement by layoff, but maintain contributions at 
the required level and are later employed in an eligible position, will not be 
required to reestablish eligibility. 

 
B.  Special Benefit for Permanent Employees Hired on and after January 1, 2011: 
 

1. Beginning on April 1, 2011 and for the term of this Agreement, the County 
will contribute one hundred and fifty dollars ($150) per month to an 
employee’s account in the Contra Costa County Deferred Compensation 
Plan, or other tax-qualified savings program designated by the County, for 
employees who meet all of the following conditions: 

 
a. The employee must be hired by Contra Costa County on or after 

January 1, 2011. 
 

b. The employee must be appointed to a permanent position.  The 
position may be either full time or part time, but if it is part time, it 
must be designated, at a minimum, as 20 hours per week. 

 
c. The employee must have been employed by Contra Costa County 

for at least 90 calendar days. 
 
d. The employee must contribute a minimum of twenty-five dollars 

($25) per month to the Contra Costa County Deferred 
Compensation Plan, or other tax-qualified savings program 
designated by the County. 

 
e. The employee must complete and sign the required enrollment 

form(s) for his/her deferred compensation account and submit 
those forms to the Human Resources Department, Employee 
Benefits Services Unit. 

 
f. The employee may not exceed the annual maximum contribution 

amount allowable by the United States Internal Revenue Code. 
 
C.  No Cross Crediting:  The amounts contributed by the employee and the County 

pursuant to Subsection B do not count towards the “Qualifying Base Contribution 
Amount” or the “Monthly Contribution Required to Maintain Incentive Program 
Eligibility” in Subsection A.  Similarly, the amounts contributed by the employee 
and the County pursuant to Subsection A do not count towards the employee’s 
$25 per month minimum contribution required by Subsection B. 

 
D. Maximum Annual Contribution:  All of the employee and County contributions set 

forth in Subsections A and B will be added together to ensure that the annual 
maximum contribution to the employee’s deferred compensation account does 
not exceed the annual maximum contribution rate set forth in the United States 
Internal Revenue Code. 



SECTION 22 – ANNUAL ADMINISTRATIVE LEAVE 
 

Deputy District Attorneys’ Assn  32 2015-2018 

 
E.  Deferred Compensation Plan – Loan Provision:  On June 26, 2012 the Board of 

Supervisors adopted Resolution 2012/298 approving a side letter with the 
Coalition Unions to allow a Deferred Compensation Plan Loan Program effective 
June 26, 2012. The following is a summary of the provisions of the loan program: 
 

1. The minimum amount of the loan is $1,000. 
2. The maximum amount of the loan is the lesser of 50% of the employee’s 

balance or $50,000, or as otherwise provided by law. 
3. The maximum amortization period of the loan is five (5) years. 
4. The loan interest is fixed at the time the loan is originated and for the 

duration of the loan. The loan interest rate is the prime rate plus one 
percent (1%). 

5. There is no prepayment penalty if an employee pays the balance of the 
loan plus any accrued interest before the original amortization period for 
the loan. 

6. The terms of the loan may not be modified after the employee enters into 
the loan agreement, except as provided by law. 

7. An employee may have only one loan at a time. 
8. Payment for the loan is made by monthly payroll deduction. 
9. An employee with a loan who is not in paid status (e.g. unpaid leave of 

absence) may make his/her monthly payments directly to the Plan 
Administrator by some means other than payroll deduction each month 
the employee is in an unpaid status (e.g. by a personal check or money 
order). 

10. The Loan Administrator (MassMutual Life Insurance Company or its 
successor) charges a one-time $50 loan initiation fee. This fee is deducted 
from the employee’s Deferred Compensation account. 

11. The County charges a one-time $25 loan initiation fee and a monthly 
maintenance fee of $1.50. These fees are paid by payroll deduction.  The 
County’s website provides employees with the following information: 

a. Deferred Compensation Loan Provision 
b. FAQ’s for the Loan Provision including loan status upon 

termination of employment and the consequences of 
defaulting on a loan 

c. Pros and Cons of borrowing from the Deferred 
Compensation Plan 

d. Loan Application and Agreement 
 
 
SECTION 22 – ANNUAL ADMINISTRATIVE LEAVE 
 
A. On January 1st of each year, full-time employees in paid status and in the 

classifications of District Attorney – Basic Level, Deputy District Attorney – 
Advanced, and Deputy District Attorney Fixed Term will be credited with ninety 
four (94) hours of paid Administrative Leave. Employees appointed after July 1st 

will be credited for forty seven (47) hours of annual administrative leave on the 
first succeeding January 1st and will be credited for ninety four (94) hours 
annually thereafter. Annual Administrative leave must be used during the 



SECTION 23 – VACATION BUY-BACK 
 

Deputy District Attorneys’ Assn 33  2015-2018 

calendar year in which it is credited and any unused hours may not be carried 
forward. 

 
B. Permanent part-time employees are eligible for administrative leave on a 

prorated basis, based upon their position hours.  Permanent-intermittent 
employees are not eligible for administrative leave. 

 
C. Employees appointed (hired or promoted) are eligible for administrative leave on 

the first day of the month following their appointment date and will receive annual 
administrative leave in accordance with subsection A., above. 

 
 
SECTION 23 – VACATION BUY-BACK 
 
A. For Employees Hired Before January 1, 2012: 
 
 Deputy District Attorney – Basic Level, Deputy District Attorney – Advanced, and 

Deputy District Attorney Fixed Term, may elect payment of up to one-third (1/3) 
of their annual vacation accrual, subject to the following conditions: (1) the choice 
can be made only once in each calendar year; (2) payment is based on an hourly 
rate determined by dividing the employee's monthly salary by 173.33; and (3) the 
maximum number of vacation hours that may be paid in any calendar year is 
one-third (1/3) of the annual accrual. 

 
Where a lump-sum payment is made to employees as a retroactive general 
salary adjustment for a portion of a calendar year that is subsequent to the 
exercise by an employee of the vacation buy-back provision herein, that 
employee's vacation buy-back will be adjusted to reflect the percentage 
difference in base pay rates upon which the lump sum payment was computed, 
provided that the period covered by the lump-sum payment includes the effective 
date of the vacation buy-back. 

 
B. For Employees Hired On and After January 1, 2012. 
 
  Employees promoted or hired by the County into any classification represented 

by the Deputy District Attorneys Association on and after January 1, 2012, are 
not eligible for the Vacation Buy-Back benefit.  However, any employee who was 
eligible for a Vacation Buy-Back benefit before promoting into a classification 
represented by the Deputy District Attorneys Association will retain that benefit 
after promoting into a classification represented by the Deputy District Attorneys 
Association. 

 
 
SECTION 24 – SICK LEAVE INCENTIVE 
 
Employees may be eligible for a payoff of a part of unused sick leave accruals at 
separation.  This program is an incentive for employees to safeguard sick leave 
accruals as protection against wage loss due to time lost for injury or illness.  Payoff 



SECTION 25 – COMPUTER VISION CARE (CVC) USERS EYE EXAM 
 

Deputy District Attorneys’ Assn  34 2015-2018 

must be approved by the Director of Human Resources, and is subject to the following 
conditions: 
 
A. The employee must have resigned in good standing. 
 
B. Payout is not available if the employee is eligible to retire. 
 
C. The balance of sick leave at resignation must be at least seventy percent (70%) 

of accruals earned in the preceding continuous period of employment excluding 
any sick leave use covered by the Family and Medical Leave Act, the California 
Family Rights Act, or the California Pregnancy Disability Act. 

 
 
D. Payout is by the following schedule: 
 

Years of Payment of Unused 
Continuous ServiceSick Leave Payable 

 3 - 5 years 30% 
 5 - 7 years 40% 
 7 plus years 50% 

 
E. No payoff will be made pursuant to this section unless the Contra Costa County 

Employees' Retirement Association has certified that an employee requesting a 
sick leave payoff has terminated membership in, and has withdrawn his or her 
contributions from, the Retirement Association. 

 
F. It is the intent of the Board of Supervisors that payment pursuant to this section 

precludes County retirement benefits resulting from employment by this County 
or Districts governed by the Board. 

 
 
SECTION 25 – COMPUTER VISION CARE (CVC) USERS EYE EXAM 
 
Employees are eligible to receive an annual eye examination on County time and at 
County expense provided that the employee regularly uses a video display terminal at 
least an average of two (2) hours per day as certified by their department. 
 
Employees certified for examination under this program must make their request 
through the Benefits Service Unit of the County Human Resources Department.  Should 
prescription CVC eyeglasses be prescribed for the employee following the examination, 
the County agrees to provide, at no cost, basic CVC eye wear consisting of a fifty dollar 
($50)  frame and single, bifocal or trifocal lenses.  Employees may, through individual 
arrangement between the employee and the employees' doctor and solely at the 
employee's expense, include blended lenses and other care, services or materials not 
covered by the Plan. 
 
 
 
 



SECTION 26 – LONG-TERM DISABILITY INSURANCE 
 

Deputy District Attorneys’ Assn 35  2015-2018 

SECTION 26 – LONG-TERM DISABILITY INSURANCE 
 
The County will continue in force the Long-Term Disability Insurance program with a 
replacement limit of eighty-five percent (85%) of total monthly base earnings reduced by 
any deductible benefits. 
 
 
SECTION 27– ATTORNEY FIXED-TERM CLASSES 
 
A. The Fixed-Term (2KWD) attorney class is ineligible for the following benefits: 
  

 1. Longevity Pay Plan 
 
 2. Management Life Insurance 
 
 3. Management Long-Term Disability 
 
 4. Attorney Professional Development Reimbursement Fund fifty percent 

(50%) of the benefit is available on January 1 and fifty percent (50%) is 
available on July 1. 

 
B. Employees in the Fixed-Term Attorney class will be credited hours paid 

administrative leave each January 1, subject to the provisions of the MOU. 
 
 
SECTION 28 – LAW SCHOOL STUDENT LOAN REIMBURSEMENT PROGRAM 
 
For purposes of retention and to bridge the gap between the newer attorneys and those 
attorneys that qualify for longevity pay. 

 
A. Eligibility:  Fixed term employees and those employees that are converted from 

fixed term to regular employees.  The measuring period runs from date of hire to 
anniversary date.  Such payments shall only be made to employees on the 
payroll as of the date of ratification of this agreement. 

 
B. Qualifying amounts and terms: 

 
i. If during or upon completion of the third consecutive year of employment 

as a full-time Deputy District Attorney Fixed-Term employee (hereafter 
“fixed term employee”), a fixed term employee is employed as a Deputy 
District Attorney - Basic Level (hereafter “regular employee”), such 
employee is eligible to receive $2,000 for purposes of reimbursement for 
law school student loan payments. 

 
ii. For those employees that are not retained and not converted to regular 

employees, upon completion of their ninth consecutive month of 
employment in their third year, an amount not to exceed $1000 will be 
payable to eligible employees. 

 



SECTION 29 – SERVICE AWARDS 
 

Deputy District Attorneys’ Assn  36 2015-2018 

iii. After conversion from a fixed-term employee to a regular employee in the 
fourth full year of employment with the County, at the conclusion of twelve 
consecutive months of service, the eligible Deputy District Attorneys are 
eligible to receive $3000 for purposes of reimbursement for law school 
student loan payments. 

 
iv. After the completion of the fifth full year of employment as a regular full-

time employee, (twelve consecutive months of service) the eligible Deputy 
District Attorneys are eligible to receive $4000 for purposes of 
reimbursement for law school student loan payments. 

 
v. For persons employed less than forty hours per week, the law school 

reimbursement amount shall be adjusted proportionately to the 
percentage of time the person is actively working throughout the 
respective year. 

 
vi. Employee must supply documentation reflecting the existence of an 

outstanding student loan and annual payment record for the student loan 
during the preceding twelve months. 

 
vii. This Law School Loan Reimbursement Program becomes effective one 

month after approval by the Board of Supervisors.  Third year employees 
that reached their anniversary date in December 2007, and have been 
converted to regular employees, after completing 12 consecutive months 
of employment with the District Attorneys office are eligible to receive 
$2000 reimbursement subject to supplying the requisite documentation. 

 
viii. This program is not available to those attorneys that have paid off their law 

school student loans or to those attorneys that have not incurred student 
loans.  

 
ix. Maximum loan reimbursement for eligible employees shall be for a period 

not to exceed three years. 
 

x. The law school loan reimbursement program will not exceed $9000 for 
any one person. 

 
xi. The above payments are subject to applicable state and federal 

withholding, if any. 
 

xii. The terms and conditions are subject to language approved by the 
County’s Auditor’s Office. 

 
 
SECTION 29 – SERVICE AWARDS 
 
A. The County shall continue its present policy with respect to service awards 

including time off provided however that the type of award given shall be at the 
sole discretion of the County. 



SECTION 30 – LOSS OR DAMAGE TO PERSONAL PROPERTY 
 

Deputy District Attorneys’ Assn 37  2015-2018 

 
The following procedure shall apply with respect to service awards: 

 
1. Presentation Before the Board of Supervisors 
 An employee with 20 or more years of service may go before the Board of 

Supervisors to receive his/her service award. 
 
 When requested by the Department, the Human Resources Department 

will make arrangements for the presentation ceremony before the Board of 
Supervisors and notify the Department as to the time and date of the 
Board meeting. 

 
2. Service Award Day Off 
 Employees with 15 or more years of service are entitled to take a day off 

with pay at each five (5) year anniversary. 
 
 
SECTION 30 – LOSS OR DAMAGE TO PERSONAL PROPERTY 
 
The loss or damage to personal property of employees is subject to reimbursement.  
Reimbursement shall be limited to the actual cost to repair damages.  Reimbursement 
for items damaged beyond repair shall be limited to the actual value of the item at the 
time of loss or damage but not more than the original cost.  Reimbursement for loss or 
damage of personal property shall be in accordance with Administrative Bulletin 518.2 
(May 23, 1989). 
 
 
SECTION 31 – ADOPTION 
 
The provisions of this MOU shall be made applicable on the dates indicated and upon 
approval by the Board of Supervisors.  Resolutions and Ordinances, where necessary, 
shall be prepared and adopted in order to implement these provisions. 
 
It is understood that where it is determined that an Ordinance is required to implement 
any of the foregoing provisions, said provisions shall become effective upon the first day 
of the month following thirty (30) days after such Ordinance is adopted. 
 
 
SECTION 32 - SCOPE OF AGREEMENT AND SEVERABILITY OF PROVISIONS 
 
32.1 Scope of Agreement.  Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, this 
MOU fully and completely incorporates the understanding of the parties hereto and 
constitutes the sole and entire agreement between the parties in any and all matters 
subject to meet and confer.  Neither party shall, during the term of this MOU demand 
any change herein, provided that nothing herein shall prohibit the parties from changing 
the terms of this MOU by mutual agreement.  Any past side letters or any other 
agreements that are not incorporated into or attached to this MOU are deemed expired 
upon approval of this MOU by the Board of Supervisors. 
 





ATTACHMENTS 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT A CLASS AND SALARY LISTING 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENT B MEDICAL/DENTAL PLANS COPAYS 
 
 

   



ATTACHMENT A

Job code Class Title

Flex Staff (F)/ 

Deep Class (D) From To

2KTG DEPUTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY-ADV $10,934.03 $12,069.12

2KTF DEPUTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY-BASIC $8,978.59 $10,939.54

2KWD DEPUTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY-FT $6,475.26 $6,961.00

DEPUTY DISTRICT ATTORNEYS' ASSOCIATION

CLASS AND SALARY LISTING

Effective 7/1/2015

Salary Range



ATTACHMENT B 

Deputy District Attorney’s Association 
 

MEDICAL/DENTAL PLANS 

July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2018 
 

Covered Offered 

The County offers the following Plans: 

Contra Costa Health Plans (CCHP), Kaiser Permanente, Health Net, Delta Dental and Delta Care USA (PMI) Dental. 
 

Co-Pays and Co-Insurance 
 

The health plan co-pays are as follows: 
 

CCHP A:     $0 Office Visit in the RMC Network 

      $0 Preferred Generic RX 

      $0 Preferred Brand RX 

      $0 Non-Preferred Brand RX 
 

CCHP B (*):     $0 Office Visit in the RMC Network 

      $5 Office Visit in the CPN Network 

      $3 Preferred Generic RX 

      $3 Preferred Brand RX 

      $3 Non-Preferred Brand RX 
 

KAISER PERMANENTE PLAN A (*):  $10 Office Visit 

      $10 Preferred Generic RX 

      $20 Preferred Brand RX 

      $20 Non-Preferred Brand RX 

      $10 Emergency Room 
 

KAISER PERMANENTE PLAN:   $500 Deductible Per Person 

$1000 Deductible Per Family 

$20 Office Visit Copay (not subject to deductible) 

      $20 Urgent Care Copay (not subject to deductible) 

$10 Lab & X-ray Copay (not subject to deductible) 

$10 Preferred Generic RX 

      $30 Preferred Brand RX 

      $30 Non-Preferred Brand RX 

10% Co-Insurance After Deductible for Inpatient Hospital, Outpatient 

Surgical and Emergency Room 

$3000 per person and $6000 per family Annual Out of Pocket Maximum 

 
  



 
KAISER PERMANENTE HDHP   $1500 Deductible Per Person 
      $3000 Deductible Per Family 
      10%  Office Visit Coinsurance (After Deductible) 
      10%  Urgent Care Coinsurance (After Deductible) 
      10%  Lab & X-Ray Coinsurance (After Deductible) 
      $10 Generic Rx (After Deductible) 
      $30 Brand-Name Rx (After Deductible) 
      10% Inpatient Hospitalization Coinsurance (After Deductible) 
      10% Outpatient Surgery & ER Coinsurance (After Deductible) 
      $3000 per Person Annual Out of Pocket Maximum 
      $6000 per Family Annual Out of Pocket Maximum 
 

HEALTH NET HMO Plan A (*):   $10 Office Visit 
      $10 Preferred Generic RX 
      $20 Preferred Brand RX 

      $35 Non-Preferred Brand or Generic RX 

      $25 Emergency Room 
 

HEALTH NET HMO Plan B:   $20 Office Visit  

      $50 Urgent Care Visit 

$1000 Inpatient Hospital Co-pay 

$500 Out-Patient Surgery Co-pay 

$100 Emergency Room Co-pay 

      $10 Preferred Brand RX 

      $20 Non-Preferred Brand RX 

      $35 Non-Preferred Brand or Generic RX  

$2000 per person and $6000 per family Annual Out of Pocket Maximum 
 

HEALTH NET PPO Plan A (*):   $10 Office Visit in network 
      $5 Preferred Generic RX 
      $5 Preferred Brand RX 
      $5 Non-Preferred Brand or Generic RX 
      $50 Emergency Room Deductible, 10% Co-Insurance 
 
HEALTH NET PPO Plan B (*):   $500 Deductible Per Person 
      $1500 Deductible Per Family 

$20 Office Visit in network 

      80% / 20% For Most In-Network Benefit 

      60% / 40% For Most In-Network Benefit 

$10 Preferred Generic RX 

      $20 Preferred Brand RX 

      $35 Non-Preferred Brand or Generic RX 

      $50 Emergency Room Deductible, 30% Co-Insurance 

 

* This plan is not available to employees hired on or after January 1, 2016 



CONTRA COSTA COUNTY 
DEPUTY DISTRICT ATTORNEYS’ ASSOCIATION 

 
SUBJECT INDEX 

 
 
 
414H2 Participation ....................................................................................................... 26 
Accrual Usage ............................................................................................................... 10 
Adoption ........................................................................................................................ 37 
Aggregate Use for Spouse ............................................................................................ 14 
Annual Administrative Leave ......................................................................................... 32 
Arbitrator’s Decision (Final and Binding) ......................................................................... 9 
Association Recognition .................................................................................................. 3 
Association Representatives ........................................................................................... 4 
Association Security ........................................................................................................ 4 
Attendance at Meetings .................................................................................................. 4 
Attorney Fixed-Term Classes ........................................................................................ 35 
Automated Time Keeping .............................................................................................. 10 
 
Bilingual Pay Differential ............................................................................................... 27 
 
Catastrophic Leave Bank .............................................................................................. 24 
Certification ................................................................................................................... 13 
Child Care ..................................................................................................................... 23 
Communicating With Employees .................................................................................... 4 
Compensation Claims ..................................................................................................... 8 
Computer Vision Care (CVC) Users Eye Exam ............................................................ 34 
Contribution (Retirement) .............................................................................................. 26 
Coverage During Absences .......................................................................................... 23 
 
Days and Hours of Work/Holidays .................................................................................. 9 
Deferred Compensation Incentive ................................................................................. 30 
Definitions (Days and Hours of Work/Holidays) .............................................................. 9 
Definitions – Holidays .................................................................................................... 10 
Definitions (Sick Leave) ................................................................................................ 14 
Definition & Procedural Steps (Grievance Procedure) .................................................... 7 
Dependent Care Assistance Program ........................................................................... 22 
Dual Coverage .............................................................................................................. 20 
Dues Deduction ............................................................................................................... 4 
Duration of Agreement .................................................................................................. 38 
 
Family Care Leave or Medical Leave ............................................................................ 13 
Family Member Eligibility Criteria .................................................................................. 19 
 
General Administration .................................................................................................. 13 
General Wages ............................................................................................................... 5 
Grievance Procedure ...................................................................................................... 7 
 

-i- 



Health Benefit Coverage for Employees Not Otherwise Covered ................................. 23 
Health Care Spending Account ..................................................................................... 22 
Health, Life & Dental Care ............................................................................................ 15 
Health Plan Coverages ................................................................................................. 15 
Health Plan Coverages and Provisions ......................................................................... 19 
Holidays Observed ........................................................................................................ 10 
Holidays – Part-Time Employees .................................................................................. 11 
 
Intermittent Use of Leave .............................................................................................. 14 
 
Jury Duty ......................................................................................................................... 6 
Jury Duty and Witness Duty ............................................................................................ 6 
 
Law School Student Loan Reimbursement Program .................................................... 35 
Layoffs ............................................................................................................................ 6 
Leave of Absence ......................................................................................................... 13 
Leave Without Pay ........................................................................................................ 13 
Life Insurance Benefit Under Health & Dental Plans .................................................... 22 
Long Term Disability Insurance ..................................................................................... 34 
Longevity Pay ................................................................................................................ 30 
Loss or Damage to Personal Property .......................................................................... 37 
 
Maintenance of Membership ........................................................................................... 4 
Medical Plan Cost-Sharing on and after January 1, 2016 ............................................. 21 
Monthly Premium Subsidy............................................................................................. 16 
 
No Discrimination ............................................................................................................ 4 
 
Partial Month ................................................................................................................. 23 
Part-Time Employees (Sick Leave) ............................................................................... 12 
Personal Holiday Credit................................................................................................. 10 
Personnel Management Regulations ............................................................................ 38 
PERS Long-Term Care ................................................................................................. 22 
Premium Conversion Plan ............................................................................................ 23 
Prevailing Section ......................................................................................................... 23 
Professional Expenses .................................................................................................. 27 
Program Design ............................................................................................................ 24 
 
Rate Information............................................................................................................ 23 
Retirement ..................................................................................................................... 26 
Retirement Benefits–Employees Who Become Mbrs of CCCERA After 12/31/12 ....... 26 
Retirement Coverage .................................................................................................... 17 
 
Salaries ........................................................................................................................... 5 
Scope of Agreement ..................................................................................................... 37 
Scope of Agreement and Severability of Provisions ..................................................... 37 
Service Award Date Defined ......................................................................................... 12 

-ii- 



Service Awards ............................................................................................................. 36 
Severability of Provisions .............................................................................................. 38 
Sick Leave ..................................................................................................................... 12 
Sick Leave Incentive ..................................................................................................... 33 
Strike or Work Stoppage ................................................................................................. 8 
Supplemental Life Insurance ......................................................................................... 22 
 
Timestamp .................................................................................................................... 10 
Travel Reimbursement .................................................................................................. 25 
 
Use of County Buildings .................................................................................................. 4 
 
Vacation Accrual Rates ................................................................................................. 11 
Vacation Allowance for Separated Employees ............................................................. 12 
Vacation Buy-Back ........................................................................................................ 33 
Vacation Leave ............................................................................................................. 11 
 
Withdrawal of Membership.............................................................................................. 4 
Witness Duty ................................................................................................................... 7 
Workers’ Compensation ................................................................................................ 28 

-iii- 



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Agricultural Commissioner, or designee, to execute a contract with the California

Agricultural Commissioners and Sealers Association (CACASA) to reimburse the Count an amount not to exceed

$6,372 for non-mandated pesticide use reporting activities for the period of July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

The Agricultural Department will be reimbursed in an amount not to exceed $6372 for activities related to pesticide

use reporting. There is no county match of funds. 

BACKGROUND: 

The California Department of Pesticide Regulations no longer offers individual data submission contracts to counties

and has contracted with CACASA to provide the data storage, software and data communication infrastructure for the

reporting of pesticide use data. CACASA has simplified the overall process of the stat submission contracts and is

providing the online program support to maintain the enhanced reporting capabilities. In order to ease the transition

from county personnel inputting the data to the user of the pesticide inputting the data, CACASA is providing funding

to counties during the transition period, in return for county agricultural commissioners' efforts to provide on-going

data input and training to submitters of data to use the new online submission program. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF

SUPERVISORS

Contact:  646-5250

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of
Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

C. 29

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Chad Godoy, Director of Agriculture/Weights & Measures

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: MOU between CA Agricultural Commissioners and Sealers Assn. (CACASA) and the Agricultural Commissioner of

CCC



CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

A negative vote would cause the department to lose revenue for the pesticide use reporting program.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

None



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director, or his designee, to execute, on behalf of the County, Interagency

Agreement #28-682-13 with Mt. Diablo Unified School District, to pay County an amount not to exceed $9,000, for

the Tuberculosis (TB) Testing Program for Mt. Diablo Unified School District (MDUSD) employees, for the period

from September 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Approval of this Interagency Agreement will result in a total payment to the County not to exceed $9,000. No County

match required. 

BACKGROUND: 

In the past, MDUSD employees received vouchers to be used at Public Health Clinics for TB testing. Employees

experienced extremely long waits to redeem their vouchers for testing and subsequent reading. In an effort to provide

better services, MDUSD, Contra Costa Health Services, Public Health Clinic Services have coordinated to provide

TB testing and reading services at one MDUSD facility. Under Interagency Agreement #28-682-13 Mt. Diablo

Unified School District will pay the County a total of $9,000, to provide TB testing and reading services for MDUSD

employees, through June 30, 2016. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  DANIEL PEDDYCORD

313-6712

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the
Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: A Floyd ,   N Rios   

C. 30

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Interagency Agreement #28-682-13 with Mt Diablo Unified School District



CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this agreement is not approved, County will not be able to provide TB testing services to Contractor’s employees.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not Applicable



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and Authorize the County Administrator, or designee, to execute a grant amendment with the State of

California, California Arts Council, to increase the amount payable to the County by $11,996 for a new total of

$23,996, to provide advocacy for the advancement of the arts in Contra Costa County, with no change in the term of

October 1, 2015 through September 30, 2016.

FISCAL IMPACT: 

A match of $12,000 is required under the terms of the Grant. This amount may be from any public or private source.

In-kind donated services may be used for up to 50% of the requirement. The match requirement is met by the current

General Fund appropriation to the Arts and Culture Commission of $14,248. In addition, an appropriation is made to

the Public Works Department to cover the cost of the Arts and Culture Commission's building occupancy costs. This

indirect appropriation may also be used to cover the required match.

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Enid Mendoza, (925)

335-1039

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the
Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

C. 31

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: David Twa, County Administrator

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Accept Additional SLPP Funds for the Arts and Culture Commission



BACKGROUND:

Established by the Board of Supervisors in December 1996 as an official County commission and the authorized

County partner with the California Arts Council, the Arts and Culture Commission (AC5) first applied for and

received funding from the State-Local Partnership Program in July 1995 for fiscal year 1995-1996. Since that time,

the Board of Supervisors has designated and reaffirmed the Arts and Culture Commission as the authorized partner of

the State-Local Partnership Program of the California Arts Council. This designation allows the County to apply for

and accept funding from the State to enhance art and culture programs in the county. 

The State-Local Partnership Program fosters community development through the arts at the county level via

partnerships between the California Arts Council and a local arts agency. Partners benefit from funding, technical

assistance and coordinated activities that support their efforts that enrich the lives of the members of their

communities through the arts.

On September 15, 2015 the Board of Supervisors approved the execution of a grant from the California Arts Council

in the amount of $12,000. On November 10, 2015 the County was informed that the grant amount had been increased

to $23,996.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

The County will loose the opportunity for additional funding.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not applicable.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the County Clerk-Recorder, or designee, to apply for and accept a "HAVA Polling

Place Accessibility Training Program" grant in the amount of $38,370 from the California Secretary of State for

reimbursement to the County for voter accessibility activities and equipment for the implementation of HAVA

Section 261, for the period November 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

100% Federal Funds. No County matching funds are required. 

BACKGROUND: 

This grant provides reimbursement to the County for accessibility survey activities, mitigation of barriers, and

accessible voting accessories to improve the access of all voters to polling places on Election Day (equipment for the

implementation of HAVA Section 261). 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

The County will not be reimbursed for these activities. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Scott Konopasek (925)

335-7808

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the
Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

C. 32

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Joseph E. Canciamilla, Clerk-Recorder

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: HAVA Accessibility Contract with the Secretary of State



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director, or his designee, to execute, on behalf of the County, a

Memorandum of Understanding #28-881 with Anthem Blue Cross Managed Care Plan (MCP), for the purpose of

coordinating services between Anthem Blue Cross MCP and the County’s Targeted Case Management (TCM)

program for Anthem Blue Cross MCP Medi-Cal patients for the period from July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2020. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

None. This non-financial agreement will allow the County to continue to receive funds to provide Targeted Case

Management services for Medi-Cal patients enrolled in the Anthem Blue Cross Managed Care Plan No additional

County match is required. 

BACKGROUND: 

Since 1997, the Department of Health Care Services has funded many local governmental agencies to provide TCM

services. The TCM program is a federal program funding comprehensive case management services to individuals

within a specified target group. Public Health Nursing provides TCM services. Due to California’s “Bridge to

Reform”, Section 1115 Medicaid demonstration waiver and the related Medi-Cal managed care expansion, the new

TCM policies 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Daniel Peddycord,

313-6712

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: T Scott,   Jpigg,   M Wilhelm   

C. 33

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Approve Memorandum of Understanding #28-881 with Anthem Blue Cross Health Plan



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

require a current TCM provider Memorandum of Understanding with participating counties. This Memorandum of

Understanding defines protocols for coordination of care to assure non-duplication of services for Anthem Blue

Cross Medi-Cal patients who receive TCM comprehensive case management services by the County’s Public Health

Nurses. 

Approval of Memorandum of Understanding #28-881 allows the County and Anthem Blue Cross Managed Care Plan

to adhere to state and federal policies and procedures ensuring coordination and non-duplication of services through

June 30, 2020. This agreement includes mutual indemnification. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this agreement is not approved, the County will not have funds accessible to continue the Targeted Case

Management Services.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not applicable.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to apply for and accept, if awarded, the

California State EMS Authority Health Information Exchange Emergency Medical Services Grant (PULSE+EMS) to

demonstrate health information exchange between emergency medical services and community hospitals. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

None. 

BACKGROUND: 

In 2013 Contra Costa EMS was awarded a State EMS Authority Health Information Exchange Grant to conduct a

data infrastructure analysis assessing Contra Costa Emergency Medical Services readiness for health information

exchange. That analysis became part of a report “Health Information Exchange Services in Support of Disaster

Preparedness and Emergency Medical Response” prepared for the Office of the National Coordinator for Health

Information Technology (IT) in April of 2014.

As a result of this participation Contra Costa EMS was invited by the Assistant Secretary for Preparedness and

Response to participate in the US Department of Health and Human Services Patient Unified System for 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Pat Frost,

646-4690

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of
Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: T Scott,   M Wilhelm,   Leticia Andreas   

C. 34

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Authorize to Apply and Accept if awarded a California State EMS Authority Grant to Advance Health Information

Exchange in Emergency Medical Services G



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

Emergencies (PULSE), an effort in California to ensure potentially life-saving health information is available to

health professionals and emergency responders during a disaster.

In June 2015 the State of California Emergency Medical Services Authority (EMSA) was awarded a Patient

Unified Lookup System for Emergencies Plus Emergency Medical Services known as (PULSE+EMS) grant from

the US Department of Health and Human Services, Office of National Information Technology to advance health

information exchanged (HIE) statewide during a disaster and regionally in daily emergency medical services

(EMS). 

The project has three primary use case deliverables:

1. Development of public health disaster response medical history portal, called PULSE, for health care

professionals and creation of four connections to non-profit community or private health information

organizations (HIO);

2. Implementation of PULSE, with a secure, web-based portal for healthcare professionals, who are California

Disaster Healthcare Volunteers (DHV), and;

3. Implementation of +EMS for daily EMS exchange in 2 regional areas in California, which included 1

ambulance provider and 1 hospital in each area.

The Contra Costa EMS Agency is seeking approval to apply for and receive if awarded a grant to support Health

information exchange within Contra Costa County. The competitive grant award is between $250,000 to $500,000

with funding directed to support the grant deliverables associated with +EMS. Over the last 12 months Contra

Costa EMS has been working with the following entities who have committed to participating in the effort and

include EPIC, Contra Costa Regional Medical Center, Contra Costa Health Services Division of Information

Technology, Contra Costa Health Service Division of Public Health, First Watch (EMS Agency analytics vendor)

and Alliance partner American Medical Response. In addition Contra Costa Community Hospital Partners Kaiser

and Sutter Health are exploring participation. All grant deliverables must be completed prior to July 2017 and it is

anticipated that that grant project will take a minimum of 12 months to complete.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

The Contra Costa EMS System and patients will not benefit from the ability to conduct health information

exchange between EMS providers and hospitals under normal and disaster conditions.

ATTACHMENTS

flyer 











RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director, or his designee, to execute, on behalf of the County, Interagency

Agreement #28-753-8 with Pittsburg Unified School District, an Educational Institution, to pay County an amount not

to exceed $3,800, for the Public Health Clinic Services Scoliosis Screening Project for 7th and 8th grade students, for

the period from September 1, 2015 through August 31, 2016. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Approval of this Interagency Agreement will allow Pittsburg Unified School District to pay County $4.00 per student

to support the Public Health Clinic Services Scoliosis Screening Project. (No County match). 

BACKGROUND: 

Pittsburg Unified School District has requested that Contra Costa Health Services, Public Health Clinic Services,

provide Scoliosis Screening Clinics at their middle schools for their 7th grade girls and 8th grade boys, throughout

the school year. By providing an outreach program such as the scoliosis screening of their students, the School

District is able to provide a valuable diagnostic and preventative service to their students who might otherwise go

untreated. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  DANIEL PEDDYCORD

925-313-6712

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of
the Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: A Floyd ,   N Rios   

C. 35

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Interagency Agreement #28-753-8 with Pittsburg Unified School District



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

On December 2, 2014 the Board of Supervisors approved Interagency Agreement #28-753-7 for the provision of

Public Health Clinic Services Scoliosis Screening at Pittsburg Unified School District for the period from November

1, 2014 through August 31, 2015. Approval of Interagency Agreement #28-753-8, Pittsburg Unified School District

will provide funding to support continuing scoliosis-screening services to its students, through August 31, 2016.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If contract is not approved, the Pittsburg Unified School District will not be able to provide continuous scoliosis

screening to its eighth grade male students and seventh grade female students throughout the school year.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not Applicable



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director, or his designee, to execute, on behalf of the County, Interagency

Agreement #29-507-14 with West Contra Costa Unified School District, to pay the County an amount not to exceed

$5,000, for the provision of mental health services to students and their families, for the period from September 1,

2015 through June 30, 2016.

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Approval of this Interagency Agreement will result in a total payment to the County of $5,000. No County match is

required.

BACKGROUND: 

Under this agreement, West Contra Costa Unified School District (WCCUSD) will pay the County for the provision

of mental health day treatment services to severely emotionally disturbed Special Education students and their

families, who are participants in the Seneca Center’s 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Cynthia Belon

957-5201

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of
Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: E Suisala,   N Rios   

C. 36

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Interagency Agreement # 29-507-14 with West Contra Costa Unified School District



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

Early Periodic Screening, Diagnosis and Treatment (EPSDT) program. This program will allow students to function

effectively in school, at home and in the community, through June 30, 2016.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this contract is not approved, the County will not receive payment for the provision of mental health day treatment

services provided to severely emotionally disturbed students and their families during the term of this Contract.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

This program supports the following Board of Supervisors’ community outcomes: “Children Ready For and

Succeeding in School”; “Families that are Safe, Stable, and Nurturing”; and “Communities that are Safe and Provide

a High Quality of Life for Children and Families”. Expected program outcomes include an increase in positive social

and emotional development as measured by the Child and Adolescent Functional Assessment Scale (CAFAS).



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director, or his designee, to execute, on behalf of the County,

Memorandum of Understanding Agreement #28-881 with Anthem Blue Cross Health Plan, a non-financial

agreement, for Targeted Case Management (TCM) Program to the County’s Public Health Clinics Services, for the

period from July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2020. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

None. This Non-Financial Agreement will provide assurance TCM claims are not duplicated for Medi-Cal Managed

Care beneficiaries. No additional County match is required.

BACKGROUND: 

Since 1997, the Department of Health Care Services has funded many Local Governmental Agencies (LGA) to

provide Targeted Case Management (TCM) services. The Targeted Case Management (TCM) Program is a Federal

Program funding the provisions of comprehensive case management services to individuals within a specified target

group. Due to California’s “Bridge to Reform”, Section 1115 Medicaid demonstration waiver and the related

Medi-Cal managed care expansion, the new TCM policies and procedures requires a current TCM provider

Participation 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Daniel Peddycord, (925)

313-6712

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the
Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: J Pigg ,   N Rios   

C. 37

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Agreement #28-881 with Anthem Blue Cross Health Plan 



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

Agreement and Contra Costa County was selected as one of the managed care health plans for Contra Costa County.

This Memorandum of Understanding defines protocol for health care plans to follow in order to avoid duplication of

services and activities. These protocols will serve as the basis for the coordination of care and non-duplication of

services.

Approval of Agreement #28-881 allows the County and Anthem Blue Cross Health Plan to adhere to the policies and

procedures ensuring coordination and non-duplication of services set forth in the Targeted Case Management

Program Memorandum of Understanding, through June 30, 2020. This agreement includes mutual indemnification.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this agreement is not approved, the County will not have funds accessible to continue the Targeted Case

Management Services. 

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not applicable.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Sheriff-Coroner, or designee, to execute a contract with the City of Oakley,

including mutual indemnification, to pay the County an amount not to exceed $3,000,000 to provide police

dispatching services for the period May 1, 2016 through April 30, 2021. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

No Net County Cost. $3,000,000 revenue over five years. 

BACKGROUND: 

The Office of the Sheriff will provide police dispatching services, limited to law enforcement activity for the City of

Oakley. Services will include dispatching, call-taking, sending and receiving voice and data traffic, answering

emergency (911) calls and warrant checks to aid the City's Police Department. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

Failure to approve this contract will result in the inability of the Sheriff's Office to provide the City of Oakley with

adequate 911 Dispatcher Services resulting in a safety concern for the community, reduced revenue for the Office of

the Sheriff and the County General Fund. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Sandra Brown,

925-335-1553

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the
Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

C. 38

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: David O. Livingston, Sheriff-Coroner

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Dispatch Services for the City of Oakley



CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

No impact.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Director of the Department of Conservation and Development, or designee, to

execute an Interagency Agreement with Contra Costa Resource Conservation District (CCRCD), which includes

non-standard General Conditions including indemnification provisions, in an amount not to exceed $40,000 for the

Pinole Creek Fish Passage Enhancement Project, for the period January 1, 2016 through December 31, 2017. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

No impact to the County General Fund. 100% covered by Contra Costa County Fish and Wildlife Propagation Funds. 

BACKGROUND: 

On April 22, 2014, the Board of Supervisors approved the allocation of grant funds from the Fish and Wildlife

Propagation Fund to 16 grant applicants. The Contra Costa Resource Conservation District was approved to receive

$40,000 for the Pinole Creek Fish Passage Enhancement project. The goal of the project is to provide adult steelhead

access to upstream spawning and rearing habitat by enhancing fish passage conditions at the I-80 Pinole Creek

culvert. The proposed design accommodates both upstream and downstream passage for adult rainbow trout/steelhead.

Construction was postponed due to delays in the process of obtaining regulatory and land use permit approvals. The

project will be put out to bid early in the year 2016 and, provided regulatory agencies issue all permits in time,

construction should begin in June 2016 with an expected completion date of October 2016. In the event that any

regulatory permits are not issued in time for the 2016 construction season, the project will be constructed in 2017,

following the same monthly schedule.

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Maureen Parkes,

925-674-7831

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the
Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

C. 39

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: John Kopchik, Director, Conservation & Development Department

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Interagency Agreement Between the Department of Conservation and Development & Contra Costa Resource

Conservation District. (49609)



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

Consistent with the April 22, 2014 Board of Supervisors approval to allocate grant funds from the Fish and

Wildlife Propagation Fund to the project, CCRCD will use 100 percent of the grant award to contract with a

construction contractor for site preparation, erosion and sedimentation, and clearwater diversion and de-watering

for the Pinole Creek Fish Passage Enhancement Project. All Fish and Wildlife Propagation funds will be provided

on a cost reimbursement basis. 

Since the proposed contract deviates from the standard county indemnification provisions (see attached), it is

subject to the review and approval by the Board of Supervisors.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this agreement is not approved, construction of the Pinole Creek Fish Passage Enhancement Project would be

delayed until CCRCD is able to obtain other sources of revenue.

ATTACHMENTS

L-4 







RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Employment and Human Services Director, or designee, to execute a contract with

Mt. Diablo Adult Education, including modified mutual indemnification language, for outreach and training of

California Work Opportunity and Responsibility to Kids (CalWORKS) clients in an amount not to exceed $40,576.32

for the term of October 1, 2015, through June 30, 2016. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

$40,576.32: 85% Federal and 15% State CalWORKS's Single Allocation funds. 

BACKGROUND: 

The purpose of this contract is to establish practices, services and classes that would allow for expanded hours of

participation of CalWORKs clients in federally approved education and work activities. Our expectations of the

contractors are that 80% of referred clients will complete the program and enroll in school or obtain employment. As

a public agency, Mt. Diablo Adult Education requires mutual indemnification. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

These valuable services will not be provided to CalWORKs clients. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Gina Chenoweth

3-1648

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of
Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

C. 40

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Kathy Gallagher, Employment & Human Services Director

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Contract with Mt. Diablo Adult Education for Services to CalWORKs Clients



CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

None.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Conservation and Development Director, or designee, to execute a contract

extension with Cardno to extend the term of the Contract from December 31, 2015 through December 31, 2016, with

no change in the payment limit, to provide continued service for the completion of the Environmental Impact Report

(EIR) for the Shell Martinez Refinery's Greenhouse Gas Reduction Project (County File #LP14-2006). 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

No impact to the General Fund. All application, environmental review, and project processing costs and fees to be

paid by the project applicant. 

BACKGROUND: 

The Department of Conservation and Development (Department) received an application from Shell Oil Products

U.S. (Shell) for a Land Use Permit for the Greenhouse Gas Reduction Project (County File #LP14-2006) at its

Martinez refinery, which will require physical and operational changes to several of the refinery's hydrocarbon

processing units. The Department of Conservation and Development determined that this project required the

preparation of an environmental impact report (EIR) pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act. The

County solicited qualified independent contractors to prepare the EIR for the project, and Contract #47772 was

awarded to Cardno. Cardno is currently preparing the EIR document. This contract is due to expire on December 31,

2015. The Department previously halted work on the EIR at the request of Shell. Shell has now asked the Department

to proceed and the Department is recommending a change in contract term to allow sufficient time to complete the

work. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Gary Kupp, (925)

674-7799

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

C. 41

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: John Kopchik, Director, Conservation & Development Department

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Contract Amendment to Extend the Term Limit with Cardno for the Preparation of an EIR for the Shell Greenhouse

Gas Reduction Project



CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If the contract amendment is not approved, the contractor will be unable to complete the environmental review for

the pending application.

ATTACHMENTS



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Chief Information Officer, or designee, to execute (1) a contract amendment with

CherryRoad Technologies Inc, effective December 8, 2015, to increase the payment limit by $467,360 to a new

payment limit of $6,152,310 for the purchase of 10,250 Oracle cloud service seat licenses and Taleo Recruiting and

Transitions Onboarding licenses, and for additional services to implement the County’s Taleo Recruiting and

Transitions Onboarding solution, and (2) a Cloud Services Ordering Document, dated January 4, 2016, with Oracle

America, Inc., for the Oracle cloud service and Taleo Application licenses. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

The $6,152,310 is budgeted under Org #1695 FY 2014-2015, FY 2015-2016, and FY 2016-2017, supported through

countywide interdepartmental charges to all departments. 

BACKGROUND: 

The PeopleSoft Human Capital Management (HCM) system is currently used to process the county’s payroll, in

addition to maintaining Human Resources and Employee Benefits records. The original contract with CherryRoad

Technologies, Inc., provided for the contractor to perform a fit/gap analysis, infrastructure assessment and initial

upgrade tasks to upgrade PeopleSoft HCM version 8.8 to version 9.2, at a cost up to $1,200,000.

The County and contractor first amended the contract in September 2015 to provide that the Contractor would host

nine application test environments, at a cost of up to $150,000.

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Ed Woo

925-383-2688

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of
Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

C. 42

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Ed Woo, Chief Information Officer

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Contract Amendment with CherryRoad Technologies, Inc. 



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

The County and contractor amended the contract a second time in November 2015 to begin the upgrade tasks to

upgrade Peoplesoft HCM version 8.8 to version 9.2 at a cost of up to $4,334,950.

The proposed third amendment is for Contractor to purchase 10,250 Oracle cloud service seat licenses and Taleo

Recruiting and Transitions Onboarding licenses on behalf of County, and perform services to implement the Taleo

Recruitment and Onboarding application, which will be hosted by Oracle on its servers. The Taleo Recruiting and

Transitions Onboarding application will interface with the PeopleSoft HCM system.

The purposes of acquiring and implementing the Taleo Recruiting and Transitions Onboarding application is so the

County can: (1) replace the County’s current recruiting and applicant tracking software; (2) reduce paperwork by

creating, storing and managing all forms electronically; (3) reduce the redundancy of manually inputting critical new

employee information by pre-populating form fields; (4) provide electronic new hire benefit packets to employees;

(5) automatically route pertinent documents to payroll, IT, retirement and other applicable areas such as scheduling

mandatory trainings through our Target Solutions platform; (6) provide a seamless process for a candidate from the

recruitment phase through the hiring/onboarding process. 

Oracle will host the Taleo Recruiting and Transitions Onboarding application through its hosted cloud services

solution. The County previously entered into a Public Sector Agreement for Oracle Cloud Services, dated March 17,

2015, with Oracle America, Inc., which sets forth Oracle’s obligations with respect to hosting its applications through

its cloud services solution. The County’s Department of Child Support and Services uses the Oracle Cloud Solution

to access the Oracle Performance Management application. Execution of a Cloud Services Ordering Document will

increase the number of cloud seat licenses available to County and provide access to the Taleo Recruiting and

Transitions Onboarding application.

The contract amendment includes a special condition limiting the contractor’s liability to County for the PeopleSoft

application upgrade services to the amount the contractor is to be paid for those services ($5,684,950), and for the

Taleo onboarding and recruiting application implementation services to the amount the contractor is to be paid for

those services ($467,000). The limitation on liability does not apply to Contractor’s indemnity obligations under the

contract.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

Failure to approve the contract amendment will result in the continued use of the current antiquated and paper-based

system, which negatively impacts the County’s ability to timely and efficiently recruit candidates and onboard new

hires.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Public Works Director, or designee, to execute a contract amendment with

Blessing & Harvey Professional Services, Inc. (dba Ernie’s Plumbing & Sewer Service), effective December 08,

2015, to increase the payment limit by $1,200,000 to a new payment limit of $1,850,000, with no change to the

original term of April 1, 2015 through March 31, 2018, for sublet emergency plumbing services, Countywide. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This cost is to be funded through Facilities Services budget. (100% General Fund)

BACKGROUND: 

Facilities Services is responsible for plumbing maintenance and repair for all County buildings and facilities. Based

on Facilities Services staffing or the unavailability of County employees, plumbing work is sublet to outside vendors.

The original bid on Bidsync # 1501-114, Ernie’s Plumbing and Rotor-Rooter Plumbing are the awarded vendors for

this work. Due to 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Stan Burton, (925)

313-7077

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

C. 43

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Julia R. Bueren, Public Works Director/Chief Engineer

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Approve a Contract Amendment with Blessing & Harvey Professional Services Inc., d/b/a Ernie’s Plumbing & Sewer

Service



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

several uncommon plumbing situations the original payment limit has been exhausted. Facilities Services is

requesting an increase to the original payment limit with no change to the original term. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this contract amendment is not approved, sublet emergency plumbing services will not be performed.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Public Works Director, or designee, to execute a contract amendment with

Overmiller, Inc. (dba Roto-Rooter Sewer Service), effective December 08, 2015, to increase the payment limit by

$1,200,000, to a new payment Limit of $1,850,000, with no change to the original term of April 1, 2015 through

March 31 2018, for sublet emergency plumbing services, Countywide. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This cost is to be funded through Facilities Services budgets. (100% General Fund)

BACKGROUND: 

Facilities Services is responsible for plumbing maintenance and repair for all County buildings and facilities. Based

on the Facilities Maintenance staffing or the unavailability of County employees, plumbing work is sublet to outside

vendors. The original bid on Bidsync # 1501-114, Ernie’s Plumbing and Rotor-Rooter Plumbing are the awarded

vendors for this work. Due to several uncommon plumbing situations, the original payment limit has been exhausted.

Facilities Services is requesting the original payment limit amount be amended.

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Stan Burton, (925)

313-7021

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

C. 44

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Julia R. Bueren, Public Works Director/Chief Engineer

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Approve a Contract Amendment with Overmiller Inc., d/b/a Roto-Rooter Sewer Service 



CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this contract amendment is not approved, sublet emergency plumbing services will not be performed.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Public Works Director, or designee, to execute a contract amendment with Matrix

HG, Inc., effective December 08, 2015, to increase the payment limit by $1,200,000 to a new payment limit of

$2,300,000, with no change to the original term of December 1, 2014 through November 30, 2017, to provide

heating, ventilation and air conditioning services, Countywide. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This cost is to be funded through Facilities Services budgets. (100% General Fund)

BACKGROUND: 

Public Works Facilities Services is responsible for maintaining the heating, ventilation and air conditioning systems

at all County facilities. The County does not currently have enough staff to complete the amount of maintenance this

commodity requires. As bid on Bidsync #1409-104, Matrix HG, Inc. was the lowest responsible 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Stan Burton, (925)

313-7021

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

C. 45

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Julia R. Bueren, Public Works Director/Chief Engineer

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Approve a Contract Amendment with Matrix HG, Inc.



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

and responsive vendor, and will become one of the primary vendors for scheduled heating, ventilation and air

conditioning maintenance and emergency repair. Due to several uncommon heating and air conditioning situations,

the original payment limit has been exhausted. Facilities Services is requesting the payment limit be amended.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this contract amendment is not approved, sublet heating, ventilation and air conditioning services will not be

performed.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the County Librarian, or designee, to execute a University-Organization Agreement

with San Jose State University, to provide unpaid Master of Library and Information Science Internships for the

period January 1, 2016 through December 31, 2021. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

None. 

BACKGROUND: 

The purpose of this agreement is to provide San Jose State University Master of Library and Information Science

(MLIS) students with the opportunity to gain valuable professional work experience under the supervision and

guidance of professionals in the MLIS field, while pursuing defined learning outcomes and earning course credit

toward their degrees. It is designed to provide students an opportunity to test theories and to apply skills learned in

other courses taken during the MLIS program. The Library can provide the requisite field education while at the same

time benefiting from the intern's unpaid services to patrons. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

If not approved, the Library will be unable to provide unpaid Master of Library and Information Science Internships. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Jessica Hudson,

646-6423

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of
Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

C. 46

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Jessica Hudson, County Librarian

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: San Jose State University: University-Organization Agreement



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director, or his designee, to execute, on behalf of the County, Contract

#27-781-4 with East Bay Cardiology Medical Group, Inc., a corporation, in an amount not to exceed $700,000, to

provide cardiology services, for the period from January 1, 2016 through December 31, 2017. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This Contract is funded 100% Contra Costa Health Plan Enterprise Fund II. (Rate increase)

BACKGROUND: 

On January 21, 2014, the Board of Supervisors approved Contract #27-781-3 with East Bay Cardiology Medical

Group, Inc. for the provision of cardiology services, for the period from January 1, 2014 through December 31,

2015. Approval of Contract #27-781-4 will allow Contractor to continue providing cardiology services through

December 31, 2017. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

If this contract is not approved, certain specialized professional health care services for its members under the terms

of their Individual and Group Health Plan membership contracts with the County will not be pro-vided. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Patricia Tanquary

313-6004

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: A Floyd,   N Rios   

C. 47

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Contract #27-781-4 with East Bay Cardiology Medical Group, Inc. 



CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

NOT APPLICABLE



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Auditor-Controller, or designee, to pay stipends in an amount not to exceed $15

per individual for one-half day, or $25 per individual for one full day to foster parents and birth parents, for a total

payment not to exceed of $95,000, for attendance at training workshops, focus groups, and meetings for the period of

July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2017. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

$95,000: 50% Child Welfare Allocation, 10% County, 42% Federal, 48% State ($47,500); 50% Substance Abuse

HIV Funding, 7.5% County, 75% Federal, 17.5% State ($47,500) 

BACKGROUND: 

Employment and Human Services (EHSD) supports and convenes trainings, meetings, workshops, and focus groups

to meet mandated and discretionary training requirements for foster parents and birth parents. In order to encourage

participation, EHSD often incudes provisions for a reasonable stipend to be paid to program participants in their

funding applications. The involvement of program participants is critical in designing and modifying effective

programs. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Gina Chenoweth

3-1648

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of
Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

C. 48

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Kathy Gallagher, Employment & Human Services Director

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Stipends to foster parents and birth parents for trainings, workshops, and focus groups



CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

Without approval of stipends for attendance, foster parents and birth parents may be precluded from attendance and

interaction in the ongoing system of change and development of services.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

The stipends for trainings, workshops, focus groups, and meeting attendance support all five of the community

outcomes established in the Children's Report Card: 1) "Children Ready or and Succeeding in School"; 2) "Children

and Youth Healthy and Preparing for Productive Adulthood"; 3) "Families that are Economically Self Sufficient"; 4)

"Families that are Safe, Stable and Nurturing", and 5) "Communities that are Safe and Provide a High Quality of Life

for Children and Families" by encouraging those within the Child Welfare System to participate in various training

and informational exchange opportunities.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director, or his designee, to execute, on behalf of the County, Contract

#26-323-24 with Careerstaff Unlimited, Inc. (dba Therapists Unlimited), a corporation, in an amount not to exceed

$250,000, to provide temporary occupational, physical and speech therapists, pharmacists and pharmacy technicians,

medical social workers, ultrasound technologists and other ancillary classifications at Contra Costa Regional Medical

Center (CCRMC) for the period from January 1, 2016 through December 31, 2016. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This Contract is funded 100% Hospital Enterprise Fund I. (No rate increase) 

BACKGROUND: 

On February 3, 2015, the Board of Supervisors approved Contract #26-323-24 with Careerstaff Unlimited, Inc. (dba

Therapists Unlimited) for the provision of temporary occupational, physical and speech therapists, pharmacists and

pharmacy technicians, medical social workers, ultrasound technologists and other ancillary classifications for the

period from January 1, 2015 through December 31, 2015. Approval of Contract #26-323-25 will allow Contractor to

continue providing occupational, physical and speech therapists, pharmacists and pharmacy technicians, medical

social workers, ultrasound technologists and other ancillary classifications through December 31, 2016. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Anna Roth,

925-370-5101

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: K Cyr,   N Rios   

C. 49

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Contract #26-323-25 with Careerstaff Unlimited, Inc. (dba Therapists Unlimited)



CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this contract is not approved, patients at CCRMC will not have access to Contractor’s services.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not applicable.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director, or designee, to execute, on behalf of the County, Contract

#24-991-16 with Alexander Gorodetsky, M.D., an individual, in an amount not to exceed $116,480, to provide

outpatient psychiatric services at the West County Adult Mental Health Clinic for the period from January 1, 2016

through December 31, 2016. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This Contract is funded 100% Mental Health Realignment. (No rate increase) 

BACKGROUND: 

On January 6, 2015, the Board of Supervisors approved Contract #24-991-15 with Alexander Gorodetsky, M.D., for

the provision of outpatient psychiatric services, including, but not limited to; diagnosing, counseling, evaluating, and

providing medical and therapeutic treatment to County patients, for the period from January 1, 2015 through

December 31, 2015. Approval of Contract #24-991-16 will allow Contractor to continue providing outpatient

psychiatric services at the West County Adult Mental Health Clinic, through December 31, 2016. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

If this contract is not approved, County’s clients will not have access to Contractor’s services. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Cynthia Belon,

925-957-5201

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the
Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: K Cyr,   N Rios   

C. 50

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Contract #24-991-16 with Alexander Gorodetsky, M.D. 



CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not applicable.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director, or designee, to execute, on behalf of the County, Contract

#74-433-6 with Michael Levin, M.D., an individual, in an amount not to exceed $250,600, to provide outpatient

psychiatric services including the provision of expert testimony in conservatorship trials, for the period from January

1, 2016 through December 31, 2016. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This Contract is funded 100% Mental Health Realignment. (No rate increase) 

BACKGROUND: 

On December 2, 2014, the Board of Supervisors approved Contract #74-433-4 with Michael Levin, M.D. for the

provision of outpatient psychiatric services, and expert testimony in conservatorship trials, for the period from

January 1, 2015 through December 31, 2015. Approval of Contract #74-433-6 will allow the Contractor to continue

providing outpatient psychiatric ser-vices at the Central County Adult Mental Health Clinic including the provision

of expert psychiatric testi-mony in conservatorship trials, through December 31, 2016. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

If this contract is not approved, County’s clients will not have access to Contractor’s outpatient psychiatric services. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Cynthia Belon,

925-957-5201

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the
Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: K Cyr,   N Rios   

C. 51

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Contract #74-433-6 with Michael Levin, M.D. 



CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not applicable.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director, or his designee, to execute, on behalf of the County, Contract

#26-741-4 with Martha D. Newman, an individual, in an amount not to exceed $190,000, to provide consultation and

technical assistance to Contra Costa Regional Medical Center and Contra Costa Health Centers (CCRMC) on

Delivery System Reform Incentive Plan (DSRIP) for the period from December 1, 2015 through November 30, 2016. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This Contract is funded 100% Hospital Enterprise Fund I. (No rate increase) 

BACKGROUND: 

Contra Costa Regional Medical Center and Contra Costa Health Centers use a plan to expand access to care and

enhance quality through a robust effort called the Delivery System Reform Incentive Plan (DSRIP) program. This

program was created by the Section 1115 Medicaid waiver, sometimes called the “Bridge to Health Care Reform,” a

joint federal/state agreement with California’s public hospital systems that waives certain Medicaid requirements in

order to test improvements in health care. On January 6, 2015, the Board of Supervisors approved Contract 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Anna Roth,

925-370-5101

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: K Cyr,   N Rios   

C. 52

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Contract #26-741-4 with Martha D. Newman 



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

#26-741-3 with Martha D. Newman for the provision of consultation and technical assistance to CCRMC for the

development of quality metrics, leadership strategies and educational goals for DSRIP, for the period from December

1, 2014 through November 30, 2015. Approval of Contract #26-741-4 will allow the Contractor to continue to

provide consultation and technical assistance to the CCRMC through November 30, 2016.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this contract is not approved, the Division will not have access to Contractor’s expertise regarding the DSRIP

program and organizational planning.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not applicable.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director, or his designee, to execute, on behalf of the County, Contract

#26-585-7 with L. Evan Custer, M.D., an individual, in an amount not to exceed $990,000 to provide radiology

services at Contra Costa Regional Medical Center and Contra Costa Health Centers (CCRMC), for the period from

December 1, 2015 through November 30, 2018. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This Contract is funded 100% Hospital Enterprise I funds. (No rate increase) 

BACKGROUND: 

On December 12, 2014, the Board of Supervisors approved Contract #26-585-5 (as amended by Amendment

Agreement #26-585-6) with L. Evan Custer, M.D., to provide radiology services, including but not limited to;

consultation, training, clinic coverage, on-call, supervision and interpretation of CT Scans, Ultrasounds and plain

films, at CCRMC, for the period from December 1, 2012 through November 30, 2015. Approval of Contract

#26-585-7 will allow the Contractor to continue to provide radiology services at CCRMC through November 30,

2018 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

If this contract is not approved, patients at CCRMC requiring radiology services will not have access to Contractor's

services. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Samir Shah, M.D.,

925-370-5525

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the
Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: K Cyr,   N Rios   

C. 53

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Contract #26-585-7 with L. Evan Custer, M.D.



CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not applicable.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Public Defender, or designee, to execute a contract with West Publishing

Corporation in an amount not to exceed $116,230 to provide online legal resource services and printed materials, for

the period November 29, 2015 through November 28, 2018. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Total cost of this contract is estimated to be the sum of $116,230, expended annually, as follows:

FY 2015-16 = $22,195

FY 2016-17 = $38,270

FY 2017-18 = $39,400

FY 2018-19 = $16,365

BACKGROUND: 

The Public Defender requests renewal of an expiring service contract continuing 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Richard Loomis, (925)

335-8093

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the
Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

C. 54

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Robin Lipetzky, Public Defender

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Contract Payable (West Publishing Corporation)



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

the same pricing, terms and conditions with West Publishing Corporation. This on-line subscription service provides

access for staff to the Thomson West Proflex Online Law Library and various legal publications (printed volumes).

These resources are used for reference and research in the legal representation of clients, and is an essential support

tool in the Department.

The three-year service period minimizes the cost of procuring these services, which are offered to governmental

agencies at a seventy percent (70%) discount to the vendor's standard pricing for these products.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

This service is essential to the daily operations of the Office of Public Defender.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

No impact.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director, or his designee, to execute, on behalf of the County, Contract

#24-403-14 with Jon Whalen, M.D., a self-employed individual, in an amount not to exceed $300,800, to provide

outpatient psychiatric services to minors for the period from February 1, 2016 through January 31, 2017. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This Contract is funded 50% Mental Health Realignment Funds and 50% Federal Financial Participation. (No rate

increase)

BACKGROUND: 

For a number of years the County has contracted with Medical, Dental and mental Health Specialists to provide

specialized 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Cynthia Belon, 925

957-5201

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: D Morgan,   N Rios   

C. 55

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Contract #24-403-14 with Jon Whalen, M.D.



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

medical services.

On February 10, 2015, the Board of Supervisors approved Contract #24-403-13 with Jon Whalen, M.D., for the

provision of professional outpatient psychiatric services for the period from February 1, 2015 through January 31,

2016.

Approval of Contract #24-403-14 will allow Contractor to continue providing outpatient psychiatric services through

January 31, 2017.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this contract is not approved, County’s clients will not have access to Contractor’s professional outpatient

psychiatric services, which may result in a reduction in overall services to the community. 

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not Applicable



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director, or his designee, to execute, on behalf of the County, Contract

#74-507 with Jasbir Virk, M.D., an individual, in an amount not to exceed $163,398, for the provision of outpatient

psychiatric services for children and adolescents at West County Mental Health Clinics for the period from January 1,

2016 through December 31, 2016. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This Contract is funded 50% Federal Funding; 50% Mental Health Realignment. 

BACKGROUND: 

Under Contract #74-507, Contractor will provide outpatient psychiatric services including, but not limited to;

assessment, treatment and medication management for children and adolescents at West County Mental Health

Clinics, for the period from January 1, 2016 through December 31, 2016. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

If this contract is not approved, County’s clients will not have access to Contractor’s services. 

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT: 

Not applicable. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Cynthia Belon,

925-957-5201

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the
Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: K Cyr,   N Rios   

C. 56

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Contract #74-507 with Jasbir Virk, M.D.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Conservation and Development Director, or designee, to execute a contract

amendment with Environmental Science Associates, Inc., to increase the payment limit by $150,000 to a new limit of

$300,000, with modified indemnification, and extend the term from December 31, 2015 through December 31, 2017,

for continued technical consulting services associated with waste diversion programs. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

No impact to the General Fund. The work performed under this contract will be funded by Solid Waste and

Recycling Collection Franchise Fees (75%) and Used Oil Block Grant funds (25%). There are no matching funds

required. 

BACKGROUND: 

The proposed contract amendment will allow Environmental Science Associates, Inc. (ESA), to continue to provide

Conservation & Development Department (DCD) staff with technical consulting services that are needed to assist

with solid waste diversion programs in the unincorporated areas of the County. ESA will continue to provide

assistance with a variety of implementation and reporting activities under this contract, including but not limited to:

programs/activities targeting waste streams generated by businesses and schools as mandated by AB 341 and

AB1826, 

programs/activities funded or required under the State funded Used Oil and Beverage Container Recycling

Programs, and 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Deidra Dingman, (925)

674-7825

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the
Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

C. 57

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: John Kopchik, Director, Conservation & Development Department

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: CONTRACT AMENDMENT WITH ENVIRONMENTAL SCIENCE ASSOCIATES, INC., FOR TECHNICAL

CONSULTING SERVICES FOR WASTE DIVERSION PROGRAMS (CONTRACT C45074-01)



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

>

provide assistance with activities related to diversion and disposal reporting required to comply with State laws

and regulations.

The proposed modified indemnification language has been reviewed and approved by County Counsel.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

ESA would not continue to perform technical consulting services associated with waste diversion programs for

the County, which may result in some tasks not being completed to comply with state laws.

ATTACHMENTS



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

AUTHORIZE the Auditor-Controller to release Park Dedication Funds in the amount of $22,000 to the Conservation

and Development Department for further development of an Urban Farm in North Richmond.

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Conservation and Development Director, or designee, to execute a contract

amendment with Urban Tilth, a 501(c)(3) nonprofit corporation, to extend the term from December 31, 2015 through

December 31, 2018 and increase the payment limit by $22,000 from $435,000 to a new payment limit of $457,000,

to help fund the development of an Urban Farm in North Richmond.

DIRECT the Department of Conservation and Development to file a CEQA Notice of Exemption with the County

Clerk and pay filing fees. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

No impact to the County's General Fund. Funds are from the Park Dedication Trust Fund, North Richmond census

tracts accounts (Account numbers: 8136 4213 36502, 8136 4208 36502, and 8136 4213 03780). 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Kristine Solseng (925)

674-7809

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the
Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

C. 58

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: John Kopchik, Director, Conservation & Development Department

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Contract Amendment with Urban Tilth for Park Dedication Funds to Help Fund the Development of an Urban Farm in

North Richmond



BACKGROUND:

Urban Agriculture: Urban agriculture is defined by the American Planning Association as the practice of

growing, processing, and distributing fresh food products by people living in an urban area. The purpose of urban

agriculture is to foster development of a local food system, to promote environmental sustainability, and to

increase education and access to healthy foods for urban residents, particularly those living within a "food desert."

The unincorporated community of North Richmond falls within the definition of a "food desert" because it is a

low-income community where the residents are more than one mile from the nearest supermarket. To address this

and other social issues, Urban Tilth, a 501(c)3 nonprofit corporation, is proposing to develop the Roots and

Restoration Farm on a 3.1 acre site in North Richmond.

Proposed Amendment: Urban Tilth has requested $22,000, in addition to the previously approved $435,000 for

predevelopment activities related to the proposed Roots and Restoration Farm in North Richmond. The $22,000

will be used to prepare a Soils Management Plan along with other predevelopment work. Additional information

is provided below.

Project Sponsor: Urban Tilth was founded in 2005 to help build a more sustainable, healthy, and just local food

system in the Richmond area and has grown to be a local leader bringing together a variety of individuals, groups

and other stakeholders interested in developing and operating initiatives based around urban farming. These

initiatives have helped the community grow their own food; train and employ youth; teach local residents about

the relationships among food, health, poverty, and justice; foster public foraging programs; forge partnerships

with local small farmers to increase demand for their produce.

Urban Tilth uses its 13 school (including Verde School in North Richmond) and community gardens and small

urban farms to teach and employ community members to grow, distribute, cook, and consume thousands of

pounds of local produce each year, and to create a more equitable and just food system within a healthier and

more self-sufficient community. 

Supervisor Gioia's office has been working extensively with UrbanTilth in the development and implementation

of this project. The idea came out of his visit to Zenger Farms, an urban farm partnership with the City of

Portland. 

Proposed Project: Urban Tilth's Roots and Restoration Farm ("Farm") is proposed to be a 3.1 acre Agricultural

Park and Riparian Restoration Learning Center located at 323 Brookside Drive in North Richmond. The goal of

the Farm is to provide the community a place to discover the power of the natural world by working, learning,

playing, and cultivating an open, multifunctional site to grow healthy food while nurturing sustainable habitat and

ecosystems.

The previously approved and proposed Park Dedication funds will be used for predevelopment activities and

preparation of a soil management plan required for a project application. Potential components of the project

include a working farm, a "You Pick It" learning garden, an outdoor kitchen, creek and garden classrooms, and a

youth-run market stand. 

Project History: 

On February 5, 2013, the Board of Supervisors (Board) approved the conveyance of the Brookside Drive

site from the Contra Costa County Flood Control and Water Conservation District to the County.

In March 12, 2013, the Board of Supervisors approved allocating $225,000 in North Richmond area census

tract park dedication funds for the County to purchase the subject site from Flood Control. Urban Tilth

leases the site from the County.

On August 12, 2014 Urban Tilth signed a ten-year lease with the County for the subject property. The lease

includes an option to extend for two additional 10-year terms.

On September 23, 2014, the County Planning Commission approved a resolution recommending the Board

adopt a General Plan Amendment to add new policies in the Contra Costa County General Plan Land Use

Element for the North Richmond Area to support and promote urban agriculture.



On October 7, 2014, the Board approved the recommendation from the Planning Commission.

Consequently, community gardens, demonstration/education gardens, edible landscape, home gardens,

processing incidental to agriculture, urban agriculture demonstration site, and urban farm are all permitted

uses in North Richmond.

On October 8, 2014, the North Richmond Municipal Advisory Council (MAC) voted unanimously to

recommend that $435,000 in park dedication funds be used for the Roots and Restoration Farm project.

Note: The total project budget for the farm is approximately $3.4 million. To date, Urban Tilth has raised

over $640,000, in addition to funds provided by the County. The requested park dedication funds will allow

Urban Tilth to move to the next phase of the project including environmental and site analysis, project

design/management, and construction of basic site infrastructure.

On December 2, 2014, the Contra Costa County Board of Supervisors approved and authorized Urban Tilth

to receive $435,000 in Park Dedication Funds and enter into a contract for the implementation of those

funds.

In 2015, Urban Tilth approached the County requesting an additional $22,000 to develop and implement a

Soil Management Plan.

The table below shows how the $435,000 are programmed as well as the proposed $22,000 Park Dedication

allocation.

Work Plan and Budget for Park Dedication Funds: 

Task Amount

Environmental and Site Analysis/Studies $ 92,321

Architect and Engineering Design $195,520

Project Management/Coordination $147,159

NEW: Development and implementation of the Soil Management

Plan 
$22,000

TOTAL $457,000

Project Timeline: The jobs tasks that will be paid for with park dedication funds were originally anticipated to be

completed by the end of December 2015. However, the environmental testing and design phase is taking longer

than anticipated. Construction of the entire project is expected to be completed by the end of 2018. 

It is the policy of the County to utilize park dedication funds to meet local park needs. The use of park dedication

funds to help finance the development of the Roots and Restoration Farm is consistent with that policy. If

approved, the balance in the North Richmond park dedication account will be approximately $1,000.

CEQA: The funding of predevelopment activities is exempt from the CEQA guidelines per the general rule that

CEQA applies only to projects which have the potential for causing a significant impact on the environment. This

activity involved funding for predevelopment only. Once the plans for the project are defined, the project may be

subject to further CEQA review.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

Not providing Park Dedication Funds will negatively impact the ability of Urban Tilth to proceed with the

proposed Roots and Restoration Farm project.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

The proposed project will support the following community outcomes established in the Children's Report Card:

1) Children and youth are healthy and preparing for a productive adulthood; 2) Families are safe, stable and

nurturing; 3) Communities are safe and provide a high quality of life for children and families.

ATTACHMENTS



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director, or his designee, to execute, on behalf of the County, Novation

Contract #24-859-23 with Edgewood Center for Children and Families, a non-profit corporation, in an amount not to

exceed $160,000, to provide specialty mental health services to severely emotionally disturbed (SED), children

including outpatient mental health services, collateral services and therapeutic behavioral services (TBS) for the

period from July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016. This Contract includes a six-month automatic extension through

December 31, 2016, in an amount not to exceed $80,000. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This Novation Contract is funded 50% Federal Financial Participation and 50% by County Realignment. (No rate

increase) 

BACKGROUND: 

This Contract meets the social needs of County’s population by providing day treatment and other specialty mental

health services to SED children and their families. October 21, 2014, the Board of Supervisors approved, Novation

Contract #24-859-22 with Edgewood Center for Children and Families, for the period from July 1, 2014 through June

30, 2015, which included 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF

SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Cynthia

Belon,

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of
Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: K Cyr,   N Rios   

C. 59

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Novation Contract #24-859-23 with Edgewood Center for Children and Families



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

a six-month automatic extension through, December 31, 2015, for the provision of mental health services, collateral

services and TBS for SED children. Approval of Novation Contract #24-859-23 will replace the automatic extension

under the prior contract and allow Contractor to continue providing services through June 30, 2016.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this novation contract is not approved, SED children will not have access to Contractor’s services.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

This program supports the following Board of Supervisors’ community outcomes: “Children Ready For and

Succeeding in School”; “Families that are Safe, Stable, and Nurturing”; and “Communities that are Safe and Provide

a High Quality of Life for Children and Families”. Expected program outcomes include an increase in positive social

and emotional development as measured by the Child and Adolescent Functional Assessment Scale (CAFAS).



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director, or his designee, to execute, on behalf of the County, Contract

#27-986 with Sonja Robinson, R.N. (dba Healthcare Solulations USA), a self-employed individual, in an amount not

to exceed $384,000, to provide healthcare consultation and technical assistance to the Health Plan Medical

Management team for the period from December 1, 2015 through November 30, 2016. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This Contract is funded 100% by Contra Costa Health Plan Member Premiums. 

BACKGROUND: 

Under Contract #27-986, the Contractor will provide consultation and technical assistance to the Contra Costa Health

Plan on Utilization Review Management and Health Plan Prior Authorization and Referral Processes including

working in collaboration with the Health Plan’s Chief Medical Director, Assistant Directors, Chief Executive Officer,

Utilization Review Nurses and Authorization staff; and updating policies and procedures for utilization review,

authorization and referral processes and ensure they meet requirements of Centers for Medicare and Medicaid

Services (CMS), California Department of Mental Health (DMHS), California Department of Health Care Services

(DHCS) and National Committee for Quality Assurance (NCQA) accreditations; through November 30, 2016. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Patricia Tanquary,

313-6004

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: T Scott,   N Rios   

C. 60

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Contract #27-986 with Sonja Robinson, R.N. (dba Healthcare Solutions USA) 



CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this contract is not approved, the Contra Costa Health Plan Management Team will not receive the benefits of

consultation and technical assistance from this contractor.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not applicable.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director, or his designee, to execute, on behalf of the County, Contract

Amendment/Extension Agreement #23-325-20 with Wilson Consulting, Inc., corporation, effective November 1, 2014, to

amend Contract #23-325-18 (as amended by Contract Amendment/Extension #23-325-19), to increase the payment limit by

$440,000, from $1,420,000, to a new payment limit of $1,860,000, and extend the term from December 31, 2014 through

December 31, 2016. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This amendment is funded 100% Enterprise Fund I. (No rate increase)

BACKGROUND: 

On February 11, 2014, the Board of Supervisors approved Contract #23-325-18 (as amended by Contract

Amendment/Extension #23-325-19) with Wilson Consulting, Inc., for the 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  David Runt,

313-6228

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of
Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: D Morgan,   N Rios   

C. 61

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Amendment/Extension #23-325-20 with Wilson Consulting, Inc. 



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

provision of technical support services for County’s Patient Accounting System, including custom reporting for the

Keane system, technical support for the ”HL7” interface, and assistance on implementing the Department’s

appointment system, for the period from January 1, 2014 through December 31, 2015.

Approval of Contract Amendment/Extension Agreement #23-325-19 will allow the Contractor to continue providing

service through December 31, 2016.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this amendment is not approved, Contractor will not continue providing services on County’s Keane computer system, while

the Contra Costa Regional Medical Center and Health Centers continues transitioning to the Epic computer system.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not Applicable



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director, or his designee to execute on behalf of the County, Training

Affiliation Agreement #26-631-1 with the David Grant Medical Center (DGMC), a government agency, a

non-financial agreement to provide special clinical training for DGMC’s U.S. Air Force trainee students in

preparation for residency certification, at Contra Costa Regional Medical Center (CCRMC) Family Practice

Residency Program, for the period from December 1, 2015 through December 31, 2020. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

None. This is a non-financial agreement. 

BACKGROUND: 

The purpose of this agreement is to provide DGMC’s Air Force Trainee students with the opportunity to integrate

academic knowledge with application skills and attitudes at progressively higher levels of performance requirements

and responsibility. Supervised fieldwork experience for students is considered to be an integral part of both the

educational and professional preparation for family medicine. The Health Services Department can provide the

requisite field education, while at the same time, taking advantage of the students’ services to patients. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Anna Roth,

925-370-5101

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: K Cyr,   N Rios   

C. 62

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Training Affiliation Agreement #26-631-1 with David Grant Medical Center



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

Approval of Training Affiliation Agreement #26-631-1 will allow supervised fieldwork experience for DGMC’s U.S.

Air Force trainee students in the area of obstetrics, newborn nursery, inpatient medical ward, acute care and

emergency ward, operating room, Intensive Care Unit, and the outpatient Martinez Addiction Clinic, through

December 31, 2020.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this contract is not approved, students at the DGMC will not get residency experience at CCRMC.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not applicable.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE AND AUTHORIZE the Auditor-Controller, or his designee, to pay $22,322 to UHS Surgical Services,

Inc. for the provision of surgical lasers, equipment and certified technicians to the Surgical Unit at Contra Costa

Regional Medical Center (CCRMC) during the period March 1, 2015 through August 31, 2015. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This contract is funded 100% Hospital Enterprise Fund I. 

BACKGROUND: 

UHS Surgical Services, Inc. has been providing laser and other surgical equipment as well as trained and certified

technicians to CCRMC for several years pursuant to a blanket purchase order. Due to the change from purchase order

to contract, the provider has not been paid in full for prior services. The provider is entitled to payment for the

reasonable value of its services under the equitable relief theory of quantum meruit. That theory provides that where

a person has been asked to provide services without a valid contract, and the provider does so to the benefit of the

recipient, the provider is entitled to recover the reasonable value of those services. Here, UHS Surgical Services, Inc.

provided services at the request of the department after the purchase order expired but before the contract began. The

Division is requesting the amount due the Contractor be paid the amount owing of $22,322. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Anna Roth,

925-370-5101

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: K Cyr,   N Rios   

C. 63

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Payment for services provided by UHS Surgical Services, Inc.



CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this is not approved, Contractor will not be paid for services provided in good faith to CCRMC.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not Applicable.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director, or his designee, to execute, on behalf of the County, Contract

#26-779-2 with Futurenet Technologies Corp, a corporation, in an amount not to exceed $650,000, to provide

temporary medical records coding for Contra Costa Regional Medical Center and Contra Costa Health Centers for

the period from October 1, 2015 through September 30, 2016. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This Contract is funded 100% by Hospital Enterprise Fund I. (No rate increase) 

BACKGROUND: 

On December 9, 2014, the Board of Supervisors approved Contract #26-779 (as amended by Contract Amendment

Agreement #26-779-1) with Futurenet Technologies Corporation, for the provision of medical coding, including

coding inpatient and outpatient records, scanning and quality assurance for Contra Costa Regional Medical Center

and Contra Costa Health Centers, in accordance with the American Hospital Associate Coding Clinic and the

American Medical Association, for the period from October 1, 2014 through September 30, 2015. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

If this contract is not approved, County will not be able to provide essential services or meet regulatory requirements. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Anna Roth,

370-5101

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of
Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: T Scott,   M Wilhelm   

C. 64

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Contract #26-779-2 with Futurenet Technologies Corp



CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not applicable.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director, or his designee, to execute, on behalf of the County, Contract

#25–012–33 with The Center for Common Concerns, Inc. (dba HomeBase), a non-profit corporation, in an amount

not to exceed $222,180, to provide consultation and technical assistance to the Department on the Continuum of Care

planning and resource development, for the period from October 1, 2015 through September 30, 2016. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This Contract is funded 45% by Federal Medi-Cal Administrative Activities (MAA), 24% by budgeted by County

General funds and 31% by Housing Urban Development(HUD) (No rate increase) 

BACKGROUND: 

On December 16, 2014, the Board of Supervisors approved Contract #25–012–31, (as amended by Amendment

Agreement #25-012-32) with The Center for Common Concerns, Inc. (dba HomeBase), for the period from

September 30, 2014 through September 30, 2015, for the provision of consultation and technical assistance to the

Department on the Continuum of Care planning and resource development, including grant-writing services for

County’s McKinney-Vento application.

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Cynthia Belon,

957-5201

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of
Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: T Scott,   M Wilhelm   

C. 65

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Contract #25–012–33 with The Center for Common Concerns, Inc. (dba HomeBase) 



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

Approval of Contract #25–012–33 will allow the Contractor to continue providing services through September 30,

2016.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this contract is not approved, County will no longer have the expertise needed to meet all federal guidelines to

secure maximum McKinney-Vento funding required to implement the 10-year plan to eliminate homelessness in

Contra Costa County.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not applicable.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director, or his designee, to execute on behalf of the County, Contract

#26-606-10 with Sodexo America, LLC, a limited liability company, in an amount not to exceed $298,441, for the

provision management and oversight of the Food and Nutrition Services Unit at Contra Costa Regional Medical

Center and Contra Costa Health Centers, for the period from November 1, 2015 through October 31, 2016. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This Contract is funded 100% Hospital Enterprise Fund I. (Rate increase) 

BACKGROUND: 

On January 6, 2015, the Board of Supervisors approved Contract #26-606-8 (as amended by Amendment Agreement

#26-606-9) with Sodexo America, LLC, for the period from November 1, 2014 through October 31, 2015, for the

provision of management and oversight of the Food and Nutrition Services Unit at Contra Costa Regional Medical

Center and Contra Costa Health Centers. Approval of Contract #26-606-10 will allow the Contractor to continue

providing services through October 31, 2016. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Anna Roth,

925-370-5101

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: K Cyr,   N Rios   

C. 66

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Contract #26-606-10 with Sodexo America, LLC 



CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this contract is not approved, Contra Costa Regional Medical Center would be operating without management

oversight in the Food and Nutritional Services Unit and be out of compliance with the Centers for Medicare and

Medicaid Services requirements.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not applicable.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director, or his designee, to execute, on behalf of the County, Contract Amendment

Agreement #24-681-2(30) with Susan Martinez (dba God’s Grace Homes), a self-employed individual, effective November 1,

2015, to amend Contract #24-681-2(29), to modify the Service Plan to add a second licensed augmented board and care facility

for County-referred mentally disordered clients, with no change in the original payment limit of $238,800 and no change in the

term of July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016.

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This amendment is funded 100% Mental Health Realignment funds. (Rate increase)

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  CYNTHIA BELON,

957-5201

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the
Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: D Morgan,   N Rios   

C. 67

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Amendment #24-681-2(30) with Susan Martinez (dba God’s Grace Homes) 



BACKGROUND:

On July 7, 2015, the Board of Supervisors approved Contract #24-681-2(29) with Susan Martinez (dba God’s Grace

Homes), for the period from July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016, for the provision of augmented board and care

services for County-referred mentally disordered clients. 

Approval of Contract Amendment Agreement #24-681-2(30) will allow the Contractor to provide additional

augmented board and care services at a second facility through June 30, 2016.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this amendment is not approved, contractor will not utilize the second licensed facility for additional augmented board and

care services.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not Applicable



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director, or his designee, to execute, on behalf of the County, Contract

#26-654-12 with Bay Area Tumor Institute, a non-profit corporation, in an amount not to exceed $600,000, to provide

consultation and technical assistance with regard to patient assistance programs for prescription drugs for indigent or

unfunded patients at Contra Costa Regional Medical Center and Contra Costa Health Centers, for the period from

August 1, 2015 through July 31, 2016. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

100% Hospital Enterprise Fund I. (No rate increase) 

BACKGROUND: 

On September 9, 2013, the Board of Supervisors approved Contract #26-654-9 (as amended by Amendment

Agreement #26-654-10) with Bay Area Tumor Institute, for the period from August 1, 2014 through July 31, 2015,

for the provision of consultation and technical assistance with regard to patient assistance programs for prescription

drugs offered by pharmaceutical companies to indigent or unfunded patients. 

Approval of Contract #26-654-12 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Pat Godley, 925

957-5410

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of
Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: T Scott,   M Wilhelm   

C. 68

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Contract #26-654-12 with Bay Area Tumor Institute



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

will allow the Contractor to continue providing services through July 31, 2016.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this contract is not approved, fewer indigent or unfunded patients will be enrolled in patient assistance programs

offered by pharmaceutical manufacturers.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not applicable.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the County Administrator, or designee to amend a contract with Nielsen Merksamer

Parrinello Gross & Leoni LLP, effective January 1, 2016, to extend the term from December 31, 2015 through

December 31, 2016 and increase the payment limit by $180,000 to a new payment limit of $720,000 for continued

state advocacy services. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Funding for state advocacy services is included in the FY 2015-16 budget. (100% General Fund) 

BACKGROUND: 

The law firm of Nielsen, Merksamer, Parrinello, Gross & Leoni (“Nielsen Merksamer”) has extensive experience in

the field of governmental advocacy regarding legislative, administrative and legal issues directly affecting counties.

Nielsen Merksamer is recognized for its expertise in the broad area of state and county relations, particularly fiscal

relationships. The firm has been instrumental in the development and advancement of the County's state legislative

platform. 

The contract terms specified in the RFP indicated a two year contract with three one-year renewal options. This

request would be the second one-year renewal request. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Lara DeLaney (925)

335-1097

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the
Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: Robert Campbell, County Auditor-Controller   

C. 69

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: David Twa, County Administrator

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Amend & Extend State Legislative Contract with Nielsen Merksamer Parrinello Gross & Leoni LLP 



CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

The County would not have state advocacy services.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Purchasing Agent, on behalf of the Health Services Department, to execute a blanket

Purchase Order with Med One Capital Funding, LLC., in the amount of $1,308,025.48 for a sixty (60) month lease of

the Omnicell automated dispensing cabinets for the Pharmacies at the Contra Costa Regional Medical Center and

Contra Costa Health Centers, for the period December 1, 2015 through November 30, 2020. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

100% funding is included in the Hospital Enterprise Fund l Budget. 

BACKGROUND: 

Contra Costa Regional Medical Center has used Omnicell since 2005 in the hospital, Emergency Department and

selected clinics. These Automated Dispensing Cabinets, (ADC) interface with our pharmacy information system

(EPIC). We will be leasing Omnicell equipment through Med One Capital Funding, LLC. We have been satisfied

with Omnicell service over the past 10 years and wish to continue our working relationship with this company. Med

One Capital Funding, LLC has helped us reach the Medication Safety and Patient Safety goals that we set for the

patient population, and has brought us into compliance with all regulatory requirements. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Anna Roth,

370-5101

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of
Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: T Scott,   M Wilhelm   

C. 70

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Med One Capital Funding, LLC. Purchase Order 



CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this Purchase Order is not approved, there will be a lack of a safe and effective medication storage and distribution

system, which could result in unsafe medication practices, potential costly regulatory citations, or patient harm.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not applicable.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and Authorize the Purchasing Agent, on behalf of the Health Services Department, to execute an amendment

to Purchase Order #55465 with Sanofi Pasteur, Inc., to add $65,000 for a new total of $215,000 for vaccines and

other injectable medications for the Contra Costa Reginal Medical Center and the Contra Costa Health Centers with

no change in the original term of January 1, 2015 through December 31, 2015. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

100% funding is included in the Enterprise Fund I Budget. 

BACKGROUND: 

Sanofi Pasteur, Inc. is a pharmaceutical company that provides the hospital and the clinics with vaccines and other

injectable medications. The request for additional funds is based on higher utilization of vaccines and injectable

medications due to service expansion. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

Without these vaccines and injectable medications, we will not be able to take care of our patient population at the

Contra Costa Regional Medical Center and the Contra Costa Health Centers. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Anna Roth,

370-5101

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of
Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: T Scott,   M Wilhelm   

C. 71

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Sanofi Pasteur, Inc. Blanket Purchase Order amendment



CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not Applicable.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the County Administrator, or designee, to amend a contract with Alcalde & Fay,

effective December 1, 2015, to extend the term from December 31, 2015 through December 31, 2016 and increase

the payment limit by $108,500 to a new payment limit of $416,892 for continued federal advocacy services. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

County General Funds have been budgeted for these legislative advocacy services. 

BACKGROUND: 

Alcalde & Fay, minority-controlled/employee-owned firm, is the County’s current federal representative. Paul

Schlesinger, the County’s point person at Alcalde & Fay, has established the County’s presence in Washington, D.C.

and developed excellent relationships with staff of our congressional delegation. The result has been a very positive

“return on investment” for the County for its appropriation and authorization requests. 

The contract terms specified in the RFP indicated a two-year contract with three one-year renewal options. Therefore,

this contract amendment would be the second one-year renewal option request. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Lara DeLaney (925)

335-1097

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the
Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: Robert Campbell, County Auditor-Controller   

C. 72

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: David Twa, County Administrator

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Amend & Extend Federal Legislative Contract with Alcalde & Fay 



CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

The County will not have representation by a firm for federal advocacy services.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not applicable.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director, or his designee, to execute, on behalf of the County, Contract

#26-661-6 with Planned Parenthood, Shasta Diablo, Inc., a corporation, in an amount not to exceed $1,214,000 for the

provision of prenatal services for Contra Costa Regional Medical Center and Health Centers patients, for the period

from July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016.

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This Contract is funded 100% Enterprise Fund I through billings to third party payors. (No rate increase)

BACKGROUND: 

On August 12, 2014, the Board of Supervisors approved Contract #26-661-5 with Planned Parenthood, Shasta

Diablo, Inc. to provide, upon request of the County’s Health Services Director or his designee, its licensed and

certified personnel to perform prenatal services 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Patrick Godley

(957-5410)

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: D Morgan,   N Rios   

C. 73

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Contract #26-661-6 with Planned Parenthood, Shasta Diablo, Inc. 



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

to Contra Costa Regional Medical Center and Health Center (CCRMC) patients at County’s leased clinic facilities

located in Concord, Richmond and Antioch, for the period from July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015, including

changes to County’s standard indemnification language of the General Conditions.

Approval of Contract #26-661-6 will allow Contractor to continue to provide prenatal services to CCRMC patients at

County’s leased clinic facilities located in Concord, Richmond and Antioch through June 30, 2016, including

changes to County’s standard indemnification language of the General Conditions. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this contract is not approved Contractor will be unable to provide services to a significant number of low income

women in the county who would either be without services or directed to County health services sites.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not applicable



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director, or his designee, to execute, on behalf of the County, Novation

Contract #24–705–60 with We Care Services for Children, a non-profit corporation, in an amount not to exceed

$1,727,802, to provide wrap-around and other mental health services including in-home behavioral therapy and

intensive care coordination for high risk, delayed or emotionally disturbed children, for the period from July 1, 2015

through June 30, 2016. This Contract includes a six-month automatic extension through December 31, 2016, in an

amount not to exceed $863,901.

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This Contract is funded 50% Federal Financial Participation; 50% County Realignment. (No rate increase) 

BACKGROUND: 

This Contract meets the social needs of County’s population by providing a program at Contractor’s Barbara Milliff

Center in Concord for preschool children with measurable delays in interpersonal, social/emotional, language and

cognitive development or children who are at risk for such delays, including abused, developmentally delayed,

emotionally disturbed and environmentally deprived children who do not meet the criteria for any categorical

funding source for services. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Cynthia Belon,

957-5201

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of
Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: E Suisala,   N Rios   

C. 74

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Novation Contract #24–705–60 with We Care Services for Children



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

On December 9, 2014, the Board of Supervisors approved Novation Contract #24–705–59 with We Care Services

for Children, for the period from July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015, which included a six-month automatic

extension through December 31, 2015, for the provision of wrap-around and mental health services for high risk,

delayed or emotionally disturbed children. 

Approval of Novation Contract #24–705–60, replaces the automatic extension under the prior Contract and allows

the Contractor to continue providing services, including in-home behavioral health services and intensive care

coordination, through June 30, 2016.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this contract is not approved, SED children within Contra Costa County will have reduced access to mental health

services as the County solicits and engages an alternative Contractor.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

This program supports the following Board of Supervisors’ community outcomes: “Children Ready For and

Succeeding in School”; “Families that are Safe, Stable, and Nurturing”; and “Communities that are Safe and Provide

a High Quality of Life for Children and Families”. Expected program outcomes include an increase in positive social

and emotional development as measured by the Child and Adolescent Functional Assessment Scale (CAFAS).



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director, or his designee, to execute, on behalf of the County, Novation

Contract #24-133-66 with La Cheim School, Inc., a non-profit corporation, in an amount not to exceed $2,278,692, to

provide a residential day treatment program, school and community-based mental health services, and therapeutic

behavioral services (TBS) for the period from July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016. This Contract includes a

six-month automatic extension through December 31, 2016, in an amount not to exceed $1,139,346.

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This Contract is funded 50% Federal Financial Participation; 50% by Mental Health Realignment. (No rate increase) 

BACKGROUND: 

This Contract meets the social needs of County's population by providing a half-day intensive day treatment, mental

health services and medication support in a residential 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Cynthia Belon,

957-5201

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of
Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: E Suisala,   N Rios   

C. 75

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Novation Contract #24-133-66 with La Cheim School, Inc. 



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

treatment setting for seriously emotionally disturbed (SED) youth, ages twelve through seventeen years, who are

eligible for services according to the Federal Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) or who are wards or

dependents of Contra Costa County Juvenile Court. Contractor also provides TBS to County-referred children.

On December 2, 2014 the Board of Supervisors approved Novation Contract #24-133-64 (as amended by Contract

Amendment Agreement #24-133-65) with La Cheim School, Inc., for the period July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015,

which included a six-month automatic extension through December 31, 2015, for the provision of

residential-treatment program, school- and community-based mental health services and TBS.

Approval of Novation Contract #24-133-66, replaces the automatic extension under the prior Contract allowing the

Contractor to continue providing services through June 30, 2016.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this contract is not approved, there will be fewer treatment options for wards of the Contra Costa County Juvenile

Court, and County’s Severely Emotionally Disturbed (SED) clients in West Contra Costa County as the County

solicits and engages an alternate contractor. This may result in delays in the provisions of these treatment services as

required by the Federal IDEA Act.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

This program supports the following Board of Supervisors’ community outcomes: “Children Ready For and

Succeeding in School”; “Families that are Safe, Stable, and Nurturing”; and “Communities that are Safe and Provide

a High Quality of Life for Children and Families”. Expected program outcomes include an increase in positive social

and emotional development as measured by the Child and Adolescent Functional Assessment Scale (CAFAS).



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director, or his designee, to execute, on behalf of the County, Contract

#74-505 with Anka Behavioral Health, Inc., a non-profit corporation, in an amount not to exceed $1,399,869, to

provide mental health services and support to adults with serious and persistent mental illness in Central Contra

Costa County for the period from January 1, 2016 through June 30, 2017. This Contract includes a six-month

automatic extension through December 31, 2017, in an amount not to exceed $466,623. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This Contract is funded 58% Mental Health Services Act and 42% Federal Financial Participation. 

BACKGROUND: 

This Contract meets the social needs of the County’s population by providing mental health services to adults with

serious mental illness who are homeless or at risk of homelessness and/or who are high utilizers of mental health

services. Under Contract #74-505, the Contractor will provide mental health services and support to adults with

serious and persistent mental illness who are homeless or at risk of homelessness, and/or who are high utilizers of

mental health services in Central Contra Costa County, for the period from from January 1, 2016 through June 30,

2017. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Cynthia Belon

957-5201

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of
Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: A Floyd,   N Rios   

C. 76

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Contract #74-505 with Anka Behavioral Health, Inc. 



CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this contract is not approved, there will be fewer services provided to eligible adult clients in Contra Costa County

through the MHSA Community Services and Support Program.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

NOT APPLICABLE



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director, or his designee, to execute, on behalf of the County, Novation

Contract #74-249-13 with Catholic Charities CYO of the Archdiocese of San Francisco, a non-profit corporation, in

an amount not to exceed $324,000, to provide Therapeutic Behavioral Services (TBS) for Seriously Emotionally

Disturbed (SED) children at its St. Vincent’s School for Boys for the period from July 1, 2015 through June 30,

2016. This Contract includes a six-month automatic extension through December 31, 2016, in an amount not to

exceed $162,000.

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This Contract is funded 50% Federal Financial Participation; 50% Mental Health Realignment. (No rate increase)

BACKGROUND: 

This Contract meets the social needs of County’s population in that 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Cynthia Belon,

957-5201

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of
Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: E Suisala,   N Rios   

C. 77

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Novation Contract #74-249-13 with Catholic Charities CYO of the Archdiocese of San Francisco



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

it provides day treatment and TBS services to SED children to reduce the need for hospitalization and/or other higher

levels of care.

On December 2, 2014, the Board of Supervisors approved Novation Contract #74-249-12 with Catholic Charities

CYO of the Archdiocese of San Francisco, for the period from July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015, which included a

six-month automatic extension through December 31, 2015, for the provision of day treatment, mental health

services, medication support and TBS for SED children at its St. Vincent’s School for Boys.

Approval of Novation Contract #74-249-13 replaces the automatic extension under the prior Contract and allows the

Contractor to continue providing services through June 30, 2016.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this contract is not approved, there will be fewer residential facilities to provide residential and outpatient program for seriously

emotionally disturbed youth as the County solicits and engages an alternate contractor.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

This program supports the following Board of Supervisors’ community outcomes: “Children Ready For and

Succeeding in School”; “Families that are Safe, Stable, and Nurturing”; and “Communities that are Safe and Provide

a High Quality of Life for Children and Families”. Expected program outcomes include an increase in positive social

and emotional development as measured by the Child and Adolescent Functional Assessment Scale (CAFAS).



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director, or his designee, to execute, on behalf of the County, Novation

Contract #24–933–33 with Crestwood Behavioral Health, Inc., a corporation, in an amount not to exceed $7,383,000,

to provide subacute skilled nursing care services for the period from July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This Contract is funded 88% Mental Health Realignment; 12% Mental Health Services Act (No Rate increase) 

BACKGROUND: 

This Contract meets the social needs of County’s population in that it provides subacute skilled nursing care services

for County’s Seriously and Persistently Mentally Ill (SMPI) and neurobehavioral clients.

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Cynthia Belon,

957-5201

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of
Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: E Suisala,   N Rios   

C. 78

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Novation Contract #24–933–33 with Crestwood Behavioral Health, Inc.



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

On December 2, 2014, the Board of Supervisors approved Contract #24-933-31, (as amended by Contract

Amendment Agreement #24-933-32) with Crestwood Behavioral Health, Inc. for the period from July 1, 2014

through June 30, 2015 which included a six-month automatic extension through December 31, 2015, for the

provision of subacute skilled nursing care for County’s Seriously and Persistently Mentally Ill (SPMI) and

Neurobehavioral clients.

Approval of Novation Contract #24-933-33 replaces the automatic extension under the prior Contract and allows the

Contractor to continue providing services through June 30, 2016, including mutual indemnification to hold harmless

both parties for any claims arising out of the performance of this Contract.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

The Behavioral Health Services Division/Mental Health places clients at Contractor's facilities licensed for various

levels of care. If the contract is not approved, a significant number of mentally ill young adults and adults may be

displaced to the community without the mental health services they require.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not applicable. 



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director, or his designee, to execute, on behalf of the County, Contract

#27-928-1 with Diabetics and Endocrinology Specialists, Inc., a corporation, in an amount not to exceed $150,000, to

provide diabetes and endocrinology services to Contra Costa Health Plan (CCHP) members for the period from

February 1, 2016 through January 31, 2018. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This Contract is funded 100% Contra Costa Health Plan Enterprise Fund II (No rate increase) 

BACKGROUND: 

In April 2014, the County Administrator approved and Purchasing Manager executed Contract #27-928, with

Diabetics and Endocrinology Specialists, Inc. for the period from February 1, 2014 through January 31, 2016, for the

provision of diabetes and endocrinology services for Contra Costa Health Plan members. Approval of Contract

#27-928-1 will allow Contractor to continue providing diabetes and endocrinology services for the period from

February 1, 2016 through January 31, 2018. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Patricia Tanquary

313-6004

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: A Floyd,   N Rios   

C. 79

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Contract #27-928-1 with Diabetics and Endocrinology Specialists, Inc. 



CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this contract is not approved, certain specialized health care services for its members under the terms of their

Individual and Group Health Plan membership contracts with the County will not be provided.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

NOT APPLICABLE



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director, or his designee, to execute, on behalf of the County, Novation

Contract #24-682-30 with Victor Treatment Centers, Inc., a non-profit corporation, in an amount not to exceed

$260,000, to provide residential treatment services to seriously emotionally disturbed children for the period from

July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016. This Contract includes a six-month automatic extension through December 31,

2016, in an amount not to exceed $130,000.

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This Contract is funded 50% Federal Financial Participation; 50% County Mental Health Realignment. (No rate

increase)

BACKGROUND: 

This Contract meets the social needs of County’s population by providing medication support, and other mental

health services in a residential setting, to seriously 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Cynthia Belon,

957-5201

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of
Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: E Suisala,   N Rios   

C. 80

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Novation Contract #24-682-30 with Victor Treatment Centers, Inc. 



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

emotionally disturbed children at Contractor’s Santa Rosa, Stockton and Redding facilities.

On January 6, 2015, the Board of Supervisors approved Contract #24-682-29 with Victor Treatment Centers, Inc., for

the period from January 1, 2015 through June 30, 2015, which included a six-month automatic extension through

December 31, 2015, for the provision of residential treatment services to seriously emotionally disturbed children.

Approval of Novation Contract #24-682-30 replaces the automatic extension and will allow Contractor to continue

providing residential treatment, medication support and other mental health services in a residential setting, through

June 30, 2016.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this contract is not approved, seriously emotionally disturbed youth from Contra Costa County will not have

adequate access to residential treatment facilities.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

This program supports the following Board of Supervisors’ community outcomes: “Children Ready For and

Succeeding in School”; “Families that are Safe, Stable, and Nurturing”; and “Communities that are Safe and Provide

a High Quality of Life for Children and Families”. Expected program outcomes include an increase in positive social

and emotional development as measured by the Child and Adolescent Functional Assessment Scale (CAFAS).



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director, or his designee, to execute, on behalf of the County, Contract

#27-865-2 with Walnut Creek Surgical Associates, Inc., a corporation, in an amount not to exceed $350,000, to

provide general surgery services for Contra Costa Health Plan members for the period from February 1, 2016 through

January 31, 2018. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This Contract is funded 100% Contra Costa Health Plan Enterprise Fund II. (No Rate increase) 

BACKGROUND: 

The Health Plan has an obligation to provide certain specialized professional health care services for its members

under the terms of their Individual and Group Health Plan membership contracts with the County. In July 2014, the

County Administrator approved and the Purchasing Services Manager executed Contract #27-865-1 with Walnut

Creek Surgical Associates, Inc. for the period from February 1, 2014 through January 31, 2016, to provide general

surgery services, for Contra Costa Health Plan members. Approval of Contract #27-865-2 will allow the Contractor

to continue providing general surgery services through January 31, 2018. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Patricia Tanquary

313-6004

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: A Floyd ,   N Rios   

C. 81

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Contract #27-865-2 with Walnut Creek Surgical Associates, Inc. 



CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this contract is not approved, certain specialized health care services for its members under the terms of their

Individual and Group Health Plan membership contracts with the County will not be provided.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not Applicable.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director, or his designee, to execute, on behalf of the County, Novation

Contract #24–308-43 with Early Childhood Mental Health Program, a non-profit corporation, in an amount not to

exceed $2,666,654, to provide specialized mental health services, including in-home behavioral health services to

children and their families in West County for the period from July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016. This Contract

includes a six-month automatic extension through December 31, 2016, in an amount not to exceed $1,333,327.

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This Contract is funded 50% Federal Financial Participation; 50% Mental Health Realignment. (No rate increase) 

BACKGROUND: 

This Contract meets the social needs of County’s population in that it provides school and community based mental

health services to children, from birth to age six 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Cynthia Belon,

957 5201

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of
Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: E Suisala,   N Rios   

C. 82

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Novation Contract #24–308-43 with Early Childhood Mental Health Program



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

(6), including in-home behavioral health services and intensive care coordination.

On December 9, 2014, the Board of Supervisors approved Novation Contract #24--308-42 with Early Childhood

Mental Health Program for the period from July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015, which included a six-month

automatic extension through December 31, 2015, for the provision of specialized mental health services to children

and their families.

Approval of Novation Contract #24-308-43 replaces the automatic extension under the prior Contract and allows the

Contractor to continue providing mental health services, including in-home behavioral health services and intensive

care coordination, through June 30, 2016.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this contract is not approved, there will be fewer mental health services provided to families in West Contra Costa

County. 

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

This program supports the following Board of Supervisors’ community outcomes: “Children Ready For and

Succeeding in School”; “Families that are Safe, Stable, and Nurturing”; and “Communities that are Safe and Provide

a High Quality of Life for Children and Families”. Expected program outcomes include an increase in positive social

and emotional development as measured by the Child and Adolescent Functional Assessment Scale (CAFAS).



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director, or his designee, to execute, on behalf of the County, Interagency

Agreement #72–019-1 with West Contra Costa Unified School District, (WCCUSD) a government agency, in an

amount not to exceed $190,000, to implement and coordinate the Teenage Pregnancy Prevention Project (TPP) in

West Contra Costa County, for the period from September 1, 2015 through August 31, 2020. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This Agreement is funded 100% Federal Department of Health and Human Services TPP Grant. (No rate increase) 

BACKGROUND: 

This Agreement meets the social needs of County’s population by implementing a TPP with the goal to reduce teen

birth rates among youth ages 15-19 years old who attend middle school or high school in West Contra Costa County.

On March 15, 2011, the Board of Supervisors approved Interagency Agreement #72–019 allowing the Agency to

implement the TPP in WCCUSD, for the period from September 1, 2010 through August 31, 2015. Approval of

Agreement #72–019-1 will allow the Agency to continue to coordinate and implement the TPP, within the WCCUSD

through August 31, 2020. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Daniel Peddycord

313-6712

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: A Floyd ,   N Rios   

C. 83

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Interagency Agreement #72-019-1 with West Contra Costa Unified School District



CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this contract is not approved, Agency will not be able to coordinate the implementation and administration of the

TPP within the WCCUSD, and County will be out of compliance with the terms for the Federal TPP Grant.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

This TPP program supports the following Board of Supervisors’ community outcomes: “Children Ready For and

Succeeding in School”; “Children and Youth Healthy and Preparing for Healthy Adulthood”; and “Communities that

are Safe and Provide a High Quality of Life for Children and Families”. Expected program outcomes include a

decrease in the number of teenage pregnancies in West Contra Costa County.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Chief Probation Officer, or his designee, to execute a contract containing mutual

indemnification language with Barry Krisberg, PHD, in an amount not to exceed $40,000 to provide expert review of

Juvenile Hall policies and procedures for the period of November 1, 2015 to October 31, 2019. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

The fiscal impact of $40,000 will be covered 100% by the General Fund. 

BACKGROUND: 

In August 2013, Disability Rights Advocates (DRA), a nonprofit organization dedicated to advancing the rights of

disabled persons, initiated a class-action lawsuit against Contra Costa County and the Contra Costa County Office of

Education. This lawsuit alleges that the Probation Department denied juveniles with disabilities educational services

required by federal law and challenges the use of room confinement as a disciplinary measure. The Probation

Department strongly disputes the allegations made in the complaint. However, the Department is aware of the

challenges it faces in disciplining Juvenile Hall residents while continuing to meet their educational needs 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Danielle Fokkema,

925-313-4195

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the
Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

C. 84

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Philip F. Kader, County Probation Officer

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Contract with Barry Krisberg PHD



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

and maintaining the safety and security of all of the juveniles housed at Juvenile Hall, the staff, and the facility itself.

As part of the settlement agreement, the County and DRA agreed to each select a subject matter expert to provided

expert review of the Juvenile Hall's policies and procedures. DRA selected Dr. Krisberg and their subject matter

expert.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

The County will be in violation of the settlement agreement.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Chief Information Officer, or designee, to execute a contract amendment with

Richard Miller, effective November 25, 2015, to extend the termination date from November 30, 2015 to November

30, 2016 and increase the payment limit by $75,000 to a new payment limit of $150,000 to provide continued Apple

product support services. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

The additional cost of $75,000 is recovered from the user departments through DoIT's billing process. 

BACKGROUND: 

This contract is used to provide telephonic, remote desktop support and on-site support for the County Board of

Supervisors, (and staff) Apple products. Contractor will provide support by virtual means (remotely), via telephone

and on site.

In accordance with Administrative Bulletin 605, service contracts exceeding $100,000 require the approval of the

Board of Supervisors. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

If the requested action is not approved, the user departments will be without the support necessary to keep their

computers and peripherals in proper working order. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Ed Woo (925)

383-2688

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of
Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

C. 85

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Ed Woo, Chief Information Officer

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Amend/Extend Contract with Richard Miller for Apple product support services



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Sheriff-Coroner, or designee, to execute a contract with Trinity Services I, LLC, to

provide commissary services to inmates in County-operated detention facilities and pay the County forty-eight

percent of gross revenue generated through commissary services for the period November 1, 2015 through October

31, 2020. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

No County cost. This contract provides revenue to the Inmate Welfare Fund based on sales to inmates. 

BACKGROUND: 

On December 13, 2005 (Item C.40), the Board of Supervisors authorized the Sheriff to contract with Canteen

Correctional Services (official name changed to Trinity Services I, LLC, with Board of Supervisor approval, January

22, 2013, Item C. 54) to provide commissary services to inmates in the County jails. Commissary sales provide

revenue to the Inmate Welfare Fund. Inmate Welfare Fund revenues are used to pay for inmate education and

vocational training, library services, and 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Sandra Brown,

925-335-1553

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the
Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

C. 86

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: David O. Livingston, Sheriff-Coroner

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Contract with Trinity Services I, LLC



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

pro per legal services. 

Under the current agreement with Trinity Services I, LLC, the Inmate Welfare Fund receives up to 45% of the

revenue generated through commissary sales. The new agreement will increase the percentages from 45% to 48% per

year. 

Trinity Services I, LLC, service products are at the cutting edge of technology that was developed specifically for

Contra Costa County. This technology has significantly reduced Sheriff's Office overhead costs in administering

inmate accounts. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

Negative action on this contract will decrease the amount of Inmate Welfare Fund revenues that are used to pay for

inmate education and vocational training, library services, and pro per legal services.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

No impact.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Chief Information Officer, or designee, to execute a contract amendment with E-3

Systems, to increase the payment limit by $550,000 to a new payment limit of $1,750,000 to continue to provide, on

an as-needed basis, installation and maintenance of telecommunications cabling. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

$550,000 increase. The costs incurred by the Department of Information Technology for services rendered by this

contractor are reimbursed by departments or agencies receiving the services. 

BACKGROUND: 

This contractor provides installation and maintenance of telecommunications cabling on an as-needed basis. These

services are outside the scope of the normal duties of the Department of Information Technology requiring the

retention of a specialized services contractor. E-3 Systems was selected in DoIT's 2012 RFP bid #1208-003. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

If the request is not approved, Information Technology may be unable to maintain the countywide

telecommunications network should an issue emerge requiring maintenance or installation of telecommunication

cabling. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Ed Woo (925)

383-2688

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of
Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

C. 87

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Ed Woo, Chief Information Officer

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: E3 Systems Professional Services Contract Amendment



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Purchasing Agent or designee to execute, on behalf of the Chief Information

Officer, a purchase order with AT&T Datacomm in an amount not to exceed $172,586 for the acquisition of Cisco

equipment, in support of a hosted communication system for the Health Services Department. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

$172,586; The project cost is charged out to the Health Services Department via DoIT's billing process. 

BACKGROUND: 

The Department of Information Technology's Telecommunication Division is in the process of moving to a Cloud

Hosted Internet Protocol Communication system, allowing for greater flexibility, disaster recovery, and enhanced use

of unified communications. This will provide for a more reliable office telephone service. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

The current County telephone system is 100% installed locally within the County buildings, which does not allow for

recovery in case of a local building disaster incident. Callers would receive an error tone because the telephone

system will be offline during such incident. With a cloud hosted telephone service, we will be able to maintain

in-bound and out-bound calling during local and regional disasters. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Ed Woo

925-383-2688

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of
Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

C. 88

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Ed Woo, Chief Information Officer

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Purchase Order with AT&T for Cisco Equipment



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

ADOPT Resolution No. 2015/430 to amend the salary schedule for the unrepresented WEX Trainee (XSK2) and Title

V Trainee (XSK1) classifications to be in compliance with the State of California minimum wage law ($10.00) and to

reallocate Step 2 of Title V Trainee (XSK1) to $11.00 effective January 1, 2016. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Upon approval, the cost of this action will be absorbed by the Department who utilize these classifications. 

BACKGROUND: 

The State of California has increased the minimum wage from $9.00 to $10.00 per hour effective January 1, 2016. In

order to remain in compliance with State law, the job classifications of WEX Trainee (XSK2) and Title V Trainee

(XSK1) will be reallocated on the salary schedule to set salary step 1 at no less than $10.00 per hour effective January

1, 2016.

In addition, step 2 of the Title V Trainee classification will be reallocated from $10.00 to $11.00 per hour, in order to

properly compensate senior participants assigned higher level program administrative assignments. Contra Costa

Works (CCWorks), the Expanded Subsidized Employment (ESE) Program, Workforce Innovation and Opportunity

Act (WIOA), and Senior Community Service Employment Program (SCESEP) are federally and state funded

temporary job training programs managed by the Employee and Human Services Department through the Workforce

Development Board and the Aging and Adult Services Bureau and need a higher level of skills.

Step 2 of the WEX Trainee (XSK2) salary schedule will not change.

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Anne Crisp (925)

313-1527

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: EHSD,   Human Resources,   Human Resources,   Otilia Parra,   James Hicks   

C. 89

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Kathy Ito, Human Resources Consultant

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Resolution No. 2015/430 WEX Trainee and Title V Minimum Wage Increase Jan. 1, 2016



Current Salary Step Salary Step eff. 1/1/16

Step 1 $ 9.19 $10.00

Step 2 $12.00 $12.00

WEX Trainee (XSK2) Salary Schedule

Current Salary Step Salary Step eff. 1/1/16

Step 1 $ 9.00 $10.00

Step 2 $10.00 $11.00

Title V Trainee (XSK1) Salary Schedule

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

If the request is not approved, Contra Costa County will not be in compliance with State of California minimum wage

law, and not reallocating Step 2 of the Title V Trainee classification will not allow for proper compensation to senior

participants of the SCESEP program. 

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT: 

Not applicable. 



ATTACHMENTS

Resolution No.

2015/430 



THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF CONTRA COSTA COUNTY, CALIFORNIA 

and for Special Districts, Agencies and Authorities Governed by the Board

Adopted this Resolution on 12/08/2015 by the following vote:

AYE:

NO:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

RECUSE:

Resolution No. 2015/430

In the Matter Of: Reallocating the WEX Trainee and Title V Trainee classifications on the Salary Schedule to be in compliance

with the State of California Minimum Wage Law

The Contra Costa Board of Supervisors in its capacity as governing Board of the County of Contra Costa finds that:

WHEREAS, the State of California has increased the minimum wage from $9.00 to $10.00 per hour effective January 1, 2016;

and

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors wishes to ensure that Contra Costa County is in compliance with the new state minimum

wage law; and

WHEREAS, in order to remain in compliance, the Title V Trainee (XSK1) classification will need to be reallocated on the salary

schedule to set salary step 1 at no less than $10.00 per hour on January , 2016; and

WHEREAS, the WEX Trainee (XSK2) classification will need to be reallocated on the salary schedule set salary step 1 at no

less than $10.00 per hour and salary step 2 at no less than $11.00 per hour;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that effective January 1, 2016, the classifications of WEX Trainee and Title V

Trainee will be reallocated on the salary schedule to set salary step 1 at no less than $10.00 per hour and to set salary step 2 of

the Title V Trainee at $11.00 per hour.

Contact:  Anne Crisp (925) 313-1527

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: EHSD,   Human Resources,   Human Resources,   Otilia Parra,   James Hicks   



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Conservation and Development Director, or designee, to (1) execute amended and

restated legal documents to consolidate the existing loans to Church Lane – Rubicon Partners, and (2) provide

$455,000 in Community Development Block Grant funds to Church Lane - Rubicon Partners for the rehabilitation of

Church Lane Apartments in San Pablo.

FISCAL IMPACT: 

No General Fund impact. Community Development Block Grant funds are provided to the County on a formula

allocation basis through the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). CFDA #14.218 

BACKGROUND: 

On October 7, 2014, the Board of Supervisors allocated $455,000 in Community Development Block Grant (CDBG)

funds to Church Lane - Rubicon Partners for the rehabilitation of Church Lane Apartments at 2560 Church Lane, San

Pablo. Church Lane was developed in 1996 by Rubicon Programs and consists of 22 apartments. The County

through its regulatory agreement requires ten units be affordable to very-low income families. The remaining 12 units

are required by other funders to be affordable to low and very-low income families.

An affiliate of Resources for Community Development replaced Rubicon Programs as the general partner in Church

Lane - Rubicon Partners in 2014. While the property is in generally fair to good condition, there is extensive water

damage to the concrete exterior walkways and supporting columns. The CDBG funds will be used to repair 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Kara Douglas 925

674-7889

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

C. 90

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: John Kopchik, Director, Conservation & Development Department

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Approval of Community Development Block Grant Legal Documents for the Church Lane Apartment Project in San

Pablo



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

the walkways and columns.

The project was originally financed in part with County funds as follows: in March 1995, $145,000 loan of CDBG

funds and $105,000 loan of HOME Investment Partnerships Act (HOME) funds; in June 1995, $100,000 loan of

CDBG funds; in November 1995, $340,000 loan in HOME funds; in June 1995, $100,000 loan in CDBG funds;

and in June 1997, $50,000 loan of HOME funds. As a result there are currently four loan agreements, four deeds

of trust, and two regulatory agreements. These various loans will be consolidated into a single amended and

restated loan agreement, and amended and restated deed of trust securing the new loan amount, and one amended

and restated regulatory agreement. The existing promissory notes will be canceled and there will be a new CDBG

promissory note and a new HOME promissory note. The principal amount of the CDBG loan will be the

outstanding principal and interest of the original CDBG loans and the additional $455,000 in CDBG funds. The

HOME loan amount will be the original principal and outstanding interest of the original HOME loans.

Consolidating the existing loans and the new loan into a single set of legal documents will facilitate ongoing

administration of the project. The new loan will have a three percent interest rate and 55 year term, which is

typical for CDBG and HOME loans. There may be some annual loan payments if the project has surplus cash

flow. Otherwise, the loan is deferred for 55 years. The loan documents are attached in their substantially final

form and will be executed in a form approved by County Counsel.

National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA): CDBG projects are subject to NEPA and 24 CFR Part 58 review.

The NEPA review for this project has been completed.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

Without the approval and execution of the CDBG legal documents, the rehabilitation will not be done and the

property will suffer from deferred maintenance.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

This project will help preserve existing affordable housing, which supports the Children's Impact Statement:

"Families are Economically Self-Sufficient."

ATTACHMENTS

Regulatory Agreement 

Deed of Trust 

CDBG Note 

HOME Note 

Amended and Restated Loan Agreement 



1 

RECORDING REQUESTED BY 

AND WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO: 

 

Contra Costa County  

Department of Conservation and Development 

30 Muir Road  

Martinez, CA  94553 

Attn:  Affordable Housing Program Manager 

 

 

No fee for recording pursuant to  

Government Code Section 27383 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

 

REGULATORY AGREEMENT AND 

DECLARATION OF RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS 

(Church Lane Apartments) 

(CDBG Funds and HOME Funds) 

 

This Regulatory Agreement and Declaration of Restrictive Covenants ("Agreement") is 

dated _____________, 201_ and is between the COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA, a political 

subdivision of the State of California (the "County"), and CHURCH LANE - RUBICON PARTNERS, a 

California limited partnership ("Borrower"). 

 

 

RECITALS 

 

A. Defined Terms used but not defined in these recitals are as defined in Article 1 of this 

Agreement. 

B. The County has received funds from the United States Department of Housing and Urban 

Development ("HUD") under Title I of the Housing and Community Development Act of 

1974, as amended ("CDBG Funds").  The CDBG Funds must be used by the County in 

accordance with 24 C.F.R. Part 570. 

 

C. The County has received Home Investment Partnerships Act funds from HUD pursuant 

to the Cranston-Gonzales National Housing Act of 1990 ("HOME Funds").  The HOME 

Funds must be used by the County in accordance with 24 C.F.R. Part 92. 

D. Borrower is the owner of that certain real property located at 2570 Church Lane in the 

City of San Pablo, County of Contra Costa, State of California, as more particularly 

described in Exhibit A (the "Property"), improved with twenty-two (22) units of housing 

affordable to very low- and low-income households (the "Development").  The 

Development as well as all landscaping, roads and parking spaces on the Property and 

any additional improvements on the Property, are the "Improvements."  Borrower intends 

to rehabilitate the Development. 



2 

E. Pursuant to a CDBG/HOME Loan Agreement dated March 31, 1995 (“Loan Agreement 

No. 1”), the County loaned One Hundred Forty-Five Thousand Dollars ($145,000) of 

CDBG Funds and One Hundred Five Thousand Dollars ($105,000) of HOME Funds to 

Church Lane Housing Corporation to acquire the Property and construct the 

Improvements.  Together, the loans made pursuant to Loan Agreement No. 1 are “Loan 

No. 1.”  Loan No. 1 was evidenced by a Regulatory Agreement by and between the 

County and Church Lane Housing Corporation dated March 31, 1995 (“Regulatory 

Agreement No. 1”).  Regulatory Agreement No. 1 was recorded in the official records of 

the County of Contra Costa (the “Official Records”) on April 4, 1995, as Instrument No. 

95-053358.  Pursuant to an Assignment and Assumption Agreement dated as of January 

12, 1996 (“Assignment No. 1”), Loan No. 1 was assigned to and assumed by Borrower.  

Assignment No. 1 was recorded in the Official Records on January 12, 1996, as 

Instrument No. 965890. 

F. Pursuant to a HOME Loan Agreement dated November 13, 1995 (“Loan Agreement No. 

2”), the County loaned Three Hundred Forty Thousand Dollars ($340,000) of HOME 

Funds (“HOME Loan No. 2”) to Church Lane Housing Corporation to assist in the 

construction of the Improvements.  HOME Loan No. 2 was evidenced by a Regulatory 

Agreement by and between the County and Church Lane Housing Corporation dated 

November 13, 1995 (“Regulatory Agreement No. 2”).   Regulatory Agreement No. 2 was 

recorded in the Official Records on November 14, 1995, as Instrument No. 95-197339.   

Pursuant to an Assignment and Assumption Agreement dated as of January 12, 1996 

(“Assignment No. 2”), HOME Loan No. 2 was assigned to and assumed by Borrower.  

Assignment No. 2 was recorded in the Official Records on January 12, 1996, as 

Instrument No. 96-5890. 

G. In addition to Loan No. 1 and HOME Loan No. 2, the County previously loaned 

Borrower (i) One Hundred Thousand Dollars ($100,000) in CDBG Funds (“CDBG Loan 

No. 2”), pursuant to a CDBG Loan Agreement dated June 22, 1995 (“Loan Agreement 

No. 3”), and (ii) Fifty Thousand Dollars ($50,000) in HOME Funds (“HOME Loan No. 

3”), pursuant to a HOME Loan Agreement dated June 12, 1997 (“Loan Agreement No. 

4”). 

H. Pursuant to an Amended and Restated CDBG and HOME Loan Agreement by and 

between the County and Borrower of even date herewith (the "Loan Agreement"), the 

County is (i) amending and restating Loan Agreement No. 1, Loan Agreement No. 2, 

Loan Agreement No. 3, and Loan Agreement No. 4, and (ii) lending Borrower 

____________ Thousand Dollars ($DDD,DDD) of CDBG Funds (the “New CDBG 

Loan”). The Loan Agreement, together with the CDBG Note, evidence Borrower’s 

obligation to repay _____________ Thousand Dollars ($DDD,DDD) of CDBG Funds 

(the “CDBG Loan”) and _________ Thousand Dollars ($EEE,EEE) of HOME Funds 

(the “HOME Loan”). 

I. Together, the CDBG Loan and the HOME Loan total ___________ Million _____ 

Thousand Dollars ($F,FFF,FFF) (the "Loan").   



3 

J. The County has the authority to lend the Loan to Borrower pursuant to Government Code 

Section 26227, which authorizes counties to spend county funds for programs that will 

further a county's public purposes. In addition, the County has the authority to loan the 

HOME Funds pursuant to 24 C.F.R. 92.205, and has authority to loan the CBDG Funds 

pursuant to 24 C.F.R. 570.201. 

K. The County has agreed to amend and restate Loan Agreement No. 1, Loan Agreement 

No. 2, Loan Agreement No. 3, and Loan Agreement No. 4 and to make the New CDBG 

Loan on the condition that the Borrower maintain and operate the Development in 

accordance with restrictions set forth in this Agreement and in the related documents 

evidencing the Loan. 

L. In consideration of receipt of the Loan at an interest rate substantially below the market 

rate, Borrower agrees to observe all the terms and conditions set forth below. 

 

ARTICLE 1 

DEFINITIONS 

 

1.1 Definitions. 

The following terms have the following meanings:   

(a) "Actual Household Size" means the actual number of persons in the 

applicable household. 

 

(b) "Adjusted Income" means the total anticipated annual income of all 

persons in the Tenant household as calculated pursuant to 24 C.F.R. 92.203(b)(1). 

 

(c) "Agreement" has the meaning set forth in the introductory paragraph of 

this Agreement.    

(d)  "Assumed Household Size" means the household size "adjusted for family 

size appropriate to the unit" as such term is defined in Health & Safety Code Section 50052.5(h).  

(e) "CDBG" means the Community Development Block Grant Program, 

funded pursuant to Title I of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974 (42 USC 

5301, et seq.). 

 

(f) "CDBG Funds" has the meaning set forth in Paragraph B of the Recitals. 

(g) “CDBG Loan” has the meaning set forth in Paragraph H of the Recitals.  

(h)  “CDBG Note” means the promissory note of even date herewith that 

evidences Borrower’s obligation to repay the CDBG Loan. 

 

(i)  "Completion Date" has the meaning set forth in the Loan Agreement. 



4 

(j) "County-Assisted Units" means the ten (10) Units within the Development 

designated as assisted by the County pursuant to this Agreement, which Units are "floating" 

Units as defined in 24 C.F.R. 92.252(j). 

 

(k) "Deed of Trust" means the Deed of Trust with Assignment of Rents, 

Security Agreement and Fixture Filing of even date herewith by and among Borrower, as trustor, 

North American Title Company, as trustee, and the County, as beneficiary, that will encumber 

the Property to secure repayment of the Loan and Borrower's performance of the covenants set 

forth in the documents evidencing the Loan.  

(l) "Development" has the meaning set forth in Paragraph D of the Recitals. 

(m) "HOME" means the Home Investment Partnerships Act Program funded 

pursuant to the Cranston-Gonzales National Housing Act of 1990. 

 

(n) "HOME Funds" has the meaning set forth in Paragraph C of the Recitals. 

(o) “HOME Loan” has the meaning set forth in Paragraph H of the Recitals. 

  

(p)  “HOME Note” means the promissory note of even date herewith that 

evidences Borrower’s obligation to repay the HOME Loan. 

 

(q)  "HOME Regulations" means the regulations set forth in 24 C.F.R. Part 92. 

 

(r) "HOME Term" means the period beginning on June 17, 1997 and ending 

on June 20, 2017.  

 

(s) "HUD" means the United States Department of Housing and Urban 

Development. 

(t) "Loan" has the meaning set forth in Paragraph I of the Recitals. 

 

(u) "Loan Agreement" has the meaning set forth in Paragraph H of the 

Recitals. 

  

(v) "Loan Documents" means the documents executed by Borrower 

evidencing the Loan including this Agreement, the CDBG Note and the HOME Note, the Loan 

Agreement, and the Deed of Trust.   

 

(w) "Low HOME Rent" means a monthly Rent amount not exceeding the 

maximum rent published by HUD for a Very Low Income Household for the applicable bedroom 

size as set forth in 24 C.F.R. 92.252(b). 

 

(x) "Low Income Household" means a Tenant household with an Adjusted 

Income that does not exceed eighty percent (80%) of Median Income, with adjustments for 

smaller and larger families, except that HUD may establish income ceilings higher or lower than 

eighty percent (80%) of Median Income on the basis of HUD findings that such variations are 

necessary because of prevailing levels of construction costs or fair market rents, or unusually 



5 

high or low family incomes, as such definition may be amended pursuant to 24 C.F.R. Section 

92.2. 

 

(y) "Median Income" means the median gross yearly income, adjusted for 

Actual Household Size as specified herein, in the County of Contra Costa, California, as 

published from time to time by HUD.  In the event that such income determinations are no 

longer published, or are not updated for a period of at least eighteen (18) months, the County 

shall provide Borrower with other income determinations that are reasonably similar with respect 

to methods of calculation to those previously published by HUD. 

 

(z) "Property" has the meaning set forth in Paragraph D of the Recitals.   

 

(aa) "Rent" means the total monthly payments by the Tenant of a Unit for the 

following:  use and occupancy of the Unit and land and associated facilities, including parking; 

any separately charged fees or service charges assessed by Borrower which are required of all 

Tenants, other than security deposits; an allowance for the cost of an adequate level of service 

for utilities paid by the Tenant, including garbage collection, sewer, water, electricity, gas and 

other heating, cooking and refrigeration fuel, but not telephone service or cable TV; and any 

other interest, taxes, fees or charges for use of the land or associated facilities and assessed by a 

public or private entity other than Borrower, and paid by the Tenant. 

 

(bb) "Tenant" means the tenant household that occupies a Unit in the 

Development. 

 

(cc) "Term" means the term of this Agreement, which commences as of the 

date of this Agreement, and unless sooner terminated pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, 

expires on the fifty-fifth (55
th

) anniversary of the Completion Date; provided, however, if a 

record of the Completion Date cannot be located or established, the Term will expire on the fifty-

seventh (57
th

) anniversary of this Agreement.  

(dd) "Unit(s)" means one (1) or more of the units in the Development. 

 

(ee) "Very Low Income Household" means a household with an Adjusted 

Income that does not exceed fifty percent (50%) of Median Income, with adjustments for smaller 

and larger families, except that HUD may establish income ceilings higher or lower than fifty 

percent (50%) of Median Income on the basis of HUD findings that such variations are necessary 

because of prevailing levels of construction costs or fair market rents, or unusually high or low 

family incomes, as set forth in 24 C.F.R. Section 92.2. 

 

(ff) "Very Low Income Units" means the Units which, pursuant to Section 

2.1(a) below, are required to be occupied by Very Low Income Households. 

 



6 

ARTICLE 2 

AFFORDABILITY AND OCCUPANCY COVENANTS 

 

2.1 Occupancy Requirements.   

(a) Very Low Income Units.  During the Term, Borrower shall rent ten (10) 

Units, and ensure that these Units are occupied or, if vacant, available for occupancy, by Very 

Low Income Households.   

 

(b) Intermingling of Units.  The County-Assisted Units are to be comprised of 

(i) four (4) three- or four-bedroom Units, (ii) four (4) two-bedroom Units, and (iii) two (2) Units 

of any size.  The County-Assisted Units are to be intermingled throughout the Development and 

of comparable quality to all other Units.  All Tenants must have equal access to and enjoyment 

of all common facilities in the Development. 

 

(c) Disabled Persons Occupancy.  Borrower shall cause the Development to 

be operated at all times in compliance with the provisions of:  (i) the Unruh Act, (ii) the 

California Fair Employment and Housing Act, (iii) Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 

1973, (iv) the United States Fair Housing Act, as amended, and (v) the Americans With 

Disabilities Act of 1990, which relate to disabled persons access.  Borrower shall indemnify, 

protect, hold harmless and defend (with counsel reasonably satisfactory to the County) the 

County, and its board members, officers and employees, from all suits, actions, claims, causes of 

action, costs, demands, judgments and liens arising out of Borrower's failure to comply with 

applicable legal requirements related to housing for persons with disabilities.  The provisions of 

this subsection will survive expiration of the Term or other termination of this Agreement, and 

remain in full force and effect. 

 

2.2 Allowable Rent. 

(a) Very Low Income Rent.  Subject to the provisions of Section 2.3 below, 

the Rent paid by Tenants of Very Low Income Units, may not exceed the Low HOME Rent. 

 

(b) No Additional Fees.  Borrower may not charge any fee, other than Rent, to 

any Tenant of the County-Assisted Units for any housing or other services provided by 

Borrower. 

 

2.3 Rent Increases; Increased Income of Tenants. 

(a) Rent Increases.  The initial Rents and subsequent Rents for all County-

Assisted Units must be approved by the County prior to occupancy and are subject to the HOME 

Regulations.  All Rent increases for all County-Assisted Units are also subject to County 

approval.  The Rent for such Units may be increased no more than once annually based upon the 

annual income certification described in Article 3.  Tenants are to be given at least sixty (60) 

days written notice prior to any Rent increase.  The County will provide Borrower with a 

schedule of maximum permissible Rents for the County-Assisted Units annually.  



7 

(b) Increased Income above Very Low but below Low Income Limit. Subject 

to Subsection (a) above, if, upon the annual certification of the income of a Tenant of a County-

Assisted Unit, Borrower determines that the income of a Very Low Income Household has 

increased above the qualifying limit for a Very Low Income Household, but not above the 

qualifying income for a Low Income Household, the Tenant may continue to occupy the Unit 

and the Tenant's Rent will remain at the Low HOME Rent.  Borrower shall then rent the next 

available Unit to a Very Low Income Household to comply with the requirements of Section 2.1 

above, at a Rent not exceeding the maximum Rent specified in Section 2.2, or re-designate 

another comparable Unit in the Development with a Very Low Income Household a County-

Assisted Unit, to comply with the requirements of Section 2.1 above.  Upon renting the next 

available Unit in accordance with Section 2.1 or re-designating another Unit in the Development 

as a County-Assisted Unit, the Unit with the over-income Tenant will no longer be considered a 

County-Assisted Unit. 

 

(c) Non-Qualifying Household. If, upon the annual certification of the income 

a Tenant of a County-Assisted Unit, Borrower determines that the income of a Very Low Income 

Household has increased above the qualifying limit for a Low Income Household, such Tenant 

shall be permitted to retain the Unit and upon expiration of the Tenant's lease and upon sixty (60) 

days written notice, the Rent must be increased to the lesser of one-twelfth (1/12
th)

 of thirty 

percent (30%) of the actual Adjusted Income of the Tenant, or fair market rent (subject to 24 

C.F.R. 92.252(i)(2) regarding low income housing tax credit requirements), and Borrower shall 

rent the next available Unit to a Very Low Income Household to comply with the requirements 

of Section 2.1 above, at a Rent not exceeding the maximum Rent specified in Section 2.2, or re-

designate another comparable Unit in the Development with Very Low Income Household as a 

County-Assisted Unit, to meet the requirements of Section 2.1 above.  Upon renting the next 

available Unit in accordance with Section 2.1 or re-designating another Unit in the Development 

as a County-Assisted Unit, the Unit with the over-income Tenant will no longer be considered a 

County-Assisted Unit. 

 

(d) Termination of Occupancy.  Upon termination of occupancy of a County-

Assisted Unit by a Tenant, such Unit will be deemed to be continuously occupied by a household 

of the same income level as the initial income level of the vacating Tenant, until such unit is 

reoccupied, at which time categorization of the Unit will be established based on the occupancy 

requirements of Section 2.1. 

 

2.4 Units Available to the Disabled.  Borrower shall rehabilitate the Development in 

compliance with all applicable federal and state disabled persons accessibility requirements 

including but not limited to the Federal Fair Housing Act; Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act 

of 1973; Title II and/or Title III of the Americans with Disabilities Act; and Title 24 of the 

California Code of Regulations.  In compliance with Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 

1973 (29 U.S.C. 794, et seq.), if the rehabilitation is substantial as defined in 24 C.F.R. 8.23(a), a 

minimum of four (4) of the rehabilitated Units must be fully accessible to households with a 

mobility impaired member and an additional two (2) Units of the rehabilitated Units must be 

fully accessible to hearing and/or visually impaired persons.  Non-substantial alterations shall 

comply with 24 C.F.R. 8.23(b).   

 



8 

ARTICLE 3 

INCOME CERTIFICATION AND REPORTING 

 

3.1 Income Certification.   Borrower shall obtain, complete, and maintain on file, 

immediately prior to initial occupancy and annually thereafter, income certifications from each 

Tenant renting any of the County-Assisted Units.  Borrower shall make a good faith effort to 

verify the accuracy of the income provided by the applicant or occupying household, as the case 

may be, in an income certification. To verify the information Borrower shall take two or more of 

the following steps:  (i) obtain a pay stub for the most recent pay period; (ii) obtain an income 

tax return for the most recent tax year; (iii) conduct a credit agency or similar search; (iv) obtain 

an income verification form from the applicant's current employer; (v) obtain an income 

verification form from the Social Security Administration and/or the California Department of 

Social Services if the applicant receives assistance from either of such agencies; or (vi) if the 

applicant is unemployed and does not have a tax return, obtain another form of independent 

verification.  Copies of Tenant income certifications are to be available to the County upon 

request. 

3.2 Reporting Requirements.  Borrower shall submit to the County (a) not later than 

the forty-fifth (45
th

) day after the close of each calendar year, or such other date as may be 

requested by the County, a statistical report, including income and rent data for all Units, setting 

forth the information called for therein, and (b) within fifteen (15) days after receipt of a written 

request, any other information or completed forms requested by the County in order to comply 

with reporting requirements of HUD, the State of California, and the County. 

3.3 Additional Information.  Borrower shall provide any additional information 

reasonably requested by the County. 

3.4 Records.  Borrower shall maintain complete, accurate and current records 

pertaining to the Development, and shall permit any duly authorized representative of the County 

to inspect records, including records pertaining to income and household size of Tenants.  All 

Tenant lists, applications and waiting lists relating to the Development are to be at all times: (i) 

separate and identifiable from any other business of Borrower, (ii) maintained as required by the 

County, in a reasonable condition for proper audit, and (iii) subject to examination during 

business hours by representatives of the County.  Borrower shall retain copies of all materials 

obtained or produced with respect to occupancy of the units for a period of at least five (5) years. 

The County may examine and make copies of all books, records or other documents of Borrower 

that pertain to the Development. 

3.5 HOME  Record Requirements.  For the period of the HOME Term all records 

maintained by Borrower pursuant to Sections 3.2 and 3.4 above are to be (i) maintained in 

compliance with all applicable HUD records and accounting requirements, and (ii) open to and 

available for inspection and copying by HUD and its authorized representatives at reasonable 

intervals during normal business hours; provided however, records pertaining to Tenant income 

verifications, Rents, and Development inspections are subject to HUD inspection for five (5) 

years after expiration of the HOME Term.  Borrower is subject to the audit requirements set 

forth in 24 CFR 92.505 during the HOME Term. 



9 

3.6 On-Site Inspection.  The County may perform an on-site inspection of the 

Development at least one (1) time per year.  Borrower shall cooperate in such inspection. 

 

ARTICLE 4 

OPERATION OF THE DEVELOPMENT 

 

4.1 Residential Use.  Borrower shall operate the Development for residential use 

only.  No part of the Development may be operated as transient housing. 

4.2 Compliance with Loan Documents and Program Requirements.  Borrower's 

actions with respect to the Property shall at all times be in full conformity with:  (i) all 

requirements of the Loan Documents; (ii) all requirements imposed on projects assisted with 

HOME Funds as contained in 42 U.S.C. Section 12701, et seq., 24 C.F.R. Part 92, and other 

implementing rules and regulations, (iii) all requirements imposed on projects assisted with 

CDBG Funds as contained in 42 U.S.C. Section5301, et seq., 24 C.F.R. Part 570, and other 

implementing rules and regulations, and (iv) any other regulatory requirements imposed on the 

Development.  

4.3 Taxes and Assessments.  Borrower shall pay all real and personal property taxes, 

assessments and charges and all franchise, income, employment, old age benefit, withholding, 

sales, and other taxes assessed against it, or payable by it, at such times and in such manner as to 

prevent any penalty from accruing, or any lien or charge from attaching to the Property; 

provided, however, that Borrower may contest in good faith, any such taxes, assessments, or 

charges.  In the event Borrower exercises its right to contest any tax, assessment, or charge 

against it, Borrower, on final determination of the proceeding or contest, will immediately pay or 

discharge any decision or judgment rendered against it, together with all costs, charges and 

interest. 

4.4 Property Tax Exemption.  Borrower shall not apply for a property tax exemption 

for the Property under any provision of law except California Revenue and Taxation Section 

214(g) without the prior written consent of the County. 

 

ARTICLE 5 

PROPERTY MANAGEMENT AND MAINTENANCE 

 

5.1 Management Responsibilities.   Borrower is responsible for all management 

functions with respect to the Development, including without limitation the selection of Tenants, 

certification and recertification of household size and income, evictions, collection of rents and 

deposits, maintenance, landscaping, routine and extraordinary repairs, replacement of capital 

items, and security.  The County has no responsibility for management of the Development. 

Borrower shall retain a professional property management company approved by the County in 

its reasonable discretion to perform Borrower's management duties hereunder.  An on-site 

property manager is also required. 

5.2 Management Agent.  Borrower shall cause the Development to be managed by an 



10 

experienced management agent reasonably acceptable to the County, with a demonstrated ability 

to operate residential facilities like the Development in a manner that will provide decent, safe, 

and sanitary housing (the "Management Agent").  The County previously approved Eden 

Housing Management, Inc. as the Management Agent.  Borrower shall submit for the County's 

approval the identity of any proposed subsequent management agent.  Borrower shall also submit 

such additional information about the background, experience and financial condition of any 

proposed management agent as is reasonably necessary for the County to determine whether the 

proposed management agent meets the standard for a qualified management agent set forth 

above.  If the proposed management agent meets the standard for a qualified management agent 

set forth above, the County shall approve the proposed management agent by notifying Borrower 

in writing.  Unless the proposed management agent is disapproved by the County within thirty 

(30) days, which disapproval is to state with reasonable specificity the basis for disapproval, it 

shall be deemed approved.   

5.3 Periodic Performance Review.  The County reserves the right to conduct an 

annual (or more frequently, if deemed necessary by the County) review of the management 

practices and financial status of the Development.  The purpose of each periodic review will be 

to enable the County to determine if the Development is being operated and managed in 

accordance with the requirements and standards of this Agreement. Borrower shall cooperate 

with the County in such reviews. 

5.4 Replacement of Management Agent.  If, as a result of a periodic review, the 

County determines in its reasonable judgment that the Development is not being operated and 

managed in accordance with any of the material requirements and standards of this Agreement, 

the County shall deliver notice to Borrower of its intention to cause replacement of the 

Management Agent, including the reasons therefor.  Within fifteen (15) days after receipt by 

Borrower of such written notice, the County staff and Borrower shall meet in good faith to 

consider methods for improving the financial and operating status of the Development, 

including, without limitation, replacement of the Management Agent. 

If, after such meeting, County staff recommends in writing the replacement of the 

Management Agent, Borrower shall promptly dismiss the then-current Management Agent, and 

shall appoint as the Management Agent a person or entity meeting the standards for a 

management agent set forth in Section 5.2 above and approved by the County pursuant to 

Section 5.2 above.  The County acknowledges that any replacement Management Agent is 

subject to the approval of Borrower’s investor limited partner identified in Section 6.13. 

 

Any contract for the operation or management of the Development entered into by 

Borrower shall provide that the Management Agent may be dismissed and the contract 

terminated as set forth above.  Failure to remove the Management Agent in accordance with the 

provisions of this Section constitutes a default under this Agreement, and the County may 

enforce this provision through legal proceedings as specified in Section 6.7 below. 

  

5.5 Approval of Management Policies.  Borrower shall submit its written 

management policies with respect to the Development to the County for its review, and shall 

amend such policies in any way necessary to ensure that such policies comply with the 

provisions of this Agreement. 



11 

5.6 Property Maintenance.  Borrower shall maintain, for the entire Term of this 

Agreement, all interior and exterior Improvements, including landscaping, on the Property in 

good condition and repair (and, as to landscaping, in a healthy condition) and in accordance with 

all applicable laws, rules, ordinances, orders and regulations of all federal, state, county, 

municipal, and other governmental agencies and bodies having or claiming jurisdiction and all 

their respective departments, bureaus, and officials, and in accordance with the following 

maintenance conditions: 

The County places prime importance on quality maintenance to protect its investment and 

to ensure that all County and County-assisted affordable housing projects within the County are 

not allowed to deteriorate due to below-average maintenance.  Normal wear and tear of the 

Development will be acceptable to the County assuming Borrower agrees to provide all 

necessary improvements to assure the Development is maintained in good condition.  Borrower 

shall make all repairs and replacements necessary to keep the improvements in good condition 

and repair. 

 

In the event that Borrower breaches any of the covenants contained in this section and 

such default continues for a period of five (5) days after written notice from the County with 

respect to graffiti, debris, waste material, and general maintenance or thirty (30) days after 

written notice from the County with respect to landscaping and building improvements, then the 

County, in addition to whatever other remedy it may have at law or in equity, has the right to 

enter upon the Property and perform or cause to be performed all such acts and work necessary 

to cure the default.  Pursuant to such right of entry, the County is permitted (but is not required) 

to enter upon the Property and to perform all acts and work necessary to protect, maintain, and 

preserve the improvements and landscaped areas on the Property, and to attach a lien on the 

Property, or to assess the Property, in the amount of the expenditures arising from such acts and 

work of protection, maintenance, and preservation by the County and/or costs of such cure, 

which amount shall be promptly paid by Borrower to the County upon demand. 

 

 

ARTICLE 6 

MISCELLANEOUS 

 

6.1 Lease Provisions.  In newly leasing the Units within the Development, Borrower 

shall use a form of lease approved by the County.  The lease must not contain any provision 

which is prohibited by 24 C.F.R. Section 92.253(b) and any amendments thereto.  The form of 

lease must comply with all requirements of this Agreement, the other Loan Documents and must, 

among other matters: 

(a) provide for termination of the lease for failure to: (i) provide any 

information required under this Agreement or reasonably requested by Borrower to establish or 

recertify the Tenant's qualification, or the qualification of the Tenant's household, for occupancy 

in the Development in accordance with the standards set forth in this Agreement, or (ii) qualify 

as a Very Low Income Household as a result of any material misrepresentation made by such 

Tenant with respect to the income computation.  

 

(b) be for an initial term of not less than one (1) year, unless by mutual 



12 

agreement between the Tenant and Borrower, and provide for no increase in Rent during such 

year.  After the initial year of tenancy, the lease may be month-to-month by mutual agreement of 

Borrower and the Tenant.  Notwithstanding the above, any rent increases are subject to the 

requirements of Section 2.3 (a) above. 

 

(c) include a provision that requires a Tenant who is residing in a Unit 

required to be accessible pursuant to Section 2.4 and who is not in need of an accessible Unit to 

move to a non-accessible Unit when a non-accessible Unit becomes available and another Tenant 

or prospective Tenant is in need of an accessible Unit. 

 

6.2 Lease Termination.   Any termination of a lease or refusal to renew the lease of a 

County-Assisted Unit must be (i) in conformance with 24 C.F.R. 92.253(c), and (ii) preceded by 

not less than sixty (60) days written notice to the Tenant by Borrower specifying the grounds for 

the action.  

6.3 Nondiscrimination. 

(a) All of the Units must be available for occupancy on a continuous basis to 

members of the general public who are income eligible.  Borrower may not give preference to 

any particular class or group of persons in renting or selling the Units, except to the extent that 

the Units are required to be leased to income eligible households pursuant to this Agreement.  

Borrower herein covenants by and for Borrower, assigns, and all persons claiming under or 

through Borrower, that there exist no discrimination against or segregation of, any person or 

group of persons on account of race, color, creed, religion, sex, sexual orientation, marital status, 

national origin, source of income (e.g., SSI), ancestry, or disability, in the leasing, subleasing, 

transferring, use, occupancy, tenure, or enjoyment of any unit nor will Borrower or any person 

claiming under or through Borrower, establish or permit any such practice or practices of 

discrimination or segregation with reference to the selection, location, number, use, or 

occupancy, of tenants, lessees, sublessees, subtenants, or vendees of any unit or in connection 

with the employment of persons for the construction, operation and management of any unit.   

 

(b) Borrower shall accept as Tenants, on the same basis as all other 

prospective Tenants, persons who are recipients of federal certificates for rent subsidies pursuant 

to the existing housing program under Section 8 of the United States Housing Act, or its 

successor.  Borrower may not apply selection criteria to Section 8 certificate or voucher holders 

that is more burdensome than criteria applied to all other prospective Tenants, nor will Borrower 

apply or permit the application of management policies or lease provisions with respect to the 

Development which have the effect of precluding occupancy of units by such prospective 

Tenants. 

 

6.4 Term.  The provisions of this Agreement apply to the Property for the entire Term 

even if the Loan is paid in full prior to the end of the Term.  This Agreement binds any 

successor, heir or assign of Borrower, whether a change in interest occurs voluntarily or 

involuntarily, by operation of law or otherwise, except as expressly released by County.  County 

is making the Loan on the condition, and in consideration of, this provision, and would not do so 

otherwise. 



13 

6.5  Notice of Expiration of Term. 

(a) At least six (6) months prior to the expiration of the Term, Borrower shall 

provide by first-class mail, postage prepaid, a notice to all Tenants containing (i) the anticipated 

date of the expiration of the Term, (ii) any anticipated increase in Rent upon the expiration of the 

Term, (iii) a statement that a copy of such notice will be sent to the County, and (iv) a statement 

that a public hearing may be held by the County on the issue and that the Tenant will receive 

notice of the hearing at least fifteen (15) days in advance of any such hearing.  Borrower shall 

also file a copy of the above-described notice with the County Assistant Deputy Director.   

 

(b) In addition to the notice required above, Borrower shall comply with the 

requirements set forth in California Government Code Sections 65863.10 and 65863.11.  Such 

notice requirements include: (i) a twelve (12) month notice to existing tenants, prospective 

tenants and Affected Public Agencies (as defined in California Government Code Section 

65863.10(a)) prior to the expiration of the Term, (ii) a six (6) month notice requirement to 

existing tenants, prospective tenants and Affected Public Agencies prior to the expiration of the 

Term; (iii) a notice of an offer to purchase the Development to "qualified entities" (as defined in 

California Government Code Section 65863.11(d)), if the Development is to be sold within five 

(5) years of the end of the Term; (iv) a notice of right of first refusal within the one hundred 

eighty (180) day period that qualified entities may purchase the Development.  

 

6.6 Covenants to Run With the Land.  The County and Borrower hereby declare their 

express intent that the covenants and restrictions set forth in this Agreement run with the land, 

and bind all successors in title to the Property, provided, however, that on the expiration of the 

Term of this Agreement said covenants and restrictions expire.  Each and every contract, deed or 

other instrument hereafter executed covering or conveying the Property or any portion thereof, is 

to be held conclusively to have been executed, delivered and accepted subject to the covenants 

and restrictions, regardless of whether such covenants or restrictions are set forth in such 

contract, deed or other instrument, unless the County expressly releases such conveyed portion 

of the Property from the requirements of this Agreement. 

6.7 Enforcement by the County.   If Borrower fails to perform any obligation under 

this Agreement, and fails to cure the default within thirty (30) days after the County has notified 

Borrower in writing of the default or, if the default cannot be cured within thirty (30) days, fails 

to commence to cure within thirty (30) days and thereafter diligently pursue such cure and 

complete such cure within ninety (90) days, the County may enforce this Agreement by any or 

all of the following actions, or any other remedy provided by law: 

(a) Calling the Loan.  The County may declare a default under either the 

CDBG Note or the HOME Note, or both, accelerate the indebtedness evidenced by either the 

CDBG Note or the HOME Note, or both, and proceed with foreclosure under the Deed of Trust. 

 

(b) Action to Compel Performance or for Damages.  The County may bring 

an action at law or in equity to compel Borrower's performance of its obligations under this 

Agreement, and may seek damages. 

 

(c) Remedies Provided Under Loan Documents.  The County may exercise 



14 

any other remedy provided under the Loan Documents. 

 

6.8 Attorneys' Fees and Costs.  In any action brought to enforce this Agreement, the 

prevailing party must be entitled to all costs and expenses of suit, including reasonable attorneys' 

fees.  This section must be interpreted in accordance with California Civil Code Section 1717 

and judicial decisions interpreting that statute. 

 

6.9 Recording and Filing.  The County and Borrower shall cause this Agreement, and 

all amendments and supplements to it, to be recorded in the Official Records of the County of 

Contra Costa. 

6.10 Governing Law.  This Agreement is governed by the laws of the State of 

California. 

6.11 Waiver of Requirements.  Any of the requirements of this Agreement may be 

expressly waived by the County in writing, but no waiver by the County of any requirement of 

this Agreement extends to or affects any other provision of this Agreement, and may not be 

deemed to do so. 

6.12 Amendments.  This Agreement may be amended only by a written instrument 

executed by all the parties hereto or their successors in title that is duly recorded in the official 

records of the County of Contra Costa. 

6.13 Notices.  Any notice requirement set forth herein will be deemed to be satisfied 

three (3) days after mailing of the notice first-class United States certified mail, postage prepaid, 

addressed to the appropriate party as follows: 

County:                    County of Contra Costa 

Department of Conservation and Development 

30 Muir Road  

Martinez, CA  94553 

Attn:  Affordable Housing Program Manager 

 

Borrower:               Church Lane - Rubicon Partners 

2220 Oxford Street 

Berkeley, CA  94704 

 

 

Such addresses may be changed by notice to the other party given in the same manner as 

provided above. 

 

6.14 Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement is determined by a court of 

competent jurisdiction to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable, the validity, legality and 

enforceability of the remaining portions of this Agreement will not in any way be affected or 

impaired thereby. 

6.15 Multiple Originals; Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in multiple 



15 

originals, each of which is deemed to be an original, and may be signed in counterparts. 

6.16 Revival of Agreement after Foreclosure. In the event there is a foreclosure of the 

Property, this Agreement will revive according to its original terms if, during the Term, the 

owner of record before the foreclosure, or deed in lieu of foreclosure, or any entity that includes 

the former owner or those with whom the former owner has or had family or business ties, 

obtains an ownership interest in the Development or Property.   

 

 

[remainder of page intentionally left blank]



16 
Signature page 

County Regulatory Agreement 

The parties are signing this Agreement as of the date first written above. 

 

 COUNTY: 

 

COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA, a political 

subdivision of the State of California 

 

 

By:   __________________ 

  

Its:____________________ 

 

Approved as to form: 

 

SHARON L. ANDERSON 

County Counsel 

 

 

 

 

By:      

 Kathleen Andrus 

            Deputy County Counsel 

 

 

 

 

 

BORROWER: 

 

Church Lane - Rubicon Partners, a California 

limited partnership 

 

By: RCD GP LLC, its general partner 

 

By: Resources for Community 

Development., a California nonprofit 

public benefit corporation, its sole 

member/manager 

 

 

By:____________________ 

 

Name:___________________ 

 

Its:____________________ 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA ) 

 ) 

COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA ) 

 

On ____________ __, 201_, before me, ______________________, Notary Public, personally 

appeared, _________________________who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence 

to be the person(s) whose name is subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me 

that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized capacity, and that by his/her/their 

signature on the instrument the person, or the entity upon behalf of which the person acted, 

executed the instrument. 

 

I certify UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the 

foregoing paragraph is true and correct. 

 

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

 

 

Signature ________________________________  (seal) 

 

 

 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA ) 

 ) 

COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA ) 

 

On ____________ __, 201_, before me, _______________, Notary Public, personally appeared, 

___________________________who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be 

the person(s) whose name is subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that 

he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized capacity, and that by his/her/their 

signature on the instrument the person, or the entity upon behalf of which the person acted, 

executed the instrument. 

 

I certify UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the 

foregoing paragraph is true and correct. 

 

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

 

 

Signature ________________________________  (seal) 

A Notary Public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual who signed the document 

to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document. 



 A-1 

EXHIBIT A 

 

Legal Description 

 

The land is situated in the State of California, County of Contra Costa, and is described as 

follows: 

 

 

 

 



 

863\90\1210054.2 1 

RECORDING REQUESTED BY 

AND WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO: 

Contra Costa County  

Department of Conservation and Development 

30 Muir Road 

Martinez, CA 94553 

Attn:  Affordable Housing Program Manager 

 

No fee for recording pursuant to  

Government Code Section 27383 

 

DEED OF TRUST WITH ASSIGNMENT OF RENTS,  

SECURITY AGREEMENT, AND FIXTURE FILING 

(Church Lane Apartments) 

 

 

THIS DEED OF TRUST WITH ASSIGNMENT OF RENTS, SECURITY 

AGREEMENT, AND FIXTURE FILING ("Deed of Trust") is made as of _________, 2015, by 

and among Church Lane - Rubicon Partners, a California limited partnership ("Trustor"), North 

American Title Company, a California corporation ("Trustee"), and the County of Contra Costa, 

a political subdivision of the State of California ("Beneficiary"). 

FOR GOOD AND VALUABLE CONSIDERATION, including the indebtedness herein 

recited and the trust herein created, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, Trustor hereby 

irrevocably grants, transfers, conveys and assigns to Trustee, IN TRUST, WITH POWER OF 

SALE, for the benefit and security of Beneficiary, under and subject to the terms and conditions 

hereinafter set forth, Trustor's fee interest in the property located in the County of Contra Costa, 

State of California, that is described in the attached Exhibit A, incorporated herein by this 

reference (the "Property").  

TOGETHER WITH all interest, estates or other claims, both in law and in equity which 

Trustor now has or may hereafter acquire in the Property and the rents;  

TOGETHER WITH all easements, rights-of-way and rights used in connection therewith 

or as a means of access thereto, including (without limiting the generality of the foregoing) all 

tenements, hereditaments and appurtenances thereof and thereto;  

TOGETHER WITH any and all buildings and improvements of every kind and 

description now or hereafter erected thereon, and all property of the Trustor now or hereafter 

affixed to or placed upon the Property;  

TOGETHER WITH all building materials and equipment now or hereafter delivered to 

said property and intended to be installed therein;  

TOGETHER WITH all right, title and interest of Trustor, now owned or hereafter 

acquired, in and to any land lying within the right-of-way of any street, open or proposed, 



 

863\90\1210054.2 2 

adjoining the Property, and any and all sidewalks, alleys and strips and areas of land adjacent to 

or used in connection with the Property;  

TOGETHER WITH all estate, interest, right, title, other claim or demand, of every 

nature, in and to such property, including the Property, both in law and in equity, including, but 

not limited to, all deposits made with or other security given by Trustor to utility companies, the 

proceeds from any or all of such property, including the Property, claims or demands with 

respect to the proceeds of insurance in effect with respect thereto, which Trustor now has or may 

hereafter acquire, any and all awards made for the taking by eminent domain or by any 

proceeding or purchase in lieu thereof of the whole or any part of such property, including 

without limitation, any awards resulting from a change of grade of streets and awards for 

severance damages to the extent Beneficiary has an interest in such awards for taking as 

provided in Paragraph 4.1 herein;  

TOGETHER WITH all of Trustor's interest in all articles of personal property or fixtures 

now or hereafter attached to or used in and about the building or buildings now erected or 

hereafter to be erected on the Property which are necessary to the complete and comfortable use 

and occupancy of such building or buildings for the purposes for which they were or are to be 

erected, including all other goods and chattels and personal property as are ever used or 

furnished in operating a building, or the activities conducted therein, similar to the one herein 

described and referred to, and all renewals or replacements thereof or articles in substitution 

therefor, whether or not the same are, or will be, attached to said building or buildings in any 

manner; and 

TOGETHER WITH all of Trustor's interest in all building materials, fixtures, equipment, 

work in process and other personal property to be incorporated into the Property; all goods, 

materials, supplies, fixtures, equipment, machinery, furniture and furnishings, signs and other 

personal property now or hereafter appropriated for use on the Property, whether stored on the 

Property or elsewhere, and used or to be used in connection with the Property; all rents, issues 

and profits, and all inventory, accounts, accounts receivable, contract rights, general intangibles, 

chattel paper, instruments, documents, notes drafts, letters of credit, insurance policies, insurance 

and condemnation awards and proceeds, trade names, trademarks and service marks arising from 

or related to the Property and any business conducted thereon by Trustor; all replacements, 

additions, accessions and proceeds; and all books, records and files relating to any of the 

foregoing. 

All of the foregoing, together with the Property, is herein referred to as the "Security."  

To have and to hold the Security together with acquittances to the Trustee, its successors and 

assigns forever.  

FOR THE PURPOSE OF SECURING THE FOLLOWING OBLIGATIONS (together, 

the "Secured Obligations"):  

A. Payment to Beneficiary of all sums at any time owing under or in connection with 

(i) the Note (defined in Section 1.7 below) until paid in full or cancelled, and (ii) any other 

amounts owing under the Loan Documents (defined in Section 1.6 below).  Principal and other 

payments are due and payable as provided in the Note or other Loan Documents, as applicable.  



 

863\90\1210054.2 3 

The Note and all its terms are incorporated herein by reference, and this conveyance secures any 

and all extensions thereof, however evidenced;  

B. Payment of any sums advanced by Beneficiary to protect the Security pursuant to 

the terms and provisions of this Deed of Trust following a breach of Trustor's obligation to 

advance said sums and the expiration of any applicable cure period, with interest thereon as 

provided herein;  

C. Performance of every obligation, covenant or agreement of Trustor contained 

herein and in the Loan Documents; and 

D. All modifications, extensions and renewals of any of the Secured Obligations 

(including without limitation, (i) modifications, extensions or renewals at a different rate of 

interest, or (ii) deferrals or accelerations of the required principal payment dates or interest 

payment dates or both, in whole or in part), however evidenced, whether or not any such 

modification, extension or renewal is evidenced by a new or additional promissory note or notes. 

AND TO PROTECT THE SECURITY OF THIS DEED OF TRUST, TRUSTOR 

COVENANTS AND AGREES:  

 

 

ARTICLE 1 

DEFINITIONS 

 

In addition to the terms defined elsewhere in this Deed of Trust, the following terms have 

the following meanings in this Deed of Trust: 

Section 1.1 The term “CDBG Note” means the promissory note in the principal 

amount of __________ Thousand Dollars ($DD,DDD) of even date herewith, executed by 

Trustor in favor of the Beneficiary, as it may be amended or restated, the payment of which is 

secured by this Deed of Trust.  The terms and provisions of the CDBG Note are incorporated 

herein by reference.  

 

Section 1.2  The term "Default Rate" means the lesser of the maximum rate permitted 

by law and ten percent (10%) per annum. 

 

Section 1.3  The term “HOME Note” means the promissory note in the principal 

amount of ______________ Thousand Dollars ($EEE,EEE) of even date herewith, executed by 

Trustor in favor of the Beneficiary, as it may be amended or restated, the payment of which is 

secured by this Deed of Trust.  The terms and provisions of the HOME Note are incorporated 

herein by reference. 

 

Section 1.4 The term "Loan" means the loan made by the Beneficiary to the Trustor in 

the amount of _______ Million _____ Thousand Dollars ($F,FFF,FFF). 

 

Section 1.5  The term "Loan Agreement" means that certain Amended and Restated 

CDBG and HOME Loan Agreement between Trustor and Beneficiary, of even date herewith, as 



 

863\90\1210054.2 4 

such may be amended from time to time, providing for the Beneficiary to loan to Trustor 

_______ Million _______ Thousand Dollars ($F,FFF,FFF). 

 

Section 1.6 The term "Loan Documents" means this Deed of Trust, the Note, the Loan 

Agreement, and the Regulatory Agreement, and any other agreements, debt, loan or security 

instruments between Trustor and the Beneficiary relating to the Loan.  

 

Section 1.7 The term "Note" means both the CDBG Note and the HOME Note, in the 

total principal amount of _______________ Million Dollars ($F,FFF,FFF).  

 

Section 1.8 The term "Principal" means the amounts required to be paid under the 

Note. 

 

Section 1.9 The term "Regulatory Agreement" means the Regulatory Agreement and 

Declaration of Restrictive Covenants of even date herewith by and between the Beneficiary and 

the Trustor. 

 

 

ARTICLE 2 

MAINTENANCE AND MODIFICATION OF THE PROPERTY 

AND SECURITY 

Section 2.1 Maintenance and Modification of the Property by Trustor. 

The Trustor agrees that at all times prior to full payment and performance of the Secured 

Obligations, the Trustor will, at the Trustor's own expense, maintain, preserve and keep the 

Security or cause the Security to be maintained and preserved in good condition.  The Trustor 

will from time to time make or cause to be made all repairs, replacements and renewals deemed 

proper and necessary by it.  The Beneficiary has no responsibility in any of these matters or for 

the making of improvements or additions to the Security.  

Trustor agrees to pay fully and discharge (or cause to be paid fully and discharged) all 

claims for labor done and for material and services furnished in connection with the Security, 

diligently to file or procure the filing of a valid notice of cessation upon the event of a cessation 

of labor on the work or construction on the Security for a continuous period of thirty (30) days or 

more, and to take all other reasonable steps to forestall the assertion of claims of lien against the 

Security or any part thereof.  Trustor irrevocably appoints, designates and authorizes Beneficiary 

as its agent (said agency being coupled with an interest) with the authority, but without any 

obligation, to file for record any notices of completion or cessation of labor or any other notice 

that Beneficiary deems necessary or desirable to protect its interest in and to the Security or the 

Loan Documents; provided, however, that Beneficiary exercises its rights as agent of Trustor 

only in the event that Trustor fails to take, or fails to diligently continue to take, those actions as 

hereinbefore provided.  

Upon demand by Beneficiary, Trustor shall make or cause to be made such demands or 

claims as Beneficiary specifies upon laborers, materialmen, subcontractors or other persons who 

have furnished or claim to have furnished labor, services or materials in connection with the 

Security.  Nothing herein contained requires Trustor to pay any claims for labor, materials or 



 

863\90\1210054.2 5 

services which Trustor in good faith disputes and is diligently contesting provided that Trustor 

shall, within thirty (30) days after the filing of any claim of lien, record in the Office of the 

Recorder of Contra Costa County, a surety bond in an amount 1 and 1/2 times the amount of 

such claim item to protect against a claim of lien.  

Section 2.2 Granting of Easements. 

Trustor may not grant easements, licenses, rights-of-way or other rights or privileges in 

the nature of easements with respect to any property or rights included in the Security except 

those required or desirable for installation and maintenance of public utilities including, without 

limitation, water, gas, electricity, sewer, telephone and telegraph, or those required by law, and 

as approved, in writing, by Beneficiary.  

Section 2.3 Assignment of Rents. 

 

As part of the consideration for the indebtedness evidenced by the Note, Trustor hereby 

absolutely and unconditionally assigns and transfers to Beneficiary all the rents and revenues of 

the Property including those now due, past due, or to become due by virtue of any lease or other 

agreement for the occupancy or use of all or any part of the Property, regardless of to whom the 

rents and revenues of the Property are payable, subject to the rights of senior lenders.  Trustor 

hereby authorizes Beneficiary or Beneficiary's agents to collect the aforesaid rents and revenues 

and hereby directs each tenant of the Property to pay such rents to Beneficiary or Beneficiary's 

agents; provided, however, that prior to written notice given by Beneficiary to Trustor of the 

breach by Trustor of any covenant or agreement of Trustor in the Loan Documents, Trustor shall 

collect and receive all rents and revenues of the Property as trustee for the benefit of Beneficiary 

and Trustor to apply the rents and revenues so collected to the Secured Obligations with the 

balance, so long as no such breach has occurred, to the account of Trustor, it being intended by 

Trustor and Beneficiary that this assignment of rents constitutes an absolute assignment and not 

an assignment for additional security only.  Upon delivery of written notice by Beneficiary to 

Trustor of the breach by Trustor of any covenant or agreement of Trustor in the Loan 

Documents, and without the necessity of Beneficiary entering upon and taking and maintaining 

full control of the Property in person, by agent or by a court-appointed receiver, Beneficiary shall 

immediately be entitled to possession of all rents and revenues of the Property as specified in this 

Section 2.3 as the same becomes due and payable, including but not limited to, rents then due 

and unpaid, and all such rents will immediately upon delivery of such notice be held by Trustor 

as trustee for the benefit of Beneficiary only; provided, however, that the written notice by 

Beneficiary to Trustor of the breach by Trustor contains a statement that Beneficiary exercises its 

rights to such rents.  Trustor agrees that commencing upon delivery of such written notice of 

Trustor's breach by Beneficiary to Trustor, each tenant of the Property shall make such rents 

payable to and pay such rents to Beneficiary or Beneficiary's agents on Beneficiary's written 

demand to each tenant therefor, delivered to each tenant personally, by mail or by delivering 

such demand to each rental unit, without any liability on the part of said tenant to inquire further 

as to the existence of a default by Trustor. 

 

Trustor hereby covenants that Trustor has not executed any prior assignment of said 

rents, that Trustor has not performed, and will not perform, any acts or has not executed and will 

not execute, any instrument which would prevent Beneficiary from exercising its rights under 



 

863\90\1210054.2 6 

this Section 2.3, and that at the time of execution of this Deed of Trust, there has been no 

anticipation or prepayment of any of the rents of the Property for more than two (2) months prior 

to the due dates of such rents.  Trustor covenants that Trustor will not hereafter collect or accept 

payment of any rents of the Property more than two (2) months prior to the due dates of such 

rents.  Trustor further covenant that Trustor will execute and deliver to Beneficiary such further 

assignments of rents and revenues of the Property as Beneficiary may from time to time request. 

 

Upon Trustor's breach of any covenant or agreement of Trustor in the Loan Documents, 

Beneficiary may in person, by agent or by a court-appointed receiver, regardless of the adequacy 

of Beneficiary's security, enter upon and take and maintain full control of the Property in order to 

perform all acts necessary and appropriate for the operation and maintenance thereof including, 

but not limited to, the execution, cancellation or modification of leases, the collection of all rents 

and revenues of the Property, the making of repairs to the Property and the execution or 

termination of contracts providing for the management or maintenance of the Property, all on 

such terms as are deemed best to protect the security of this Deed of Trust.  In the event 

Beneficiary elects to seek the appointment of a receiver for the Property upon Trustor's breach of 

any covenant or agreement of Trustor in this Deed of Trust, Trustor hereby expressly consents to 

the appointment of such receiver.  Beneficiary or the receiver will be entitled to receive a 

reasonable fee for so managing the Property. 

 

All rents and revenues collected subsequent to delivery of written notice by Beneficiary 

to Trustor of the breach by Trustor of any covenant or agreement of Trustor in the Loan 

Documents are to be applied first to the costs, if any, of taking control of and managing the 

Property and collecting the rents, including, but not limited to, attorney's fees, receiver's fees, 

premiums on receiver's bonds, costs of repairs to the Property, premiums on insurance policies, 

taxes, assessments and other charges on the Property, and the costs of discharging any obligation 

or liability of Trustor as lessor or landlord of the Property and then to the sums secured by this 

deed of Trust.  Beneficiary or the receiver is to have access to the books and records used in the 

operation and maintenance of the Property and will be liable to account only for those rents 

actually received.  Beneficiary is not liable to Trustor, anyone claiming under or through Trustor 

or anyone having an interest in the Property by reason of anything done or left undone by 

Beneficiary under this Section 2.3. 

 

If the rents of the Property are not sufficient to meet the costs, if any, of taking control of 

and managing the Property and collecting the rents, any funds expended by Beneficiary for such 

purposes will become part of the Secured Obligations pursuant to Section 3.3 hereof.  Unless 

Beneficiary and Trustor agree in writing to other terms of payment, such amounts are payable by 

Trustor to Beneficiary upon notice from Beneficiary to Trustor requesting payment thereof and 

will bear interest from the date of disbursement at the rate stated in Section 3.3. 

 

If the Beneficiary or the receiver enters upon and takes and maintains control of the 

Property, neither that act nor any application of rents as provided herein will cure or waive any 

default under this Deed of Trust or invalidate any other right or remedy available to Beneficiary 

under applicable law or under this Deed of Trust.  This assignment of rents of the Property will 

terminate at such time as this Deed of Trust ceases to secure the Secured Obligations. 

 



 

863\90\1210054.2 7 

ARTICLE 3 

TAXES AND INSURANCE; ADVANCES 

Section 3.1 Taxes, Other Governmental Charges and Utility Charges. 

Trustor shall pay, or cause to be paid, prior to the date of delinquency, all taxes, 

assessments, charges and levies imposed by any public authority or utility company that are or 

may become a lien affecting the Security or any part thereof; provided, however, that Trustor is 

not required to pay and discharge any such tax, assessment, charge or levy so long as (a) the 

legality thereof is promptly and actively contested in good faith and by appropriate proceedings, 

and (b) Trustor maintains reserves adequate to pay any liabilities contested pursuant to this 

Section 3.1.  With respect to taxes, special assessments or other similar governmental charges, 

Trustor shall pay such amount in full prior to the attachment of any lien therefor on any part of 

the Security; provided, however, if such taxes, assessments or charges can be paid in 

installments, Trustor may pay in such installments.  Except as provided in clause (b) of the first 

sentence of this paragraph, the provisions of this Section 3.1 may not be construed to require that 

Trustor maintain a reserve account, escrow account, impound account or other similar account 

for the payment of future taxes, assessments, charges and levies.   

In the event that Trustor fails to pay any of the items required by this Section to be paid 

by Trustor, Beneficiary may (but is under no obligation to) pay the same, after the Beneficiary 

has notified the Trustor of such failure to pay and the Trustor fails to fully pay such items within 

seven (7) business days after receipt of such notice.  Any amount so advanced therefor by 

Beneficiary, together with interest thereon from the date of such advance at the maximum rate 

permitted by law, will become part of the Secured Obligations secured hereby, and Trustor 

agrees to pay all such amounts.  

 

Section 3.2 Provisions Respecting Insurance. 

Trustor agrees to provide insurance conforming in all respects to that required under the 

Loan Documents during the course of construction and following completion, and at all times 

until all amounts secured by this Deed of Trust have been paid, all Secured Obligations secured 

hereunder have been fulfilled, and this Deed of Trust has been reconveyed.  

All such insurance policies and coverages are to be maintained at Trustor's sole cost and 

expense.  Certificates of insurance for all of the above insurance policies, showing the same to be 

in full force and effect, are to be delivered to the Beneficiary upon demand therefor at any time 

prior to Trustor's satisfaction of the Secured Obligations.  

Section 3.3 Advances. 

In the event the Trustor fails to maintain the full insurance coverage required by this 

Deed of Trust or fails to keep the Security in accordance with the Loan Documents, the 

Beneficiary, after at least seven (7) days prior notice to Trustor, may (but is under no obligation 

to) (i) take out the required policies of insurance and pay the premiums on the same, and (ii) 

make any repairs or replacements that are necessary and provide for payment thereof.  All 



 

863\90\1210054.2 8 

amounts so advanced by the Beneficiary will become part of the Secured Obligations (together 

with interest as set forth below) and will be secured hereby, which amounts the Trustor agrees to 

pay on the demand of the Beneficiary, and if not so paid, will bear interest from the date of the 

advance at the Default Rate.  

 

 

ARTICLE 4 

DAMAGE, DESTRUCTION OR CONDEMNATION 

 

Section 4.1 Awards and Damages. 

Subject to the rights of senior lenders, all judgments, awards of damages, settlements and 

compensation made in connection with or in lieu of (1) the taking of all or any part of or any 

interest in the Property by or under assertion of the power of eminent domain, (2) any damage to 

or destruction of the Property or any part thereof by insured casualty, and (3) any other injury or 

damage to all or any part of the Property (collectively, the "Funds") are hereby assigned to and 

are to be paid to the Beneficiary by a check made payable to the Beneficiary.  The Beneficiary is 

authorized and empowered (but not required) to collect and receive any Funds and is authorized 

to apply them in whole or in part to any indebtedness or obligation secured hereby, in such order 

and manner as the Beneficiary determines at its sole option.  The Beneficiary is entitled to settle 

and adjust all claims under insurance policies provided under this Deed of Trust and may deduct 

and retain from the proceeds of such insurance the amount of all expenses incurred by it in 

connection with any such settlement or adjustment.  All or any part of the amounts so collected 

and recovered by the Beneficiary may be released to Trustor upon such conditions as the 

Beneficiary may impose for its disposition.  Application of all or any part of the Funds collected 

and received by the Beneficiary or the release thereof will not cure or waive any default under 

this Deed of Trust.  The rights of the Beneficiary under this Section 4.1 are subject to the rights 

of any senior mortgage lender.  The Beneficiary shall release the Funds to Trustor to be used to 

reconstruct the improvements on the Property provided that Beneficiary reasonably determines 

that Trustor (taking into account the Funds) has sufficient funds to rebuild the improvements in 

substantially the form that existed prior to the casualty or condemnation. 

 

 

ARTICLE 5 

AGREEMENTS AFFECTING THE PROPERTY; FURTHER 

ASSURANCES; PAYMENT OF PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST 

 

Section 5.1 Other Agreements Affecting Property. 

The Trustor shall duly and punctually perform all terms, covenants, conditions and 

agreements binding upon it under the Loan Documents and any other agreement of any nature 

whatsoever now or hereafter involving or affecting the Security or any part thereof.  

Section 5.2 Agreement to Pay Attorneys' Fees and Expenses. 

In the event of any Event of Default (as defined in Section 7.1) hereunder, and if the 

Beneficiary employs attorneys or incurs other expenses for the collection of amounts due 

hereunder or the enforcement of performance or observance of an obligation or agreement on the 



 

863\90\1210054.2 9 

part of the Trustor in this Deed of Trust, the Trustor agrees that it will, on demand therefor, pay 

to the Beneficiary the reasonable fees of such attorneys and such other reasonable expenses so 

incurred by the Beneficiary.  Any such amounts paid by the Beneficiary will be added to the 

Secured Obligations, and will bear interest from the date such expenses are incurred at the 

Default Rate.  

Section 5.3 Payment of the Principal. 

The Trustor shall pay to the Beneficiary the Principal and any other payments as set forth 

in the Note in the amounts and by the times set out therein.  

Section 5.4 Personal Property. 

To the maximum extent permitted by law, the personal property subject to this Deed of 

Trust is deemed to be fixtures and part of the real property and this Deed of Trust constitutes a 

fixtures filing under the California Commercial Code.  As to any personal property not deemed 

or permitted to be fixtures, this Deed of Trust constitutes a security agreement under the 

California Commercial Code. 

Section 5.5 Financing Statement. 

The Trustor shall execute and deliver to the Beneficiary such financing statements 

pursuant to the appropriate statutes, and any other documents or instruments as are required to 

convey to the Beneficiary a valid perfected security interest in the Security.  The Trustor shall 

perform all acts that the Beneficiary reasonably requests so as to enable the Beneficiary to 

maintain a valid perfected security interest in the Security in order to secure the payment of the 

Note in accordance with its terms.  The Beneficiary is authorized to file a copy of any such 

financing statement in any jurisdiction(s) as it deems appropriate from time to time in order to 

protect the security interest established pursuant to this instrument. 

Section 5.6 Operation of the Security. 

The Trustor shall operate the Security (and, in case of a transfer of a portion of the 

Security subject to this Deed of Trust, the transferee shall operate such portion of the Security) in 

full compliance with the Loan Documents.   

Section 5.7 Inspection of the Security. 

At any and all reasonable times upon seventy-two (72) hours' notice, the Beneficiary and 

its duly authorized agents, attorneys, experts, engineers, accountants and representatives, may 

inspect the Security, without payment of charges or fees. 

Section 5.8 Nondiscrimination. 

The Trustor herein covenants by and for itself, its heirs, executors, administrators, and 

assigns, and all persons claiming under or through them, that there will be no discrimination 

against or segregation of, any person or group of persons on account of race, color, creed, 

religion, age, sex, sexual orientation, marital status, national origin or ancestry in the sale, lease, 

sublease, transfer, use, occupancy, tenure or enjoyment of the Security, nor will the Trustor itself 



 

863\90\1210054.2 10 

or any person claiming under or through it establish or permit any such practice or practices of 

discrimination or segregation with reference to the selection, location, number, use or occupancy 

of tenants, lessees, subtenants, sublessees or vendees in the Security.  The foregoing covenants 

run with the land. 

 

 

ARTICLE 6 

HAZARDOUS WASTE 

 

Trustor shall keep and maintain the Property (including, but not limited to, soil and 

ground water conditions) in compliance with all Hazardous Materials Laws and shall not cause 

or permit the Property to be in violation of any Hazardous Materials Law (defined below).  

Trustor may not cause or permit the use, generation, manufacture, storage or disposal of on, 

under, or about the Property or transportation to or from the Property  of (i) any substance, 

material, or waste that is petroleum, petroleum-related, or a petroleum by-product, asbestos or 

asbestos-containing material, polychlorinated biphenyls, flammable, explosive, radioactive, freon 

gas, radon, or a pesticide, herbicide, or any other agricultural chemical, and (ii) any waste, 

substance or material defined as or included in the definition of "hazardous substances," 

"hazardous wastes," "hazardous materials," "toxic materials", "toxic waste", "toxic substances," 

or words of similar import under any Hazardous Materials Law (collectively referred to 

hereinafter as "Hazardous Materials"), except such of the foregoing as may be customarily used 

in construction or operation of a multi-family residential development. 

Trustor shall immediately advise Beneficiary in writing if at any time it receives written 

notice of: (i) any and all enforcement, cleanup, removal or other governmental or regulatory 

actions instituted, completed or threatened against Trustor or the Property pursuant to any 

applicable federal, state or local laws, ordinances, or regulations relating to any Hazardous 

Materials, health, industrial hygiene, environmental conditions, or the regulation or protection of 

the environment, and all amendments thereto as of this date and to be added in the future and any 

successor statute or rule or regulation promulgated thereto ("Hazardous Materials Law"); (ii) all 

claims made or threatened by any third party against Trustor or the Property relating to damage, 

contribution, cost recovery compensation, loss or injury resulting from any Hazardous Materials 

(the matters set forth in clauses (i) and (ii) above are hereinafter referred to as "Hazardous 

Materials Claims"); and (iii) Trustor's discovery of any occurrence or condition on any real 

property adjoining or in the vicinity of the Property that could cause the Property or any part 

thereof to be classified as "border-zone property" (as defined in California Health and Safety 

Code Section 25117.4) under the provision of California Health and Safety Code Section 25220 

et seq., or any regulation adopted in accordance therewith, or to be otherwise subject to any 

restrictions on the ownership, occupancy, transferability or use of the Property under any 

Hazardous Materials Law. 

Beneficiary has the right to join and participate in, as a party if it so elects, and be 

represented by counsel acceptable to Beneficiary (or counsel of its own choice if a conflict exists 

with Trustor) in, any legal proceedings or actions initiated in connection with any Hazardous 

Materials Claims, and to have its reasonable attorneys' fees in connection therewith paid by 

Trustor.   



 

863\90\1210054.2 11 

Trustor shall indemnify and hold harmless the Beneficiary and its boardmembers, 

directors, officers, employees, agents, successors and assigns from and against any loss, damage, 

cost, fine, penalty, judgment, award, settlement, expense or liability, directly or indirectly arising 

out of or attributable to: (i) any actual or alleged past or present violation of any Hazardous 

Materials Law; (ii) any Hazardous Materials Claim; (iii) any actual or alleged past or present use, 

generation, manufacture, storage, release, threatened release, discharge, disposal, transportation, 

or presence of Hazardous Materials on, under, or about the Property; (iv) any investigation, 

cleanup, remediation, removal, or restoration work of site conditions of the Property relating to 

Hazardous Materials (whether on the Property or any other property); and (v) the breach of any 

representation of warranty by or covenant of Trustor in this Article, and Section 5.1(m) of the 

Loan Agreement.  Such indemnity shall include, without limitation: (x) all consequential 

damages; (y) the costs of any required or necessary investigation, repair, cleanup or 

detoxification of the Property and the preparation and implementation of any closure, remedial or 

other required plans; and (z) all reasonable costs and expenses incurred by the Beneficiary in 

connection with clauses (x) and (y), including but not limited to reasonable attorneys' fees and 

consultant fees.   This indemnification applies whether or not any government agency has issued 

a cleanup order.  Losses, claims, costs, suits, liability, and expenses covered by this 

indemnification provision include, but are not limited to: (1) losses attributable to diminution in 

the value of the Property; (2) loss or restriction of use of rentable space on the Property; (3) 

adverse effect on the marketing of any rental space on the Property; and (4) penalties and fines 

levied by, and remedial or enforcement actions of any kind issued by any regulatory agency 

(including but not limited to the costs of any required testing, remediation, repair, removal, 

cleanup or detoxification of the Property and surrounding properties). This obligation to 

indemnify will survive reconveyance of this Deed of Trust and will not be diminished or affected 

in any respect as a result of any notice, disclosure, knowledge, if any, to or by the Beneficiary of 

Hazardous Materials. 

Without Beneficiary's prior written consent, which may not be unreasonably withheld, 

Trustor may not take any remedial action in response to the presence of any Hazardous Materials 

on, under or about the Property, nor enter into any settlement agreement, consent decree, or other 

compromise in respect to any Hazardous Material Claims, which remedial action, settlement, 

consent decree or compromise might, in Beneficiary's reasonable judgment, impairs the value of 

the Beneficiary's security hereunder; provided, however, that Beneficiary's prior consent is not 

necessary in the event that the presence of Hazardous Materials on, under, or about the Property 

either poses an immediate threat to the health, safety or welfare of any individual or is of such a 

nature that an immediate remedial response is necessary and it is not reasonably possible to 

obtain Beneficiary's consent before taking such action, provided that in such event Trustor 

notifies Beneficiary as soon as practicable of any action so taken.  Beneficiary agrees not to 

withhold its consent, where such consent is required hereunder, if (i) a particular remedial action 

is ordered by a court of competent jurisdiction; (ii) Trustor will or may be subjected to civil or 

criminal sanctions or penalties if it fails to take a required action; (iii) Trustor establishes to the 

reasonable satisfaction of Beneficiary that there is no reasonable alternative to such remedial 

action which would result in less impairment of Beneficiary's security hereunder; or (iv) the 

action has been agreed to by Beneficiary. 

The Trustor hereby acknowledges and agrees that (i) this Article is intended as the 

Beneficiary's written request for information (and the Trustor's response) concerning the 



 

863\90\1210054.2 12 

environmental condition of the Property as required by California Code of Civil Procedure 

Section 726.5, and (ii) each representation and warranty in this Deed of Trust or any of the other 

Loan Documents (together with any indemnity applicable to a breach of any such representation 

and warranty) with respect to the environmental condition of the property is intended by the 

Beneficiary and the Trustor to be an "environmental provision" for purposes of California Code 

of Civil Procedure Section 736. 

In the event that any portion of the Property is determined to be "environmentally 

impaired" (as that term is defined in California Code of Civil Procedure Section 726.5(e)(3)) or 

to be an "affected parcel" (as that term is defined in California Code of Civil Procedure Section 

726.5(e)(1)), then, without otherwise limiting or in any way affecting the Beneficiary's or the 

Trustee's rights and remedies under this Deed of Trust, the Beneficiary may elect to exercise its 

rights under California Code of Civil Procedure Section 726.5(a) to (1) waive its lien on such 

environmentally impaired or affected portion of the Property and (2) exercise (a) the rights and 

remedies of an unsecured creditor, including reduction of its claim against the Trustor to 

judgment, and (b) any other rights and remedies permitted by law. For purposes of determining 

the Beneficiary's right to proceed as an unsecured creditor under California Code of Civil 

Procedure Section 726.5(a), the Trustor will be deemed to have willfully permitted or acquiesced 

in a release or threatened release of hazardous materials, within the meaning of California Code 

of Civil Procedure Section 726.5(d)(1), if the release or threatened release of hazardous materials 

was knowingly or negligently caused or contributed to by any lessee, occupant, or user of any 

portion of the Property and the Trustor knew or should have known of the activity by such 

lessee, occupant, or user which caused or contributed to the release or threatened release.  All 

costs and expenses, including (but not limited to) attorneys' fees, incurred by the Beneficiary in 

connection with any action commenced under this paragraph, including any action required by 

California Code of Civil Procedure Section 726.5(b) to determine the degree to which the 

Property is environmentally impaired, plus interest thereon at the Default Rate until paid, will be 

added to the indebtedness secured by this Deed of Trust and will be due and payable to the 

Beneficiary upon its demand made at any time following the conclusion of such action. 

 

ARTICLE 7 

EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES 

 

Section 7.1 Events of Default. 

The following are events of default following the expiration of any applicable notice and 

cure periods (each an "Event of Default"):  (i) failure to make any payment to be paid by Trustor 

under the Loan Documents; (ii) failure to observe or perform any of Trustor's other covenants, 

agreements or obligations under the Loan Documents, including, without limitation, the 

provisions concerning discrimination; (iii) failure to make any payment or observe or perform 

any of Trustor's other covenants, agreements, or obligations under any Secured Obligations, 

which default is not cured within the times and in the manner provided therein; and (iv) failure to 

make any payments or observe or perform any of Trustor's other covenants, agreements or 

obligations under any other debt instrument or regulatory agreement secured by the Property, 

which default is not cured within the time and in the manner provided therein. 

 



 

863\90\1210054.2 13 

Section 7.2 Acceleration of Maturity. 

If an Event of Default has occurred and is continuing, then at the option of the 

Beneficiary, the amount of any payment related to the Event of Default and all unpaid Secured 

Obligations are immediately due and payable, and no omission on the part of the Beneficiary to 

exercise such option when entitled to do so may be construed as a waiver of such right.  

Section 7.3 The Beneficiary's Right to Enter and Take Possession. 

If an Event of Default has occurred and is continuing, the Beneficiary may:   

(a) Either in person or by agent, with or without bringing any action or 

proceeding, or by a receiver appointed by a court, and without regard to the adequacy of its 

security, enter upon the Property and take possession thereof (or any part thereof) and of any of 

the Security, in its own name or in the name of Trustee, and do any acts that it deems necessary 

or desirable to preserve the value or marketability of the Property, or part thereof or interest 

therein, increase the income therefrom or protect the security thereof.  The entering upon and 

taking possession of the Security will not cure or waive any Event of Default or Notice of Sale 

(as defined in Section 7.3(c), below) hereunder or invalidate any act done in response to such 

Event of Default or pursuant to such Notice of Sale, and, notwithstanding the continuance in 

possession of the Security, Beneficiary will be entitled to exercise every right provided for in this 

Deed of Trust, or by law upon occurrence of any Event of Default, including the right to exercise 

the power of sale;  

 

(b) Commence an action to foreclose this Deed of Trust as a mortgage, 

appoint a receiver, or specifically enforce any of the covenants hereof;  

 

(c) Deliver to Trustee a written declaration of an Event of Default and 

demand for sale, and a written notice of default and election to cause Trustor's interest in the 

Security to be sold ("Notice of Sale"), which notice Trustee or Beneficiary shall cause to be duly 

filed for record in the Official Records of Contra Costa County; or  

 

(d) Exercise all other rights and remedies provided herein, in the instruments 

by which the Trustor acquires title to any Security, or in any other document or agreement now 

or hereafter evidencing, creating or securing the Secured Obligations.  

 

Section 7.4 Foreclosure By Power of Sale. 

Should the Beneficiary elect to foreclose by exercise of the power of sale herein 

contained, the Beneficiary shall deliver to the Trustee the Notice of Sale and shall deposit with 

Trustee this Deed of Trust which is secured hereby (and the deposit of which will be deemed to 

constitute evidence that the Secured Obligations are immediately due and payable), and such 

receipts and evidence of any expenditures made that are additionally secured hereby as Trustee 

may require.  

(a) Upon receipt of the Notice of Sale from the Beneficiary, Trustee shall 

cause to be recorded, published and delivered to Trustor such Notice of Sale as is then required 

by law and by this Deed of Trust.  Trustee shall, without demand on Trustor, after the lapse of 



 

863\90\1210054.2 14 

that amount of time as is then required by law and after recordation of such Notice of Sale as 

required by law, sell the Security, at the time and place of sale set forth in the Notice of Sale, 

whether as a whole or in separate lots or parcels or items, as Trustee deems expedient and in 

such order as it determines, unless specified otherwise by the Trustor according to California 

Civil Code Section 2924g(b), at public auction to the highest bidder, for cash in lawful money of 

the United States payable at the time of sale.  Trustee shall deliver to such purchaser or 

purchasers thereof its good and sufficient deed or deeds conveying the property so sold, but 

without any covenant or warranty, express or implied.  The recitals in such deed or any matters 

of facts will be conclusive proof of the truthfulness thereof.  Any person, including, without 

limitation, Trustor, Trustee or Beneficiary, may purchase at such sale.  

 

(b) After deducting all reasonable costs, fees and expenses of Trustee, 

including costs of evidence of title in connection with such sale, Trustee shall apply the proceeds 

of sale to payment of:  (i) the unpaid Principal amount of the Note; (ii) all other Secured 

Obligations owed to Beneficiary under the Loan Documents; (iii) all other sums then secured 

hereby; and (iv) the remainder, if any, to Trustor.  

 

(c) Trustee may postpone sale of all or any portion of the Property by public 

announcement at such time and place of sale, and from time to time thereafter, and without 

further notice make such sale at the time fixed by the last postponement, or may, in its discretion, 

give a new Notice of Sale.  

 

Section 7.5 Receiver. 

If an Event of Default occurs and is continuing, Beneficiary, as a matter of right and 

without further notice to Trustor or anyone claiming under the Security, and without regard to 

the then value of the Security or the interest of Trustor therein, may apply to any court having 

jurisdiction to appoint a receiver or receivers of the Security (or a part thereof), and Trustor 

hereby irrevocably consents to such appointment and waives further notice of any application 

therefor.  Any such receiver or receivers will have all the usual powers and duties of receivers in 

like or similar cases, and all the powers and duties of Beneficiary in case of entry as provided 

herein, and will continue as such and exercise all such powers until the date of confirmation of 

sale of the Security, unless such receivership is sooner terminated.  

Section 7.6 Remedies Cumulative. 

No right, power or remedy conferred upon or reserved to the Beneficiary by this Deed of 

Trust is intended to be exclusive of any other right, power or remedy, but each and every such 

right, power and remedy will be cumulative and concurrent and will be in addition to any other 

right, power and remedy given hereunder or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity. 

Section 7.7 No Waiver. 

(a) No delay or omission of the Beneficiary to exercise any right, power or 

remedy accruing upon any Event of Default will exhaust or impair any such right, power or 

remedy, and may not be construed to be a waiver of any such Event of Default or acquiescence 

therein; and every right, power and remedy given by this Deed of Trust to the Beneficiary may 

be exercised from time to time and as often as may be deemed expeditious by the Beneficiary.  



 

863\90\1210054.2 15 

Beneficiary's express or implied consent to breach, or waiver of, any obligation of the Trustor 

hereunder will not be deemed or construed to be a consent to any subsequent breach, or further 

waiver, of such obligation or of any other obligations of the Trustor hereunder.  Failure on the 

part of the Beneficiary to complain of any act or failure to act or to declare an Event of Default, 

irrespective of how long such failure continues, will not constitute a waiver by the Beneficiary of 

its right hereunder or impair any rights, power or remedies consequent on any Event of Default 

by the Trustor. 

 

(b) If the Beneficiary (i) grants forbearance or an extension of time for the 

payment or performance of any Secured Obligation, (ii) takes other or additional security or the 

payment of any sums secured hereby, (iii) waives or does not exercise any right granted in the 

Loan Documents, (iv) releases any part of the Security from the lien of this Deed of Trust, or 

otherwise changes any of the terms, covenants, conditions or agreements in the Loan Documents, 

(v) consents to the granting of any easement or other right affecting the Security, or (vi) makes or 

consents to any agreement subordinating the lien hereof, any such act or omission will not 

release, discharge, modify, change or affect the original liability under this Deed of Trust, or any 

other obligation of the Trustor or any subsequent purchaser of the Security or any part thereof, or 

any maker, co-signer, endorser, surety or guarantor (unless expressly released); nor will any such 

act or omission preclude the Beneficiary from exercising any right, power or privilege herein 

granted or intended to be granted in any Event of Default then made or of any subsequent Event 

of Default, nor, except as otherwise expressly provided in an instrument or instruments executed 

by the Beneficiary, will the lien of this Deed of Trust be altered thereby. 

 

Section 7.8 Suits to Protect the Security. 

The Beneficiary has the power to (a) institute and maintain such suits and proceedings as 

it may deem expedient to prevent any impairment of the Security and the rights of the 

Beneficiary as may be unlawful or any violation of this Deed of Trust, (b) preserve or protect its 

interest (as described in this Deed of Trust) in the Security, and (c) restrain the enforcement of or 

compliance with any legislation or other governmental enactment, rule or order that may be 

unconstitutional or otherwise invalid, if the enforcement for compliance with such enactment, 

rule or order would impair the Security thereunder or be prejudicial to the interest of the 

Beneficiary.  

Section 7.9 Trustee May File Proofs of Claim. 

In the case of any receivership, insolvency, bankruptcy, reorganization, arrangement, 

adjustment, composition or other proceedings affecting the Trustor, its creditors or its property, 

the Beneficiary, to the extent permitted by law, will be entitled to file such proofs of claim and 

other documents as may be necessary or advisable in order to have the claims of the Beneficiary 

allowed in such proceedings and for any additional amount that becomes due and payable by the 

Trustor hereunder after such date.  

Section 7.10 Waiver. 

The Trustor waives presentment, demand for payment, notice of dishonor, notice of 

protest and nonpayment, protest, notice of interest on interest and late charges, and diligence in 

taking any action to collect any Secured Obligations or in proceedings against the Security, in 



 

863\90\1210054.2 16 

connection with the delivery, acceptance, performance, default, endorsement or guaranty of this 

Deed of Trust. 

 

 

ARTICLE 8 

MISCELLANEOUS 

 

Section 8.1 Amendments. 

This Deed of Trust cannot be waived, changed, discharged or terminated orally, but only 

by an instrument in writing signed by Beneficiary and Trustor. 

Section 8.2 Reconveyance by Trustee. 

Upon written request of Beneficiary stating that all Secured Obligations have been paid 

or forgiven, and all obligations under the Loan Documents have been performed in full, and 

upon surrender of this Deed of Trust to Trustee for cancellation and retention, and upon payment 

by Trustor of Trustee's reasonable fees, Trustee shall reconvey the Security to Trustor, or to the 

person or persons legally entitled thereto.   

Section 8.3 Notices. 

If at any time after the execution of this Deed of Trust it becomes necessary or 

convenient for one of the parties hereto to serve any notice, demand or communication upon the 

other party, such notice, demand or communication must be in writing and is to be served 

personally or by depositing the same in the registered United States mail, return receipt 

requested, postage prepaid and (1) if intended for Beneficiary is to be addressed to: 

 County of Contra Costa 

 Department of Conservation and Development 

 30 Muir Road 

 Martinez, CA  94553 

   Attention:  Affordable Housing Program Manager  

 

and (2) if intended for Trustor is to be addressed to: 

 

Church Lane-Rubicon Partners 

c/o Resources for Community Development 

2220 Oxford Street 

Berkeley, CA  94704 

 

 



 

863\90\1210054.2 17 

 

 

Any notice, demand or communication will be deemed given, received, made or communicated 

on the date personal delivery is effected or, if mailed in the manner herein specified, on the 

delivery date or date delivery is refused by the addressee, as shown on the return receipt.  Either 

party may change its address at any time by giving written notice of such change to Beneficiary 

or Trustor as the case may be, in the manner provided herein, at least ten (10) days prior to the 

date such change is desired to be effective. 

Section 8.4 Successors and Joint Trustors. 

Where an obligation created herein is binding upon Trustor, the obligation also applies to 

and binds any transferee or successors in interest.  Where the terms of the Deed of Trust have the 

effect of creating an obligation of the Trustor and a transferee, such obligation will be deemed to 

be a joint and several obligation of the Trustor and such transferee.  Where Trustor is more than 

one entity or person, all obligations of Trustor will be deemed to be a joint and several obligation 

of each and every entity and person comprising Trustor. 

Section 8.5 Captions. 

The captions or headings at the beginning of each Section hereof are for the convenience 

of the parties and are not a part of this Deed of Trust. 

Section 8.6 Invalidity of Certain Provisions. 

Every provision of this Deed of Trust is intended to be severable.  In the event any term 

or provision hereof is declared to be illegal or invalid for any reason whatsoever by a court or 

other body of competent jurisdiction, such illegality or invalidity will not affect the balance of 

the terms and provisions hereof, which terms and provisions will remain binding and 

enforceable.  If the lien of this Deed of Trust is invalid or unenforceable as to any part of the 

debt, or if the lien is invalid or unenforceable as to any part of the Security, the unsecured or 

partially secured portion of the debt, and all payments made on the debt, whether voluntary or 

under foreclosure or other enforcement action or procedure, will be considered to have been first 

paid or applied to the full payment of that portion of the debt that is not secured or partially 

secured by the lien of this Deed of Trust. 

Section 8.7 Governing Law. 

This Deed of Trust is governed by the laws of the State of California. 

Section 8.8 Gender and Number. 

In this Deed of Trust the singular includes the plural and the masculine includes the 

feminine and neuter and vice versa, if the context so requires. 

Section 8.9 Deed of Trust, Mortgage. 

Any reference in this Deed of Trust to a mortgage also refers to a deed of trust and any 

reference to a deed of trust also refers to a mortgage. 



 

863\90\1210054.2 18 

Section 8.10 Actions. 

Trustor shall appear in and defend any action or proceeding purporting to affect the 

Security. 

Section 8.11 Substitution of Trustee. 

Beneficiary may from time to time substitute a successor or successors to any Trustee 

named herein or acting hereunder to execute this Trust.  Upon such appointment, and without 

conveyance to the successor trustee, the latter will be vested with all title, powers, and duties 

conferred upon any Trustee herein named or acting hereunder.  Each such appointment and 

substitution is to be made by written instrument executed by Beneficiary, containing reference to 

this Deed of Trust and its place of record, which, when duly recorded in the proper office of the 

county or counties in which the Property is situated, will be conclusive proof of proper 

appointment of the successor trustee. 

Section 8.12 Statute of Limitations. 

The pleading of any statute of limitations as a defense to any and all obligations secured 

by this Deed of Trust is hereby waived to the full extent permissible by law. 

Section 8.13 Acceptance by Trustee. 

Trustee accepts this Trust when this Deed of Trust, duly executed and acknowledged, is 

made public record as provided by law.  Except as otherwise provided by law, the Trustee is not 

obligated to notify any party hereto of a pending sale under this Deed of Trust or of any action or 

proceeding in which Trustor, Beneficiary, or Trustee is a party unless brought by Trustee. 

Section 8.14 Tax Credit Provisions. 

 

 Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein or in any documents secured 

by this Deed of Trust or contained in any subordination agreement, and to the extent applicable, 

the Beneficiary acknowledges and agrees that in the event of a foreclosure or deed-in-lieu of 

foreclosure (collectively, "Foreclosure") with respect to the Security encumbered by this Deed of 

Trust, the following rule contained in 26 U.S.C. Section 42(h)(6)(E)(ii), as amended, applies: 

 

 For a period of three (3) years from the date of Foreclosure, with respect to an existing 

tenant of any low-income unit, (i) such tenant may not be subject to eviction or termination of 

their tenancy (other than for good cause), (ii) nor may such tenant's gross rent with respect to 

such unit be increased, except as otherwise permitted under Section 42 of the Internal Revenue 

Code. 

 

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank] 



 

Signature page 

County Loan Agreement 

863\90\1227329.3 

19 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Trustor has executed this Deed of Trust as of the day and year first 

above written. 

 

Church Lane - Rubicon Partners, a California 

limited partnership 

 

 By: RCD GP LLC, its general partner 

 

 

By: Resources for Community 

Development, a California nonprofit 

public benefit corporation, its sole 

member/manager 

 

By:____________________ 

 

Name:___________________ 

 

Its:____________________ 



 

863\90\1210054.2 

 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA ) 

 ) 

COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA ) 

 

On ____________ __, 2015, before me, _______________, Notary Public, personally appeared, 

_________________________who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the 

person(s) whose name is subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that 

he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized capacity, and that by his/her/their 

signature on the instrument the person, or the entity upon behalf of which the person acted, 

executed the instrument. 

 

I certify UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the 

foregoing paragraph is true and correct. 

 

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

 

 

Signature ________________________________  (seal) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 A-1 
863\90\1210054.2 

EXHIBIT A 

 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

 

The land is situated in the State of California, County of Contra Costa, and is described as 

follows: 

 

 



 1 

PROMISSORY NOTE 

(CDBG Loan) 

 

$___________        Martinez, California 

          ________ 1, 20__ 

 

 FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned Church Lane - Rubicon Partners., a 

California limited partnership ("Borrower") hereby promises to pay to the order of the County of 

Contra Costa, a political subdivision of the State of California ("Holder"), the principal amount 

of ________________ Thousand Dollars ($__________) plus interest thereon pursuant to 

Section 2 below.     

 

This Promissory Note (the "Note") replaces in their entirety the following promissory 

notes executed for the benefit of Holder (together, the "Original Notes"):  (i) a promissory note 

dated March 31, 1995, in the amount of One Hundred Forty-Five Thousand Dollars ($145,000) 

executed by Church Lane Housing Corporation, and (ii) a promissory note dated June 22, 1995, 

in the amount of One Hundred Thousand Dollars ($100,000), executed by Rubicon Programs, 

Inc.  All disbursements under the Original Notes will be deemed to be disbursed under this Note.    

 

All capitalized terms used but not defined in this Note have the meanings set forth in the 

Loan Agreement. 

 

1. Borrower's Obligation.  This Note evidences Borrower's obligation to repay 

Holder the principal amount of _______________ Thousand Dollars ($___________) with 

interest for the funds loaned to Borrower, Church Lane Housing Corporation and Rubicon 

Programs, Inc. by Holder to finance the acquisition of the Property and the construction and 

rehabilitation of the Development in accordance with the Amended and Restated CDBG and 

HOME Loan Agreement of even date herewith between Borrower and Holder (the "Loan 

Agreement").   

 

2. Interest.   

 

(a) Subject to the provisions of Subsection (b) below, this Note bears simple 

interest at a rate of three percent (3%) per annum from the date of disbursement.  

 

(b) If an Event of Default occurs, interest will accrue on all amounts due 

under this Note at the Default Rate until such Event of Default is cured by Borrower or waived 

by Holder. 

 

3. Term and Repayment Requirements.  Principal and interest under this Note is due 

and payable as set forth in Section 2.8 of the Loan Agreement.  The unpaid principal balance 

hereunder, together with accrued interest thereon, is due and payable no later than the date that is 

the fifty-fifth (55
th

) anniversary of the Completion Date; provided, however, if a record of the 

Completion Date cannot be located or established, the Loan is due and payable on the fifty-sixth 

(56
th

) anniversary of the date of this Note. [Is this correct?] 

 



 2 

4. No Assumption.  This Note is not assumable by the successors and assigns of 

Borrower without the prior written consent of Holder, except as provided in the Loan 

Agreement. 

 

5. Security.  This Note, with interest, is secured by the Deed of Trust with 

Assignment of Rents, Security Agreement and Fixture Filing executed by Borrower for the 

benefit of Holder of even date herewith (the "Deed of Trust").  Upon execution, the Deed of 

Trust will be recorded in the official records of Contra Costa County, California.  Upon 

recordation of the Deed of Trust, this Note will become nonrecourse to Borrower, pursuant to 

and except as provided in Section 2.10 of the Loan Agreement, which Section 2.10 is hereby 

incorporated into this Note. The terms of the Deed of Trust are hereby incorporated into this 

Note and made a part hereof. 

 

6. Terms of Payment.   

 

(a) Borrower shall make all payments due under this Note in currency of the 

United States of America to Holder at Department of  Conservation and Development, 30 Muir 

Road, Martinez, CA  94553, Attention:  Affordable Housing Program Manager, or to such other 

place as Holder may from time to time designate. 

 

(b) All payments on this Note are without expense to Holder.  Borrower shall 

pay all costs and expenses, including re-conveyance fees and reasonable attorney's fees of 

Holder, incurred in connection with the payment of this Note and the release of any security 

hereof. 

 

(c) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Note, or any instrument 

securing the obligations of Borrower under this Note, if, for any reason whatsoever, the payment 

of any sums by Borrower pursuant to the terms of this Note would result in the payment of 

interest that exceeds the amount that Holder may legally charge under the laws of the State of 

California, then the amount by which payments exceed the lawful interest rate will automatically 

be deducted from the principal balance owing on this Note, so that in no event is Borrower 

obligated under the terms of this Note to pay any interest that would exceed the lawful rate. 

 

(d) The obligations of Borrower under this Note are absolute and Borrower 

waives any and all rights to offset, deduct or withhold any payments or charges due under this 

Note for any reason whatsoever.   

 

7. Event of Default; Acceleration. 

 

(a) Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, the entire unpaid principal 

balance, together with all interest thereon, and together with all other sums then payable under 

this Note and the Deed of Trust will, at the option of Holder, become immediately due and 

payable without further demand. 

 

(b) Holder's failure to exercise the remedy set forth in Subsection 7(a) above 

or any other remedy provided by law upon the occurrence of an Event of Default does not 

constitute a waiver of the right to exercise any remedy at any subsequent time in respect to the 



 3 

same or any other Event of Default.  The acceptance by Holder of any payment that is less than 

the total of all amounts due and payable at the time of such payment does not constitute a waiver 

of the right to exercise any of the foregoing remedies or options at that time or at any subsequent 

time, or nullify any prior exercise of any such remedy or option, without the express consent of 

Holder, except as and to the extent otherwise provided by law. 

 

8. Waivers.   

 

(a) Borrower hereby waives diligence, presentment, protest and demand, and 

notice of protest, notice of demand, notice of dishonor and notice of non-payment of this Note.  

Borrower expressly agrees that this Note or any payment hereunder may be extended from time 

to time, and that Holder may accept further security or release any security for this Note, all 

without in any way affecting the liability of Borrower. 

 

(b) Any extension of time for payment of this Note or any installment hereof 

made by agreement of Holder with any person now or hereafter liable for payment of this Note 

must not operate to release, discharge, modify, change or affect the original liability of Borrower 

under this Note, either in whole or in part. 

 

 

[remainder of page intentionally left blank]



 4 

 

9. Miscellaneous Provisions.   

 

(a) All notices to Holder or Borrower are to be given in the manner and at the 

addresses set forth in the Loan Agreement, or to such addresses as Holder and Borrower may 

therein designate. 

 

(b) Borrower promises to pay all costs and expenses, including reasonable 

attorney's fees, incurred by Holder in the enforcement of the provisions of this Note, regardless 

of whether suit is filed to seek enforcement. 

 

(c) This Note is governed by the laws of the State of California. 

 

(d) The times for the performance of any obligations hereunder are to be 

strictly construed, time being of the essence. 

 

(e) The Loan Documents, of which this Note is a part, contain the entire 

agreement between the parties as to the Loan.  This Note may not be modified except upon the 

written consent of the parties. 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Borrower is executing this Promissory Note as of the day and 

year first above written. 

       

Church Lane - Rubicon Partners, a California limited 

partnership 

 

By: RCD GP LLC, its general partner 

 

By: Resources for Community Development., a California 

nonprofit public benefit corporation, its sole 

member/manager 

 

 

By:____________________ 

 

Name:___________________ 

 

Its:____________________ 

 

 



 1 

PROMISSORY NOTE 

(HOME Loan) 

 

$___________        Martinez, California 

          ________ 1, 20__ 

 

 FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned Church Lane -Rubicon Partners., a 

California limited partnership ("Borrower") hereby promises to pay to the order of the County of 

Contra Costa, a political subdivision of the State of California ("Holder"), the principal amount 

of ________________ Thousand Dollars ($__________) plus interest thereon pursuant to 

Section 2 below.     

 

This Promissory Note (the "Note") replaces in their entirety the following promissory 

notes executed for the benefit of Holder (together, the "Original Notes"):  (i) a promissory note 

dated March 31, 1995, in the amount of One Hundred Five Thousand Dollars ($105,000) 

executed by Church Lane Housing Corporation, (ii) a promissory note dated November 13, 1995, 

in the amount of Three Hundred Forty Thousand Dollars ($340,000) executed by Church Lane 

Housing Corporation, and (iii) a promissory note dated June 12, 1997, in the amount of Fifty 

Thousand Dollars ($50,000) executed by Church Lane - Rubicon Partners.  All disbursements 

under the Original Notes will be deemed to be disbursed under this Note.    

 

All capitalized terms used but not defined in this Note have the meanings set forth in the 

Loan Agreement. 

 

1. Borrower's Obligation.  This Note evidences Borrower's obligation to repay 

Holder the principal amount of _______________ Thousand Dollars ($___________) with 

interest for the funds loaned to Borrower and Church Lane Housing Corporation by Holder to 

finance the acquisition of the Property and the construction and operation of the Development in 

accordance with the Amended and Restated CDBG and HOME Loan Agreement of even date 

herewith between Borrower and Holder (the "Loan Agreement").   

 

2. Interest.   

 

(a) Subject to the provisions of Subsection (b) below, this Note bears simple 

interest at a rate of three percent (3%) per annum from the date of disbursement.  

 

(b) If an Event of Default occurs, interest will accrue on all amounts due 

under this Note at the Default Rate until such Event of Default is cured by Borrower or waived 

by Holder. 

 

3. Term and Repayment Requirements.  Principal and interest under this Note is due 

and payable as set forth in Section 2.8 of the Loan Agreement.  The unpaid principal balance 

hereunder, together with accrued interest thereon, is due and payable no later than the date that is 

the fifty-fifth (55
th

) anniversary of the Completion Date; provided, however, if a record of the 

Completion Date cannot be located or established, the Loan is due and payable on the fifty-sixth 

(56
th

) anniversary of the date of this Note. 

 



 2 

4. No Assumption.  This Note is not assumable by the successors and assigns of 

Borrower without the prior written consent of Holder, except as provided in the Loan 

Agreement. 

 

5. Security.  This Note, with interest, is secured by the Deed of Trust with 

Assignment of Rents, Security Agreement and Fixture Filing executed by Borrower for the 

benefit of Holder of even date herewith (the "Deed of Trust").  Upon execution, the Deed of 

Trust will be recorded in the official records of Contra Costa County, California.  Upon 

recordation of the Deed of Trust, this Note will become nonrecourse to Borrower, pursuant to 

and except as provided in Section 2.10 of the Loan Agreement, which Section 2.10 is hereby 

incorporated into this Note. The terms of the Deed of Trust are hereby incorporated into this 

Note and made a part hereof. 

 

6. Terms of Payment.   

 

(a) Borrower shall make all payments due under this Note in currency of the 

United States of America to Holder at Department of  Conservation and Development, 30 Muir 

Road, Martinez, CA  94553, Attention:  Affordable Housing Program Manager, or to such other 

place as Holder may from time to time designate. 

 

(b) All payments on this Note are without expense to Holder.  Borrower shall 

pay all costs and expenses, including re-conveyance fees and reasonable attorney's fees of 

Holder, incurred in connection with the payment of this Note and the release of any security 

hereof. 

 

(c) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Note, or any instrument 

securing the obligations of Borrower under this Note, if, for any reason whatsoever, the payment 

of any sums by Borrower pursuant to the terms of this Note would result in the payment of 

interest that exceeds the amount that Holder may legally charge under the laws of the State of 

California, then the amount by which payments exceed the lawful interest rate will automatically 

be deducted from the principal balance owing on this Note, so that in no event is Borrower 

obligated under the terms of this Note to pay any interest that would exceed the lawful rate. 

 

(d) The obligations of Borrower under this Note are absolute and Borrower 

waives any and all rights to offset, deduct or withhold any payments or charges due under this 

Note for any reason whatsoever.   

 

7. Event of Default; Acceleration. 

 

(a) Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, the entire unpaid principal 

balance, together with all interest thereon, and together with all other sums then payable under 

this Note and the Deed of Trust will, at the option of Holder, become immediately due and 

payable without further demand. 

 

(b) Holder's failure to exercise the remedy set forth in Subsection 7(a) above 

or any other remedy provided by law upon the occurrence of an Event of Default does not 

constitute a waiver of the right to exercise any remedy at any subsequent time in respect to the 



 3 

same or any other Event of Default.  The acceptance by Holder of any payment that is less than 

the total of all amounts due and payable at the time of such payment does not constitute a waiver 

of the right to exercise any of the foregoing remedies or options at that time or at any subsequent 

time, or nullify any prior exercise of any such remedy or option, without the express consent of 

Holder, except as and to the extent otherwise provided by law. 

 

8. Waivers.   

 

(a) Borrower hereby waives diligence, presentment, protest and demand, and 

notice of protest, notice of demand, notice of dishonor and notice of non-payment of this Note.  

Borrower expressly agrees that this Note or any payment hereunder may be extended from time 

to time, and that Holder may accept further security or release any security for this Note, all 

without in any way affecting the liability of Borrower. 

 

(b) Any extension of time for payment of this Note or any installment hereof 

made by agreement of Holder with any person now or hereafter liable for payment of this Note 

must not operate to release, discharge, modify, change or affect the original liability of Borrower 

under this Note, either in whole or in part. 

 

 

[remainder of page intentionally left blank]



 4 

 

9. Miscellaneous Provisions.   

 

(a) All notices to Holder or Borrower are to be given in the manner and at the 

addresses set forth in the Loan Agreement, or to such addresses as Holder and Borrower may 

therein designate. 

 

(b) Borrower promises to pay all costs and expenses, including reasonable 

attorney's fees, incurred by Holder in the enforcement of the provisions of this Note, regardless 

of whether suit is filed to seek enforcement. 

 

(c) This Note is governed by the laws of the State of California. 

 

(d) The times for the performance of any obligations hereunder are to be 

strictly construed, time being of the essence. 

 

(e) The Loan Documents, of which this Note is a part, contain the entire 

agreement between the parties as to the Loan.  This Note may not be modified except upon the 

written consent of the parties. 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Borrower is executing this Promissory Note as of the day and 

year first above written. 

       

Church Lane - Rubicon Partners, a California limited 

partnership 

 

By: RCD GP LLC, its general partner 

 

By: Resources for Community Development., a California 

nonprofit public benefit corporation, its sole 

member/manager 

 

 

By:____________________ 

 

Name:___________________ 

 

Its:____________________ 

 

 



 1 

AMENDED AND RESTATED 

CDBG AND HOME LOAN AGREEMENT 

(Church Lane Apartments) 

 

 This Amended and Restated CDBG and HOME Loan Agreement (the "Agreement") is 

dated _____________, 2015 (the "Effective Date"), and is between the County of Contra Costa, 

a political subdivision of the State of California (the "County"), and Church Lane - Rubicon 

Partners, a California limited partnership ("Borrower").  

RECITALS 

A. Defined terms used but not defined in these recitals are as defined in Article 1 of 

this Agreement. 

 

B. The County has received Home Investment Partnerships Act funds from the 

United States Department of Housing and Urban Development ("HUD") pursuant to the 

Cranston-Gonzales National Housing Act of 1990 ("HOME Funds").  The HOME Funds must be 

used by the County in accordance with 24 C.F.R. Part 92. 

 

C. The County has received Community Development Block Grant funds from HUD 

under Title I of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as amended (“CDBG 

Funds”).  The CDBG Funds must be used by the County in accordance with 24 C.F.R. Part 570. 

 

D. Borrower owns certain real property located at 2560 Church Lane, in the City of 

San Pablo, County of Contra Costa, State of California, as more particularly described in Exhibit 

A (the "Property"), improved with twenty-two (22) units of housing affordable to very low- and 

low-income households (the "Development").  The Development, as well as any additional 

improvements on the Property, including all landscaping, roads and parking spaces on the 

Property, are referred to as the "Improvements.”    

 

E. The County and Borrower are parties to a CDBG/HOME Loan Agreement dated 

March 31, 1995 ("Loan Agreement No. 1"), pursuant to which the County loaned the Borrower 

One Hundred Forty-Five Thousand Dollars ($145,000) of CDBG Funds ("CDBG Loan No. 1") 

and One Hundred Five Thousand Dollars ($105,000) of HOME Funds (“HOME Loan No. 1”) to 

acquire the Property and construct the Improvements.  Together, CDBG Loan No. 1 and HOME 

Loan No. 1 are “Loan No. 1.”  CDBG Loan No. 1 is evidenced by a CDBG Note dated March 

31, 1995 (“CDBG Note No. 1").  HOME Loan No. 1 is evidenced by a HOME Note dated 

March 31, 1995 (“HOME Note No. 1”).  Loan No. 1 is further evidenced by a regulatory 

agreement dated March 31, 1995 (“Regulatory Agreement No. 1”).  Regulatory Agreement No. 1 

was recorded in the official records of the County of Contra Costa (the "Official Records") on 

April 4, 1995 as Instrument No. 95-053358.   

 

F. The County and Borrower are parties to a HOME Loan Agreement dated November 

13, 1995 ("Loan Agreement No. 2"), pursuant to which the County loaned the Borrower Three 

Hundred Forty Thousand Dollars ($340,000) of HOME Funds (“HOME Loan No. 2”) to assist in 

the construction of the Improvements.  HOME Loan No. 2 is evidenced by a HOME Note dated 



 2 

November 13, 1995 (“HOME Note No. 2”) and by a regulatory agreement dated November 13, 

1995 (“Regulatory Agreement No. 2”), which was recorded in the Official Records on 

November 14, 1995 as Instrument No. 95-197339.   

 

G. The County and Borrower are parties to a CDBG Loan Agreement dated June 22, 

1995 ("Loan Agreement No. 3"), pursuant to which the County loaned the Borrower One 

Hundred Thousand Dollars ($100,000) of CDBG Funds (“CDBG Loan No. 2”) to finance 

predevelopment activities.  CDBG Loan No. 2 is evidenced by a CDBG Note dated June 22, 

1995 (“CDBG Note No. 2”).   

 

H. The County and Borrower are parties to a HOME Loan Agreement dated June 12, 

1997 ("Loan Agreement No. 4"), pursuant to which the County loaned the Borrower Fifty 

Thousand Dollars ($50,000) of HOME Funds (“HOME Loan No. 3”) to establish an operating 

reserve for the Development.  HOME Loan No. 3 is evidenced by a HOME Note dated June 12, 

1995 (“HOME Note No. 3”).   

 

I. Loan No. 1 is secured by a deed of trust dated March 31, 1995, which was 

recorded in the Official Records on April 4, 1995 as Instrument No. 95-053357 (the “First Deed 

of Trust”).  HOME Loan No. 2 is secured by a deed of trust dated November 9, 1995, which was 

recorded in the Official Records on November 14, 1995 as Instrument No. 95-197338 (the 

“Second Deed of Trust”).  CDBG Loan No. 2 is secured by a deed of trust dated June 22, 1995, 

which was recorded January 12, 1996 as Instrument No. 96-5888 (the “Third Deed of Trust”). 

HOME Loan No. 3 is secured by a deed of trust dated June 12, 1997, which was recorded in the 

Official Records on June 17, 1997 as Instrument No. 97-0103573 (the “Fourth Deed of Trust”).  

Together, the First Deed of Trust, the Second Deed of Trust, the Third Deed of Trust and the 

Fourth Deed of Trust are the “Original Deeds of Trust.”   

 

J. Under the terms of the relevant loan agreements, CDBG Loan No. 1 and CDBG 

Loan No. 2 accrue simple interest on their outstanding principal balances at the rate of four 

percent (4%) per annum from their funding dates.  As of ______, 2015, the outstanding principal 

balance plus accrued interest of CDBG Loan No. 1 is _________ Thousand Dollars 

($XXX,XXX) and the outstanding principal balance plus accrued interest of CDBG Loan No. 2 

is _________ Thousand Dollars ($YYY,YYY), for a total of ___________ Thousand Dollars 

($ZZZ,ZZZ) (the “Original CDBG Loan”). 

 

K. Under the terms of the relevant loan agreements, HOME Loan No. 1 does not 

accrue interest, but HOME Loan No. 2 and HOME Loan No. 3 accrue simple interest on their 

outstanding principal balances at the rate of four percent (4%) per annum from their funding 

dates.  As of ______, 2015, the outstanding principal balance plus accrued interest of HOME 

Loan No. 2 is ________ Thousand Dollars ($AAA,AAA) and the outstanding principal balance 

plus accrued interest of HOME Loan No. 3 is ______ Thousand Dollars ($BBB,BBB), which, 

together with  HOME Loan No. 1, totals  ___________ Thousand Dollars ($CCC,CCC) (the 

“HOME Loan”). 

 

L. To finance the rehabilitation of the Development (such work, the “Repairs”), the 

Borrower desires to borrow an additional Four Hundred Fifty-Five Thousand Dollars ($455,000) 

of CDBG Funds (the “New CDBG Loan”) from the County.  Together, the Original CDBG Loan 



 3 

and the New CDBG Loan total ___________ Thousand Dollars ($DDD,DDD) (the “CDBG 

Loan”).  In addition, the Borrower desires to extend the terms of CDBG Loan No. 1, CDBG 

Loan No. 2 and the HOME Loan to be coterminous with the New CDBG Loan. 

 

M. Due to the assistance provided to Borrower through the CDBG Loan and the 

HOME Loan, the County has classified ten (10) units in the Development as CDBG-Assisted 

and HOME-Assisted units (each such unit, a “County Assisted Unit”). 

 

N. The County is willing to (i) lend the Borrower the New CDBG Loan, (ii) extend 

the terms of the Original CDBG Loan, and (iii) extend the term of the HOME Loan, provided the 

Borrower enters into new loan documents (the “Loan Documents”).  The Loan Documents 

consist of (i) this Agreement, which amends and restates Loan Agreement No. 1, Loan 

Agreement No. 2, Loan Agreement No. 3, and Loan Agreement No. 4, and sets forth the terms 

and conditions that apply to the Loan, (ii) the CDBG Note, (iii) the HOME Note,  (iv) the Deed 

of Trust, and (v) the Regulatory Agreement.   

 

O. Upon recordation of the Deed of Trust and the Regulatory Agreement, the County 

will (i) reconvey the Original Deeds of Trust, (ii) record a notice of termination in the Official 

Records for both Regulatory Agreement No. 1 and Regulatory Agreement No. 2, and (iii) cancel 

CDBG Note No. 1, CDBG Note No. 2, HOME Note No. 1, HOME Note No. 2, and HOME Note 

No. 3. 

 

P. The California Environmental Quality Act (California Public Resources Code 

Section 21000 et seq.) (“CEQA”) imposes no conditions on the County’s consideration and 

approval of this Agreement because the project underlying this Agreement, (i) can be seen with 

certainty to have no possibility of having significant effects on the environment pursuant to 14 

California Code of Regulations 15061(b)(3); or (ii) is exempt from CEQA requirements under 

the categorical exemption set forth in 14 California Code of Regulations Section 15302. 

 

Q. The National Environmental Policy Act of 1969, as amended (42 U.S.C. 4321-

4347) ("NEPA"), imposes no conditions on the County’s consideration and approval of this 

Agreement because the project underlying this Agreement is exempt from NEPA requirements 

under the categorical exclusion set forth in 24 C.F.R. Section 58.35(3)(ii). 

 

 The parties agree as follows: 

 

 

AGREEMENT 

 

ARTICLE 1 DEFINITIONS AND EXHIBITS 

Section 1.1 Definitions. 

The following terms have the following meanings: 

 

(a) "Agreement" means this CDBG and HOME Loan Agreement. 



 4 

(b) "Annual Operating Expenses" means for each calendar year, the following 

costs reasonably and actually incurred for operation and maintenance of the Development:  

(i) property taxes and assessments imposed on the Development;  

 

(ii) debt service currently due on a non-optional basis (excluding debt 

service due from residual receipts or surplus cash of the Development) on existing debt; 

 

(iii) on-site service provider fees for tenant social services, provided the 

County has approved, in writing, the plan and budget for such services before such services 

begin; 

 

(iv) property management fees and reimbursements, on–site property 

management office expenses, and salaries of property management and maintenance personnel, 

not to exceed amounts that are standard in the industry and which are pursuant to a management 

contract approved by the County;  

 

(v) fees for accounting, audit, and legal services incurred by 

Borrower's general partner in the asset management of the Development, not to exceed amounts 

that are standard in the industry, to the extent such fees are not included in the amount paid to the 

Borrower’s general partner pursuant to a partnership agreement; 

 

(vi) premiums for property damage and liability insurance; 

 

(vii) utility services not paid for directly by tenants, including water, 

sewer, and trash collection;  

 

(viii) maintenance and repair; 

 

(ix) any annual license or certificate of occupancy fees required for 

operation of the Development; 

 

(x) security services; 

 

(xi) advertising and marketing;  

 

(xii) cash deposited into reserves for capital replacements of the 

Development in an amount not to exceed six tenths of one percent (.6%) of the total development 

cost of the Development, or the amount required in connection with the permanent debt or equity 

financing for the Development and approved by the County;  

 

(xiii) cash deposited into an operating reserve in an amount not to 

exceed 3% of Annual Operating Expenses;  

 

(xiv) payment of any previously unpaid portion of Developer Fee 

(without interest), not to exceed the amount set forth in Section 3.18; 

 



 5 

(xv) extraordinary operating costs specifically approved in writing by 

the County;  

 

(xvi) payments of deductibles in connection with casualty insurance 

claims not normally paid from reserves, the amount of uninsured losses actually replaced, 

repaired or restored, and not normally paid from reserves, and other ordinary and reasonable 

operating expenses approved in writing by the County and not listed above. 

 

Annual Operating Expenses do not include the following:  depreciation, amortization, 

depletion or other non-cash expenses, any amount expended from a reserve account, and any 

capital cost associated with the Development.  

 

(c) "Annual Payment" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.8(a). 

(d) "Approved Budget" means the proforma rehabilitation budget, including 

sources and uses of funds, as approved by the County, and attached hereto and incorporated 

herein as Exhibit B. 

(e) "Bid Package" means the package of documents Borrower's general 

contractor is required to distribute to potential bidders as part of the process of selecting 

subcontractors to construct the Repairs.  The Bid Package is to include the following: (i) an 

invitation to bid, (ii) copy of the proposed construction contract; (iii) a form of bid guarantee that 

is reasonably acceptable to the County that guarantees, at a minimum, an amount equal to five 

percent (5%) of the bid price, and (iv) all Plans and Specifications. 

(f) "Borrower" has the meaning set forth in the first paragraph of this 

Agreement. 

(g) "CDBG Funds" means Community Development Block Grant funds 

provided to the County by HUD under Title I of the Housing and Community Development Act 

of 1974 (42 U.S.C. 5301 et seq.),  as amended. 

(h) "CDBG Loan" has the meaning set forth in Paragraph L of the Recitals.   

(i) “CDBG Note” means the promissory note of even date herewith that 

evidences Borrower’s obligation to repay the CDBG Loan. 

(j) "CDBG Project Agreement" means the project agreement of even date 

herewith between the County and Borrower. 

(k) "CEQA" has the meaning set forth in Paragraph P of the Recitals. 

(l) "CHDO" means an entity designated as a Community Housing 

Development Organization, as defined in 24 C.F.R. 92.2. 

(m) "Commencement of Construction" has the meaning set forth in Section 

3.5. 



 6 

(n) "Completion Date" means the date a final certificate of occupancy, or 

equivalent document is issued by the City to certify that the Development may be legally 

occupied. 

(o) "County" has the meaning set forth in the first paragraph of this 

Agreement. 

(p) "County-Assisted Unit" has the meaning set forth in Paragraph M of the 

Recitals. 

(q) "Deed of Trust" means the Deed of Trust with Assignment of Rents, 

Security Agreement, and Fixture Filing of even date herewith among Borrower, as Trustor, 

North American Title Company, as trustee, and the County, as beneficiary, that will encumber 

the Property to secure repayment of the Loan and performance of the covenants of the Loan 

Documents. 

(r) "Default Rate" means the lesser of the maximum rate permitted by law 

and ten percent (10%) per annum. 

(s) "Developer Fee" has the meaning set forth in Section 3.18. 

(t) "Development" has the meaning set forth in Paragraph D of the Recitals. 

(u) "Event of Default" has the meaning set forth in Section 6.1. 

(v) "Final Cost Certification" has the meaning set forth in Section 4.2. 

(w) "Final Development Cost" means the total of the cost of Repairs, as shown 

on the Final Cost Certification. 

(x) "Gross Revenue" means for each calendar year, all revenue, income, 

receipts, and other consideration actually received from the operation and leasing of the 

Development.  Gross Revenue includes, but is not limited to: 

(i) all rents, fees and charges paid by tenants;  

 

(ii) Section 8 payments or other rental subsidy payments received for 

the dwelling units;  

 

(iii) deposits forfeited by tenants;  

 

(iv) all cancellation fees; 

 

(v) price index adjustments and any other rental adjustments to leases 

or rental agreements;  

 

(vi)  net proceeds from vending and laundry room machines;  

 



 7 

(vii)  the proceeds of business interruption or similar insurance not paid 

to senior lenders; 

 

(viii)   the proceeds of casualty insurance not used to rebuild the 

Development and not paid to senior lenders; and 

 

(ix) condemnation awards for a taking of part or all of the 

Development for a temporary period.  

 

Gross Revenue does not include tenants' security deposits, loan proceeds, capital 

contributions or similar advances. 

 

(y) "Hazardous Materials" means: (i) any substance, material, or waste that is 

petroleum, petroleum-related, or a petroleum by-product, asbestos or asbestos-containing 

material, polychlorinated biphenyls, flammable, explosive, radioactive, freon gas, radon, or a 

pesticide, herbicide, or any other agricultural chemical, and (ii) any waste, substance or material 

defined as or included in the definition of "hazardous substances," "hazardous wastes," 

"hazardous materials," "toxic materials", "toxic waste", "toxic substances," or words of similar 

import under any Hazardous Materials Law. 

(z) "Hazardous Materials Claims" means with respect to the Property (i) any 

and all enforcement, cleanup, removal or other governmental or regulatory actions instituted, 

completed or threatened against Borrower or the Property pursuant to any Hazardous Materials 

Law; and (ii) all claims made or threatened by any third party against Borrower or the Property 

relating to damage, contribution, cost recovery compensation, loss or injury resulting from any 

Hazardous Materials. 

(aa) "Hazardous Materials Law" means any federal, state or local laws, 

ordinances, or regulations relating to any Hazardous Materials, health, industrial hygiene, 

environmental conditions, or the regulation or protection of the environment, and all 

amendments thereto as of this date and to be added in the future and any successor statute or rule 

or regulation promulgated thereto. 

(bb) "HOME" means the HOME Investment Partnership Act Program pursuant 

to the Cranston-Gonzales National Affordable Housing Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. 12705 et seq.), as 

amended. 

(cc) "HOME Loan" has the meaning set forth in Paragraph K of the Recitals. 

(dd) “HOME Note” means the promissory note of even date herewith that 

evidences Borrower’s obligation to repay the HOME Loan. 

(ee) “HOME Reporting Term” means the period beginning on June 17, 1997 

and ending on June 30, 2017. 

(ff) "HUD" has the meaning set forth in Paragraph B of the Recitals. 

(gg) "Improvements" has the meaning set forth in Paragraph D of the Recitals. 



 8 

(hh) "Lenders' Share of Residual Receipts" means seventy-five percent (75%) 

of Residual Receipts. 

(ii) "Loan Documents" has the meaning set forth in Paragraph N of the 

Recitals. 

(jj) "Loan" means the CDBG Loan and the HOME Loan. 

(kk) “Memorandum of Agreement” means a memorandum of agreement 

between the County and HUD pursuant to 24 CFR 210(b) that relates to the New HOME Loan. 

(ll) "NEPA" has the meaning set forth in Paragraph Q of the Recitals. 

(mm) "Plans and Specifications” means all construction documentation upon 

which Borrower and Borrower's general contractor rely in constructing the Repairs. 

(nn) "Property" has the meaning set forth in Paragraph D of the Recitals.  

(oo) "Regulatory Agreement" means the Regulatory Agreement and 

Declaration of Restrictive Covenants, of even date herewith, between the County and Borrower 

related to the Loan, to be recorded against the Property. 

(pp) “Repairs” has the meaning set forth in Paragraph L of the Recitals. 

(qq) "Residual Receipts" means for each calendar year, the amount by which 

Gross Revenue exceeds Annual Operating Expenses. 

(rr) "Retention Amount" means Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000) of the New 

CDBG Loan, the disbursement of which is described in Section 2.7. 

(ss) "Statement of Residual Receipts" means an itemized statement of Residual 

Receipts. 

(tt) "Tenant" means the tenant household that occupies a unit in the 

Development. 

(uu) "Term" means the period of time that commences on the date of this 

Agreement, and expires, unless sooner terminated in accordance with this Agreement, on the 

fifty-fifth (55
th

) anniversary of the Completion Date; provided, however, if a record of the 

Completion Date cannot be located or established, the Term will expire on the fifty-seventh 

(57
th

) anniversary of this Agreement. 

(vv) "Transfer" has the meaning set forth in Section 4.14 below. 

Section 1.2 Exhibits 

 The following exhibits are attached to this Agreement and incorporated into this 

Agreement by this reference: 

 



 9 

 Exhibit A: Legal Description of the Property 

 Exhibit B: Approved Budget 

 

ARTICLE 2 LOAN PROVISIONS 

Section 2.1 Loan. 

 Upon satisfaction of the conditions set forth in Sections 2.5, 2.6 and 2.7 of this 

Agreement, as applicable, the County shall lend to Borrower the Loan for the purposes set forth 

in Section 2.3 of this Agreement. Borrower's obligation to repay the Loan is evidenced by the 

CDBG Note and the HOME Note. 

Section 2.2 Interest. 

(a) Subject to the provisions of Subsection (b) below, simple interest will 

accrue on the outstanding principal balance of the Loan at a per annum rate of interest equal to 

three percent (3%), commencing on the date of disbursement. 

(b) Upon the occurrence of an Event of a Default, interest on the outstanding 

principal balance of the Loan will begin to accrue, beginning on the date of such occurrence and 

continuing until the date the Loan is repaid in full or the Event of Default is cured, at the Default 

Rate. 

Section 2.3 Use of Loan Funds. 

(a) Borrower shall use the New CDBG Loan to construct the Repairs, 

consistent with the Approved Budget.   

(b) Borrower may not use the proceeds of the New CDBG Loan for any other 

purposes without the prior written consent of the County. 

Section 2.4 Security.  

Borrower shall secure its obligation to repay the Loan, as evidenced by the CDBG Note 

and the HOME Note, by executing the Deed of Trust, and causing or permitting it to be recorded 

as a lien against the Property.   Borrower shall also cause or permit the Regulatory Agreement to 

be recorded against the Property. 

 

Section 2.5 Conditions Precedent to Disbursement of New CDBG Loan. 

 The disbursements made pursuant to this Section 2.6 may not exceed Four Hundred 

Fifty-Five Thousand Dollars ($455,000).  The County is not obligated to disburse any portion of 

the New CDBG Loan, or to take any other action under the Loan Documents unless all of the 

following conditions have been and continue to be satisfied: 

 

(a) There exists no Event of Default nor any act, failure, omission or 

condition that would constitute an Event of Default under this Agreement; 

(b) Borrower holds title to the Property; 



 10 

(c) Borrower has delivered to the County a copy of a corporate resolution 

authorizing Borrower to obtain the Loan and execute the Loan Documents; 

(d) There exists no material adverse change in the financial condition of 

Borrower from that shown by the financial statements and other data and information furnished 

by Borrower to the County prior to the date of this Agreement; 

(e) Borrower has furnished the County with evidence of the insurance 

coverage meeting the requirements of Section 4.15 below; 

(f) Borrower has executed and delivered to the County the Loan Documents 

and has caused all other documents, instruments, and policies required under the Loan 

Documents to be delivered to the County; 

(g) The Deed of Trust and the Regulatory Agreement have been recorded 

against the Property in the Office of the Recorder of the County of Contra Costa; 

(h) A title insurer reasonably acceptable to the County is unconditionally and 

irrevocably committed to issuing an LP-10 2006 ALTA Lender's Policy of title insurance 

insuring the priority of the Deed of Trust in the amount of the Loan, subject only to such 

exceptions and exclusions as may be reasonably acceptable to the County, and containing such 

endorsements as the County may reasonably require.  The Borrower shall provide whatever 

documentation (including an indemnification agreement), deposits or surety is reasonably 

required by the title company in order for the County's Deed of Trust to be senior in lien priority 

to any mechanics liens in connection with any start of construction that has occurred prior to the 

recordation of the Deed of Trust against the Property in the Office of the Recorder of the County 

of Contra Costa. 

(i) All environmental review necessary for the construction of the Repairs has 

been completed, and Borrower has provided the County evidence of compliance with all NEPA 

and CEQA requirements and mitigation measures applicable to rehabilitation of the 

Development; 

(j) The County has determined the undisbursed proceeds of the New CDBG 

Loan, together with other funds or firm commitments for funds that Borrower has obtained in 

connection with the rehabilitation of the Development, are not less than the amount the County 

determines is necessary to pay for the rehabilitation of the Development and to satisfy all of the 

covenants contained in this Agreement and the Regulatory Agreement; 

(k) Borrower has obtained all permits and approvals necessary for the 

rehabilitation of the Development; 

(l) The County has received and approved the Bid Package for the 

subcontractors for the construction of the Repairs pursuant to Section 3.2 below; 

(m) The County has received and approved the general contractor's 

construction contract that the Borrower has entered or proposed to enter for the construction of 

the Repairs pursuant to Section 3.3 below; 



 11 

(n) The County has received a written draw request from Borrower, including 

(i) certification that the condition set forth in Section 2.6(a) continues to be satisfied, (ii) 

certification that the proposed uses of funds is consistent with the Approved Budget, (iii) the 

amount of funds needed, and, (iv) where applicable, a copy of the bill or invoice covering a cost 

incurred or to be incurred.  When a disbursement is requested to pay any contractor in 

connection with improvements on the Property, the written request must be accompanied by (i) 

certification by the Borrower's architect reasonably acceptable to the County that the work for 

which disbursement is requested has been completed (although the County reserves the right to 

inspect the Property and make an independent evaluation); and (ii) lien releases and/or 

mechanics lien title insurance endorsements reasonably acceptable to the County.   

Section 2.6 Conditions Precedent to Disbursement of Retention.  

 The County is not obligated to disburse the Retention Amount unless the following 

conditions precedent are satisfied: 

 

(a) The County has received a completion report from Borrower setting forth 

(i) the income, household size, race, and ethnicity of Tenants of the County-Assisted Units, (ii) 

and the unit size, rent amount and utility allowance for all County-Assisted Units. 

(b) The County has received a Final Cost Certification for the Development 

from Borrower showing all uses and sources. 

(c) The County has received from Borrower copies of the certificate of 

occupancy or equivalent final permit sign-offs for the Development. 

(d) The County has received from Borrower current evidence of the insurance 

coverage meeting the requirements of Section 4.15 below. 

(e) The County has received from Borrower a form of Tenant lease. 

(f) The County has received from Borrower evidence of marketing for any 

vacant County-Assisted Unit in the Development such as copies of flyers, list of media ads, list 

of agencies and organizations receiving information on availability of such units, as applicable. 

(g) The County has received from Borrower all relevant contract activity 

information, including compliance with Section 3 and MBE/WBE requirements. 

(h) If Borrower was required to comply with relocation requirements, the 

County has received from Borrower evidence of compliance with all applicable relocation 

requirements. 

(i) The County has received from Borrower a copy of the management 

agreement and contact information for the property manager of the Development and the name 

and phone number of the on-site property manager. 

(j) If Borrower is required to pay prevailing wages under the Davis-Bacon 

Act (40 U.S.C. 3141-3148), the County has received confirmation that Borrower has submitted 



 12 

all certified payrolls to the County, and any identified payment issues have been resolved, or 

Borrower is working diligently to resolve any such issues. 

(k) The County has received from Borrower evidence of compliance with all 

NEPA mitigation requirements as set forth in Exhibit C. 

(l) The County has received a written draw request from Borrower, including 

certification that the condition set forth in Section 2.6(a) continues to be satisfied, and setting 

forth the proposed uses of funds consistent with the Approved Budget, and, where applicable, a 

copy of the bill or invoice covering a cost incurred or to be incurred.  Borrower shall apply the 

disbursement for the purpose(s) requested. 

Section 2.7 Repayment Schedule.   

(a) Annual Payments.  Commencing on _________, 201_, and on _______ of 

each year thereafter during the Term, Borrower shall make a loan payment in an amount equal to 

the Lenders' Share of Residual Receipts (each, an "Annual Payment").  The County shall apply 

all Annual Payments equally between the HOME Loan and the CDBG Loan portions of the Loan 

as follows: (1) first, to accrued interest, and (2) second, to principal.  Once either the HOME 

Loan or the CDBG Loan portion of the Loan is fully repaid, the Annual Payment will be applied 

to the repayment of the remaining HOME Loan or CDBG Loan portion of the Loan. 

(b) Payment in Full.  Borrower shall pay all outstanding principal and accrued 

interest on the Loan, in full, on the earliest to occur of (i) any Transfer other than as permitted 

pursuant to Section 4.14, (ii) an Event of Default, and (iii) the expiration of the Term. 

(c) Prepayment.  Borrower may prepay the Loan at any time without premium 

or penalty.  However, the Regulatory Agreement and the Deed of Trust will remain in effect for 

the entire Term, regardless of any prepayment or Transfer. 

Section 2.8 Reports and Accounting of Residual Receipts.   

In connection with the Annual Payment, Borrower shall furnish to the County: 

(a)  The Statement of Residual Receipts for the relevant period. The first 

Statement of Residual Receipts will cover the period that begins on July 1, 2016, and ends on 

June 30 of the next year.  Subsequent statements of Residual Receipts will cover the twelve-

month period that ends on June 30 of each year; 

(b) A statement from the independent public accountant that audited the 

Borrower's financial records for the relevant period, which statement must confirm that 

Borrower's calculation of the Lenders' Share of Residual Receipts is accurate based on Gross 

Revenue and Annual Operating Expenses; and 

(c) Any additional documentation reasonably required by the County to 

substantiate Borrower's calculation of Lenders' Share of Residual Receipts. 

The receipt by the County of any statement pursuant to subsection (a) above or any 

payment by Borrower or acceptance by the County of any Loan repayment for any period does 



 13 

not bind the County as to the correctness of such statement or payment.  The County may audit 

the Residual Receipts and all books, records, and accounts pertaining thereto pursuant to Section 

4.6 below. 

 

Section 2.9 Non-Recourse.  

Except as provided below, neither Borrower, nor any partner of Borrower, has any direct 

or indirect personal liability for payment of the principal of, and interest on, the Loan.  Following 

recordation of the Deed of Trust, the sole recourse of the County with respect to the principal of, 

or interest on, the CDBG Note and the HOME Note will be to the property described in the Deed 

of Trust; provided, however, that nothing contained in the foregoing limitation of liability limits 

or impairs the enforcement of all the rights and remedies of the County against all such security 

for the CDBG Note and the HOME Note, or impairs the right of County to assert the unpaid 

principal amount of the CDBG Note and the HOME Note as demand for money within the 

meaning and intendment of Section 431.70 of the California Code of Civil Procedure or any 

successor provision thereto.  The foregoing limitation of liability is intended to apply only to the 

obligation to repay the principal and interest on the CDBG Note and the HOME Note.  Except as 

hereafter set forth; nothing contained herein is intended to relieve Borrower of its obligation to 

indemnify the County under Sections 3.8, 3.9, 4.7(b)(vi), 4.8, and 7.4 of this Agreement, or 

liability for (i) loss or damage of any kind resulting from waste, fraud or willful 

misrepresentation; (ii) the failure to pay taxes, assessments or other charges which may create 

liens on the Property that are payable or applicable prior to any foreclosure under the Deed of 

Trust (to the full extent of such taxes, assessments or other charges); (iii) the fair market value of 

any personal property or fixtures removed or disposed of by Borrower other than in accordance 

with the Deed of Trust; and (iv) the misappropriation of any proceeds under any insurance 

policies or awards resulting from condemnation or the exercise of the power of eminent domain 

or by reason of damage, loss or destruction to any portion of the Property. 

 

ARTICLE 3 CONSTRUCTION OF THE DEVELOPMENT 

Section 3.1 Permits and Approvals. 

Borrower shall obtain all permits and approvals necessary for the construction of the 

Repairs no later than December 30, 2015, or such later date that the County approves in writing. 

 

Section 3.2 Bid Package.  

Not later than thirty (30) days prior to Borrower's proposed date for advertising the Bid 

Package, Borrower shall submit to the County a copy of Borrower's general contractor's 

proposed Bid Package. The County's Deputy Director – Department of Conservation and 

Development, or his or her designee, shall approve or disapprove the Bid Package within fifteen 

(15) days after receipt of the Bid Package by the County.  If the County rejects the proposed Bid 

Package, the reasons therefor must be given to Borrower.  The Borrower will then have fifteen 

(15) days to revise the proposed Bid Package and resubmit it to the County.  The County will 

then have fifteen (15) days to review and approve Borrower's new or corrected Bid Package.  

The provisions of this Section will continue to apply until a proposed Bid Package has been 

approved by the County.  Borrower may not publish a proposed Bid Package until it has been 

approved by the County. 



 14 

 

Section 3.3 Construction Contract. 

(a) Not later than fifteen (15) days prior to the proposed Commencement of 

Construction, Borrower shall submit to the County for its approval a draft of the proposed 

construction contract for the Repairs.  All construction work and professional services are to be 

performed by persons or entities licensed or otherwise authorized to perform the applicable 

construction work or service in the State of California.  Each contract that Borrower enters for 

construction of the Repairs is to provide that at least ten percent (10%) of the costs incurred will 

be payable only upon completion of the construction, subject to early release of retention for 

specified subcontractors upon approval by the County.  The construction contract will include all 

applicable HOME and CDBG requirements set forth in Section 4.7 below.  The County's 

approval of the construction contract may not be deemed to constitute approval of or concurrence 

with any term or condition of the construction contract except as such term or condition may be 

required by this Agreement. 

(b) Upon receipt by the County of the proposed construction contract, the 

County shall promptly review same and approve or disapprove it within ten (10) days.  If the 

construction contract is not approved by the County, the County shall set forth in writing and 

notify Borrower of the County's reasons for withholding such approval.  Borrower shall 

thereafter submit a revised construction contract for County approval, which approval is to be 

granted or denied in ten (10) days in accordance with the procedures set forth above.  Any 

construction contract executed by Borrower for the Repairs is to be in the form approved by the 

County. 

Section 3.4 Commencement of Construction. 

Borrower shall cause the Commencement of Construction to occur no later than, 

December 30, 2015, or such later date that the County approves in writing.  For the purposes of 

this Agreement, "Commencement of Construction" means the date set for the start of 

construction of the Repairs in the notice to proceed issued by Borrower to Borrower's general 

contractor. 

 

Section 3.5 Completion of Construction. 

Borrower shall diligently prosecute construction of the Repairs to completion, and shall 

cause the Repairs to be completed no later than March 30, 2016 or such later date that the 

County approves in writing, but in no event later than June 30, 2016. 

 

Section 3.6 Changes; Construction Pursuant to Plans and Laws. 

(a) Changes. Borrower shall construct the Repairs in conformance with (i) the 

plans and specifications approved by the City's Building Inspection Department, and (ii) the 

Approved Budget.  Borrower shall notify the County in a timely manner of any changes in the 

work required to be performed under this Agreement, including any additions, changes, or 

deletions to the plans and specifications approved by the County.  Written authorization from the 

County must be obtained before any of the following changes, additions, or deletions in work for 

the Development may be performed:  (i) any change in the work the cost of which exceeds 



 15 

Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars ($25,000); or (ii) any set of changes in the work the cost of 

which cumulatively exceeds Fifty Thousand Dollars ($50,000) or ten percent (10%) of the New 

CDBG Loan amount, whichever is less; or (iii) any material change in building materials or 

equipment, specifications, or the structural or architectural design or appearance of the 

Development as provided for in the plans and specifications approved by the County.  The 

County's consent to any additions, changes, or deletions to the work does not relieve or release 

Borrower from any other obligations under this Agreement, or relieve or release Borrower or its 

surety from any surety bond. 

(b) Compliance with Laws. Borrower shall cause all work performed in 

connection with the Repairs to be performed in compliance with:  

(i)  all applicable laws, ordinances, rules and regulations of federal, 

state, county or municipal governments or agencies now in force or that may be enacted 

hereafter;  

(ii)  the property standards set out in 24 C.F.R. Section 5.701 et seq. 

and 24 C.F.R. 92.251; and  

(iii)  all directions, rules and regulations of any fire marshal, health 

officer, building inspector, or other officer of every governmental agency now having or 

hereafter acquiring jurisdiction.  The Borrower may permit the work to proceed only after 

procurement of each permit, license, or other authorization that may be required by any 

governmental agency having jurisdiction, and Borrower is responsible to the County for the 

procurement and maintenance thereof. 

Section 3.7 Prevailing Wages. 

(a) Davis Bacon.  The Borrower shall cause construction of the Repairs to be 

in compliance with the prevailing wage requirements of the federal Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. 

3141-3148).  The Borrower shall indemnify, hold harmless and defend (with counsel reasonably 

acceptable to the County) the County against any claim for damages, compensation, fines, 

penalties or other amounts arising out of the failure or alleged failure of any person or entity 

(including the Borrower, its contractor and subcontractors) to pay prevailing wages as 

determined pursuant to the prevailing wage provisions of the federal Davis-Bacon Act and 

implementing rules and regulations in connection with the construction of the Repairs or any 

other work undertaken or in connection with the Property.  The requirements in this Subsection 

shall survive repayment of the Loan and the reconveyance of the Deed of Trust. 

(b) State Prevailing Wages.  To the extent applicable, Borrower shall pay and 

shall cause the contractor and subcontractors to pay prevailing wages in the construction of the 

Repairs as those wages are determined pursuant to California Labor Code Section 1720 et seq., 

to employ apprentices as required by California Labor Code Sections 1777.5 et seq., and the 

implementing regulations of the Department of Industrial Relations (the "DIR").  Borrower shall 

and shall cause the contractor and subcontractors to comply with the other applicable provisions 

of California Labor Code Sections 1720 et seq., 1777.5 et seq., and implementing regulations of 

the DIR.  Borrower shall and shall cause the contractor and subcontractors to keep and retain 

such records as are necessary to determine if such prevailing wages have been paid as required 



 16 

pursuant to California Labor Code Section 1720 et seq., and apprentices have been employed are 

required by California Labor Code Section 1777.5 et seq.  Copies of the currently applicable 

current per diem prevailing wages are available from DIR.  During the construction of the 

Development, Borrower shall or shall cause the contractor to post at the Property the applicable 

prevailing rates of per diem wages.  Borrower shall indemnify, hold harmless and defend (with 

counsel reasonably acceptable to the County) the County against any claim for damages, 

compensation, fines, penalties or other amounts arising out of the failure or alleged failure of any 

person or entity (including Borrower, its contractor and subcontractors) to pay prevailing wages 

as determined pursuant to California Labor Code Section 1720 et seq., to employ apprentices 

pursuant to California Labor Code Section 1777.5 et seq., and implementing regulations of the 

DIR or to comply with the other applicable provisions of California Labor Code Sections 1720 et 

seq., 1777.5 et seq., and the implementing regulations of the DIR in connection with the 

construction of the Repairs or any other work undertaken or in connection with the Property.  

The requirements in this Subsection survive the repayment of the Loan, and the reconveyance of 

the Deed of Trust. 

Section 3.8 Accessibility. 

Borrower shall construct the Repairs in compliance with all applicable federal and state 

disabled persons accessibility requirements including but not limited to the Federal Fair Housing 

Act; Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 ("Section 504"); Title II and/or Title III of the 

Americans with Disabilities Act; and Title 24 of the California Code of Regulations 

(collectively, the "Accessibility Requirements").  Borrower shall indemnify, hold harmless and 

defend (with counsel reasonably acceptable to the County) the County against any claim for 

damages, compensation, fines, penalties or other amounts arising out of the failure or alleged 

failure of any person or entity (including Borrower, its architect, contractor and subcontractors) 

to construct the Repairs in accordance with the Accessibility Requirements.  The requirements in 

this Subsection survive repayment of the Loan and the reconveyance of the Deed of Trust.   

Section 3.9 Intentionally Omitted. 

Section 3.10 Equal Opportunity. 

 During the construction of the Repairs, discrimination on the basis of race, color, creed, 

religion, age, sex, sexual orientation, marital status, national origin, ancestry, or disability in the 

hiring, firing, promoting, or demoting of any person engaged in the construction work is not 

allowed.  

 

Section 3.11 Minority and Women-Owned Contractors. 

 Borrower shall use its best efforts to afford minority-owned and women-owned business 

enterprises the maximum practicable opportunity to participate in the construction of the 

Development.  Borrower shall, at a minimum, notify applicable minority-owned and women-

owned business firms located in Contra Costa County of bid opportunities for the construction of 

the Repairs.  A listing of minority owned and women owned businesses located in the County 

and neighboring counties is available from the County.  Documentation of such notifications 

must be maintained by Borrower and available to the County upon request. 

 



 17 

Section 3.12 Progress Reports. 

 Until such time as Borrower has received a certificate of occupancy from the City for the 

Development, Borrower shall provide the County with quarterly progress reports regarding the 

status of the Repairs, including a certification that the actual construction costs to date conform 

to the Approved Budget, as it may be amended from time to time pursuant to Section 3.17 below. 

 

Section 3.13 Construction Responsibilities. 

(a) Borrower is responsible for the coordination and scheduling of the work to 

be performed so that commencement and completion of the construction of the Repairs takes 

place in accordance with this Agreement. 

(b) Borrower is solely responsible for all aspects of Borrower's conduct in 

connection with the Repairs, including (but not limited to) the quality and suitability of the plans 

and specifications, the supervision of construction work, and the qualifications, financial 

condition, and performance of all architects, engineers, contractors, subcontractors, suppliers, 

consultants, and property managers.  Any review or inspection undertaken by the County with 

reference to the Repairs is solely for the purpose of determining whether Borrower is properly 

discharging its obligations to the County, and may not be relied upon by Borrower or by any 

third parties as a warranty or representation by the County as to the quality of the design or 

construction of the Repairs. 

Section 3.14 Mechanics Liens, Stop Notices, and Notices of Completion. 

(a) If any claim of lien is filed against the Property or a stop notice affecting 

the Loan is served on the County or any other lender or other third party in connection with the 

Repairs, then Borrower shall, within twenty (20) days after such filing or service, either pay and 

fully discharge the lien or stop notice, effect the release of such lien or stop notice by delivering 

to the County a surety bond in sufficient form and amount, or provide the County with other 

assurance satisfactory to the County that the claim of lien or stop notice will be paid or 

discharged. 

(b) If Borrower fails to discharge any lien, encumbrance, charge, or claim in 

the manner required in this Section, then in addition to any other right or remedy, the County 

may (but is under no obligation to) discharge such lien, encumbrance, charge, or claim at 

Borrower's expense.  Alternately, the County may require Borrower to immediately deposit with 

the County the amount necessary to satisfy such lien or claim and any costs, pending resolution 

thereof.  The County may use such deposit to satisfy any claim or lien that is adversely 

determined against Borrower. 

(c) Borrower shall file a valid notice of cessation or notice of completion 

upon cessation of construction work on the Development for a continuous period of thirty (30) 

days or more, and take all other steps necessary to forestall the assertion of claims of lien against 

the Property.  Borrower authorizes the County, but the County has no obligation, to record any 

notices of completion or cessation of labor, or any other notice that the County deems necessary 

or desirable to protect its interest in the Development and Property. 



 18 

Section 3.15 Inspections. 

Borrower shall permit and facilitate, and shall require its contractors to permit and 

facilitate, observation and inspection at the Development by the County and by public authorities 

during reasonable business hours for the purposes of determining compliance with this 

Agreement. 

 

Section 3.16 Approved Budget; Revisions to Budget.  

As of the date of this Agreement, the County has approved the Approved Budget set forth 

in Exhibit B.  Borrower shall submit any required amendments to the Approved Budget to the 

County for approval within five (5) days of the date Borrower receives information indicating 

that actual costs of the Repairs vary or will vary from the costs shown on the Approved Budget.  

Written consent of the County will be required to amend the Approved Budget. 

 

Section 3.17 Developer Fee. 

 The maximum cumulative Developer Fee that may be paid to any entity or entities 

providing development services to the Development, whether paid up-front or on a deferred 

basis, is not to exceed the amount approved by the County.  For the purposes of this Agreement 

"Developer Fee" has the meaning set forth in California Code of Regulations, Title 4, Section 

10302(l). 

 

Section 3.18 Intentionally Omitted. 

Section 3.19 NEPA Mitigation Requirements. 

Borrower shall comply with the NEPA mitigation requirements set forth in the attached 

Exhibit C in the construction of the Development. 

 

ARTICLE 4 LOAN REQUIREMENTS 

Section 4.1 Intentionally Omitted. 

Section 4.2 Financial Accountings and Post-Completion Audits. 

(a) No later than ninety (90) days following completion of the Repairs, 

Borrower shall provide to the County for its review and approval a financial accounting of all 

sources and uses of funds used in the construction of the Repairs.     

(b) No later than one hundred twenty (120) days after completion of the 

Repairs, Borrower shall submit a complete financial report showing the sources and uses of all 

funds utilized for the Repairs.  This requirement may be satisfied by providing an unaudited 

sources and uses report. 

Section 4.3 Annual Operating Budget.   



 19 

 At the beginning of each year of the Term, Borrower shall provide to the County an 

annual budget for the operation of the Development.  Unless rejected by the County in writing 

within fifteen (15) days after receipt of the budget, the budget will be deemed accepted.  If 

rejected by the County in whole or in part, Borrower shall submit a new or corrected budget 

within thirty (30) calendar days of notification of the County's rejection and the reasons therefor.  

The provisions of this Section relating to time periods for resubmission of new or corrected 

budgets will continue to apply until such budget has been approved by the County. 

 

Section 4.4 Information. 

 Borrower shall provide any information reasonably requested by the County in 

connection with the Development, including (but not limited to) any information required by 

HUD in connection with Borrower's use of the Loan funds. 

 

Section 4.5 Records. 

(a) Borrower shall keep and maintain at the principal place of business of the 

Borrower set forth in Section 7.9 below, or elsewhere with the County's written consent, full, 

complete and appropriate books, records and accounts relating to the Development including all 

such books, records and accounts necessary or prudent to evidence and substantiate in full detail 

Borrower's calculation of Residual Receipts and disbursements of Residual Receipts.  Books, 

records and accounts relating to Borrower's compliance with the terms, provisions, covenants 

and conditions of this Agreement are to be kept and maintained in accordance with generally 

accepted accounting principles consistently applied, and are to be consistent with requirements 

of this Agreement.  All such books, records, and accounts are to be open to and available for 

inspection and copying by HUD, the County, its auditors or other authorized representatives at 

reasonable intervals during normal business hours.  Copies of all tax returns and other reports 

that Borrower may be required to furnish to any governmental agency are to be open for 

inspection by the County at all reasonable times at the place that the books, records and accounts 

of Borrower are kept.  Borrower shall preserve such records for a period of not less than five (5) 

years after the creation of such records in compliance with all HUD records and accounting 

requirements including.  If any litigation, claim, negotiation, audit exception, monitoring, 

inspection or other action relating to the use of the Loan is pending at the end of the record 

retention period stated herein, then Borrower shall retain the records until such action and all 

related issues are resolved.  The records are to include all invoices, receipts, and other documents 

related to expenditures from the Loan funds.  Borrower shall cause records to be accurate and 

current and in such a form as to allow the County to comply with the record keeping 

requirements contained in 24 C.F.R. 92.508 and 24 C.F.R. 570.506.  Such records are to include 

but are not limited to: 

(i) Records providing a full description of the activities undertaken 

with the use of the Loan funds. 

 

(ii) Records demonstrating the eligibility of activities under CDBG 

Regulations set forth in 24 CFR 570 et seq. and that use of the CDBG Funds meets at least one 

of the national objectives of the CDBG program set forth in 24 CFR 570.208; 

 



 20 

(iii)  Records demonstrating compliance with the HUD property 

standards and lead-based paint requirements; 

 

(iv)  Records documenting compliance with the fair housing, equal 

opportunity, and affirmative fair marketing requirements; 

 

(v) Financial records as required by 24 C.F.R. 570.502, 24 C.F.R. 

92.505, and OMB Circular A-110 (24 C.F.R. Part 84);  

 

(vi)  Records demonstrating compliance with the CDBG and HOME 

tenant selection, affordability and income requirements; 

 

(vii)  Records demonstrating compliance with MBE/WBE requirements; 

 

(viii) Records demonstrating compliance with 24 C.F.R. Part 135 which 

implements section 3 of the Housing Development Act of 1968; 

 

(ix) Records demonstrating compliance with applicable relocation 

requirements, which must be retained for at least five (5) years after the date by which persons 

displaced from the property have received final payments; 

 

(x) Records demonstrating compliance with labor requirements 

including certified payrolls from Borrower's general contractor evidencing that applicable 

prevailing wages have been paid; 

 

(xi) Records demonstrating Borrower's continued compliance with the 

CHDO requirements. 

 

(b) The County shall notify Borrower of any records it deems insufficient.  

Borrower has fifteen (15) calendar days after the receipt of such a notice to correct any 

deficiency in the records specified by the County in such notice, or if a period longer than fifteen 

(15) days is reasonably necessary to correct the deficiency, then Borrower must begin to correct 

the deficiency within fifteen (15) days and correct the deficiency as soon as reasonably possible.  

Section 4.6 County Audits.   

 

(a) Each year, Borrower shall provide the County with a copy of Borrower's 

annual audit, which is to include information on all of Borrower's activities and not just those 

pertaining to the Development.  Borrower shall also follow audit requirements of the Single 

Audit Act and OMB Circulars A-122 and 110.  

(b)  In addition, the County may, at any time, audit all of Borrower's books, 

records, and accounts pertaining to the Development including but not limited to the Residual 

Receipts of the Development.  Any such audit is to be conducted during normal business hours at 

the principal place of business of Borrower and wherever records are kept.  Immediately after the 

completion of an audit, the County shall deliver a copy of the results of the audit to Borrower. 



 21 

(c) If it is determined as a result of an audit that there has been a deficiency in 

a loan repayment to the County then such deficiency will become immediately due and payable, 

with interest at the Default Rate from the date the deficient amount should have been paid.  In 

addition, if the audit determines that Residual Receipts have been understated for any year by the 

greater of (i) $2,500, and (ii) an amount that exceeds five percent (5%) of the Residual Receipts, 

then, in addition to paying the deficiency with interest, Borrower shall pay all of the County's 

costs and expenses connected with the audit and review of Borrower's accounts and records. 

Section 4.7 HOME and CDBG Requirements. 

(a) Borrower shall comply with all applicable laws and regulations governing 

the use of the HOME Funds as set forth in 24 C.F.R. Part 92 , and use of the CDBG Funds as set 

forth in 24 C.F.R. Part 570, including the requirements of the Regulatory Agreement and the 

CDBG Project Agreement.  In the event of any conflict between this Agreement and applicable 

laws and regulations governing the use of the Loan funds, the applicable laws and regulations 

govern.  During the HOME Reporting Term, these requirements are federal requirements, 

implemented by the County; thereafter, these requirements are deemed local County 

requirements. 

(b) The laws and regulations governing the use of the Loan funds include (but 

are not limited to) the following: 

(i) Environmental and Historic Preservation.  24 C.F.R. Part 58, 

which prescribes procedures for compliance with the National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 

(42 U.S.C. 4321-4361), and the additional laws and authorities listed at 24 C.F.R. 58.5. 

 

(ii) Applicability of OMB Circulars.  The applicable policies, 

guidelines, and requirements of OMB Circulars Nos. A-87, A-102, Revised, A-110, A-122, and 

A-133. 

 

(iii) Debarred, Suspended or Ineligible Contractors.  The prohibition on 

the use of debarred, suspended, or ineligible contractors set forth in 24 C.F.R. Part 24. 

 

(iv) Civil Rights, Housing and Community Development, and Age 

Discrimination Acts.  The Fair Housing Act (42 U.S.C. 3601 et seq.) and implementing 

regulations at 24 C.F.R. Part 100; Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 as amended; Title VIII 

of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 as amended; Section 104(b) and Section 109 of Title I of the 

Housing and Community Development Act of 1974 as amended; Section 504 of the 

Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 USC 794, et seq.); the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 USC 

6101, et seq.); Executive Order 11063 as amended by Executive Order 12259 and implementing 

regulations at 24 C.F.R. Part 107; Executive Order 11246 as amended by Executive Orders 

11375, 12086, 11478, 12107; Executive Order 11625 as amended by Executive Order 12007; 

Executive Order 12432; Executive Order 12138 as amended by Executive Order 12608. 

 

(v) Lead-Based Paint.  The requirement of the Lead-Based Paint 

Poisoning Prevention Act, as amended (42 U.S.C. 4821 et seq.), the Residential Lead-Based 

Paint Hazard Reduction Act (42 U.S.C. 4851 et seq.), and implementing regulations at 24 C.F.R. 

Part 35. 



 22 

 

(vi) Relocation.  The requirements of the Uniform Relocation 

Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 (42 U.S.C. 4601, et seq.), and 

implementing regulations at 49 C.F.R. Part 24; 24 C.F.R. 570.606; Section 104(d) of the 

Housing and Community Development Act of 1974 and implementing regulations at 24 C.F.R. 

42 et seq.; 24 C.F.R. 92.353; and California Government Code Section 7260 et seq. and 

implementing regulations at 25 California Code of Regulations Sections 6000 et seq.  If and to 

the extent that development of the Development results in the permanent or temporary 

displacement of residential tenants, homeowners, or businesses, then Borrower shall comply with 

all applicable local, state, and federal statutes and regulations with respect to relocation planning, 

advisory assistance, and payment of monetary benefits.  Borrower shall prepare and submit a 

relocation plan to the County for approval.  Borrower is solely responsible for payment of any 

relocation benefits to any displaced persons and any other obligations associated with complying 

with such relocation laws.  Borrower shall indemnify, defend (with counsel reasonably chosen 

by the County), and hold harmless the County against all claims that arise out of relocation 

obligations to residential tenants, homeowners, or businesses permanently or temporarily 

displaced by the Development. 

 

(vii) Discrimination against the Disabled.  The requirements of the Fair 

Housing Act (42 U.S.C. 3601 et seq.) and implementing regulations at 24 C.F.R. Part 100; 

Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. 794), and federal regulations issued 

pursuant thereto, which prohibit discrimination against the disabled in any federally assisted 

program, the requirements of the Architectural Barriers Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. 4151-4157) and 

the applicable requirements of Title II and/or Title III of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 

1990 (42 U.S.C. 12131 et seq.), and federal regulations issued pursuant thereto. 

 

(viii) Clean Air and Water Acts.  The Clean Air Act, as amended, 42 

U.S.C. 7401 et seq., the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended, 33 U.S.C. 1251 et 

seq., and the regulations of the Environmental Protection Agency with respect thereto, at 40 

C.F.R. Part 1500, as amended from time to time. 

 

(ix) Uniform Administrative Requirements. The provisions of 24 

C.F.R. 92.505 and 24 C.F.R. 570.502 regarding cost and auditing requirements. 

 

(x) Training Opportunities.  The requirements of Section 3 of the 

Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, as amended, 12 U.S.C. 1701u ("Section 3"), 

requiring that to the greatest extent feasible opportunities for training and employment be given 

to lower income residents of the project area and agreements for work in connection with the 

project be awarded to business concerns which are located in, or owned in substantial part by 

persons residing in, the areas of the project.  Borrower agrees to include the following language 

in all subcontracts executed under this Agreement: 

 

(1) The work to be performed under this contract is subject to 

the requirements of Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 

1968, as amended, 12 U.S.C. 1701u. The purpose of Section 3 is to ensure that 

employment and other economic opportunities generated by HUD assistance or 

HUD-assisted projects covered by Section 3, shall, to the greatest extent feasible, 



 23 

be directed to low- and very low-income persons, particularly persons who are 

recipients of HUD assistance for housing. 

 

(2) The parties to this contract agree to comply with HUD's 

regulations in 24 C.F.R. Part 135, which implement Section 3. As evidenced by 

their execution of this contract, the parties to this contract certify that they are 

under no contractual or other impediment that would prevent them from 

complying with the Part 135 regulations. 

 

(3) The contractor agrees to send to each labor organization or 

representative of workers with which the contractor has a collective bargaining 

agreement or other understanding, if any, a notice advising the labor organization 

or workers' representative of the contractor's commitments under this Section 3 

clause; and will post copies of the notice in conspicuous places at the work site 

where both employees and applicants for training and employment positions can 

see the notice. The notice shall describe the Section 3 preference; shall set forth 

minimum number and job titles subject to hire; availability of apprenticeship and 

training positions; the qualifications for each; the name and location of the 

person(s) taking applications for each of the positions; and the anticipated date the 

work shall begin. 

 

(4) The contractor agrees to include this Section 3 clause in 

every subcontract subject to compliance with regulations in 24 C.F.R. Part 135, 

and agrees to take appropriate action, as provided in an applicable provision of the 

subcontract or in this Section 3 clause, upon a finding that the subcontractor is in 

violation of the regulations in 24 C.F.R. Part 135. The contractor will not 

subcontract with any subcontractor where the contractor has notice or knowledge 

that the subcontractor has been found in violation of the regulations in 24 C.F.R. 

Part 135. 

 

(5) The contractor will certify that any vacant employment 

positions, including training positions, that are filled (1) after the contractor is 

selected but before the contract is executed, and (2) with persons other than those 

to whom the regulations of 24 C.F.R. Part 135 require employment opportunities 

to be directed, were not filled to circumvent the contractor's obligations under 24 

C.F.R. Part 135. 

 

(6) Noncompliance with HUD's regulations in 24 C.F.R. Part 

135 may result in sanctions, termination of this contract for default, and 

debarment or suspension from future HUD assisted contracts. 

 

(7) With respect to work performed in connection with Section 

3 covered Indian housing assistance, section 7(b) of the Indian Self-Determination 

and Education Assistance Act (25 U.S.C. 450e) also applies to the work to be 

performed under this contract. Section 7(b) requires that to the greatest extent 

feasible (i) preference and opportunities for training and employment shall be 

given to Indians, and (ii) preference in the award of contracts and subcontracts 



 24 

shall be given to Indian organizations and Indian-owned Economic Enterprises. 

Parties to this contract that are subject to the provisions of Section 3 and section 

7(b) agree to comply with Section 3 to the maximum extent feasible, but not in 

derogation of compliance with section 7(b). 

 

(xi) Labor Standards.  The labor requirements set forth in 24 C.F.R. 

92.354 and 24 C.F.R. 570.60; the prevailing wage requirements of the Davis-Bacon Act and 

implementing rules and regulations (40 U.S.C. 3141-3148); the Copeland "Anti-Kickback" Act 

(40 U.S.C. 276(c)) which requires that workers be paid at least once a week without any 

deductions or rebates except permissible deductions; the Contract Work Hours and Safety 

Standards Act – CWHSSA (40 U.S.C. 3701-3708) which requires that workers receive 

"overtime" compensation at a rate of 1-1/2 times their regular hourly wage after they have 

worked forty (40) hours in one (1) week; and Title 29, Code of Federal Regulations, Subtitle A, 

Parts 1, 3 and 5 are the regulations and procedures issued by the Secretary of Labor for the 

administration and enforcement of the Davis-Bacon Act, as amended. 

 

(xii) Drug Free Workplace.  The requirements of the Drug Free 

Workplace Act of 1988 (P.L. 100-690) and implementing regulations at 24 C.F.R. Part 24. 

 

(xiii) Anti-Lobbying; Disclosure Requirements.  The disclosure 

requirements and prohibitions of 31 U.S.C. 1352 and implementing regulations at 24 C.F.R. 

Part 87. 

 

(xiv) Historic Preservation.  The historic preservation requirements set 

forth in the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966, as amended (16 U.S.C. Section 470) and 

the procedures set forth in 36 C.F.R. Part 800.  If archeological, cultural, or historic period 

resources are discovered during construction, all construction work must come to a halt and 

Borrower shall immediately notify the County.  Borrower shall not shall alter or move the 

discovered material(s) until all appropriate procedures for "post-review discoveries" set forth in 

Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act have taken place, which include, but are 

not limited to, consultation with the California State Historic Preservation Officer and evaluation 

of the discovered material(s) by a qualified professional archeologist. 

 

(xv) Flood Disaster Protection.  The requirements of the Flood Disaster 

Protection Act of 1973 (P.L. 93-234) (the "Flood Act").  No portion of the assistance provided 

under this Agreement is approved for acquisition or construction purposes as defined under 

Section 3(a) of the Flood Act, for use in an area identified by HUD as having special flood 

hazards which is not then in compliance with the requirements for participation in the national 

flood insurance program pursuant to Section 201(d) of the Flood Act.  The use of any assistance 

provided under this Agreement for such acquisition or construction in such identified areas in 

communities then participating in the National Flood Insurance Program is subject to the 

mandatory purchase of flood insurance requirements of Section 102(a) of the Flood Act.  If the 

Property is located in an area identified by HUD as having special flood hazards and in which 

the sale of flood insurance has been made available under the National Flood Insurance Act of 

1968, as amended, 42 U.S.C. 4001 et seq., the property owner and its successors or assigns must 

obtain and maintain, during the ownership of the Property, such flood insurance as required with 

respect to financial assistance for acquisition or construction purposes under 
-
Section 102(s) of 



 25 

the Flood Act.  Such provisions are required notwithstanding the fact that the construction on the 

Property is not itself funded with assistance provided under this Agreement. 

 

(xvi) Religious Organizations.  If the Borrower is a religious 

organization, as defined by the CDBG and/or HOME requirements, the Borrower shall comply 

with all conditions prescribed by HUD for the use of HOME Funds and CDBG Funds by 

religious organizations, including the First Amendment of the United States Constitution 

regarding church/state principles and the applicable constitutional prohibitions set forth in 24 

C.F.R. 92.257 and 24 C.F.R. 570.200(j).  

 

(xvii) HUD Regulations.  Any other HUD regulations present or as may 

be amended, added, or waived in the future pertaining to the Loan funds. 

 

Section 4.8 Hazardous Materials. 

 

(a) Borrower shall keep and maintain the Property (including but not limited 

to, soil and ground water conditions) in compliance with all Hazardous Materials Laws and may 

not cause or permit the Property to be in violation of any Hazardous Materials Law.  Borrower 

may not cause or permit the use, generation, manufacture, storage or disposal of on, under, or 

about the Property or transportation to or from the Property of any Hazardous Materials, except 

such of the foregoing as may be customarily used in construction of projects like the 

Development or kept and used in and about residential property of this type. 

(b) Borrower shall immediately advise the County in writing if at any time it 

receives written notice of any Hazardous Materials Claims, and Borrower's discovery of any 

occurrence or condition on any real property adjoining or in the vicinity of the Property that 

could cause the Property or any part thereof to be classified as "border-zone property" (as 

defined in California Health and Safety Code Section 25117.4) under the provision of California 

Health and Safety Code, Section 25220 et seq., or any regulation adopted in accordance 

therewith, or to be otherwise subject to any restrictions on the ownership, occupancy, 

transferability or use of the Property under any Hazardous Materials Law. 

(c) The County has the right to join and participate in, as a party if it so elects, 

and be represented by counsel acceptable to the County (or counsel of its own choice if a conflict 

exists with Borrower) in any legal proceedings or actions initiated in connection with any 

Hazardous Materials Claims and to have its reasonable attorneys' fees in connection therewith 

paid by Borrower.   

(d) Borrower shall indemnify and hold harmless the County and its board 

members, supervisors, directors, officers, employees, agents, successors and assigns from and 

against any loss, damage, cost, fine, penalty, judgment, award, settlement, expense or liability, 

directly or indirectly arising out of or attributable to: (i) any actual or alleged past or present 

violation of any Hazardous Materials Law; (ii) any Hazardous Materials Claim; (iii) any actual 

or alleged past or present use, generation, manufacture, storage, release, threatened release, 

discharge, disposal, transportation, or presence of Hazardous Materials on, under, or about the 

Property; (iv) any investigation, cleanup, remediation, removal, or restoration work of site 

conditions of the Property relating to Hazardous Materials (whether on the Property or any other 



 26 

property); and (v) the breach of any representation of warranty by or covenant of Borrower in 

this Section 4.8, and Section 5.1(m).  Such indemnity shall include, without limitation: (x) all 

consequential damages; (y) the costs of any required or necessary investigation, repair, cleanup 

or detoxification of the Property and the preparation and implementation of any closure, remedial 

or other required plans; and (z) all reasonable costs and expenses incurred by the County in 

connection with clauses (x) and (y), including but not limited to reasonable attorneys' fees and 

consultant fees. This indemnification applies whether or not any government agency has issued a 

cleanup order.  Losses, claims, costs, suits, liability, and expenses covered by this 

indemnification provision include, but are not limited to:  (1) losses attributable to diminution in 

the value of the Property, (2) loss or restriction of use of rentable space on the Property, (3) 

adverse effect on the marketing of any rental space on the Property, and (4) penalties and fines 

levied by, and remedial or enforcement actions of any kind issued by any regulatory agency 

(including but not limited to the costs of any required testing, remediation, repair, removal, 

cleanup or detoxification of the Property and surrounding properties).  This obligation to 

indemnify will survive termination of this Agreement and will not be diminished or affected in 

any respect as a result of any notice, disclosure, knowledge, if any, to or by the County of 

Hazardous Materials. 

(e) Without the County's prior written consent, which will not be 

unreasonably withheld, Borrower may not take any remedial action in response to the presence 

of any Hazardous Materials on, under or about the Property, nor enter into any settlement 

agreement, consent decree, or other compromise in respect to any Hazardous Material Claims, 

which remedial action, settlement, consent decree or compromise might, in the County's 

judgment, impair the value of the County's security hereunder; provided, however, that the 

County's prior consent is not necessary in the event that the presence of Hazardous Materials on, 

under, or about the Property either poses an immediate threat to the health, safety or welfare of 

any individual or is of such a nature that an immediate remedial response is necessary and it is 

not reasonably possible to obtain the County's consent before taking such action, provided that in 

such event Borrower shall notify the County as soon as practicable of any action so taken.  The 

County agrees not to withhold its consent, where such consent is required hereunder, if (i) a 

particular remedial action is ordered by a court of competent jurisdiction, (ii) Borrower will or 

may be subjected to civil or criminal sanctions or penalties if it fails to take a required action, 

(iii) Borrower establishes to the satisfaction of the County that there is no reasonable alternative 

to such remedial action which would result in less impairment of the County's security 

hereunder, or (iv) the action has been agreed to by the County. 

(f) Borrower hereby acknowledges and agrees that (i) this Section is intended 

as the County's written request for information (and Borrower's response) concerning the 

environmental condition of the Property as required by California Code of Civil Procedure 

Section 726.5, and (ii) each representation and warranty in this Agreement (together with any 

indemnity obligation applicable to a breach of any such representation and warranty) with 

respect to the environmental condition of the Property is intended by the Parties to be an 

"environmental provision" for purposes of California Code of Civil Procedure Section 736. 

(g) In the event that any portion of the Property is determined to be 

"environmentally impaired" (as that term is defined in California Code of Civil Procedure 

Section 726.5(e)(3)) or to be an "affected parcel" (as that term is defined in California Code of 



 27 

Civil Procedure Section 726.5(e)(1)), then, without otherwise limiting or in any way affecting the 

County's or the trustee's rights and remedies under the Deed of Trust, the County may elect to 

exercise its rights under California Code of Civil Procedure Section 726.5(a) to (i) waive its lien 

on such environmentally impaired or affected portion of the Property and (ii) exercise (1) the 

rights and remedies of an unsecured creditor, including reduction of its claim against Borrower 

to judgment, and (2) any other rights and remedies permitted by law. For purposes of 

determining the County's right to proceed as an unsecured creditor under California Code of 

Civil Procedure Section 726.5(a), Borrower will be deemed to have willfully permitted or 

acquiesced in a release or threatened release of Hazardous Materials, within the meaning of 

California Code of Civil Procedure Section 726.5(d)(1), if the release or threatened release of 

Hazardous Materials was knowingly or negligently caused or contributed to by any lessee, 

occupant, or user of any portion of the Property and Borrower knew or should have known of the 

activity by such lessee, occupant, or user which caused or contributed to the release or threatened 

release.  All costs and expenses, including (but not limited to) attorneys' fees, incurred by the 

County in connection with any action commenced under this paragraph, including any action 

required by California Code of Civil Procedure Section 726.5(b) to determine the degree to 

which the Property is environmentally impaired, plus interest thereon at the Default Rate, until 

paid, will be added to the indebtedness secured by the Deed of Trust and is due and payable to 

the County upon its demand made at any time following the conclusion of such action. 

Section 4.9 Maintenance and Damage. 

 

(a) Borrower shall maintain the Development and the Property in good repair 

and in a neat, clean and orderly condition.  If there arises a condition in contravention of this 

requirement, and if Borrower has not cured such condition within thirty (30) days after receiving 

a County notice of such a condition, then in addition to any other rights available to the County, 

the County may perform all acts necessary to cure such condition, and to establish or enforce a 

lien or other encumbrance against the Property, subject to the provisions provided in subsection 

(b) below. 

(b) Subject to the requirements of senior lenders, and if economically feasible 

in the County's judgment after consultation with Borrower, if any improvement now or in the 

future on the Property is damaged or destroyed, then Borrower shall, at its cost and expense, 

diligently undertake to repair or restore such improvement consistent with the plans and 

specifications approved by the County with such changes as have been approved by the County.  

Such work or repair is to be commenced no later than the later of one hundred twenty (120) days, 

or such longer period approved by the County in writing, after the damage or loss occurs or thirty 

(30) days following receipt of the insurance proceeds, and is to be complete within one (1) year 

thereafter.  Any insurance proceeds collected for such damage or destruction are to be applied to 

the cost of such repairs or restoration and, if such insurance proceeds are insufficient for such 

purpose, then Borrower shall make up the deficiency.  If Borrower does not promptly make such 

repairs then any insurance proceeds collected for such damage or destruction are to be promptly 

delivered by Borrower to the County as a special repayment of the Loan, subject to the rights of 

the senior lenders, if any. 

Section 4.10 Fees and Taxes. 

 



 28 

Borrower is solely responsible for payment of all fees, assessments, taxes, charges, and 

levies imposed by any public authority or utility company with respect to the Property or the 

Development, and shall pay such charges prior to delinquency.  However, Borrower is not 

required to pay and discharge any such charge so long as (i) the legality thereof is being 

contested diligently and in good faith and by appropriate proceedings, and (ii) if requested by the 

County, Borrower deposits with the County any funds or other forms of assurance that the 

County in good faith from time to time determines appropriate to protect the County from the 

consequences of the contest being unsuccessful. 

 

Section 4.11 Notice of Litigation. 

 

Borrower shall promptly notify the County in writing of any litigation that has the 

potential to materially affect Borrower or the Property and of any claims or disputes that involve 

a material risk of such litigation. 

 

Section 4.12 Operation of Development as Affordable Housing. 

(a) Borrower shall operate the Development as an affordable housing 

development consistent with (i) HUD's requirements for use of CBDG Funds and HOME Funds, 

(ii) the Regulatory Agreement, and (iii) any other regulatory requirements imposed on Borrower. 

(b) Borrower shall evaluate the income eligibility of each Tenant household in 

County-Assisted Units pursuant to the County's approved Tenant certification procedures within 

sixty (60) days before the household's expected occupancy of one of the County-Assisted Units.  

Borrower shall certify each Tenant household's income on an annual basis. 

(c) Borrower shall maintain all documents setting forth the household income 

of each household occupying a County-Assisted Unit, and the total amount for rent, utilities, and 

related services charged to each household occupying the Development, as prescribed by the 

Regulatory Agreement. 

Section 4.13 Nondiscrimination. 

(a) Borrower covenants by and for itself and its successors and assigns that 

there will be no discrimination against or segregation of a person or of a group of persons on 

account of race, color, religion, creed, age (except for lawful senior housing in accordance with 

state and federal law), familial status, disability, sex, sexual orientation, marital status, ancestry 

or national origin in the sale, lease, sublease, transfer, use, occupancy, tenure or enjoyment of the 

Property, nor may Borrower or any person claiming under or through Borrower establish or 

permit any such practice or practices of discrimination or segregation with reference to the 

selection, location, number, use or occupancy of tenants, lessees, subtenants, sublessees or 

vendees in the Property.  The foregoing covenant will run with the land. 

Section 4.14 Transfer. 

(a) For purposes of this Agreement, "Transfer" means any sale, assignment, 

or transfer, whether voluntary or involuntary, of (i) any rights and/or duties under this 

Agreement, and/or (ii) any interest in the Development, including (but not limited to) a fee 



 29 

simple interest, a joint tenancy interest, a life estate, a partnership interest, a leasehold interest, a 

security interest, or an interest evidenced by a land contract by which possession of the 

Development is transferred and Borrower retains title.  The term "Transfer" excludes the leasing 

of any single unit in the Development to an occupant in compliance with the Regulatory 

Agreement.  The County Deputy Director – Department of Conservation and Development is 

authorized to execute assignment and assumption agreements on behalf of the County to 

implement any approved Transfer. 

(b) No Transfer is permitted without the prior written consent of the County, 

which the County may withhold in its sole discretion. The Loan will automatically accelerate and 

be due in full upon any Transfer made without the prior written consent of the County. 

(c) In the event the general partner of Borrower is removed by the limited 

partner of Borrower for cause, the County hereby approves the Transfer of the general partner 

interest to a 501(c)(3) tax exempt nonprofit corporation or other entity with a 501(c)(3) tax 

exempt nonprofit corporation member or partner, which entity is also a qualified CHDO entity, 

selected by the limited partner and approved by the County, which approval shall not be withheld 

unreasonably.   If any Transfer results in the removal or withdrawal of Borrower's general 

partner, Borrower agrees to repay all principal and accrued interest on the HOME Funds portion 

of the Loan in full if the general partner is not replaced with a qualified CHDO entity in 

accordance with this Subsection. 

Section 4.15 Insurance Requirements.   

 

(a) Borrower shall maintain the following insurance coverage throughout the 

Term of the Loan: 

(i)  Worker's Compensation insurance to the extent required by law, 

including Employer's Liability coverage, with limits not less than One Million Dollars 

($1,000,000) each accident. 

(ii)  Comprehensive General Liability insurance with limits not less 

than Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) each occurrence combined single limit for Bodily Injury 

and Property Damage, including coverages for Contractual Liability, Personal Injury, Broadform 

Property Damage, Products and Completed Operations.  

(iii)  Comprehensive Automobile Liability insurance with limits not less 

than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) each occurrence combined single limit for Bodily Injury 

and Property Damage, including coverages for owned, non-owned and hired vehicles, as 

applicable. 

(iv)  Builders' Risk insurance during the course of construction of the 

Repairs, and upon completion of the Repairs, property insurance covering the Repairs, in form 

appropriate for the nature of such property, covering all risks of loss, excluding earthquake, for 

one hundred percent (100%) of the replacement value, with deductible, if any, acceptable to the 

County, naming the County as a Loss Payee, as its interests may appear.  Flood insurance must 

be obtained if required by applicable federal regulations.  



 30 

(v)  Commercial crime insurance covering all officers and employees, 

for loss of Loan proceeds caused by dishonesty, in an amount approved by the County, naming 

the County a Loss Payee, as its interests may appear.  

(b) Borrower shall cause any general contractor, agent, or subcontractor 

working on the Repairs under direct contract with Borrower or subcontract to maintain insurance 

of the types and in at least the minimum amounts described in subsections (i), (ii), and (iii) 

above, except that the limit of liability for comprehensive general liability insurance for 

subcontractors must be One Million Dollars ($1,000,000), and must require that such insurance 

will meet all of the general requirements of subsections (d) and (e) below. 

(c) The required insurance must be provided under an occurrence form, and 

Borrower shall maintain the coverage described in subsections (a) continuously throughout the 

Term.  Should any of the required insurance be provided under a form of coverage that includes 

an annual aggregate limit or provides that claims investigation or legal defense costs be included 

in such annual aggregate limit, such annual aggregate limit must be three times the occurrence 

limits specified above. 

(d) Comprehensive General Liability, Comprehensive Automobile Liability 

and Property insurance policies must be endorsed to name as an additional insured the County 

and its officers, agents, employees and members of the County Board of Supervisors.  

(e) All policies and bonds are to contain (i) the agreement of the insurer to 

give the County at least thirty (30) days’ notice prior to cancellation (including, without 

limitation, for non-payment of premium) or any material change in said policies; (ii) an 

agreement that such policies are primary and non-contributing with any insurance that may be 

carried by the County; (iii) a provision that no act or omission of Borrower shall affect or limit 

the obligation of the insurance carrier to pay the amount of any loss sustained; and (iv) a waiver 

by the insurer of all rights of subrogation against the County and its authorized parties in 

connection with any loss or damage thereby insured against. 

Section 4.16 Anti-Lobbying Certification. 

Borrower certifies, to the best of Borrower's knowledge or belief, that: 
 

(a) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on 

behalf of it, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of 

any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a 

Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any 

Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, 

and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, 

grant, loan, or cooperative agreement; 

(b) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will 

be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any 

agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a 

Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or 

cooperative agreement, it will complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, Disclosure Form to 



 31 

Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions. 

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed 

when this Agreement was made or entered into.  Submission of this certification is a prerequisite 

for making or entering into this Agreement imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code.  Any 

person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less 

than Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000) and no more than One Hundred Thousand Dollars 

($100,000) for such failure. 

 

Section 4.17 Intentionally Deleted.  

 

ARTICLE 5   REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF BORROWER  

Section 5.1 Representations and Warranties. 

 Borrower hereby represents and warrants to the County as follows and acknowledges, 

understands, and agrees that the representations and warranties set forth in this Article 5 are 

deemed to be continuing during all times when any portion of the Loan remains outstanding: 

 

(a) Organization.  Borrower is duly organized, validly existing and in good 

standing under the laws of the State of California and has the power and authority to own its 

property and carry on its business as now being conducted.   

(b) CHDO Requirement.  Borrower's managing general partner is wholly 

owned and controlled by a qualified CHDO in good standing as defined in 24 C.F.R. 92.2, and 

required in 24 C.F.R. 92.300 (a)(1).   

(c) Authority of Borrower.  Borrower has full power and authority to execute 

and deliver this Agreement and to make and accept the borrowings contemplated hereunder, to 

execute and deliver the Loan Documents and all other documents or instruments executed and 

delivered, or to be executed and delivered, pursuant to this Agreement, and to perform and 

observe the terms and provisions of all of the above.   

(d) Authority of Persons Executing Documents.  This Agreement and the 

Loan Documents and all other documents or instruments executed and delivered, or to be 

executed and delivered, pursuant to this Agreement have been executed and delivered by persons 

who are duly authorized to execute and deliver the same for and on behalf of Borrower, and all 

actions required under Borrower's organizational documents and applicable governing law for 

the authorization, execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement and the Loan 

Documents and all other documents or instruments executed and delivered, or to be executed and 

delivered, pursuant to this Agreement, have been duly taken. 

(e) Valid Binding Agreements.  The Loan Documents and all other 

documents or instruments executed and delivered pursuant to or in connection with this 

Agreement constitute or, if not yet executed or delivered, will when so executed and delivered 

constitute, legal, valid and binding obligations of Borrower enforceable against it in accordance 

with their respective terms.  



 32 

(f) No Breach of Law or Agreement.  Neither the execution nor delivery of 

the Loan Documents or of any other documents or instruments executed and delivered, or to be 

executed or delivered, pursuant to this Agreement, nor the performance of any provision, 

condition, covenant or other term hereof or thereof, will (i) conflict with or result in a breach of 

any statute, rule or regulation, or any judgment, decree or order of any court, board, commission 

or agency whatsoever that is binding on Borrower, or conflict with any provision of the 

organizational documents of Borrower, or conflict with any agreement to which Borrower is a 

party, or (ii) result in the creation or imposition of any lien upon any assets or property of 

Borrower, other than liens established pursuant hereto.  

(g) Compliance with Laws; Consents and Approvals.  The construction of the 

Repairs will comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, rules and regulations of federal, state 

and local governments and agencies and with all applicable directions, rules and regulations of 

the fire marshal, health officer, building inspector and other officers of any such government or 

agency. 

(h) Pending Proceedings.  Borrower is not in default under any law or 

regulation or under any order of any court, board, commission or agency whatsoever, and there 

are no claims, actions, suits or proceedings pending or, to the knowledge of Borrower, threatened 

against or affecting Borrower or the Development, at law or in equity, before or by any court, 

board, commission or agency whatsoever which might, if determined adversely to Borrower, 

materially affect Borrower's ability to repay the Loan or impair the security to be given to the 

County pursuant hereto.  

(i) Title to Land.  At the time of recordation of the Deed of Trust, Borrower 

will have good and marketable fee title to the Development and there will exist thereon or with 

respect thereto no mortgage, lien, pledge or other encumbrance of any character whatsoever 

other than liens for current real property taxes and liens in favor of the County or approved in 

writing by the County.  

(j) Financial Statements.  The financial statements of Borrower and other 

financial data and information furnished by Borrower to the County fairly and accurately present 

the information contained therein.  As of the date of this Agreement, there has not been any 

material adverse change in the financial condition of Borrower from that shown by such financial 

statements and other data and information.  

(k) Sufficient Funds.  Borrower holds sufficient funds and/or binding 

commitments for sufficient funds to complete the Repairs in accordance with the terms of this 

Agreement. 

(l) Taxes.  Borrower and its subsidiaries have filed all federal and other 

material tax returns and reports required to be filed, and have paid all federal and other material 

taxes, assessments, fees and other governmental charges levied or imposed upon them or their 

income or the Property otherwise due and payable, except those that are being contested in good 

faith by appropriate proceedings and for which adequate reserves have been provided in 

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.  There is no proposed tax assessment 

against Borrower or any of its subsidiaries that could, if made, be reasonably expected to have a 

material adverse effect on the property, liabilities (actual or contingent), operations, condition 



 33 

(financial or otherwise) or prospects of Borrower and its subsidiaries, taken as a whole, or which 

could result in (i) a material impairment of the ability of Borrower to perform under any loan 

document to which it is a party, or (ii) a material adverse effect upon the legality, validity, 

binding effect or enforceability against Borrower of any Loan Document. 

(m) Hazardous Materials.  To the best of Borrower's knowledge, except as 

disclosed in writing by Borrower to the County prior to the date of this Agreement: (i) no 

Hazardous Material has been disposed of, stored on, discharged from, or released to or from, or 

otherwise now exists in, on, under, or around, the Property, (ii)  neither the Property nor 

Borrower is in violation of any Hazardous Materials Law; and (iii) neither the Property nor 

Borrower is subject to any existing, pending or threatened Hazardous Materials Claims.   

 

ARTICLE 6 DEFAULT AND REMEDIES  

Section 6.1 Events of Default. 

Each of the following constitutes an "Event of Default" by Borrower under this 

Agreement: 

 

(a) Failure to Construct.  Failure of Borrower to obtain permits, commence, 

and prosecute to completion, construction of the Repairs within the times set forth in Article 3 

above; 

(b) Failure to Make Payment.  Failure to make any payment when such 

payment is due pursuant to the Loan Documents. 

(c) Breach of Covenants.  Failure by Borrower to duly perform, comply with, 

or observe any of the conditions, terms, or covenants of any of the Loan Documents or the 

CDBG Project Agreement (other than obligations described in subsections (a) and (b) above), 

and Borrower fails to cure such default within thirty (30) days after receipt of written notice 

thereof from the County to Borrower; provided, however, that if a different period or notice 

requirement is specified under any other section of this Article 6, the specific provisions shall 

control.  If the Permitted Limited Partner cures an Event of Default within the cure period set 

forth in this subsection, the County will accept such action as curing the Event of Default as if 

such cure was performed by Borrower.     

(d) Default Under Other Loans.  A default is declared under any other 

financing for the Development by the lender of such financing and such default remains uncured 

following any applicable notice and cure period. 

(e) Insolvency.  A court having jurisdiction makes or enters any decree or 

order (i) adjudging Borrower to be bankrupt or insolvent, (ii) approving as properly filed a 

petition seeking reorganization of Borrower, or seeking any arrangement for Borrower under the 

bankruptcy law or any other applicable debtor's relief law or statute of the United States or any 

state or other jurisdiction, (iii) appointing a receiver, trustee, liquidator, or assignee of Borrower 

in bankruptcy or insolvency or for any of their properties, (iv) directing the winding up or 

liquidation of Borrower if any such decree or order described in clauses (i) to (iv), inclusive, is 



 34 

unstayed or undischarged for a period of ninety (90) calendar days; or (v) Borrower admits in 

writing its inability to pay its debts as they fall due or will have voluntarily submitted to or filed 

a petition seeking any decree or order of the nature described in clauses (i) to (iv), inclusive.  The 

occurrence of any of the Events of Default in this paragraph will act to accelerate automatically, 

without the need for any action by the County, the indebtedness evidenced by the CDBG Note 

and the HOME Note. 

(f) Assignment; Attachment.  Borrower assigns its assets for the benefit of its 

creditors or suffers a sequestration or attachment of or execution on any substantial part of its 

property, unless the property so assigned, sequestered, attached or executed upon is returned or 

released within ninety (90) calendar days after such event or, if sooner, prior to sale pursuant to 

such sequestration, attachment, or execution.  The occurrence of any of the events of default in 

this paragraph shall act to accelerate automatically, without the need for any action by the 

County, the indebtedness evidenced by the CDBG Note and the HOME Note. 

(g) Suspension; Termination.  Borrower voluntarily suspends its business or, 

the partnership is dissolved or terminated, other than a technical termination of the partnership 

for tax purposes. 

(h) Liens on Property and the Development. Any claim of lien (other than 

liens approved in writing by the County) is filed against the Development or any part thereof, or 

any interest or right made appurtenant thereto, or the service of any notice to withhold proceeds 

of the Loan and the continued maintenance of said claim of lien or notice to withhold for a 

period of twenty (20) days, without discharge or satisfaction thereof or provision therefor 

(including, without limitation, the posting of bonds) satisfactory to the County. 

(i) Condemnation.  The condemnation, seizure, or appropriation of all or the 

substantial part of the Property and the Development. 

(j) Unauthorized Transfer.  Any Transfer other than as permitted pursuant to 

Section 4.14. 

(k) Representation or Warranty Incorrect.  Any Borrower representation or 

warranty contained in this Agreement, or in any application, financial statement, certificate, or 

report submitted to the County in connection with any of the Loan Documents, proves to have 

been incorrect in any material respect when made. 

(l) Applicability to General Partner.  The occurrence of any of the events set 

forth in subsection (e), subsection (f), or subsection (g) in relation to Borrower's managing 

general partner, unless the removal and replacement of the Borrower's managing general partner 

in accordance with Section 4.14(e), within the time frame set forth in Section 6.1(c) cures such a 

default. 

Section 6.2 Remedies. 

Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default and until such Even of Default is cured or 

waived, the County is relieved of any obligation to disburse any portion of the Loan.  In addition, 

upon the occurrence of an Event of Default and following the expiration of all applicable notice 



 35 

and cure periods the County may proceed with any and all remedies available to it under law, 

this Agreement, and the other Loan Documents.  Such remedies include but are not limited to the 

following: 

  

(a) Acceleration of Notes.  The County may cause all indebtedness of 

Borrower to the County under this Agreement and the CDBG Note and the HOME Note, 

together with any accrued interest thereon, to become immediately due and payable.  Borrower 

waives all right to presentment, demand, protest or notice of protest or dishonor.  The County 

may proceed to enforce payment of the indebtedness and to exercise any or all rights afforded to 

the County as a creditor and secured party under the law including the Uniform Commercial 

Code, including foreclosure under the Deed of Trust.  Borrower is liable to pay the County on 

demand all reasonable expenses, costs and fees (including, without limitation, reasonable 

attorney's fees and expenses) paid or incurred by the County in connection with the collection of 

the Loan and the preservation, maintenance, protection, sale, or other disposition of the security 

given for the Loan. 

(b) Specific Performance.  The County has the right to mandamus or other 

suit, action or proceeding at law or in equity to require Borrower to perform its obligations and 

covenants under the Loan Documents or to enjoin acts on things that may be unlawful or in 

violation of the provisions of the Loan Documents. 

(c) Special Remedy for Breach of Use Requirement.  Pursuant to 24 C.F.R. 

570.503(b)(7)(ii), if after its acquisition of the Property, Borrower changes the planned use of the 

Property to a non-CDBG eligible use, or if after completion of construction of the Development, 

Borrower ceases to use the Development to primarily benefit low and moderate income persons, 

the County may require Borrower to pay to the County an amount equal to the then current 

market value of the Development (as determined by appraisal), less any portion of that value 

attributable to non-County CDBG Loan used for the development of the Development (based on 

a pro-rata allocation of funds used by Borrower in its development of the Development).  Funds 

recovered from Borrower pursuant to this subsection will be credited against amounts 

outstanding under the CDBG Note and the HOME Note.  

(d) Right to Cure at Borrower's Expense.  The County has the right (but not 

the obligation) to cure any monetary default by Borrower under a loan other than the Loan.  

Upon demand therefore, Borrower shall reimburse the County for any funds advanced by the 

County to cure such monetary default by Borrower, together with interest thereon from the date 

of expenditure until the date of reimbursement at the Default Rate. 

Section 6.3 Right of Contest. 

Borrower may contest in good faith any claim, demand, levy, or assessment the assertion 

of which would constitute an Event of Default hereunder.  Any such contest is to be prosecuted 

diligently and in a manner unprejudicial to the County or the rights of the County hereunder. 

 

Section 6.4 Remedies Cumulative. 

No right, power, or remedy given to the County by the terms of this Agreement or the 

other Loan Documents is intended to be exclusive of any other right, power, or remedy; and each 



 36 

and every such right, power, or remedy is cumulative and in addition to every other right, power, 

or remedy given to the County by the terms of any such instrument, or by any statute or 

otherwise against Borrower and any other person.  Neither the failure nor any delay on the part 

of the County to exercise any such rights and remedies will operate as a waiver thereof, nor does 

any single or partial exercise by the County of any such right or remedy preclude any other or 

further exercise of such right or remedy, or any other right or remedy. 

 

 

ARTICLE 7 GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 

Section 7.1 Relationship of Parties. 

Nothing contained in this Agreement is to be interpreted or understood by any of the 

Parties, or by any third persons, as creating the relationship of employer and employee, principal 

and agent, limited or general partnership, or joint venture between the County and Borrower or 

its agents, employees or contractors, and Borrower will at all times be deemed an independent 

contractor and to be wholly responsible for the manner in which it or its agents, or both, perform 

the services required of it by the terms of this Agreement.  Borrower has and retains the right to 

exercise full control of employment, direction, compensation, and discharge of all persons 

assisting in the performance of services under the Agreement.  In regards to the construction and 

operation of the Development, Borrower is solely responsible for all matters relating to payment 

of its employees, including compliance with Social Security, withholding, and all other laws and 

regulations governing such matters, and must include requirements in each contract that 

contractors are solely responsible for similar matters relating to their employees.  Borrower is 

solely responsible for its own acts and those of its agents and employees. 

 

Section 7.2 No Claims. 

Nothing contained in this Agreement creates or justifies any claim against the County by 

any person that Borrower may have employed or with whom Borrower may have contracted 

relative to the purchase of materials, supplies or equipment, or the furnishing or the performance 

of any work or services with respect to the purchase of the Property, the construction or 

operation of the Development, and Borrower shall include similar requirements in any contracts 

entered into for the construction or operation of the Development. 

 

Section 7.3 Amendments. 

No alteration or variation of the terms of this Agreement is valid unless made in writing 

by the Parties. The County Deputy Director – Department of Conservation and Development is 

authorized to execute on behalf of the County amendments to the Loan Documents or amended 

and restated Loan Documents as long as any discretionary change in the amount or terms of this 

Agreement is approved by the County's Board of Supervisors. 

 

Section 7.4 Indemnification. 

Borrower shall indemnify, defend and hold the County and its board members, 

supervisors, directors, officers, employees, agents, successors and assigns harmless against any 

and all claims, suits, actions, losses and liability of every kind, nature and description made 



 37 

against it and expenses (including reasonable attorneys' fees) which arise out of or in connection 

with this Agreement, including but not limited to the purchase of the Property and the  

development, construction, marketing and operation of the Development, except to the extent 

such claim arises from the gross negligence or willful misconduct of the County, its agents, and 

its employees.  The provisions of this Section will survive the expiration of the Term and the 

reconveyance of the Deed of Trust. 

 

Section 7.5 Non-Liability of County Officials, Employees and Agents. 

No member, official, employee or agent of the County is personally liable to Borrower in 

the event of any default or breach of this Agreement by the County or for any amount that may 

become due from the County pursuant to this Agreement. 

 

Section 7.6 No Third Party Beneficiaries. 

There are no third party beneficiaries to this Agreement. 

 

Section 7.7 Discretion Retained By County. 

The County's execution of this Agreement in no way limits any discretion the County 

may have in the permit and approval process related to the construction of the Development. 

 

Section 7.8 Conflict of Interest. 

(a) Except for approved eligible administrative or personnel costs, no person 

described in Section 7.8(b) below who exercises or has exercised any functions or 

responsibilities with respect to the activities funded pursuant to this Agreement or who is in a 

position to participate in a decision-making process or gain inside information with regard to 

such activities, may obtain a personal or financial interest or benefit from the activity, or have an 

interest in any contract, subcontract or agreement with respect thereto, or the proceeds 

thereunder, either for themselves or those with whom they have family or business ties, during, 

or at any time after, such person's tenure.  Borrower shall exercise due diligence to ensure that 

the prohibition in this Section 7.8(a) is followed. 

(b) The conflict of interest provisions of Section 7.8(a) above apply to any 

person who is an employee, agent, consultant, officer, or any immediate family member of such 

person, or any elected or appointed official of the County, or any person related within the third 

(3rd) degree of such person.  

(c) In accordance with California Government Code Section 1090 and the 

Political Reform Act, California Government Code section 87100 et seq., no person who is a 

director, officer, partner, trustee or employee or consultant of Borrower, or immediate family 

member of any of the preceding, may make or participate in a decision, made by the County or a 

County board, commission or committee, if it is reasonably foreseeable that the decision will 

have a material effect on any source of income, investment or interest in real property of that 

person or Borrower.  Interpretation of this section is governed by the definitions and provisions 

used in the Political Reform Act, California Government Code Section 87100 et seq., its 

implementing regulations manual and codes, and California Government Code Section 1090. 



 38 

(d) Borrower shall comply with the conflict of interest provisions set forth in 

24 C.F.R.  92.356 and 24 C.F.R. 570.611.  

Section 7.9 Notices, Demands and Communications. 

All notices required or permitted by any provision of this Agreement must be in writing 

and sent by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, or delivered by 

express delivery service, return receipt requested, or delivered personally, to the principal office 

of the Parties as follows: 

 

County:  County of Contra Costa 

  Department of Conservation and Development 

  30 Muir Road 

Martinez, CA  94553 

  Attention:  Affordable Housing Program Manager 

 

Borrower: Church Lane-Rubicon Partners 

c/o Resources for Community Development 

2220 Oxford Street 

Berkeley, CA  94704 

  

Such written notices, demands and communications may be sent in the same manner to such 

other addresses as the affected Party may from time to time designate by mail as provided in this 

Section.  Receipt will be deemed to have occurred on the date shown on a written receipt as the 

date of delivery or refusal of delivery (or attempted delivery if undeliverable). 

 

Section 7.10 Applicable Law. 

 

 This Agreement is governed by the laws of the State of California. 

 

Section 7.11 Parties Bound. 

 

Except as otherwise limited herein, this Agreement binds and inures to the benefit of the 

parties and their heirs, executors, administrators, legal representatives, successors, and assigns.  

This Agreement is intended to run with the land and to bind Borrower and its successors and 

assigns in the Property and the Development for the entire Term, and the benefit hereof is to 

inure to the benefit of the County and its successors and assigns. 

 

Section 7.12 Attorneys' Fees. 

 

If any lawsuit is commenced to enforce any of the terms of this Agreement, the prevailing 

Party will have the right to recover its reasonable attorneys' fees and costs of suit from the other 

Party. 

 

Section 7.13 Severability. 



 39 

If any term of this Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, 

void or unenforceable, the remainder of the provisions will continue in full force and effect 

unless the rights and obligations of the Parties have been materially altered or abridged by such 

invalidation, voiding or unenforceability. 

 

Section 7.14 Force Majeure. 

 In addition to specific provisions of this Agreement, performance by either Party will not 

be deemed to be in default where delays or defaults are due to war, insurrection, strikes, lock-

outs, riots, floods, earthquakes, fires, quarantine restrictions, freight embargoes, lack of 

transportation, or court order.  An extension of time for any cause will be deemed granted if 

notice by the Party claiming such extension is sent to the other within ten (10) days from the 

commencement of the cause and such extension of time is not rejected in writing by the other 

Party within ten (10) days of receipt of the notice.  In no event will the County be required to 

agree to cumulative delays in excess of one hundred eighty (180) days. 

 

Section 7.15 County Approval. 

The County has authorized the County Deputy Director- Department of Conservation and 

Development to execute the Loan Documents and deliver such approvals or consents as are 

required by this Agreement, and to execute estoppel certificates concerning the status of the 

Loan and the existence of Borrower defaults under the Loan Documents. 

 

 

Section 7.16 Waivers. 

Any waiver by the County of any obligation or condition in this Agreement must be in 

writing.  No waiver will be implied from any delay or failure by the County to take action on any 

breach or default of Borrower or to pursue any remedy allowed under this Agreement or 

applicable law.  Any extension of time granted to Borrower to perform any obligation under this 

Agreement does not operate as a waiver or release from any of its obligations under this 

Agreement.  Consent by the County to any act or omission by Borrower may not be construed to 

be consent to any other or subsequent act or omission or to waive the requirement for the 

County's written consent to future waivers. 

 

Section 7.17 Title of Parts and Sections. 

Any titles of the sections or subsections of this Agreement are inserted for convenience of 

reference only and are to be disregarded in interpreting any part of the Agreement's provisions.  

 

Section 7.18 Entire Understanding of the Parties 

 The Loan Documents and the CDBG Project Agreement constitute the entire agreement 

of the Parties with respect to the Loan. If there is a conflict between the CDBG Project 

Agreement and the Loan Documents, the terms of the Loan Documents will prevail.  The Loan 

Documents supersede the HOME Project Agreement in its entirety. 

 

Section 7.19 Multiple Originals; Counterpart. 



 40 

 This Agreement may be executed in multiple originals, each of which is deemed to be an 

original, and may be signed in counterparts. 

 

 

Remainder of Page Left Intentionally Blank 



Signature page 

County Loan Agreement 
41 

The parties are signing this Agreement as of the date first above written. 

 

COUNTY: 

 

COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA, a political 

subdivision of the State of California 

 

 

By: ______________________ 

  

 

Its: ______________________ 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

SHARON L. ANDERSON 

County Counsel 

 

 

By:  ______________________ 

 Kathleen Andrus  

 Deputy County Counsel  

 

 

BORROWER: 

 

Church Lane - Rubicon Partners, a California 

limited partnership 

 

 By: RCD GP LLC, its general partner 

 

 

By: Resources for Community 

Development, a California nonprofit 

public benefit corporation, its sole 

member/manager 

 

By:____________________ 

 

Name:___________________ 

 

Its:____________________ 



A-1 
 

EXHIBIT A 

 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY 

 

 

 The land is situated in the State of California, County of Contra Costa, and is described as 

follows: 

 

 



 B-1 

EXHIBIT B 

 

APPROVED BUDGET 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

Page 

 

 i 

 

 

ARTICLE 1 DEFINITIONS AND EXHIBITS ...............................................................................3 
Section 1.1 Definitions................................................................................................... 3 
Section 1.2 Exhibits ....................................................................................................... 8 

ARTICLE 2 LOAN PROVISIONS .................................................................................................9 
Section 2.1 Loan. ........................................................................................................... 9 
Section 2.2 Interest......................................................................................................... 9 
Section 2.3 Use of Loan Funds. ..................................................................................... 9 
Section 2.4 Security. ...................................................................................................... 9 

Section 2.5 Conditions Precedent to Disbursement of New CDBG 

Loan. ........................................................................................................... 9 

Section 2.6 Conditions Precedent to Disbursement of Retention. ............................... 11 

Section 2.7 Repayment Schedule. ................................................................................ 12 
Section 2.8 Reports and Accounting of Residual Receipts.......................................... 12 
Section 2.9 Non-Recourse. .......................................................................................... 13 

ARTICLE 3 CONSTRUCTION OF THE DEVELOPMENT ......................................................13 
Section 3.1 Permits and Approvals. ............................................................................. 13 

Section 3.2 Bid Package. ............................................................................................. 13 
Section 3.3 Construction Contract. .............................................................................. 14 
Section 3.4 Commencement of Construction. ............................................................. 14 

Section 3.5 Completion of Construction. ..................................................................... 14 

Section 3.6 Changes; Construction Pursuant to Plans and Laws. ................................ 14 
Section 3.7 Prevailing Wages. ..................................................................................... 15 
Section 3.8 Accessibility. ............................................................................................. 16 

Section 3.9 Intentionally Omitted. ............................................................................... 16 
Section 3.10 Equal Opportunity. .................................................................................... 16 

Section 3.11 Minority and Women-Owned Contractors. .............................................. 16 
Section 3.12 Progress Reports. ...................................................................................... 17 

Section 3.13 Construction Responsibilities. .................................................................. 17 
Section 3.14 Mechanics Liens, Stop Notices, and Notices of Completion.................... 17 
Section 3.15 Inspections. ............................................................................................... 18 
Section 3.16 Approved Budget; Revisions to Budget. .................................................. 18 

Section 3.17 Developer Fee. .......................................................................................... 18 
Section 3.18 Intentionally Omitted. ............................................................................... 18 
Section 3.19 NEPA Mitigation Requirements. .............................................................. 18 

ARTICLE 4 LOAN REQUIREMENTS ........................................................................................18 
Section 4.1 Intentionally Omitted. ............................................................................... 18 
Section 4.2 Financial Accountings and Post-Completion Audits. ............................... 18 
Section 4.3 Annual Operating Budget. ........................................................................ 18 
Section 4.4 Information. .............................................................................................. 19 
Section 4.5 Records. .................................................................................................... 19 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

(continued) 

Page 

 

ii 

Section 4.6 County Audits. .......................................................................................... 20 
Section 4.7 HOME and CDBG Requirements. ............................................................ 21 
Section 4.8 Hazardous Materials. ................................................................................ 25 
Section 4.9 Maintenance and Damage. ........................................................................ 27 
Section 4.10 Fees and Taxes. ......................................................................................... 27 

Section 4.11 Notice of Litigation. .................................................................................. 28 
Section 4.12 Operation of Development as Affordable Housing. ................................. 28 
Section 4.13 Nondiscrimination..................................................................................... 28 
Section 4.14 Transfer. .................................................................................................... 28 
Section 4.15 Insurance Requirements. ........................................................................... 29 

Section 4.16 Anti-Lobbying Certification. .................................................................... 30 

Section 4.17 Intentionally Deleted. ................................................................................ 31 

ARTICLE 5 REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF BORROWER ...........................31 
Section 5.1 Representations and Warranties. ............................................................... 31 

ARTICLE 6 DEFAULT AND REMEDIES ..................................................................................33 
Section 6.1 Events of Default. ..................................................................................... 33 

Section 6.2 Remedies. .................................................................................................. 34 
Section 6.3 Right of Contest. ....................................................................................... 35 

Section 6.4 Remedies Cumulative. .............................................................................. 35 

ARTICLE 7 GENERAL PROVISIONS .......................................................................................36 
Section 7.1 Relationship of Parties. ............................................................................. 36 

Section 7.2 No Claims. ................................................................................................ 36 

Section 7.3 Amendments. ............................................................................................ 36 
Section 7.4 Indemnification. ........................................................................................ 36 
Section 7.5 Non-Liability of County Officials, Employees and Agents...................... 37 

Section 7.6 No Third Party Beneficiaries. ................................................................... 37 
Section 7.7 Discretion Retained By County. ............................................................... 37 

Section 7.8 Conflict of Interest. ................................................................................... 37 
Section 7.9 Notices, Demands and Communications. ................................................. 38 

Section 7.10 Applicable Law. ........................................................................................ 38 
Section 7.11 Parties Bound. ........................................................................................... 38 
Section 7.12 Attorneys' Fees. ......................................................................................... 38 
Section 7.13 Severability. .............................................................................................. 38 

Section 7.14 Force Majeure. .......................................................................................... 39 
Section 7.15 County Approval. ...................................................................................... 39 
Section 7.16 Waivers. .................................................................................................... 39 

Section 7.17 Title of Parts and Sections. ....................................................................... 39 
Section 7.18 Entire Understanding of the Parties .......................................................... 39 
Section 7.19 Multiple Originals; Counterpart. ............................................................... 39 

 

 EXHIBIT A  Legal Description of the Property 

 EXHIBIT B  Approved Budget 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

(continued) 

Page 

 

iii 

   



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AMENDED AND RESTATED 

CDBG AND HOME LOAN AGREEMENT 
 

 

 

Between 

 

COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA 

 

and 

 

CHURCH LANE-RUBICON PARTNERS 

 

 

 

 

 

Church Lane Apartments 

 

 

 

 

__________ 1, 2015 



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

ACCEPT the October 2015 update of the operations of the Employment and Human Services Department,

Community Services Bureau as recommended by the Employment and Human Services Department Director. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Not applicable. 

BACKGROUND: 

The Employment and Human Services Department submits a monthly report to the Contra Costa County Board of

Supervisors (BOS) to ensure ongoing communications and updates to the County Administrator and BOS regarding

any and all issues pertaining to the Head Start Program and Community Services Bureau. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

Not applicable. 

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT: 

Not applicable. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Elaine Burres, (925)

313-1717

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the
Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

C. 91

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Kathy Gallagher, Employment & Human Services Director

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Operations Update of the Employment and Human Services Department, Community Services Bureau



ATTACHMENTS

CSB Oct 2015 CAO Report 

CSB Oct 2015 HS Fiscal Report 

CSB Oct 2015 EHS Fiscal Report 

CSB Oct 2015 CC Partnership Grant 

CSB Oct 2015 Credit Card Report 

CSB Oct 2015 CACFP Report 

CSB Oct 2015 LIHEAP 

CSB Oct 2015 Menu 



 

 
Camilla Rand, M.S. 

 Director 
 

1470 Civic Court, Suite 200 
Concord, CA 94520 
Tel 925 681 6300 
Fax 925 313 8301 

www.cccounty.us/ehsd 

To:  David Twa, Contra Costa County Administrator 
From:  Kathy Gallagher, EHSD Director  
Subject: Community Services Monthly Report 
Date:  October 2015  

 
I. Good News Update/Accomplishments:  

 
 On September 16, 2015, twelve (12) CSB staff members were trained to become 

CSB’s First Responders for CSB’s Administration Office in the event of an 

emergency.  In addition to life-saving techniques, the team learned how to 

mobilize and take action in an event of an emergency.  CSB’s goal is to have all 

CSB Civic Ct. staff CPR/AED certified by the end of the year, and so far 58 out of 

72 staff stationed at Civic Ct. have been certified.   

 The Economic Opportunity Council has appointed two new members, pending 

Board of Supervisor’s Approval: Kaila Vidal was approved for the Private/Non-

Profit Sector and Devlyn Sewell was approved for the Low-Income Alternate. 

 Community Services Bureau and Martinez Unified School District have 

collaborated to provide English as a Second Language classes to Head Start 

families. The classes began on October 27, 2015 and will continue through 

January 18, 2016. Participating families meet weekly at our George Miller 

Center in Concord and will attend a total of ten classes. Instruction includes 

conversation skills, grammar, reading, writing, pronunciation and vocabulary.  

 Staff from the Department of Public Health Riverside County are scheduled to 

visit EHSD/CSB on November 9, 2015 to obtain knowledge about CSB’s LIHEAP 

and Community Action Programs. 

 CSB centers scheduled Back-to-School Nights to provide parents with an 

opportunity to learn and understand the excellent quality care that our teachers 

provide for their children every day in the classrooms.  Teachers presented 

parents with the 2015-16 curriculum, daily classroom schedules, and lesson 

plans. Preschool age children were able to take their parents on classroom tours 

showing their parents their artwork as well as the different interest areas where 

they play and learn every day. The teachers also displayed documentation and 

pictures of classroom activities in order for parents to view and understand a 

typical work day for the children. 

  The early closure training in October focused on Classroom Individualization.  

The teachers reviewed the different documents to track each child’s 

developmental level based on the current assessment tool. The teachers 

reviewed the process of using the individual tracking sheet in planning their 

lesson plans and in developing educational plans for each child.   

 The annual Partners meeting is an all-day informational and networking event 

for Federal and State Partners that took place on 10/26/15. This event allows 

our community partners to connect with each other and CSB’s program content 



2 

 

area experts.  We discussed and reviewed annual administrative and program 

updates; including program requirements, state and federal regulations, and 

best practices. This year we also covered federal review updates and discussed 

preparing for this event. We were very pleased with the content shared with 

our partners and presented by our content are experts, and with the number of 

partners that attended the event. 

 The Annual CACFP training was conducted at the end of September and in early 

October. This year, CSB’s Education Managers assisted Sophia Talbot, CSB’s 

Registered Dietician. In addition to reviewing the information, participants 

played MANGO (Ms. Talbot’s version of BINGO) and practiced some yoga moves 

that teachers can take back to the classrooms to do with their children.  

 On October 15, CSB participated in The Great California Shake Out drill. Every 

year the California Governor’s Office of Emergency Services  conducts the 

“Great California Shake Out” to remind Californians that they can increase their 

chances of surviving an earthquake if they “Drop, Cover and Hold On”.  At 10:15 

a.m. CSB’s Administrative Office and Child Care Center locations dropped, 

covered and held on while the earthquake drill sounded through the PA system. 

Children and staff held their position until the drill was over. This was a great 

opportunity for staff and children to practice on how to be safer during a big 

earthquake. CSB continues to review and update emergency preparedness plans 

and supplies, and conduct structural inspections at our center locations in order 

to prevent damage and injuries.  

II. Status Updates: 

a. Caseloads, workload (all programs) 

 Head Start enrollment: 100.00% 

 Early Head Start enrollment: 100.00% 

 Head Start Average Daily Attendance for September: 88.1 % 

 Early Head Start Average Daily Attendance for September: 87.6%  

 Stage 2: 345 families and 544 children  

 CAPP: 100 families and 146 children 

 In total: 445 families and 690 children 

 Incoming transfers from Stage 1: 24 families and 27 children 

 LIHEAP: 282 households have been assisted 

 Weatherization: 30 units  

b. Staffing: 

 CSB continues to conduct on-going recruitment to fill various teaching 

and key management positions.  The Bureau hired a Site Supervisor II 

and is in the process of scheduling interviews to fill vacancies within the 

Comprehensive Services Manager and Comprehensive Services 

Assistant Manager classifications. 

c. Legal/lawsuits 



3 

 

 N/A  

d. Union Issues: 

 No issues with the union(s) were raised during the month of October.  

CSB is preparing for a Meet and Greet with Genevieve Vigil, new 

Business Agent for PEU Local 1, representing CSB Line staff.  

III. Hot Topics/Concerns/Issues: 

 CSB completed the year-end, 4-week Child Development Program audit. The 

compliance measures tested included fiscal balance, expenditure, account 

reporting, center-based program eligibility, alternate payment program, and 

support grants. There were no areas of concern.   

IV. Emerging Issues/New Challenges: 

 CSB continues to prepare for its Aligned Monitoring System (AMS) review 

events in the areas of Leadership, Governance, Management Systems (LGMS) 

and Comprehensive Services, and School Readiness (CSSR). We are awaiting the 

45-Day of review notification. 

 This year CSB will have its triennial CACFP review. It has been scheduled for the 

week of March 21st, 2016. In preparation for this, nutrition staff attended a 

CACFP pre-review workshop on October 21st.  Expectations for the review were 

discussed, and attendees were able to ask questions and receive first-hand 

clarification. The reviewer will be making unannounced meal-time visits to two 

of our centers between November and March as part of the overall review.  

 The 2016 Request for Information #592 for CSBG Subcontractor Funding is 

effective November 9 through November 20. Grants up to $99,999 will be 

awarded to subcontractor’s that demonstrate they have positive outcomes for 

the low income community in the area of jobs, housing, and food.  

 



1 2 3 4 5
DESCRIPTION Total Remaining %

YTD Actual Budget Budget YTD
a.  PERSONNEL 2,894,449$    3,841,014$    946,565$       75%

b.  FRINGE BENEFITS 1,872,601      2,658,808      786,207         70%

c. TRAVEL -                -                -                0%

d. EQUIPMENT -                -                -                0%

e.  SUPPLIES 123,358         285,300         161,942         43%

f.  CONTRACTUAL 3,945,625      6,947,136      3,001,511      57%

g.  CONSTRUCTION -                -                -                0%

h.  OTHER 1,294,947      1,162,382      (132,565)       111%

I.  TOTAL DIRECT CHARGES 10,130,980$  14,894,640$  4,763,660$    68%

j.  INDIRECT COSTS  583,142         795,090         211,948         73%

k. TOTAL-ALL BUDGET CATEGORIES 10,714,122$  15,689,730$  4,975,608$    68%

In-Kind (Non-Federal Share) 1,568,973$   3,922,433$   2,353,460$   40%

CONTRA COSTA COUNTY
COMMUNITY SERVICES BUREAU

2015  HEAD START PROGRAM
September 2015 Expenditures



1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Jan-15 Apr-15 Jul-15

thru thru thru Total YTD Total Remaining %
Mar-15 Jun-15 Sep-15 Actual Budget Budget YTD

a. PERSONNEL  (Object class 6a) 1,080,575       1,040,657       773,217          2,894,449    3,841,014    946,565         75%

b. FRINGE  (Object Class 6b) 667,648          699,324          505,629          1,872,601    2,658,808    786,207         70%

c. TRAVEL  (Object Class 6c) -                  -                  -                  -                -               -                 0%

e.  SUPPLIES (Object Class 6e)

1. Office Supplies 14,099            21,458            15,001            50,557          65,900         15,343           77%

2. Child and Family Services Supplies (Includesclassroom Supplies) 16,262            (1,910)             3,644              17,996          28,900         10,904           62%

4. Other Supplies -                  -                  -                  -                -               -                 

     Computer Supplies, Software Upgrades, Computer Replacement 2,594              31,134            -                  33,728          161,000       127,272         21%

     Health/Safety Supplies 1,028              1,013              934                 2,975            4,000           1,025             74%

     Mental helath/Diasabilities Supplies 265                 1,281              -                  1,546            2,700           1,154             57%

     Miscellaneous Supplies 7,228              4,464              3,251              14,943          20,900         5,957             71%

     Household Supplies 366                 817                 429                 1,612            1,900           288                85%

TOTAL SUPPLIES (6e) 41,843            58,255            23,260            123,358       285,300       161,942         43%

f.  CONTRACTUAL  (Object Class 6f)

1. Adm Svcs (e.g., Legal, Accounting, Temporary Contracts) 16,379            9,284              -                  25,663          55,068         29,405           47%

2. Health/Disabilities Services -                  -                  -                  -                -               -                 

     Estimated Medical Revenue from Medi-Cal (Org 1432 - credit) -                  (214,143)         -                  (214,143)      (251,500)      (37,357)          85%

     Health Consultant 11,021            10,590            12,595            34,206          44,800         10,594           76%

3. Food Services -                  -                  -                  -                -               -                 

5. Training & Technical Assistance - PA11 3,000              (1,791)             6,743              7,951            10,000         2,049             

     Diane Godard  ($50,000/2) 4,675                6,000                4,025                14,700            18,000           3,300               82%

     Josephine Lee ($35,000/2) 3,550                6,068                715                   10,333            13,000           2,668               79%

     Susan Cooke  ($60,000/2) -                    2,467                -                    2,467              3,000             533                  82%

7. Delegate Agency Costs -                  -                  -                  -                -               -                 

     First Baptist Church Head Start PA22 345,850          506,726          279,116          1,131,692    2,044,356    912,664         55%

     First Baptist Church Head Start PA20 -                  -                  -                  -                8,000           8,000             0%

8. Other Contracts -                  -                  -                

     Antioch Partnership 21,375            48,726            -                  70,101          129,600       59,499           54%

     FB-Fairgrounds Partnership  (Wrap) 11,498            11,804            13,758            37,060          74,212         37,152           50%

     FB-Fairgrounds Partnership 30,600            61,200            30,150            121,950       170,100       48,150           72%

     FB-E. Leland/Mercy Housing Partnership 9,000              18,000            14,600            41,600          54,000         12,400           77%

     Martinez ECC (18 HS slots x $225/mo x 12/mo) 36,120            18,000            17,100            71,220          108,000       36,780           66%

     YMCA of the East Bay (20 HS slots x $225/mo x 12/mo) 9,000              18,000            -                  27,000          54,000         27,000           50%

     Child Outcome Planning and Administration (COPA/Nulinx) 12,196            (134)                9,006              21,068          42,500         21,432           50%

     Enhancement/wrap-around HS slots with State CD Program 393,657          1,171,446       977,654          2,542,757    4,370,000    1,827,243      58%

f.  CONTRACTUAL (Object Class 6f) 907,922          1,672,241       1,365,462       3,945,625    6,947,136    3,001,511      57%

h.  OTHER (Object Class 6h)

  2. Bldg Occupancy Costs/Rents & Leases 103,571          115,009          58,427            277,007       337,000       59,993           82%

    (Rents & Leases/Other Income) (8,265)             (7,166)             -                  (15,431)        (25,000)        (9,569)            0%

  4. Utilities, Telephone 34,988            85,056            43,264            163,308       146,775       (16,533)          111%

  5.  Building and Child Liability Insurance 3,293              -                  -                  3,293            3,300           7                    100%

  6. Bldg. Maintenance/Repair and Other Occupancy 3,527              130,586          6,186              140,298       16,200         (124,098)        866%

  8. Local Travel (55.5 cents per mile effective 1/1/2012) 7,678              13,469            5,376              26,523          38,000         11,477           70%

  9. Nutrition Services -                  -                  -                  -                -               -                 

      Child Nutrition Costs 104,808          162,913          9,874              277,595       370,500       92,905           75%

      (CCFP & USDA Reimbursements) (66,643)           (105,017)         (2,545)             (174,205)      (265,000)      (90,795)          66%

13. Parent Services -                  -                  -                  -                -               -                 

      Parent Conference Registration - PA11 -                  -                  -                  -                -               -                 0%

      PC Orientation, Trainings, Materials & Translation - PA11 2,487              4,220              2,610              9,316            15,500         6,184             60%

      Policy Council Activities 2,312              441                 418                 3,172            5,000           1,828             63%

      Parent Activities (Sites, PC, BOS luncheon) & Appreciation 100                 -                  7                     107               2,000           1,893             5%

      Child Care/Mileage Reimbursement 1,022              3,298              2,574              6,894            8,500           1,606             81%

14. Accounting & Legal Services -                  -                  -                  -                -               -                 0%

     Auditor Controllers -                  1,898              -                  1,898            2,600           702                73%

     Data Processing/Other Services & Supplies 6,979              8,755              3,601              19,335          19,000         (335)               102%

15. Publications/Advertising/Printing -                  -                  -                  -                -               -                 

     Outreach/Printing -                  -                  -                  -                100              100                0%

16. Training or Staff Development -                  -                  -                  -                -               -                 

       Agency Memberships (WIPFLI, Meeting Fees, NHSA, NAEYC, etc.) 8,304              6,521              6,711              21,536          28,400         6,864             76%

       Staff Trainings/Dev. Conf. Registrations/Memberships - PA11 3,852              10,821            7,114              21,787          21,798         11                  100%

17. Other -                  -                  -                  -                -               -                 

     Site Security Guards -                  26,636            557                 27,193          38,400         11,207           71%

     Dental/Medical Services 189                 222                 74                   485               500              15                  97%

      Vehicle Operating/Maintenance & Repair 40,962            19,842            8,181              68,986          66,800         (2,186)            103%

      Equipment Maintenance Repair & Rental 49,561            24,948            31,033            105,542       105,000       (542)               101%

     Dept. of Health and Human Services-data Base (CORD) 2,518              2,518              -                  5,036            10,100         5,064             50%

      Field Trips -                  -                  -                  -                -               -                 0%

     Other Operating Expenses (Facs Admin/Other admin) 39,405            59,372            22,144            120,921       122,200       1,279             99%

     CSD Admin Costs/Facs Mgt Allocation 76,518            107,833          -                  184,351       94,709         (89,642)          0%

h. OTHER (6h) 417,165          672,175          205,607          1,294,947    1,162,382    (132,565)        111%

I.  TOTAL DIRECT CHARGES (6a-6h) 3,115,152       4,142,654       2,873,174       10,130,980  14,894,640  4,763,660      68%

j.  INDIRECT COSTS  192,784          280,848          109,510          583,142       795,090       211,948         73%

k. TOTALS (ALL BUDGET CATEGORIES) 3,307,936       4,423,502       2,982,684       10,714,122  15,689,730  4,975,608      68%

Non-Federal match (In-Kind) -                 -                 1,568,973      1,568,973    3,922,433   2,353,460     40%

CONTRA COSTA COUNTY
COMMUNITY SERVICES BUREAU

2015  HEAD START PROGRAM
September 2015 Expenditures



Summer will soon be over
The days are getting shorter
The evenings becoming cooler

Leaves on the trees are turning brown, orange yeloow
Brown, orange, 



1 2 3 4 5
DESCRIPTION Total Remaining %

YTD Actual Budget Budget YTD
a.  PERSONNEL 367,678$      491,300$      123,622$      75%

b.  FRINGE BENEFITS 242,178        346,617        104,439        70%

c. TRAVEL -                -                -                0%

d. EQUIPMENT -                -                -                0%

e.  SUPPLIES 6,581            34,000          27,419          19%

f.  CONTRACTUAL 1,851,887     2,413,601     561,714        77%

g.  CONSTRUCTION -                0%

h.  OTHER 211,718        56,617          (155,101)       374%

I.  TOTAL DIRECT CHARGES 2,680,044$   3,342,135$   662,091$      80%

j.  INDIRECT COSTS  95,482          101,699        6,217            94%

k. TOTAL-ALL BUDGET CATEGORIES 2,775,525$   3,443,834$   668,309$      81%

In-Kind (Non-Federal Share) 344,383$      860,958$      516,575$      40%

CONTRA COSTA COUNTY
COMMUNITY SERVICES BUREAU

2015  EARLY HEAD START PROGRAM
September 2015 Expenditures



1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

Jan-15 Apr-15 Jul-15

thru thru thru Total YTD Total Remaining %

Mar-15 Jun-15 Sep-15 Actual Budget Budget YTD
Expenditures
a.  Salaries & Wages (Object Class 6a)

     Permanent 1011 112,866         115,752         110,090         338,709       463,755       125,046       73%
     Temporary 1013 8,914             8,098             11,957           28,970         27,545         (1,425)          105%
a. PERSONNEL  (Object class 6a) 121,780         123,850         122,048         367,678       491,300       123,622       75%
b.  FRINGE BENEFITS  (Object Class 6b) -                
     Fringe Benefits 85,442           83,169           73,567           242,178       346,617       104,439       70%
b. FRINGE  (Object Class 6b) 85,442           83,169           73,567           242,178       346,617       104,439       70%
c. TRAVEL  (Object Class 6c) -                -                -                -               -              -               0%
e.  SUPPLIES (Object Class 6e)

1. Office Supplies 443                1,884             1,163             3,490           5,400           1,910           65%
2. Child and Family Serv. Supplies/classroom Supplies 1,076             (1,275)            48                  (150)             3,900           4,050           -4%
4. Other Supplies -               
     Computer Supplies, Software Upgrades, Comp Replacemnt (870)               3,317             -                2,447           23,000         20,553         11%
     Health/Safety Supplies -                -                -                -               -              -               0%
     Mental helath/Diasabilities Supplies -                83                  -                83                300              217              0%
     Miscellaneous Supplies 34                  313                218                565              1,200           635              47%
     Emergency Supplies -                -                -                -               -              -               0%
     Household Supplies 34                  51                  61                  147              200              53                73%
e.  SUPPLIES (Object Class 6e) 718                4,373             1,491             6,581           34,000         27,419         19%
f.  CONTRACTUAL  (Object Class 6f)
1. Adm Svcs ( Legal, Accounting, Temporary Contracts) 1,771             2,321             -                4,092           4,500           408              91%
     Health Consultant 4,723             4,539             4,133             13,395         19,201         5,806           70%
5. Training & Technical Assistance - PA11 -                -                -                -               -              -               0%
    Interaction -                1,209             6,743             7,951           8,000           49                100%
     Josephine Lee ($35,000/2) 3,555             4,650             715                8,920           9,500           580              200%
     Susan Cooke  ($60,000/2) -                28,527           -                28,527         30,000         1,473           300%
7. Delegate Agency Costs -                -                -                -               -              -               
8. Other Contracts -                -                -                -               
     FB-Fairgrounds Partnership 9,800             19,600           9,800             39,200         58,800         19,600         67%
     FB-E. Leland/Mercy Housing Partnership 11,200           22,400           5,600             39,200         67,200         28,000         58%
     Brighter Beginnings 20,400           102,000         20,400           142,800       244,800       102,000       58%
     Cameron School 8,000             45,534           8,000             61,534         96,000         34,466         64%
     Crossroads -                28,700           -                28,700         58,800         30,100         49%
     Martinez ECC 21,000           14,000           7,000             42,000         77,000         35,000         55%
     Apiranet 33,600           16,800           11,200           61,600         100,800       39,200         61%
     Child Outcome Planning & Admini. (COPA/Nulinx) 860                1,187             610                2,657           1,500           (1,157)          177%
     Enhancement/wrap-around HS slots with State CD Prog. 165,988         639,053         566,271         1,371,311    1,637,500    266,189       84%
f.  CONTRACTUAL (Object Class 6f) 280,897         930,520         640,471         1,851,887    2,413,601    561,714       77%
h.  OTHER (Object Class 6h)

  2. Bldg Occupancy Costs/Rents & Leases 395                89                  147,559         148,043       1,200           (146,843)      12337%
  4. Utilities, Telephone 507                663                377                1,547           2,000           453              77%
  5.  Building and Child Liability Insurance -                -                -                -               -              -               
  6. Bldg. Maintenance/Repair and Other Occupancy 11,557           16,024           76                  27,656         12,774         (14,882)        217%
  8. Local Travel (55.5 cents per mile) 1,880             1,765             1,043             4,689           4,000           (689)             117%
  9. Nutrition Services -                -                -                -               
      Child Nutrition Costs -                -                -                -               -              -               
      (CCFP & USDA Reimbursements) -                -                -                -               -              -               0%
13. Parent Services -                -                -                -               
      Parent Conference Registration - PA11 -                -                -                -               -              -               0%
      Parent Resources (Parenting Books, Videos, etc.) - PA11 -                -                -                -               -              -               0%
      PC Orientation, Trainings, Materials & Translation - PA11 5,682             738                777                7,196           5,000           (2,196)          144%
      Policy Council Activities 222                -                253                476              900              424              53%
      Parent Activities (Sites, PC, BOS luncheon) & Appreciation -                -                -                -               -              -               0%
      Child Care/Mileage Reimbursement 660                337                188                1,185           1,600           415              74%
14. Accounting & Legal Services -                -                -                -               
     Auditor Controllers -                -                -                -               -              -               0%
     Data Processing/Other Services & Supplies 508                889                572                1,969           1,700           (269)             116%
15. Publications/Advertising/Printing -                -                -                -               
     Outreach/Printing -                -                -                -               -              -               0%
16. Training or Staff Development -                -                -                -               
       Agency Memberships (WIPFLI, Meeting Fees, NHSA, NAEYC) -                1,168             1,835             3,003           3,300           297              91%
       Staff Trainings/Dev. Conf. Registrations/Memberships - PA11 14                  2,030             245                2,289           7,943           5,654           29%
17. Other -                -                -                -               
     Site Security Guards -                487                -                487              1,000           513              0%
      Vehicle Operating/Maintenance & Repair 3,453             3,156             918                7,527           9,300           1,773           81%
      Equipment Maintenance Repair & Rental 165                540                320                1,025           1,400           375              73%
     Dept. of Health and Human Services-data Base (CORD) -                -                -                -               -              -               0%
     Other Operating Expenses (Facs Admin/Other admin) 1,933             1,964             730                4,627           4,500           (127)             0%
     County Indirect Cost (A-87) -                    -                -                -               -                 -                 
h. OTHER (6h) 26,976           29,848           154,893         211,718       56,617         (155,101)      374%
I.  TOTAL DIRECT CHARGES  (6a-6h) 515,813         1,171,761      992,470         2,680,044    3,342,135    662,091       80%
j.  INDIRECT COSTS  26,423           46,726           22,332           95,482         101,699       6,217           94%

k. TOTALS - ALL BUDGET CATEGORIES 542,236         1,218,487      1,014,802      2,775,525    3,443,834    668,309       81%

Non-Federal Match (In-Kind) -                -                344,383         344,383      860,958      516,575      40%

CONTRA COSTA COUNTY
COMMUNITY SERVICES BUREAU

2015  EARLY HEAD START PROGRAM
September 2015 Expenditures



1 2 3 4 5
DESCRIPTION Total Remaining %

YTD Actual Budget Budget YTD
a.  PERSONNEL 160,615$       263,261$       102,646$       61%

b.  FRINGE BENEFITS 94,648           207,713         113,065         46%

c. TRAVEL -                 -                 -                 0%

d. EQUIPMENT -                 0%

e.  SUPPLIES 348                14,400           14,052           2%

f.  CONTRACTUAL 29,217           436,800         407,583         7%

g.  CONSTRUCTION -                 0%

h.  OTHER 90,714           207,007         116,293         44%

I.  TOTAL DIRECT CHARGES 375,542$       1,129,181$    753,639$       33%

j.  INDIRECT COSTS  23,000           54,495           31,495           42%

k. TOTAL-ALL BUDGET CATEGORIES 398,542$       1,183,676$    785,134$       34%

In-Kind (Non-Federal Share) -$              295,919$       295,919$       0%

CONTRA COSTA COUNTY
COMMUNITY SERVICES BUREAU

2015  EARLY HEAD START - CC PARTNERSHIP
September 2015 Expenditures



1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

Jan-15 Apr-15 Jul-15

thru thru thru Total YTD Total Remaining %

Mar-15 Jun-15 Sep-15 Actual Budget Budget YTD
Expenditures
a.  Salaries & Wages (Object Class 6a)

     Permanent 1011 4,789             51,874           97,532           154,196       243,261       89,065         63%
     Temporary 1013 -                -                6,419             6,419           20,000         13,581         
a. PERSONNEL  (Object class 6a) 4,789             51,874           103,951         160,615       263,261       102,646       61%
b.  FRINGE BENEFITS  (Object Class 6b) -                
     Fringe Benefits 3,402             31,034           60,212           94,648         207,713       113,065       46%

b. FRINGE  (Object Class 6b) 3,402             31,034           60,212           94,648         207,713       113,065       46%
c. TRAVEL  (Object Class 6c) -                -                -                -               -              -               0%
e.  SUPPLIES (Object Class 6e)
1. Office Supplies -                26                  -                26                1,200           1,174           2%
2. Child and Family Serv. Supplies/classroom Supplies -                -                -                -               2,400           2,400           0%
4. Other Supplies -                -                -                -               
     Computer Supplies, Software Upgrades, Comp Replacemnt -                -                -                -               9,600           9,600           0%
     Health/Safety Supplies -                -                -                -               -              -               0%
     Mental helath/Diasabilities Supplies -                -                -                -               -              -               0%
     Miscellaneous Supplies -                -                323                323              1,200           877              27%
e.  SUPPLIES (Object Class 6e) -                26                  323                348              14,400         14,052         2%
f.  CONTRACTUAL  (Object Class 6f)
1. Adm Svcs ( Legal, Accounting, Temporary Contracts) -                -                -                -               12,000         12,000         0%
     Health Consultant -                -                -                -               4,800           4,800           0%
8. Other Contracts -                -                -                -               0%
     FB-Fairgrounds Partnership -                -                29,217           29,217         312,000       282,783       9%
     FB-E. Leland/Mercy Housing Partnership -                -                -                -               108,000       108,000       0%
f.  CONTRACTUAL (Object Class 6f) -                -                29,217           29,217         436,800       407,583       7%
h.  OTHER (Object Class 6h)
  2. Bldg Occupancy Costs/Rents & Leases -                -                -                -               -              -               0%
  4. Utilities, Telephone -                88                  -                88                8,400           8,312           1%
  5.  Building and Child Liability Insurance -                222                -                222              -              (222)             0%
  6. Bldg. Maintenance/Repair and Other Occupancy -                -                -                -               -              -               0%
  8. Local Travel (55.5 cents per mile) -                301                292                593              9,000           8,407           7%
14. Accounting & Legal Services -                -                -                -               
     Audit -                -                -                -               1,200           1,200           0%
     Legal (County Counsel) -                -                -                -               1,000           1,000           0%
     Auditor Controllers -                -                -                -               1,200           1,200           0%
     Data Processing/Other Services & Supplies -                -                -                -               1,000           1,000           0%
16. Training or Staff Development -                -                -                -               
       Agency Memberships (WIPFLI, Meeting Fees, NHSA, NAEYC) -                -                -                -               -              -               0%
       Staff Trainings/Dev. Conf. Registrations/Memberships - PA11 -                -                75                  75                25,907         25,832         0%
17. Other -                -                -                -               
     Start-Up Expenses-Child Care Council(org.# 2479) -                78,888           -                78,888         116,000       37,112         68%
     Start-Up Expenses-First Baptist (org.# 2479) -                -                -                -               5,500           5,500           0%
      Vehicle Operating/Maintenance & Repair -                -                -                -               3,600           3,600           0%
      Equipment Maintenance Repair & Rental -                -                -                -               3,000           3,000           0%
     Dept. of Health and Human Services-data Base (CORD) -                -                -                -               -              -               0%
     Other Operating Expenses (Facs Admin/Other admin) -                300                10,548           10,849         31,200         20,351         35%
     County Indirect Cost (A-87) -                    -                -                -               -                 -                 0%
h. OTHER (6h) -                79,799           10,916           90,714         207,007       116,293       44%
I.  TOTAL DIRECT CHARGES  (6a-6h) 8,191             162,732         204,619         375,542       1,129,181    753,639       33%
j.  INDIRECT COSTS  -                9,279             13,721           23,000         54,495         31,495         42%

k. TOTALS - ALL BUDGET CATEGORIES 8,191             172,011         218,340         398,542       1,183,676    785,134       34%

Non-Federal Match (In-Kind) -                -                -                -              295,919      295,919      0%

CONTRA COSTA COUNTY
COMMUNITY SERVICES BUREAU

2015  EARLY HEAD START - CC PARTNERSHIP
September 2015 Expenditures



A - 4

Authorized Users
C. Rand,  Bureau Dir

Month: September 2015 K. Mason, Div Mgr
K. Mason, Div Mgr

Credit Card:Visa/U.S. Bank C. Reich, Div Mgr
C. Johnson, AD
J. Rowley, AD
J. Rowley, AD
P. Arrington, AD
R. Radeva, PSA III
S. Kim, Interim Div Mgr

Fund Org Acct. code Stat. Date Card Account # Amount Program

1432 2102 09/22/15 xxxx8798 263.83                             HS Basic Grant
1462 2102 09/22/15 xxxx8798 263.83                             EHS Basis Grant
1527 2102 09/22/15 xxxx0746 126.69                             Bayo Vista Site Costs

654.35                             
1432 2477 09/22/15 xxxx2391 2,174.03                          HS Basic Grant
1432 2477 09/22/15 xxxx2391 (50.74)                              HS Basic Grant

2,123.29                          
1417 2490 09/22/15 xxxx1907 91.60                               Child Care Svs Program
1432 2490 09/22/15 xxxx8798 139.38                             HS Basic Grant
1462 2490 09/22/15 xxxx8798 139.39                             EHS Basis Grant
1432 2490 09/22/15 xxxx2391 385.78                             HS Basic Grant

756.15                             
1434 2467 09/22/15 xxxx0746 150.00                             Head Start T & TA
1432 2467 09/22/15 xxxx0746 150.00                             HS Basic Grant
1432 2467 09/22/15 xxxx2391 100.00                             HS Basic Grant

400.00                             

Total 3,933.79                   

Agency:  Community Services Bureau

COMMUNITY SERVICES BUREAU
SUMMARY CREDIT CARD EXPENDITURE

C:\DOCUME~1\DESTIN~1\LOCALS~1\Temp\BCL Technologies\easyPDF 7\@BCL@B4130AB4\@BCL@B4130AB4.xlsx



A - 4

xxxx8798

xxxx7843

xxxx3244

xxxx4959

xxxx0746

xxxx8855

xxxx2391

xxxx3838

xxxx1899

xxxx1907

Purpose/Description

Books, Periodicals 
Books, Periodicals 
Books, Periodicals 

Educational Supplies
Educational Supplies

Misc Services/Supplies
Misc Services/Supplies
Misc Services/Supplies
Misc Services/Supplies

Training & Registration
Training & Registration
Training & Registration

C:\DOCUME~1\DESTIN~1\LOCALS~1\Temp\BCL Technologies\easyPDF 7\@BCL@B4130AB4\@BCL@B4130AB4.xlsx



2015
Month covered September

Approved sites operated this month 15

Number of days meals served this month 21

Average daily participation 750                                  

Child Care Center Meals Served:
   Breakfast 12,759                             
   Lunch 15,751                              
   Supplements 12,488                             
Total Number of Meals Served 40,998                            

fldr/fn:2015 CAO Monthly Reports

FY 2015-2016

EMPLOYMENT & HUMAN SERVICES DEPARTMENT
COMMUNITY SERVICES BUREAU

CHILD NUTRITION FOOD SERVICES 
CHILD and ADULT CARE FOOD PROGRAM MEALS SERVED



CAO Monthly Report
CSBG and Weatherization Programs 
Year-to-Date Expenditures
As of September 30, 2015

1. 2015 LIHEAP WX
Contract # 15B-3005
Term: Jan. 1, 2015 - Jan. 31, 2016
Amount: WX $ 1,076,832

Total Contract 1,076,832$       
Expenditures (644,570)           
Balance 432,262$          

Expended 60%

2. 2015 LIHEAP ECIP/EHA 16
Contract # 15B-3005
Term: Jan. 1, 2015 - Jan. 31, 2016
Amount: EHA 16 $ 999,353

Total Contract 999,353$          
Expenditures (692,497)           
Balance 306,856$          

Expended 69%

3. 2015 LIWP (LOW INCOME WX)
Contract # 15K-6003
Term: Jan 1, 2015 - Jan 31, 2017
Amount:  $ 537,538

Total Contract 537,538$          
Expenditures (66,884)             
Balance 470,654$          

Expended 12%

4. 2015 COMMUNITY SERVICES BLOCK GRANT (CSBG)
Contract # 15F-2007
Term: Jan. 1, 2015 - December 31, 2015
Amount:  $ 797,709

Total Contract 797,709$          
Expenditures (520,617)           
Balance 277,092$          

Expended 65%

fldr/fn:CAO Monthly Reports/WX YTD Exp-CAO Mo Rprt 9-2015



           OCTOBER  2015 – COMMUNITY SERVICES BUREAU PRESCHOOL MENU                

             
 
 

 

ALL BREAKFAST & 

LUNCH SERVED WITH 

1% LOW-FAT MILK 

 
*Indicates vegetable included in main dish 

 
WATER IS OFFERED THROUGHOUT THE DAY        

1 
BREAKFAST 

FRESH STRAWBERRIES 
CREAM OF WHEAT 

LUNCH 

TOMATO & MACARONI BAKE WITH  

WHOLE GRAIN PASTA 

(ground beef & turkey, tomatoes, corn) 
FRESH ORANGE WEDGES 
 

PM SNACK 
HOMEMADE SWEET POTATO BREAD 
1% LOW-FAT MILK 

2                                            BREAKFAST 
FRESH BANANA 
CORNFLAKES CEREAL 
 

LUNCH - NUTRITION EXPERIENCE 

KANGAROO POCKET 

(sliced turkey, chopped romaine & diced tomatoes with ranch 
dressing) 
FRESH WATERMELON 
PITA POCKET BREAD 
 

PM SNACK - NUTRITION EXPERIENCE 
HUMMUS TORTILLA ROLL 
1% LOW-FAT MILK 

5                      
BREAKFAST 

FRESH APPLE 
RICE CHEX CEREAL 
 

LUNCH 

CHILI SANS CARNE (MEATLESS) 

COLE SLAW 

FRESH ORANGE 

HOMEMADE WHOLE WHEAT CORNBREAD 
 

PM SNACK 
FRESH KIWI 
1% LOW-FAT MILK 

6 
BREAKFAST 

FRESH BANANA 
CORNFLAKES CEREAL  
 

LUNCH 

*GROUND BEEF & SPANISH RICE   

(ground beef & turkey, brown rice ) 
MANGO CHUNKS 

PM SNACK 
MOZZARELLA STRING CHEESE 
MINI WHOLE GRAIN SALTINE CRACKERS 
 

7             BREAKFAST - NUTRITION EXPERIENCE 
PINEAPPLE CHUNKS 
WHOLE WHEAT  BAGEL & LOW-FAT CREAM CHEESE 
 

LUNCH 

BBQ CHICKEN DRUMSTICK 

ORANGUTAN SALAD 
(spinach, mandarin oranges, feta cheese, with 
sweet & sour dressing) 
FRESH STRAWBERRIES 
WHOLE WHEAT ROLL 

PM SNACK 
LETS GO FISHING MIX 
(crispix, gold fish crackers, cheese crackers, & 
pretzel sticks) 
1% LOW-FAT MILK 

8                                 
BREAKFAST 

FRESH PEAR 
OLD FASHION ROLLED OATS WITH RAISINS 
 

LUNCH NUTRITION EXPERIENCE 

PIZZA BURGER 

(ground beef & turkey) 
SHREDDED MOZZARELLA CHEESE 
RED BELL PEPPER STRIPS 
FRESH ORANGE WEDGES 
WHOLE GRAIN HAMBURGER BUN 
 

PM SNACK 
HOMEMADE PUMPKIN BREAD 
1% LOW-FAT MILK 

9 
BREAKFAST 

FRESH KIWI 
CORN CHEX CEREAL 
 

LUNCH - NUTRITION EXPERIENCE 

TURKEY SALAD SANDWICH 

 BABY CARROTS NO DRESSING 
 FRESH WATERMELON 
 WHOLE WHEAT BREAD 
 

PM SNACK - NUTRITION EXPERIENCE 
FRESH APPLE  
SUNBUTTER 

12 
BREAKFAST 

FRESH ORANGE 
KIX CEREAL 

LUNCH 

TOASTED CHEDDAR CHEESE SANDWICH 

LENTIL SOUP WITH POTATOES, ONIONS, 
CELERY, & CARROTS 
FRESH STRAWBERRIES 

 

PM SNACK 
ANIMAL CRACKERS 
1% LOW-FAT MILK 

 

13 
                                  BREAKFAST 
FRESH PEAR  
CORN CHEX CEREAL 

LUNCH 

SLICED TURKEY HAM 

SWEET POTATOES & APPLES 
FRESH KIWI 
WHOLE WHEAT DINNER ROLL 
                

PM SNACK 
PINEAPPLE CUBES 
COTTAGE CHEESE 

14                             
BREAKFAST 

FRESH BANANA 
CHEERIOS 

LUNCH 

BROWN RICE & BLACK BEAN CHEESE CASSEROLE 

LEAFY GREEN SALAD WITH VINAIGRETTA DRESSING 
FRESH ORANGE WEDGES 
 

PM SNACK - NUTRITION EXPERIENCE 

HOMEMADE PICO DE GALLO 
CORN TORTILLA CHIPS 
1% LOW-FAT MILK       

15                             BREAKFAST 
FRESH KIWI 
WHOLE WHEAT BLUEBERRY MUFFIN SQUARE 
 

LUNCH 

*SPAGHETTI CASSEROLE  

(ground beef & turkey)WITH  

WHOLE WHEAT SPAGHETTI 

FRESH CANTALOUPE SLICE 

 
PM SNACK - NUTRITION EXPERIENCE 

BUTTERFLIES 
(celery sticks, sunbutter & pretzels) 
1% LOW-FAT MILK 

16                                        BREAKFAST 
FRESH STRAWBERRIES 
RICE KRISPIES CEREAL 
 

LUNCH - NUTRITION EXPERIENCE 

*HAWAIIAN CHICKEN WRAP 

(diced chicken, broccoli, carrots, pineapple, & spinach) 
FRESH APPLE SLICES 
WHOLE WHEAT TORTILLA 
                                      

PM SNACK - NUTRITION EXPERIENCE 
DEVILED EGGS 
(hard boiled egg, mayo, mustard, & relish dressing) 
WHEAT CRACKERS 

19 
BREAKFAST 

FRESH APPLE 
RICE CHEX CEREAL 

LUNCH 

MAC & CHEESE WITH  

WHOLE WHEAT PASTA 

KOOL CABBAGE SLAW 
(cabbage, carrots & raisins) 
FRESH STRAWBERRIES 
 

PM SNACK 
GRAHAM CRACKERS 
1% LOW-FAT MILK 
   

20 
BREAKFAST 

FRESH PEAR 
CORNFLAKES CEREAL 
  
                              LUNCH 

*GARDEN VEGETABLE LO MEIN & CHICKEN 

(diced chicken, broccoli, carrots, green peas, & 
bell peppers with whole wheat spaghetti) 
FRESH WATERMELON 
 

PM SNACK - NUTRITION EXPERIENCE 
HONEY WHOLE WHEAT BREADSTICK 
PIZZA SAUCE FOR DIPPING 
1% LOW-FAT MILK 

21            BREAKFAST - NUTRITION EXPERIENCE 
FRESH KIWI 
WHOLE WHEAT ENGLISH MUFFIN & SUNBUTTER 
 

LUNCH - NUTRITION EXPERIENCE 

TACOS WITH SHREDDED CHEESE 

(ground beef & turkey) 
SHREDDED LETTUCE & DICED TOMATOES 
MANGO CHUNKS 
WHOLE CORN  TORTILLA 
 

PM SNACK 
SOUND BITE CRACKERS 
1% LOW-FAT MILK 

22 
BREAKFAST 

FRESH BANANA 
ROLLED OATS WITH RAISIN 

 
LUNCH - NUTRITION EXPERIENCE 

SLOPPY JOE  

(ground beef & turkey) 
MEXICALI CORN 
FRESH ORANGE WEDGES 
WHOLE WHEAT HAMBURGER BUN 
 

PM SNACK 
FRESH APPLE 
CHEDDAR CHEESE SLICE 

23                                       BREAKFAST 
FRESH STRAWBERRIES 
CORN CHEX CEREAL 
 

LUNCH - NUTRITION EXPERIENCE 

TURKEY ROLLER SANDWICH WITH SLICED TURKEY & 

LOW-FAT CREAM CHEESE 

FRESH GREEN LEAF LETTUCE 
RED BELL PEPPERS & GRATED CARROTS 
FRESH CANTALOUPE SLICE 
WHOLE WHEAT FLOUR TORTILLA 

 

PM SNACK 
CARROT & PINEAPPLE BREAD 
1% LOW-FAT MILK 

 26                          BREAKFAST 
FRESH ORANGE 
HEART TO HEART CEREAL 
 

LUNCH 

MEXICAN PIZZA 

(flour tortilla, tomato paste, mild salsa,  
refried beans, low-fat mozzarella cheese) 
JICAMA STICKS NO DRESSING 
FRESH APPLE 
 

PM SNACK - NUTRITION EXPERIENCE 
CUCMUBERS & CARROT STICKS 
RANCH DRESSING  
WHEATWORTH CRACKERS 

27 
BREAKFAST 

FRESH PEAR 
RICE KRISPIES CEREAL 

 
LUNCH 

*BEEF & TURKEY RICE CASSEROLE  

(onions, green peppers & celery) & 
BROWN RICE 
FRESH HONEYDEW MELON 
 

PM SNACK - NUTRITION EXPERIENCE 
WALKING BANANA SANDWICH 
FRESH BANANA  
SUNBUTTER 

28           BREAKFAST - NUTRITION EXPERIENCE 
FRESH APPLE 
WHOLE WHEAT PITA POCKET 
SCRAMBLED EGGS WITH CHEESE 
  

LUNCH 

SEASONED BLACKEYED PEAS WITH  

TURKEY HAM 

FRESH CANTALOUPE SLICE 
MUSTARD GREENS 
WHOLE WHEAT CORNBREAD SQUARE 
 

PM SNACK - NUTRITION EXPERIENCE 
HERBED COTTAGE CHEESE 
BROCCOLI FLORETS 

29                       
BREAKFAST 

FRESH BANANA 
CORNFLAKES CEREAL 

LUNCH 

CHICKEN CHILAQUILES WITH  

CORN TORTILLA CHIPS 

RED CABBAGE SALAD WITH VINAIGRETTE DRESSING 
FRESH KIWI 
 

PM SNACK - NUTRITION EXPERIENCE 
ANTS ON A LOG 
CELERY STICKS, SUNBUTTER & RAISINS 
1% LOW-FAT MILK 

30 
BREAKFAST 

CINNAMON APPLESAUCE  
OVEN BAKED WHOLE WHEAT PANCAKE 
   

LUNCH - NUTRITION EXPERIENCE 

TURKEY HAM SANDWICH 

MUSTARD & MAYO DRESSING 
GREEN LEAF LETTUCE & TOMATO SLICES 
FRESH ORANGE HALVE 
WHOLE WHEAT BREAD  

PM SNACK 
COWBOY QUINOA SALAD 
1% LOW-FAT MILK 

 



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE the delegation of authority to the County Treasurer for investing and reinvesting County funds and the

funds of other depositors in the County treasury, or to sell or exchange securities so purchased, pursuant to section

53607 of the State Government Code. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

The County Treasurer manages and invests the funds of all County agencies, 21 Special Districts, 19 School Districts

and one Community College District. Centralizing this function creates a dedicated staff of investment professionals

and creates greater efficiency, economies of scale and greater investment power. 

BACKGROUND: 

State law provides that the Board of Supervisors may delegate to the County Treasurer the authority "to invest or to

reinvest funds of a local agency, or to sell or exchange securities so purchased" for a one year period. It is

recommended that this delegation be renewed through the calendar year 2016. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

The County Treasurer would be unable to exercise his full authority in calendar year 2016, thereby negatively

impacting County funds and the funds of other depositors in the County treasury. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Brice Bins, 925

957-2848

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of
Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

C. 92

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Russell Watts, Treasurer-Tax Collector

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Delegation of Investment Authority to the County Treasurer for Calendar Year 2016



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE $12,600 in additional allocations of Keller Canyon Mitigation funds to the following projects, as

recommended by the Keller Canyon Mitigation Fund Review Committee:

1) $8,600 for the Bay Point Crossing Guard Program to pay for costs associated with two additional crossing

guards near Bel Air Elementary School;

2) $1,200 for the Bay Point Annual Holiday Dinner and Toy Give Away to pay for costs associated with

providing holiday photos to community members; and

3) $2,800 for the District V Technology Upgrades to pay for costs associated with a printer and supplies.

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Recommended funding will come from unallocated FY 2015/16 Keller Canyon Mitigation Funds and, therefore, have

no impact on the County's General Fund. 

BACKGROUND: 

On August 18, 2015, the Board of Supervisors approved the FY 2015/16 Keller Canyon Mitigation Fund (KCMF)

Allocation Plan (Plan). Eighty-eight projects/programs/initiatives were granted funding totaling $1,394,702. A

balance of $73,884 in KCMF funds remain unallocated by the Board and kept in reserve to address any requests for

additional funding or to address emerging issues. On November 13, 2015, the KCMF Review Committee

(Committee) convened to consider allocating additional funding for the three programs described below. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Kristen Lackey (925)

674-7888

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the
Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

C. 93

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: John Kopchik, Director, Conservation & Development Department

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Additional Allocations of FY 2015/16 Keller Canyon Mitigation Funds



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

The Committee recommended allocating a total of $12,600 out of the unallocated funds.

1) The Bay Point Crossing Guard Program (#82) is funded under the District V Initiatives portion of the Keller

Canyon Mitigation Fund. The program provides state-approved crossing guards for ten intersections in the

community of Bay Point. Recently, members of the Bay Point community expressed concerns regarding increased

traffic at Bailey Road resulting in decreased safety for Bel Air Elementary School students crossing the street. The

hiring of two new crossing guards to cover these intersections at Bailey Road will require a budget increase of

$8,600. 

2) The Contra Costa County Sheriff's Office Bay Point Annual Holiday Dinner and Toy Give Away (#76) is funded

under the County Department portion of the Keller Canyon Mitigation Fund. The event promotes positive

community relations between the Bay Point residents and the Office of the Sheriff. Dinner and toys are provided free

of charge. Program staff requested an additional allocation of $1,200 to cover the cost of providing the attendees with

holiday photos.

3) District V Technology Upgrades (#86) is funded under the District V Initiatives portion of the Keller Canyon

Mitigation Fund. The existing allocation covered the purchase of computer and presentation equipment used for the

multiple programs and events conducted in East County by District V staff. The additional allocation of $2,800 will

cover the purchase of a printer and related supplies for the District V office.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

Not approving the recommended allocation would result in less crossing guards near Bay Point schools, no holiday

photos at the Annual Bay Point Holiday Dinner and Toy Give Away, and no additional printer in the District V office.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

The allocation of KCMF funding for Bay Point Crossing Guards and the Bay Point Annual Holiday Dinner and Toy

Give Away supports the following outcome in the Children's Report Card: Families are safe, stable, and nurturing.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE the allocation of up to $1,000,000 of fiscal year 2014/15 and 2015/16 Housing Opportunities for Persons

with HIV/AIDS (HOPWA) funds for the Virginia Lane project in Concord. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

No general fund impact. One hundred percent federal funds. HOPWA funds are provided to the County on a formula

basis through the City of Oakland. The County currently has $950,000 in HOPWA funds available. The applicant has

requested $1,000,000, which leaves a shortfall of $50,000. The requested authorization is made in an amount up to

$1,000,000 in the event that an additional $50,000 in HOPWA funds becomes available before the Board is asked to

approve the project’s loan documents in 2016.

CATALOG OF FEDERAL ASSISTANCE (CFDA NUMBER):

Housing Opportunities for Persons with HIV/AIDS (HOPWA) Program - 14.241. 

BACKGROUND: 

The National Affordable Housing Act (Public Law 101-625, approved November 28, 1990) authorizes the Housing

Opportunities for Persons with HIV/AIDS (HOPWA) to provide states and localities with resources to devise

long-term comprehensive strategies for meeting the housing needs of persons with HIV/AIDS and related diseases.

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Kristin Sherk

925-674-7887

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

C. 94

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: John Kopchik, Director, Conservation & Development Department

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Allocation of Fiscal Year FY 2014/15 and 2015/16 Housing Opportunities for Persons with HIV/AIDS (HOPWA)



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

The City of Oakland (City) is the HOPWA grant recipient for Alameda and Contra Costa Counties. The City

allocates HOPWA funds between the counties based on the number of HIV/AIDS cases. These funds may be used for

site acquisition, rehabilitation and new construction of affordable housing, supportive services, housing information

services, rent and utility subsidies, and certain other housing related activities for low-income persons living with

HIV/AIDS in both incorporated and unincorporated areas of the County.

The Contra Costa Consortium (County staff and staff from the Cities of Antioch, Concord, Pittsburg, Richmond and

Walnut Creek) makes funding recommendations to the Board of Supervisors. The Consortium met on November 12,

2015 to consider staff recommendations for the Virginia Lane Apartments project. The Consortium recommends that

the Board of Supervisors allocate up to $1,000,000 in HOPWA funds to Eden Housing, Inc., to assist in the

acquisition and rehabilitation of Virginia Lane apartments. VL L.P., whose general partner is an affiliate of Eden

Housing Development, will purchase the property from Virginia Lane L.P, whose general partner is an affiliate of

Eden Housing, Inc.

The development consists of two apartment complexes: Maplewood Apartments at 1121 Virginia Lane with 53

apartments; and Golden Glen Apartments at 1140 Virginia Lane with 38 apartments. 1121 Virginia Lane was built in

1970 and 1140 Virginia Lane was built in 1964. With approximately 50 years' worth of service, the development is

due for a substantial rehabilitation that will comprehensively restore the integrity of the building envelope, address

potential seismic concerns, update to current building codes, enhance the efficiency and operation of the major

systems, recapitalize reserves, and improve the residents' quality of life.

The County loaned Virginia Lane L.P. $290,000 in HOME Investment Partnerships Act (HOME) funds in 1999 to

assist with the acquisition and rehabilitation of Virginia Lane Apartments. Construction was completed in 2000. The

HOME investment per unit was less than $15,000 and, therefore, the required HOME program term of affordability

was five years, expiring in 2005. After the initial five year term expired, the 20 HOME units converted to a County

requirement for an additional fifty years with an extended term of affordability through 2055.

The current regulatory agreement designates 20 units as County-assisted: eight units at 30 percent of the area median

income (AMI), four units at 40 percent AMI, and eight units at 50 percent AMI. With the HOPWA funds, the

regulatory agreement will be amended and restated to add ten units at 30 percent AMI with a mix of one and two

bedroom units. The existing County-assisted and new HOPWA units will be required to remain affordable to the

target population for up to 55 years. The ten HOPWA units must be reserved for HOPWA eligible tenants for at least

ten years and may thereafter be available to the general population based on income eligibility. The new 55 year term

of affordability adds 15 years to the existing term of affordability.

The City of Concord is supportive of the project. Preservation of Virginia Lane is consistent with the City's Housing

Element. Eden has applied to the City of Concord for $1.2 million to assist in the rehabilitation. It is expected that the

funds will be committed by December 2015. If the City does not approve these funds, Eden will have to significantly

reduce the proposed scope of work.

Legal documents for the project will include an amended and restated loan agreement, a promissory note, an amended

and restated deed of trust and security agreement, and an amended and restated regulatory agreement for the existing

HOME funds and this allocation of HOPWA funds. These documents will be submitted for Board of Supervisors

approval at a later date following completion of the federally required review under the National Environmental

Policy Act.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If the Board does not approve the allocation of HOPWA funds for the Virginia Lane project, Eden will have to

eliminate significant elements from the scope of work.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Preserving and maintaining affordable housing is consistent with outcome #3 of the Children's Report Card: Families

are Economically Self Sufficient.





RECOMMENDATION(S): 

ADOPT Resolution No. 2015/455 conditionally providing for the issuance of revenue bonds to finance the following

Multifamily Residential Rental Housing Developments (the "Developments"), and approving related actions.

1) Riviera Family Apartments located at 1515 and 1738 Riviera Avenue in the City of Walnut Creek, in an

amount not to exceed $25,000,000;

2) Carena Scattered Site Renovation, including Riley Court located at 2050, 2051 and 2061 Riley Court in the

City of Concord, Elaine Null Apartments located at 112 Alves Lane and 300-310 Water Street in Bay Point,

and Camara Circle located at 2501, 2513, 2525, 2530, 2531, 2536, 2537, 2549, 2554, 2555 and 2566 Camara

Circle in the City of Concord, in an amount not to exceed $20,000,000;

3) St. Paul's Commons located at 1860 Trinity Avenue in the City of Walnut Creek, in an amount not to exceed

$15,000,000;

4) Tabora Gardens located at the southeast corner of James Donlon Boulevard and Tabora Drive in the City of

Antioch, in an amount not to exceed $35,000,000; and

5) Virginia Lane Apartments located at 1121 and 1140 Virginia Lane in the City Concord, in an amount not to

exceed $25,000,000.

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Kristen Lackey (925)

674-7888

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the
Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

C. 95

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: John Kopchik, Director, Conservation & Development Department

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Reimbursement Resolution for Multifamily Residential Rental Housing Developments



FISCAL IMPACT:

None. In the event that the bonds are issued, the County is reimbursed for costs incurred in the issuance process.

Annual expenses for monitoring of Regulatory Agreement provisions ensuring certain units in the Developments

will be rented to low income households are accommodated in the bond issue. The bonds will be solely secured by

and payable from revenues (e.g. Development rents, reserves, etc.) pledged under the bond documents. No

County General Funds are pledged to secure the bonds.

BACKGROUND:

Contra Costa County, through the Conservation and Development Department, operates a multifamily mortgage

revenue bond financing program. The purpose of the program is to increase or preserve the supply of affordable

rental housing available to low and very low income households. The County program may be undertaken within

the unincorporated County and within the cities located in the County that have agreed to let the County operate

the program in their jurisdiction.

The Sponsors listed in Exhibit A of the attached resolution requested to participate in the County's multifamily

mortgage revenue bond financing program. Each of the Sponsors propose to form a new limited partnership with

a to-be-named tax credit investor as a limited partner to develop the facility. The proposed developments meet the

eligibility criteria for bond financing and the County policy for this program. Additional information regarding

each project is included in Exhibit A.

A requirement of federal tax law is that the prospective financing be subject to a conditional statement of intent to

issue bonds to reimburse expenses incurred prior to the date the bonds are issued, i.e. a reimbursement resolution

must be adopted by the Board of Supervisors. Also, the California Debt Limit Allocation Committee, that allocates

tax-exempt bond authority to the bond issue, requires that a reimbursement resolution be adopted before an

application may be made for such an allocation. The adoption of a reimbursement resolution will not obligate the

County or the owner without future discretionary actions, but will indicate the intent of the County to issue the

bonds if all conditions in the reimbursement resolution have been satisfied.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

Without the reimbursement resolution, the Sponsors will not be able to commence with the process of applying to

the California Debt Limit Allocation Committee for multifamily housing revenue bond authority through the

County.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Riviera Apartments, Carena Scattered Site Renovations, St. Paul's Commons, and Virginia Lane provide

affordable rental housing appropriate for families. This supports outcome #3: Families are Economically Self

Sufficient.

ATTACHMENTS

Resolution No. 2015/455 

Exhibit A Inducement Resolution 



THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF CONTRA COSTA COUNTY, CALIFORNIA 

and for Special Districts, Agencies and Authorities Governed by the Board

Adopted this Resolution on 12/08/2015 by the following vote:

AYE:

NO:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

RECUSE:

Resolution No. 2015/455

In the Matter of Setting Forth the County’s Official Intent to Issue Revenue Bonds to Finance Various Multifamily

Residential Rental Housing Developments and Approving Related Actions

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of the County of Contra Costa (the “County”) has determined that there is a shortage of

safe and sanitary housing within the County, and that it is in the best interest of the residents of the County and in furtherance of

the health, safety and welfare of the public for the County to assist in the financing of multifamily rental housing developments;

and  

WHEREAS, pursuant to Division 31 of the Health and Safety Code of the State of California, and particularly Chapter 7 of Part

5 thereof (the “Act”), the County is empowered to issue and sell revenue bonds or otherwise incur debt for the purpose of

providing funds to finance the acquisition, construction and/or rehabilitation of multifamily rental housing, including units for

lower income households and very low income households; and

WHEREAS, the entities identified in Exhibit A hereto (the “Sponsors”) have requested that the County consider the issuance and

sale of tax-exempt revenue bonds or otherwise borrow funds (referred to in this Resolution as the “Bonds”) pursuant to the Act

for the purpose of lending the proceeds thereof to the Sponsors and/or related entities (collectively, the “Borrowers”), to finance

the acquisition and rehabilitation or construction by the Borrowers of certain multifamily rental housing facilities identified in

Exhibit A (collectively, the “Developments”), with the Developments to be owned by the respective Borrowers; and

WHEREAS, the Sponsors also have requested an expression of the Board of Supervisors willingness to authorize the issuance of

the Bonds at a future date after the documentation relating to the respective proposed financing has been prepared and completed,

and the County’s requirements for the issuance of the related Bonds have been satisfied; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors now wishes to declare its intention to authorize the issuance of the Bonds to finance the

several Developments in the respective principal amounts set forth in Exhibit A, provided certain conditions are met as described

in this Resolution.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Supervisors of the County of Contra Costa as follows:

Section 1. The Board of Supervisors hereby determines that it is necessary and desirable to provide financing for the

Developments pursuant to the Act by the issuance of the Bonds in the respective principal amount for each Development as set

forth in Exhibit A. The issuance of the Bonds for a Development shall be subject to the following conditions: (i) the County by

resolution of the Board of Supervisors shall have first agreed to acceptable terms and conditions for the Bonds for such

Development (and for the sale and delivery of the Bonds), and for acceptable terms of an indenture and all other agreements with

respect to the Bonds for such Development; (ii) all requisite governmental approvals for the respective Bonds shall have first been

obtained; (iii) the Bonds for such Development shall be payable from revenues received with respect to a loan to the related

Borrower made with the proceeds of the Bonds, and neither the full faith nor the credit of the County shall be pledged to the

payment of the principal of or interest on any of the Bonds; (iv) any occupancy and other requirements of the Internal Revenue

Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code “) are satisfied or otherwise provided for with respect to Bonds, the interest on which is

intended to be excluded from gross income for federal tax purposes; (v) any occupancy and other requirements of the Act with



intended to be excluded from gross income for federal tax purposes; (v) any occupancy and other requirements of the Act with

regard to the respective Development are satisfied or otherwise provided for; and (vi) any occupancy and other requirements of

the County applicable to the respective Development are satisfied or otherwise provided for.

Section 2. The Chair of the Board of Supervisors, the Vice-Chair of the Board of Supervisors, County Administrator, the County

Director of Conservation and Development, the County Assistant Deputy Director of Conservation and Development, the

County’s Community Development Bond Program Manager, County Counsel and the other officers of the County are hereby

authorized and directed to take whatever further action consistent with this Resolution may be deemed reasonable and desirable,

including participating in the preparation of any resolution, indenture, bond purchase agreement, official statement and/or other

documents or agreements necessary or appropriate to effect the Bond financing for each of the Developments, and any actions

necessary to obtain an allocation of the State of California’s private activity bond volume cap for the Bonds for each of the

Developments under Section 146 of the Code and Section 8869.85 of the Government Code, including obtaining a deposit from

the respective Borrowers or from or on behalf of the related Sponsor and submitting an application for such volume cap to the

California Debt Limit Allocation Committee for each series of the Bonds for each Development, all to the extent required for the

issuance of the Bonds for each of the Developments.

Section 3. It is the purpose and intent of the County that this Resolution constitute a declaration of official intent to issue Bonds

for each of the Developments for purposes of Sections 103 and 141 to 150 of the Code. The County reasonably expects that

certain costs of each Development will be reimbursed with proceeds of the Bonds issued for the respective Development for

certain expenditures made prior to the issuance of such Bonds.

Section 4. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage and adoption.

Contact:  Kristen Lackey (925) 674-7888

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:



A-1 

EXHIBIT A 
 

 

Development Name Development Location 

No. of 

Rental 

Units 

New 

Construction or 

Acquisition/ 

Rehabilitation 

Sponsor  

(may also be 

the Borrower) 

Borrower  

(legal name of 

initial owner) 

Bond 

Amount 

Riviera Family 

Apartments 

1515 and 1738 Riviera 

Avenue, Walnut Creek 

(APN Nos. 174-150-076, 174-

140-019, 174-140-025) 

 

58 New Resources for 

Community 

Development 

Riviera Family 

Apartments, LP 

$25,000,000 

Carena Scattered Site 

Renovation(1) 

2050, 2051 and 2061 Riley 

Court, Concord 

(APN Nos.: 128-200-062-7 

and 128-200-063-5);  

 

112 Alves Lane and 300-310 

Water Street, Bay Point – 

Unincorporated area of the 

County 

(APN No.: 97-041-9-8); and  

 

2501, 2513, 2525, 2530, 2531, 

2536, 2537, 2549, 2554, 2555 

and 2566 Camara Circle, 

Concord  

(APN Nos.: 126-202-42-1, 

126-202-43-9, 126-202-77-7, 

126-202-79-3, 126-202-79-3, 

126-202-77-7, 126-202-78-5, 

126-202-34-8, 126-202-78-5 

and 126-202-32-2) 

 

114 Acquisition/ 

Rehabilitation 

Resources for 

Community 

Development 

(RCD) 

a California 

limited 

partnership to be 

formed by RCD 

$20,000,000 

St. Paul’s Commons 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tabora Gardens 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Virginia Lane 

Apartments 

1860 Trinity Avenue, 

Walnut Creek 

(APN No. 178-091-010-3) 

 

 

 

 

 

Southeast Corner of James 

Donlon Boulevard and 

Tabora Drive, Antioch 

(APN No.: 1072-011-062) 

 

 

 

1121 and 1140 Virginia 

Lane, Concord 

(APN Nos.: 128-210-051-8 

and 128-290-066-9) 

45 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

85 

 

 

 

 

 

 

91 

New  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

New 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Acquisition/ 

Rehabilitation 

Resources for 

Community 

Development 

(RCD) 

 

 

 

 

Satellite 

Affordable 

Housing 

Associates 

(SAHA) 

 

 

 

Eden Housing 

(Eden) 

St. Paul’s 

Commons, 

L.P., or another 

entity to be 

formed by 

RCD 

 

 

Tabora 

Gardens, L.P., 

or another 

entity to be 

formed by 

SAHA 

 

VL, L.P. 

$15,000,000 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

$35,000,000 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

$25,000,000 

 

 

      

    
(1) Including Riley Court, Elaine Null Apartments and Camara Circle. 



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director, or his designee, to execute, on behalf of the County, Unpaid

Student Training Agreement #26-629-1 with Regents of the University of California on behalf of its University of

California, San Francisco Benioff Children’s Hospital Oakland , an educational institution, to provide supervised

field instruction at Contra Costa Regional Medical Center and Contra Costa Health Centers for medical residency

students, from December 1, 2015 through December 31, 2020.

FISCAL IMPACT: 

None 

BACKGROUND: 

The purpose of this agreement is to provide University of California, San Francisco Benioff Children’s Hospital

Oakland medical residency students with the opportunity to integrate academic knowledge with applied skills at

progressively higher levels of performance 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Anna Roth,

370-5101

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of
Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: D Morgan,   N Rios   

C. 96

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Unpaid Student Training Agreement #26-629-1 with Regents of the University of California on behalf of its Univ of

CA, SF Benioff Children's 



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

and responsibility. Supervised fieldwork experience for students is considered to be an integral part of both

educational and professional preparation. The Health Services Department can provide the requisite field education,

while at the same time, benefitting from the students’ services to patients.

Under Unpaid Student Training Agreement #26-629-1, Regents of the University of California on behalf of its

University of California, San Francisco Benioff Children’s Hospital Oakland students will receive supervised

fieldwork instruction experience, at Contra Costa Regional Medical Center and Contra Costa Health Centers through

December 31, 2020.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this contract is not approved, the students will not receive supervised fieldwork instruction experience at Contra

Costa Regional Medical Center and Contra Costa Health Centers.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not Applicable



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director, or his designee, to execute, on behalf of the County, Unpaid

Student Training Agreement #26-387 with Regents of the University of California on behalf of its University of

California, San Diego Extension - Healthcare , an educational institution, to provide supervised field instruction at

Contra Costa Regional Medical Center and Contra Costa Health Centers for lactation consultant students, from

October 1, 2015 through September 30, 2016.

FISCAL IMPACT: 

None 

BACKGROUND: 

The purpose of this agreement is to provide Regents of the University of California on behalf of its University of

California, San Diego Extension - Healthcare lactation consultant students with the opportunity to integrate academic

knowledge with applied skills at progressively higher levels of performance and responsibility. Supervised fieldwork

experience for students 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Anna Roth,

370-5101

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of
Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: D Morgan,   N Rios   

C. 97

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Unpaid Student Training Agreement #26-387 with Regents of the University of California on behalf of its University

of California, San Diego Extension 



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

is considered to be an integral part of both educational and professional preparation. The Health Services Department

can provide the requisite field education, while at the same time, benefitting from the students’ services to patients.

Under Unpaid Student Training Agreement #26-387, Regents of the University of California on behalf of its

University of California, San Diego Extension - Healthcare students will receive supervised fieldwork instruction

experience, at Contra Costa Regional Medical Center and Contra Costa Health Centers through September 30, 2016.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this contract is not approved, the students will not receive supervised fieldwork instruction experience at Contra

Costa Regional Medical Center and Contra Costa Health Centers.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not Applicable



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director, or his designee, to execute, on behalf of the County, Unpaid

Student Training Agreement #26-288-4 with Western University of Health Sciences, dba Western University of

Health Sciences, College of Osteopathic Medicine of the Pacific, an educational institution, to provide supervised

field instruction at Contra Costa Regional Medical Center and Contra Costa Health Centers for physical therapy

students, from December 1, 2015 through December 31, 2020. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

None 

BACKGROUND: 

The purpose of this agreement is to provide Western University of Health Sciences, dba Western University of Health

Sciences, College of Osteopathic Medicine of the Pacific physical therapy students with the opportunity to integrate

academic knowledge with applied skills at progressively higher levels of performance and responsibility. Supervised

fieldwork experience for students is considered to be an integral part of both educational and professional

preparation. The Health Services Department can provide the requisite field education, while at the same time, 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Anna Roth,

370-5101

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of
Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: D Morgan,   N Rios   

C. 98

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Unpaid Student Training Agreement #26-288-4 with Western University of Health Sciences, dba Western University

of Health Sciences, College of Osteopa



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

benefitting from the students’ services to patients.

Under Unpaid Student Training Agreement #26-288-4, Western University of Health Sciences, dba Western

University of Health Sciences, College of Osteopathic Medicine of the Pacific students will receive supervised

fieldwork instruction experience, at Contra Costa Regional Medical Center and Contra Costa Health Centers through

December 31, 2020.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this contract is not approved, the students will not receive supervised fieldwork instruction experience at Contra

Costa Regional Medical Center and Contra Costa Health Centers.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not Applicable



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

ACCEPT and APPROVE the Workforce Development Board Bylaws revision as recommended by the Employment

and Human Services Department Director. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Not applicable. 

BACKGROUND: 

The Workforce Development Board (WDB) is a 41-member business-led body whose members are appointed by the

Contra Costa County Board of Supervisors to shape and strengthen local and regional workforce development

efforts. The WDB promotes a workforce development system to meet the needs of businesses, job seekers, and

workers to support a strong and vibrant economy in Contra Costa County.

The requested approval of the WDB bylaws revision is to increase the Board Chair term from a two (2) year term to a

three (3) year term which will maintain Board consistency and Board action. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

The Workforce Development Board chair would serve a two year term instead of a three year term as is requested by

the Board to maintain Board consistency. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Elaine Burres,

313-1717

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of
Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

C. 99

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Kathy Gallagher, Employment & Human Services Director

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Workforce Development Board Bylaws Revision



CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not applicable.

ATTACHMENTS

WDB Redline Bylaws Revision 

WDB Bylaws Clean Copy 



Workforce Development Board Of Contra Costa County 
Organization Bylaws  

 

 
WDB Bylaws –Adopted Month, Day, 2015   Page 1 of 7 

A2a
 
Ea 

  
 
ARTICLE I - NAME 
  
The name of this organization shall be the Workforce Development Board (WDB) of Contra Costa County.  
 
ARTICLE II - SCOPE AND RESPONSIBILITIES  
  
As set forth in the Workforce Investment Act of 1998 and subsequent actions by the Contra Costa County Board 
of Supervisors, the responsibilities of the WDB are:  
  

A. Develop and submit a local workforce investment plan to the Governor, in partnership with the County 
Board of Supervisors, for the Contra Costa County Local Workforce Investment Area (LWIA), whose 
boundaries include the entirety of Contra Costa County, exclusive of the City of Richmond.  

 
B. With the agreement of the Contra Costa County Board of Supervisors, designate one-stop 

operator(s) and terminate the eligibility of such operator(s) for cause; identify eligible provider(s) of 
youth activities in the Contra Costa County LWIA by awarding grants or contracts on a competitive 
basis, based on recommendations of the Youth Council; identify eligible providers of training services 
for adults and dislocated workers; and identify eligible providers of intensive services by awarding 
contracts which may be on a competitive basis if the one-stop operator does not provide such 
intensive services in the LWIA.  

 
C. Develop a budget for purposes of carrying out the duties of the WDB subject to the approval of the 

Contra Costa County Board of Supervisors.  The WDB may solicit and accept grants and donations 
from sources other than federal funds.  

 
D. In partnership with the Contra Costa County Board of Supervisors, conduct oversight with respect to 

local programs of youth activities and local employment and training activities for employers, adults, 
and youth at the one-stop centers in the LWIA.  

 
E. Negotiate and reach agreement on Workforce Investment Act local performance measures with the 

Contra Costa County Board of Supervisors and the Governor, and certify comprehensive One Stop 
Center(s).   

 
F. Assist the Governor in the development of a statewide employment statistics system (e.g., labor 

market information system pursuant to the Wagner-Peyser Act).  
 

G. Coordinate workforce development activities carried out in the LWIA with economic development 
strategies and develop other employer linkages.  

 
H. Promote the active participation of the private sector in the local workforce investment system.  

  
ARTICLE III - MEMBERSHIP  
  

A. Members of the WDB shall be appointed by the Contra Costa County Board of Supervisors in 
accordance with federal and state law, and as further described below in Article II, Paragraphs B, C, 
and D.  

 



Workforce Development Board Of Contra Costa County 
Organization Bylaws  

 

 
WDB Bylaws –Adopted Month, Day, 2015   Page 2 of 7 

A2a
 
Ea 

B. Seat terms shall be staggered and of four years’ duration. The term of each seat will commence on 
July 1st and terminate on June 30th four calendar years later. 

 
C. The WDB will be comprised of at least 50% plus one of business members. The majority of these 

members shall 1) be owners of businesses, chief executives or operating officers of businesses, and 
other business executives or employers with optimum policy-making or hiring authority, and 2) 
represent businesses with employment opportunities that reflect the employment opportunities of the 
local area.  WDB membership shall include small businesses and minority-owned and women-owned 
businesses. 

 
D. The non-business membership shall include members who are representative of categories set forth in 

Workforce Investment Act and related federal, state or local law.  Representatives shall be 
individuals with optimum policymaking authority within the organizations, agencies, or entities they 
represent.   

 
E. Members of the WDB shall either reside in or be representatives of businesses, organizations or 

agencies located within the LWIA.    
 

F. The WDB may recommend to the Contra Costa County Board of Supervisors changes to the size and 
composition of its membership, provided that two-thirds of its members have voted to recommend the 
change. Recommended changes to size and composition of the WDB membership must be approved 
by the Contra Costa County Board of Supervisors. 

 
G. The members of the WDB shall be reimbursed for mileage for their attendance at meetings in 

accordance with Contra Costa County travel reimbursement policies, if not otherwise reimbursed by 
their employer or by another source.  A member shall make a request for reimbursement to the WDB 
Executive Director.  

 
H. Members attending pre-arranged outside special functions on behalf of the WDB shall be reimbursed 

for expenses in accordance with Contra Costa County travel reimbursement policies, if not otherwise 
reimbursed by virtue of their job or by another source.  

 
ARTICLE IV - STANDARD OF CONDUCT 
  
Members of the Workforce Development Board will:  
  

A. Avoid situations which give rise to a suggestion that any decision was influenced by prejudice, bias, 
special interest, or personal gain by recusing themselves from the discussion and action taken.  

  
B. Exercise due diligence to avoid situations which may give rise to an assertion that favorable 

treatment is being granted to friends and associates.  
 

C. Disclose potential financial conflict of interest by filing Form 700 and all other necessary and 
required documents  

  
D. Not solicit or accept money or any other consideration from any person for the performance of an act 

reimbursed in whole or part with Workforce Investment Act funds.  
 

E. Not participate nor vote on contracts or grants relating to services provided by that member or the 



Workforce Development Board Of Contra Costa County 
Organization Bylaws  

 

 
WDB Bylaws –Adopted Month, Day, 2015   Page 3 of 7 

A2a
 
Ea 

entity he or she represents, if the member or the entity financially benefits from the decision.  
 

F. Abide by all conflict of interest codes and attend requisite training.  
 
ARTICLE V - TERMINATIONS  
  
Any member may be terminated from membership on the WDB by one of the following actions:  
  

A. Resignation.  
 

B. Failure to attend three consecutive regularly scheduled full WDB and/or committee meetings, 
excessive excused absences from regularly scheduled WDB and/or committee meetings, or failure to 
resign when he/she ceases to be a representative of the group from which he/she was selected.  Said 
conduct shall automatically be reviewed by the WDB Executive Committee, which in turn shall present 
a recommendation to the WDB. A majority vote of the WDB membership is needed to affirm the 
recommendation.  

 
C. For conduct, activities, or interest detrimental to the purpose of the WDB. Said conduct is subject to 

review by the Executive Committee, which in turn shall present a recommendation to the WDB. An 
affirmative vote of fifty percent (50%) rounded-up, plus one (1) of the full membership is needed to 
ratify the recommendation.  

 
ARTICLE VI - OFFICERS AND DUTIES  
  

A. The number of officers shall be determined by the WDB.  At a minimum, there shall be a Chairperson 
and Vice-Chairperson.  Any two officer positions, except those of the Chairperson and Vice-
Chairperson, may be held by the same person. Whenever possible, the outgoing Chair will continue 
to serve as an active board member as the Past Chair for at least one year. 

  
B. Officers’ terms will commence on July 1 and end on June 30 of the following calendar year. 

 
C. The Chairperson shall preside at all WDB meetings, represent the WDB whenever the occasion 

demands, appoint members to committees, and call special meetings at any time necessary.  
 

D. The Vice-Chairperson(s) shall assist the Chairperson and assume all the obligations and authority of 
the Chairperson in his/her absence, and shall chair the Executive Committee. In the event that the 
Vice-Chairperson(s) are not available, the Past Chair shall serve in this capacity. 

  
E. The Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson(s) of the WDB will be selected from among members of the 

WDB who are representative of the business sector.  In the event that there is not at least one WDB 
member currently sitting as Vice Chairperson, the Chair shall appoint a Vice Chairperson on a 
quarterly rotating basis.  In making such appointments, the Chair will give preference to eligible 
Committee Co-Chairs.  

  
F. A WDB member may serve as Chairperson for a period of no longer than three (3) years and as a 

Vice-Chairperson for no longer than three (3) years. 
 

G. Any officer may be removed from office by the affirmative vote of fifty percent (50%) rounded-up, 
plus one (1) of the full membership for conduct, activities or interest detrimental to the interest of the 



Workforce Development Board Of Contra Costa County 
Organization Bylaws  

 

 
WDB Bylaws –Adopted Month, Day, 2015   Page 4 of 7 

A2a
 
Ea 

WDB, in accordance with Article V, section C.  
 
ARTICLE VII - ELECTIONS  
  

A. A Nominating Committee shall be convened each fiscal year to designate a new slate of officers for 
the following fiscal year.  The Nominating Committee shall be chaired by the Immediate Past 
Chairperson who shall appoint at least two (2) other Board members, a majority of whom shall 
represent the business community.  In the event the position of Immediate Past Chairperson is vacant, 
the Chairperson shall appoint the Chair of the Nominating Committee.  

  
B. The period for officer nominations shall commence upon the establishment of the Nominating 

Committee and will close 30 days prior to the final regularly scheduled full board meeting of the 
fiscal year. 

 
C. A report from the Nominating Committee on selection of officers shall be provided to the members in 

advance of officer elections and made available to the public.  
  

D. An election of officers shall be held no later than the final regularly scheduled full WDB meeting of 
the fiscal year.  Officers shall be elected by a majority vote of the members present.  Terms of office 
shall begin at the beginning of each fiscal year.  

 
ARTICLE VIII - VACANCIES 
  

A. The WDB or its Executive Committee shall review scheduled and unscheduled membership vacancies 
as they occur and assess associated needs with appointing a replacement.  The WDB and Executive 
Committee shall consider applicable federal and state membership guidelines in formulating a 
recommendation for review.  A majority vote of members present at a WDB or WDB Executive 
Committee meeting is needed to affirm the recommendation.  

 
B. The WDB Chairperson shall immediately report to the Contra Costa County Board of Supervisors any 

unscheduled vacancy. The WDB may recommend a replacement for each unscheduled vacancy to the 
Board of Supervisors no sooner than ten working days after the Clerk of the Board posts the special 
notice announcing the unscheduled vacancy. 

 
C. A vacancy in any officer position may be filled by the WDB for the unexpired term of the position by 

a majority vote of the members attending a called meeting of the full board or the Executive 
Committee.   

 
D. Nominations for appointment to the WDB shall be made in accordance with the Workforce Investment 

Act.  Nominees will be presented by the WDB to the appropriate committee of the Contra Costa 
County Board of Supervisors’ for review and advancement to the Board of Supervisors for final 
appointment to the WDB.  

 
ARTICLE IX – QUORUM REQUIREMENTS  
  

A. Fifty percent (50%) rounded-up of the authorized number of seats will constitute a quorum of the full 
WDB or a WDB committee. In the absence of 50 percent rounded-up in attendance, the meeting shall 
be cancelled no later than thirty (30) minutes after scheduled meeting time provided that entire WDB 
has been given proper notice as stated in these bylaws. 



Workforce Development Board Of Contra Costa County 
Organization Bylaws  

 

 
WDB Bylaws –Adopted Month, Day, 2015   Page 5 of 7 

A2a
 
Ea 

 
B. When issues arise that require members to recuse themselves from the voting process, this action will 

not count against the quorum count.    
  

C. When a quorum is present, each regular voting member shall have one (1) vote when present. No 
proxies or absentee votes shall be permitted.  

 
ARTICLE X - COMMITTEES  
  

A. The WDB Chairperson may establish Standing Committees, Ad Hoc Committees and Advisory Panels 
as necessary and shall designate the chairpersons.  

 
B. The size and purpose of each Standing or Ad Hoc Committee shall be determined by the WDB 

Chairperson, in consultation with the designated Committee Chairpersons.  Every effort shall be made 
to ensure that each Standing committee is comprised of five (5) or more members of the WDB, the 
majority of whom are representative of the business sector.  

 
C. Each WDB Standing Committee will have two (2) Co-Chairpersons with responsibility for conducting 

the regular business of that respective committee. 
 
D. Any WDB member may serve as a Committee Chairperson or Co-Chairperson.  WDB members may 

serve as Chairs of a single WDB Standing Committee for a period or no more than four (4) years. 
 
E. There shall be an Executive Committee composed of the WDB Chairperson, the Vice-Chairperson(s), 

and a past WDB Chairperson, one (1) to two (2) voting members-at-large, and the Chairpersons of 
Standing Committees.  In the event a past Chairperson is not available, the Chair may appoint an 
additional member-at-large.  At least fifty percent (50%) plus one of the Executive Committee 
members shall be representatives of the private sector.  

 
F. The Executive Committee shall meet monthly at a regularly scheduled time and is authorized to act 

on behalf of the Workforce Development Board on those matters delegated to it by the WDB. For 
those matters not delegated to it by the WDB, the Executive Committee is authorized to meet and 
act on behalf of the Workforce Development Board at such times as may be determined necessary 
by the Chairperson, provided that such actions taken by the Executive Committee shall be ratified by 
the WDB at its next regularly scheduled meeting.   

 
The responsibilities of the Executive Committee shall include:  

 Approving annual budgets and forwarding to the WDB for review;  

 Obligating and approving awards of funding related to programmatic and/or operational 
objectives (requires a 2/3 vote of Executive Committee members present for approval); 

 Hearing all budget related matters and forwarding appropriate items to the WDB  

 Developing legislative/advocacy platforms and position statements  

 Developing operational and policy objectives 

 Recommending membership appointments and resignations from the WDB to the Board of 
Supervisors as necessary   

 
At least once a year the Executive Committee will be charged with examining WDB planning 
documents and priorities. The Executive Committee will coordinate committee activities, review 



Workforce Development Board Of Contra Costa County 
Organization Bylaws  

 

 
WDB Bylaws –Adopted Month, Day, 2015   Page 6 of 7 

A2a
 
Ea 

committee reports and provide recommendations and advice to the WDB on all matters within the 
jurisdiction of the bylaws.   

  
G. There shall be a Youth Council established in accordance with the Workforce Investment Act to plan 

for a comprehensive year-round youth services system and carry out those duties required under the 
Act.  

 
Appointment:  Youth Council members who are not WDB members are appointed to and terminated 
from the Youth Council by the WDB Executive Committee. These members may vote on matters put 
forth to the Youth Council, but they are not voting members of the WDB. 
 
Membership:  Youth Council members shall serve in seats that have terms of four years.   

  
Quorum:  Quorum requirements for the Youth Council are identical to other WDB committees as 
outlined in Article IX, Paragraph A.  Fifty percent (50%) rounded-up of the authorized number of 
seats will constitute a quorum of the Youth Council. 

 
ARTICLE XI - RULE OF PROCEDURE 
  

A. All meetings of the WDB and its committees shall be guided by the current edition of Roberts Rules of 
Order, Revised.  

 
B. The WDB shall be governed in its activities by all applicable laws, regulations and instructions.  

 
ARTICLE XII - MEETINGS AND MEETING NOTICES  
  

A. Meetings of the WDB may be held anywhere within the Contra Costa County LWIA, as determined 
by the officers and staff of the WDB, at which reasonable accommodations for the disabled shall be 
provided.  

 
B. Regular meetings of the WDB shall be held at least once each calendar quarter, and shall be 

conducted in accordance with all applicable federal, state and local laws.  
 

C. Notices of regular meetings of the WDB and its committees shall comply with applicable local and 
State meeting laws and board packets shall be mailed, e-mailed, or faxed to each member.  These 
notices shall include, at a minimum, the agenda for the upcoming meeting and the summary minutes of 
the past meeting.  

 
D. Special or emergency meetings of the WDB may be called at any time by the Chairperson, the 

Executive Committee, or upon written request of at least a majority of WDB members.  Notice of a 
special or emergency meeting will include the time, date, place, and purpose.  The notice, time 
permitting, shall be not less than one working day before such meeting date.  All meetings will be 
subject to the Ralph M. Brown Act and all other applicable laws and ordinances.  

 
ARTICLE XIII - AMENDMENTS  
  
These bylaws may be altered, amended or repealed at any regular meeting of the WDB by a vote of two-
thirds (2/3) of the voting members present where there is a quorum, provided notice of the proposed change 
shall have been mailed, e-mailed, or faxed to each representative no less than seven (7) days prior to such 



Workforce Development Board Of Contra Costa County 
Organization Bylaws  

 

 
WDB Bylaws –Adopted Month, Day, 2015   Page 7 of 7 

A2a
 
Ea 

meeting.  
  
  
  
Adopted by Workforce Development Board on September 18, 2000  
Amendment to Article VIII, Section A on November 18, 2002  
Amendment to Article III, Section J; Article IV, Sections B & C; Article V, Section E; Article VI, Sections A, B, C & 
D; Article VII, Section A; Article VIII, Sections A, C & D; Article IV, Sections A, B, D; Article XIII – on September 22, 
2003  
Amendment to Bylaws on May 29, 2007  
Amendment to Bylaws on January 17, 2012 



Workforce Development Board Of Contra Costa County 
Organization Bylaws  

 

 
WDB Bylaws –Adopted Month, Day, 2015   Page 1 of 7 

  
 
ARTICLE I - NAME 
  
The name of this organization shall be the Workforce Development Board (WDB) of Contra Costa County.  
 
ARTICLE II - SCOPE AND RESPONSIBILITIES  
  
As set forth in the Workforce Investment Act of 1998 and subsequent actions by the Contra Costa County Board 
of Supervisors, the responsibilities of the WDB are:  
  

A. Develop and submit a local workforce investment plan to the Governor, in partnership with the County 
Board of Supervisors, for the Contra Costa County Local Workforce Investment Area (LWIA), whose 
boundaries include the entirety of Contra Costa County, exclusive of the City of Richmond.  

 
B. With the agreement of the Contra Costa County Board of Supervisors, designate one-stop 

operator(s) and terminate the eligibility of such operator(s) for cause; identify eligible provider(s) of 
youth activities in the Contra Costa County LWIA by awarding grants or contracts on a competitive 
basis, based on recommendations of the Youth Council; identify eligible providers of training services 
for adults and dislocated workers; and identify eligible providers of intensive services by awarding 
contracts which may be on a competitive basis if the one-stop operator does not provide such 
intensive services in the LWIA.  

 
C. Develop a budget for purposes of carrying out the duties of the WDB subject to the approval of the 

Contra Costa County Board of Supervisors.  The WDB may solicit and accept grants and donations 
from sources other than federal funds.  

 
D. In partnership with the Contra Costa County Board of Supervisors, conduct oversight with respect to 

local programs of youth activities and local employment and training activities for employers, adults, 
and youth at the one-stop centers in the LWIA.  

 
E. Negotiate and reach agreement on Workforce Investment Act local performance measures with the 

Contra Costa County Board of Supervisors and the Governor, and certify comprehensive One Stop 
Center(s).   

 
F. Assist the Governor in the development of a statewide employment statistics system (e.g., labor 

market information system pursuant to the Wagner-Peyser Act).  
 

G. Coordinate workforce development activities carried out in the LWIA with economic development 
strategies and develop other employer linkages.  

 
H. Promote the active participation of the private sector in the local workforce investment system.  

  
ARTICLE III - MEMBERSHIP  
  

A. Members of the WDB shall be appointed by the Contra Costa County Board of Supervisors in 
accordance with federal and state law, and as further described below in Article II, Paragraphs B, C, 
and D.  

 



Workforce Development Board Of Contra Costa County 
Organization Bylaws  

 

 
WDB Bylaws –Adopted Month, Day, 2015   Page 2 of 7 

B. Seat terms shall be staggered and of four years’ duration. The term of each seat will commence on 
July 1st and terminate on June 30th four calendar years later. 

 
C. The WDB will be comprised of at least 50% plus one of business members. The majority of these 

members shall 1) be owners of businesses, chief executives or operating officers of businesses, and 
other business executives or employers with optimum policy-making or hiring authority, and 2) 
represent businesses with employment opportunities that reflect the employment opportunities of the 
local area.  WDB membership shall include small businesses and minority-owned and women-owned 
businesses. 

 
D. The non-business membership shall include members who are representative of categories set forth in 

Workforce Investment Act and related federal, state or local law.  Representatives shall be 
individuals with optimum policymaking authority within the organizations, agencies, or entities they 
represent.   

 
E. Members of the WDB shall either reside in or be representatives of businesses, organizations or 

agencies located within the LWIA.    
 

F. The WDB may recommend to the Contra Costa County Board of Supervisors changes to the size and 
composition of its membership, provided that two-thirds of its members have voted to recommend the 
change. Recommended changes to size and composition of the WDB membership must be approved 
by the Contra Costa County Board of Supervisors. 

 
G. The members of the WDB shall be reimbursed for mileage for their attendance at meetings in 

accordance with Contra Costa County travel reimbursement policies, if not otherwise reimbursed by 
their employer or by another source.  A member shall make a request for reimbursement to the WDB 
Executive Director.  

 
H. Members attending pre-arranged outside special functions on behalf of the WDB shall be reimbursed 

for expenses in accordance with Contra Costa County travel reimbursement policies, if not otherwise 
reimbursed by virtue of their job or by another source.  

 
ARTICLE IV - STANDARD OF CONDUCT 
  
Members of the Workforce Development Board will:  
  

A. Avoid situations which give rise to a suggestion that any decision was influenced by prejudice, bias, 
special interest, or personal gain by recusing themselves from the discussion and action taken.  

  
B. Exercise due diligence to avoid situations which may give rise to an assertion that favorable 

treatment is being granted to friends and associates.  
 

C. Disclose potential financial conflict of interest by filing Form 700 and all other necessary and 
required documents  

  
D. Not solicit or accept money or any other consideration from any person for the performance of an act 

reimbursed in whole or part with Workforce Investment Act funds.  
 

E. Not participate nor vote on contracts or grants relating to services provided by that member or the 



Workforce Development Board Of Contra Costa County 
Organization Bylaws  

 

 
WDB Bylaws –Adopted Month, Day, 2015   Page 3 of 7 

entity he or she represents, if the member or the entity financially benefits from the decision.  
 

F. Abide by all conflict of interest codes and attend requisite training.  
 
ARTICLE V - TERMINATIONS  
  
Any member may be terminated from membership on the WDB by one of the following actions:  
  

A. Resignation.  
 

B. Failure to attend three consecutive regularly scheduled full WDB and/or committee meetings, 
excessive excused absences from regularly scheduled WDB and/or committee meetings, or failure to 
resign when he/she ceases to be a representative of the group from which he/she was selected.  Said 
conduct shall automatically be reviewed by the WDB Executive Committee, which in turn shall present 
a recommendation to the WDB. A majority vote of the WDB membership is needed to affirm the 
recommendation.  

 
C. For conduct, activities, or interest detrimental to the purpose of the WDB. Said conduct is subject to 

review by the Executive Committee, which in turn shall present a recommendation to the WDB. An 
affirmative vote of fifty percent (50%) rounded-up, plus one (1) of the full membership is needed to 
ratify the recommendation.  

 
ARTICLE VI - OFFICERS AND DUTIES  
  

A. The number of officers shall be determined by the WDB.  At a minimum, there shall be a Chairperson 
and Vice-Chairperson.  Any two officer positions, except those of the Chairperson and Vice-
Chairperson, may be held by the same person. Whenever possible, the outgoing Chair will continue 
to serve as an active board member as the Past Chair for at least one year. 

  
B. Officers’ terms will commence on July 1 and end on June 30 of the following calendar year. 

 
C. The Chairperson shall preside at all WDB meetings, represent the WDB whenever the occasion 

demands, appoint members to committees, and call special meetings at any time necessary.  
 

D. The Vice-Chairperson(s) shall assist the Chairperson and assume all the obligations and authority of 
the Chairperson in his/her absence, and shall chair the Executive Committee. In the event that the 
Vice-Chairperson(s) are not available, the Past Chair shall serve in this capacity. 

  
E. The Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson(s) of the WDB will be selected from among members of the 

WDB who are representative of the business sector.  In the event that there is not at least one WDB 
member currently sitting as Vice Chairperson, the Chair shall appoint a Vice Chairperson on a 
quarterly rotating basis.  In making such appointments, the Chair will give preference to eligible 
Committee Co-Chairs.  

  
F. A WDB member may serve as Chairperson for a period of no longer than three (3) years and as a 

Vice-Chairperson for no longer than three (3) years. 
 

G. Any officer may be removed from office by the affirmative vote of fifty percent (50%) rounded-up, 
plus one (1) of the full membership for conduct, activities or interest detrimental to the interest of the 



Workforce Development Board Of Contra Costa County 
Organization Bylaws  

 

 
WDB Bylaws –Adopted Month, Day, 2015   Page 4 of 7 

WDB, in accordance with Article V, section C.  
 
ARTICLE VII - ELECTIONS  
  

A. A Nominating Committee shall be convened each fiscal year to designate a new slate of officers for 
the following fiscal year.  The Nominating Committee shall be chaired by the Immediate Past 
Chairperson who shall appoint at least two (2) other Board members, a majority of whom shall 
represent the business community.  In the event the position of Immediate Past Chairperson is vacant, 
the Chairperson shall appoint the Chair of the Nominating Committee.  

  
B. The period for officer nominations shall commence upon the establishment of the Nominating 

Committee and will close 30 days prior to the final regularly scheduled full board meeting of the 
fiscal year. 

 
C. A report from the Nominating Committee on selection of officers shall be provided to the members in 

advance of officer elections and made available to the public.  
  

D. An election of officers shall be held no later than the final regularly scheduled full WDB meeting of 
the fiscal year.  Officers shall be elected by a majority vote of the members present.  Terms of office 
shall begin at the beginning of each fiscal year.  

 
ARTICLE VIII - VACANCIES 
  

A. The WDB or its Executive Committee shall review scheduled and unscheduled membership vacancies 
as they occur and assess associated needs with appointing a replacement.  The WDB and Executive 
Committee shall consider applicable federal and state membership guidelines in formulating a 
recommendation for review.  A majority vote of members present at a WDB or WDB Executive 
Committee meeting is needed to affirm the recommendation.  

 
B. The WDB Chairperson shall immediately report to the Contra Costa County Board of Supervisors any 

unscheduled vacancy. The WDB may recommend a replacement for each unscheduled vacancy to the 
Board of Supervisors no sooner than ten working days after the Clerk of the Board posts the special 
notice announcing the unscheduled vacancy. 

 
C. A vacancy in any officer position may be filled by the WDB for the unexpired term of the position by 

a majority vote of the members attending a called meeting of the full board or the Executive 
Committee.   

 
D. Nominations for appointment to the WDB shall be made in accordance with the Workforce Investment 

Act.  Nominees will be presented by the WDB to the appropriate committee of the Contra Costa 
County Board of Supervisors’ for review and advancement to the Board of Supervisors for final 
appointment to the WDB.  

 
ARTICLE IX – QUORUM REQUIREMENTS  
  

A. Fifty percent (50%) rounded-up of the authorized number of seats will constitute a quorum of the full 
WDB or a WDB committee. In the absence of 50 percent rounded-up in attendance, the meeting shall 
be cancelled no later than thirty (30) minutes after scheduled meeting time provided that entire WDB 
has been given proper notice as stated in these bylaws. 



Workforce Development Board Of Contra Costa County 
Organization Bylaws  

 

 
WDB Bylaws –Adopted Month, Day, 2015   Page 5 of 7 

 
B. When issues arise that require members to recuse themselves from the voting process, this action will 

not count against the quorum count.    
  

C. When a quorum is present, each regular voting member shall have one (1) vote when present. No 
proxies or absentee votes shall be permitted.  

 
ARTICLE X - COMMITTEES  
  

A. The WDB Chairperson may establish Standing Committees, Ad Hoc Committees and Advisory Panels 
as necessary and shall designate the chairpersons.  

 
B. The size and purpose of each Standing or Ad Hoc Committee shall be determined by the WDB 

Chairperson, in consultation with the designated Committee Chairpersons.  Every effort shall be made 
to ensure that each Standing committee is comprised of five (5) or more members of the WDB, the 
majority of whom are representative of the business sector.  

 
C. Each WDB Standing Committee will have two (2) Co-Chairpersons with responsibility for conducting 

the regular business of that respective committee. 
 
D. Any WDB member may serve as a Committee Chairperson or Co-Chairperson.  WDB members may 

serve as Chairs of a single WDB Standing Committee for a period or no more than four (4) years. 
 
E. There shall be an Executive Committee composed of the WDB Chairperson, the Vice-Chairperson(s), 

and a past WDB Chairperson, one (1) to two (2) voting members-at-large, and the Chairpersons of 
Standing Committees.  In the event a past Chairperson is not available, the Chair may appoint an 
additional member-at-large.  At least fifty percent (50%) plus one of the Executive Committee 
members shall be representatives of the private sector.  

 
F. The Executive Committee shall meet monthly at a regularly scheduled time and is authorized to act 

on behalf of the Workforce Development Board on those matters delegated to it by the WDB. For 
those matters not delegated to it by the WDB, the Executive Committee is authorized to meet and 
act on behalf of the Workforce Development Board at such times as may be determined necessary 
by the Chairperson, provided that such actions taken by the Executive Committee shall be ratified by 
the WDB at its next regularly scheduled meeting.   

 
The responsibilities of the Executive Committee shall include:  

 Approving annual budgets and forwarding to the WDB for review;  

 Obligating and approving awards of funding related to programmatic and/or operational 
objectives (requires a 2/3 vote of Executive Committee members present for approval); 

 Hearing all budget related matters and forwarding appropriate items to the WDB  

 Developing legislative/advocacy platforms and position statements  

 Developing operational and policy objectives 

 Recommending membership appointments and resignations from the WDB to the Board of 
Supervisors as necessary   

 
At least once a year the Executive Committee will be charged with examining WDB planning 
documents and priorities. The Executive Committee will coordinate committee activities, review 



Workforce Development Board Of Contra Costa County 
Organization Bylaws  

 

 
WDB Bylaws –Adopted Month, Day, 2015   Page 6 of 7 

committee reports and provide recommendations and advice to the WDB on all matters within the 
jurisdiction of the bylaws.   

  
G. There shall be a Youth Council established in accordance with the Workforce Investment Act to plan 

for a comprehensive year-round youth services system and carry out those duties required under the 
Act.  

 
Appointment:  Youth Council members who are not WDB members are appointed to and terminated 
from the Youth Council by the WDB Executive Committee. These members may vote on matters put 
forth to the Youth Council, but they are not voting members of the WDB. 
 
Membership:  Youth Council members shall serve in seats that have terms of four years.   

  
Quorum:  Quorum requirements for the Youth Council are identical to other WDB committees as 
outlined in Article IX, Paragraph A.  Fifty percent (50%) rounded-up of the authorized number of 
seats will constitute a quorum of the Youth Council. 

 
ARTICLE XI - RULE OF PROCEDURE 
  

A. All meetings of the WDB and its committees shall be guided by the current edition of Roberts Rules of 
Order, Revised.  

 
B. The WDB shall be governed in its activities by all applicable laws, regulations and instructions.  

 
ARTICLE XII - MEETINGS AND MEETING NOTICES  
  

A. Meetings of the WDB may be held anywhere within the Contra Costa County LWIA, as determined 
by the officers and staff of the WDB, at which reasonable accommodations for the disabled shall be 
provided.  

 
B. Regular meetings of the WDB shall be held at least once each calendar quarter, and shall be 

conducted in accordance with all applicable federal, state and local laws.  
 

C. Notices of regular meetings of the WDB and its committees shall comply with applicable local and 
State meeting laws and board packets shall be mailed, e-mailed, or faxed to each member.  These 
notices shall include, at a minimum, the agenda for the upcoming meeting and the summary minutes of 
the past meeting.  

 
D. Special or emergency meetings of the WDB may be called at any time by the Chairperson, the 

Executive Committee, or upon written request of at least a majority of WDB members.  Notice of a 
special or emergency meeting will include the time, date, place, and purpose.  The notice, time 
permitting, shall be not less than one working day before such meeting date.  All meetings will be 
subject to the Ralph M. Brown Act and all other applicable laws and ordinances.  

 
ARTICLE XIII - AMENDMENTS  
  
These bylaws may be altered, amended or repealed at any regular meeting of the WDB by a vote of two-
thirds (2/3) of the voting members present where there is a quorum, provided notice of the proposed change 
shall have been mailed, e-mailed, or faxed to each representative no less than seven (7) days prior to such 



Workforce Development Board Of Contra Costa County 
Organization Bylaws  

 

 
WDB Bylaws –Adopted Month, Day, 2015   Page 7 of 7 

meeting.  
  
  
  
Adopted by Workforce Development Board on September 18, 2000  
Amendment to Article VIII, Section A on November 18, 2002  
Amendment to Article III, Section J; Article IV, Sections B & C; Article V, Section E; Article VI, Sections A, B, C & 
D; Article VII, Section A; Article VIII, Sections A, C & D; Article IV, Sections A, B, D; Article XIII – on September 22, 
2003  
Amendment to Bylaws on May 29, 2007  
Amendment to Bylaws on January 17, 2012 



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

1. AUTHORIZE a General Plan Amendment (GPA) study to consider changing the land use designation for the

1.02-acre parcel located at 2424 Olympic Boulevard in the Saranap area, Assessor's Parcel No. 185-220-023, from

Single-Family Residential – Medium Density (SM) to Single-Family Residential – High Density (SH).

2. ACKNOWLEDGE that granting authorization for this request does not imply any support or endorsement for the

application to amend the General Plan, but only that this matter is appropriate for study. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

None. If authorization is granted, the applicant will pay fees to cover the cost for a GPA (General Plan amendment)

study. 

BACKGROUND: 

The Department of Conservation and Development is in receipt of a letter (Attachment A) from Dilip Kishnani,

Principal, Sterling Consultants, requesting a GPA study involving property located at 2424 Olympic Boulevard in the

Saranap area. The subject parcel is currently designated SM on the Land Use Element Map, Contra Costa County

General Plan (2005-2020) and zoned R-10 Single-Family Residential District. As indicated on the preliminary site

plan (Attachment B), the property owner wishes to develop the site with seven single-family residences, necessitating

the land use designation change from SM (3.0-4.9 units/net acre) to SH (5.0-7.2 units/net acre). Attached 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Will Nelson, (925)

674-7791

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

C.100

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: John Kopchik, Director, Conservation & Development Department

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: General Plan Amendment Study Request for Property Located at 2424 Olympic Boulevard, Saranap Area



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

for the Board’s consideration under Attachment C are maps and aerial photos of the site and its surroundings,

showing the existing and proposed General Plan land use designations. If the Board authorizes the GPA study,

then the applicant will also file applications for a rezoning to Planned-Unit (P-1) District, major subdivision, and

final development plan.

In addition to this request for authorization of a GPA study, the property owner has filed an application for a

minor subdivision to develop four residences under the current zoning and General Plan designations. The minor

subdivision is the fallback option should the GPA study not be authorized. 

The subject site is a long, flat, narrow strip of land fronting Olympic Boulevard for approximately 448 feet. The

site is approximately 200 feet west of the intersection of Olympic Boulevard and Boulevard Way/Tice Valley

Boulevard. Between the site and the intersection is a small strip mall. Immediately north and west are

single-family residences. Across Olympic Boulevard to the south are a gas station, additional single-family

residences, and an undeveloped hillside. The site is developed with one single-family residence and contains

numerous mature trees, mostly oaks.

Mr. Kishnani’s letter explains that developing the site at its current General Plan density level is “economically

challenging” because of its location along a busy arterial roadway and proximity to retail and commercial uses.

He also suggests that a higher-density project would be more affordable and a good transition from the

commercial properties at the intersection to the less-dense single-family residences to the north and west. 

Staff believes that the request for a GPA study to consider changing the land use designation from SM to SH is

reasonable. The subject site is underutilized, as it is slightly over one acre and occupied by only one residence.

The County approved a three-lot minor subdivision on the site in April 2004, but the project was never

implemented. In the intervening years there has been a shift towards emphasizing infill and increasing densities in

already-developed areas. Additionally, a higher-density project may be more appropriate immediately adjacent to

a commercial cluster and a high-volume arterial such as Olympic Boulevard. Therefore, staff recommends that the

General Plan Amendment study be authorized. Authorization for this study, however, does not imply support or

endorsement for the application to amend the General Plan, but only that this matter is appropriate for study.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If the Board does not authorize the GPA study, then an application to amend the General Plan cannot be filed and

the site will retain its SM land use designation. The property owner will then move forward with an application to

subdivide the property into four lots instead of seven.

ATTACHMENTS

Attachment A - Letter from D. Kishnani, Sterling Consultants, Requesting General Plan

Amendment Study 

Attachment B -Preliminary Site Plan 

Attachment C - General Plan Maps and Aerial Photo 











RECOMMENDATION(S): 

ACCEPT the Contra Costa County Fish and Wildlife Committee 2015 Annual Report, as recommended by the Fish

and Wildlife Committee. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

None 

BACKGROUND: 

On June 18, 2002, the Board of Supervisors adopted Resolution No. 2002/377, which requires that each regular and

ongoing board, commission, or committee report annually to the Board of Supervisors. The attached report presented

for Board consideration was approved by the Fish and Wildlife Committee on November 18, 2015. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

The annual reporting requirement to the Board of Supervisors would not be fulfilled. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Maureen Parkes,

925-674-7831

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the
Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

C.101

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: John Kopchik, Director, Conservation & Development Department

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Fish and Wildlife Committee 2015 Anuual Report 



ATTACHMENTS

Fish and Wildlife Committee 2015 Annual

Report 



Advisory Body Name: Contra Costa County Fish and Wildlife Committee 
Advisory Body Meeting Time/Location:  3rd Wednesday of every month, 3 – 5 pm 
2475 Waterbird Way County Public Works Department Road Maintenance Division lunch room  
Chair: Daniel Pellegrini                                                       
Staff: Maureen Parkes and Abigail Fateman 
Reporting Period: January 2015 – December 2015                                                                    
1.  Activities and Accomplishments:  The Fish and Wildlife Committee (FWC) met monthly to discuss matters related to fish 
and wildlife issues in Contra Costa County (CCC).   The Committee is responsible for running a grant program that expends the 
Fish and Wildlife Propagation Funds (funds that are collected by the CA Department of Fish and Wildlife for code violations).  
The Committee also hosts an annual Fall Forum to raise awareness among people working in law enforcement, environmental 
restoration, education and outreach about fish and wildlife issues.  
Grant Program:  The Committee received 15 proposals requesting Fish and Wildlife Propagation Fund grant funds during the 
regular grant cycle.  The Committee reviewed the proposals, interviewed applicants and selected 11 of the 15 proposals for full 
or partial funding totaling $61,155 to recommend to the Board of Supervisors. Grants ranged from $950 to $10,100 each.  The 
Committee reviewed progress and final reports from previous grant cycles and extended invitations to grantees to give 
presentations.  
Outreach: The Committee hosted the annual Fall Forum on September 17th, which is open to the public and encourages people 
involved in fish and wildlife law enforcement issues in CCC to attend.  Invited attendees included representatives of the 
California Department of Fish and Wildlife, Sheriff’s Department, District Attorney’s Office, Superior Court, Public Defender’s 
Office, the East Bay Regional Park District Police, the Board of Supervisors and members of the public.  Participants have 
indicated that the Fall Forums have been helpful in raising awareness and fostering cooperation on fish and wildlife issues and 
law enforcement.  Approximately 85 people attended the event. 
Volunteer Activities: Several members volunteer in the community with other organizations that are interested in fish and 
wildlife issues.  Martha Berthelsen - Steering Committee for SPAWNERS; Rhonda Gehlke - Aquarium in the Classroom 
Program and Director of the Delta Science Center; Susan Heckly - Lindsay Wildlife Museum, CCC Master Gardener, 
International Wildlife Rehabilitation Council and the FWC representative on the CCC Integrated Pest Management Advisory 
Committee; Kathleen Jennings - Co-chair of the Peyton Slough Wetlands Advisory Committee;  Danny Pellegrini - Contra Costa 
Mosquito and Vector Control District Board of Trustees, East Bay Regional Park District Park Advisory Committee, Sheriff’s 
Posse of CCC (Barbeque Captain) and the Martinez Sportsmens Club. 
Brochure: The Committee is updating the “Wildlife in Your Backyard” brochure. 
Committee members were regularly updated on activities related to fish and wildlife in CCC which included 11 presentations 
and updates by guest speakers and grant recipients, as well as a field trip. A 12th presentation is tentatively scheduled for 
December.  The presentations, updates and field trip are listed below:  
• Presentation on “The Mt. View Sanitary District Wetlands Programs: Celebrating Community in CCC through 

Environmental Education and Wildlife Conservation.” (Kelly Davidson, Mt. View Sanitary District) 
• Two updates on the Draft Bay Delta Conservation Plan (twin-tunnel project). (Ryan Hernandez, Department of Conservation 

and Development) 
• Update on the Temporary Emergency Drought Barrier in the Delta. (Ryan Hernandez, Department of Conservation and 

Development) 
• Four presentations regarding potential impacts of outdoor cats on wildlife by: Susan Heckly (FWC member),Stephanie 

Buzzard (No Kill Contra Costa County), Lisa Kirk (Homeless Animals Lifeline Organization [H.A.L.O]) and Julie Linford 
(Outcast Cat Help) 

• Presentation at the Fall Forum “California Department of Fish and Wildlife Wardens: Who They Are and What They Do” 
(Nicole Kozicki and Jessica Jacobsen, California Department of Fish and Wildlife Wardens) 

• Field trip to Big Break Visitor Center and Big Break Regional Shoreline in Oakley 
• Update on the activities of the CCC Integrated Pest Management Advisory Committee (Tanya Drlik, Contra Costa Health 

Services Department)  
• Update on the Chelsea Wetlands project (Aaron Will, Ducks Unlimited, Inc.) 
• It is anticipated that there will be a presentation at the December meeting on the “Trout in the Classroom” program by Ethan 

Rotman, CA Department of Fish and Wildlife.   
2.  Attendance/Representation The FWC is composed of ten members.  Each Supervisor appoints a member and the Internal 
Operations Committee appoints four At-large members and one At-large alternate.  The terms of the Committee members were 
converted from two-year terms to four-year terms, with four one-time, three-year appointments to achieve staggered expiration 
dates. The Committee meets monthly. As of November, the FWC met 11 times at which a quorum was always present.  The 
December meeting has not occurred yet. The members were:  Martha Berthelsen (D-1), Susan Heckly (D-II), Clark Dawson (D-
III), Brett Morris (D-IV), Daniel Pellegrini (D-V), Rhonda Gehlke (At-Large), Kathleen Jennings (At-Large), Jeff Skinner (At-
Large), Scott Stephan (At-Large) and Derek Jansen (At-Large Alternate). 
3.  Training/Certification At monthly meetings Committee members were regularly updated on activities related to fish and 
wildlife in CCC and had 11 presentations/updates and one field trip as of November. A 12th presentation is tentatively scheduled 



for December (see Activities/Accomplishments). All members have viewed the required videos “The Brown Act and Better 
Government Ordinance – What You Need to Know as a Commission, Board or Committee Member” and “Ethics Orientation for 
County Officials.” Certifications are on file for all of the members. 
4.  Proposed Work Plan/Objectives for Next Year  

 

(1) FWC Operations: 
• Develop and refine Work Plan (working document). 
• Maintain FWC membership by advertising vacancies and forwarding applications to the Internal Operations 

Committee.   
• Seek to coordinate with other Fish and Wildlife Committees on regional matters. 
• Coordinate with the Contra Costa Watershed Forum. 

(2) Make recommendations to the Board of Supervisors via the Internal Operations Committee for the appropriation 
of funds from the Fish and Wildlife Propagation Fund to support fish and wildlife projects in the community: 
• Conduct grant program to solicit proposals, evaluate their relative merits, and recommend funding for projects which 

will contribute most to the fish and wildlife resources of the County. 
• Develop and advertise FWC grant program by: 1) Reviewing past Request for Proposals (RFP), funding applications; 

and 2) Developing new RFP, funding application deadline, and funding priorities; and 3) posting to the County website, 
distributing these materials to the media, the FWC mailing list and RFP mailing list, and to anyone who requests them. 

• Work with agencies, organizations, and individuals to help them plan and develop projects suitable for support from the 
Fish and Wildlife Propagation Fund. 

• Monitor the efficiency and effectiveness of the grant disbursement process. 
• Review funding applications received. Make recommendations to the Board of Supervisors via the Internal Operations 

Committee for the awarding of grants. 
• Follow-up on projects that receive funding to assure that projects proceed as proposed.  One way the FWC will do this 

is to extend invitations to prior Fish and Wildlife Propagation Fund Grant recipients to future meetings to give status 
reports, outcomes and presentations regarding their projects.  

• Send out a letter to grant recipients requesting project status reports.  
(3) FWC priorities for 2016: 

• Make recommendations to the Board to approve Fish and Wildlife Propagation Fund grant applications for projects that 
increase collaboration with law enforcement agencies, the court, and community cultural organizations on enforcement 
issues and increase education focusing on communities that may be unaware of local fish and game laws. 

• Provide public forum opportunities for open discussion on wildlife issues that affect CCC residents and impact natural 
resources in our County, increase outreach efforts and provide advisory updates to Board of Supervisors as needed. 

• Develop and disseminate “Wildlife in Your Backyard” booklet and other projects for involvement of the FWC and the 
community in CCC. 

(4) FWC projects (develop and prioritize a list of projects for potential FWC involvement; select projects for FWC 
involvement and provided appropriate support, including: initiation, planning, consultation, and/or funding): 
• Make recommendations to the Board on awarding Certificates of Appreciation for significant contributions to the fish 

and wildlife resources of the County. 
• Consider hosting a Wildlife Forum. 

(5) Improve enforcement of fish and game laws and regulations; increase flow of money into the Fish and Wildlife 
Propagation Fund: 
• Review status reports on Fish and Game Code enforcement in the County. Consider advising the Board on trends.  
• Help assure that, when appropriate, a portion of fines from violations of laws designed to protect fish and wildlife 

resources is deposited in the Fish and Wildlife Propagation Fund.  Promote awareness of the harm caused by violation 
of fish and wildlife regulations and the value of enforcement. 

• Host a Fall Forum with law enforcement officials (CA Dept. of Fish and Wildlife, Sheriff’s Dept., District Attorney’s 
Office, Superior Court, Public Defender’s Office, the East Bay Regional Park District Police) to discuss fish and 
wildlife issues and enforcement. 

(6) Monitor and advise the Board on projects that may affect fish and wildlife resources in the county: 
• Attend field trips to see major restoration projects and prior Fish and Wildlife Propagation Fund Grant recipients’ 

projects in the County. 
• Consider tours of East CCC Habitat Conservancy properties, Marsh Creek Fish Ladder, Walnut Creek Drop Structure, 

Dow Wetlands and Chelsea Wetlands at Pinole.  
(7) Develop policy recommendations (“white papers”) on fish and wildlife issues: 

• Update FWC’s “Wildlife in Your Backyard” pamphlet.  
• Discuss impacts of invasive species. 
• Discuss wildlife and human interaction / interface. 
• Discuss public education on reducing the impact of cats on wildlife. 
• Discuss the Bay Delta Conservation Plan and proposal for water conveyance tunnels under the Delta. 



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

ACCEPT the report from the Employment and Human Services Department (EHSD) on Innovative Community

Partnerships. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

No fiscal Impact. 

BACKGROUND: 

On January 6, 2015 the Board of Supervisors referred oversight and receipt of updates on EHSD's Innovative

Community Partnerships to the Family and Human Services Committee. 

On November 9, 2015, EHSD presented on its partnerships that span nonprofit, faith, business, philanthropy and

other governmental agencies. These collaborations give children and families access to housing, better health care

and a seamless transition into Head Start so their parents can work. Partnerships like this are vital to building a

vibrant, healthy and thriving Contra Costa County with opportunities for everyone. The Committee received the

attached report from the Department and directed staff to transmit the report to the Board of Supervisors for their

information. This report outlines some of the innovative approaches taken to accommodate community needs during

the recent economic difficulties. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Paul Buddenhagen (925)

313-1615

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the
Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

C.102

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: FAMILY & HUMAN SERVICES COMMITTEE

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Accepting the Innovative Community Partnership Report



CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

The Board and the public will not receive current information on EHSD's Innovative Community Partnerships.

ATTACHMENTS

Innovative Community Partnership Report 



 
 

 

40 Douglas Drive, Martinez, CA 94553  •  (925) 313-1500  •  Fax (925) 313-1575  •  www.ehsd.org 

1 of 4 
 

    M E M O R A N D U M 
 

              Kathy Gallagher, Director 

 
To:  Family and Human Services Committee    
  Supervisor Federal D. Glover, District V, Chair 
  Supervisor Candace Andersen, Vice Chair 

From:  Kathy Gallagher, EHSD Director 

Date:    November 9, 2015 

Subject: FHS Referral #110 -- Innovative Community Partnerships 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 
ACCEPT the attached report on the Employment & Human Services Department’s innovative community 
partnerships. 
 

Innovative Partnership #1: HousingWorks!  

Contra Costa’s HousingWORKs! Program is our version of the CalWORKs Housing Support program. It is a 
partnership between the County’s Employment & Human Services Department, Health Services 
Department and Shelter Inc. to permanently house homeless CalWORKs families.  
 
 
 More Information about the CalWORKs Housing Support Program & HousingWORKs!: 
 

 The CalWORKs Housing Support Program (HSP) was created by the California State Legislature and the 
Governor as part of the 2014-15 budget, and assists homeless CalWORKs families by helping them 
obtain and keep permanent housing.  
 

 In FY 2014/15 it was funded at $20 million which was put out to competitive bid open to all counties.   
 

 Contra Costa County EHSD and CCHS collaborated on a proposal and was one of twenty counties 
awarded funding (42 applied). We received $1 million.  
 

 HousingWorks!  uses the rapid rehousing model, an evidence-based and nationally recognized 
practice. The United States Department of Housing and Urban Development and the United States 
Interagency Council on Homelessness have both identified rapid rehousing as a best practice that is 
more cost-effective than the traditional homeless shelter models.  

 



 

2 of 4 
 

• Shelter Inc. provides all of the services for families in the program. Staff from Shelter Inc., EHSD and 
CCHS, meet each month to ensure coordination and outstanding services. These services include: help 
finding and securing permanent housing, landlord negotiation, credit repair, legal services, emergency 
housing, financial literacy, utility and rental deposit assistance, moving costs, and time-limited rental 
subsidies. All of these services are paired with intensive case management and expectations of 
participant accountability.  
 

 Last year more than 250 homeless CalWORKs families were referred into the program; 100 were 
housed. 
 

 Currently there are more than 70 families with a roof over their heads because of this program. 
However many homeless CalWORKs families remain homeless and our goal is to house 100 this year. 
 

 EHSD’s reapplication for funds requested $1.8 million this year and we received $1.4 million. 
 

 The partnership between two county departments and a strong nonprofit is helping the county’s 
poorest families lead healthier, more productive lives. 

 

 

Partnership #2: Rebuilding the Family Service Centers -- SIT & SparkPoint 

 
Established in 1994, the Contra Costa County Service Integration Program co-located county and 
nonprofit agency service providers and community residents in neighborhood-based centers to provide 
accessible, coordinated social services tailored to meet the specific needs and goals of low-income 
families, while also engaging families in resident-driven efforts to revitalize their communities. The 
success of this program’s Service Integration Team (SIT) model stemmed from the synergistic 
relationship between its two key program components: (1) integrated case management services and 
(2) neighborhood-building activities.  
 
 
The Service Integration Program/SparkPoint was a leader in creating public/private strategies that 
improved outcomes for low-income children, youth and families.  Following are Service Integration 
innovations from years past, which provide a roadmap to further ways to improve outcomes for County 
departments:  
 

 Developing new paradigms of inter-agency collaboration and creating necessary tools to support 
this work, including cross-agency information-sharing protocols, an integrated case 
management system and an effective family conferencing model. 

 Redefining County-community partnerships to help fundamentally shift the way in which our 
public agencies work with residents of low-income communities.  

 Launching new initiatives and strategies, such as free tax preparation services (Volunteer 
Income Tax Assistance), community career centers, employment-focused service delivery, 
County--Schools projects, the African American Supporting Fathers Involvement Program, 
SparkPoint and even a little league in North Richmond. 



 

3 of 4 
 

 
Due to the effectiveness of this model, the Service Integration Program has received local, state and 
national awards and has been the subject of articles and research studies. 
The Service Integration Program has been successful in leveraging its positive outcomes to raise money 
for new innovative programs that benefit Contra Costa’s most impoverished families. The chart below 
contrasts SIT’s private revenue with net county cost from 2002/03 to 2013/14.  
 

 
SIT Revenue 2002– 2014 

NCC VS Non County  
 

 
 
 

Current Status & Plan 

 
Through the recession, the Service Integration Program lost its public health nurses, mental health 
counselors, probation officers and nonprofit partners. North Richmond’s SIT is currently staffed with 
CalWORKs, CalFresh and Med-Cal workers as well as several MSW interns. In Bay Point, SIT transitioned 
into a SparkPoint Center, with nonprofit staff from several agencies working with EHSD staff to help 
people reach economic stability and self-sufficiency. 
 
Each of these sites needs to be assessed for what’s needed and then staffed to meet the needs. One of 
EHSD’s three strategic initiatives has a goal to do just this. Staff from each of the department’s bureaus 
has formed a workgroup to assess and rebuild the existing centers and to survey the county for 
opportunities for further partnerships. These might build on existing collaboratives like the First 5 

 $-

 $100,000

 $200,000

 $300,000

 $400,000

 $500,000

 $600,000

 $700,000

 $800,000

 $900,000

2002/03 2004/05 2005/06 2006/07 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14

Net County Cost

Grant Funded
Revenue



 

4 of 4 
 

Centers or the Family Justice Centers. EHSD is committed to dramatically enhancing its partnerships to 
better serve county residents. 
 

Conclusion 

 
The two innovative partnerships highlighted in this report are but two examples of many.  EHSD has 
partnerships that span nonprofit, faith, business, philanthropy and other governmental agencies. For 
example our Community Services Bureau works closely with the Health Department on the Nurse Family 
Partnership. This collaboration gives children from families in the Nurse Family Partnership access to 
better health care and then a seamless transition into Head Start so their parents can go to work. We 
believe partnerships like this are vital to building a vibrant, healthy and thriving Contra Costa County 
with opportunities for everyone.   

 
 



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE Internal Operations Committee recommendations from Phase I of the Triennial Advisory Body Review: 

TERMINATE the County's participation on the Bay Area Library Information System Advisory Council.1.

REASSIGN Phyllis Gordon to the At Large #7 seat and ABOLISH At Large seats #16-20 on the Contra Costa

Commission for Women; DIRECT the Commission to revise its Bylaws to reflect a total membership of 20

seats (one from each Supervisorial District and 15 At Large) plus one Alternate, and the standard County

quorum requirement, which is a majority of authorized seats or, in this case, 11, and to submit the revised

bylaws to the Board of Supervisors for consideration.

2.

APPROVE recommendations of the Health Services Department in Attachment A with regard to the Alcohol

and Other Drugs Advisory Board.

3.

DIRECT the following departments to report back to the IOC in March 2016 with updates on the issues

identified in the background of this report:

4.

EHS Director or designee regarding the Advisory Council on Aging

Agricultural Commissioner/Director of Weights & Measures or designee regarding the Agricultural Task Force

Health Services Director or designee regarding the Emergency Medical Care Committee, and potential merger

of the Hazardous Materials Commission and the Public and Environmental Health Advisory Board

County Librarian regarding the Library Commission 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Julie DiMaggio Enea

(925) 335-1077

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the
Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: CAO,   CoB,   IOC Staff,   Health Services,   EHS Director,   Ag Commissioner,   County Librarian,   HSD Director   

C.103

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: INTERNAL OPERATIONS COMMITTEE

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: PHASE 1 TRIENNIAL ADVISORY BODY REVIEW RECOMMENDATIONS



RECOMMENDATION(S): (CONT'D)

>

REQUEST the Airport Land Use Commission and the Board's Airports Committee to review the functions

of the Aviation Advisory Committee to determine if advisory functions continue to be necessary, and make

a recommendation to the Board of Supervisors.

5.

FISCAL IMPACT:

No fiscal impact.

BACKGROUND:

The Board of Supervisors has asked a number of county residents, members of businesses located in the county

and/or county staff to serve on appointed bodies that provide advice to the Board on matters of county or other

governmental business. Members provide a resident’s, business or county staff perspective on a wide variety of

policy issues or programs that the Board oversees. Their efforts can directly affect the quality of life in Contra

Costa County and they provide countless hours in this public service.

Appointees begin their official advisory body involvement through Board action and serve for a specified term.

Each body has an enabling charge and bylaws, which spell out structure, work processes and the expectations of

members. Although bodies do not have the authority to hire employees, most bodies have been assigned county or

contracted staff to assist the Chair, Vice Chair and the members with conducting the business of each body and

providing regular reports, recommendations and advice to the Board or other units of government. The business of

each body is public and governed by all the applicable state and local laws about transparency and availability of

the body’s records to the members of the public. Some bodies are required to adopt a conflict of interest code,

although the Fair Political Practices Commission asked, in 2014, that we review all bodies with these code

requirements to see if they are legally necessary, according to State Law. Bodies are expected to file an annual

work plan with the Board and a list of goals and priorities that will guide their work for that year. They also are

asked to submit an annual report that summarizes their accomplishments and activities.

Periodically the BOS evaluates and examines the advisory bodies to determine if any changes are needed in the

structure, composition, Board charge, enabling mandate, assignments or the inner workings of the bodies. Some

of these reviews have led to changes in bylaws, membership requirements, structure, enabling charges,

assignments/duties or sun-setting of the body. Beginning in 2010 and concluding in 2011/2012, the BOS

conducted an extensive review of advisory body policies, makeup and structures and passed Resolution Nos.

2011/497 and 2011/498, which revised and restated the Board’s governing principles for the bodies. The

Resolutions dealt with all bodies, whether created by the Board as discretionary or those that the BOS is mandated

to create by state or federal rules, laws or regulations. The Resolutions directed the CAO/CoB’s Office to institute

a method to conduct a rotating triennial review of each body and to report on the results of that review and any

resulting staff recommendations to the BOS, through the IOC, on a regular basis.

The Resolutions laid out the questions and issues on which the Supervisors wanted the report to be based and

directed that the information be requested from and submitted by each advisory body once every three years.

Board members were particularly interested in whether or not advisory bodies should continue in their existing

forms or structures and if their duties or membership should be changed. They also asked for staff comments on

the possibility to sunset committees or to merge bodies together to achieve efficiencies, greater productivity or

better service to the public. 

This year, the IOC reviewed staff feedback and recommendations from the first phase of the current triennial

review. What follows is a summary of our conclusions and the context for our recommendations. 

Bay Area Library Information System Advisory Council (BALIS): The County Librarian advised that this

mandatory body has been sunset by the State of California and can be deleted from the list of Advisory

Bodies to whom the BOS makes an appointment (see Recommendation No. 1)

Advisory Council on Aging: Our study indicated that there might be “mission creep” in the work of this



mandatory body, into both program and policy areas, rather than the body remaining in strictly an advisory

role to the BOS and the Area Agency on Aging for plan development. We recommend that the Employment

and Human Services Director report back to the IOC on these issues. We also recommend maintenance of

the requirement for members of this body to file an annual Form 700. 

Countywide Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee of Contra Costa Transportation (Joint Powers)

Authority (CCTA) and Countywide Bicycle Advisory Committee of Contra Costa County: We considered

these two bodies together because there can be confusion about their differing obligations. The first

committee is a mandatory component of the regional CCTA transportation planning efforts. The second

body is a BOS discretionary body that meets informally, usually once per year, to review revenue

allocations and comment on whether or not bicycle and pedestrian projects are included in projects funded

by the CA Department of Mass Transportation. The Conservation and Development Director reviewed all

aspects of the discretionary body’s work and recommends that no change be made to the County's Bicycle

Advisory Committee. We concur with that recommendation.

Economic Opportunity Council: We had concerns about reports that most of the Community Services Block

Grant (CSBG) received by the EOC was being expended on County staff costs instead of on programs.

EHS Director Kathy Gallagher gave us a report about the functioning of the commission and allocation of

administrative costs in the CSBG budget. Kathy expressed concerns with the direction given by the State

for doing the CSBG budget. She disagrees with the State's direction and how inconsistent is it compared to

other similar revenue streams within EHSD. She plans on talking to state officials later this month to gain

more clarity. We asked Ms. Gallagher to report back in 90 days after consultation with the State (see

Recommendation No. 4).

Hazardous Materials Commission: We recommend no changes to this mandatory body.

Agricultural Task Force Commission: In 2012/13, this discretionary body did not convene and did not have

current bylaws. We recommend that the newly appointed Department Head review the charge, work and

structure of this body and bring recommendations for any changes, including sunset or merger with other

advisory bodies, back to the IOC for further consideration and direction (see Recommendation No. 4).

Alcohol and Other Drugs Advisory Board (AOD): When originally created, this body was mandated by

State law; that mandate was repealed in 1993. The only issue that arose from our review is the extensive

amount of County staff time that appears to be necessary to support the subcommittee work undertaken by

this body. We asked the Health Services Department to reevaluate the highly formal structure of the AOD

to reduce County staff workload related to agendas, meeting packages, reports and minutes. HSD

transmitted its recommendations in the attached memo (Attachment A), which describes three

subcommittees, a meeting schedule and staffing allocation. We concur with these recommendations (see

Recommendation No. 3). 

Arts and Culture Commission (AC5): This discretionary advisory body is the only entity allocated funds

($15,000) within the County’s budget to help carry out its activities. The body has developed a regional and

Statewide reputation and focus to promote the arts. Outside of promotion, however, the advisory role to the

BOS appeared minimal. We asked the CAO to explore with with the AC5's members whether or not the

entity should reconsider/redefine its focus as an advisory body to the Board or explore spinning off as a

non-profit organization. The membership prefers to remain a BOS advisory body for the time being. We,

therefore, recommend no changes at this time.

Aviation Advisory Committee (AAC): Staff recommends that the County’s policy-making Airport Land

Use Commission and the standing BOS Airports Committee review the functions of the discretionary AAC

to determine if advisory functions continue to be necessary at this time (see Recommendation No. 5). If a

determination is made to continue the body, the necessity of filing the Form 700 should be reviewed by

County Counsel.

Commission for Women: This discretionary advisory body’s major activities are to regularly host and



participate in local, regional, and national seminars and outreach activities on women’s issues. The

advisory role to the BOS appeared minimal. The body, which has an authorized membership up to 25 plus

an alternate, reported having difficulty meeting quorum requirements for meetings. We recommend that the

number of At Large seats be decreased by 5 to 15, bringing the total authorized seats to 20 plus an alternate.

We also recommend that the Commission's bylaws be updated to reflect the decrease in seats and also to

make the quorum requirements consistent with County policy, which is a majority of authorized seats or in

this case, 11 (see Recommendation No. 2).

Emergency Medical Care Committee: Although the current activities and scope of this discretionary

advisory committee appear to exceed the original purposes for which the body was established, we

recommend no changes in committee structure at this time. The CAO laid out a plan with the EMCC to

review its bylaws and rewrite them, especially as they relate to membership and size of the committee. The

full Committee will review the proposed by-law changes and come to the BOS for review and approval.

The Supervisors may wish to incorporate some of this entity’s work activities into an appropriate BOS

Standing Committee or expand the EMCC's official charge.

Historical Landmarks Advisory Committee: The functions of this discretionary advisory committee have

primarily been to assist the Department of Conservation and Development to identify historical sites within

the County and affect registration as landmarks. The body meets about three times per year. The

Conservation and Development Director has reviewed the work of this committee and requests that the BOS

continue it as an advisory body to both the Department and the Supervisors, with the same structure, duties

and membership as currently exists.

Integrated Pest Management Advisory Committee: Based on the materials submitted by this discretionary

body, its activities appear to have focused a significant amount of effort on evaluating internal operations of

the County departments with whom it interacts. We suggest no specific changes at this time.

Library Commission: This discretionary advisory body has enabling legislation, passed in collaboration

with the Mayors’ Conference, which continues in effect until the end of 2016. We recommend that the

County Librarian (who was not yet hired when this review process was conducted) make a review, and

work with the Commission to submit a current annual report and work plan to the BOS.

Public and Environmental Health Advisory Board (PEHAB): This discretionary body did not submit a

response to our Triennial Review survey. However, the Health Services Department did report that the body

has stopped meeting for an indefinite period and there is also is no staff support available at this time. The

Department has asked for some additional time to permit the newly hired Public Health Director to review

PEHAB's charge and structure and report back to the IOC. Strong consideration should be given to merging

PEHAB with the Hazardous Materials Commission.

ATTACHMENTS

Attachment A_HSD Recommendations on Alcohol & Other Drugs Advisory Board 



jenea
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT A











RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Conservation and Development Director, or designee, to execute a subordination

agreement under which the Successor Agency will subordinate a deed of trust held by the Successor Agency that

secures the performance of Palacek Imports pursuant to an Owner Participation Agreement (OPA) under which

Palacek was granted $500,000 by the Redevelopment Agency in 2005. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

No General Fund impact. The OPA was funded in 2005 using redevelopment funds. 

BACKGROUND: 

In 2005, Palacek Imports requested assistance from the Redevelopment Agency in order to make financially feasible

the construction of improvements and relocation of the business to 601 Parr Blvd., North Richmond. The

Redevelopment Agency provided a grant in the amount of $500,000 for construction of improvements in accordance

with terms and conditions of the Owner Participation Agreement. The construction of the improvements and

relocation of the business generated significant employment opportunities in the North Richmond Project Area,

redeveloped approximately 25 acres of underutilized land and vacant manufacturing facility, achieved major goals

and objectives of the Redevelopment Plan, generated significant tax increment revenue, and stimulated further private

sector reinvestment and redevelopment of the Project Area.

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Maureen Toms,

925-674-7878

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the
Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

C.104

  

To: Successor to the Contra Costa County Redevelopment Agency

From: John Kopchik, Director, Conservation & Development Department

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Subordination Agreement - Palacek Manufacturing Facility Owner Participation Agreement



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

The owner's performance of the contingent repayment obligation for the grant was secured by a deed of trust in

favor of the Redevelopment Agency. The Agency agreed to subordinate the lien of the Agency Deed of Trust only

to the lien of the deed of trust to Wells Fargo Bank. The owners are in the process of refinancing the senior debt

on the property, which requires a new subordination agreement to a new senior lender. The subordination

agreement also updates the Agency information due to the dissolution of the Redevelopment Agency.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

Without the Board's approval, the business would be unable to refinance their senior debt.

ATTACHMENTS

Subordination Agreement 



 

                         RECORDING REQUESTED BY 
OLD REPUBLIC TITLE COMPANY 
 
Order No.: 0435018727 
APN: 408-082-001 
 
WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO: 
Contra Costa County Successor Agency 
30 Muir Road 
Martinez, CA  94553 
 
 
 SUBORDINATION AGREEMENT 
 
NOTICE: THIS SUBORDINATION AGREEMENT RESULTS IN YOUR SECURITY INTEREST IN THE 

PROPERTY BECOMING SUBJECT TO AND OF LOWER PRIORITY THAN THE LIEN OF 
SOME OTHER OR LATER SECURITY INSTRUMENT. 

 
THIS AGREEMENT, made this 8th day of December, 2015, by Palecek Imports, Inc. and Richmond Land Group, LLC., owner 
of the land hereinafter described and hereinafter referred to as “Owner”, and the County of Contra Costa, a political subdivision 
of the State of California, Successor in interest to the Contra Costa County Redevelopment Agency hereinafter described and 
hereinafter referred to as “ the Agency”, present owner and holder of the deed of trust and the Owner Participation Agreement 
dated August 16, 2005 between Owner and the Agency (the “OPA”) first hereinafter described and hereinafter referred to as 
“Beneficiary”: 

WITNESSETH 
 

THAT WHEREAS, Palecek Imports, Inc. and Richmond Land Group, LLC. did execute a deed of trust, dated October 01, 2005, to 
Chicago Title Company, as Trustee, covering; 
 
See "Exhibit A" attached hereto and made a part hereof to secure the OPA in the sum of $500,000.00, in favor of the Agency, 
which deed of trust was recorded on August 11, 2006, in Book/Reel N/A, at Page/Image N/A, Series/Instrument 2006-
0254952,Official Records of said county; and 
 
WHEREAS, Owner has executed, or is about to execute, a deed of trust and note in the sum of $10,200.00, dated  
                                    , in favor of Bank of Marin, hereinafter referred to as "Lender", payable with interest and 
upon the terms and conditions described therein, which deed of trust is to be recorded concurrently herewith; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is a condition  precedent to obtaining said loan that said deed of trust last above mentioned  shall 
unconditionally be and remain at all times a lien or charge upon the land hereinbefore described, prior and superior to the 
lien or charge of the deed of trust first above mentioned; and 
 
WHEREAS, Lender is willing to make said loan provided the deed of trust securing the same is a lien or charge upon the 
above described property prior and superior to the lien of charge of the deed of trust first above mentioned and 
provided that Beneficiary will specifically and unconditionally subordinate the lien or charge of the deed of trust first 
above mentioned to the lien or charge of the deed of trust in favor of Lender; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is to the mutual benefit of the parties hereto that Lender make such loan to Owner; and Beneficiary is 
willing that the deed of trust securing the same shall, when recorded, constitute a lien or charge upon said land which is 
unconditionally prior and superior to the lien or charge of the deed of trust first above mentioned. 
 
NOW THEREFORE,  in  consideration  of  the mutual benefits accruing  to  the parties hereto and other valuable 
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which consideration is hereby acknowledged, and in order to induce Lender to 
make the loan above referred to, it is hereby declared, understood and agreed as follows: 
 

SUBORDINATION, RECORDED DEED OF TRUST TO DEED OF TRUST TO RECORD. 

SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE FOR RECORDERS’S USE 



 

(1) That said deed of trust securing said note in favor of Lender, and any renewals or extensions thereof, 
shall unconditionally be and remain at all times a lien or charge on the property  therein described, 
prior and superior to the lien or charge of the deed of trust first above mentioned; 

(2) That Lender would not make its loan above described without this subordination agreement; 
(3) That this agreement shall be the whole and only agreement with regard to the subordination of the lien 

or charge of the deed of trust first above mentioned to the lien or charge of the deed of trust in 
favor of Lender above referred to and shall supersede and cancel, but only insofar as would affect 
the priority between the deeds of trust hereinbefore specifically described, any prior agreements 
as to such subordination, including, but not limited to, those provisions, if any, contained in the deed 
of trust first above mentioned, which provide for the subordination of the lien or charge thereof to 
another deed or deeds of trust or to another mortgage or mortgages. 

 
Beneficiary declares, agrees and acknowledges that 
 

(a) He/She consents to and approves (i) all provisions of the note and deed of trust in favor of Lender 
above referred to, and (ii) all agreements, Including but not limited to any loan or escrow 
agreements, between Owner and Lender for the disbursement of the proceeds of Lender's loan; 

(b) Lender in making disbursements pursuant to any such agreement is under no obligation or duty to, nor has 
Lender represented that it will, see to the application of such proceeds by the person or persons to whom 
Lender disburses such proceeds and any application or use of such proceeds for purposes other than those 
provided for in such agreement or agreements shall not defeat the subordination herein made in whole or 
in part; 

(c) He/She intentionally and unconditionally waives, relinquishes and subordinates the lien or charge of 
the deed of trust first above mentioned In favor of the lien or charge upon said land of the deed of 
trust in favor of Lender above referred to and understands that In reliance upon, and in 
consideration of, this waiver, relinquishment and subordination, specific loans and advances are being 
and will be made and, as part and parcel thereof, specific monetary and other obligations are being 
and will be entered into which would not be made or entered Into  but  for  said reliance upon 
this waiver, relinquishment  and subordination. 

 
NOTICE: THIS SUBORDINATION AGREEMENT CONTAINS A PROVISION WHICH ALLOWS THE 
PERSON OBLIGATED ON YOUR REAL PROPERTY SECURITY TO OBTAIN A LOAN, A PORTION OF 
WHICH MAY BE EXPENDED FOR OTHER PURPOSES THAN IMPROVEMENT OF THE LAND. 



 

Signature of Beneficiary(s) Signature of Owner(s) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The County of Contra Costa, Successor in Interest to the Contra Palecek Imports, Inc. 
Costa County Redevelopment Agency 

By:  _ 
 

Its:  _ 
 

By: 
 

Its:   

 
Richmond Land Group, LLC. 
 
By:   
 
Its:  _ 

 
 
 

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the Identity of the Individual who signed the 
document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document. 

 
 

State of    
County of   

 
On the   before me,   a Notary 
Public, personally appeared 
 , who proved to 
me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) Is/are subscribed to the within instrument 
and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by 
his/her/their signature(s) on the Instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed 
the Instrument. 

 
I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing paragraph is true and 
correct. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

Signature:   
 

Name:   
(Typed or Printed) (Seal) 



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

ADOPT Resolution No. 2015/456 to affirm County's commitment to reduce the number of people with mental

illnesses in our County jails, commit to sharing lessons learned with other counties in our state and across the country

to support a national initiative, and encourage all county officials, employees, and residents to participate in the

"Stepping Up" initiative. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

No fiscal impact. 

BACKGROUND: 

The National Association of Counties (NACo), the Council of State Governments (CSG) Justice Center, and the

American Psychiatric Association Foundation (APAF) have come together to lead a national initiative to help

advance counties’ efforts to reduce the number of adults with mental and co-occurring substance use disorders in

jails. With support from the U.S. Justice Department’s Bureau of Justice Assistance, the initiative will build on the

many innovative and proven practices being implemented across the country.

In May 2015, NACo and partners at the CSG Justice Center and APAF launched 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Jill Ray, (925)

957-8860

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of
Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

C.105

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Supervisor Candace Andersen and Sheriff-Coroner David Livingston

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: “Stepping Up" to Reduce the Number of People with Mental Illnesses in Jails



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

Stepping Up: A National Initiative to Reduce the Number of People with Mental Illnesses in Jails and announced a

Call to Action demonstrating strong county and state leadership and a shared commitment to a multi-step planning

process that can achieve concrete results for jails in counties of all sizes. As part of this Call to Action, county elected

officials are being asked to pass a resolution and work with other leaders (e.g., the sheriff, judges, district attorney,

treatment providers, and state and local policymakers), people with mental illnesses and their advocates, and other

stakeholders to reduce the number of people with mental illnesses in jails.

Stepping Up participants receive an online resources toolkit to assist with efforts, including a series of webinars,

exercises and related distance-learning opportunities; peer-to-peer exchanges; and key resources from initiative

partners. The online toolkit includes self-assessment checklists and information to assist counties in identifying how

much progress they have already made and a planning template to help county teams develop data-driven strategies

that are tailored to local needs.

In support of Stepping Up, the National Association of Counties (NACo), the Council of State Governments (CSG)

Justice Center, and the American Psychiatric Association Foundation (APA Foundation) are hosting a National

Summit on Reducing the Prevalence of Individuals with Mental Illnesses in Jails (National Summit). The National

Summit will be held Sunday, April 17, 2016 – Tuesday, April 19, 2016 in Washington, D.C.

Today's action affirms the commitment of Contra Costa County to reduce the number of people with mental illnesses

in our County jails as part of the Stepping Up Initiative.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

Contra Costa County will not adopt a formal resolution stating its commitment to participating in the Stepping Up

Initiative.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

No impact.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

RECEIVE 2015 Annual Report submitted by the Aviation Advisory Committee. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Not Applicable 

BACKGROUND: 

On June 18, 2002, the Board of Supervisors adopted Resolution No. 2002/377, which requires that each regular and

ongoing board, commission, or committee shall annually report to the Board of Supervisors on its activities,

accomplishments, membership attendance, required training/certification (if any), and proposed work plan or

objectives for the following year, on the second Tuesday in December.

The attached report fulfills this requirement for the Aviation Advisory Committee. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Beth Lee, (925)

681-4200

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of
Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

C.106

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Keith Freitas, Airports Director

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: 2015 REPORT FROM BOARD ADVISORY BODY



CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

Not applicable.

ATTACHMENTS

AAC 2015 Annual Report 











RECOMMENDATION(S): 

DECLARE as surplus and AUTHORIZE the Purchasing Agent, or designee, to dispose of a 2002 Bell Jet Ranger

Helicopter no longer needed for public use and RESPOND to City of Los Angeles' Request For Quotation #4723

seeking to purchase a used Bell Jet Ranger Helicopter as recommended by the Public Works Director, Countywide. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

No fiscal impact. 

BACKGROUND: 

Section 1108-2.212 of the County Ordinance Code authorizes the Purchasing Agent to dispose of any personal

property belonging to Contra Costa County and found by the Board of Supervisors not to be required for public use.

The property for disposal is a 2002 Bell Jet Ranger helicopter from the Sheriff's Office. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

Public Works would not be able to dispose of the surplus helicopter and recover funds from its sale. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Daniel Lesnick,

(925)313-2376

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the
Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

C.107

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Julia R. Bueren, Public Works Director/Chief Engineer

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Disposal of Surplus Property



ATTACHMENTS

Surplus Vehicles &

Equip 



ATTACHMENT TO BOARD ORDER DECEMBER 8, 2015 

Department Description/Unit/Make/Model Serial No. Condition 
A. Obsolete  B. Worn Out 
C. Beyond economical repair 
D.  Damaged beyond repair 

SHERIFF 
2002 BELL 206B JET RANGER HELICOPTER 
(REG. # N601CC) 2565 HOURS 

4565 B. WORN OUT 

 
   

 
   

 
   

 
   

 
   

 
   

 
   

 
   

 
   

 
   

 
   

 
   

 
   

 
   

 
   

 
   

 
   

 
   

 
   

 
   

 
   

 



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

AUTHORIZE the discharge from accountability for certain Health Services accounts which are not collectible due to

one or more of the following reasons: the accounts are being discharged in bankruptcy; debtors are deceased, the

statute of limitations for pursuing recovery of the debt has expired; the cost of recovery is excessive; and/or the debtor

no longer resides in the state. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

The charges of the accounts to be discharged total $26,912,535.78. These accounts cover multiple years from 2001 to

2014. No net impact on the Enterprise Fund or General Fund. Reserves for these accounts were established during the

year of service delivery. 

BACKGROUND: 

The Health Services Department has received confirmation from Rash Curtis & Associates (collection service) that

these accounts in the collection system are not recoverable due to one or more of the following reasons: the accounts

are being discharged in bankruptcy; debtors are deceased; the statute of limitations for pursuing recovery of the debt

has expired; the 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Pat Godley,

957-5405

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of
Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: T Scott,   M Wilhelm   

C.108

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Discharge from Accountability for Certain Health Services 



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

cost of recovery is excessive; or the debtor no longer resides in the state. Based on the stated facts, the Health

Services Department should write off these accounts as "Charity Care" pursuant to Contra Costa Health Services

Compliance Charity Care Program Policy #708-C.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

Health Services Enterprise Find I will continue to carry uncollectible accounts and reserves in the books, thereby

overstating the receivable and reserve accounts.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

No impact.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Conservation and Development Director, or designee, to take the following actions

on behalf of the County and Contra Costa County Water Agency: 

File a protest with the California State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) against the Department of

Water Resources and U.S. Bureau of Reclamation's joint change petition related to the California WaterFix

project, and take related actions; and

1.

Participate in related SWRCB proceedings.2.

FISCAL IMPACT: 

No impact to the General Fund. The estimated cost of $50,000 to file the protest and participate in the protest

proceedings, including costs for Water Agency staff and consultant and County Counsel, will be paid with Contra

Costa Water Agency funds. This estimated cost may be covered within the current Water Agency budget by

dedicating existing resources to this task. 

BACKGROUND: 

On August 25, 2015, the California Department of Water Resources (DWR) and the U.S. Bureau of Reclamation

(Reclamation) jointly submitted a Petition to the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) for a change to the

DWR and Reclamation water rights. The Petition requests that the SWRCB authorize the addition of three additional 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Ryan Hernandez

(925)674-7824

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the
Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

C.109

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: John Kopchik, Director, Conservation & Development Department

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: California WaterFix Change Petition to Water Rights Application with the State Water Resources Control Board



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

points of diversion to the water rights for both the State Water Project (SWP) and Central Valley Project (CVP) to

allow construction of the key Delta conveyance components of the California WaterFix project.

Planning for the WaterFix proposed project began in 2006 as part of the Bay Delta Conservation Plan (BDCP)

program. The BDCP initially intended to provide net benefits to key fish species by reducing exports from the south

Delta, minimizing reverse flows in the south and central Delta, and by restoring more than 100,000 acres of

ecosystem habitat in the Delta. Another goal of the BDCP was to increase water supply reliability for the export

water contractors in southern California, including greater water supply and water quality security in the event of a

large earthquake in the Delta region.

Nearly ten years later, the Delta ecosystem continues to decline and the current drought has highlighted significant

problems with groundwater management and subsidence in the San Joaquin Valley and the lack of dry year supplies.

Continuing subsidence of lands within the Delta, increasing seismic risks and Delta levee vulnerabilities, and rising

sea levels caused by global climate change, will further exacerbate these problems.

In 2009, the California legislature passed the Delta Reform Act, which set new State policy of achieving the two

coequal goals of providing a more reliable water supply for California and protecting, restoring, and enhancing the

Delta ecosystem. (California Public Resources Code Section 29702(a)). Inherent in the coequal goals are the

additional objectives of improving water quality in the Delta and protecting the Delta as an evolving place.

In November 2013, DWR and Reclamation released a BDCP Draft Environmental Impact Report/Environmental

Impact Statement (EIR/EIS). Contra Costa County submitted a lengthy comment letter outlining in detail why the

Draft EIR/EIS was inadequate and failed to achieve either of the coequal goals. The County’s letter requested that

additional alternatives involving new storage and demand reduction actions be studied that could achieve the coequal

goals.

In January 2014, the key state agencies responsible for water management and regulation in California released the

California Water Action Plan that laid out a portfolio of actions to achieve the coequal goals: water conservation,

regional self-reliance, protect and restore important ecosystems, expand water storage capacity and improve

groundwater management, etc.

In April 2015, it was announced that the State and federal agencies will no longer be pursuing the BDCP, but would

be separately pursuing a WaterFix conveyance-only project and a separate EcoRestore project to complete only

30,000 acres of ecosystem restoration (most of which was already required by the state and federal project biological

opinions and is long overdue). 

In July 2015, DWR and Reclamation released the BDCP/California WaterFix Partially Recirculated Draft

EIR/Supplemental Draft EIS (RDEIR/SDEIS) with three new alternatives that no longer incorporated habitat

restoration actions. This document, prepared in haste, was even more inadequate, and even failed to include any

modeling of the new alternatives, or any corrected modeling of the flawed analyses in the November 2013 BDCP

Draft EIR/EIS. On October 30, 2015, Contra Costa County submitted another detailed comment letter pointing out

the inadequacies of the proposed project and the environmental documents.

Unfortunately, the proposed WaterFix conveyance-only project fails to help restore and sustain key fish species or the

Delta ecosystem, significantly degrades water quality in the Delta, actually increases rather than decreases exports

during the driest periods when the Delta ecosystem is most vulnerable, and fails to produce any new usable water or

increase long-term water supply reliability for California.

The water rights Petition filed by DWR and Reclamation in August is inadequate and is based on flawed and

incomplete environmental documents that fail to disclose to the public or decision makers the exact operating criteria

for the project or the major problems the project will cause for other water users, the Delta ecosystem and water

quality in the Delta. On October 20, 2015, before the comment period on the WaterFix RDEIR/SDEIS had closed, the

SWRCB released a Notice for the water rights Petition, and a water rights hearing. To protest this Petition and to



participate in the water rights hearing process, the Department, on behalf of the County and Water Agency, will need

to file a water rights protest and submit a Notice of Intent to appear on January 5, 2016. A pre-hearing conference

will be held on January 28, 2016. Copies of witnesses’ proposed testimony, witness qualifications, and exhibits for

Part 1 of the hearing need to be submitted by March 1, 2016; however, the County would likely only participate in

Part 2 of the hearing, which will not take place until after a WaterFix Final EIR/EIS is completed.

Grounds for Filing Protest: The County would protest the WaterFix water rights petition based on allegations that the

proposed change: (a) would have an adverse environmental impact; (b) would not best conserve the public interest or

public trust uses; and (c) would be contrary to law. The WaterFix project would also cause injury to legal users of

water from the Bay-Delta system, and other uses are entitled to file a protest under this category.

The WaterFix project would harm the Bay-Delta environment to the detriment of key fish species, and urban,

agricultural and recreational water users in the Delta. Proceeding with a conveyance-only project intended only to

benefit the export water contractors south of the Delta is not in the public interest. The State and federal

administrations should instead develop a project that implements a portfolio of actions, consistent with the 2014

California Water Action Plan, and actually contributes to achieving the coequal goals. The WaterFix project is

contrary to the California Environmental Quality Act statutes because it fails to avoid or mitigate significant adverse

environmental impacts, and fails to comply with the 2009 Delta Reform Act and the coequal goal requirements.

For these reasons, DCD staff recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve the recommended actions.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If the Department is unable to file a protest, then the County and Water Agency will not be able to participate in the

SWRCB proceedings, and will not be able to challenge any final decision of the SWRCB.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve the list of providers recommended by the Contra Costa Health Plan's Peer Review and Credentialing

Committee on November 10, 2015, and by the Health Services Director, as required by the State Departments of

Health Care Services and Managed Health Care, and the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Not Applicable. 

BACKGROUND: 

The National Committee on Quality Assurance (NCQA) has requested evidence of Board of Supervisors approval

for each CCHP provider be contained within the provider’s credentials file.

The recommendations were made by CCHP’s Peer Review and Credentialing Committee.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

If this action is not approved, Contra Costa Health Plan’s Providers would not be appropriately credentialed and not

be in compliance with the NCQA. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Patricia Tanquary,

313-6004

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: Tasha Scott,   Marcy Wilhelm,   Heather Wong   

C.110

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: New and Recredentialing Providers in Contra Costa Health Plan’s Community Provider Network



CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not Applicable.

ATTACHMENTS

Attachment 



Contra Costa Health Plan 
Providers Approved by Peer Review and Credentialing Committee 

November 10, 2015 

 

CREDENTIALING PROVIDERS NOVEMBER 2015 

Name  Specialty  

Dao, Bao, M.D. Hematology/Oncology 

Karan, John, M.D. Neurology 

Le, Vuong, BCBA Behavior Analysis 

Ledford, Brynna, M.Ed. Behavior Analysis 

Li, Ho-Yin, M.D. Anesthesiology 

Lubbers, John, BCBA-D Behavior Analysis 

Nelson, William, M.D. Anesthesiology 

Tung, Chiu, M.D. Anesthesiology 

Wallace, Shannon, BCBA Behavior Analysis 

Wong, Wendy, M.D. Surgery - Orthopaedic 

 
 

 

 

RECREDENTIALING PROVIDERS NOVEMBER 2015  

Name  Specialty  

Barakeh, Joseph, DO Ophthalmology 

Batten, Kristine, M.D. Cardiovascular Disease 

DeVane, Matthew, DO Cardiovascular Disease 

Fieser, Carl, M.D. Pain Management 

Krouse, John, M.D. Cardiovascular Disease 

Matin, Bita, DDS Dentist 

Pham, An, M.D. Primary Care 

Pediatrician 

Port, Bryan, Psy.D. Mental Health Services 

Ruzicano, Raymond, M.D. Psychiatry 

Schaefer, Robert, DC Chiropractic Medicine 

Seslar, Jon-Paul, DPM Podiatry 

Shah, Samir, M.D. Ophthalmology 

Sidhu, Pramodh, M.D. Cardiovascular Disease 

Veal, Ulanda, M.D. Primary Care 

Pediatrician 

Wulff, Christopher, M.D. Cardiovascular Disease 

      

 
 

 

 



Contra Costa Health Plan 

Providers Approved by Peer Review and Credentialing Committee  

November 10, 2015 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 

 
RECREDENTIALING ORGANIZATIONAL PROVIDER 

NOVEMBER 2015 

 

Provider Name 

 

 Provide the Following 

Services 

 

Location 

Odyssey Healthcare Operating A, LP 

dba: Gentiva Hospice 

Hospice Alameda 

    bopl-November 10, 2015 

 



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE the request of the Health Services Department to replace the designation of the Antioch Health Center at

3505 Lone Tree Way with the new Antioch Health Center at 2335 Country Hills Drive, Antioch, as the service site

within the scope of the Health Care for the Homeless Project through the Health Resources and Services

Administration, as recommended by the Health Services Director.. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

No impact.

BACKGROUND: 

As the governing board for the Health Care for the Homeless (HCH) Project, the Board of Supervisors must approve

all requests for change in scope of project through the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Health

Resources and Services Administration (HRSA).

This request is to replace an existing service delivery site with a new service delivery 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Dan Peddycord,

313-6712

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of
Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: T Scott,   M Wilhelm,   Rachael Birch   

C.111

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Replace site for HRSA scope of project



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

site not currently in the scope. The existing service delivery site is the Antioch Health Center located at 3505 Lone

Tree Way in Antioch. The new service delivery site is 2335 Country Hills Dr., Antioch. Upon approval, HRSA will

recognize the new Antioch Health Center as a Health Center approved by the HCH governing board, providing health

services to the homeless population in Contra Costa County.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

The County will not have HRSA approval to provide services at the new site.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not applicable.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

AUTHORIZE the Chair of the Board of Supervisors to sign the Certification Statements for the Child Health and

Disability Prevention Program and the California Children's Services Program as required by the State of California. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

No fiscal impact. 

BACKGROUND: 

The State of California requires an annual statement certifying that the County Child Health and Disability Prevention

(CHDP) Program and the California Children's Services Program will abide by all regulations and laws set by the

State. These statements must be signed by the program manager,, health officer and chair of the local governing

board. That certifications are attached. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

If the certifications are not signed and returned to the State, the County will not be in compliance with program

requirements. 

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT: 

Not applicable. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Dorothy Sansoe,

925-335-1009

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the
Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: T. Scott,   Marcy Willhelm   

C.112

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Annual CHDP and CCS Program Certifications



ATTACHMENTS

CHDP

Certification 





RECOMMENDATION(S): 

AUTHORIZE relief of cash shortage in the Health Services Department, Discovery House Petty Cash Fund, in the

amount of $540.88, as recommended by the Auditor-Controller.

FISCAL IMPACT: 

The cash shortage in the amount of $540.88 will be funded with 100% client fees.

BACKGROUND: 

In accordance with provisions of Administrative Bulletin 207.7, the Auditor-Controller has verified and concurs with

the department's report of a cash shortage in the amount of $540.88. 

The shortage is the result of checks written on the Alcohol and Other Drugs Services checking account. In December

of 2009 $400 was used for Christmas gifts for the residents of Discovery House and in June of 2010 $154.88 was

used for veterinary services for a Discovery House therapy cat. (Note: reversal of $14 in bank fees)

There was no fraud or gross negligence on the part of any County employee or County Department.

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Enid Mendoza, (925)

335-1039

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the
Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

C.113

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: David Twa, County Administrator

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Request for Relief of Cash Shortage



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

The shortage will not be relieved, cash will not be in balance.

ATTACHMENTS

Auditor-Controller Letter 







RECOMMENDATION(S): 

CONTINUE the emergency action originally taken by the Board of Supervisors on November 16, 1999 regarding the

issue of homelessness in Contra Costa County. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

None. 

BACKGROUND: 

Government Code Section 8630 required that, for a body that meets weekly, the need to continue the emergency

declaration be reviewed at least every 14 days until the local emergency is terminated. In no event is the review to

take place more than 21 days after the previous review.

On November 16, 1999, the Board of Supervisors declared a local emergency, pursuant to the provisions of

Government Code Section 8630 on homelessness in Contra Costa County.

With the continuing high number of homeless individuals and insufficient funding available to assist in sheltering all

homeless individuals and families, it is appropriate for the Board to continue the declaration of a local emergency

regarding homelessness. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Lavonna Martin,

925-313-6736

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the
Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

C.114

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: David Twa, County Administrator

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: CONTINUE Extension of Emergency Declaration Regarding Homelessness



CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

The Board of Supervisors would not be in compliance with Government Code Section 8630.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

None.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

ACCEPT quarterly report of the Post Retirement Health Benefits Trust Agreement Advisory Body. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

No specific fiscal impact. This is a quarterly report of the County's assets in the Public Agency Retirement Services

(PARS) Public Agencies Post-Retirement Health Care Plan Trust. 

BACKGROUND: 

On December 14, 2010, the Board of Supervisors directed the formation of a Post Retirement Health Benefits Trust

Agreement Advisory Body (consisting of the County Administrator, County Finance Director, Treasurer-Tax

Collector, Auditor-Controller, and Health Services Finance Director). 

The Advisory Body meets quarterly. At its meeting of August 4, 2011, the body discussed and reviewed final report

formats with HighMark Capital Management and made recommendations regarding a final standardized quarterly

report. The attached report is in the standardized format. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   12/08/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Lisa Driscoll, County Finance

Director (925) 335-1023

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the
minutes of the Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    December  8, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: Robert Campbell, County Auditor-Controller,   Russell Watts, County Treasurer-Tax Collector,   Patrick Godley, Chief Financial Officer/Health Services   

C.115

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: David Twa, County Administrator

Date: December  8, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Quarterly Report of the Post Retirement Health Benefits Trust Agreement Advisory Body



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

> 

The following is the investment summary presented at the November 12, 2015 quarterly meeting for the period

ending September 30, 2015:

Investment Summary Third Quarter 2015

Beginning Value $173,251,842.30

Net Contributions/Withdrawals -43,438.67

Fees Deducted -44,070.96

Income Received 956,321.65

Market Appreciation -7,268,241.25

Net Change in Accrued Income -178,107.55

Ending Market Value $166,674,305.52

Additional Materials -

A Post Retirement Health Benefits Trust Agreement Advisory Body web-page can be found at the following

address:

http://ca-contracostacounty.civicplus.com/index.aspx?NID=2915. The page describes the function of the body,

posts quarterly meeting materials, and all pertinent trust and plan documents.

ATTACHMENTS

Third Quarter 2015 

http://ca-contracostacounty.civicplus.com/index.aspx?NID=2915


PARS: County of Contra Costa 
 
Third Quarter 2015 
 

Presented by 
Andrew Brown, CFA 



PARS: County of Contra Costa 

DISCUSSION HIGHLIGHTS 
  
U.S. Economic and Market Overview  

 
The third quarter started with concern over economic conditions in Greece, which faded once a deal was reached and a technical default was 
avoided.  Prime Minister Tsipiras and his Syriza party were re-elected and essentially gave up on the prior strategy of playing hardball with the 
‘troika” of the International Monetary Fund, the European Central Bank, and the European commission.  As we write this note in October, the 
problems in Greece seem like they occurred ages ago.  The market quickly turned its focus from Greece to China, to the Fed, in a quarter that 
saw high levels of volatility, mainly on the down side.  The stock market slide was fueled by two catalysts: China and the Federal Reserve. 
  
China announced on August 8 plans to devalue their currency.  This was viewed as a negative by financial markets, indicating a slowdown in 
Chinese economic growth. Chinese policy responses to their declining stock market have consisted of restrictions on security sales, censoring 
media coverage of the equity market decline, and devaluation of their currency, all with marginal results.  As a major driver of global economic 
growth, China is viewed as a vital source of demand for commodity-producing nations and corporations looking to market their products to a 
growing middle class.  Given that China is the world second largest economy, a slowdown in growth will have a negative global impact.   The 
problems in emerging markets have not been isolated to China.  Brazil and Russia also appear to be in recessions, as both nations have been 
struggling to regain economic traction.  Russia has been negatively impacted by the plunge in oil prices, while Brazil has struggled with political 
instability and a rising rate of inflation, coupled with a stagnant economy. 
  
The other event, or non-event depending on how you look at it, related to the Federal Reserve, and their decision on interest rate normalization.  
On the heels of several strong employment announcements, as well as a strong second quarter GDP print of 3.9%, most investors began to 
anticipate that the Federal Reserve might initiate a rate hike in the third quarter.  These beliefs were somewhat supported by several speeches 
throughout the quarter from Fed members who gave indications that a rate hike was on the table.  However, in a press conference on September 
17, Chairperson Janet Yellen spoke with a dovish tone, and stocks slumped in reaction.  One possible explanation for the negative reaction, 
immediately following the Fed’s decision not to raise rates, is that investors viewed the policy decision as an indication that the U.S. economy 
may be more vulnerable than assumed.  With the Fed’s apparent ‘about face’ on raising rates, inaction served to express more concern about the 
economy than what was priced into the market. 
  

2



PARS: County of Contra Costa 

Market overview/Performance Discussion 
  
Total Plan 
  
The County of Contra Costa OPEB Plan returned -3.77% net of investment fees, in the third quarter, which was in-line with the County’s Plan 
benchmark return target of -3.71%. Positive contributions from our two new global equity managers as well as our small cap equity managers 
aided returns. The performance from the AQR Managed Futures Fund helped the alternative asset class to outperform the benchmark; however 
the other alternative manager’s performance was disappointing.  Segments that slightly underperformed their benchmarks included large cap 
equity and REIT equity.  The largest areas of underperformance came from mid cap equity and our fixed income investments. Within fixed 
income, our two intermediate-term managers maintained duration positions that were shorter than the benchmark, which detracted from 
performance in a quarter where rates declined.  Additionally, while exposure to high yield was a modest 1%,the decline in our high yield 
investment of -3.5% was a negative.  A modest positive contribution came from the rebalancing of the equity allocation of the Plan on August 25. 
On this day, we rebalanced roughly 4% of the portfolio, repositioning assets from fixed income, alternative asset, and cash holdings, and 
purchasing a corresponding amount of equities.  This day turned  out to be the low point in the quarter for many equity markets. 
  
Domestic Equity 
  
Domestic equity markets experienced losses across the board in the third quarter for the first time since 2012. Losses were led by small-cap 
equities, which returned -11.92% (Russell 2000 Index). Large cap equities weathered the storm with the least losses, but still returned a 
disappointing -6.44% (S&P 500 Index).  Across large cap stock, all sectors witnessed declines with the lone exception of the Utilities sector, 
which returned +5.41%. Energy and Material Stocks led the decline with large losses of -17.39% and -16.89%, respectively. Commodity sensitive 
sectors have come under fire amidst low global commodity prices and fears of a slowdown in global growth, specifically China who has been the 
world’s largest commodity consuming economy. The Health Care sector also experienced a large decline of -10.65% as Bio-tech firms sold off, 
reversing previously strong stock performance trends. The Financial sector experienced a loss of -6.71% after the Federal Reserve took the 
market by surprise by not raising interest rates at their September FOMC meeting. Consumer related companies saw lighter losses with 
Consumer Discretionary companies declining -2.56% and Consumer Staples companies returning -0.20% as domestic consumer spending 
continues to be a source of strength for the US economy.  

3



PARS: County of Contra Costa 

• The Plan’s large-cap funds returned -7.22% in the quarter, which underperformed the Russell 1000 Index return of -6.83%. 
• The iShares Russell 1000 ETF returned -6.84% in the third quarter. 
• The Columbia Contrarian Core Fund returned -7.22% in the quarter, which underperformed the benchmark.  The Fund ranked in the 

47th percentile of the Morningstar Large Cap Blend Universe. 
• The Harbor Capital Appreciation Fund returned -5.44% in the quarter, which underperformed the Russell 1000 Growth Index’s return of    

-5.29%.  The Fund ranked in the 25th percentile of the Morningstar Large Cap Growth Universe. 
• The T. Rowe Price Growth Stock Fund returned -4.71% in the quarter, which outperformed the Russell 1000 Growth Index. The Fund 

ranked in the 13th percentile of the Morningstar Large Cap Growth Universe. 
• The Dodge and Cox Stock Fund returned -9.84% in the quarter, which underperformed the Russell 1000 Value Index’s return of           

-8.39%.  The Fund ranked in the 75th percentile of the Morningstar Large Cap Value Universe. 
• The Loomis Sayles Value Fund posted a -9.47% return in the quarter, which also underperformed the Russell 1000 Value Index.  The 

Fund ranked in the 70th percentile of the Morningstar Large Cap Value Universe. 
  
• The mid-cap equity segment returned -9.29% in the quarter, which underperformed the Russell Mid-Cap Equity return of -8.01%. 

• The iShares Russell Mid-cap ETF returned -8.05% in the third quarter. 
• The TIAA-CREF Mid-Cap Value Fund returned -8.62% in the quarter, which underperformed the Russell Mid-Cap Value Index return of     

-8.04%.  The Fund ranked in the 37th percentile of the Morningstar Mid-Cap Value Universe. 
• The Ivy Mid Cap Growth Fund returned -11.61% in the third quarter, which underperformed the Russell Mid Cap Growth Index return of    

-7.99%.  The Fund ranked in the 78th percentile of the Morningstar Mid-cap Growth Universe. 
  
• The small-cap equity segment returned -9.71% in the quarter, which outperformed the Russell 2000 Index return of -11.92%. 

• The iShares Russell 2000 ETF returned -11.91% in the third quarter. 
• The T. Rowe Price New Horizons Fund returned -7.78% in the quarter, and outperformed the Russell 2000 Growth Index return of                

-13.06%. The Fund ranked in the 6th percentile of Morningstar’s Small Cap Growth Universe. 
• The Columbia Small Cap Value Fund II returned -8.97% in the quarter, and outperformed the Russell 2000 Value Index’s return of             

-10.73%. The Fund ranked in the 26th percentile of Morningstar’s Small Cap Value Universe. 

 

4



PARS: County of Contra Costa 

Real Estate  
  
REIT equity returns were one of the few bright spots offered in a turbulent third quarter, with the Wilshire REIT Index returning a positive 2.88%.   
With foreign markets down over double digits in the third quarter, investors flocked to REITs, which offered investors returns more levered to a 
strongly performing domestic economy.  This focus was highlighted by returns within domestically focused REIT sub-sectors such as Self 
Storage (+16.1%) and Manufactured Housing (+11.0%).  In contrast, sectors with a higher level of foreign influence such as Hotels (-13.7%) and 
Office    (-1.23%) declined. The revision upward in second quarter GDP, combined with supportive employment statistics, encouraged investors 
to increase allocations to REIT equity.  According to Cohen & Steers, a specialist in REIT investing, 90% of REITs exceeded or met earning 
expectations in the most recent quarter.  REIT investments have also been supported by acquisition activity, with several billion dollars of 
intended acquisitions announced in the quarter. 
  
The Nuveen Real Estate Securities Fund returned 2.36% in the quarter, which was slightly under the Wilshire REIT Index return of 2.88%. The 
Fund placed in the 43rd  percentile of the Morningstar Real Estate Manager’s Universe. 
  
Global/International Equity  
  
The third quarter started with concerns over economic conditions in Greece, which faded once a deal was reached and a technical default was 
avoided. Once a deal was reached, international equity investors shifted their attention to events in China.  Fears of a slowdown in China was 
highlighted by weak Chinese economic statistics released during the quarter, and was punctuated by the devaluation of the Renminbi in August.  
The perceived weakness in China influenced commodity markets, as reflected by the 20% decline in the price of oil in the third quarter.    
   
There was no international market that made it through the quarter unaffected by the global sell off. Developed Europe declined -8.1% with most 
countries down between -5% to -12%, Norway was the most impacted with a -19% decline. While this is alarming, the European Central Bank is 
now well into an economic stimulus program and ECB President Mario Draghi has signaled that the bank is prepared to undertake a larger 
program, if warranted.  While European equity markets suffered losses, a weaker Euro supported the region’s exports, giving investors some 
hope that the turnaround in this region can continue. Emerging markets fared even worse, with double digit losses across the board. Given 
China’s and Greece’s role in the volatility, it is not surprising that they were both amongst the worst performers, -23% and -36%, respectively. 
Brazil also had a tough quarter, declining -34% on the headwinds of weak economic growth, high inflation, and continued political disarray. There 
were clear concerns around the Asian Pacific countries given their connection to China; this was displayed by poor returns of both developed and 
emerging economies in the region.  

5



PARS: County of Contra Costa 

While China will likely continue to be volatile while it works through a structural transition from an export based economy to a consumption based 
economy, we do not believe it is prudent to spurn emerging market equities entirely. Emerging markets are currently trading at a forward P/E of 
11.4X, which is attractive relative to higher developed market valuations. Further, emerging markets are still growing faster than developed 
markets, and they have the resources to stimulate their economies, if needed. Most developed market interest rates are near zero while 
emerging market monetary policy still has room for maneuvering. With the drop in commodity prices adding an additional tail wind to net importer 
countries (like China), we see potential for some emerging market countries to bounce back from the most recent disappointing quarter.   
  
• The Plan’s international/global equity segment returned -9.84% in the quarter.  This return outperformed the MSCI EAFE Index           

-10.23%, and underperformed the MSCI ACWI Index return of -9.45%. 
• The iShares MSCI EAFE Index ETF returned -10.23% in the quarter.   
• The Nationwide Bailard International Equity Fund returned -8.75% in the quarter, and outperformed the MSCI EAFE Index.  The Fund 

ranked in the 19th percentile of the Morningstar Foreign Large Blend Universe. 
• The Dodge & Cox International Stock Fund returned -15.38% in the quarter and underperformed the MSCI EAFE Index.  The Fund 

ranked in the 97th  percentile of the Foreign Large Blend Universe as measured by Morningstar. 
• The MFS International Fund returned -8.45% in the quarter and outperformed the MSCI EAFE Index.  The Fund ranked in the 34th 

percentile for foreign large cap growth managers as measured by Morningstar. 
• The iShares MSCI ACWI Index ETF returned -9.47% in the quarter   
• The American Funds New Perspective Fund recorded a -6.46% return in the third quarter, which outperformed the MSCI ACWI Index 

and ranked in the 16th percentile within the Morningstar World Stock Universe   
• The MFS Global Equity R5 Fund returned -7.70%, which outperformed the benchmark and ranked in the 30th percentile of the 

Morningstar World Stock Universe.  
• The DJ Euro-Stoxx 50 ETF returned -9.09% in the quarter, which outperformed the MSCI EAFE Index. 
• The Schroder Emerging Market Equity Fund returned -15.66% during the quarter and outperformed the MSCI Emerging Market 

benchmark return of -17.90%.  The Fund ranked in the 42nd percentile of the Morningstar Emerging Market Universe. 

6



PARS: County of Contra Costa 

Fixed Income  
  
The Barclays Capital U.S. Aggregate Bond Index returned 1.23% in the third quarter as declining interest rates resulted in a 1.8% gain for U.S. 
Treasuries.  Once again despite widespread predictions of higher interest rates, yields for five-year maturity and longer Treasuries ended the 
quarter 30 to 35 basis points lower.  Ten-year Treasury yields declined 32 basis points this quarter while thirty-year bond yields were lower by 27 
basis points, resulting in gains of 2.9% and 5.1% respectively.  U.S. Treasuries have now posted gains for six of the past seven quarters, dating 
back to the first quarter of 2014.  While Treasury securities performed well this quarter, most non-Treasury sectors lagged behind.  Investment-
grade corporate bond spreads widened another 30 basis points to +178 during the quarter, reaching the widest level since 2012.  Although 
corporates advanced 0.8% for the quarter, they lagged the performance of equivalent duration U.S. Treasury securities by –145 basis points.  
Lower quality bonds performed even worse as high yield bonds returned -4.9% during the quarter, generating a negative excess return of –638 
basis points as lower oil prices and slower growth were the catalysts for underperformance.  High yield bond spreads finished the quarter at +662 
basis points, wider by +162 bps for the quarter.   
  
For the year-to-date, the Aggregate Index has returned 1.1%, while U.S. Treasuries have advanced 1.8% and investment grade corporate bonds 
declined –0.1%, underperforming duration-adjusted Treasuries by –209 basis points.  High yield bonds have lost –1.7% in 2015, posting a 
negative excess return of –466 basis points.  Agency mortgage-backed securities have advanced 1.6%, underperforming equivalent-duration 
Treasuries by –68 basis points. 
   
The Federal Reserve is still looking for a way off of the zero interest rate floor where they have been for nearly seven years, but are being 
hindered by slower growth, lower commodity prices, and a strong dollar.  U.S. economic growth continues to be solid, although it remains well 
under 3%, and is now being further constrained by a meaningfully larger trade deficit.  In addition, U.S. employment growth seems to have stalled 
over the last few months, resulting in monthly average job growth this year of 198,000, significantly below last year’s average of 260,000.  Global 
growth is also slow as China, which accounted for 40% of global growth last year, continues to decelerate, while Brazil and Russia are in 
recession.  Of the formerly fast growing BRIC’s, that leaves only India, which is still doing relatively well with growth of about 7%.  Slower growth 
means there is little or no evidence of price pressure, and as a result inflation has remained below the Fed’s 2% target for the last forty 
consecutive months. 
  

7



PARS: County of Contra Costa 

The County’s fixed income portfolio lagged its benchmark this quarter primarily as a result of an overweight to investment-grade corporate bonds, 
which comprised approximately 50% of the portfolio.  Since corporate bonds underperformed by nearly –1.5% this quarter, they were the largest 
contributor to the underperformance, detracting –33 basis points from total return.  Sector allocation would have been even more negative 
without the benefit of an underweight to mortgage-backed securities, which also underperformed Treasuries by –21 basis points.  The portfolio 
benefitted from holding half of the benchmark weight in mortgages during the quarter, approximately 14% versus 28%.  An overweight to asset-
backed securities was also a positive as this sector was the only one to outperform Treasuries, with a positive excess return of 15 bp.  Although 
asset-backed securities comprise less than one percent of the benchmark, the portfolio held an average of 6% during the quarter.  Duration 
positioning had a negative –23 basis point impact this quarter due to the portfolio’s shorter duration during a quarter when interest rates declined 
approximately 30 basis points.  At the individual security level the top performers were several U.S. Treasuries due in 2021, 2022, and 2037, 
Bank of America, and Georgia Pacific, while the detractors were almost entirely energy related, including Ensco, Williams Partners, Kinder 
Morgan, and Dow Chemical.   
  
  
• The Plan’s fixed income segment returned 0.59% in the quarter, which underperformed the Barclays Aggregate return of 1.23%.  

• The separately managed fixed income portfolio returned 0.85% which underperformed the benchmark.  The portfolio would have 
ranked approximately in the 31st percentile of the Morningstar Intermediate Term Bond Universe.  

• The PIMCO Total Return Bond Fund declined -0.09% in the quarter, which placed it in the 76th percentile of Morningstar’s 
Intermediate-Term Bond Universe. The Fund underperformed the  Index. 

• The PIMCO High Yield Bond Fund returned -3.5% in the quarter, and outperformed the Merrill Lynch US High Yield BB-B Index return 
of -4.26%. The Fund ranked in the 25th percentile of Morningstar’s High Yield Universe. 

 

8



PARS: County of Contra Costa 

Alternative Investments  
  
The outperformance within alternatives for the third quarter rested solely on the performance of the AQR Managed Futures Fund.  For the 
quarter, the AQR Fund returned 6.24%.  Positions in commodities, currencies, and fixed income supported returns, while equities were the only 
segment that detracted from performance.  Long-term trend signals contributed the most to performance with commodities (+3.2%) providing 
over half of the quarterly contribution to performance.  Short positions in Brent Crude, WTI Crude, and Gas Oil were the leading contributors in 
the quarter.  The other alternative funds offered disappointing returns in the quarter.  The Eaton Vance Global Macro Fund declined -1.76%.  
Sovereign credit exposure was the largest detractor, with positions in Zambian credit, Ecuadorian credit, and long exposure to Brazilian interest 
rates hurting performance the most.  With the declines in global equity markets in the quarter, performance was hampered by exposure to credit 
in Latin America, Western Europe, Africa, and the Middle East.  The Arbitrage Fund registered a -1.37% return in the quarter, as positions in 
Williams Partners LP (-32.8%) and AbbVie Inc: (-18.43%) hurt performance. In addition, many positions moved down slightly as deal spreads 
widened throughout the quarter, particularly in semiconductors and healthcare.   The final alternative fund, the JP Morgan Market Neutral Fund 
also generated a modest negative return, posting a -0.33% return. “Long” stock selection in Lam Research (-19%), United Technologies (-19%), 
and Morgan Stanley (-18%) hurt performance.  “Short” positions in Nvidia (+2.3%), Netflix (+10%), and Progressive Corp (+10%) hurt 
performance. 
  
• The alternative investment segment returned 0.96% in the third quarter, which exceeded the Wilshire Liquid Alternatives Index 

return of -2.37%. 
• The Arbitrage Fund returned -1.37% in the quarter which ranked in the 56th percentile of Morningstar’s Market Neutral Universe. 
• The JPMorgan Research Market Neutral Fund returned -0.33%, which placed the Fund in the 44th percentile of the Morningstar Market 

Neutral Universe. 
• The Eaton Vance Global Macro Absolute Return Fund posted a -1.76% return, which placed in the 52nd percentile of the Morningstar 

Non-Traditional Bond Universe. 
• The AQR Managed Futures Fund’s return of 6.24% ranked in the 4th percentile of Morningstar’s Managed Futures Fund Universe. 

  

9



PARS: County of Contra Costa 

Asset Allocation/Portfolio Transitions   
  
In August, we implemented a style tilt in our investment portfolios, by overweighting value vs. growth equities across all market capitalization.  
Over the past year, growth equities have outpaced value stocks by a considerable margin.  Growth-oriented sectors such as technology, bio-
tech, and health care, have posted strong gains.  On the other hand, the value-oriented sectors such as the financials, energy, and basic 
materials have lagged considerably.  We view valuations as more compelling in ‘value’ oriented indices, and we believe investors’ attention will 
eventually revert back to value names as the cycle continues.   
  
No changes occurred in investment managers during the quarter 

10



PARS: County of Contra Costa 

Manager Watch List 
Name of Fund Date on watch list Date exiting watch list Recommendation Rationale

Ivy Mid-Cap Growth 2Q 2015 Review
Peer ranking has fallen below the median over 3-year 

and 5-year periods

MFS International Growth 4Q 2014 Review
Peer ranking has fallen below the median over 3-year 

and 5-year periods

Pimco Total Return Bond Fund 4Q 2014 Review

Personnel turnover at the firm, coupled with turnover 
within the organization.   Asset outflows are also a 

mitigating factor.  We wish to see potential impact of 
personnel turnover in 1Q2016 after incentive payments 

are paid on 2015 performance

Arbitrage Fund 3Q 2015 Review
Investment returns are not exceeding expectations of 

alternative category: Cash + 3 to 4% return

Eaton Vance Global Macro Absolute Return Fund 3Q 2015 Review
Investment returns are not exceeding expectations of 

alternative category: Cash + 3 to 4% return

JP Morgan Research Market Neutral Institutional 1 3Q 2015 Review
Investment returns are not exceeding expectations of 

alternative category: Cash + 3 to 4% return

AQR Managed Futures 3Q 2015 Review

Hitesh Mittal, former head of trading at AQR is 
voluntarily taking a leave of absence amid a regulatory 

investigation of his former employer, investment 
Technology Group Inc. (ITG)

11



PARS: County of Contra Costa 

 
6/30/2015 6/30/2015 9/30/2015 9/30/2015 Target

Asset Allocation Market Value % of Total Market Value % of Total Allocation

Large Cap Equities
Columbia Contrarian Core Z 5,824,916 3.4% 5,761,636 3.5%  -
iShares Russell 1000 ETF 9,167,856 5.3% 9,970,530 6.0%  -
Dodge & Cox Stock Fund 3,748,924 2.2% 4,148,570 2.5%  -
Loomis Sayles Value Fund 3,755,720 2.2% 4,145,510 2.5%  -
Harbor Capital Appreciation Instl 3,747,579 2.2% 2,454,671 1.5%  -
T. Rowe Price Growth Stock Fund 3,746,409 2.2% 2,432,602 1.5%  -
Total Large Cap Equities 29,991,404 17.4% 28,913,520 17.4% 17.0%

Range 13-32%
Mid Cap Equities
iShares Russell Mid-Cap ETF 2,501,173 1.4% 2,472,315 1.5%  -
TIAA-CREF Mid-Cap Value Instl 2,077,080 1.2% 2,487,690 1.5%  -
Ivy Mid Cap Growth Fund I 2,085,668 1.2% 1,637,196 1.0%  -
Total Mid Cap Equities 6,663,920 3.9% 6,597,202 4.0% 6.0%

Range 2-10%
Small Cap Equities
iShares Russell 2000 ETF 4,989,780 2.9% 4,891,505 2.9%  -
Columbia Small Cap Value Fund II 3,759,096 2.2% 4,949,871 3.0%  -
T. Rowe Price New Horizons Fund 3,769,586 2.2% 2,415,554 1.5%  -
Total Small Cap Equities 12,518,463$              7.2% 12,256,930$          7.4% 8.0%

Range 4-12%
International Equities
Nationwide Bailard Intl  Equities Fund 3,317,459 1.9% 3,339,166 2.0%  -
iShares MSCI EAFE Index Fund 4,922,316 2.9% 5,081,475 3.1%  -
Dodge & Cox International Stock Fund 2,466,651 1.4% 2,497,969 1.5%  -
MFS International Growth Fund 2,470,887 1.4% 2,535,877 1.5%  -
Schroder Emerging Market Equity 2,513,949 1.5% 2,529,558 1.5% -
SPDR EURO STOXX 50 ETF 3,237,508 1.9% 3,405,378 2.0% -
Total International Equities 18,928,769$              11.0% 19,389,423$          11.7% 9.0%

Range 4-16%
Global Equities
MSCI iShares ACWI Index ETF 5,795,959 3.4% 5,886,364 3.5%
American Funds New Perspective F2 2,903,680 1.7% 2,900,028 1.7%
MFS Global Equity FD CL R5 #4818 (Bought 2Q15) 2,898,941 1.7% 2,932,892 1.8%
Total Global Equities 11,598,579$              6.7% 11,719,285$          7.0% 7.0%

Range 4-12%

Asset Allocation
Period Ending September 30, 2015

12



PARS: County of Contra Costa 

 

6/30/2015 6/30/2015 9/30/2015 9/30/2015 Target
Asset Allocation Market Value % of Total Market Value % of Total Allocation

Real Estate
Nuveen Real Estate Secs I Fund 3,315,743 1.9% 4,173,016 2.5%  -
Total Real Estate 3,315,743$               1.9% 4,173,016$            2.5% 4.0%

Range 0-8%
Fixed Income
Core Fixed Income Holdings 50,390,226 29.2% 51,623,727 31.0%  -
PIMCO Total Return Instl Fund 8,785,253 5.1% 8,056,570 4.8%  -
PIMCO High Yield Instl 2,529,799 1.5% 1,638,049 1.0%  -
Total Fixed Income 61,705,278$              35.7% 61,318,346$          36.9% 38.0%

  Range 30-50%
Alternatives
AQR Managed Futures I 5,809,447 3.4% 5,869,472 3.5%  -
Arbitrage I 4,251,189 2.5% 4,154,066 2.5%  -
Eaton Vance Glbl Macro Abs Ret I 5,922,984 3.4% 5,807,707 3.5%  -
JP Morgan Research Market Neutral I 4,259,926 2.5% 4,144,203 2.5%  -
Total Alternatives 20,243,546$              11.7% 19,975,447$          12.0% 10.0%

  Range 5-20%
Cash
Money Market 7,703,908 4.5% 1,929,296 1.2%  -
Total Cash 7,703,908$               4.5% 1,929,296$            1.2% 1.0%

Range 0-5%

TOTAL 172,669,611$            100.0% 166,272,463$         100.0% 100.0%

Asset Allocation
Period Ending September 30, 2015

13



PARS: County of Contra Costa 

*Ending Market Value differs from total market value on the previous page due to differences in reporting methodology. The above ending market value is 
reported as of trade date and includes accruals. The Asset Allocation total market value is reported as of settlement date.  

Investment Summary Third Quarter 2015 Year to Date 2015
Beginning Value 173,251,842.30$        155,218,379.57$        
     Net Contributions/Withdrawals -43,438.67 15,040,527.02
     Fees Deducted -44,070.96 -130,618.60
     Income Received 956,321.65 2,117,972.48
     Market Appreciation -7,268,241.25 -5,594,084.50
     Net Change in Accrued Income -178,107.55 22,129.55
Ending Market Value* 166,674,305.52$        166,674,305.52$        

Investment Summary Third Quarter 2014 Year to Date 2014
Beginning Value 149,018,588.16$        129,408,886.38$        
     Net Contributions/Withdrawals -40,479.81 14,487,883.57
     Fees Deducted -41,375.68 -122,677.76
     Income Received 606,380.54 1,594,290.48
     Market Appreciation -2,007,895.99 2,142,299.78
     Net Change in Accrued Income -41,009.92 -16,475.15
Ending Market Value 147,494,207.30$        147,494,207.30$        

Investment Summary
Period Ending September 30, 2015

14



INVESTMENT STRATEGY  
As of September 30, 2015 

Tactical Asset Allocation  
Asset Class % Portfolio Weighting Rationale 

                            
 

Target 
       

         
Current 
Portfolio  

      
Over/Under 
Weighting        

Cash 
 

1.0% 1.25% +.25%  

Fixed Income 38.0% 37.0% -1.0%  Fixed income is currently underweight versus the target allocation given our expectations for an increase in interest 
rates. While the magnitude and timing of a rate hike is in question given some of the recent softness in economic 
numbers, we expect the Fed will remove its zero interest rate policy in the fourth quarter.  

High Yield 0.0% 1.0% +1.0%  If the Fed is not aggressive in hiking rates, and the economy generates reasonable growth, spreads should likely 
stay close to current levels. 
 

Alternatives 10.0% 12.0% +2.0%  Alternatives serve to  mitigate the impact of a decline in the bond market, due to a potential rise in interest rates.   

Real Estate (REITS) 4.0% 2.5% -1.5%  While still maintaining an underweight in REITs, we increased our allocation slightly in the quarter.  Earnings and 
cash flow fundamentals are improving for REITs.  Strong employment trends are providing support for REITs.  If the 
Fed does not aggressively raise rates, REITs may likely outperform the domestic equity market.   

 
Global Equity 7.0% 7.0% -  Global equities remain at reasonable valuations due to the international equity component of the MSCI ACWI 

benchmark, however the U.S. equity component makes the asset class a little less attractive. 
 

International (Developed) 9.0% 9.75% +0.75%  International developed equities remain at a slight overweight.  Attractive valuations in Europe, coupled with the 
ECB’s quantitative easing program, should aid a recovery in the Eurozone. The MSCI-EAFE, at 13.7X 2016 
earnings, trades at a discount to U.S. domestic equity markets. 

 

International (Emerging) 0.0% 1.5% +1.5%  We maintain our position in emerging markets, due to valuation measures (11.4X forward PE) that remain attractive 
relative to other areas of the market.  Concerns in Latin America (inflation), Russia (oil prices), and emerging  Asia 
(China volatility) temper our allocation levels. 

Total Domestic Equity 31.0% 29.0% -2.0%  

Large Cap 17.0% 17.5% +0.5%  We maintain our overweight to large cap equities.  At a 17X forward PE level, valuations remain attractive on a 
relative basis to mid-cap and small-cap domestic equities. 

Mid Cap 6.0% 4.0% -2.0%  We continue to remain underweight based on valuation concerns, with the Russell Mid-Cap Index trading richer than 
both large and small cap at a 18X forward PE ratio. 

 
Small Cap 8.0% 7.5% -0.5%  We are targeting a 7.5% target allocation to small caps, a slight underweight.  The asset class is slightly over valued. 

PARS: County of Contra Costa 
15



Inception Date: 02/01/2011 
* Benchmark from February 1, 2011 to June 30, 2013: 18% Russell 1000 Index, 6% Russell Midcap Index, 8% Russell 2000 Index, 8% MSCI ACWI Index, 10% MSCI EAFE Index, 45% Barclays Aggregate Index, 4% DJ Wilshire REIT 
Index, 1% Citigroup 3 Month T-Bill Index.  From July 1, 2013 to June 30, 2015:  17% Russell 1000 Index, 6% Russell Midcap Index, 8% Russell 2000 Index, 7% MSCI AC World US Index, 9% MSCI EAFE Index, 38% Barclays Aggregate 
Index, 4% DJ Wilshire REIT Index, 10% HFRI FOF Market Defensive Index, 1% Citigroup 3 Month T-Bill Index. From July 1, 2015:  17% Russell 1000 Index, 6% Russell Midcap Index, 8% Russell 2000 Index, 7% MSCI AC World US 
Index, 9% MSCI EAFE Index, 38% Barclays Aggregate Index, 4% DJ Wilshire REIT Index, 10% Wilshire Liquid Alternative Index, 1% Citigroup 3 Month T-Bill Index 
** Dynamic Alternatives Index represents the HFRI FOF Market Defensive Index from 07/01/2013 until 06/30/2015, and then the Wilshire Liquid Alternatives Index from 07/01/2015 forwards. 
 
Returns are gross-of-fees unless otherwise noted. Returns for periods over one year are annualized. The information presented has been obtained from sources believed to be accurate and reliable. Past performance is not indicative of 
future returns. Securities are not FDIC insured, have no bank guarantee, and may lose value. 

 PARS: County of Contra Costa 

Sector 3 Months

Year 
to Date 

(9 Months) 1 Year 3 Years

Inception 
to Date 

(56 Months)

Cash Equivalents .01 .02 .02 .02 .02
iMoneyNet, Inc. Taxable .01 .01 .02 .02 .02

Fixed Income ex Funds .85 1.44 2.79 1.70 3.94

Total Fixed Income .59 1.17 2.46 1.78 3.96
BC US Aggregate Bd Index 1.23 1.13 2.94 1.71 3.58

Total Equities -8.34 -5.16 -3.27 8.93 7.30

Large Cap Funds -7.22 -4.07 -.15 12.81 10.09
Russell 1000 Index -6.83 -5.24 -.61 12.66 11.30

Mid Cap Funds -9.29 -7.16 -1.44 10.86 8.48
Russell Midcap Index -8.01 -5.84 -.25 13.91 10.95

Small Cap Funds -9.71 -4.50 2.03 13.92 10.77
Russell 2000 Index -11.92 -7.73 1.25 11.02 9.11

REIT Funds 2.69 -4.55 9.37 9.17 9.65
Wilshire REIT Index 2.88 -3.01 11.66 10.09 10.82

International Equities -9.84 -6.33 -9.94 4.71 2.34
MSCI AC World Index -9.45 -7.04 -6.66 6.95 5.07
MSCI EAFE Index -10.23 -5.28 -8.66 5.63 2.33
MSCI EM Free Index -17.90 -15.47 -19.28 -5.27 -4.71

Alternatives .96 1.49 5.08
Dynamic Alternatives Index** -2.37 -4.23 -1.50 .22 -1.18

Total Managed Portfolio -3.75 -1.87 -.04 5.55 5.40
Total Account Net of Fees -3.77 -1.95 -.15 5.43 5.27

County of Contra Costa* -3.71 -2.47 .38 6.06 6.02

Selected Period Performance
PARS/COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA PRHCP

Account 6746038001
Period Ending: 09/30/2015

16



PARS: County of Contra Costa 

COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA 

3-Month YTD 1-Year 3-Year 5-Year
Fund Name Inception Return Rank Return Rank Return Rank Return Rank Return Rank

Columbia Contrarian Core Z (7/13) -7.22 47 -4.43 17 0.05 16 13.74 10 14.35 6
T. Rowe Price Equity Income -4.71 13 2.08 5 6.47 6 15.24 11 15.19 7
Harbor Capital Appreciation Instl -5.44 25 2.68 3 6.03 8 15.35 9 15.06 9
Loomis Sayles Value Fund (7/11) -9.47 70 -8.85 61 -5.37 59 11.74 23 12.30 19
Dodge & Cox Stock (10/14) -9.84 75 -8.64 58 -6.62 71 13.39 7 13.03 9
iShares Russell 1000 (3/15) -6.84 56 -5.30 31 -0.72 44 12.52 23 13.27 27
Idx: Russell 1000 -6.83 -- -5.24 -- -0.61 -- 12.66 -- 13.42 --

TIAA-CREF Mid-Cap Value Instl -8.62 37 -7.52 52 -2.01 41 12.73 44 12.11 41
Idx:  Russell Mid Cap Value -8.04 -- -7.66 -- -2.07 -- 13.69 -- 13.15 --
iShares Russell Mid-Cap (3/15) -8.05 25 -5.95 41 -0.39 40 13.72 35 13.22 38
Ivy Mid Cap Growth I (5/14) -11.61 78 -8.56 88 -2.75 82 9.90 81 10.81 67
Idx:  Russell Mid Cap Growth -7.99 -- -4.15 -- 1.45 -- 13.98 -- 13.58 --

Columbia Small Cap Value II Z -8.97 26 -5.09 11 1.33 18 12.91 12 12.62 9
Idx: Russell 2000 Value -10.73 -- -10.06 -- -1.60 -- 9.18 -- 10.17 --
iShares Russell 2000 (3/15) -11.91 56 -7.70 46 1.30 34 11.06 69 11.75 80
T. Rowe Price New Horizons -7.78 6 -0.62 14 6.32 17 15.98 4 18.10 1
Idx: Russell 2000 Growth -13.06 -- -5.47 -- 4.04 -- 12.85 -- 13.26 --

Dodge & Cox International Stock -15.38 97 -12.09 95 -16.19 95 6.62 18 4.06 34
Nationwide Bailard Intl Eqs InSvc -8.75 19 -3.18 25 -4.25 16 7.49 10 4.84 16
MFS International Growth I -8.45 34 -3.33 51 -5.43 54 3.34 80 4.10 55
MFS Global Equity R5 -7.70 30 -5.06 42 -1.86 22 10.27 19 9.99 11
iShares MSCI EAFE -10.23 53 -5.28 45 -8.73 50 5.51 22 3.87 15
iShares MSCI ACWI (3/15) -9.47 63 -7.19 52 -6.56 43 7.09 50 6.85 29
American Funds New Perspective F2 (3/15) -6.46 16 -1.19 10 0.57 11 10.63 15 9.69 15
Idx: MSCI EAFE -10.23 -- -5.28 -- -8.66 -- 5.63 -- 3.98 --
Idx: MSCI ACWI -9.45 -- -7.04 -- -6.66 -- 6.95 -- 6.82 --
Schroder Emerging Market Equity (11/12) -15.66 42 -13.19 34 -17.13 35 -4.66 50 -2.56 34
Idx: MSCI Emerging Markets -17.90 -- -15.47 -- -19.28 -- -5.27 -- -3.58 --
SPDR EURO STOXX 50 ETF (6/14) -9.09 84 -6.90 94 -12.64 93 6.25 56 1.90 100

Data Source: Morningstar, SEI Investments

believed accurate and reliable.  Securities are not FDIC insured, have no bank guarantee and may lose value.
Returns less than one year are not annualized.  Past performance is not indicative of future returns.  The information presented has been obtained from sources

LARGE CAP EQUITY FUNDS

MID CAP EQUITY FUNDS

SMALL CAP EQUITY FUNDS

INTERNATIONAL EQUITY FUNDS

For Period Ending September 30, 2015

17



PARS: County of Contra Costa 

COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA 

3-Month YTD 1-Year 3-Year 5-Year
Fund Name Inception Return Rank Return Rank Return Rank Return Rank Return Rank

Nuveen Real Estate Secs Y 2.36 43 -3.95 53 9.41 50 9.42 25 11.98 22
Idx: Wilshire REIT Index 2.88 -- -3.01 -- 11.66 -- 10.09 -- 12.52 --

Fixed Income Portfolio 0.85 31 1.44 9 2.79 12 1.70 42 -- --
Pimco Total Return Inst'l -0.09 76 0.25 61 1.58 56 1.36 60 3.23 47
Idx: BarCap US Aggregate Bond 1.23 -- 1.13 -- 2.94 -- 1.71 -- 3.10 --
PIMCO High Yield Instl (11/14) -3.50 25 -1.37 34 -0.96 17 3.61 26 5.65 35
ML US HY BB-B Constrained -4.26 -- -1.68 -- -2.04 -- 3.71 -- 5.99 --

Arbitrage I (7/13) -1.37 56 -0.84 53 0.16 47 0.92 52 1.39 36
AQR Managed Futures (7/13) 6.24 4 5.74 18 16.09 13 9.60 5 5.12 4
Eaton Vance Glbl Macro Abs Ret (7/13) -1.76 52 0.17 23 0.58 16 0.87 48 1.42 59
JPMorgan Research Market Neutral Instl (7/13) -0.33 44 -2.00 69 -1.19 64 1.46 41 0.07 68
Idx: Dynamic Alternatives -2.37 -- -4.23 -- -1.50 -- 0.22 -- -0.54 --

Data Source: Morningstar, SEI Investments

believed accurate and reliable.  Securities are not FDIC insured, have no bank guarantee and may lose value.
Returns less than one year are not annualized.  Past performance is not indicative of future returns.  The information presented has been obtained from sources

ALTERNATIVE FUNDS

REIT EQUITY FUNDS

BOND FUNDS

For Period Ending September 30, 2015

18



PARS: County of Contra Costa 

COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA 

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Fund Name Inception Return Rank Return Rank Return Rank Return Rank Return Rank

Sentinel Common Stock I (7/13) 10.62 63 31.04 61 14.92 57 1.79 21 14.90 31
Columbia Contrarian Core Z (7/13) 12.92 31 35.73 17 18.67 10 -0.93 52 16.21 17
T. Rowe Price Growth Stock 8.83 65 39.20 12 18.92 14 -0.97 39 16.93 35
Harbor Capital Appreciation Instl 9.93 53 37.66 17 15.69 43 0.61 24 11.61 82
Loomis Sayles Value Fund (7/11) 10.76 48 35.54 14 19.70 4 -2.81 66 11.94 72
Dodge & Cox Stock (10/14) 10.40 54 40.55 2 22.01 2 -4.08 74 13.49 47
Idx: Russell 1000 13.24 -- 33.11 -- 16.42 -- 1.50 -- 16.10 --

TIAA-CREF Mid-Cap Value Instl 12.85 19 32.55 71 16.60 48 -2.17 34 21.20 59
Idx:  Russell Mid Cap Value 14.75 -- 33.46 -- 18.51 -- -1.38 -- 24.75 --
Ivy Mid Cap Growth I (5/14) 8.20 38 30.12 84 13.45 58 -0.31 24 30.38 13
Idx:  Russell Mid Cap Growth 11.90 -- 35.74 -- 15.81 -- -1.65 -- 26.38 --

Columbia Small Cap Value II Z 4.61 42 40.14 20 14.57 61 -2.39 30 25.64 52
Idx: Russell 2000 Value 4.22 -- 34.52 -- 18.05 -- -5.50 -- 24.50 --
T. Rowe Price New Horizons 6.10 19 49.11 10 16.20 22 6.63 2 34.67 12
Idx: Russell 2000 Growth 5.60 -- 43.30 -- 14.59 -- -2.91 -- 29.09 --

Dodge & Cox International Stock 0.08 9 26.31 8 21.03 16 -15.97 81 13.69 6
Nationwide Bailard Intl Eqs InSvc -1.94 15 21.68 28 20.87 17 -15.58 74 11.85 32
MFS International Growth I -5.10 58 13.84 79 19.71 31 -10.62 40 15.24 35
Templeton Global Opportunities A LW -4.06 93 25.75 48 22.27 7 -10.48 69 5.20 95
Idx: MSCI EAFE -4.90 -- 22.78 -- 17.32 -- -12.14 -- 7.75 --
Idx: MSCI ACWI 4.16 -- 22.80 -- 16.13 -- -7.35 -- 12.67 --

Schroder Emerging Market Equity (11/12) -4.61 70 -2.28 54 21.73 19 -16.70 20 13.49 92
Idx: MSCI Emerging Markets -2.19 -- -2.60 -- 18.22 -- -16.15 -- -- --
SPDR EURO STOXX 50 ETF (6/14) -8.36 73 27.43 34 20.48 55 -16.42 48 -8.94 95

Nuveen Real Estate Secs Y 31.28 17 1.32 58 18.34 22 7.96 50 30.57 12
Idx: Wilshire REIT 31.78 -- 1.86 -- 17.59 -- 5.52 -- -- --

REIT EQUITY FUNDS

For Period Ending December 31, 2014
LARGE CAP EQUITY FUNDS

MID CAP EQUITY FUNDS

SMALL CAP EQUITY FUNDS

INTERNATIONAL EQUITY FUNDS

19



PARS: County of Contra Costa 

COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA 

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Fund Name Inception Return Rank Return Rank Return Rank Return Rank Return Rank

Fixed Income Portfolio 4.74 69 -1.40 41 5.42 69 8.41 5 -- --
Pimco Total Return Inst'l 4.69 71 -1.92 60 10.36 12 4.16 87 8.83 26
Idx: BarCap US Aggregate Bond 5.97 -- -2.02 -- 4.21 -- 7.84 -- 6.54 --
PIMCO High Yield Instl (11/14) 3.31 13 5.77 68 14.55 52 4.00 38 14.24 45
Idx: Merrill Lynch US High Yield BB-B 3.49 -- 6.31 -- 14.59 -- 5.39 -- 14.26 --

Arbitrage I (7/13) 1.64 39 1.15 67 0.44 48 4.74 20 1.76 16
AQR Managed Futures (7/13) 9.69 40 9.40 6 2.99 5 -6.37 29 0.00 0
Eaton Vance Glbl Macro Abs Ret (7/13) 3.03 18 -0.24 58 4.11 79 -0.39 44 4.75 61
JPMorgan Research Market Neutral Instl (7/13) 3.38 25 2.26 56 4.51 9 -7.04 86 -0.90 36

Data Source: Morningstar, SEI Investments

believed accurate and reliable.  Securities are not FDIC insured, have no bank guarantee and may lose value.

BOND FUNDS

ALTERNATIVE FUNDS

Returns less than one year are not annualized.  Past performance is not indicative of future returns.  The information presented has been obtained from sources

For Period Ending December 31, 2014

20


	Agenda
	PR.1_2014-2015 Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Commission Annual Report
	PR.1_ATT_FY 2014_15 JJDPC Annual Report
	D.2_UPDATE ON SECURITY PRECAUTIONS AT COUNTY FACILITIES
	D.3_Cost Confirmation Hearing for Real Property Located at 549 Grove Ave., Richmond, CA
	D.3_ATT_itemized costs
	D.3_ATT_before and after pix
	D.4_Electric Vehicle Charging Stations
	D.4_ATT_Ordinance No. 2015-22
	D.4_ATT_Exhibit B Local Findings
	D.5_Cost Confirmation Hearing for Real Property Located at 14 Cooke Ave., Crockett, CA
	D.5_ATT_Itemized costs
	D.5_ATT_before and after photos
	D.6_HOME Consortium, Richmond
	D.6_ATT_Nov 12, 2015 letter from the City of Richmond
	D.6_ATT_Urban County Cooperation Agreement
	D.7_Rate Changes for Solid Waste Collection in the Unincorporated Areas Served by Allied Waste Systems, Inc. Under the County Franchise Agreement
	D.7_ATT_Exhibit A_ Final Report - Review of 2016 Allied Waste Systems Rate Application
	Exhibit A - Final Report
	Option 1 Rates
	Option 2 Rates
	Attachment A
	Base Year Rate Application
	Audited Financials

	Attachment B - Adjusted Rate Model
	Attachment C: Comparative Rate Survey 
	Table C-1: Residential Rates
	Table C-2: Commercial Rates



	C.  1_Right of Entry Agreement for Camino Diablo Paving at Union Pacific Railroad Crossing, Knightsen Area
	C.  1_ATT_Right of Entry Agreement
	C.  2_Contract amendment with CCTA for SR4 East Widening Somersville Road to State Route 160 Project
	C.  3_APPROVE the conveyance of real property to the State of California
	C.  4_Contract amendment with CH2M Hill, Inc., to extend termination date of contract, Countywide.
	C.  5_Approve the third extension for Road Improvement Agreement RA06-01208, San Ramon (Dougherty Valley) area. 
	C.  5_ATT_Resolution No. 2015_436
	C.  5_ATT_Third Extension
	C.  6_APPROVE and ADOPT the Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) Program for County Airports, Concord and Byron areas.
	C.  6_ATT_DBE Program Document
	C.  6_ATT_DBE Program Attachments
	C.  7_claims
	C.  8_Resolution recognizing Dale Barnett, National Commander of the American Legion
	C.  8_ATT_Resolution No. 2015_462
	C.  9_Celebrating the 5th Annual Scare Away Hunger Event
	C.  9_ATT_Resolution No. 2015_463
	C. 10_Re-Appoint Theresa Kula to the Economic Opportunity Council
	C. 11_Appointment to the Advisory Council on Aging
	C. 12_APPOINT in lieu of election nominees to Board of Trustees Reclamation District No. 2059
	C. 12_ATT_Reclamation District 2059
	C. 13_Medical Staff Appointments and Reappointments _ November 2015
	C. 13_ATT_OB-GYN privledges
	C. 13_ATT_Attachment
	C. 14_Appropriation Adjustment - 2015 Emergency Management Performance Grant
	C. 15_2016 County Sponsored Bill
	C. 16_Add one Administrative Aide, one Community and Media Relations Specialist positions_cancel one Account Clerk Exp and one Social Worker position in EHSD
	C. 16_ATT_ P-300 _21740
	C. 17_ADD (1) Senior Buyer Position and CANCEL (1) Buyer II position in the Public Works Department.
	C. 17_ATT_P300 No. 21777
	C. 18_Add one Social Service Program Assistant and cancel one EW Specialist position 
	C. 18_ATT_P-300 _21766
	C. 19_Add .5 Victim_Witness Assistance Program Specialist position in the Human Trafficking Unit of the District Attorney's Office
	C. 19_ATT_P300 No. 21788
	C. 20_Retitle and reallocate Departmental PC Coordinator to Information Systems Supervisor in EHSD.
	C. 20_ATT_P-300 _21779
	C. 21_Add one Independent Living Skills Program Specialist in Children and Family Services Bureau
	C. 21_ATT_P-300 _21778
	C. 22_Add one Medical Records Coder position in the Health Services Department
	C. 22_ATT_P300 No. 21782 HSD
	C. 23_Add one Veterans Service Represented Position in the Veterans Service Office
	C. 23_ATT_AIR 21783 - add one VSR position
	C. 24_Add Three (3) Legal Assistant Positions in the District Attorney's Office
	C. 24_ATT_P300 No. 21787
	C. 25_Add two 24_40 RN-Experienced Level positions and cancel one 40_40 RN-Experienced Level position in the Health Services Dep
	C. 25_ATT_P-300 _21794
	C. 26_Reallocate salaries of two classifications in the Health Services Department
	C. 26_ATT_P300 No. 21731 HSD
	C. 27_Resolution No. 2015_448 State of California Minimum Wage Law
	C. 27_ATT_Resolution No. 2015_448
	C. 28_Confirming Memorandum of Understanding with the Deputy District Attorneys' Association (correcting attachment)
	C. 28_ATT_Resolution No. 2015_452
	C. 28_ATT_DDAA MOU 7-1-15 thru 6-30-18
	C. 29_CACASA MOU
	C. 30_Interagency Agreement _28-682-13 with Mt Diablo Unified School District
	C. 31_Accept Additional SLPP Funds for the Arts and Culture Commission
	C. 32_HAVA Accessibility Contract with the Secretary of State
	C. 33_Approve Memorandum of Understanding _28-881 with Anthem Blue Cross Health Plan
	C. 34ize to Apply and Accept if awarded a California State EMS Authority Grant to Advance Health Information Exchange in Emergency Medical Services G
	C. 34_ATT_flyer
	C. 35_Interagency Agreement _28-753-8 with Pittsburg Unified School District
	C. 36_Interagency Agreement _ 29-507-14 with West Contra Costa Unified School District
	C. 37_Agreement _28-881 with Anthem Blue Cross Health Plan  
	C. 38_Dispatch Services for the City of Oakley
	C. 39_Interagency Agreement Between the Department of Conservation and Development and Contra Costa Resource Conservation District. (49609)
	C. 39_ATT_L-4
	C. 40_Contract with Mt. Diablo Adult Education for Services to CalWORKs Clients
	C. 41_Contract Amendment to Extend the Term Limit with Cardno for the Preparation of an EIR for the Shell Greenhouse Gas Reduction Project
	C. 42_3rd Contract Amendment with CherryRoad Technologies, Inc., for the Implementation of Taleo Recruitment and Onboarding Application
	C. 43_Approve a Contract Amendment with Blessing and Harvey Professional Services Inc., d_b_a Ernie_s Plumbing _ Sewer Service
	C. 44_Approve a Contract Amendment with Overmiller Inc., d_b_a Roto-Rooter Sewer Service_
	C. 45_Approve a Contract Amendment with Matrix HG, Inc.
	C. 46_San Jose State University_ University-Organization Agreement
	C. 47_Contract _27-781-4 with East Bay Cardiology Medical Group, Inc. 
	C. 48_Stipends to foster parents and birth parents for trainings, workshops, and focus groups
	C. 49_Contract _26-323-25 with Careerstaff Unlimited, Inc. (dba Therapists Unlimited)
	C. 50_Contract _24-991-16 with Alexander Gorodetsky, M.D.  
	C. 51_Contract _74-433-6 with Michael Levin, M.D. 
	C. 52_Contract _26-741-4 with Martha D. Newman 
	C. 53_Contract _26-585-7 with L. Evan Custer, M.D.
	C. 54_Contract Payable (West Publishing Corporation)
	C. 55_Contract _24-403-14 with Jon Whalen, M.D.
	C. 56_Contract _74-507 with Jasbir Virk, M.D.
	C. 57_CONTRACT AMENDMENT WITH ENVIRONMENTAL SCIENCE ASSOCIATES, INC., FOR TECHNICAL CONSULTING SERVICES FOR WASTE DIVERSION PROGRAMS (CONTRACT C45074-01)
	C. 58_Contract Amendment with Urban Tilth for Park Dedication Funds to Help Fund the Development of an Urban Farm in North Richmond
	C. 59_Novation Contract _24-859-23 with Edgewood Center for Children and Families
	C. 60_Contract _27-986 with Sonja Robinson, R.N. (dba Healthcare Solutions USA) 
	C. 61_Amendment_Extension _23-325-20 with Wilson Consulting, Inc. 
	C. 62_Training Affiliation Agreement _26-631-1 with David Grant Medical Center
	C. 63_Payment for services provided by UHS Surgical Services, Inc.
	C. 64_Contract _26-779-2 with Futurenet Technologies Corp
	C. 65_Contract _25_012_33 with The Center for Common Concerns, Inc. (dba HomeBase) 
	C. 66_Contract _26-606-10 with Sodexo America, LLC 
	C. 67_Amendment _24-681-2(30) with Susan Martinez (dba God_s Grace Homes) 
	C. 68_Contract _26-654-12 with Bay Area Tumor Institute
	C. 69_ Amend and Extend State Legislative Contract with Nielsen Merksamer Parrinello Gross _ Leoni LLP  
	C. 70_Med One Capital Funding, LLC. Purchase Order 
	C. 71_Sanofi Pasteur, Inc. Blanket Purchase Order amendment
	C. 72_Amend and Extend Federal Legislative Contract with Alcalde _ Fay 
	C. 73_Contract _26-661-6 with Planned Parenthood, Shasta Diablo, Inc. 
	C. 74_Novation Contract _24_705_60 with We Care Services for Children
	C. 75_Novation Contract _24-133-66 with La Cheim School, Inc. 
	C. 76_Contract _74-505 with Anka Behavioral Health, Inc. 
	C. 77_Novation Contract _74-249-13 with Catholic Charities CYO of the Archdiocese of San Francisco
	C. 78_Novation Contract _24_933_33 with Crestwood Behavioral Health, Inc.
	C. 79_Contract _27-928-1 with Diabetics and Endocrinology Specialists, Inc. 
	C. 80_Novation Contract _24-682-30 with Victor Treatment Centers, Inc. 
	C. 81_ 
	C. 82_Novation Contract _24_308-43 with Early Childhood Mental Health Program
	C. 83_Interagency Agreement _72-019-1 with West Contra Costa Unified School District
	C. 84_Contract with Barry Krisberg PHD
	C. 85_Amend_Extend Contract with Richard Miller for Apple product support services
	C. 86_Contract with Trinity Services I, LLC
	C. 87_E3 Systems Professional Services Contract Amendment
	C. 88_Purchase Order with ATandT for Cisco Equipment
	C. 89_Resolution No. 2015_430 WEX Trainee and Title V Minimum Wage Increase Jan. 1, 2016
	C. 89_ATT_Resolution No. 2015_430
	C. 90_Church Lane CDBG 
	C. 90_ATT_Regulatory Agreement
	C. 90_ATT_Deed of Trust
	C. 90_ATT_CDBG Note
	C. 90_ATT_HOME Note
	C. 90_ATT_Amended and Restated Loan Agreement
	C. 91_Operations Update of the Employment and Human Services Department, Community Services Bureau
	C. 91_ATT_CSB Oct 2015 CAO Report
	C. 91_ATT_CSB Oct 2015 HS Fiscal Report
	C. 91_ATT_CSB Oct 2015 EHS Fiscal Report
	C. 91_ATT_CSB Oct 2015 CC Partnership Grant
	C. 91_ATT_CSB Oct 2015 Credit Card Report
	C. 91_ATT_CSB Oct 2015 CACFP Report
	C. 91_ATT_CSB Oct 2015 LIHEAP
	C. 91_ATT_CSB Oct 2015 Menu
	C. 92_Delegation of Investment Authority to the County Treasurer for Calendar Year 2016
	C. 93_Additional Allocations of FY 2015_16 Keller Canyon Mitigation Funds
	C. 94_Allocation of Fiscal Year FY 2014_15 and 2015_16 Housing Opportunities for Persons with HIV_AIDS (HOPWA)
	C. 95_Reimbursement Resolution for Multifamily Residential Rental Housing Developments
	C. 95_ATT_Resolution No. 2015_455
	C. 95_ATT_Exhibit A Inducement Resolution 
	C. 96_Unpaid Student Training Agreement _26-629-1 with Regents of the University of California on behalf of its Univ of CA, SF Benioff  Children's 
	C. 97_Unpaid Student Training Agreement _26-387 with Regents of the University of California on behalf of its University of California, San Diego Extension 
	C. 98_Unpaid Student Training Agreement _26-288-4 with Western University of Health Sciences, dba Western University of  Health Sciences, College of Osteopa
	C. 99_Workforce Development Board Bylaws Revision
	C. 99_ATT_WDB Redline Bylaws  Revision
	C. 99_ATT_WDB Bylaws Clean Copy
	C.100_General Plan Amendment Study Request for Property Located at 2424 Olympic Boulevard, Saranap Area
	C.100_ATT_Attachment A - Letter from D. Kishnani, Sterling Consultants, Requesting General Plan Amendment Study
	C.101_Fish and Wildlife Committee 2015 Anuual Report 
	C.101_ATT_Fish and Wildlife Committee 2015 Annual Report 
	C.102_Accepting the Innovative Community Partnership Report
	C.102_ATT_Innovative Community Partnership Report
	C.103_PHASE 1 TRIENNIAL ADVISORY BODY REVIEW RECOMMENDATIONS
	C.103_ATT_Attachment A_HSD Recommendations on Alcohol and Other Drugs Advisory Board
	C.104_Subordination Agreement - Palacek Manufacturing Facility Owner Participation Agreement
	C.104_ATT_Subordination Agreement
	C.105_ _Stepping Up_ to Reduce the Number of People with Mental Illnesses in Jails
	C.106_2015 REPORT FROM BOARD ADVISORY BODY
	C.107_Disposal of Surplus Property
	C.107_ATT_Surplus Vehicles and Equip
	C.108_Discharge from Accountability for Certain Health Services 
	C.109_California WaterFix Change Petition to Water Rights Application with the State Water Resources Control Board
	C.110_New and Recredentialing Providers in Contra Costa Health Plan_s Community Provider Network
	C.110_ATT_Attachment
	C.111_Replace site for HRSA scope of project
	C.112_Annual CHDP and CCS Program Certifications
	C.113_Request for Relief of Cash Shortage
	C.114_CONTINUE Extension of Emergency Declaration Regarding Homelessness
	C.115_Quarterly Report of the Post Retirement Health Benefits Trust Agreement Advisory Body
	C.115_ATT_Third Quarter 2015
	PARS: County of Contra Costa��Third Quarter 2015�
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	INVESTMENT STRATEGY �As of September 30, 2015
	Slide Number 16
	Slide Number 17
	Slide Number 18
	Slide Number 19
	Slide Number 20


